
 

Committee Members 

Howard McKinnon, Havana - Chairman 

Lynne Tejeda, Key West – Vice Chairwoman 

 

Jody Young, Bushnell Larry Mattern, Kissimmee 

Lynne Mila, Clewiston    Brad Chase, Leesburg 

Fred Hilliard, Fort Meade Bill Conrad, Newberry 

Paul Jakubczak, Fort Pierce Mike Poucher, Ocala 

Robert Page, Green Cove Springs Robert Milner, Starke 

Allen Putnam, Jacksonville Beach 

ARP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA PACKAGE 

September 19, 2019 
9:15 a.m. [NOTE TIME] (or immediately 

following the Board of Directors Meeting) 
Dial-in Info 877-668-4493 or 650-479-3208 

Meeting Number 731 528 032# 
 

Meeting Location 
Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 
Orlando, FL 32819 

(407) 355-7767 

Page 1 of 473



  

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  FMPA Executive Committee  

FROM: Jacob A. Williams, General Manager and CEO  

DATE:  September 10, 2019 

RE:  FMPA Executive Committee Meeting  
Thursday, September 19, 2019 at 9:15am [NOTE TIME] 
(or immediately following the Board of Directors meeting) 

PLACE: Florida Municipal Power Agency 
8553 Commodity Circle, Orlando, FL 32819 
Fredrick M. Bryant Board Room 
 

DIAL-IN: (877) 668-4493 or 650-479-3208, Meeting Number 731 528 032# 
(If you have trouble connecting via phone or internet, call 407-355-7767) 

 
Chairman Howard McKinnon, Presiding  

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order, Roll Call, Declaration of Quorum ....................................................... 4 
 
2. Set Agenda (by vote) .................................................................................................. 5 
 
3. Recognition of Guests ................................................................................................ 6 

 
4. Public Comments (Individual public comments limited to 3 minutes) ................... 7 

 
5. Comments from the Chairman (Howard McKinnon) ................................................ 8 

 
6. Report from the General Manager (Jacob Williams) ................................................ 9 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Meeting Minutes – Meeting Held August 22, 2019; ARP Telephonic Rate 
Workshop Minutes Held August 14, 2019 .............................................................. 11 

b. Approval of Treasury Reports – As of July 31, 2019.............................................. 16 

c. Approval of the Agency and All-Requirements Project Financials as of 
July 31, 2019 ......................................................................................................... 20 
 

Page 2 of 473



 

 
8. Action Items 

a. None ...................................................................................................................... 21 

 

9. Information Items 

a. Review of Resolution 2019-EC6 and EC7 – Series 2019 A & B Bonds and Related 
Documents (Rich Popp) ......................................................................................... 23 

b. Update on FP&L Transmission Rate Increases * (Ken Rutter) ............................ 412 

c. Review of the Finance Municipal Disclosure Procedure Changes * (Linda S. Howard)

............................................................................................................................. 418 

d. Starke FGT Firm Gas Transportation Contract Assignment to FMPA (Chris Gowder / 
Richard Montgomery) .......................................................................................... 455 

 

10. Member Comments ................................................................................................. 466 
 

11. Adjournment ............................................................................................................ 467 
 
*Item also on the Board of Directors Agenda. 
 
** Item(s) Subject to Super Majority Vote  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE: One or more participants in the above referenced public meeting may participate by telephone. At the above location there will be a 
speaker telephone so that any interested person can attend this public meeting and be fully informed of the discussions taking place either 
in person or by telephone communication. If anyone chooses to appeal any decision that may be made at this public meeting, such person 
will need a record of the proceedings and should accordingly ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which includes the 
oral statements and evidence upon which such appeal is based. This public meeting may be continued to a date and time certain, which will 
be announced at the meeting. Any person requiring a special accommodation to participate in this public meeting because of a disability, 
should contact FMPA at (407) 355-7767 or (888) 774-7606, at least two (2) business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements. 

Page 3 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
        
       AGENDA ITEM 1 – CALL TO ORDER,  

ROLL CALL, DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
 

 
 

       
     Executive Committee 

                   September 19, 2019 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2 – SET AGENDA (By Vote)  
 

 
 
 
Executive Committee 
September 19, 2019

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 5 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 3 – RECOGNITION OF 
GUESTS  
 
 
 
 
Executive Committee 
September 19, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 6 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 –PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(INDIVIDUAL COMMENTS TO BE LIMITED 
TO 3 MINUTES)  

 
 
 

Executive Committee 
September 19, 2019 

 

Page 7 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       VERBAL REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 

VERBAL REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 – COMMENTS FROM THE 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 

                         
        Executive Committee 

September 19, 2019

Page 8 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

       VERBAL REPORT 
 
 
 

VERBAL REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – REPORT FROM THE 
GENERAL MANAGER 

 
 

                         
        Executive Committee 

September 19, 2019

Page 9 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          AGENDA ITEM 7 – CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes – Meetings 
Held August 22, 2019, ARP Telephonic Rate 
Workshop Minutes Help August 14, 2019 

 
 

  Executive Committee 
                September 19, 2019 

Page 10 of 473



CLERKS DULY NOTIFIED .................................................................... AUGUST 13, 2019 

AGENDA PACKAGES POSTED ........................................................... AUGUST 13, 2019 
 

MINUTES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 22, 2019 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

8553 COMMODITY CIRCLE 

ORLANDO, FL 32819 
 

PARTICIPANTS  Jody Young, Bushnell 

PRESENT:  Lynne Mila, Clewiston 
Fred Hilliard, Fort Meade (via telephone) 
Paul Jakubczak, Fort Pierce 
Bob Page, Green Cove Springs 

 Allen Putnam, Jacksonville Beach 
 Lynne Tejeda, Key West  
 Larry Mattern, Kissimmee 
 Brad Chase, Leesburg 
 Bill Conrad, Newberry (via telephone) 
 Mike Poucher, Ocala  

 

OTHERS  John Tompeck, Fort Pierce 

PRESENT Barbara Quiñones, Homestead 
 Karen Nelson, Jacksonville Beach 

 Grant Lacerte, Kissimmee 
Jim Williams, Leesburg 
Steve Langley, Mount Dora 
Lynn Sand, Leidos 
 

STAFF Jacob Williams, General Manager and CEO 

PRESENT Jody Finklea, Deputy General Counsel 
Ken Rutter, Chief Operating Officer 
Linda Howard, Chief Financial Officer 
Carol Chinn, Chief Information and Compliance Officer 
Cairo Vanegas, Manager of Member Services Development 
Chris Gowder, Business Development and Planning Manager 
Dan O’Hagan, Assistant General Counsel 
Mark McCain, Assistant General Manager, Member Services, Human  
     Resources and Public Relations  
Sharon Adams, Human Resources Director 
Sue Utley, Executive Asst. /Asst. Secy. to the Board 
Susan Schumann, Manager of External Affairs and Solar Projects 
Mike McCleary, Manager of Member Services Development 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 473



EXEUCITVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
August 22, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

ITEM 1 - CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
 
Vice Chair Lynne Tejeda, Key West, called the FMPA Executive Committee Meeting to order at 
10:51 a.m. on Thursday August 22, 2019 in the Frederick M. Bryant Board Room at Florida 
Municipal Power Agency 8553 Commodity Circle, Orlando, Florida.  The roll was taken and a 
quorum was declared with 11 members present out of a possible 13. 
 

ITEM 2 – SET AGENDA (BY VOTE) 
 

MOTION:  Paul Jakubczak, Fort Pierce, moved approval of the agenda as presented. Allen 
Putnam, Jacksonville Beach, seconded the motion.  Motion carried 11 – 0.  
 

ITEM 3 – RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 
 
None 
 

ITEM 4 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None 
 

ITEM 5 – COMMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN 
 
None 
 

ITEM 6 – REPORT FROM GENERAL MANAGER 
 
None 
 

ITEM 7 –CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Item 7a – Approval of Meeting Minutes – Held July 17, 2019; ARP Telephonic Rate Workshop 

Minutes Help July 10, 2019 

 

Item 7b – Approval of Treasury Reports – As of June 30, 2019 
 

Item 7c – Approval of the Agency and All-Requirements Project Financials as of June 30, 

2019 

 

MOTION:  Paul Jakubczak, Fort Pierce, moved approval of the agenda as presented. Mike 
Poucher, Ocala, seconded the motion.  Motion carried 11 – 0. 

Page 12 of 473



EXEUCITVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
August 22, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

ITEM 8 – ACTION ITEMS 
 

Item 8a – Approval of Resolution 2019-EC5 – Approval of Wells Fargo Line of Credit 

Extension  
 

MOTION:  Paul Jakubczak, Fort Pierce, moved approval of Resolution 2019-EC5.  Allen Putnam, 
Jacksonville Beach, seconded the motion.   
 
Resolution 2019-EC5 was read by title: 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE FLORIDA 

MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY: (I) RECITING STATEMENT OF 
AUTHORITY; (II) APPROVING AND ADOPTING SUPPLEMENT NO. 1 TO 
ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT SUBORDINATED 
DEBT RESOLUTION NO. 29, ADOPTED OCTOBER 20, 2016; (III) 
PROVIDING FOR THE TAKING OF CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS; (IV) 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND (V) PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Motion carried 11 – 0. 
 

Item 8b – Approval of Change in 1st and 2nd Read Process 
 

MOTION:  Larry Mattern, Kissimmee, moved approval that the Executive Committee two-read 
policy will be handled by a first presentation to the Finance Committee, with a summary report 
given to the Executive Committee, and a second presentation to the Executive Committee at the 
subsequent month’s meeting beginning October 1, 2019.  Allen Putnam, Jacksonville Beach, 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried 11 – 0. 
 
 

ITEM 9 – INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 

Item 9a – Notice of Annual Continuing Disclosure Report for Fiscal Year Ended September 

30, 2018 

 

Ed Nunez reported that the Notice of Annual Continuing Disclosure Report for Fiscal 
Year Ended September 30, 2018 was filed on time and thanked the members and their 
staff for sending the information to FMPA in a timely manner. 
 

Item 9b – Solar Projects’ Phase I Update 
 

Chris Gowder updated the Board on the Solar Project Phase 1. 
 
 

Page 13 of 473



EXEUCITVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
August 22, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Item 9c – Update on Transmission Rate Increases 

 

Ken Rutter updated the Board on upcoming transmission rate increases from FPL and 
OUC. 
 

ITEM 10 – MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Bob Page, Green Cove Springs, said he’s concerned that we are chasing gas prices to lower costs. 
 He would like to see information on getting predictable rates brought back to a future Executive 
Committee meeting. 
 

ITEM 11 – Adjournment 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:45 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
              
Howard McKinnon      Sue Utley 
Chairperson, Executive Committee   Assistant Secretary 
 
 
Approved:         Seal 

Page 14 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          AGENDA ITEM 7 – CONSENT AGENDA 
 

b) Approval of Treasury Reports as of July 31, 
2019 

 
 
 
  Executive Committee 

                September 19, 2019 

Page 15 of 473



 

 

 AGENDA PACKAGE MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: FMPA Executive Committee 

FROM: Gloria Reyes    

DATE: September 10, 2019 

ITEM: EC 7(b) – Approval of the All-Requirements Project Treasury Reports as of  

July 31, 2019  

             
 
Introduction • This report is a quick summary update on the Treasury Department’s 

functions.    
 • The Treasury Department reports for July are posted in the member portal 

section of FMPA’s website. 
 

Debt  
Discussion The All-Requirements Project has fixed, variable, and synthetically fixed 

rate debt.  The variable rate bonds and lines of credit portion is 1.53%. The 
fixed and synthetic fixed rate percentages of total debt are 89.28% and 
9.19%, respectively.  The estimated debt interest funding for fiscal year 
2019 as of July 31, 2019 is $40,723,005. The total amount of debt 
outstanding is $860,323,000.1 
 

 
Hedging  
Discussion The Project has 4 interest rate swap contracts. As of July 31, 2019, the 

cumulative market value of the interest rate swaps in the All-Requirements 
Project was ($14,592,604).   
 
The Swap Valuation Report for July is posted in the “Member Portal” 
section of FMPA’s website. 

 
 

 
Investment 
Discussion The investments in the Project are comprised of debt from the government-

sponsored enterprises such as the Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home 
Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), and 
Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), as well as 
investments in U.S. Treasuries, Municipal Bonds, Corporate Notes, 
Commercial Paper and Money Market Mutual Funds.  

                                                 
1 Although still on deposit, the line of credit draw amount of $5,000,000 is included in the total amount of debt outstanding. 

Page 16 of 473



 
 
 
EC 8(b) – Approval of the All-Requirements Project Treasury Reports as of May 31, 2019 
September 19, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

As of July 31, 2019, the All-Requirements Project investment portfolio earned a 
weighted average yield of 2.43%, reflecting the All-Requirements Project need for 
liquidity given its 60-day cash position. The benchmarks (SBA’s Florida Prime Fund 
and the 2-year US Treasury Note) and the Project’s yields are graphed below:  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

All-Requirement's Weighted Average Yield
2-Year History

FL Prime 2 Yr. Treasury All Requirements Project

Page 17 of 473



 
 
 
EC 8(b) – Approval of the All-Requirements Project Treasury Reports as of May 31, 2019 
September 19, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

Below is a graph of US Treasury yields for the past 2 years. The orange line is 
the 2-year Treasury which closed the month of July at 1.75%. The yellow line 
is the 5-year Treasury which was 1.76%.  

 

 
 
The Investment Report for July is posted in the “Member Portal” section of 
FMPA’s website.  

 
 

 
Recommended  
Motion Move for approval of the Treasury Reports for July 31, 2019  

 
 

 
 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

Ju
l-1

7

Se
p-

17

N
ov

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

M
ar

-1
8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
l-1

8

Se
p-

18

N
ov

-1
8

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

US Government Treasury Securities Interest Rates 
2-Year History

2-Yr Treasury Yield 5-Yr Treasury Yield

Page 18 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          AGENDA ITEM 7 – CONSENT AGENDA 
 

c) Approval of the Agency and All-
Requirements Project Financials as of July 
31, 2019  
 

 
 
  Executive Committee 

                September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 19 of 473



 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: FMPA Executive Committee 

FROM: Linda Howard 

DATE:           September 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: EC 7c – Approval of the Agency and All-Requirements Project Financials for 
the period ended July 31, 2019 

 

 

 

Discussion:                        The summary and detailed financial statements of the Agency and 

All- Requirements Project for the period ended July 31, 2019 are 

posted on the Document Portal section of FMPA’s website. 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Recommended Motion:   Move approval of the Agency and All-Requirements Project Financial 

reports for the month of July 31, 2019. 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

LH/GF 

 

 

Page 20 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8 – ACTION ITEMS 
 
 

a) None 
 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 

Page 21 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             AGENDA ITEM 9 – INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

a) Review of Resolution 2019 – EC6 and EC7 – 
Series 2019 A & B Bonds and Related 
Documents 

 
 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 22 of 473



Executive Committee

September 19, 2019

9a –Review of Resolution 2019-EC6 and EC7 –
Series 2019A&B Bonds

Page 23 of 473



Timing Is Right To Refinancing 08C & 13A

2

• Bond Buyer Mid-year review report:
 “Other than restrained volume, the other story of the year in municipals is the 

strength and consistently of demand for the asset class.”

Municipal Debt Supply and Demand Imbalance

• The muni market is now smaller 
than it was a decade ago

• So far this year, investors have 
bought muni funds at a pace 
exceeded only during the 
financial crisis in 2009, according 
to Lipper data going back to 
1992.

Page 24 of 473



2019 Refinancing May Have Net PV Savings

• Current Estimated 2019 PV Savings of ~$500,000

 PV amount is very sensitive to market changes

 Debt Policy target 3% savings most likely will not be achieved

Major wins with this transaction
• Termination of Swaps (2008C Issue)

• Elimination of LIBOR exposure (2008C & 2013A Issue)

• Shorter final maturity from 2035 to 2031 (2008C Issue)

3

Inclusive of Terminating All Outstanding Swaps

Page 25 of 473



Minimum Criteria Outlined In Resolutions

• Term: Final maturity
 2031 – 08C

 2023 – 13A

• True Interest Cost: 
 3.0% – 08C

 4.0% – 13A 

• Underwriters Discount: Max 
$5.00 per $1,000 Principal

• Par Amount: 08C-$90 million / 
13A-$8 million

• Cap of $500,000 PV Cost

• Transaction Authorization until 
5/31/2020

• Fixed Rate Debt

• No Debt Service Reserve Fund

4

For Approval at Next EC Meeting

Page 26 of 473



After Today

Closing
Price Bonds 

& 
Terminate 

Swaps

Obtain 
Credit 

Ratings

Due 
Diligence 

Call

EC 
Approve 

Resolutions

5

Next Steps in the Process

Page 27 of 473



Recommended Motion

• Information only

6Page 28 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-EC6 

FMPA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

SEPTEMBER 19, 2019 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF FLORIDA 

MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY (I) RECITING STATEMENT OF 

AUTHORITY; (II) APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE SERIES 2019A 

SUPPLEMENTAL ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION (FIXED RATE BONDS) WHICH 

AUTHORIZES THE ISSUANCE OF FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REFUNDING REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2019A TO BE SOLD ON OR BEFORE MAY 31, 2020 IN A 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT SUFFICIENT TO PRODUCE NOT TO EXCEED 

NINETY MILLION DOLLARS ($90,000,000) IN NET PROCEEDS FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF FMPA’S ALL-

REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT VARIABLE RATE DEMAND 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008C (THE “REFUNDED BONDS”) 

AND TO PAY ANY COSTS OF ISSUANCE RELATING TO THE SERIES 2019A 

BONDS (INCLUDING ANY SWAP TERMINATION FEES PAYABLE IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE TERMINATION OF ANY QUALIFIED SWAPS 

RELATED TO THE REFUNDED BONDS) AND DELEGATES TO 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES AND AUTHORIZED OFFICERS CERTAIN 

MATTERS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH SERIES 2019A BONDS 

INCLUDING (1) WHETHER AND WHEN TO ISSUE SUCH SERIES 2019A 

BONDS, (2) DETERMINATION OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, 

MATURITIES, INTEREST RATES, SINKING FUND INSTALLMENTS AND 

OTHER REDEMPTION PROVISIONS OF THE SERIES 2019A BONDS, (3) 

APPROVAL OF THE SALE AND PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE SERIES 2019A 

BONDS, (4) DETERMINATION OF THE SWAP TERMINATION FEES FOR 

TERMINATION OF ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE QUALIFIED SWAPS 

RELATING TO THE REFUNDED BONDS; (5) DETERMINATION OF 

WHETHER AND WHEN TO TERMINATE ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE 

QUALIFIED SWAPS RELATING TO THE REFUNDED BONDS AND TO 

EFFECT THE TERMINATION OF ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE 

QUALIFIED SWAPS AND TO EXECUTE ANY DOCUMENTATION IN 

CONNECTION THEREWITH, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE 

CONFIRMATIONS OF THE TERMINATIONS IN WHOLE OR IN PART OF 

ANY QUALIFIED SWAPS, (6) DETERMINATION OF AMOUNT, IF ANY, OF 

THE DEBT SERVICE RESERVE REQUIREMENT FOR THE SERIES 2019A 

BONDS, (7) DETERMINATION OF THE SWAP REINSTATEMENT FEES OR 

INCREASE IN FIXED RATES ON QUALIFIED SWAPS FOR 

REINSTATEMENT OF ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE QUALIFIED SWAPS 

RELATING TO THE REFUNDED BONDS AND THE PAYMENT OF SUCH 

FEES, (8) DETERMINATION OF WHETHER AND WHEN TO REINSTATE 

ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE QUALIFIED SWAPS RELATING TO THE 

REFUNDED BONDS AND TO EFFECT THE REINSTATEMENT OF ALL OR 

ANY PORTION OF THE QUALIFIED SWAPS AND TO EXECUTE ANY 

DOCUMENTATION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 

LIMITED TO, THE CONFIRMATIONS OF THE REINSTATEMENT IN 

WHOLE OR IN PART OF ANY QUALIFIED SWAPS, (9) DETERMINATION OF 

THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SERIES 2019A BONDS TO BE 

Page 29 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 

- 2 - 

 

ISSUED, (10) DETERMINATION OF PRESENT VALUE SAVINGS FROM 

ISSUING THE SERIES 2019A BONDS AND FROM ISSUING FMPA’S ALL-

REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REFUNDING REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2019B; AND (11) DETERMINATION OF  THE ADVISABILITY 

OF SECURING BOND INSURANCE FOR SUCH SERIES 2019A BONDS;  (III) 

MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AS TO THE REASONS REQUIRING THE 

NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE SERIES 2019A BONDS; (IV) 

ACKNOWLEDGING REQUIREMENT TO OBTAIN DISCLOSURE 

STATEMENT FROM THE UNDERWRITERS AND APPROVING THE FORM 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT; (V) AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE 

AWARD OF SALE OF THE SERIES 2019A BONDS TO ONE OR MORE 

UNDERWRITERS OF BONDS OF FMPA AND THE EXECUTION OF A BOND 

PURCHASE CONTRACT; (VI) APPROVING THE PREPARATION, 

EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND USE OF A PRELIMINARY AND A FINAL 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT, THE DEEMING “FINAL” OF THE PRELIMINARY 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND 

PERFORMANCE OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND, IF 

NECESSARY, AN ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT; (VII) DESIGNATING 

AUTHORIZED OFFICERS AND APPROVING AND RATIFYING PREVIOUS 

ACTIONS; (VIII) PROVIDING FOR THE TAKING OF CERTAIN OTHER 

ACTIONS; (IX) PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND (X) PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY (“FMPA”) THAT: 

SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This resolution (the “Resolution”) 

is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Part II, Chapter 361, Florida Statutes, as amended, Section 

163.01, Florida Statutes, as amended, and Part II, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

SECTION 2.  APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE SERIES 2019A SUPPLEMENTAL 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION 

(FIXED RATE BONDS).  The terms of the Series 2019A Supplemental 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) (the “Series 

2019A Supplemental Resolution”), in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, which delegates to 

Authorized Signatories, defined therein, certain matters relating to the issuance by FMPA of its All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A 

Bonds”) including, without limitation, whether and when to issue the Series 2019A Bonds, the aggregate 

principal amount of the Series 2019A Bonds, various matters relating to the initial issuance of the Series 

2019A Bonds, including the interest rates, maturities, principal amounts, sinking fund installments and 

other redemption provisions relating to the Series 2019A Bonds, determination of amount, if any, of the 

Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series 2019A Bonds, determination of present value savings 

from issuing the Series 2019A Bonds and from issuing FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B, provisions relating to the sale and purchase of the Series 

2019A Bonds, the execution and delivery of an Escrow Deposit Agreement, if any, determination of the 

swap termination fees for termination of all or any portion of the Qualified Swaps relating to the 

Refunded Bonds, provisions relating to the termination of certain outstanding Qualified Swaps, including, 

without limitation,  whether and when to terminate all or any portion of the Qualified Swaps relating to 

the Refunded Bonds and to effect the termination of all or any portion of the Qualified Swaps and to 

execute any documentation in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, the confirmations of the 

terminations in whole or in part of any Qualified Swaps, determination of the swap reinstatement fees or 

Page 30 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 

- 3 - 

 

increase in fixed rates on Qualified Swaps for reinstatement of all or any portion of the Qualified 

Swaps relating to the Refunded Bonds and the payment of such fees or to increase such fixed rates, 

provisions relating to the reinstatement of certain outstanding Qualified Swaps, including, without 

limitation,  whether and when to reinstate all or any portion of the Qualified Swaps relating to the 

Refunded Bonds and to effect the reinstatement of all or any portion of the Qualified Swaps and to 

execute any documentation in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, the confirmations of the 

reinstatement in whole or in part of any Qualified Swaps are hereby approved and said Supplemental 

Resolution is hereby adopted and the Authorized Officers designated herein are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and file the same with the Trustee.  In connection with such delegation, the 

Authorized Officers are further authorized to execute and deliver a Bond Series Certificate fixing the 

terms and other details of the Series 2019A Bonds. Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall 

have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond 

Resolution, adopted by FMPA on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on 

May 23, 2003, as supplemented and amended (the “Bond Resolution”).  

SECTION 3.  FINDINGS RELATING TO THE NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE 

SERIES 2019A BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE SERIES 2019A SUPPLEMENTAL 

RESOLUTION.  Pursuant to Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, as amended, it is hereby found, 

determined and declared in respect of any negotiated sale of the Series 2019A Bonds authorized by the 

Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, as follows: 

3.01 The Series 2019A Bonds to be sold will provide funds to pay the costs of refunding all or 

a portion of FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, 

(the “Refunded Bonds”) and to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2019A Bonds (including any 

swap termination fees payable by FMPA in connection with the termination of any Qualified Swaps 

relating to the Refunded Bonds). 

3.02 The Series 2019A Bonds authorized by the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution are 

expected to be issued in a single series at a time deemed most beneficial to providing monies to refund the 

Refunded Bonds and to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2019A Bonds (including any swap 

termination fees payable by FMPA in connection with the termination of any Qualified Swaps relating to 

the Refunded Bonds) as economically and expeditiously as possible and the successful sale of such 

Series 2019A Bonds would be made more difficult and expensive if required to be sold at competitive 

sale.   

3.03 Due to the characteristics of the Series 2019A Bonds, prevailing and anticipated market 

conditions and the need for flexibility in timing the issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds and the 

termination of the Qualified Swaps, it is necessary and in the best interests of FMPA to sell the Series 

2019A Bonds at a negotiated sale to the underwriters, upon satisfaction of the terms and conditions set 

forth in the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution and in the Bond Purchase Contract (as defined 

below). 

SECTION 4.  ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF REQUIREMENT TO OBTAIN DISCLOSURE 

STATEMENT FROM UNDERWRITERS; APPROVAL OF FORM OF DISCLOSURE 

STATEMENT.  FMPA hereby acknowledges that it is required to receive from the Underwriters a 

disclosure statement containing the information required pursuant to Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes.  

The form of disclosure statement, in substantially the form attached as an exhibit to the form of Bond 

Purchase Contract attached as Exhibit “A” to the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, is hereby 

approved (the “Bond Purchase Contract”). 

Page 31 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 

- 4 - 

 

SECTION 5.  AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL FOR THE AWARD OF SALE OF 

THE SERIES 2019A BONDS TO THE UNDERWRITERS OF FMPA’S SERIES 2019A BONDS 

AND THE EXECUTION OF A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT BETWEEN FMPA AND 

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC. AS REPRESENTATIVE OF THE UNDERWRITERS.  The sale of 

the Series 2019A Bonds to Barclays Capital Inc., on behalf of itself and as representative for BofA 

Securities, Inc. (collectively, the “Underwriters”), is hereby authorized, together with the execution and 

delivery by the Authorized Officers of a Bond Purchase Contract substantially in the form attached to the 

Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution as Exhibit “A,” with such changes therein as such Authorized 

Officers may deem necessary or desirable, for such sale to the Underwriters, as provided in the Series 

2019A Supplemental Resolution.  

SECTION 6.  APPROVING THE FORM OF AND THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND 

THE USE OF A PRELIMINARY AND A FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AUTHORIZING 

THE AUTHORIZED OFFICERS TO DEEM “FINAL” THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 

STATEMENT, AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND PERFORMANCE OF 

A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND, IF NECESSARY, AN ESCROW 

DEPOSIT AGREEMENT.  (a) The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized to prepare a Preliminary 

Official Statement and a Final Official Statement in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official 

Statement approved and attached as Exhibit “B” to the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, with such 

revisions to reflect the operations of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and with such other 

changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as the Authorized Officers may approve.  Such Authorized 

Officers are hereby authorized to make public and permit the distribution of the Preliminary Official 

Statement and to execute and deliver a final Official Statement relating to the Series 2019A Bonds on 

behalf of FMPA with such changes, omissions, insertions, revisions or modifications in and such 

additions to or deletions thereto as such Authorized Officers may approve, such approval to be 

conclusively evidenced by the execution thereof by such Authorized Officers and such Official Statement 

as so executed and delivered is hereby approved. The Authorized Officers are authorized to deliver a 

certification to the effect that the Preliminary Official Statement, together with such other documents, if 

any, described in such certificate was deemed final as of its date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the 

Securities and Exchange Commission. Such Authorized Officers are also hereby authorized to execute, 

deliver and provide for the performance by FMPA of the terms and conditions of a Continuing Disclosure 

Agreement in substantially the form appended to the Bond Purchase Contract with such changes therein 

as such Officers deem necessary or desirable, such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the 

execution of such Continuing Disclosure Agreement by said Authorized Officers of FMPA. The 

Authorized Officers of FMPA are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver an Escrow 

Deposit Agreement, if necessary or desirable, in substantially the form attached to the Series 2019A 

Supplemental Resolution as Exhibit “C,” subject to such changes or modifications therein as the 

Authorized Officers may approve as necessary or desirable thereto, such approval to be evidenced 

conclusively by the execution of such Escrow Deposit Agreement by said Authorized Officers of FMPA.  

(b) The Preliminary Official Statement, Final Official Statement, Continuing Disclosure 

Agreement and all other disclosure documentation relating to the issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds will 

be prepared in accordance with FMPA’s Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures, adopted on 

November 10, 2015, as amended (the “Disclosure Procedures”). 

SECTION 7.  DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED OFFICERS AND APPROVAL AND 

RATIFICATION OF PREVIOUS ACTIONS.  The Chairperson of the Executive Committee and the 

Vice Chairperson of the Executive Committee and the Secretary, elected Treasurer, General Manager and 

CEO, any Assistant Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of FMPA are each hereby designated as (i) 

Authorized Officers for the purposes of executing and delivering the Series 2019A Supplemental 

Resolution and, subject to the provisions of the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, taking any other 

Page 32 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 

- 5 - 

 

actions authorized by this Resolution and in connection with the issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds 

under the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution and (ii) as Authorized Officers as defined in Section 

101 of the Bond Resolution for the purpose of executing and delivering the documents set forth herein 

and taking any other actions authorized by this Resolution in connection with the issuance of the Series 

2019A Bonds and any actions taken prior to the date hereof in connection with any actions authorized by 

this Resolution are hereby approved and ratified.  

SECTION 8.  FURTHER ACTIONS.  Each Authorized Officer designated hereunder is hereby 

authorized and empowered to take all further actions as may be necessary or desirable in carrying out the 

terms and provisions of this Resolution and each of the documents referred to herein.  

SECTION 9.  SEVERABILITY.  If one or more provisions of this Resolution should be 

determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such provisions shall be deemed to 

be severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and shall in no way affect the validity or 

enforceability of such remaining provisions. 

SECTION 10.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption. 

This Resolution 2019-EC[_] is hereby approved and adopted by the Executive Committee of the 

Florida Municipal Power Agency on September 19, 2019. 

  

Chairperson, Executive Committee 

Page 33 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that, on September 19, 2019, the above Resolution 2019-EC[_] was 

approved and adopted by the Executive Committee of the Florida Municipal Power Agency, and that this 

is a true and conformed copy of Resolution 2019-EC[_]. 

ATTEST: 

  

 Secretary or Assistant Secretary SEAL 

Page 34 of 473



4840-6647-4912.7 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds)

Page 35 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 
 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2019A 

_______________ 

Series 2019A Supplemental 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds)  

_______________ 

Adopted September 19, 2019 

 

 

Page 36 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- i - 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I.  

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY  

SECTION 1.01. Supplemental Resolution .................................................................................. 1 
SECTION 1.02. Definitions......................................................................................................... 1 
SECTION 1.03. Authority for this Supplemental Resolution ..................................................... 2 

ARTICLE II. 

 AUTHORIZATION OF SERIES 2019A BONDS;  

 TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 2019A BONDS  

SECTION 2.01. Principal Amount, Designation of Series, Purpose, Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement ...................................................................................................... 2 
SECTION 2.02. Date, Maturities, Principal Amounts and Interest ............................................. 3 
SECTION 2.03. Forms of Series 2019A Bonds and Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication, 

Denominations, Numbers and Letters............................................................... 3 
SECTION 2.04. Place and Medium of Payment; Paying Agent ................................................. 4 
SECTION 2.05. Sinking Fund Installments ................................................................................ 4 
SECTION 2.06. Redemption Prices and Terms .......................................................................... 4 
SECTION 2.07. Delegation to Authorized Signatories ............................................................... 4 
SECTION 2.08. Sale of Series 2019A Bonds ............................................................................. 8 

SECTION 2.09. Compliance with Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures ........................... 8 

SECTION 2.10. Appointment of Paying Agent and  

 Bond Registrar for the Series 2019A Bonds ..................................................... 9 
SECTION 2.11. Dealings in Series 2019A Bonds with FMPA ................................................ 10 
SECTION 2.12. Book-Entry-Only System................................................................................ 10 

ARTICLE III.  

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIES 2019A BONDS  

SECTION 3.01. Disposition of Series 2019A Bond Proceeds .................................................. 12  

SECTION 3.02. Purchase of Escrow Securities ........................................................................ 12 
 

ARTICLE IV.  

MISCELLANEOUS  

SECTION 4.01. Defeasance ...................................................................................................... 13 
SECTION 4.02. Tax Covenants ................................................................................................ 13 
SECTION 4.03. Effective Date ................................................................................................. 15 

 

Page 37 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

 

SERIES 2019A SUPPLEMENTAL 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION (FIXED RATE BONDS)  

BE IT RESOLVED by Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”) as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 

 

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

SECTION 1.01. Supplemental Resolution.  This Series 2019A Supplemental 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) 

(the “Supplemental Resolution”) is supplemental to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution adopted by FMPA on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its 

entirety on May 23, 2003, as supplemented and amended to the date hereof (the “Bond 

Resolution”).  The Bond Resolution as so supplemented and amended is hereinafter referred to 

as the “Resolution”. 

SECTION 1.02. Definitions.  1.  Except as provided by this Supplemental 

Resolution, all terms which are defined in Section 101 of the Resolution shall have the same 

meanings, respectively, in this Supplemental Resolution as such terms are given in said 

Section 101 of the Resolution. 

2. In this Supplemental Resolution: 

Authorized Signatories means (i) Chairperson of the Executive Committee or the Vice 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee and (ii) the General Manager and CEO of FMPA or the 

Chief Financial Officer of FMPA.  

Bond Counsel means Nixon Peabody LLP or any other attorney at law or a firm of 

attorneys, designated by FMPA, of nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the 

tax-exempt nature of interest on bonds issued by states and their political subdivisions, duly 

admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any state of the United States of 

America selected by FMPA. 

Bond Series Certificate means a certificate fixing the terms and other details of the 

Series 2019A Bonds, executed by the Authorized Signatories in accordance with delegation of 

power to do so under Section 2.07 hereof. 

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which 

commercial lenders in New York City or the State of Florida are closed. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable 

regulations thereunder. 

DTC means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, as initial Securities 

Depository or any substitute securities depository appointed pursuant to Section 2.12.3(c) hereof. 

Page 38 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 2 - 

 

Net Proceeds shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01 of this Supplemental 

Resolution. 

Opinion of Bond Counsel means a written opinion signed by Bond Counsel. 

Refunded Bonds means FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate 

Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C to be refunded with a portion of the proceeds 

of the Series 2019A Bonds, as more particularly described in the Bond Series Certificate.  

Securities Depository means a recognized securities depository selected by FMPA to 

maintain a book-entry system with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, and shall include any 

substitute for or successor to the securities depository initially acting as Securities Depository. 

Securities Depository Nominee means, as to any Securities Depository, such Securities 

Depository or the nominee of such Securities Depository in whose name there shall be registered 

on the registration books maintained by FMPA at the office of the Bond Registrar the bond 

certificates to be delivered to and immobilized at such Securities Depository during the 

continuation with such Securities Depository of participation in its book-entry system. 

Series 2019A Bonds means FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, authorized by Article II of this Supplemental Resolution. 

Supplemental Resolution means, collectively, this Supplemental Resolution and Bond 

Series Certificate, which is supplemental to the Bond Resolution as from time to time amended 

or supplemented by other supplemental resolutions in accordance with the terms of the 

Resolution and the terms hereof.  This Supplemental Resolution shall constitute a “Supplemental 

Resolution” within the meaning of the Resolution. 

SECTION 1.03. Authority for this Supplemental Resolution.  This Supplemental 

Resolution is adopted (i) pursuant to the provisions of the Act and (ii) in accordance with 

Article II and Article X of the Bond Resolution. 

ARTICLE II. 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF SERIES 2019A BONDS;  

TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 2019A BONDS 

SECTION 2.01. Principal Amount, Designation of Series, Purpose, Debt 

Service Reserve Requirement.  1.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Bond Resolution, a Series 

of Additional Bonds entitled to the benefit, protection and security of the Bond Resolution, 

which for purposes of this Supplemental Resolution shall be referred to herein as the 

“Series 2019A Bonds”, is hereby authorized to be issued from the date of this Supplemental 

Resolution to and including May 31, 2020 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the 

principal amount necessary so that, after giving effect to any original issue discount 

(exclusive of any premium) and underwriters' discount from the principal amount and 

exclusive of the amount, if any, required to be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve 

Account to satisfy the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any (other than the amount, if 

Page 39 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 3 - 

 

any, provided from other available funds of FMPA), the amount to be applied to the 

refunding of the Refunded Bonds pursuant to Section 3.01(a) of this Supplemental 

Resolution, or otherwise applied to effectuate the purposes of subsection 3 of Section 2.01 

(exclusive of the amount so deposited therein determined in any Bond Series Certificate as 

estimated to be necessary to pay capitalized interest or to pay any Costs of Issuance of the 

Series 2019A Bonds (including any termination fees related to any Qualified Swap terminated 

in connection with refunding of the Refunded Bonds)) payable from the proceeds of such 

Series 2019A Bonds, shall not exceed the amount or amounts determined in the Bond Series 

Certificate to be necessary to effectuate the purposes set forth in subsection 3 of Section 

2.01 hereof (“Net Proceeds”); provided, however, that as of any date of original issuance of 

any Series 2019A Bonds issued to finance all or a portion of the cost of refunding the 

Refunded Bonds, the aggregate amount of Net Proceeds shall not exceed $90,000,000. 

2. Series 2019A Bonds shall be designated as, and shall be distinguished from the 

Bonds of all other Series by the title, “All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A” or such other title or titles as are set forth in the Bond Series 

Certificate. 

3. The purposes for which the Series 2019A Bonds are issued is to provide for the 

payment of all or any part of the cost of refunding the Refunded Bonds deemed advisable by the 

Authorized Signatories executing a Bond Series Certificate pursuant to Section 2.07.1 hereof in 

accordance with Section 204 of the Bond Resolution, to fund the Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement, if any, to pay Costs of Issuance (including the payment of any termination fees 

related to any Qualified Swap terminated in connection with refunding of the Refunded Bonds). 

and to fund any related capitalized interest, all to the extent and in the manner provided in this 

Supplemental Resolution. 

4. The Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, for the Series 2019A Bonds shall 

be the amount set forth in the Bond Series Certificate. 

SECTION 2.02. Date, Maturities, Principal Amounts and Interest.  The 

Series 2019A Bonds, except as otherwise provided in the Resolution, shall be dated the date or 

dates determined in the Bond Series Certificate. The Series 2019A Bonds shall mature on the 

date or dates and in the year or years and principal amount or amounts, and shall bear interest at 

the rate or rates per annum, if any, specified in the Bond Series Certificate. 

The Series 2019A Bonds shall bear interest from their date or dates and be payable on 

such date or dates as may be determined pursuant to the Bond Series Certificate. Except as 

otherwise provided in the Bond Series Certificate, interest on the Series 2019A Bonds shall be 

computed on the basis of twelve 30-day months and a 360-day year. 

SECTION 2.03. Forms of Series 2019A Bonds and Trustee’s Certificate of 

Authentication, Denominations, Numbers and Letters.  1.  Unless otherwise provided in the 

Bond Series Certificate, the Series 2019A Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, subject 

to the provisions of a book-entry-only system (as hereinafter described), without coupons. 

Subject to the provisions of the Resolution, the form of registered Series 2019A Bonds, and the 

Trustee’s certificate of authentication, shall be substantially in the form and in the authorized 

Page 40 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 4 - 

 

denominations set forth in the Bond Series Certificate.  The Series 2019A Bonds shall be lettered 

and numbered as provided in the Bond Series Certificate. 

2. At the written direction of an Authorized Officer, “CUSIP” identification 

numbers will be imprinted on the Series 2019A Bonds, but such numbers shall not constitute a 

part of the contract evidenced by the Series 2019A Bonds and any error or omission with respect 

thereto shall not constitute cause for refusal of any purchaser to accept delivery of and pay for 

the Series 2019A Bonds.  In addition, failure on the part of FMPA or the Trustee to use such 

CUSIP numbers in any notice to Holders of the Series 2019A Bonds shall not constitute an event 

of default or any similar violation of FMPA’s contract with such Holders. 

SECTION 2.04. Place and Medium of Payment; Paying Agent.  Except as 

otherwise provided in the Bond Series Certificate, principal and Redemption Price of the 

Series 2019A Bonds shall be payable to the registered owner of each Series 2019A Bond when 

due upon presentation of such Series 2019A Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the 

Trustee. Except as otherwise provided in the Bond Series Certificate, interest on the registered 

Series 2019A Bonds will be paid by check or draft mailed on the interest payment date by the 

Paying Agent, to the registered owner at his address as it appears on the registration books or, at 

the option of any Holder of at least one million dollars ($1,000,000) in principal amount of the 

Series 2019A Bonds, by wire transfer in immediately available funds on each interest payment 

date to such Holder thereof upon written notice from such Holder to the Trustee, at such address 

as the Trustee may from time to time notify such Holder, containing the wire transfer address 

(which shall be in the continental United States) to which such Holder wishes to have such wire 

directed, if such written notice is received not less than twenty (20) days prior to the related 

interest payment date (such notice may refer to multiple interest payments). 

SECTION 2.05. Sinking Fund Installments.  The Series 2019A Bonds as 

determined in the Bond Series Certificate shall be subject to redemption in part, selected in such 

manner as the Trustee deems fair and appropriate, on each date in the year or years determined in 

the Bond Series Certificate at the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest up to but not 

including the date of redemption thereof, from mandatory Sinking Fund Installments which are 

required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on each such date the principal amount of 

such Series 2019A Bonds. 

SECTION 2.06. Redemption Prices and Terms.  The Series 2019A Bonds as 

determined in the Bond Series Certificate may also be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at 

the option of FMPA, at the Redemption Price or Redemption Prices, if any, and on the 

redemption terms, if any, as provided in the Bond Series Certificate, upon notice as provided in 

Article IV of the Resolution, at any time as a whole or in part (selected in such manner as the 

Trustee deems fair and appropriate within a maturity if less than all of a maturity is to be 

redeemed), from maturities designated by FMPA on and after the date and in the years and at a 

Redemption Price equal the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest up to but not 

including the redemption date. 

SECTION 2.07. Delegation to Authorized Signatories.  1.  There is hereby 

delegated to the Authorized Signatories, subject to the limitations contained in this Supplemental 

Resolution, the following powers with respect to the issuance of any Series 2019A Bonds or, in 

Page 41 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 5 - 

 

the case of clause (o) and clause (p) below, with respect to the failure to issue the Series 2019A 

Bonds after terminating the Qualified Swaps related to the Refunded Bonds: 

(a) to determine when to issue any Series 2019A Bonds, the amount of Net 

Proceeds to be provided by the Series 2019A Bonds, and the amount of the proceeds of 

the Series 2019A Bonds estimated to be necessary to pay the Costs of Issuance of the 

Series 2019A Bonds (including the payment of any termination fees related to any 

Qualified Swap terminated in connection with refunding of the Refunded Bonds) and to 

fund capitalized interest, if any;  

(b) to determine, in connection with the refunding of the Refunded Bonds and 

the issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds, the swap termination fees for termination of all 

or any portion of the Qualified Swaps relating to the Refunded Bonds; 

(c) to determine whether and when to terminate all or any portion of the 

Qualified Swaps relating to the Refunded Bonds and to effect the termination of all or 

any portion of the Qualified Swaps and to execute any documentation in connection 

therewith, including, but not limited to, the confirmations of the terminations in whole or 

in part of any Qualified Swaps; 

(d) to determine the amount, if any, of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement 

for the Series 2019A Bonds and the amount of the proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds 

estimated to be necessary to fund any such Debt Service Reserve Requirement; 

(e) to determine the principal amounts of the Series 2019A Bonds to be 

issued, which aggregate principal amounts shall not exceed the principal amounts 

permitted by Section 2.01 of this Supplemental Resolution, and to determine Accreted 

Values and Appreciated Values, if applicable; 

(f) to determine the maturity date and principal amount of each maturity of 

the Series 2019A Bonds and the amount and due date of each Sinking Fund Installment, 

if any; provided, however, that the final maturity date of the Series 2019A Bonds shall 

be no later than October 1, 2035;  

(g) to determine the date or dates which the Series 2019A Bonds shall be 

dated and the interest rate or rates of the Series 2019A Bonds; provided, however, that 

the Series 2019A Bonds the interest on which is generally intended by FMPA to be 

excluded from gross revenue for federal income tax purposes shall not have an all-in true 

interest cost (inclusive of the payment of any termination fees related to any Qualified 

Swap terminated in connection with refunding of the Refunded Bonds) in excess of 

5.00%; 

(h) to determine the Redemption Price or Redemption Prices, if any, and the 

redemption terms, if any, for the Series 2019A Bonds; provided, however, that if the 

Series 2019A Bonds are to be redeemable at the election of FMPA, the Redemption 

Price shall not be greater than one hundred two percent (102%) of the principal amount 

Page 42 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 6 - 

 

of the Series 2019A Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon up to but not 

including the date of redemption; 

(i) to determine the purchase price for the Series 2019A Bonds to be paid by 

the purchasers referred to in the Purchase Contract, as such document is described in 

Section 2.08 of this Supplemental Resolution which may include such original issue 

discount and original issue premium as shall be determined in the Bond Series 

Certificate; provided, however, that the underwriters’ discount reflected in such purchase 

price shall not exceed $5.00 for each one thousand dollars ($1,000) principal amount of 

the Series 2019A Bonds;  

(j) to determine the advisability, as compared to an unenhanced transaction, 

of obtaining bond insurance, to select a provider or providers thereof and to determine 

and accept the terms and provisions and price thereof, to determine such other matters 

related thereto as in the opinion of the Authorized Signatories executing the Bond Series 

Certificate shall be considered necessary or appropriate and to effect such determinations 

by making any changes in or additions to this Supplemental Resolution required by bond 

insurance providers, if any, or required by a Rating Agency in order to attain or maintain 

specific ratings on the Series 2019A Bonds, or relating to the mechanisms for the 

repayment of amounts advanced thereunder or payment of fees, premiums, expenses or 

any other amounts, notices, the provision of information, and such other matters of a 

technical, mechanical, procedural or descriptive nature necessary or appropriate to 

obtain or implement bond insurance with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, and to 

make any changes in connection therewith; 

(k) to take all actions required for the Series 2019A Bonds to be eligible under 

the rules and regulations of DTC for investment and trading as uncertificated securities, 

to execute and deliver a standard form of letter of representation with DTC and, 

notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained in this Supplemental 

Resolution, to include in the Bond Series Certificate such terms and provisions in 

addition to or modifying those contained in Section 2.12 hereof as may be appropriate or 

necessary to provide for uncertificated securities in lieu of Series 2019A Bonds issuable 

in fully registered form; 

(l) to determine whether to (i) enter into an Escrow Deposit Agreement (as 

hereinafter defined) or other arrangement in connection with the issuance of the Series 

2019A Bonds, including the selection of a verification agent, if any, and the manner of 

determining specified matters relating to the defeasance of the Refunded Bonds and 

(ii) purchase SLGs or open market securities and the form and substance thereof and any 

related investment agreement, and to determine the application of any amounts released 

in connection with any such refunding from any funds and accounts held under the 

Resolution;  

(m) to determine the present value savings from FMPA issuing the Series 

2019A Bonds as compared to the Refunded Bonds and from FMPA issuing the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B as 

compared to FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 

Page 43 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 7 - 

 

2013A, such total combined present value savings shall be no less than negative present 

value savings of $500,000 and the Authorized Signatories may rely on a certificate from 

FMPA’s financial advisor in order to confirm the savings determinations made in this 

clause (m); 

(n) to make such changes in or from the form of this Supplemental Resolution 

as may be necessary or desirable in connection with obtaining a rating with respect to the 

Series 2019A Bonds or, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, in order to cure any 

ambiguities, inconsistencies or other defects;  

(o) to determine, in connection with the failure to issue the Series 2019A 

Bonds after terminating the Qualified Swaps related to the Refunded Bonds, the swap 

reinstatement fees or increase in fixed rates on Qualified Swaps for reinstating all or any 

portion of the Qualified Swaps relating to the Refunded Bonds and to make payment of 

such fees or to increase such fixed rates; 

(p) to determine whether and when to reinstate all or any portion of the 

Qualified Swaps relating to the Refunded Bonds and to effect the reinstatement of all or 

any portion of the Qualified Swaps and to execute any documentation in connection 

therewith, including, but not limited to, the confirmations of the reinstatement in whole 

or in part of any Qualified Swaps; and 

(q) to determine such other matters specified in or permitted by (i) Sections 

202 and 204 of the Bond Resolution or (ii) any provision of this Supplemental 

Resolution, including preparation of any documentation therefore. 

2. The Authorized Signatories shall execute a Bond Series Certificate evidencing the 

determinations made pursuant to this Supplemental Resolution and any such Bond Series 

Certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the determinations of the Authorized Signatories as 

stated therein.  The Bond Series Certificate shall be delivered to the Trustee prior to or 

contemporaneous with the authentication and delivery of the Series 2019A Bonds accompanied 

by a certificate of Dunlap & Associates, Inc., as financial advisor to FMPA, certifying that, based 

on such assumptions  as such financial advisor deems appropriate, issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds for the purposes of refunding the Refunded Bonds and terminating any Qualified Swaps 

and payment of the Costs of Issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds (including payment of any 

termination fees payable in connection with the termination of any Qualified Swaps related to the 

Refunded Bonds) is advisable given current and expected financial market conditions.  

Determinations set forth in any Bond Series Certificate shall have the same effect as if set forth 

in this Supplemental Resolution. 

3. In the event that the Authorized Signatories exercise any of the authority 

delegated to them pursuant to this Section 2.07 and execute a Bond Series Certificate evidencing 

such exercise, a report describing the exercise of such delegated authority shall be delivered at 

the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Executive Committee of FMPA following the 

closing of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

Page 44 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 8 - 

 

SECTION 2.08. Sale of Series 2019A Bonds.   Each Authorized Officer is hereby 

authorized to sell and award the Series 2019A Bonds to the purchasers referred to in the 

Purchase Contract, which Purchase Contract shall be substantially in the form of the draft 

Purchase Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A with such revisions to reflect the terms and 

provisions of the Series 2019A Bonds as may be approved by the Officer executing the Purchase 

Contract (the “Purchase Contract”). Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to agree to the 

selection of the representative of the underwriters as referred to in the Purchase Contract and to 

execute and deliver the Purchase Contract for and on behalf and in the name of FMPA with such 

changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as may be approved by the Authorized Officer 

executing the Purchase Contract, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval and 

concurrence in the selection of the representative of the underwriters; provided, however, that at 

or prior to the time of the execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, FMPA shall have 

received from the senior managing underwriter the disclosure statement required pursuant to 

Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes.  The purchase price of the Series 2019A Bonds to be paid 

by the Underwriters pursuant to the Purchase Contract shall be determined as provided in 

Section 2.07 hereof, subject to the limitations set forth therein. 

2. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to make public and to authorize the 

use and distribution by said purchasers or other appropriate parties of a preliminary official 

statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) in connection with the public offering of the 

Series 2019A Bonds, in substantially the form of the draft Preliminary Official Statement 

attached hereto as Exhibit B with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such 

Officer shall deem necessary or appropriate. FMPA authorizes any of said Authorized Officers to 

deliver a certification to the effect that such Preliminary Official Statement, together with such 

other documents, if any, described in such certificate, was deemed final as of its date for 

purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission as applicable. 

3. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to make public and to authorize 

distribution of a final Official Statement in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official 

Statement, with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such Officer shall deem 

necessary or appropriate, to sign such Official Statement and to deliver such Official Statement 

to the purchasers of such issue of the Series 2019A Bonds, such execution being conclusive 

evidence of the approval of such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions. 

4. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver for and on 

behalf and in the name of FMPA, to the extent determined by such Authorized Officer to be 

necessary or convenient, a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, substantially in the form appended 

to the Purchase Contract, with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such Officer 

shall deem advisable (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”), said execution being conclusive 

evidence of the approval of such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions. 

5. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver for and on 

behalf and in the name of FMPA, to the extent determined by such Authorized Officer to be 

necessary or convenient, an Escrow Deposit Agreement, with TD Bank, National Association, as 

Escrow Agent (the "Escrow Agent"), substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, with 

such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such Officer shall deem advisable (the 

Page 45 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 9 - 

 

"Escrow Deposit Agreement"), said execution being conclusive evidence of the approval of such 

changes, omissions, insertions and revisions. 

6. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to take any and all action which 

they deem necessary or advisable in order to effect the registration or qualification (or exemption 

therefrom) of the Series 2019A Bonds for issue, offer, sale or trade under the Blue Sky or 

securities laws of any of the states of the United States of America and in connection therewith 

to execute, acknowledge, verify, deliver, file or cause to be published any applications, reports, 

consents to service of process, appointments of attorneys to receive service of process and other 

papers and instruments which may be required under such laws, and to take any and all further 

action which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain any such registration or 

qualification for as long as they deem necessary or as required by law or by the underwriters. 

7. The proceeds of the good faith check, if any, received by FMPA from the 

purchasers of the Series 2019A Bonds under the terms of the Purchase Contract may be invested 

by FMPA pending application of the proceeds of such good faith check for the purposes 

provided in Section 2.01 of this Supplemental Resolution at the time of the issuance and delivery 

of such Series 2019A Bonds or such good faith check may be held by FMPA uncashed and 

returned to the representative of the underwriters at the time of the issuance and delivery of the 

Series 2019A Bonds. 

8. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 

or cause to be executed and delivered any and all documents and instruments (including any 

insurance agreements or documents or instruments relating to bond insurance deemed 

appropriate) and to do and cause to be done any and all administrative acts and things as may be 

necessary or desirable in connection with the approval, execution and delivery of the Purchase 

Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Escrow Deposit Agreement, if any, the 

terms of any bond insurance or other such agreement or arrangement and the carrying out of their 

terms and the terms of the Bond Resolution and this Supplemental Resolution and the issuance, 

sale and delivery the Series 2019A Bonds and for implementing the terms of the Series 2019A 

Bonds and the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.  

9. When reference is made in this Supplemental Resolution to the authorization of 

an Authorized Officer to do any act, such act may be accomplished by any of such Officers 

individually. 

SECTION 2.09. Compliance with Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures.   

All actions taken by the Authorized Signatories under Section 2.07 and by the Authorized 

Officers under Section 2.08 shall be in compliance with all applicable provisions of FMPA’s 

Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures, adopted on November 10, 2015, as may be amended 

from time to time. 

SECTION 2.10. Appointment of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the 

Series 2019A Bonds.   Unless otherwise provided by the Bond Series Certificate, TD Bank, 

National Association is hereby appointed Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Series 2019A 

Bonds, such appointments to be effective immediately upon the filing of this Supplemental 

Resolution with the Trustee. 

Page 46 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 10 - 

 

SECTION 2.11. Dealings in Series 2019A Bonds with FMPA.   The Trustee, the 

Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar, each in its individual capacity, may in good faith buy, sell, 

own, hold and deal in any of the Series 2019A Bonds issued hereunder, and may join in any 

action which any Holder of the Series 2019A Bonds may be entitled to take with like effect as if 

it did not act in any capacity hereunder.  The Trustee, the Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar, 

each in its individual capacity, either as principal or agent, may also engage in or be interested in 

any financial or other transaction with FMPA, and may act as depository, trustee, or agent for 

any committee or body of Holders of any Series 2019A Bonds secured hereby or other 

obligations of FMPA as freely as if it did not act in any capacity hereunder. 

SECTION 2.12. Book-Entry-Only System.   1.  Except as provided in subsections 

2 and 3 of this Section 2.12, the registered holder of all Series 2019A Bonds shall be, and the 

Series 2019A Bonds shall be registered in the name of, Cede & Co. (“Cede”), as nominee of 

DTC.  Payment of interest for any Series 2019A Bond, as applicable, shall be made in 

accordance with the provisions of this Supplemental Resolution to the account of Cede on the 

interest payment dates for the Series 2019A Bonds at the address indicated for Cede in the 

registration books of FMPA kept by the Bond Registrar. 

2. (a) The Series 2019A Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate 

single fully registered Bond in the amount of each separate stated maturity of the Series 2019A 

Bonds.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such Series 2019A Bond shall be registered 

in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC.  

With respect to Series 2019A Bonds so registered in the name of Cede, FMPA, the Trustee, the 

Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC 

participant or to any beneficial owner of any of such Series 2019A Bonds.  Without limiting the 

immediately preceding sentence, FMPA, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent 

shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, 

Cede or any DTC participant with respect to any beneficial ownership interest in the 

Series 2019A Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC participant, beneficial owner or other person, 

other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, including any notice of 

redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC participant, beneficial owner or other person, other 

than DTC, of any amount with respect to the principal or Redemption Price of, or interest on, any 

of the Series 2019A Bonds.  FMPA, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent may 

treat DTC as, and deem DTC to be, the absolute owner of each Series 2019A Bond for all 

purposes whatsoever, including (but not limited to) (a) payment of the principal or Redemption 

Price of, and interest on, each such Series 2019A Bond, (b) giving notices of redemption and 

other matters with respect to such Series 2019A Bonds and (c) registering transfers with respect 

to such Series 2019A Bonds.  The Paying Agent shall pay the principal or Redemption Price of, 

and interest on, all Series 2019A Bonds only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments 

shall be valid and effective to satisfy fully and discharge FMPA’s obligations with respect to 

such principal or Redemption Price and interest, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  Except 

as provided in subsection 3 of this Section 2.12, no person other than DTC shall receive a 

Series 2019A Bond evidencing the obligation of FMPA to make payments of principal or 

Redemption Price of, and interest on, any such Series 2019A Bond pursuant to the Resolution.  

Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to 

substitute a new nominee in place of Cede, and subject to the transfer provisions of the 

Page 47 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 11 - 

 

Resolution, the word “Cede” in this Supplemental Resolution shall refer to such new nominee of 

DTC. 

(b) Except as provided in subsection 3(c) of this Section 2.12, and notwithstanding 

any other provisions of the Resolution or this Supplemental Resolution, the Series 2019A Bonds 

may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC 

to DTC or another nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC to any successor securities 

depository appointed pursuant to this Section 2.12 or any nominee thereof. 

3. (a)   DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the 

Series 2019A Bonds at any time by giving written notice to FMPA, the Trustee, the Bond 

Registrar and the Paying Agent, which notice shall certify that DTC has discharged its 

responsibilities with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds under applicable law.   

(b) FMPA, in its sole discretion and without the consent of any other person, may, by 

written notice to the Trustee, terminate the services of DTC with respect to the Series 2019A 

Bonds if FMPA determines that the continuation of the system of book-entry-only transfers 

through DTC is not in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Series 2019A Bonds or 

FMPA; and FMPA shall, by written notice to the Trustee, terminate the services of DTC with 

respect to the Series 2019A Bonds upon receipt by FMPA, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee and 

the Paying Agent of written notice from DTC to the effect that DTC has received written notice 

from DTC participants having interests, as shown in the records of DTC, in an aggregate 

principal amount of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate principal amount of the 

then Outstanding Series 2019A Bonds to the effect that:  (i) DTC is unable to discharge its 

responsibilities with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds; or (ii) a continuation of the requirement 

that all of the Outstanding Series 2019A Bonds be registered in the registration books kept by 

Bond Registrar, in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC, is not in the best interests of the 

beneficial owners of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

(c) Upon the termination of the services of DTC with respect to the Series 2019A 

Bonds pursuant to subsection 3(b)(ii) hereof, or upon the discontinuance or termination of the 

services of DTC with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds pursuant to subsection 3(a) or 

subsection 3(b)(i) hereof, FMPA may within 90 days thereafter appoint a substitute Securities 

Depository which, in the opinion of FMPA, is willing and able to undertake the functions of 

DTC hereunder upon reasonable and customary terms.  If no such successor can be found within 

such period, the Series 2019A Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the 

registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC.  In such 

event, FMPA shall execute and the Trustee or its authenticating agent shall authenticate 

Series 2019A Bond certificates as requested by DTC of like principal amount, maturity and 

Series, in authorized denominations and the Trustee or its authenticating agent shall deliver such 

certificates at its corporate trust office to the beneficial owners identified in writing by the 

Securities Depository in replacement of such beneficial owners’ beneficial interests in the 

Series 2019A Bonds. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution or this Supplemental 

Resolution to the contrary, so long as any Series 2019A Bond is registered in the name of Cede, 

as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the principal or Redemption Price of, and 

Page 48 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 12 - 

 

interest on, such Series 2019A Bond and all notices with respect to such Series 2019A Bond 

shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the blanket letter of representations 

of FMPA addressed to DTC with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds. 

(e)  In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to Holders 

of Series 2019A Bonds registered in the name of Cede pursuant to the Resolution by FMPA or 

the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken by such Holders, FMPA shall 

establish a record date for such consent or other action by such Holders and give DTC notice of 

such record date not less than fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of such record date to the 

extent reasonably possible.  

ARTICLE III. 

 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIES 2019A BONDS 

SECTION 3.01. Disposition of Series 2019A Bond Proceeds.   Unless otherwise 

provided in the Bond Series Certificate, any proceeds of the sale of the Series 2019A Bonds, 

other than accrued interest, if any, shall be applied, simultaneously with the issuance and 

delivery of the Series 2019A Bonds, at one time or from time to time in one or more Series or 

subseries, as follows: 

(a) the amount specified in the Bond Series Certificate shall be transferred to 

the Trustee or to the Escrow Agent under the Escrow Deposit Agreement, as applicable, to be 

applied to the refunding of the Refunded Bonds; and 

(b) the amount, if any, specified in the Bond Series Certificate shall be 

transferred to the Trustee to be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve Fund; and 

(c) the balance of such proceeds, exclusive of accrued interest, if any, shall be 

deposited in the Costs of Issuance Account which is deemed to be established for such Series in 

the Construction Fund and applied to the payment of Costs of Issuance (including any 

termination fees related to any Qualified Swap terminated in connection with refunding of the 

Refunded Bonds). 

Unless otherwise provided in a Bond Series Certificate, the accrued interest, if any, and 

the capitalized interest, if any, received on the sale of the Series 2019A Bonds shall be deposited 

in the Debt Service Fund. 

SECTION 3.02. Purchase of Escrow Securities.  Upon the issuance of the 

Series 2019A Bonds, the Authorized Officers of FMPA may determine it is necessary or 

convenient for FMPA to enter into an Escrow Deposit Agreement for the purpose of securing the 

money and securities to be used to provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds.  In such 

event, the Authorized Officers of FMPA are hereby authorized (a) to deposit monies in an 

amount which shall be sufficient, or (b) to acquire or cause to be acquired either (i) state and 

local government series securities from the United States Treasury or (ii) open market securities 

acquired through a competitive bidding process, the principal of and the interest on which 

securities when due will provide monies which, together with the monies, if any, deposited with 

Page 49 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 13 - 

 

the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient, to pay when due the principal or Redemption 

Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become due on said Refunded Bonds on or prior to 

the redemption date or maturity date thereof in accordance with Article XII of the Bond 

Resolution. 

ARTICLE IV. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 4.01. Defeasance.   In the event FMPA shall seek, prior to the maturity 

or redemption date thereof, to pay or cause to be paid, within the meaning and with the effect 

expressed in the Resolution, all or less than all Outstanding Series 2019A Bonds issued as Bonds 

the interest on which is generally intended by FMPA to be excluded from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes and the provisions of Section 4.02 hereof shall then be of any force 

or effect, then, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1201 of the Resolution, such Series 

2019A Bonds which FMPA then seeks to pay or cause to be paid shall not be deemed to have 

been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in Section 1201 of the Resolution 

unless (i) FMPA has confirmed in writing that the Holders of such Series 2019A Bonds which 

FMPA then seeks to pay or cause to be paid will continue, after such action, to have the benefit 

of a covenant to the effect of the covenant of FMPA contained in Section 4.02 hereof or (ii) there 

shall have been delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that non-

compliance thereafter with the applicable provisions of the Code will not affect the then current 

treatment of interest on the Series 2019A Bonds issued as Bonds the interest on which is 

generally intended by FMPA to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 

in determining gross income for Federal income tax purposes. 

SECTION 4.02. Tax Covenants.   FMPA covenants that, in order to maintain the 

exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Series 2019A 

Bonds issued as Bonds the interest on which is generally intended by FMPA to be excluded from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes (as determined by FMPA in a Bond Series 

Certificate), FMPA will satisfy, or take such actions as are necessary to cause to be satisfied, 

each provision of the Code necessary to maintain such exclusion. In furtherance of this covenant, 

FMPA agrees to comply with such written instructions as may be provided by Bond Counsel. In 

furtherance of the covenant contained in the preceding sentence, FMPA agrees to continually 

comply with the provisions of any “Tax Certificate as to Arbitrage and the Provisions of Sections 

141-150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986” to be executed by FMPA in connection with the 

execution and delivery of any such Series 2019A Bonds, as amended from time to time. 

2. FMPA covenants that no part of the proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds shall be 

used, directly or indirectly, to acquire any “investment property,” as defined in section 148 of the 

Code, which would cause the Bonds to become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of 

section 148 of the Code or under applicable Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder.  In 

order to assure compliance with the rebate requirement of section 148 of the Code, FMPA 

further covenants that it will pay or cause to be paid to the United States Treasury Department 

the amounts necessary to satisfy the requirements of section 148(f) of the Code, and that it will 

establish such accounting procedures as are necessary to adequately determine, account for and 

Page 50 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

- 14 - 

 

pay over any such amount or amounts required to be paid to the United States in a manner 

consistent with the requirements of section 148 of the Code, such covenant to survive the 

defeasance of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution to the contrary, upon 

FMPA’s failure to observe, or refusal to comply with the covenants contained in this 

Section 4.02, neither the Holders of the Bonds of any Series (other than the Series 2019A Bonds 

or the Trustee acting on their behalf) nor the Trustee acting on their behalf shall be entitled to 

exercise any right or remedy provided to the Bondholders or the Trustee under the Resolution 

based upon FMPA’s failure to observe, or refusal to comply with, the covenants contained in this 

Section 4.02. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

Page 51 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

15 

 

SECTION 4.03. Effective Date.  This Series 2019A Supplemental All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) shall take 

effect immediately after its adoption by the Executive Committee and the filing of a copy thereof 

certified by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Executive Committee with the Trustee. 

 FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ATTEST: 

By:    

Secretary or Assistant Secretary 

By:    

          Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

 

Page 52 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Form of Bond Purchase Contract 

Page 53 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Form of Preliminary Official Statement 

Page 54 of 473



4815-3676-1247.6 

 

 

D-1 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Form of Escrow Deposit Agreement 

Page 55 of 473



OHS Draft 9/3/19 

 

1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

$[________] 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

[________], 2019 

PURCHASE CONTRACT 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Dear Sirs: 

The undersigned Barclays Capital Inc. (the “Representative”) on behalf of itself and BofA 

Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriters”) offers to enter into this Purchase Contract with you, the Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (the “Agency”). This offer is made subject to written acceptance hereof by the 

Agency at or before 12:00 midnight, New York time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accepted, will be 

subject to withdrawal by the Underwriters upon notice delivered to the Agency at any time prior to the 

acceptance hereof by the Agency.  The Representative hereby represents that it is authorized to act on 

behalf of the Underwriters. 

1. Purchase and Sale. Upon the terms and conditions and in reliance on the representations, 

warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, the Underwriters hereby agree to purchase from 

the Agency, and the Agency hereby agrees to sell and deliver to the Underwriters, all (but not less than 

all) of the $[________] aggregate principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] aggregate principal amount 

of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

(the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”). The 2019 

Bonds shall be dated, shall mature on such dates, bear such rates of interest and be subject to redemption, 

and have such other terms and provisions, all as set forth in the Official Statement of the Agency relating 

to the 2019 Bonds, dated [________], 2019 (the “Official Statement”).  The Official Statement shall be 

substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement (defined below), with only such changes as 

shall have been accepted by the Representative. The purchase price for the Series 2019A Bonds shall be 

$[________] (representing the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2019A Bonds plus net original 

issue premium of $[________] and less an underwriters’ discount of $[________]) and the purchase price 

for the Series 2019B Bonds shall be $[________] (representing the aggregate principal amount of the 

Series 2019B Bonds less an underwriters’ discount of $[________]). 

The statements required by Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, are attached hereto as Exhibits B-1, 

B-2 and C. 

The 2019 Bonds shall be as described in, and shall be issued and secured under the provisions of 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as 

amended and restated in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as amended and supplemented, including as 

supplemented by the Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019A Bonds, adopted on [________], 2019 

and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution 

Page 56 of 473



 

 2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019B Bonds, adopted on [________], 2019, and as it may be 

further supplemented from time to time on or prior to the date hereof, together with such amendments, 

modifications or supplements which have been approved by the Representative prior to the Closing 

referred to in Section 5 hereof, are hereinafter collectively called the “Resolution.”  The Underwriters 

agree to make promptly a public offering of the 2019 Bonds at the initial offering price or prices as set 

forth in the Official Statement.  The 2019 Bonds shall initially bear interest as set forth in the Official 

Statement.  The proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of 

the Agency (if any), to (i) currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, (ii) pay the costs of terminating existing interest rate 

swap agreements associated with such bonds and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of the 

Agency (if any), to (i) currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019B 

Bonds. 

2. Delivery of Official Statement and Other Documents. (a)  Prior to the date hereof, you 

have provided to the Underwriters for their review the Preliminary Official Statement dated [________], 

2019 (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), in connection with the pricing of the 2019 Bonds. The 

Underwriters have reviewed the Preliminary Official Statement prior to the execution of this Purchase 

Contract. The Agency hereby confirms that the Preliminary Official Statement was deemed final as of its 

date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Rule 15c2-

12”). 

(b) As soon as practicable and in all events within seven business days of the date hereof (but in 

no event less than two business days prior to the Closing), the Agency will deliver, at its expense to the 

Representative, sufficient copies of the final Official Statement as may be reasonably requested by the 

Representative to enable the Underwriters to fulfill their obligations pursuant to the securities laws of 

Florida and the United States and to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 and all applicable 

rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”).  The Agency agrees to deliver to the 

Underwriters an electronic copy of the Official Statement in a form that permits the Underwriters to 

satisfy their obligations under the rules and regulations of the MSRB and the Securities and Exchange 

Commission. 

The Representative agrees to (i) promptly file a copy of the Official Statement with the MSRB 

and its Electronic Municipal Market Access system (the “Repository”) upon receipt of the final Official 

Statement by delivering such Official Statement (with any required forms) to the Repository within one 

(1) business day after receipt of such final Official Statement from the Agency pursuant to MSRB Rule 

G-32, and (ii) take any and all other actions necessary to comply with applicable Securities and Exchange 

Commission and MSRB rules governing the offering, sale and delivery of the 2019 Bonds to ultimate 

purchasers.  The Representative shall notify the Agency of the date on which the final Official Statement 

is filed with the Repository. 

The Agency ratifies the use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and authorizes 

the use of the Official Statement in connection with the public offering and sale of the 2019 Bonds. The 

Underwriters agree that they will not confirm the sale of any 2019 Bonds unless the confirmation of sale 

requesting payment is accompanied or preceded by the delivery of a copy of the Official Statement. 

Unless otherwise notified in writing by the Representative on or prior to the date of Closing, the Agency 

can assume that the “end of the underwriting period” for the 2019 Bonds for all purposes of Rule 15c2-12 

is the date of the Closing. In the event such notice is given in writing by the Representative, the 

Representative shall notify the Agency in writing following the occurrence of the “end of the 

underwriting period” for the 2019 Bonds as defined in Rule 15c2-12. The “end of the underwriting 

Page 57 of 473



 

 3 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

period” for the 2019 Bonds as used in this Purchase Contract shall mean the date of Closing or such later 

date as to which notice is given by the Representative in accordance with the preceding sentence. 

(c) From the date hereof to and including the date which is twenty-five days from the end of the 

underwriting period, if there shall exist any event which, in the opinion of the Representative or in the 

opinion of the Agency, requires a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement so that it will not 

contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make 

the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, 

when it is delivered to a potential investor, the Agency will supplement or amend at its own expense the 

Official Statement in a form and in a manner approved by the Representative and the Agency. The 

Agency will promptly notify the Representative of the occurrence of any event of which it has 

knowledge, which, in its opinion, is an event described in the preceding sentence. The amendments or 

supplements that may be authorized for use with respect to the 2019 Bonds are hereinafter included 

within the term “Official Statement.” 

(d) The Agency has previously entered into separate All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts, 

each by and between the Agency and the respective Participants (which are the City of Bushnell, the City 

of Clewiston, the City of Fort Meade, the Fort Pierce Utilities Authority, the City of Green Cove Springs, 

the Town of Havana, the City of Jacksonville Beach, the Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida, 

Kissimmee Utility Authority, the City of Lake Worth, the City of Leesburg, the City of Newberry, the 

City of Ocala and the City of Starke, collectively referred to herein as the “Participants”) (the “Power 

Supply Contracts”). The Power Supply Contracts are also hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

“Related Documents.” 

The Agency hereby authorizes the Underwriters to use the Official Statement, the forms or copies 

of the Resolution and the Related Documents and the information contained therein in connection with 

the public offering and sale of the 2019 Bonds. 

3. Public Offering; Establishment of Issue Price.   

(a) The Underwriters agree to make a bona fide public offering of the Series 2019A Bonds at 

prices not in excess of the initial offering price or prices (or at yields not lower than the yield or yields) 

set forth in the Official Statement.  The Underwriters reserve the right to change such public offering 

prices as the Underwriters deem necessary or desirable, in its sole discretion, in connection with the 

marketing of the Series 2019A Bonds, and may offer and sell the Series 2019A Bonds to certain dealers, 

unit investment trusts and money market funds, certain of which may be sponsored or managed by one or 

more of the Underwriters at prices lower than the public offering prices or yields greater than the yields 

set forth therein. 

(b) The Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agrees to assist the Agency in establishing 

the issue price of the Series 2019A Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Agency at Closing an 

“issue price” or similar certificate, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G, together with 

the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, with such modifications as may be deemed 

appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, the Agency and Bond 

Counsel, to accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices 

to the public of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

(c) The Agency represents that it will treat the first price at which 10% of each maturity of the 

Series 2019A Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity (if different 

interest rates apply within a maturity, each separate CUSIP number within that maturity will be subject to 

the 10% test).  If, as of the date hereof, the 10% test has not been satisfied as to any maturity of the Series 

Page 58 of 473



 

 4 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

2019A Bonds the Representative confirms that the Underwriters have offered the Series 2019A Bonds to 

the public on or before the date of this Purchase Contract at the offering price or prices (the “initial 

offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the Official Statement.  Schedule I 

also sets forth, as of the date of this Purchase Contract, the maturities, if any, of the Series 2019A Bonds 

for which the 10% test has not been satisfied and for which the Agency and the Representative, on behalf 

of the Underwriters, agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply (the “hold-the-

offering-price rule”).  So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains applicable to any maturity of the 

Series 2019A Bonds, the Underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Series 2019A Bonds of that 

maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period 

starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:  

(i) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or 

(ii) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the 

Series 2019A to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public. 

The Agency acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this subsection, the 

Representative will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with the hold-the-offering-

price rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event 

a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the 

public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the hold-the-

offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the 

event that an Underwriter or selling group member is a party to a retail distribution agreement that was 

employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public, the agreement of 

each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set 

forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The Agency further acknowledges 

that each Underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-

the-offering-price rule and that no Underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other Underwriter, or 

of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail 

distribution agreement, to comply with its corresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price 

rule as applicable to the Series 2019A Bonds. 

(d) The Representative confirms that: 

(i) any retail distribution agreement (to which the Representative and any member 

of a selling group is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public, together 

with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter, each dealer 

who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution 

agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series 2019A 

Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Representative that either the 10% test has 

been satisfied as to the Series 2019A Bonds of that maturity or all Series 2019A Bonds of that maturity 

have been sold to the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each 

case if and for so long as directed by the Representative and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and 

(ii) any agreement among underwriters and any selling group agreement relating to 

the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or 

will contain language obligating each Underwriter and any member of a selling group that is a party to a 

retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds 

to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement to (A) report 

the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series 2019A Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until 

it is notified by the Representative or the Underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the 

Page 59 of 473



 

 5 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

2019 Bonds of that maturity or all Series 2019A Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and 

(B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed 

by the Representative or the Underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 

(e) The Underwriters acknowledge that sales of any Series 2019A Bonds to any person that is a 

related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section.  

Further, for purposes of this section: 

(i) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party to an 

underwriter, 

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract 

with the Agency (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the 

initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 

contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the 

Series 2019A Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution 

agreement participating in the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public),  

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Series 2019A Bonds is a “related party” to an 

underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser have greater than 50% common ownership, directly or 

indirectly, to (A) more than 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, 

if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (B) more than 

50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships 

(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of 

the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the 

partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including 

direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and 

(iv) “sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Contract by all parties. 

4. Good Faith Deposit.  Delivered to the Agency herewith is a federal funds wire or a check 

payable to the order of the Agency in the amount of $[________] (the “Good Faith Deposit”) as security 

for the performance by the Underwriters of their obligation to accept and pay for the 2019 Bonds on the 

date of the Closing in accordance with the provisions hereof.  The Agency shall hold such check (if 

applicable) uncashed until the date of the Closing.  In the event of the Underwriters’ compliance with 

their obligations hereunder, the Good Faith Deposit shall be returned to the Representative on the date of 

the Closing upon payment to the Agency as provided in Section 1 hereof of the purchase price of the 2019 

Bonds.  In the event the Agency does not accept this offer, or upon the failure of the Agency to deliver the 

2019 Bonds on the date of the Closing, or if the Agency shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the 

obligations of the Underwriters contained in this Purchase Contract, or if such obligations of the 

Underwriters shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Contract except for the 

reasons set forth in Section 10 hereof, the Good Faith Deposit shall immediately be returned to the 

Representative.  If the Underwriters fail (other than for a reason permitted hereunder) to accept and pay 

for the 2019 Bonds upon tender thereof by the Agency on the date of the Closing as herein provided, the 

Good Faith Deposit shall be retained by the Agency as and for full and agreed upon liquidated damages, 

and not as a penalty, to the Agency for such failure, and the retention of the Good Faith Deposit shall 

constitute a full release and discharge of all claims and damages for such failure and of any and all 

defaults hereunder on the part of the Underwriters. 

Page 60 of 473



 

 6 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

5. Agency Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements. The Agency represents 

and warrants to and covenants and agrees with the Underwriters that, as of the date hereof and as of the 

date of the Closing: 

(a) The Agency has been duly and validly created under and pursuant to Chapter 361, Part II, 

Florida Statutes and Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, (collectively, the “Act”) and the Interlocal 

Agreement Creating the Florida Municipal Power Agency, as amended and supplemented (the “Interlocal 

Agreement”) and is a duly and validly existing governmental legal entity under the laws of the State of 

Florida, and has full legal right, power and authority to acquire, construct, operate, maintain, improve, 

finance and refinance the All-Requirements Power Supply Project (as defined in the Resolution) as 

contemplated by the Related Documents and the Official Statement. 

(b) The Agency has, or had on the date of execution, full legal right, power and authority to enter 

into this Purchase Contract and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated the date of Closing, 

substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H (the “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”) to assist 

the Underwriters in complying with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5), to 

adopt the Resolution and to issue, sell and deliver the 2019 Bonds to the Underwriters as provided herein; 

by official action of the Agency taken prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the Agency has 

duly enacted the Resolution in accordance with the Act, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as 

amended, and the Interlocal Agreement; the Resolution is in full force and has not been amended, 

modified or rescinded; the Agency has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of, and 

the performance by the Agency of its obligations contained in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and 

this Purchase Contract; and the Agency has duly authorized and approved the performance by the Agency 

of its obligations contained in the Resolution and the consummation by it of all other transactions 

contemplated by the Related Documents, the Resolution, the Official Statement and this Purchase 

Contract to have been performed or consummated in connection with the Closing at or prior to the date of 

Closing, and the Agency is in compliance with the provisions of the Resolution. 

(c) The Agency had at their respective dates of execution and has full legal right, power and 

authority to enter into the Related Documents. By appropriate official action, the Agency has duly 

authorized and approved the execution and delivery of and the performance by the Agency of its 

obligations under the Related Documents. The Related Documents are or will at the Closing be in full 

force and effect and have not been amended, modified or rescinded since their respective dates of 

execution except as provided by amendments, copies of which shall have been furnished to the 

Representative on or before the date hereof. The Related Documents constitute or will at the Closing 

constitute valid and legally binding agreements of the Agency enforceable against the Agency in 

accordance with their terms; provided, however, that the enforceability thereof may be subject to judicial 

discretion, the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida and of the 

constitutional powers of the United States and valid bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 

and other laws affecting creditors’ rights. 

(d) Except as disclosed by the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, the 

Agency is not in breach of or default under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative 

regulation of the State of Florida or the United States, or any agency or department of either, or the 

Interlocal Agreement, or the bylaws of the Agency, or any applicable judgment or decree or any loan 

agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the Agency is a 

party or to which the Agency or any of its properties or other assets is otherwise subject, and no event has 

occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

constitute a default or event of default under any such instrument, in any such case to the extent that the 

same would have a material and adverse effect upon the business or properties or financial condition of 

the Agency; to the best knowledge of the Agency there is no default by any party to the Related 

Page 61 of 473



 

 7 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

Documents and no legal impediment to the performance thereof by any party thereto; and the execution 

and delivery of the 2019 Bonds, this Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and the 

Related Documents and the adoption of the Resolution, and compliance with the provisions on the 

Agency’s part contained therein, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under the Act, 

the Interlocal Agreement or the by-laws of the Agency or under any constitutional provision, law, 

administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement 

or other instrument to which the Agency is a party or to which the Agency or any of its properties or other 

assets is otherwise subject, nor will any such execution, delivery, adoption or compliance result in the 

creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature 

whatsoever upon any of the properties or the assets of the Agency under the terms of any such law, 

regulation or instrument, except as provided or permitted by the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Related Documents.  The Agency has not been in default in 

the payment of either principal or interest on any of its obligations issued by it since its inception in 1978. 

The foregoing representation and warranty is given and made by the Agency in contemplation of Section 

517.051(l), Florida Statutes. 

(e) All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority, legislative body, board, 

agency or commission having jurisdiction which would constitute a condition precedent to or the absence 

of which would materially adversely affect the due performance by the Agency of its obligations under 

this Purchase Contract, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Related Documents 

and the 2019 Bonds have been, or prior to the Closing will have been, duly obtained, except for (i) such 

approvals, consents and orders as may be required under the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in 

connection with the offering and sale of the 2019 Bonds or (ii) such approvals, consents and orders 

described in the Official Statement as not having been obtained or (iii) not of material significance to the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project or customarily granted in due course after application therefor 

and expected to be obtained without material difficulty or delay. 

(f) Under the laws of the State of Florida, the authority of the Agency and each of the 

Participants to determine, fix, impose and collect rates and charges for electric power and energy sold and 

delivered is not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission, and there 

is no other regional or State governmental regulatory authority with the authority to limit or restrict such 

rates and charges, in each case except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement (including, but not limited to, “STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT”). 

(g) The 2019 Bonds, when issued, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Resolution 

and sold to the Underwriters as provided herein and in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, 

will be valid and legally enforceable obligations of the Agency in accordance with their terms and the 

terms of the Resolution, and will be direct and special obligations of the Agency payable solely from and 

secured solely by a pledge and assignment of (a) with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, the proceeds of 

the sale of the Series 2019A Bonds, and with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds, the proceeds of the sale 

of the Series 2019B Bonds, (b) all right, title and interest of the Agency in, to and under the Power Supply 

Contracts, (c) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (d) all funds established by the Resolution 

(other than the Decommissioning Fund, if established) including investment income, if any, thereon, 

subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on 

the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

(h) The Preliminary Official Statement was, as of its date, and the Official Statement, as of the 

date hereof, is and at all times subsequent hereto up to and including the date of the Closing will be, true 

and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 

state a material fact which is necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading. In addition, any amendments or supplements to the Official 

Page 62 of 473



 

 8 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

Statement prepared and furnished by the Agency pursuant hereto, at the time of each amendment or 

supplement thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented or amended) at all times subsequent 

thereto up to and including the time of Closing, will be true and correct in all material respects and will 

not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the 

statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

(i) The 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Related 

Documents conform in all material respects to the descriptions thereof contained in the Official Statement 

as it is delivered in final form. 

(j) Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, since 

the date of the Agency’s last audited financial statements, the Agency has not or will not have incurred 

any material liabilities direct or contingent, or entered into any material transaction related to the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project, in each case other than in the ordinary course of its business, and 

there has not or shall not have been any material adverse change in the condition, financial or physical, of 

the Agency or its properties or other assets related to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

(k) Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, there is 

no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity before or by any court, 

government agency or public board or body, pending or, to the best knowledge of the Agency, threatened, 

which may affect the corporate existence of the Agency or the titles of its officers to their respective 

offices, or which may affect or which seeks to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of 

the 2019 Bonds or the collection of the amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and 

interest on the 2019 Bonds, or which in any way contests or affects the validity or enforceability of the 

2019 Bonds, the Resolution, this Purchase Contract, the Related Documents, the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking or any of them, or which may result in any material adverse change in the business, 

properties, other assets or financial condition of the Agency, or which contests in any way the 

completeness or accuracy of the Official Statement or which contests the power of the Agency or any 

authority or proceedings for the issuance, sale or delivery of this Purchase Contract, the Related 

Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, or any of them, nor, to the best knowledge of the 

Agency, is there any basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially 

adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Related Documents, 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or this Purchase Contract. 

(l) The Agency will furnish such information, execute such instruments and take such other 

action not inconsistent with law in cooperation with the Representative as the Representative may 

reasonably request in order to qualify the 2019 Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or securities 

laws and regulations of the states and other jurisdictions of the United States as the Representative may 

designate provided that the Agency shall not be obligated to take any action that would subject it to the 

general service of process in any state where it is not now so subject. 

(m) The Agency will advise the Representative promptly of any proposal to amend or supplement 

the Official Statement and will not effect any such amendment or supplement without the consent of the 

Representative. The Agency will advise the Representative promptly of the institution of any proceedings 

known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise affecting the use of the Official 

Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the 2019 Bonds. 

(n) Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, the 

Agency has not failed during the previous five years to comply in all material respects with any previous 

undertakings in a written continuing disclosure contract or agreement under Rule 15c2-12. 

Page 63 of 473



 

 9 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

6. The Closing. At noon, New York time, on [________], 2019, or at such earlier or later 

time or date to which the Agency and the Representative may mutually agree, the Agency will, subject to 

the terms and conditions hereof, deliver the 2019 Bonds to the Underwriters in full book-entry form, duly 

executed, together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned, and, subject to the terms and 

conditions hereof, the Underwriters will accept such delivery and pay the aggregate purchase price of the 

2019 Bonds in Federal Funds to the Agency (such delivery of and payment for the 2019 Bonds is herein 

called the “Closing”). The Agency shall cause CUSIP identification numbers to be printed on the 2019 

Bonds, but neither the failure to print such number on any 2019 Bond nor any error with respect thereto 

shall constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the Underwriters to accept delivery of and pay for the 

2019 Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Purchase Contract. The Closing shall occur at the offices 

of the Agency, or such other place to which the Agency and the Representative shall have mutually 

agreed. The 2019 Bonds shall be prepared and delivered as fully registered bonds in such authorized 

denominations and registered in full book-entry form in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 

Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) and shall be made available to the 

Representative during the business day prior to the Closing for purposes of inspection.  Simultaneously 

with the delivery of the 2019 Bonds, the Representative shall cause the 2019 Bonds to be delivered to 

DTC or its designee. 

7. Closing Conditions. The Underwriters have entered into this Purchase Contract in 

reliance upon the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Agency contained herein 

and in reliance upon the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements to be contained in the 

documents and instruments to be delivered at the Closing and upon the performance by the Agency of its 

obligations hereunder, both as of the date hereof and as of the date of the Closing. Accordingly, the 

Underwriters’ obligations under this Purchase Contract to purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for 

the 2019 Bonds shall be conditioned upon the performance by the Agency of its obligations to be 

performed hereunder and under such documents and instruments at or prior to the Closing, and shall also 

be subject to the following additional conditions: 

(a) The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Agency contained herein 

shall be true, complete and correct on the date hereof and on and as of the date of the Closing, as if made 

on the date of the Closing; 

(b) At the time of Closing, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the 

Related Documents shall be in full force and effect and the Resolution and the Related Documents shall 

not have been amended, modified or supplemented since the date hereof  and the form of the Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented since the date hereof  

except if approved by the Representative, and the Official Statement as delivered to the Representative 

shall not have been supplemented or amended, except in any such case as may have been approved by the 

Representative; 

(c) At the time of the Closing, all official action of the Agency relating to this Purchase Contract, 

the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Related Documents taken 

as of the date hereof shall be in full force and effect and shall not have been amended, modified or 

supplemented, except for amendments, modifications or supplements which have been approved by the 

Representative prior to the Closing; 

(d) At the time of the Closing, except as contemplated by the Official Statement, there shall have 

been no material adverse change or any development involving a prospective material adverse change in 

the status of operation and required permits and approvals for All-Requirements Power Supply Project in 

the condition, financial or otherwise, or in the revenue or operations of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project as described in the Official Statement; 

Page 64 of 473



 

 10 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(e) At or prior to the Closing, the Representative shall have received copies of each of the 

following documents: 

(1) The Official Statement and each supplement or amendment, if any, thereto 

executed on behalf of the Agency by an Authorized Officer of the Agency; 

(2) The Continuing Disclosure Agreement and each supplement or amendment, 

if any, thereto executed on behalf of the Agency by an Authorized Officer of the Agency; 

(3) An opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Agency, of 

Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Agency, in 

substantially the form attached as Appendix E to the Official Statement, accompanied by 

a letter authorizing the Underwriters to rely thereon as though such opinion were 

addressed to the Underwriters; 

(4) An opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Underwriters, 

of Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Agency, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D; 

(5) An opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Underwriters, 

of Jody L. Finklea, Esquire, General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of the Agency, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E; 

(6) An opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, dated the date of the 

Closing, addressed to the Underwriters in a form reasonably acceptable to the 

Underwriters; 

(7) An opinion of counsel to the Trustee, dated the date of the Closing, in a form 

reasonably acceptable to the Agency and Underwriters; 

(8) The Blue Sky Memorandum; 

(9) Federal Tax Regulatory Certificate with Form 8038 in connection with the 

Series 2019A Bonds; 

(10) A certificate, dated the date of the Closing, signed by the Chairperson of 

the Executive Committee and the General Manager and Chief Executive Officer of the 

Agency or other authorized officer of the Agency in substantially the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit F (but in lieu of or in conjunction with such certificate the 

Representative may, in its sole discretion, accept certificates or opinions of Nixon 

Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Agency, Jody L. Finklea, 

Esquire, General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of the Agency, or of other counsel 

acceptable to the Representative, that in the opinion of such counsel the issues raised in 

any pending or threatened litigation referred to in such certificate are without substance 

or that the contentions of all plaintiffs therein are without merit); 

(11) Certified copies of the proceedings of the Executive Committee of the 

Agency authorizing and approving the Supplemental Resolutions for the Series 2019A 

Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds; 

Page 65 of 473



 

 11 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(12) A transcript of all proceedings relating to the authorization and issuance 

of the 2019 Bonds certified by the Secretary of the Agency; 

(13) Evidence of an “[A+]” rating from Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) and an “[A2]” 

rating from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) on the 2019 Bonds or such 

other ratings to which the Representative may agree; and 

(14) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other 

documents as the Representative may reasonably request to evidence the truth and 

accuracy, as of the date hereof and as of the date of the Closing, of the representations, 

warranties, covenants and agreements of the Agency contained herein and the truth, 

accuracy and completeness of the statements and information contained in the Official 

Statement and the due performance or satisfaction by the Agency on or prior to the date 

of the Closing of all agreements then to be performed and conditions then to be satisfied 

by it. 

All of the evidence, opinions, letters, certificates, instruments and other documents mentioned 

above or elsewhere in this Purchase Contract shall be deemed to be in compliance with the provisions 

hereof if, but only if, they are in form and substance satisfactory to the Representative with such 

exceptions and modifications as shall be approved by the Representative and as shall not in the opinion of 

the Representative materially impair the investment quality of the 2019 Bonds. The opinions and 

certificates referred to in clauses (4), (5) and (10) of such subparagraph (e) shall be deemed satisfactory 

provided they are substantially in the forms attached as exhibits to this Purchase Contract. 

If the Agency shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriters to 

purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for the 2019 Bonds contained in this Purchase Contract, or if 

the obligations of the Underwriters to purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for the 2019 Bonds shall 

be terminated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Contract, this Purchase Contract shall terminate 

and neither the Underwriters nor the Agency shall be under any further obligation hereunder, the 

respective obligations of the Agency and the Underwriters set forth in Paragraph 8 hereof shall continue 

in full force and effect. 

8. Termination. The Underwriters may terminate this Purchase Contract by notice to the 

Agency in the event that between the date hereof and the Closing: 

(a) legislation shall be introduced in or enacted by the Congress of the United States or adopted 

by either House thereof, or a decision by a federal court (including the Tax Court of the United States), or 

a ruling, regulation (proposed, temporary or final) or official statement by or on behalf of the Treasury 

Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or other federal agency shall be made, with 

respect to taxation upon revenues or other income of the general character expected to be derived by the 

Agency or upon interest received on bonds of the general character of the Series 2019A Bonds, or which 

would have the effect of changing directly or indirectly the federal income tax consequences of interest on 

bonds of the general character of the Series 2019A Bonds in the hands of the holders thereof, which 

legislation, ruling, regulation or official statement would, in the reasonable judgment of the 

Representative, materially adversely affect the market price of the Series 2019A Bonds; 

(b) there shall occur any event or circumstance occurs or information becomes known, which, in 

the reasonable judgment of the Representative, either (i) makes untrue any statement of a material fact set 

forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and the final Official Statement (other than any statement or 

information relating to the Underwriters) or results in an omission to state a  material fact necessary to 

make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

Page 66 of 473



 

 12 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

misleading or (ii) the Agency refuses to permit the Preliminary Official Statement or the final Official 

Statement to be supplemented to correct or supply such statement or information, or the effect of the 

Preliminary Official Statement or the final Official Statement as so corrected or supplemented is, in the 

reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially adversely affect the market for the 2019 Bonds 

or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or yield or yields), by the Underwriters of the 

2019 Bonds; 

(c) there shall occur any outbreak of hostilities or any national or international calamity or crisis 

or a financial crisis, or an escalation of any such hostilities, calamity or crisis, the effect of which on the 

financial markets of the United States is, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially 

adversely affect the market for the 2019 Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or 

yield or yields), by the Underwriters of the 2019 Bonds; 

(d) a general suspension of trading on the New York Stock Exchange shall have occurred and be 

in force or minimum or maximum prices for trading shall have been fixed and be in force or maximum 

ranges for prices for securities shall have been required and be in force on the New York Stock Exchange, 

whether by virtue of a determination by such Exchange or by order of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission or any other governmental authority the effect of which on the financial markets of the 

United States is, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially adversely affect the 

market for the 2019 Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or yield or yields), by 

the Underwriters of the 2019 Bonds; 

(e) a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by either federal, New York or 

Florida authorities and be in force, the effect of which on the financial markets of the United States is, in 

the reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially adversely affect the market for the 2019 

Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or yield or yields), by the Underwriters of 

the 2019 Bonds; 

(f) a material disruption in commercial banking or securities settlement, payment or clearance 

services in the United States shall have occurred; 

(g) legislation shall have been enacted, a decision of any federal or Florida court shall have been 

made, or a ruling or regulation (proposed, temporary or final) of the Securities and Exchange Commission 

or other governmental agency shall have been made or issued that, in the opinion of the Representative 

and its counsel, has the effect of requiring the contemplated distribution of the 2019 Bonds to be 

registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Indenture to be qualified under the Trust 

Indenture Act of 1939, as amended; or 

(h) the purchase of and payment for the 2019 Bonds by the Underwriters, or the resale of the 

2019 Bonds by the Underwriters, on the terms and conditions herein provided shall be prohibited by any 

applicable law, governmental regulation or order of any court, governmental authority, board, agency or 

commission. 

9. Expenses. The Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Agency shall 

pay, any expenses incident to the performance of the obligations of the Agency hereunder including, but 

not limited to: (a) the cost of preparation, printing or other reproduction of the Resolution and Related 

Documents; (b) the cost of preparation and printing of the 2019 Bonds; (c) the fees and disbursements of 

Bond Counsel and the General Counsel to the Agency; (d) the fees and disbursements of the financial 

advisor to the Agency; (e) the fees and disbursements of any experts, consultants or advisors retained by 

the Agency; (f) fees for bond ratings; (g) the fees and expenses of the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the 

Trustee and of their respective counsel; and (h) the costs of preparing, printing and delivering the 

Page 67 of 473



 

 13 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

Preliminary Official Statement, Official Statement and any supplements or amendments to either of them; 

however, the Agency shall have no obligation to pay any fees, costs or other amounts relating to any 

supplements or amendments to the Official Statement to the extent such amendment or supplement is 

prepared after the period described in paragraph 2(c) hereof (provided that for purposes of this paragraph 

the end of the underwriting period shall be deemed to be the date of the Closing).   

The Underwriters shall pay (which may be included as an expense component of the 

Underwriter’s discount): (a) the cost of all “blue sky” and legal investment memoranda; (b) all advertising 

expenses; and (c) all other expenses incurred by them or any of them in connection with the public 

offering of the 2019 Bonds, including the fees of Underwriters’ counsel. In the event that either party 

shall have paid obligations of the other as set forth in this Section 9, adjustment shall be made at the time 

of the Closing. 

10. Termination by the Agency.  In the absence of a termination of this Agreement by the 

Underwriters as permitted by Section 8 hereof, this Purchase Contract may be terminated in writing by 

the Agency in the event that the Underwriters shall fail to accept delivery and pay the purchase price of 

the 2019 Bonds at the Closing upon (i) tender thereof to or on behalf of the Underwriters by the Agency 

and (ii) delivery to the Underwriters of all of the documents to be delivered at Closing, all as provided in 

Section 7(e) hereof, and in such event the Agency shall retain the Good Faith Deposit as provided in 

Section 4 hereof. 

11. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the Agency under this 

Purchase Contract may be given by delivering the same in writing at its address set forth above, and any 

notice or other communication to be given to the Underwriters may be given by delivering the same in 

writing to Barclays Capital Inc. 745 Seventh Avenue, 19th Floor, New York, New York 10019; 

Attention: Brian Middlebrook. 

12. Parties in Interest. This Purchase Contract is made solely for the benefit of the Agency 

and the Underwriters (including the successors or assignees of the Agency or the Underwriters) and no 

other party or person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. All representations, 

warranties, covenants and agreements in this Purchase Contract shall remain operative and in full force 

and effect, regardless of: (i) any investigations made by or on behalf of any of the Underwriters; (ii) the 

delivery of and payment for the 2019 Bonds pursuant to this Purchase Contract; or (iii) any termination of 

this Purchase Contract but only to the extent provided by the last paragraph of Section 6 hereof. 

13. Waiver. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the performance of any 

and all obligations of the Agency hereunder and the performance of any and all conditions contained 

herein for the benefit of the Underwriters may be waived by the Representative, in its sole discretion, and 

the approval of the Underwriters when required hereunder or the determination of their satisfaction as to 

any document referred to herein shall be in writing, signed by appropriate officer or officers of the 

Representative and delivered to you. 

14. Effectiveness. This Purchase Contract shall become effective upon the execution of the 

acceptance hereof by the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson of the Executive Committee or the General 

Manager and the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency or the Chief Financial Officer (and attestation of 

such execution by the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or Treasurer or of the Agency) and shall be valid and 

enforceable at the time of such acceptance. 

15. Counterparts. This Purchase Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of 

which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. 

Page 68 of 473



 

 14 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

16. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Purchase Contract are inserted for 

convenience only and shall not be deemed to be a part hereof. 

17. Florida Law Governs. The validity, interpretation and performance of this Purchase 

Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. 

18. No Advisory or Fiduciary Role. The Agency acknowledges and agrees that (i) the 

primary role of the Underwriters, as underwriters, is for the purchase and sale of the 2019 Bonds pursuant 

to this Purchase Contract is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Agency and the 

Underwriters, (ii) in connection with such transaction, each Underwriter is acting solely as a principal and 

not as an agent or a fiduciary of the Agency, (iii) the Underwriters have not assumed any advisory or 

fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Agency with respect to the offering of the 2019 Bonds or the 

process leading thereto (whether or not the Underwriters have advised or are currently advising the 

Agency on other matters) or any other obligation to the Agency except the obligations expressly set forth 

in this Purchase Contract, (iv) the Underwriters have financial interests that differ from those of the 

Agency and are not acting as municipal advisors (as defined in Section 15B of the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934, as amended) or financial advisors and (v) the Agency has consulted with its own municipal, 

accounting, tax, legal and financial advisors to the extent it deemed it appropriate in connection with the 

offering of the 2019 Bonds. 

Page 69 of 473



 

[Purchase Contract Signature Page] 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

19. Entire Agreement.  This Purchase Contract when accepted by you in writing as heretofore 

specified shall constitute the entire agreement between us and is made solely for the benefit of the Agency 

and the Underwriters. 

 

Very truly yours, 

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., as Representative 

By:   

 Name:  

 Title:  

Accepted by: 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

 

By:    

 Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

By:   

Chief Financial Officer 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

   

Assistant Secretary 

 

Page 70 of 473



 

  

 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE I 

Maturities of 2019 Bonds 

Less Than 10% of Which Were Sold to the Public 

 

 

 

Page 71 of 473



 

 A-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT A 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT OF THE AGENCY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72 of 473



 

 B-1-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 

$[________] 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

[Purchase Contract Date], 2019 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with the proposed issuance by the Florida Municipal Power Agency (the 

“Agency”) of $[________] principal amount of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 

2019A Bonds”) and $[________] principal amount of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 

(Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 

Bonds”), Barclays Capital Inc. and BofA Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriters”) have agreed to underwrite a 

public offering of the Bonds. Arrangement for underwriting the Bonds will include a Purchase Contract 

between the Agency and the Underwriters. 

The purpose of this letter is to furnish, pursuant to the provisions of Section 218.385(6), Florida 

Statutes, as amended, certain information in respect to the arrangement contemplated for the underwriting 

of the 2019 Bonds as follows: 

(a)  The nature and estimated amount of expenses to be incurred by the Underwriters and paid 

by the Underwriters in connection with the purchase and offering of the 2019 Bonds are set forth on 

Schedule I attached hereto. 

(b)  No person has entered into an understanding with any Underwriter, or to the knowledge 

of the Underwriters, with the Agency for any paid or promised compensation or valuable consideration, 

directly or indirectly, expressly or implied, to act solely as an intermediary between the Agency and the 

Underwriters for the purpose of influencing any transaction in the purchase of the 2019 Bonds. 

(c) The amount of underwriting spread, including the management fee (if any), expected to 

be realized is as follows: 

Page 73 of 473



 

 B-1-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

 
 Per $1,000 

Series 2019A 

Bond 

Per $1,000 

Series 2019B 

Bond 

Average Takedown   

Underwriter’s Expenses   

Total Underwriting Spread   

 

(d) No other fee, bonus or other compensation is estimated to be paid by the Underwriters in 

connection with the issuance of the 2019 Bonds to any person not regularly employed or retained by the 

Underwriters (including any “finder”, as defined in Section 218.386 (1) (a), Florida Statutes, as 

amended), except as specifically enumerated as expenses to be incurred and paid by the Underwriters, as 

set forth in Schedule I attached hereto. 

(e) The names and addresses of the Underwriters are set forth below: 

Barclays Capital Inc. 

745 Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor 

New York, New York 10019 

 

BofA Securities, Inc. 

One Bryant Park, 12th Floor 

New York, New York 10036 

Page 74 of 473



 

 B-1-3 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

We understand that you do not require any further disclosure from the Underwriters, pursuant to 

Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes, as amended. 

 

Very truly yours, 

Barclays Capital Inc., as Representative 

By:   

 Name:  

 Title:  

Page 75 of 473



 

 B-1-4 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE I 

ESTIMATED UNDERWRITER’S FEE AND EXPENSES 

SERIES 2019A BONDS 

UNDERWRITER’S DISCOUNT Per $1,000 Bond Dollar Amount 

Average Takedown   

Underwriter’s Expenses   

Total Underwriting Spread   

 

DETAILED EXPENSE BREAKDOWN 

[Underwriters’ Counsel  

i-Deal (Bookrunning, Wire Services, EOE)  

Out of Pocket  

DTC  

CUSIP]  

Total Underwriting Expenses  

 

SERIES 2019B BONDS 

UNDERWRITER’S DISCOUNT Per $1,000 Bond Dollar Amount 

Average Takedown   

Underwriter’s Expenses   

Total Underwriting Spread   

 

DETAILED EXPENSE BREAKDOWN 

[Underwriters’ Counsel  

i-Deal (Bookrunning, Wire Services, EOE)  

Out of Pocket  

DTC  

CUSIP]  

Total Underwriting Expenses  

 

 

Page 76 of 473



 

 B-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT B-2 

$[________] 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

[Purchase Contract Date], 2019 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with our serving as Financial Advisor to the Florida Municipal Power Agency (the 

“Agency”) in connection with the sale by the Agency of its bonds referred to above, we have not paid any 

fee, bonus or gratuity to any person not regularly employed or engaged by us. 

DUNLAP & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

By:  

Page 77 of 473



 

 C-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT C 

TRUTH-IN-BONDING STATEMENT 

 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Re:   $[________] 

  FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

[Purchase Contract Date], 2019 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with the proposed issuance by the Florida Municipal Power Agency (the 

“Agency”) of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the 

“Series 2019A Bonds”) and All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the 

“Bonds”) referred to above, Barclays Capital Inc. and BofA Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriters”) have 

agreed to underwrite a public offering of the Bonds. Arrangements for underwriting the Bonds will 

include a Purchase Contract between the Agency and the Underwriters. 

The purpose of this letter is to furnish, pursuant to the provisions of Section 218.385(2) and (3), 

Florida Statutes, as amended, the truth-in-bonding statement required thereby, as follows: 

(a) (i) The Agency is proposing to issue $[________] of its limited obligations for the principal 

purposes of (i) providing funds to currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, (ii) paying any costs of terminating existing interest 

rate swap agreements associated therewith and (iii) paying certain expenses related to the issuance and 

sale of the Bonds. The final maturity of the Series 2019A Bonds is [________] and the average life of the 

Series 2019A Bonds is [____] years.  The Series 2019A Bonds have a true interest cost of [____]%. 

(ii) The sources of repayment for the Series 2019A Bonds are (i) the proceeds of the sale of the 

Series 2019A Bonds pending application thereof, (ii) all right, title and interest of the Agency in, to and 

under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all Funds 

(except as otherwise specifically provided in the Resolution) established by the Resolution, including the 

investment income, if any, thereof, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the 

application thereof for the purpose and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

Authorizing this obligation will result in approximately $[________], plus interest of $[________], of the 

above sources of repayment not being available to finance the other services of the Agency over the life 

of the Bonds. 

Page 78 of 473



 

 C-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(b) (i) The Agency is proposing to issue $[________] of its limited obligations for the principal 

purposes of (i) providing funds to currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) and (ii) paying certain expenses related to 

the issuance and sale of the Bonds. The final maturity of the Series 2019B Bonds is [________] and the 

average life of the Series 2019B Bonds is [____] years.  The Series 2019B Bonds have a true interest cost 

of [____]%. 

(ii) The sources of repayment for the Series 2019B Bonds are (i) the proceeds of the sale of the 

Series 2019B Bonds pending application thereof, (ii) all right, title and interest of the Agency in, to and 

under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all Funds 

(except as otherwise specifically provided in the Resolution) established by the Resolution, including the 

investment income, if any, thereof, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the 

application thereof for the purpose and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

Authorizing this obligation will result in approximately $[________], plus interest of $[________], of the 

above sources of repayment not being available to finance the other services of the Agency over the life 

of the Bonds. 

 

Page 79 of 473



 

 C-3 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

The foregoing is provided for informational purposes only and shall not affect or control the 

actual terms and conditions of the Bonds. 

Yours very truly, 

Barclays Capital Inc., as Representative 

By:    

 Name: 

 Title:  

  

 

Page 80 of 473



 

 D-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT D 

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

(Date of Closing) 

Florida Municipal Power Agency  

8553 Commodity Circle  

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Barclays Capital Inc. 

 as Representative of the Underwriters named in 

 the Purchase Contract dated [________], 2019 

 with the Florida Municipal Power Agency 

 

Gentlemen: 

We have served as Bond Counsel to Florida Municipal Power Agency in connection with the 

issuance and sale of its $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together 

with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”), to the Underwriters named in the Purchase Contract 

referred to herein. Terms used herein which are defined in said Purchase Contract shall have the meanings 

specified therein. 

We have examined, among other things, the Act, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, the 

Interlocal Agreement, the Resolution, the proceedings of the Executive Committee of the Agency with 

respect to the authorization and issuance of the 2019 Bonds, the proceedings of the Executive Committee 

of the Agency with respect to the authorization, execution and delivery of each of the Power Supply 

Contracts, the Participation Agreement, the Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking 

and the Official Statement and such certificates and other documents relating to the Agency, the 2019 

Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Power Supply Contracts, and have 

made such other examination of applicable Florida and other laws as we have deemed necessary in giving 

this opinion. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

(a) The Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated [________], 2019 and the Purchase 

Contract between the Agency and the Underwriters named therein, dated [________], 2019, relating to 

the sale of the 2019 Bonds (the “Purchase Contract”), have each been duly authorized, executed and 

delivered by the Agency, and assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the respective other 

parties thereto, each constitutes the legal, valid and binding agreement of the Agency in accordance with 

its terms. The opinion set forth in this paragraph (a) is subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, 

moratorium, reorganization or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and judicial discretion, and the 

valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida and of the constitutional power of the 

United States of America. 

(b) The 2019 Bonds are exempted securities as described in Section 3 (a) (2) of the Securities 

Act of 1933 and Section 304 (a) (4) of the Trust Indenture Act, each as amended and now in effect, and 

Page 81 of 473



 

 D-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

the offer and sale of the 2019 Bonds does not require any registration under such Securities Act or the 

qualification of any indenture under such Trust Indenture Act. 

(c) The statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement under the captions “INTRODUCTION — Authority for the Offered Securities, Additional 

Bonds, Subordinated Indebtedness, Payments under the Power  Supply Contracts, Security for the 

Offered Securities, “DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES,” “SECURITY AND SOURCES 

OF PAYMENT FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES,” “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS,” 

“VALIDATION,” APPENDIX D — “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 

RESOLUTION AND POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS,” and APPENDIX G — “CONTINUING 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEC RULE 15C2-12” insofar as such statements constitute summaries of certain 

provisions of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Act, the Power Supply Contracts, the Participation 

Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the documents referred to therein present a fair 

and accurate summary of such provisions. The statements in the Preliminary Official Statement and the 

Official Statement under the caption “TAX MATTERS” are accurate statements or summaries of the 

matters therein set forth. 

Because the primary purpose of our professional engagement, as Bond Counsel to the Agency 

was not to establish factual matters, and because of the wholly or partially nonlegal character of many of 

the determinations involved in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement, we are not passing upon and do not assume any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness 

or fairness of the statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement 

(except to the extent expressly set forth in paragraph (c) above) and we make no representation that we 

have independently verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of such statements.  However, in the 

course of our participation in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement as Bond Counsel to the Agency, we conferred (which conferences did not extend beyond the 

date of the Official Statement) with representatives of the Agency, Jody L. Finklea, General Counsel to 

the Agency, the underwriters, underwriters’ counsel and the financial advisor, at which conferences the 

contents of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and related matters were 

discussed.  Our participation in the preparation of the Official Statement did not disclose to us any reason 

to believe that (A) the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date and as of the date of the Purchase 

Contract or the Official Statement as of its date contained any untrue statement of a material fact or 

omitted to state material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading (except for APPENDIX C — “FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT 

REPORT FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018,” except for APPENDIX F — 

“BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM,” and except for the maps and schematic, graphic, pictorial, financial 

and statistical information included in the Official Statement, and including such information in the 

appendices thereto, as to all of which we express no view) or (B) that the Official Statement, as of the 

date hereof, contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading (except as aforesaid). 

We hereby consent to references to us contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the 

Official Statement. 

We are furnishing this letter to the Agency and to you, as Representative of the Underwriters of 

the 2019 Bonds, solely for your benefit. The letter is not to be used, circulated, quoted or otherwise 

referred to for any other purpose. 

Very truly yours, 

Page 82 of 473



 

 E-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT E 

OPINION OF JODY L. FINKLEA, ESQUIRE 

(Date of Closing) 

Barclays Capital Inc., 

 as Representative of the Underwriters named 

 in the Purchase Contract 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have served as General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of  Florida Municipal Power Agency in 

connection with the issuance and sale of its $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the 

“Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”), to the 

Underwriters named in the Purchase Contract referred to herein. Terms used herein which are defined in 

said Purchase Contract shall have the meanings specified therein or, if not defined therein, in the Official 

Statement, dated [________], 2019, relating to the 2019 Bonds. 

I have examined, among other things, the Act, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, the 

Interlocal Agreement, the Resolution, the proceedings of the Executive Committee of the Agency with 

respect to the authorization and issuance of the 2019 Bonds and the authorization, execution and delivery 

of each of the Related Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated [________], 2019 (the 

“Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”), the Purchase Contract and the Official Statement and such 

certificates and other documents relating to the Agency, the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution and the Related 

Documents, and have made such other examination of applicable Florida law as I have deemed necessary 

in giving this opinion. 

Based upon the foregoing, I am of the opinion that: 

(a) The Agency is duly existing as a governmental legal entity and, under the Constitution 

and laws of Florida, has full legal right, power and authority to acquire, construct, operate, maintain and 

improve the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

(b) The execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking and the Related Documents and the Official Statement have been duly authorized by the 

Agency. 

(c) The Related Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Purchase 

Contract have been duly executed and delivered by the Agency and, assuming due authorization and 

execution by the other parties thereto, are valid and enforceable against the Agency in accordance with 

their respective terms. 

(d) Under the laws of Florida, the authority of the Agency and each of the Participants to 

determine, fix, impose and collect rates and charges for electric power and energy sold and delivered is 

not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission, except as disclosed in 

the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement (including, but not limited to, “STATE 

REGULATORY OVERSIGHT”). 

Page 83 of 473



 

 E-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(e) All Florida governmental regulatory approvals necessary to the issuance of the 2019 

Bonds have been obtained. 

(f) The execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking, the Related Documents and the 2019 Bonds by the Agency, the adoption and 

implementation of the Resolution, and compliance with the provisions of said Purchase Contract, the 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Resolution, the Related Documents and the 2019 Bonds, will not 

conflict with or constitute a breach of any Florida law, administrative regulation or court decree of any 

Florida court to which the Agency is subject. 

(g) The Resolution has been duly adopted and is valid, binding and enforceable against the 

Agency in accordance with its terms. 

(h) The authorization, execution and delivery by the Agency of the Related Documents and 

the Agency’s compliance with all terms and provisions thereof will not be a breach of, or constitute a 

default under, the terms and conditions of any indenture, resolution, loan, mortgage, contract or other 

agreement to which the Agency is a party or by which the Agency or its properties is or may be bound. 

(i) The statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement under the captions “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS,” “FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY,” “THE PROJECT,” “STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT”, “CERTAIN 

FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY,” “ENVIRONMENTAL 

REGULATION,” “LITIGATION”, “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE; ADDITIONAL FMPA 

INFORMATION” and “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Power Supply Contracts” contained in 

APPENDIX D are true, correct and complete in all material respects and do not omit any material fact 

known to me, which, in my opinion, should be included or referred to therein so as to make the 

information or statements made therein not misleading. 

(j) Based upon my participation in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and 

the Official Statement as General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of the Agency and without having 

undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements contained 

in the Official Statement, I have no reason to believe that the Preliminary Official Statement, as of its 

date, or the Official Statement, as of the date hereof (except for APPENDIX C — “FMPA’S ANNUAL 

AUDIT REPORT FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018,” except for APPENDIX F 

— “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM” and except for the maps and schematic, graphic, pictorial, 

financial and statistical information included in the Preliminary Official Statement, including such 

information in the Appendices thereto, as to which I express no view) contained or contains any untrue 

statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or 

necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 

not misleading (except as aforesaid). 

It is to be understood that the rights and obligations of the parties under the Purchase Contract, 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Related Documents and the Resolution and the enforceability 

thereof may be subject to judicial discretion, the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State 

of Florida and the constitutional powers of the United States of America, and valid bankruptcy, 

insolvency, reorganization and other laws affecting creditors’ rights. 

I am furnishing this letter to you, as Underwriters of the 2019 Bonds, solely for your benefit. The 

letter is not to be used, circulated, quoted or otherwise referred to for any other purpose. 

Very truly yours, 

Page 84 of 473



 

 F-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT F 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

CERTIFICATE 

We, Howard McKinnon, Chairperson of the Executive Committee of Florida Municipal Power 

Agency (the “Agency”), and Jacob A. Williams, General Manager and Chief Executive Officer of the 

Agency, hereby certify that: 

1. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the representations, warranties, covenants and 

agreements of the Agency contained in the Purchase Contract dated [________], 2019 between the 

Agency and the Underwriters named therein (the “Purchase Contract”), with respect to the sale by the 

Agency of $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the 

Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”), are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the date 

of the Closing as if made on the date of the Closing. 

2. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, dated [________], 2019, 

relating to the 2019 Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) and the Official Statement, dated 

[________], 2019, relating to the 2019 Bonds (the “Official Statement”), no action, suit, proceeding, 

inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, government agency or public board or 

body, is pending against or, to the best of our knowledge, threatened against the Agency, affecting the 

legal existence of the Agency or the titles of its officers to their respective offices or affecting or seeking 

to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of the 2019 Bonds or the collection of the 

amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the 2019 Bonds, or in any way 

contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Purchase 

Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or the Related Documents or contesting the tax-exempt 

status of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds as described in the Official Statement, or contesting in 

any way the completeness or accuracy of the Official Statement or any supplement or amendment thereto, 

or contesting the powers of the Agency or any authority or proceedings for the issuance, sale and delivery 

of the 2019 Bonds, the adoption of the Resolution or the execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or the Related Documents or the performance of the Agency’s 

obligations under the Resolution, the Purchase Contract or the Related Documents, nor to the best of our 

knowledge, is there any basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would 

materially adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Related 

Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or the Purchase Contract. 

3. To the best of our knowledge, no event affecting the Agency has occurred since the date 

of the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the Official Statement so that the Official 

Statement will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required 

to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 

which they were made, not misleading, and which has not been disclosed in a supplement or amendment 

to the Official Statement. 

4. The Agency has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its 

part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof pursuant to the Purchase Contract. 

Page 85 of 473



 

 F-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

5. All capitalized terms employed herein which are not otherwise defined shall have the 

same meanings as in the Purchase Contract. 

[Closing Date], 2019 

 

___________________________________ 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

of the Agency  

 

___________________________________ 

General Manager and Chief Executive Officer 

of the Agency 

Page 86 of 473



 

G-1 

 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT G 

 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITER 

 

The undersigned, on behalf of Barclays Capital Inc. (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and 

BofA Securities, Inc., hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance by Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (the “Issuer”) of its $[________] aggregate principal amount of All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Bonds”). 

1. Sale of the Bonds. As of the date of this certificate, for each Maturity of the Bonds, the 

first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective 

price listed in Schedule A. 

2. Defined Terms. 

(a) Issuer means the Florida Municipal Power Agency. 

(b) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with different 

maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as 

separate Maturities. 

(c) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, 

company or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related 

party” for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 

percent common ownership, directly or indirectly. 

(d) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 

Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of 

the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly 

with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 

Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in 

the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public). 

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this 

certificate represents the Representative’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 

and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. 

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect 

to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with the 

federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Nixon Peabody LLP in connection with rendering its 

opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 

preparation of the Internal Revenue Service form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it may 

give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds.  

Page 87 of 473



 

 G-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

 

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., as Representative of the 

Underwriters 

 

 

By: ________________________________  

Name:  

Title:  

 

Dated:  [Closing Date], 2019

Page 88 of 473



 

G-3 

 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE A 

 

SALE PRICES 

 

Due  

October 1, 

Principal  

Amount 

Interest  

Rate Yield Price 

     

     

     

     

 

 

   

Page 89 of 473



 

G-4 

 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE B 

 

PRICING WIRE 

Page 90 of 473



 

 

EXHIBIT H 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A 

AND 

SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 
  

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

  

THIS AGREEMENT, dated [________], 2019, is made by and between the Agency and 

the Trustee, each as defined below in Section 1. 

In order to permit the Underwriters to comply with the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 in 

connection with the public offering of the Bonds, the parties hereto, in consideration of the 

mutual covenants herein contained and other good and lawful consideration, hereby agree, for 

the sole and exclusive benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, as follows: 

Section 1.  Definitions; Rules of Construction. 

(i) Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings 

ascribed to them in the Resolutions. 

“Agency” shall mean Florida Municipal Power Agency, a governmental legal 

entity created pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida. 

“Annual Agency Financial Information” shall mean the information specified in 

Section 3(i) hereof. 

“Annual Financial Information” shall mean the Annual Major Participant 

Financial Information and Annual Agency Financial Information, collectively. 

“Annual Major Participant Financial Information” shall mean the information 

specified in Section 3(ii) hereof. 

“Audited Financial Statements” shall mean the Audited Agency Financial 

Statements and the Audited Major Participant Financial Statements. 

“Audited Agency Financial Statements” shall mean the annual financial 

statements of the Agency, audited by such auditors as shall then be required or permitted 

by State law or the Resolutions.  Audited Agency Financial Statements shall be prepared 

in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that the Agency may, from time to time, if 

Page 91 of 473



 

H-2 

required by federal or State legal requirements, modify the accounting principles to be 

followed in preparing its financial statements.  

“Audited Major Participant Financial Statements” shall mean the annual financial 

statements of each Major Participant audited by such auditors as shall then be required or 

permitted by State law.  Audited Major Participant Financial Statements shall be prepared 

in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that Major Participants may, from time to 

time, if required, by federal or State legal requirements, or otherwise, modify the 

accounting principles to be followed in preparing its financial statements. 

“Bonds” shall mean the Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds. 

“EMMA” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system, the 

electronic format information repository to the MSRB, created in accordance with certain 

amendments to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or 

its successor. 

“Financial Obligation” shall mean a: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative 

instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment 

for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (C) guarantee of (A) or (B), but (ii) shall 

not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided 

to the MSRB consistent with Rule 15c2-12 

“GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from 

time to time in the United States. 

“Holder” shall mean any registered owner of Bonds, and, for purposes of 

Section 5 of this Agreement only, if registered in the name of DTC (or a nominee 

thereof) or in the name of any other entity (or a nominee thereof) that acts as a “clearing 

corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and is a 

“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, any beneficial owner of Bonds. 

“Major Participants” shall mean, individually or collectively as the context 

requires, each Participant which shall have a Participant’s Share and each Participant or 

other unit of local government which pursuant to the Power Sales Contracts or otherwise 

shall have and/or shall have assumed (by agreement or by operation of law) the 

obligations of one or more Participants under the Power Sales Contracts to the extent of 

an aggregate Participant’s Share in excess of 10%.  The Major Participants currently are 

the City of Jacksonville Beach, the Utility Board of the City of Key West, the Kissimmee 

Utility Authority and the City of Ocala.  

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934. 

“Participants” shall mean City of Bushnell, City of Clewiston, City of Fort 

Meade, Town of Havana, City of Green Cove Springs, City of Jacksonville Beach, City 

Page 92 of 473



 

H-3 

of Leesburg, City of Ocala, Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida, Kissimmee 

Utility Authority, City of Lake Worth, City of Newberry, City of Starke and Fort Pierce 

Utilities Authority. 

“Participant’s Share” shall mean the Participant’s prior years kWh purchases from 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

“Resolutions” shall mean the All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond 

Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on 

May 23, 2003, as amended and supplemented, including as supplemented by the 

Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) and Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply 

Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds), each adopted on [________], 2019. 

“Rule 15c2-12” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 (as amended through the date of this 

Agreement) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including any 

official interpretations thereof promulgated on or prior to the effective date hereof. 

“Series 2019A Bonds” shall mean the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A. 

“Series 2019B Bonds” shall mean the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable). 

“State” shall mean the State of Florida. 

“Trustee” shall mean TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, or 

any successor trustee under the Resolution. 

“Unaudited Agency Financial Statements” shall mean the same as Audited 

Agency Financial Statements except that they shall not have been audited. 

“Unaudited Major Participant Financial Statements” shall mean the same as 

Audited Major Participant Financial Statements except that they shall not have been 

audited. 

“Underwriters” shall mean the underwriter or underwriters that have contracted to 

purchase the Bonds from the Agency upon initial issuance. 

(ii) Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, the following rules shall apply 

to the construction of this Agreement: 

(a) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and 

vice versa. 

(b) Any reference herein to a particular Section or subsection without further 

reference to a particular document or provision of law or regulation is a reference to a 

Section or subsection of this Agreement. 

Page 93 of 473



 

H-4 

(c) The captions and headings herein are solely for convenience of reference 

and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement nor shall they affect its meaning, 

construction or effect. 

Section 2.  Obligation to Provide Continuing Disclosure. 

(i) The Agency hereby undertakes, for the benefit of Holders of the Bonds, to 

provide or cause to be provided: 

(a) to the MSRB through its EMMA system, no later than nine months after 

the end of each fiscal year, commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, 

the Annual Financial Information relating to such fiscal year; 

(b) if not submitted as part of the Annual Financial Information, to the MSRB 

through its EMMA system, not later than nine months after the end of each fiscal year 

commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, (1) Audited Agency 

Financial Statements for such fiscal year when and if they become available and, if such 

Audited Agency Financial Statements are not available on the date which is nine months 

after the end of a fiscal year, the Unaudited Agency Financial Statements for such fiscal 

year and (2) Audited Major Participant Financial Statements for such fiscal year when 

and if they become available and, if such Audited Major Participant Financial Statements 

are not available on the date which is nine months after the end of a fiscal year, the 

Unaudited Major Participation Financial Statements for such fiscal year; provided, 

however, in the case of Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, that the same 

can practicably be obtained by the Agency;   

(c) to EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with 

respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the 

event: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 

perform; 

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service 

of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of 

Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 

determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

7. modifications to the rights of Bondholders, if material; 

8. bond calls, if material, and tender offers;  

Page 94 of 473



 

H-5 

9 defeasances; 

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

Bonds, if material; 

11. rating changes; 

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings of the 

Agency or a Major Participant; 

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition, or the 

sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Agency or a 

Major Participant, other than in the ordinary course of business, the 

entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such action or the 

termination of a definitive agreement relating to such actions, other 

than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

14. appointment of a successor trustee or additional trustee or the 

change of name of a trustee, if material; 

15. the incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Agency or a Major 

Participant, if material, or agreement as to covenants, events of 

default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 

Financial Obligation of the Agency or a Major Participant, any of 

which affect holders of the Bonds, if material; and 

16. a default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of 

terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial 

Obligation of the Agency or a Major Participant, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties. 

(d) to EMMA, in a timely manner, notice of a failure to provide any Annual 

Financial Information required by clause (i)(a) of this Section 2. 

(ii) The Agency may satisfy its obligations hereunder by filing any notice, document 

or information with the MSRB through its EMMA system, to the extent permitted or required by 

the SEC. 

(iii) Other Information.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent the Agency from 

disseminating any other information in addition to that required hereby in the manner set forth 

herein or in any other manner.  If the Agency should disseminate any such additional 

information, the Agency shall not have any obligation hereunder to update such information or to 

include it in any future materials disseminated hereunder. 

(iv) Disclaimer.  The Agency and the Trustee shall be obligated to perform only those 

duties expressly provided for such entity in this Agreement, and neither of the foregoing shall be 

under any obligation to the Holders or other parties hereto to perform, or monitor the 

performance of, any duties of the other party. 

Section 3.  Annual Financial Information. 

(i) The required Annual Agency Financial Information shall consist of the following: 

Page 95 of 473



 

H-6 

(A) financial and operating data relating to the Agency’s All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project consisting of:  (1) a description of the Agency’s All-

Requirements Power Supply Project; (2) information of the type included in the 

table captioned “Historical Capacity Requirements and Resources” under the 

heading “THE PROJECT” in the Official Statement for the three most recently 

completed fiscal years; (3) historical operating results for the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project for the three most recently completed fiscal years, including 

net sales to cities and net power costs; and (4) information concerning the 

Agency’s debt service requirements for the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project; 

(B) a presentation of the Agency’s financial results in accordance with GAAP 

for the two most recent completed fiscal years for which that information is then 

currently available;  

(C)  material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(D) such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding 

and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information 

and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the 

Agency. 

(ii) The required Annual Major Participant Financial Information shall consist of the 

following: 

(A)  financial and operating data consisting of:  (1) the information of the type 

contained in Appendix B to the Official Statement, other than the information 

contained under the headings “General”; (2) information concerning sales of 

electric services, customers, and non-coincident peak demand; and (3) a 

presentation of the Major Participants’ information concerning historical net 

energy requirements and peak demand;  

(B)  material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(C)  such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding 

and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information 

and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the 

Major Participants. 

The type of financial information and operating data relating to the Agency described in 

Sections 3(i)(A), (B) and (C) is currently included in the Official Statement dated [________], 

2019 and relating to the Bonds under the headings “DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS”, 

“THE PROJECT” and “LITIGATION”.  The type of financial information and operating data 

relating to the Major Participants described in Sections 3(ii)(A), (B) and (C) is currently included 

in the Official Statement dated [________], 2019 under the headings “THE PROJECT 

PARTICIPANTS”, APPENDIX A – “MEMBER PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS” and 

APPENDIX B – “THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS”.  The requirements contained in this section 

are intended to set forth a general description of the type of financial information and operating 

Page 96 of 473



 

H-7 

data to be provided; such descriptions are not intended to state more than general categories of 

financial information and operating data; and where the provisions of clause (i) call for 

information that no longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been 

materially changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided. 

All or any portion of the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated therein by 

cross reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB through its 

EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, that if the 

document is an official statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not have been 

filed elsewhere. 

Annual Financial Information for any fiscal year containing any modified operating data 

or financial information (as contemplated by Section 7 hereof) for each such fiscal year shall 

explain, in narrative form, the reasons for such modification and the effect of such modification 

on the Annual Financial Information being provided for such fiscal year.  If a change in 

accounting principles is included in any such modification, such Annual Financial Information 

shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis 

of the modified accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 

principles.  Such comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 

accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the 

presentation of the financial information.  To the extent feasible, such comparison shall also be 

quantitative.  A notice of any such change in accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB 

through its EMMA system. 

Information From Major Participants.  The Agency agrees to request, obtain and 

provide, pursuant to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or otherwise, Annual 

Major Participant Financial Information, Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, and 

information relating to any change in fiscal year and the basis on which audited financial 

statements are prepared, from time to time and in sufficient time to permit the Agency to comply 

with the provisions of this Agreement, and shall enforce such provisions of this Agreement; the 

failure of any Major Participant to furnish any such requested information or data shall not 

excuse the performance by the Agency of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  Under the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, the Participants are required to furnish to the 

Agency, upon request all information, financial statements and other documents as shall be 

reasonably necessary in connection with the financing of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project. 

Section 4.  Financial Statements.   The Audited Financial Statements for each fiscal 

year shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP as in effect from time to time.  Such financial 

statements shall be audited by an independent accounting firm. 

All or any portion of the Audited or Unaudited Financial Statements may be incorporated 

therein by specific reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB 

through its EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, 

that if the document is an official statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not 

have been filed elsewhere. 

Page 97 of 473



 

H-8 

Section 5.  Remedies.   If the Agency shall fail to comply with any provision of this 

Agreement, then the Trustee or any Holder of Bonds may enforce, for the equal benefit and 

protection of all Holders similarly situated, by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in 

equity, this Agreement against the Agency and any of its officers, agents and employees, and 

may compel the Agency or any of its officers, agents or employees to perform and carry out their 

duties under this Agreement; provided that the sole and exclusive remedy for breach of this 

Agreement shall be an action to compel specific performance of the obligations of the Agency 

hereunder and no person or entity shall be entitled to recover monetary damages hereunder under 

any circumstances, and, provided further, that any challenge to the adequacy of any information 

provided pursuant to Section 2 shall be brought only by the Trustee or the Holders of 25% in 

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding which are affected thereby.  

Failure to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a default under the 

Resolutions nor give right to the Trustee or any Holder to exercise any of the remedies under the 

Resolutions. 

Section 6.  Parties in Interest.   This Agreement is executed and delivered solely for the 

benefit of the Holders of the Bonds which, for the purposes of Section 5, include those beneficial 

owners of Bonds specified in the definition of Holder set forth in Section 1.  For the purposes of 

such Section 5, such beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-party beneficiaries of this 

Agreement.  No person other than those described in Section 5 shall have any right to enforce the 

provisions hereof or any other rights hereunder. 

Section 7.  Amendments.   Without the consent of any Holders (except to the extent 

expressly provided below), the Agency and the Trustee at any time and from time to time may 

enter into any amendments or changes to this Agreement for any of the following purposes: 

(i) to comply with or conform to Rule 15c2-12 or any amendments thereto or 

authoritative interpretations thereof by the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff 

(whether required or optional) which are applicable to the Agreement; 

(ii) to add a dissemination agent for the information required to be provided hereby 

and to make any necessary or desirable provisions with respect thereto; 

(iii) to evidence the succession of another person to the Agency and the assumption by 

any such successor of the covenants of the Agency hereunder; 

(iv) to add to the covenants of the Agency for the benefit of the Holders, or to 

surrender any right or power herein conferred upon the Agency; or 

(v) for any other purpose as a result of a change in circumstances that arises from a 

change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the 

Agency, or type of business conducted; provided that (1) the Agreement, as amended, would 

have complied with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 at the time of the offering of the Bonds, 

after taking into account any amendments or authoritative interpretations of Rule 15c2-12, as 

well as any change in circumstances, (2) the amendment or change either (a) does not materially 

impair the interests of Holders, as determined by bond counsel or (b) is approved by the vote or 

consent of Holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Bonds affected thereby 

Page 98 of 473



 

H-9 

at or prior to the time of such amendment or change and (3) the Trustee receives an opinion of 

bond counsel that such amendment is authorized or permitted by this Agreement. 

Section 8.  Termination.   This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such 

time as all principal, redemption premiums, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall have been 

paid in full or legally defeased pursuant to the Resolutions (a “Legal Defeasance”); provided, 

however, that if Rule 15c2-12 (or successor provision) shall be amended, modified or changed so 

that all or any part of the information currently required to be provided thereunder shall no 

longer be required to be provided thereunder, then such information shall no longer be required 

to be provided hereunder; and provided, further, that if and to the extent Rule 15c2-12 

(or successor provision), or any provision thereof shall be declared by a court of competent and 

final jurisdiction to be, in whole or in part, invalid, unconstitutional, null and void, or otherwise 

inapplicable to the Bonds, then the information required to be provided hereunder, insofar as it 

was required to be provided by a provision of Rule 15c2-12 so declared, shall no longer be 

required to be provided hereunder.  Upon any Legal Defeasance, the Agency shall provide notice 

of such defeasance to the MSRB through its EMMA system.  Such notice shall state whether the 

Bonds have been defeased to maturity or to redemption and the timing of such maturity or 

redemption.  Upon any other termination pursuant to this Section 8, the Agency shall provide 

notice of such termination to the MSRB through its EMMA system. 

Section 9.  The Trustee. 

(i) Except as otherwise set forth herein, this Agreement shall not create any 

obligation or duty on the part of the Trustee and the Trustee shall not be subject to any liability 

hereunder for acting or failing to act as the case may be. 

(ii) The Agency shall indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee in connection with 

this Agreement, to the same extent provided in the Resolutions for matters arising thereunder. 

Section 10.  Governing Law.   This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Florida determined without regard to principles of conflict of law. 

Section 11.  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but which together shall constitute one and the 

same Agreement. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signatures appear on following page] 

Page 99 of 473



 

[Signature page to Continuing Disclosure Agreement] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly authorized, executed and 

delivered this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By:   

Name:  Jacob Williams 

Title:  General Manager and CEO  

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
   as Trustee 

By:   

Name: David C. Leondi 

Title: Vice President 

Page 100 of 473



OHS Draft 8/30/19 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED [________], 2019 

 

 

T
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

 O
ff

ic
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
h

an
g
e,

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

w
it

h
o
u
t 

n
o
ti

ce
. 
 T

h
e 

O
ff

er
ed

 S
ec

u
ri

ti
es

 m
ay

 n
o
t 

b
e 

so
ld

 n
o

r 
m

ay
 o

ff
er

s 
to

 b
u

y
 b

e 
ac

ce
p
te

d
 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e 

ti
m

e 
th

e 
O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 i
n

 f
in

al
 f

o
rm

. 
 U

n
d
er

 n
o

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s 

sh
al

l 
th

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

co
n
st

it
u

te
 a

n
 o

ff
er

 t
o

 s
el

l 
o

r 
th

e 
so

li
ci

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
 o

ff
er

 t
o
 b

u
y
, 
n

o
r 

sh
al

l 
th

er
e 

b
e 

an
y

 

sa
le

 o
f 

th
e 

O
ff

er
ed

 S
ec

u
ri

ti
es

 i
n

 a
n
y

 j
u

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ch

 o
ff

er
, 

so
li

ci
ta

ti
o
n

 o
r 

sa
le

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e 
u
n

la
w

fu
l 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
r 

q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 u

n
d
er

 t
h

e 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

 l
aw

s 
o

f 
su

ch
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 

NEW ISSUE–BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY Ratings: Moody’s: [__] 

 Fitch: [__] 

 See “Credit Ratings” herein. 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the tax covenants described herein, 

and the accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by Florida Municipal Power Agency described herein, interest 

on the Series 2019A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest on the Series 2019A Bonds 

is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code.  Interest on the Series 

2019B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein regarding certain 

other tax considerations. 

$[82,095,000]* 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

$[75,425,000]*  

All-Requirements Power Supply Project  

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A 

$[6,670,000]*  

All-Requirements Power Supply Project  

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B  

(Federally Taxable) 

DATED:  DATE OF ISSUANCE DUE: AS SHOWN ON INSIDE FRONT COVER 

The Series 2019A Bonds are being issued by the Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”) to (i) currently refund all 

of FMPA’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, 

(ii) pay the costs of terminating existing interest rate swap agreements associated with such bonds and (iii) pay the costs of issuance 

of the Series 2019A Bonds. The Series 2019B Bonds are being issued by FMPA to (i) currently refund all of FMPA’s outstanding 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 

2019B Bonds. The Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds are referred to herein as the “Offered Securities.” 

The Offered Securities are payable and secured on a parity with FMPA’s senior lien Bonds (as defined in 

“INTRODUCTION – Outstanding Indebtedness”) issued for the Project (as defined in “INTRODUCTION – The Project”), 

including those senior lien Bonds presently outstanding and those that may be issued for the Project in the future. 

The Offered Securities are issuable as fully registered bonds and when issued will be registered in the name of Cede & 

Co., as Bondholder and Securities Depository Nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. Individual 

purchases will be made in book-entry-only form through DTC Participants. TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New 

Jersey, is the Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Offered Securities and all other parity senior lien Bonds of the 

Project. 

The Offered Securities will be issued in authorized denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and will 

accrue interest from their dated date payable on each April 1 and October 1, commencing April 1, 2020, at the rates and mature on 

the dates set forth on the inside front cover of this Official Statement. 

The Offered Securities are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

The Offered Securities are direct and special obligations of FMPA, payable from the revenues and other funds of 

the Project pledged thereto under the Resolution. Neither the State of Florida nor any political subdivision thereof other 

than FMPA, nor any Member of FMPA, is obligated to pay the Offered Securities. Neither the full faith and credit nor the 

taxing power of the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof or any Member is pledged to the payment of the 

Offered Securities. FMPA has no taxing power. 

MATURITY SCHEDULE – See Inside Front Cover 

The Offered Securities are offered when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriters, subject to the approval of 

legality by Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters in connection with the Offered 

Securities will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, New York, New York. 

Certain legal matters in connection with the Offered Securities are subject to the approval of Jody L. Finklea, Esquire, FMPA’s 

General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer. Dunlap & Associates, Inc., Orlando, Florida, is acting as FMPA’s Financial Advisor. It 

is expected that the Offered Securities in book-entry-only form will be available for delivery through The Depository Trust 

Company in New York, New York on or about [________], 2019. 

Barclays BofA Merrill Lynch 
________, 2019  

                                                 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 101 of 473



 

 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

$[75,425,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds,  

Series 2019A 

DUE  

OCTOBER 1, 

PRINCIPAL  

AMOUNT 

INTEREST  

RATE 

PRICE OR  

YIELD CUSIP(1) 

2025     

2026     

2027     

2028     

2029     

2030     

2031     

 

$[6,670,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds,  

Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

DUE  

OCTOBER 1, 

PRINCIPAL  

AMOUNT 

INTEREST  

RATE 

PRICE OR  

YIELD CUSIP(1) 

2020     

2021     

2022     

2023     

 

 

 

 

                                                 
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 
(1) Copyright, American Bankers Association (the “ABA”).  CUSIP data herein are provided by CUSIP Global Services, operated on behalf of 

the ABA by CUSIP Global Services, which is managed on behalf of the ABA by S&P Global Market Intelligence, a division of S&P Global 

Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for the convenience of Holders of the Offered Securities only at the time of 

issuance of the Offered Securities and FMPA, and the Underwriters do not make any representation with respect to such numbers or undertake 
any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any time in the future. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed 

after the issuance of the Offered Securities as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in 

part of such maturity or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that 
is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the Offered Securities. 

Page 102 of 473



 

-i- 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

Operational Offices 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

(407) 355-7767 

Facsimile: (850) 297-2014 

OFFICERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Howard McKinnon, Chairperson 

Lynne Tejeda, Vice Chairperson 

PARTICIPANTS IN THE PROJECT 

City of Bushnell 

City of Clewiston 

City of Fort Meade 

Fort Pierce Utilities Authority 

City of Green Cove Springs 

Town of Havana 

City of Jacksonville Beach 

Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida 

Kissimmee Utility Authority 

City of Lake Worth 

City of Leesburg 

City of Newberry 

City of Ocala 

City of Starke 

MANAGEMENT 

Jacob A. Williams, General Manager and CEO 

Jody Lamar Finklea, Esquire, General Counsel and CLO 

Linda S. Howard, CPA, CTP, Chief Financial Officer 

Ken Rutter, Chief Operating Officer 

Carol Chinn, Chief Information Security Officer 

Mark T. McCain, Assistant General Manager of Public Relations and Member Services 

Richard Popp, Treasurer and Risk Director 

Jason Wolfe, Financial Planning, Rates & Budget Director 

Danyel Sullivan-Marrero, Controller 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Dunlap & Associates, Inc. 

Orlando, Florida 

BOND COUNSEL 

Nixon Peabody LLP 

New York, New York 

TRUSTEE 

TD Bank, National Association 

Cherry Hill, New Jersey 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Purvis Gray & Company 

Ocala, Florida 

 

SWAP ADVISOR 

Swap Financial Group 

South Orange, New Jersey 

Page 103 of 473



 

-ii- 

No dealer or any other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation, 

other than the information and representations contained herein, in connection with the offering of the Offered 

Securities and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon. This Official Statement 

does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Offered 

Securities, to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is unlawful to make such solicitation, offer or sale. The 

information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this 

Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall create, under any circumstances, any implication that there has 

been no change in the affairs of FMPA or the Participants since the date hereof. 

The information in this Official Statement has been furnished by FMPA and the Participants and 

includes information obtained from other sources, all of which are believed to be reliable. The purpose of this 

Official Statement is to provide information to prospective investors in the Offered Securities and is not to be 

used for any other purpose or relied on by any other person. 

This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of historical 

fact, constitute “forward-looking statements.”  In this respect, the words “estimate”, “project”, “anticipate”, 

“expect”, “intend”, “believe” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. A 

number of factors affecting FMPA’s and the Participants’ business and financial results could cause actual 

results to differ materially from those stated in the forward-looking statements. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES, THE 

UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR 

MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF SUCH OFFERED SECURITIES AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT 

WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF 

COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

THE OFFERED SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 

OF 1933 NOR HAS THE RESOLUTION BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 

1939 IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS. 

THE OFFERED SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR 

STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY.  FURTHERMORE, THE 

FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE 

ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT.  ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL 

OFFENSE.  IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN 

EXAMINATION OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, 

INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  The 

Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their 

responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 

transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

 

Page 104 of 473



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 -iii-  

 

INTRODUCTION .............................................................1 
Florida Municipal Power Agency ......................................1 
The Project ........................................................................1 
Authority for the Offered Securities ..................................2 
Purpose of the Offered Securities ......................................2 
Outstanding Indebtedness ..................................................2 
Additional Bonds ..............................................................2 
Subordinated Indebtedness ................................................3 
Trustee ..............................................................................3 
Payments under the Power Supply Contracts ....................3 
Security for the Offered Securities ....................................3 
Major Participants .............................................................4 
DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES.........5 
General ..............................................................................5 
No Redemption .................................................................6 
PLAN OF FINANCE ........................................................6 
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS..........6 
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ...............................7 
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 

OFFERED SECURITIES .........................................8 
Pledge Under the Resolution .............................................8 
Rates..................................................................................8 
All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts .......................8 
Additional Bonds ..............................................................9 
Flow of Funds Under the Resolution .................................9 
Debt Service Reserve ........................................................9 
THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS ..........................10 
Introduction .....................................................................10 
Purchase and Sale ............................................................10 
Payments under Power Supply Contracts ........................10 
Early Termination of a Power Supply Contract ...............10 
Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD) .................................11 
Elections of Certain Participants .....................................11 
Withdrawal of Vero Beach ..............................................12 
Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by  

Participants ...............................................................13 
RISK MANAGEMENT ..................................................13 
General ............................................................................13 
Natural Gas Supply Hedging ...........................................14 
Rate Setting .....................................................................14 
Interest Rate Swaps .........................................................14 
Insurance .........................................................................15 
Cyber Security .................................................................15 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY ................15 
General ............................................................................15 
Organization and Management ........................................15 
THE PROJECT  ..............................................................18 
Introduction .....................................................................18 
Project Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of 

the Project .................................................................19 
Environmental and Operational Compliance ...................22 
Purchased Power and Other Contracts.............................22 
Member Contributed Resources ......................................22 
Net Metering ...................................................................22 
Fuel Supply .....................................................................23 
Transmission and Dispatch Agreements ..........................24 
Florida Municipal Power Pool .........................................24 
Conservation and Demand-Side Management Activities 25 
Future Power Supply .......................................................25 
Project Operations ...........................................................26 
Sales to Non-Participants ................................................26 
Historical and Projected Future Capacity Requirements 

and Resources ...........................................................27 
THE PROJECT PARTICIPANTS ..................................30 
Description of the Participants ........................................30 

Major Participants’ Historical Net Energy Requirements 

and Peak Demand .................................................... 30 
Major Participants .......................................................... 30 
OTHER FMPA PROJECTS ........................................... 31 
Introduction .................................................................... 31 
Stanton Project ............................................................... 31 
Stanton II Project ............................................................ 32 
St. Lucie Project ............................................................. 33 
Tri-City Project............................................................... 34 
Solar Project ................................................................... 34 
Environmental and Operational Compliance – Other 

Projects .................................................................... 34 
Initial Pooled Loan Project ............................................. 35 
Future Power Supply and Operations ............................. 35 
STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT ........................ 35 
CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC 

UTILITY INDUSTRY .......................................... 36 
General ........................................................................... 36 
Energy Policy Act of 1992 ............................................. 37 
FERC Transmission Initiatives ....................................... 37 
2005 Energy Policy Act .................................................. 37 
Fresh Water Supplies ...................................................... 39 
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION ........................... 39 
Air Pollution Prevention and Control ............................. 39 
EPA Regulatory Actions for Power Plants ..................... 40 
Waste Management ........................................................ 40 
Additional Environmental Issues .................................... 41 
UNDERWRITING ......................................................... 42 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR ................................................ 42 
LITIGATION  ............................................................. 42 
ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES ........................... 42 
CREDIT RATINGS ....................................................... 43 
Offered Securities ........................................................... 43 
General ........................................................................... 43 
TAX MATTERS ............................................................ 43 
The Series 2019A Bonds ................................................ 43 
The Series 2019B Bonds ................................................ 45 
APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ................... 50 
RELATIONSHIPS AMONG PARTIES ........................ 51 
VALIDATION  ............................................................. 51 
FMPA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................ 51 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE; ADDITIONAL FMPA 

INFORMATION ................................................... 51 
DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY 

REGULATIONS ................................................... 52 
MISCELLANEOUS ....................................................... 53 
APPENDIX A MEMBERS’ PARTICIPATION IN 

FMPA PROJECTS .............................................. A-1 
APPENDIX B THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS ........ B-1 
APPENDIX C FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 

30, 2018  ........................................................... C-1 
APPENDIX D SUMMARY OF CERTAIN 

PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS ....................... D-1 
APPENDIX E PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF 

BOND COUNSEL ............................................... E-1 
APPENDIX F BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM ...... F-1 
APPENDIX G CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER 

SEC RULE 15C2-12............................................ G-1 

Page 105 of 473



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -iv-  

 

Page 106 of 473



 

   

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 107 of 473



 

 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

of the 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

relating to its 

$[75,425,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A 

and 

$[6,670,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Official Statement (which includes the cover page and appendices hereto) of the Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA” or the “Agency”) is to set forth information concerning FMPA, its Members and 

its $[75,425,000]* principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[6,670,000]* principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds”).  The Series 2019A Bonds 

and the Series 2019B Bonds together are referred to herein as the “Offered Securities.” 

This Introduction contains a summary of certain of the information contained in this Official Statement. In 

order to make an informed decision as to whether to invest in the Offered Securities, a potential investor must read 

this Official Statement in its entirety. 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Official Statement shall have the meanings set forth in the 

Appendices to this Official Statement. 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

FMPA is a governmental legal entity, organized and existing under (i) Section 163.01 of the Florida Statutes 

(the “Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act”), (ii)  Part II, Chapter 361 of the Florida Statutes (the “Joint Power Act”), 

and (iii) an interlocal agreement creating FMPA among the 31 members of FMPA (each individually a “Member” and 

collectively, the “Members”) executed pursuant to the foregoing statutory authority and exercising supplemental 

authority granted under the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act or the Joint Power Act, or both (the “Interlocal 

Agreement”). The Members of FMPA are 31 Florida city commissions, city and town councils, utility commissions, 

utility authorities and a utility board. Under Florida law, FMPA has authority to undertake and finance specified 

projects and, among other things, to plan, finance, acquire, construct, reconstruct, own, lease, operate, maintain, repair, 

improve, extend or otherwise participate jointly in those projects. FMPA has the authority to issue bonds or bond 

anticipation notes for the purpose of financing or refinancing the costs of these projects. See “FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY.” 

The Project 

The All-Requirements Power Supply Project (the “Project” or the “All-Requirements Power Supply Project”) 

is a power supply project under which FMPA provides to each of the active participating Members (the “Participants”) 

in the Project their individual All-Requirements Service. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of 

Certain Participants.”  For a particular Participant, its “All-Requirements Service” is all of its needed electric power 

and energy, transmission and associated services, unless limited by a contract rate of delivery, except for certain 

excluded resources. A Participant purchases its All-Requirements Service pursuant to an All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Contract with FMPA (each individually a “Power Supply Contract” and collectively, the “Power 

Supply Contracts”). See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

The power supply assets of the Project include (i) undivided interests in generating facilities that are owned 

in whole or in part by FMPA; (ii) power supply resources under long-term and short-term contracts of FMPA; 

(iii) generation assets owned by some of the Participants or in which some Participants have entitlement shares, the 

                                                 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 108 of 473



 

- 2 - 

capacity and energy of which are sold to the Project; and (iv) transmission arrangements. For further description of 

the Project, see “THE PROJECT.” 

Authority for the Offered Securities 

The Offered Securities are being issued pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, the Joint Power 

Act and Part II, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes (collectively, the “Act”), and the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on May 23, 

2003, as amended and supplemented, including as supplemented by the Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019A Bonds and the 

Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) 

authorizing the Series 2019B Bonds, each adopted on [________], 2019 (collectively, the “Resolution”). 

Purpose of the Offered Securities 

The proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of the Agency, to 

(i) currently refund all of FMPA’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, (ii) pay the costs of terminating existing interest rate swap agreements 

associated with such bonds and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

The proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of the Agency, to 

(i) currently refund all of FMPA’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A 

(Taxable) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

See “PLAN OF FINANCE.” 

Outstanding Indebtedness 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been 

deposited with the Trustee, FMPA will have $788,968,000 principal amount of Bonds outstanding in the following 

amounts with respect to the Project: 

$57,790,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A 

(the “Series 2018A Bonds”) 

69,625,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A 

(the “Series 2017A Bonds”) 

52,925,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B 

(Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2017B Bonds”) 

424,120,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A 

(the “Series 2016A Bonds”) 

98,790,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2015B (the “Series 

2015B Bonds”) 

6,615,000* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) 

(the “Series 2013A Bonds”) 

79,103,000* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2008C (the “Series 2008C Bonds”) 

_______________________ 
* The Agency expects to use a portion of the proceeds of the Offered Securities, together with other available funds, to 

refund the Series 2008C Bonds and the Series 2013A Bonds.  See “PLAN OF FINANCE.” 

When issued, the Offered Securities together with the Series 2018A Bonds, the Series 2017A Bonds, the 

Series 2017B Bonds, the Series 2016A Bonds and the Series 2015B Bonds will be parity senior lien bonds and, 

together with all additional senior lien bonds on a parity therewith issued in the future (the “Additional Bonds”), are 

called the “Bonds.” 

Additional Bonds 

FMPA may, upon compliance with certain terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution, issue additional 

parity senior lien bonds in an unlimited amount, subject to the conditions specified in the Resolution, for the purpose 

Page 109 of 473



 

- 3 - 

of providing additional funds to finance costs incurred by FMPA in connection with the Project, including 

developmental costs, costs of acquisition and construction of additional power supply resources, operating costs and 

retirement costs. See “THE PROJECT – Future Power Supply” for a discussion of future additional power supply 

resources. The Resolution also authorizes the issuance of Additional Bonds to refund outstanding Bonds under the 

conditions specified in the Resolution. 

Subordinated Indebtedness 

The Resolution authorizes FMPA to incur subordinated indebtedness (“Subordinated Debt”) in an unlimited 

amount for any lawful purpose of FMPA related to the Project.  All Subordinated Debt will be subordinate as to 

security and source of payment to the Bonds, including all Additional Bonds. 

FMPA maintains two lines of credit that constitute Subordinated Debt and that are outstanding to pay 

operating and maintenance costs, including posting collateral as may be required by fuel and interest rate hedges.  One 

line of credit is a revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (the “JPMorgan 

Revolving Credit Agreement”) in the principal amount of $75 million.  It is expected that as of October 1, 2019, $5 

million will have been drawn under the JPMorgan Revolving Credit Agreement. The JPMorgan Revolving Credit 

Agreement expires on July 1, 2020.   

FMPA’s second line of credit is a revolving credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. in the principal 

amount of $25 million (the “Wells Line of Credit”).  It is expected that as of October 1, 2019, nothing will be drawn 

under the Wells Line of Credit.  The Wells Line of Credit expires on November 1, 2020. 

The interest rates on amounts drawn under the JPMorgan Revolving Credit Agreement and the Wells Line 

of Credit will be LIBOR-based interest rates or alternatively interest rates based off of the greater of a prime rate or 

federal funds based-rate calculation.  The United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority, a regulator of financial 

services firms and financial markets in the U.K., has stated that they will plan for a phase out of LIBOR with a target 

end to the indices in December 2021.  It is not known at this time what the alternate rate replacing LIBOR under the 

JPMorgan Revolving Credit Agreement or under the Wells Line of Credit will be.  Under the JPMorgan Revolving 

Credit Agreement, the parties will endeavor to reach agreement on an alternate rate and under the Wells Line of Credit, 

the rate may be based off another recognized source of interbank quotation determined by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

Trustee 

TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, is the Trustee under the Resolution for all debt 

issued for the Project under the Resolution, including all Bonds. 

Payments under the Power Supply Contracts 

The Power Supply Contracts provide for payments by the Participants of amounts sufficient to pay debt 

service on all Bonds, including the Offered Securities, and Subordinated Debt and all other payments required by the 

Resolution, such as operation and maintenance costs of the Project and deposits to reserves. See “THE POWER 

SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

Security for the Offered Securities 

The Offered Securities are direct and special obligations of FMPA payable solely from and secured solely 

by a pledge and assignment of (i) the proceeds of the sale of the Offered Securities, (ii) all right, title and interest of 

FMPA in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all 

funds established by the Resolution including the investment income, if any, thereof, subject only to the provisions of 

the Resolution permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Resolution. 

FMPA has covenanted in the Resolution to fix, charge and collect rates and charges for the sale of the output 

of the Project to generate revenues in each year in an amount (with other available funds of FMPA) sufficient to pay 

all of FMPA’s costs and expenses of the Project for that year, including Project operation and maintenance costs and 

all debt service on all Bonds and Subordinated Debt for that year. 

Page 110 of 473



 

- 4 - 

Each Participant has agreed in its Power Supply Contract to fix, charge and collect rates and charges for the 

services of its electric or integrated utility system in each year sufficient to pay costs and expenses of its utility system 

for that year, including all amounts payable to FMPA under its Power Supply Contract for that year. 

There is no Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Offered Securities. 

See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES.” 

Major Participants 

Attached hereto as APPENDIX B is certain information for the following four Participants – Kissimmee 

Utility Authority (“KUA”), City of Ocala (“Ocala”), City of Jacksonville Beach, doing business as Beaches Energy 

Services (“Jacksonville Beach”) and Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida, doing business as Keys Energy 

Services (“Key West”) – each of which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues from the Project in fiscal 

year 2018. These four Participants are referred to in this Official Statement as the “Major Participants.”  See also 

“THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.”  

Based on current power supply needs of the other Participants, no additional Participants account for 10% or 

more of the Agency’s revenues from the Project.  The aggregate payments to FMPA by the Major Participants with 

respect to the Project as of September 30, 2018 were approximately 73.04% of all revenues of the Project. As the 

revenues provided to the Project by each Participant change from time to time, the Participants that make up the top 

revenue-providing Participants may also change.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain 

Participants.” 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

Page 111 of 473



 

- 5 - 

Participant’s Fiscal Year 2018 Power Supply and Revenue Share 

Member MW(1) 

% of 2018 

Revenues 

Kissimmee Utility Authority 363 26.53% 

City of Ocala 297 24.22 

City of Jacksonville Beach 214 13.14 

Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida 145 11.87 

City of Leesburg 115 9.02 

Fort Pierce Utilities Authority 112 8.24 

City of Green Cove Springs 31 1.93 

City of Clewiston 25 1.66 

City of Starke  17 1.06 

City of Fort Meade  12(2) 0.69 

City of Newberry 10 0.69 

City of Bushnell 7 0.51 

Town of Havana 7 0.44 

City of Lake Worth 0(3) 0.00 

City of Vero Beach         0(4)       0.00 

Total: 1,355 100.00% 
   

________________________________________ 

(1) Participants’ non-coincident peak demand in fiscal year 2018 (rounded) that is served from the Project.  This amount includes demand served 
by excluded resources.  

(2) Fort Meade has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of its Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. The limitation 

commenced January 1, 2015. Based on Fort Meade’s usage between December 2013 and November 2014, the Executive Committee took 
action in December 2014 to set Fort Meade’s CROD at 10.306 MW, which was the initially established maximum hourly obligation through 

the remaining term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract. Concurrently with its notice of the CROD limitation, Fort Meade gave FMPA 

notice pursuant to Section 2 of the Power Supply Contract to discontinue the automatic renewal of the term of its Power Supply Contract. The 
term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2041. In 2018, Fort Meade approved a supplemental 

power sales agreement with the Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the Project will provide capacity and energy to Fort Meade as if 

Fort Meade had not effectuated CROD. Commensurate with this agreement, the FMPA Executive Committee adjusted Fort Meade’s CROD 
downward to 9.009 MW, in accordance with the Power Supply Contract. The agreement may be extended beyond the initial 10-year term. 

(3) The City of Lake Worth has elected under the Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

participation and implement a CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated as 0 MW.  See 
“THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Contract Rate of Delivery.”  While the City of Lake Worth remains a participant in the Project, 

effective January 1, 2014, it no longer purchases capacity and energy from the Project and no longer has a representative on the Executive 

Committee.   

(4) The City of Vero Beach (“Vero Beach”) elected under its Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project participation and implement a CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated 
as 0 MW. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD).” Effective January 1, 2010, Vero Beach no longer 

purchased capacity and energy from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and no longer had a representative on the Executive 

Committee. On December 17, 2018, Vero Beach completed the sale of its electric utility system to Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”) 
and withdrew as a member of FMPA and as a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and transferred and assigned to FMPA, 

with respect to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, the power sales and project support contracts between Vero Beach and FMPA 

relating to each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, as amended. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – 
Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach as a participant in the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project and as a member of FMPA. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES 

General 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Offered Securities. Reference is made to the Offered 

Securities themselves for the complete text thereof and to the Resolution, and the discussion herein is qualified by 

such references. 

The Offered Securities will be dated the date of delivery thereof and will bear interest from such date payable 

semiannually on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2020, until the principal amount is paid. 

The Offered Securities shall mature on October 1 in the years and principal amounts and bear interest at the rates per 

annum set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the Offered Securities will be computed 

on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

The Offered Securities are issuable only as fully registered bonds in authorized denominations of $5,000 or 

any integral multiple thereof. The Offered Securities will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as Bondholder and 

Page 112 of 473



 

- 6 - 

Securities Depository Nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. Individual purchases will 

be made in book-entry only form through DTC Participants. So long as the Offered Securities are registered in the 

name of Cede & Co., principal of, and interest on, the Offered Securities will be paid to Cede & Co. as the registered 

owner. See APPENDIX F – “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.” 

No Redemption 

The Offered Securities are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

The proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds, together with other available funds of FMPA, will be used to (i) 

currently refund all of the outstanding Series 2008C Bonds outstanding in the principal amount of $[________], (ii) 

pay the costs of terminating four existing interest rate swap agreements associated with the Series 2008C Bonds 

(together, the “2008C Swap Agreements”) and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

The proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds, together with other available funds of FMPA, will be used to (i) 

currently refund all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (together with the Series 2008C Bonds, the “Refunded 

Bonds”) outstanding in the principal amount of $[________] and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019B 

Bonds. 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds will be used, together with 

other available funds of FMPA, to redeem the Refunded Bonds on or about the date of issuance of the Offered 

Securities, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of 

redemption. 

Certain terms of the 2008C Swap Agreements are described herein under “RISK MANAGEMENT – Interest 

Rate Swaps.” FMPA expects to terminate the 2008C Swap Agreements on the date of pricing of the Series 2019A 

Bonds, at which time the costs for terminating the 2008C Swap Agreements will be established. On the date of issuance 

of the Series 2019A Bonds, FMPA expects to use a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds to pay the costs 

of terminating the 2008C Swap Agreements to the counterparties (such costs are referred to herein as the “Termination 

Payments”). 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The following table sets forth the estimated sources and uses of funds for the Offered Securities: 

Sources Series 2019A Bonds Series 2019B Bonds 

Principal Amount    

Original Issue Premium   

Funds of FMPA   

Total   

Uses   

Redemption of Refunded Bonds   

Termination Payments for 2008C Swap 

Agreements 

  

Costs of Issuance(1)   

Total   

________________________ 
(1) Including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of attorneys, accountants and advisors, printing expenses and underwriters’ discount. 

  

Page 113 of 473



 

- 7 - 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

The following schedule shows the debt service requirements for the Offered Securities and the other 

Outstanding Bonds for the Project following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019:  

Period 

Ending 

October 1, 

Debt Service on 

Outstanding 

Bonds(1) 

Series 2019A Bonds 

Debt Service 
Series 2019B Bonds 

Debt Service 

Aggregate Debt 

Service on All 

Bonds 

Principal Interest Principal Interest  

2020       

2021       

2022       
2023       

2024       

2025       
2026       

2027       

2028       
2029       

2030       

2031       
2032       

2033       

2034       

2035       

Total:       

 

________________________ 

Totals may not add due to rounding. 
(1) Includes debt service on the Refunded Bonds, which are expected to be refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Offered Securities. 

Interest on the Series 2008C variable rate bonds which are hedged with an interest rate swap is calculated at the respective fixed swap rates 

for the swaps relating to a particular series of bonds. Interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is calculated at an assumed interest rate of 3.00%. 

See “RISK MANAGEMENT – Interest Rate Swaps” for swap information on the Series 2008C variable rate bonds. Debt service on the 

Series 2008C Bonds does not include remarketing or liquidity fees payable under the respective third-party agreements. 
 
 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

 

Page 114 of 473



 

 - 8 - 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT 

FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES 

Pledge Under the Resolution 

The principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds issued under the Resolution, including the 

Offered Securities and any Additional Bonds hereafter issued and any Parity Debt are payable solely from and secured 

as to payment of the principal and Redemption Price thereof, and interest thereon, in accordance with their terms and 

the provisions of the Resolution solely by (i) proceeds of the sale of the Offered Securities, (ii) all right, title and 

interest of FMPA in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues and (iv) all funds established by the 

Resolution including investment income, if any, thereon, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting 

the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

The Offered Securities are direct and special obligations of FMPA payable solely out of the Revenues and 

other funds pledged thereto under the Resolution as described above. Neither the State of Florida nor any political 

subdivision thereof nor any city or other entity which is a Member of FMPA, other than FMPA, is obligated to pay 

the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Offered Securities, and neither the faith and credit nor the 

taxing power of the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof or of any city or other entity is pledged to the 

payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Offered Securities. FMPA has no taxing power. 

FMPA may issue Additional Bonds on a parity basis with the Offered Securities pursuant to the Resolution. 

For a more extensive discussion of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the levels at which the funds 

and accounts established thereby are to be maintained and the purposes to which moneys in such funds and accounts 

may be applied, see APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND 

THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

Rates 

FMPA has covenanted in the Resolution to fix, establish, maintain and collect rents, rates, fees and charges 

under the Power Supply Contracts and to otherwise charge and collect rents, rates, fees and charges for the use or the 

sale of the output, electric capacity and energy or service of the System which, together with other available Revenues, 

are reasonably expected to yield Net Revenues for the twelve-month period commencing with the effective date of 

such rents, rates, fees and charges which shall be equal to at least the Aggregate Debt Service for such period and, in 

any event, as shall be required, together with other available funds, to pay or discharge all other indebtedness, charges 

and liens whatsoever payable out of Revenues under the Resolution, excluding from Aggregate Debt Service for 

purposes of the foregoing any Principal Installment which is a Refundable Principal Installment and which FMPA 

intends to pay from sources other than Revenues. 

Each Participant is required by the terms of its respective Power Supply Contract to establish, levy and collect 

rents, rates and other charges for the products and services provided by its electric or integrated utility system, which 

rents, rates and other charges shall be at least sufficient (i) to meet the operation and maintenance expenses of such 

electric or integrated utility system, (ii) to comply with all covenants pertaining thereto contained in, and all other 

provisions of, any resolution, trust indenture, or other security agreement relating to any bonds or other evidences of 

indebtedness issued or to be issued by the Participant, (iii) to generate funds sufficient to fulfill the terms of all other 

contracts and agreements made by the Participant, including, without limitation, its Power Supply Contract, and (iv) to 

pay all other amounts payable from or constituting a lien or charge on the revenues of its electric or integrated utility 

system. 

The Florida Public Service Commission (“PSC”) and the Florida Supreme Court have determined that, except 

as to rate structure, the PSC does not have jurisdiction over municipal electric utility rates, including those of the 

Participants. The PSC has not asserted any jurisdiction over the rates or rate structure of FMPA. 

See “RISK MANAGEMENT – Rate Setting.” 

All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts 

The Power Supply Contracts provide for payments by the Participants of amounts sufficient to pay debt 

service on all Bonds (including the Offered Securities) and Subordinated Debt, and all other payments required by the 

Page 115 of 473



 

 - 9 - 

Resolution, such as operation and maintenance costs of the Project and deposits to reserves. See “THE POWER 

SUPPLY CONTRACTS” and “THE PROJECT – Member Contributed Resources.” 

Additional Bonds 

FMPA may, upon compliance with certain terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution, issue additional 

bonds for the purpose of (i) providing additional funds to finance costs incurred by FMPA in connection with the 

Project, including developmental costs, costs of acquisition and construction of additional power supply resources, 

operating costs and retirement costs and (ii) refunding any of the Bonds then outstanding under the Resolution. 

Flow of Funds Under the Resolution 

Pursuant to the Resolution, all Revenues are deposited with FMPA to the credit of the Revenue Fund. Each 

month funds are to be transferred from the Revenue Fund in the following amounts and in the order of priority set 

forth below: 

First, to the Operation and Maintenance Fund held by FMPA (i) for credit to the Operation and Maintenance 

Account in the amount, if any, required so that the balance credited to said Account equals the amount estimated to 

be necessary for the payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the succeeding month, (ii) for credit to the 

Working Capital Account in the amount, if any, required so that the balance credited to said Account equals the amount 

budgeted therefor, and (iii) for credit to the Rate Stabilization Account Reserve in the amount, if any, required so that 

the balance credited to said Account equals the amount so budgeted therefor; 

Second, to the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee for credit to the Debt Service Account, the amount 

required so that the balance in such Account (excluding capitalized interest on deposit therein in excess of the amount 

thereof to be applied to pay interest accrued and to accrue on all outstanding Bonds for the period) shall equal the 

Accrued Aggregate Debt Service; 

Third, to reimburse each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider for any amounts advanced under its 

Reserve Account Credit Facility; 

Fourth, to the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee for credit to each subaccount of the Debt Service 

Reserve Account, the amount required for such subaccount to equal the Debt Service Reserve Requirement; 

Fifth, to the Subordinated Debt Fund maintained and held as determined by the Supplemental Resolution, 

the amount, if any, required to pay principal or sinking fund installments of or premium, if any, and interest on each 

issue of Subordinated Debt and reserves therefor, as required by the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such issue 

of Subordinated Debt; 

Sixth, for credit to the Reserve and Contingency Fund maintained and held by FMPA (i) for credit to the 

Renewal and Replacement Account, the amount budgeted therefor and (ii) for credit to the Contingency Account, the 

amount required for such account to equal the Contingency Requirement; 

Seventh, for credit to the Decommissioning Fund, if one has been established pursuant to the Resolution, the 

amount budgeted for credit to such fund for the month, if any; and 

Eighth, for credit to the General Reserve Fund maintained and held by FMPA, the remaining balance, if any, 

of moneys in the Revenue Fund. 

Debt Service Reserve 

There is no Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Offered Securities. 

Page 116 of 473



 

 - 10 - 

THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS 

Introduction 

Each Participant in the Project has entered into a Power Supply Contract with FMPA. Subject to the early 

withdrawal of a Participant from the Project, as discussed below, each Power Supply Contract had an initial term of 

at least 30 years. Each year, each Participant’s Power Supply Contract is automatically extended for one additional 

year so that it will always have a term of at least 30 years unless a Project Participant affirmatively elects, upon one 

year’s prior notice to FMPA, not to continue to automatically extend the Power Supply Contract. Except for the Power 

Supply Contracts with respect to Starke, Green Cove Springs and Fort Meade, as described below under “– Elections 

of Certain Participants,” the Power Supply Contracts will remain in effect until at least October 1, 2049. 

Purchase and Sale 

Under the Power Supply Contract with a particular Participant, FMPA agrees to sell and deliver to that 

Participant, and that Participant agrees to purchase and take from FMPA, that Participant’s “All-Requirements 

Service.” For a particular Participant, its All-Requirements Service is all of its needed electric power and energy, 

transmission and associated services (unless limited by a CROD, as described under “– Contract Rate of Delivery 

(CROD)” below) other than energy supplied by resources excluded by the Power Supply Contract, which consist of 

entitlement shares in the St. Lucie Project (“Excluded Power Supply Resources”). If and to the extent that such 

Participant has any Excluded Power Supply Resources, FMPA agrees to sell and deliver to such Participant and such 

Participant agrees to purchase and receive from FMPA generating backup and support services for such Excluded 

Power Supply Resources including reserves, deficiency energy, transmission losses and firming capacity associated 

with the delivery of the Excluded Power Supply Resources or the replacement thereof and any associated transmission 

and dispatching services (the “Back-up and Support Services”). 

Payments under Power Supply Contracts 

Payments made under the Power Supply Contracts are payable solely from the Participants’ electric or 

integrated utility system revenues. Payments by a Participant under its Power Supply Contract are operating expenses 

of the Participant’s electric or integrated utility system, payable on parity with the system’s operation and maintenance 

expenses and before debt service on each Participant’s senior and subordinated debt. 

The Power Supply Contracts may not be amended, terminated or modified in any manner which will 

materially adversely affect the security for the Offered Securities. 

See APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND THE 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Summary of Certain Provisions of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Contracts.” See also “STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT” herein and “– Elections of Certain Participants” below. 

Early Termination of a Power Supply Contract 

A Participant may, but only upon satisfaction of the conditions described below, terminate its Power Supply 

Contract by written notice given at least three years prior to the intended Withdrawal Date (which date must be a 

September 30). Any such notice by the Participant shall be irrevocable. 

The conditions which must be satisfied before any such withdrawal may occur include: (i)(a) payment by the 

withdrawing Participant of an amount in cash equal to the amount necessary to call a percentage of Bonds and 

Subordinated Debt equal to the withdrawing Participant’s share of the current total energy load of the Project plus 

(b) the payment of the present value of all additional costs FMPA determines at its sole discretion may be incurred as 

a result of such withdrawal; (ii) the obtaining of any required approval of any credit facility providers if any Bonds 

and Subordinated Debt are then secured by a credit facility; (iii) the confirmation of then effective ratings on any 

Bonds and Subordinated Debt not secured by a credit facility and rated by a national rating agency; and (iv) a 

determination by bond counsel for FMPA that such withdrawal does not adversely affect the exclusion from gross 

income for Federal tax purposes of and/or the State of Florida tax exemption of interest on outstanding or future Bond 

and Subordinated Debt. Within 180 days after the first anniversary of the Withdrawal Date and annually thereafter for 

the remaining term of the withdrawing Participant’s Power Supply Contract, FMPA will reimburse the Participant in 

an amount equal to the additional benefits, if any, actually received by FMPA during such preceding year as a result 

of the withdrawal from the Project by the Participant as solely determined by FMPA. The net amount of such payments 

Page 117 of 473



 

 - 11 - 

by FMPA to the Participant shall not exceed 90% of the payment made by the Participant to FMPA under clause (i)(b) 

above. 

See APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND THE 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD) 

Effective on any January 1 upon at least five years’ prior written notice to FMPA prior to that January 1, a 

Participant may limit the maximum amount of electric capacity and energy required as All-Requirements Service for 

the remainder of the term of its Power Supply Contract so as not to exceed the Contract Rate of Delivery (“CROD”). 

The CROD is the peak demand of a Participant for electric capacity and energy as All-Requirements Service under 

the Power Supply Contract during the twelve-month period preceding the date one month prior to the date that such 

limitation shall become effective, adjusted up or down by FMPA by not more than 15%, so as to provide optimal 

utilization of the FMPA power supply resources, such adjustment to be made by FMPA in its sole discretion, and 

subject to certain other reductions relating to capacity available from the Participant’s own generating facilities and 

from contractual arrangements under which the Participant is entitled to receive capacity and energy, including 

contracts relating to other FMPA projects. As discussed below, each of Vero Beach (prior to its withdrawal from the 

Project and as a member of FMPA), Lake Worth and Fort Meade has limited its obligations under its respective Power 

Supply Contract to a CROD that became effective January 1, 2010, January 1, 2014 and January 1, 2015, respectively. 

In the case of Lake Worth, the CROD is zero. For the City of Fort Meade, the CROD is now 9.009 MW. Additionally, 

Green Cove Springs has notified FMPA of its intent to limit its obligations under its Power Supply Contract to a 

CROD to be effective January 1, 2020 (see “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants 

– Green Cove Springs”). Prior to Vero Beach’s withdrawal from the Project and as a member of FMPA, the CROD 

for Vero Beach was zero. 

Generally, because the calculation of a Participant’s CROD involves reducing a Participant’s peak demand 

for a period by that Participant’s other power generating capacity, including capacity from FMPA’s other projects, a 

Participant must have other capacity equal to or greater than its peak demand to achieve a 0 MW CROD. Lake Worth 

achieved a 0 MW CROD. Currently, no other Participant is expected to be able to achieve such a 0 MW CROD based 

upon each Participant’s current and forecasted demands and available capacity for each Participant. Additionally, 

KUA and Key West have each waived their rights to limit their capacity and energy taken from the Project to a CROD.  

See also “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 

Elections of Certain Participants 

Green Cove Springs. Green Cove Springs has notified FMPA of its election to limit its All-Requirements 

Service, as permitted in Section 3 of the Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. Beginning January 1, 2020, and 

continuing for the term of the Power Supply Contract, the Project will serve Green Cove Springs with a maximum 

hourly obligation to be calculated in December 2019. In 2019, Green Cove Springs approved a supplemental power 

sales agreement with the Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the Project will provide capacity and energy to 

Green Cove Springs as if Green Cove Springs had not effectuated a CROD. The agreement may be extended beyond 

the initial 10-year term. Green Cove Springs has also given FMPA notice pursuant to Section 2 of the Power Supply 

Contract that the term of its contract will not automatically renew each year and the term of Green Cove Springs’ 

Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2037. 

Starke.  In 2003, Starke gave FMPA notice of its election to not continue the automatic extension of the term 

of its Power Supply Contract, under Section 2 of its Power Supply Contract. Upon the expiration of the term of its 

Power Supply Contract with the Agency on October 1, 2035, Starke will no longer be a Participant in the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Fort Meade.  Fort Meade has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of its 

Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. The limitation commenced January 1, 2015. Based on Fort Meade’s usage 

between December 2013 and November 2014, the Executive Committee took action in December 2014 to set Fort 

Meade’s CROD at 10.306 MW, which is the maximum hourly obligation through the remaining term of Fort Meade’s 

Power Supply Contract.  In 2018, Fort Meade approved a supplemental power sales agreement with the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

will provide capacity and energy to Fort Meade as if Fort Meade had not effectuated CROD. Commensurate with this 

Page 118 of 473



 

 - 12 - 

agreement, the FMPA Executive Committee adjusted Fort Meade’s CROD downward to 9.009 MW, in accordance 

with the Power Supply Contract. The agreement may be extended beyond the initial 10-year term. 

Concurrently with its notice of the CROD limitation, Fort Meade gave FMPA notice pursuant to Section 2 

of the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract to discontinue the automatic renewal of the term of its Power Supply 

Contract. The term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2041.  

Lake Worth. Lake Worth has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service to a CROD, as permitted by the 

Power Supply Contract. The limitation commenced January 1, 2014. The CROD was determined to be 0 MW. 

Additionally, effective January 1, 2014, the Capacity and Energy Sales Contract between Lake Worth and FMPA 

terminated. See “Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD)” above.  In addition, in conjunction with the withdrawal of Vero 

Beach from the Project and as a member of FMPA, Lake Worth and FMPA have entered an agreement that FMPA 

will not attribute any associated costs incurred by FMPA, with respect to the Vero Beach withdrawal from the Project, 

to Lake Worth as costs for All-Requirements Services for so long as Lake Worth is a 0 MW CROD Participant, and 

not purchasing electric capacity and energy from the Project. 

Vero Beach. Vero Beach previously elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 

of its Power Supply Contract, to a CROD.  The limitation commenced January 1, 2010.  In December 2009, the amount 

of capacity and energy that Vero Beach is obligated to purchase under this limitation of its Power Supply Contract 

was determined to be 0 MW.  Additionally, effective January 1, 2010, the Capacity and Energy Sales Contract between 

Vero Beach and FMPA terminated. See “Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD)” above. 

In September 2014, Vero Beach gave notice to FMPA of its election to discontinue the automatic extension 

of the term of its Power Supply Contract. In the event that Vero Beach did not withdraw from the Project as described 

below, the term of Vero Beach’s Power Supply Contract would have been fixed and would have terminated October 

1, 2046. 

Withdrawal of Vero Beach 

On October 24, 2017, Vero Beach entered into an agreement (the “Sale Agreement”) to sell its electric utility 

system to FPL (the “Sale”). Vero Beach provided notice to FMPA, in accordance with the terms of the Power Supply 

Contract, that the terms of the Sale require Vero Beach to terminate its Power Supply Contract and withdraw from the 

Project effective upon the closing of the Sale. In addition, Vero Beach agreed that effective upon the closing of the 

Sale, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent (including, but not limited to, the payment to FMPA 

of approximately $108 million (subject to adjustment based on the closing date)), Vero Beach would transfer and 

assign to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, its power sales and project support contracts, as amended, 

relating to each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project (the “Vero Contracts”). The Vero 

Contracts constitute a part of the security for bonds issued by FMPA for its Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. 

Lucie Project. The Sale Agreement requires that Vero Beach be fully and completely released and discharged by 

FMPA from any and all obligations arising from Vero Beach’s participation in the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project and each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, and generally as to FMPA.  

At meetings of each of the FMPA Board of Directors and Executive Committee held on March 21, 2018, the 

FMPA Board of Directors and Executive Committee unanimously approved the form of the agreements and the taking 

of certain actions that would enable Vero Beach to withdraw from or transfer and assign its contracts relating to, and 

be released from all of its obligations to, the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and each of the Stanton Project, 

Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, and FMPA generally. The approvals of the FMPA Board of Directors and 

Executive Committee followed unanimous approvals given by governing bodies of the 19 member cities of FMPA 

who are the other participants in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and 

St. Lucie Project which consent to such transfer and assignment and complete release and discharge of Vero Beach, 

after closing of the Sale.  

On December 17, 2018, Vero Beach completed the Sale and withdrew as a member of FMPA and as a 

participant in the Project, transferred and assigned to FMPA, with respect to the Project, its interests as a participant 

in certain of FMPA’s power supply projects. Prior to the Sale, Vero Beach had a 32.521% Power Entitlement Share 

(21.3 MW) in the Stanton Project, a 16.4887% Power Entitlement Share (17.2 MW) in the Stanton II Project and a 

15.202% Power Entitlement Share (13.2 MW) in the St. Lucie Project. Vero Beach no longer purchased energy and 

capacity from the Project having elected to modify its participation by implementation of a CROD, which pursuant to 

contract terms had been calculated at 0 MW, as described above under “Election of Certain Participants – Vero Beach.” 

Page 119 of 473



 

 - 13 - 

In connection with such Sale,  

(i)  Vero Beach terminated its Power Supply Contract with FMPA in accordance with its terms, which 

included making a payment to the Project in the amount of $105,400,000 (including approximately $30,000,000 

pursuant to Section 29 of its Power Supply Contract) pursuant to the applicable contract terms governing withdrawal 

and termination;  

(ii)  Vero Beach transferred and assigned to FMPA, with respect to the Project, the Vero Contracts, 

which Vero Contracts constitute a part of the security for the bonds issued by FMPA for its Stanton Project, Stanton 

II Project and St. Lucie Project; and  

(iii)  FMPA and the participants in each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, St. Lucie Project and 

the Project fully and completely released and discharged Vero Beach from any and all obligations arising from Vero 

Beach’s participation in each of the Project, the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, and generally 

as a member of FMPA pursuant to a general release approved by the Board of Directors. 

Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by Participants  

KUA. Effective October 1, 2008, the Project entered into a Revised, Amended and Restated Capacity and 

Energy Sales Contract with KUA whereby the Project has assumed all cost liability and operational management of 

all KUA-owned generation assets and agreed to pay to KUA agreed-upon fixed annual capacity payments totaling 

$342,357,889 over preset periods relating to each asset beginning in fiscal year 2009. On July 1, 2019 the agreement 

was amended to extend the minimum fixed capacity payment term for Cane Island Units 1 and 2 to 2026, with agreed 

upon additional payments to be made starting October 1, 2020. As of July 1, 2019, $144,483,038 of the total fixed 

payments remain to be paid by FMPA under the agreement. The revised, amended and restated contract provides the 

Project the right to retire KUA’s generation assets at any time during the term of the contract, without shortening the 

applicable fixed payment term. Through fiscal year 2020, the fixed annual capacity payment is $18,993,010, and after 

fiscal year 2020 payments will vary based on the revised schedule of payments for Cane Island Units 1 and 2. If the 

Project elects not to retire Cane Island Units 1-3 after the minimum fixed payment period for each unit, payments 

under the contract will be linked to an agreed-upon capacity price and a calculated service factor that is based on the 

unit’s average annual usage level over the preceding three years. KUA also waived its right to elect CROD in the 

revised, amended and restated contract. 

Key West. Effective January 1, 2011, the Project entered into a Revised, Amended and Restated Capacity and 

Energy Sales Contract for Key West whereby the Project has assumed all cost liability and operational management 

of all Key West-owned generation assets and agreed to pay to Key West $6.7 million in fixed annual capacity payments 

of $670,000 each January 1 from 2011 through 2020 of which $670,000 will remain to be paid by FMPA as of October 

1, 2019. Upon final payment Key West will convey its interest in its generation assets to FMPA. The revised, amended 

and restated contract provides the Project the right to retire Key West’s generation assets at any time during the term 

of the contract, without shortening the fixed payment term, subject to the 60% on-island capacity requirement. FMPA 

is contractually obligated to meet approximately 60% (or lower, as mutually agreed to by FMPA and Key West) of 

Key West’s weather normalized firm load with on-island generation over the term of the Key West Power Supply 

Contract, so long as Key West is purchasing its full-requirements from the Project. Key West also waived its right to 

elect CROD in the revised, amended and restated contract. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

General 

FMPA has formalized its risk management activities through the creation and adoption by its Board of an 

Agency-wide risk management program. The FMPA Board initially created a committee in 2002 to oversee the risk 

management program and evaluate risk matters for FMPA, which role is currently addressed by the Finance 

Committee, and it has adopted several risk-related policies to guide Agency activities since then. These policies 

include its Agency-wide risk management, origination, investments, debt, credit, insurance, purchasing, accounting 

and internal control policies, power supply and resource planning, operations, contract management, human resources, 

records and data management, contingency and disaster planning policies. The Executive Committee has also adopted 

these policies for the Project. 

Page 120 of 473



 

 - 14 - 

The Treasurer and Risk Director is charged with creating risk management policies, while the Internal Audit 

group is charged with monitoring compliance and reporting annually to the Finance Committee on the effectiveness 

of each policy. The Internal Audit group works in conjunction with other Agency departments to provide risk oversight 

within operational function lines. The Treasurer and Risk Director has the responsibility for FMPA’s commercial 

insurance policies. These policies include: property, workers’ compensation, general liability, auto, crime, cyber, 

professional liability and directors and officers liability. 

Natural Gas Supply Hedging 

On May 21, 2015, the Executive Committee of the Agency discontinued all fuel hedging programs and made 

the affirmative decision not to engage in further fuel hedging. 

Rate Setting 

All Project rates – energy, demand and transmission – have automatic monthly cost adjustments. Tied to its 

Operating and Maintenance Fund cash position and the cash balance target which is set by Executive Committee 

policy, the rate process includes a base rate and a cost adjustment factor which is calculated to maintain the Project’s 

cash target, given the cost outlook for the following four months. This billing structure has been in place since 2006.  

The rate adjustment process is automatic and does not require any action by the Executive Committee. This system 

increases the speed that over and under recoveries are dealt with through the billing process and tracks costs on a 

current basis as well as targets the maintenance of an operation and maintenance cash balance at twice that required 

by the Resolution (two months). The Executive Committee has never stopped or reversed any portion of the automatic 

rate adjustment process. 

Interest Rate Swaps 

On May 21, 2015, the Executive Committee of FMPA voted to eliminate consideration of all new interest 

rate swaps in the future. 

As part of its debt management policy, prior to 2015 FMPA used interest rate swap agreements in an effort 

to lower borrowing costs and reduce the risk of fluctuating interest rates. By entering into interest rate swap agreements 

that exchanged variable payments for fixed payments, FMPA sought to achieve a lower interest rate than it would 

have had if it issued fixed rate debt while at the same time producing a more certain liability than it would have had 

if it had not hedged its variable rate liability. Arrangements made under such interest rate swap agreements do not 

alter FMPA’s obligation to pay principal of and interest on Bonds. Regularly scheduled payments under such interest 

rate swap agreements are payable on parity with debt service payments on Bonds. 

The related series of Bonds of each interest rate swap agreement, notional amount, effective date, fixed rate 

paid, variable rate received, termination date, and current counterparty are as shown in following table.  As described 

under “PLAN OF FINANCE,” it is expected that FMPA will terminate each of the interest rate swap agreements 

shown below on the date of issuance of the Offered Securities.  Upon such termination FMPA will have no interest 

rate swaps outstanding. 

Page 121 of 473



 

 - 15 - 

Summary of Interest Rate Swaps Outstanding 

Bonds 

Notional 

Amount 

(in thousands) 

Effective 

Date 

Fixed 

Rate Paid 

Variable Rate 

Received 

Scheduled 

Termination 

Date 

Current 

Counterparty 

Series 2008C $17,540 10/1/2006 3.698% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2027 Merrill Lynch Capital 

Services, Inc.(1) 

Series 2008C $22,953 10/1/2006 3.701% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2027 Goldman Sachs Bank USA(2) 

Series 2008C $22,953 10/1/2006 3.649% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2027 Morgan Stanley Capital 

Services, Inc.(3) 

Series 2008C $15,656 10/1/2006 3.737% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2035 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.(4) 

Series 2008C Total $79,103 

     

__________________________ 
(1) Guaranty provided by Bank of America Corp. 
(2) Goldman Sachs Capital Markets, L.P. pursuant to a merger, has changed its name to Goldman Sachs Bank USA and a guaranty is provided by 

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 
(3) Guaranty provided by Morgan Stanley 
(4) As successor to Wachovia Bank, N.A. 

 

Insurance 

FMPA maintains commercial insurance that management believes is sufficient to cover applicable risks. 

FMPA funds a self-insurance account within the general reserve fund for $2.75 million, which is two times the highest 

non-storm property deductible. The Cane Island Units and Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1 are insured at full 

replacement value by FM Global. All FMPA’s sites are classified as Highly Protected Sites by FM Global and there 

are no outstanding wind storm recommendations. 

Cyber Security 

FMPA invests in physical and cyber security protections for its generation assets and corporate cyber 

security.  FMPA has staff dedicated to cyber security.  Cyber security protections for FMPA’s corporate information 

technology and generation operations include advanced technologies, best practices, and staff 

training.  Comprehensive penetration tests are periodically performed for both corporate information technology and 

operations technology.  FMPA complies with the applicable North American Electric Reliability Corporation 

(“NERC”) Critical Infrastructure Protection Standards (“CIP Standards”), which provide a cyber security framework 

for the identification and protection of Bulk Electric System cyber assets. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

General 

FMPA was created on February 24, 1978, in accordance with the provisions of Article VII, Section 10 of the 

Florida Constitution, the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, the Joint Power Act and the Interlocal Agreement as 

executed by the then Members of FMPA.  FMPA may exercise authority under (i) either the Florida Interlocal 

Cooperation Act of 1969 or the Joint Power Act or (ii) both. 

FMPA has authority to plan, finance, acquire, construct, purchase, reconstruct, own, lease, use, share in, 

operate, maintain, repair, improve, extend or otherwise participate jointly in projects, including projects for the 

generation and transmission of electricity and to issue bonds or bond anticipation notes for the purpose of financing 

or refinancing the costs of such projects. See “THE PROJECT” and “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.” 

Organization and Management 

Effective May 24, 2007, the FMPA Board of Directors reorganized the governance structure of FMPA to 

give the Project Participants more control over the business and affairs of the Project. 

Page 122 of 473



 

 - 16 - 

Each of the 31 Members appoints its director to the Board of Directors of FMPA (the “Board”). The Board 

is FMPA’s governing body generally, except as regards the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. The Board has 

the responsibility for hiring a General Manager and General Counsel and establishing bylaws, which govern how 

FMPA operates, and policies which implement such bylaws. The Board also authorizes all non-Project debt issued by 

FMPA. The Board annually elects a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, a Secretary and a Treasurer. 

The Executive Committee consists of one representative for each Participant, unless a Participant has elected 

CROD and the CROD is established at less than 15% of the Participant’s demand. The Executive Committee is the 

governing body of the Project. The Executive Committee elects a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson who are in those 

roles only with regard to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee adopts bylaws and has policy making 

authority and control over all the business and affairs of the Project, including the authorization of Project debt. The 

Project budget and FMPA agency general budget are developed and approved by the Executive Committee. 

The General Manager, General Counsel, Secretary and Treasurer of FMPA serve in their same position for 

both the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee. The day-to-day operations and expenditures of FMPA for 

projects other than the Project are controlled by the Board of Directors. Control over the same function for the Project 

is vested in the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee makes decisions on a one-vote-one-participant basis. 

A majority vote of a quorum (7 members) present is necessary for the Executive Committee to take action, except that 

on certain matters (generally (i) rate schedule amendments, (ii) approval of power supply or other contracts with a 

term of seven years or more, and (iii) any approval requiring the issuance of debt) a supermajority approval of 75% 

of the votes present is required for action, if requested by two or more members of the Executive Committee. 

The following is a brief description of the officers of the Executive Committee, and the principal staff 

members of FMPA: 

Executive Committee Chairperson: HOWARD MCKINNON 

Howard McKinnon, CPA, is the Town Manager of the Town of Havana. He serves as the elected Chairperson of 

FMPA’s Executive Committee for the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. Mr. McKinnon was first elected as 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee in July 2011. He has been a member of the Executive Committee and 

FMPA’s Board of Directors since 2006. Mr. McKinnon has served as Town of Havana’s Town Manager since 2006. 

He joined the Town of Havana as Finance Director in 2005. Mr. McKinnon had previously served eight years as 

County Manager of Gadsden County, Florida. Mr. McKinnon is active in the Florida Municipal Electric Association 

and is a past President of the association. He is also active in the American Public Power Association and received the 

association’s Larry Hobart Seven Hats Award in 2010. The Florida Rural Water Association selected Mr. McKinnon 

as Manager of the Year in 2012. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 

the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. McKinnon holds a bachelor’s degree in finance and a 

master’s degree in public administration from Florida State University.  

Executive Committee Vice Chairperson: LYNNE TEJEDA 

Lynne Tejeda is General Manager and CEO of Keys Energy Services. She serves as the elected Vice Chair of both 

FMPA’s Board of Directors and Executive Committee. Ms. Tejeda was first appointed as her utility’s alternate to 

FMPA’s Board of Directors in 2005 and has been a member of the Board since 2013. She was first elected Vice Chair 

of the Executive Committee in December 2014 and has been a member of the Committee since 2005. Ms. Tejeda is 

also Chair of FMPA’s Conservation and Renewable Energy Advisory Committee, of which she is a founding member. 

Ms. Tejeda has served as Keys Energy Services’ General Manager and CEO since 2005. She has been employed by 

the utility since 1989 in positions including Assistant General Manager and Chief Operating Officer. Ms. Tejeda is 

active in the Florida Municipal Electric Association and is a past President of the association. Ms. Tejeda previously 

served on the American Public Power Association’s Board of Directors and was the 2013 recipient of the association’s 

Harold Kramer-John Preston Personal Service Award. She currently serves on the Board of the Key West Chamber 

of Commerce. Ms. Tejeda holds a bachelor’s degree in journalism from the University of North Carolina at Chapel 

Hill and a Master of Business Administration from Regis University in Denver, Colorado. She is a Certified Public 

Manager and a graduate of the Berkeley Executive Leadership Program. 

General Manager and CEO of FMPA: JACOB A. WILLIAMS 

Jacob A. Williams is General Manager and CEO of FMPA. He has 34 years of experience in the electric utility 

industry, including both public power and investor owned utilities. Prior to joining FMPA in 2016, Mr. Williams 

Page 123 of 473



 

 - 17 - 

served as Vice President of Global Energy Analytics and Generation Development at Peabody Energy in St. Louis, 

Missouri. He also was previously with Alliant Energy (formerly Wisconsin Power & Light). Throughout his career, 

Mr. Williams has served in various positions including energy marketing, trading, integrated resource planning, and 

generation planning. Mr. Williams holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from the University of Illinois 

at Urbana-Champaign and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Wisconsin-Madison. 

General Counsel and CLO of FMPA: JODY LAMAR FINKLEA, ESQUIRE 

Jody Lamar Finklea is General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer for FMPA. Mr. Finklea is a Board appointed officer, 

responsible for all legal affairs of the Agency, as specified in the Board’s by-laws, and he manages FMPA’s reliability 

compliance area. Mr. Finklea joined FMPA in 2001 and has held several positions during his tenure. Most recently, 

he served as Deputy General Counsel and Manager of Legal Affairs. Mr. Finklea has more than 19 years of experience 

in municipal utility law. As FMPA’s General Counsel, Mr. Finklea also serves as general and regulatory counsel for 

Florida Municipal Electric Association, Inc. (“FMEA”). Most of FMPA’s members are also members of FMEA, so 

this partnership provides value to both organizations. He holds a bachelor’s degree in philosophy from The Catholic 

University of America in Washington, D.C., a master’s degree in public administration from the University of North 

Florida and a juris doctor degree from Florida State University. Mr. Finklea is admitted to The Florida Bar and is 

board certified as an expert in city, county and local government law. Mr. Finklea is active in the American Public 

Power Association (“APPA”) and served as the 2017 Chairman of the Legal Section. In 2011, Mr. Finklea was 

recognized by APPA as a Rising Star in Public Power. He holds a peer review rating as AV-Preeminent by Martindale 

Hubble. 

Chief Financial Officer of FMPA: LINDA S. HOWARD, CPA, CTP 

Linda Howard is Chief Financial Officer for FMPA, a position she was promoted to in September 2018. Mrs. Howard 

joined FMPA as Treasurer in January 2017. Prior to joining FMPA, Mrs. Howard served as Finance Bureau Chief for 

the Southwest Florida Water Management District where she managed the accounting, budget and procurement 

functions. For most of her career, Mrs. Howard worked at Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC). Her 25 years at OUC 

included experience in accounting, auditing and supervisory roles, leading to nine years as the Director of Fiscal 

Services and then five years as OUC’s Treasurer. Mrs. Howard has a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the 

University of Central Florida (UCF) and a Master of Business Administration from UCF. She is a Certified Public 

Accountant in Florida and a Certified Treasury Professional. Mrs. Howard is active in the Florida Government Finance 

Officers Association, where she served as President for the 2017-2018 term. In addition, she serves on the Board of 

the National Association of Black Accountants Greater Orlando Chapter, of which she is a charter member, and she 

is a member of the Association for Financial Professionals and a member of the Florida Institute of CPAs. 

Chief Operating Officer of FMPA: KEN RUTTER 

Ken Rutter is Chief Operating Officer for FMPA. Mr. Rutter joined FMPA in March 2019, and he manages the 

Agency’s power resources division. Prior to joining FMPA, Mr. Rutter worked with the Basin Electric Cooperative 

and Dakota Gasification in Bismarck, North Dakota, where he served for more than six years as senior vice president 

of marketing and asset management. Among other responsibilities, he led a team that restructured short-term power 

and natural gas management contracts, as well as created many value enhancements and commercial transactions for 

Basin and Dakota Gasification. He also spent more than 12 years with Ameren in St. Louis, Missouri, serving in 

several roles, most notably director of risk management and a short period as an internal auditor. Mr. Rutter has a 

bachelor’s degree in engineering from Purdue University and a Master of Business Administration from Washington 

University. 

Chief Information Security Officer of FMPA: CAROL CHINN 

Carol Chinn is Chief Information Security Officer for FMPA. She joined FMPA in July 2013. Ms. Chinn has 38 years 

of experience in the electric utility industry. Prior to joining FMPA, Ms. Chinn worked with American Transmission 

Company as the company’s Chief Operating Officer. She was also formerly with the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission in the Division of Reliability and was President and Chief Executive Officer at Georgia Transmission 

Corp. She began her career with Florida Power & Light. Ms. Chinn serves on the North American Electric Reliability 

Corporation’s Member Representatives Committee and was the Chair in 2013. She is a Board Member of the 

Transmission Access Policy Study Group and the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council. Ms. Chinn holds a 

bachelor’s degree in environmental engineering from the University of Florida, a bachelor’s degree in electrical 

engineering from the University of Miami and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Florida. 

Page 124 of 473



 

 - 18 - 

Assistant General Manager of Public Relations and Member Services of FMPA: MARK T. McCAIN 

Mark McCain is Assistant General Manager of Public Relations and Member Services for FMPA. Mr. McCain has 

33 years of experience in the municipal electric utility industry. He began his career with FMPA in 1986 as 

Communication Specialist. He was promoted in 1995 to Public Relations Manager. In 1998, he was given the added 

responsibilities of public affairs management. Mr. McCain is active in professional associations and has served in 

various leadership positions for those organizations. He is a long-time member of the Public Relations Society of 

America (PRSA), the world’s largest organization for public relations professionals, and is a past President of the 

Orlando Regional Chapter of PRSA. He is also an active member of the American Public Power Association (APPA), 

the service organization for the nation’s more than 2,000 publicly owned electric utilities. Mr. McCain has held several 

leadership positions for APPA’s Energy/Customer Service & Communication Section, including Chairman in 1999 

and Chairman of the Communications Committee in 1996. Mr. McCain holds a bachelor’s degree in journalism from 

Ohio University. 

Treasurer and Risk Director of FMPA: RICHARD POPP, CTP 

Richard Popp is Treasurer and Risk Director for FMPA. He previously served as Contract Compliance Audit and Risk 

Manager. Mr. Popp has 25 years of experience in municipal utility accounting. He began his career with FMPA in 

1994 as an accountant, until 1996. After his departure from the Agency, he was employed by Kissimmee Utility 

Authority for nearly six years as Senior Financial Analyst. Mr. Popp returned to FMPA in April 2002 as Accounting 

Supervisor. Mr. Popp holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the University of Central Florida and a master’s 

degree in accounting from Nova Southeastern University. 

Financial Planning, Rates & Budget Director of FMPA: JASON WOLFE 

Jason Wolfe is Financial Planning, Rates and Budget Director of FMPA. Mr. Wolfe joined FMPA in 2011 and has 

held several positions during his tenure, including roles in FMPA’s System Planning Department and Financial 

Planning and Analysis Department. Mr. Wolfe has 19 years of experience in the utility industry, including experience 

working with or for municipal, cooperative and investor-owned utilities. Prior to joining FMPA, he worked 11 years 

in various roles with R.W. Beck, Inc. (acquired by SAIC in 2009), including as an analyst and as a consultant. He 

holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration, with a concentration in finance, from the University of Central 

Florida. 

Controller of FMPA:  DANYEL SULLIVAN-MARRERO, CPA 

Danyel Sullivan-Marrero is the Controller at FMPA. She joined FMPA in 2018 and has 25 years of experience in 

accounting and finance. Prior to joining FMPA, Ms. Sullivan-Marrero worked four years as chief financial officer 

(CFO) for KENPAT and 11 years as controller/CFO for Hartford South. She holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting 

and a bachelor’s degree in marketing, both from Florida Southern University. Ms. Sullivan-Marrero is a Certified 

Public Accountant in Florida. 

THE PROJECT 

Introduction 

The Participants in the Project are the following 14 Members: Bushnell, Clewiston, Fort Meade, Fort Pierce, 

Green Cove Springs, Havana, Jacksonville Beach, Key West, Kissimmee, Lake Worth, Leesburg, Newberry, Ocala 

and Starke.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants” and “– Status of Certain 

Generation Units Owned by Participants” herein.  Vero Beach withdrew as a Member of FMPA and as a Participant 

in the Project in December 2018.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” herein. 

FMPA has the responsibility to plan for the Participant’s future power supply needs (taking into account 

circumstances such as elections of Participants to implement a CROD, as described under “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants” herein).  FMPA is continually evaluating its power supply resource 

mix, projecting the Project’s future power needs, and seeking cost-effective generation additions.  [Inclusive of Project 

generating facilities owned by FMPA as part of the Project as summarized in the table below under “Project 

Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project” and additional Member contributed resources as 

described below under “Member Contributed Resources,” the Project’s aggregate generating capacity share on a net 

summer basis is approximately 1,392 MW, which represents approximately 113% of the Project’s delivered summer 

Page 125 of 473



 

 - 19 - 

coincident peak demand in 2017. In addition, load from the Project is served via an excluded resource and two long-

term contracts with respect to the Project to purchase power and energy from subsidiaries of NextEra Energy, Inc.  

While the ownership percentages set forth in the table below did not change as a result of the transfer and assignment 

of the power entitlement shares of Vero Beach in the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project to the 

Project, the amount of capacity and energy included in the System from certain of these facilities increased in 

connection with such withdrawal.  See “Purchased Power and Other Contracts” below and “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach.”] 

Project Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project 

Name of Unit In-Service Date 

Primary 

Fuel Source 

Net Summer 

Capability Rating 

(MWs) 

Percentage of 

Ownership 

Stanton Unit No. 1  July 1, 1987 Coal 441  6.51% 

Stanton Unit No. 2  June 1, 1996 Coal 450  5.17 

Stanton Unit A  October 1, 2003 Natural Gas 639  3.50 

Cane Island Unit 1  January 1, 1995 Natural Gas 35  50.00 

Cane Island Unit 2  June 1, 1995 Natural Gas 109  50.00 

Cane Island Unit 3  January 25, 2001 Natural Gas 240 50.00 

Cane Island Unit 4  July 12, 2011 Natural Gas 300 100.00 

Indian River Unit A  July 1, 1989 Natural Gas 32 39.00 

Indian River Unit B  July 1, 1989 Natural Gas 32 39.00 

Indian River Unit C  October 1, 1992 Natural Gas 105 21.00 

Indian River Unit D  October 1, 1992 Natural Gas 105 21.00 

Stock Island Unit 2 June 21, 1998 Fuel Oil 16 100.00 

Stock Island Unit 3 August 1, 1998 Fuel Oil 14 100.00 

Stock Island Unit 4  July 1, 2006 Fuel Oil 46 100.00 

Treasure Coast Energy 

 Center Unit 1  

May 31, 2008 Natural Gas 300 100.00 

Stanton Units. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 6.5060% undivided ownership in Stanton Unit No. 1, a 

coal-fired electric generating unit with a net summer capability rating of 441 MW (“Stanton Unit No. 1”), and a 

5.1724% undivided ownership interest in Stanton Unit No. 2, a coal-fired electric generating unit with a net summer 

capability rating of 450 MW (“Stanton Unit No. 2” and, together with Stanton Unit No. 1, the “Stanton Units”) at the 

Stanton Energy Center of the Orlando Utilities Commission located in Orange County, Florida. The Stanton Units 

were constructed and are operated by OUC. 

Additional ownership interest by FMPA and other entities in the Stanton Units is described below under 

“OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.”  Pursuant to the 2018 transfer and assignment of the Vero Beach power supply and 

project support contracts, as amended, to the Project, the Project’s portfolio of power supply now includes a 32.521% 

Power Entitlement Share (21.3 MW) from the Stanton Project (see “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – Stanton Project”), 

a 16.4887% Power Entitlement Share (17.2 MW) from the Stanton II Project (see “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – 

Stanton II Project”), and a 15.202% Power Entitlement Share (13.2 MW) in the St. Lucie Project (see “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – St. Lucie Project”). 

Stanton Unit No. 1 began commercial operation on July 1, 1987. The availability factor has averaged 87.4% 

since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 61.8% in 2016 to a high 

of 90.5% in 2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 90.4%. 

Stanton Unit No. 2 began commercial operation on June 1, 1996. The availability factor has averaged 87.9% 

since that time. For the past five fiscal years, the availability factor ranged from a low of 84.8% in 2017 to a high of 

89.9% in 2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 84.8%. 

Cooling water for the Stanton Units is provided by the Orange County, Florida Eastern Sub-Regional 

Wastewater Treatment Plant under an agreement between OUC and Orange County. 

During calendar years 2014 through 2018, the Stanton Units combined to burn an average of approximately 

1.8 million tons of coal per year. Coal is supplied to the Stanton Units under contracts between OUC and Crimson 

Coal Corporation (“Crimson”) and Foresight Coal Sales, LLC (“Foresight”). The contract with Crimson will supply 

Page 126 of 473



 

 - 20 - 

200,000 tons for 2019 with no options. The contract with Foresight will supply 400,000 tons with two options of 

225,000 tons for 2019. FMPA believes that OUC will be able to make up any deficiencies in supply for the Stanton 

Units through short-term purchases at spot market prices. 

OUC continues to monitor environmental requirements that will be applicable to the Stanton Units in the 

future and has stated that it currently believes it can meet known environmental laws and regulations regarding NOx 

emissions through, among other means, implementation of capital projects with a significantly lower total cost than 

the SCR project. See “LITIGATION.” 

Stanton Unit A. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 3.5% undivided ownership interest in a 639 MW 

(summer rating), gas-fired combined cycle unit located at OUC’s Stanton Energy Center site (“Stanton Unit A”). The 

remaining ownership interests in Stanton Unit A are held by KUA (3.5%), OUC (28%) and Stanton Clean Energy 

LLC, a NextEra Energy, Inc. subsidiary (“SCE”) (65%). FMPA is purchasing 20% of SCE’s ownership share in 

Stanton Unit A until 2023 and OUC is purchasing the remaining 80% under a separate agreement. See “Purchased 

Power and Other Contracts” below. Gas transportation is supplied via the Florida Gas Transmission (“FGT”) interstate 

gas line. Stanton Unit A also has fuel oil as a back-up capability. See “Member Contributed Resources” below. 

Stanton Unit A began commercial operation on October 1, 2003. The availability factor has averaged 89.7% 

since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 83.4% in 2018 to a high 

of 94.3% in 2014. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 83.4%. 

Cane Island Units. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 50% undivided ownership interest in each of Cane 

Island Unit No. 1 (“Cane Island Unit 1”), Cane Island Unit No. 2 (“Cane Island Unit 2”) and Cane Island Unit No. 3 

(“Cane Island Unit 3” and, together with Cane Island Unit 1 and Cane Island Unit 2, “Cane Island Units 1-3”) and 

owns a 100% undivided ownership interest in Cane Island Unit No. 4 (“Cane Island Unit 4” and together with Cane 

Island Units 1-3, the “Cane Island Units”).  The Cane Island Units are located at KUA’s Cane Island Power Park site 

in Osceola County, Florida. The Cane Island Units are natural gas-fired electric generating units with No. 2 oil as a 

backup capability for Cane Island Unit 1 and Cane Island Unit 2. Cane Island Unit 1 is a combustion turbine, and 

Cane Island Unit 2, Cane Island Unit 3, and Cane Island Unit 4 are combined cycle units. Cane Island Units 1-3 were 

constructed, and are operated, by KUA. Cane Island Unit 4 was constructed by FMPA and is operated by KUA.  KUA 

owns the remaining 50% of Cane Island Units 1-3.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain 

Participants” and “– Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by Participants.” 

Cane Island Unit 1 has a summer rating of 35 MW and was placed in service in January 1995. Cane Island 

Unit 1’s availability factor has averaged 97.2% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has 

ranged from a low of 91.9% in 2016 to a high of 98.5% in 2017. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 97.94%. 

Cane Island Unit 2 has a summer rating of 109 MW and was placed in service in June 1995. Cane Island Unit 

2’s availability factor has averaged 86.6% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has 

ranged from a low of 50.3% in 2016 to a high of 92.1% in 2015. The lower availability factor in fiscal year 2016 was 

due to a catastrophic equipment failure in 2016. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 90.3%. 

Cane Island Unit 3 has a summer rating of 240 MW and was placed in service in June 2002. Cane Island Unit 

3’s availability factor has averaged 89.5% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has 

ranged from a low of 73.6% in 2017 to a high of 95.6% in 2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 88.8%. 

Cane Island Unit 4 has a summer rating of 300 MW and was placed in service in July 2011.  Cane Island 

Unit 4’s availability factor has averaged 90.6% since it was placed in service. For the last five fiscal years, the 

availability factor has ranged from a low of 84.5% in 2018 to a high of 94.3% in 2016. The availability factor in fiscal 

year 2018 was 84.5%. 

Indian River Units. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 39% undivided ownership interest in each of the 

Indian River Combustion Turbine Units A & B (“Indian River Units A & B”) and a 21% undivided ownership interest 

in each of the Indian River Combustion Turbine Units C & D (“Indian River Units C & D” and, together with Indian 

River Units A & B, the “Indian River Units”) located in Brevard County, Florida. The remaining ownership interests 

in Indian River Units A & B are held by (i) OUC (48.8%) and (ii) KUA (12.2%), and the remaining ownership interests 

in Indian River Units C & D are held by OUC (79%). The Indian River Units were constructed and are operated by 

OUC on behalf of the co-owners. 

Page 127 of 473



 

 - 21 - 

All four Indian River Units are used as peaking units. The Indian River Units burn either natural gas or No. 2 

fuel oil, with gas transportation supplied via FGT. 

Indian River Units A & B each have a summer rating of 32 MW and were placed in service on July 1, 1989. 

For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor of Indian River Unit A has ranged from a low of 91.4% in 2018 to 

a high of 98.5% in 2017. Indian River Unit B’s availability factor has averaged 95.2% since it was placed in service. 

For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor of Indian River Unit B has ranged from a low of 92.7% in 2018 to 

a high of 97.91% in 2017. 

Indian River Units C & D each have a summer rating of 105 MW and were placed in service on October 1, 

1992. Indian River Unit C’s availability factor has averaged 89.9% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the 

availability factor of Indian River Unit C has ranged from a low of 85.6% in 2014 to a high of 96.5% in 2017. Indian 

River Unit D’s availability factor has averaged 92.9% since it was placed in service. For the last five fiscal years, the 

availability factor of Indian River Unit D has ranged from a low of 91.5% in 2015 to a high of 97.31% in 2018. 

Stock Island Units 2 and 3. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 100% undivided ownership interest in each 

of two combustion turbines at the Stock Island Generating Facility near Key West.  Stock Island Units 2 & 3 are 

refurbished GE Frame 5 units that burn No. 2 oil.  FMPA constructed Stock Island Units 2 & 3 to provide peaking 

supply and on-island reliability for the Key West System.   

Stock Island Unit 2 has a summer rating of 16 MW and was placed in service in June 1998. For the last five 

fiscal years, the availability factor of Stock Island Unit 2 has ranged from a low of 93.2% in 2017 to a high of 100% 

in 2014. 

Stock Island Unit 3 has a summer rating of 14 MW and was placed in service in August 1998. For the last 

five fiscal years, the availability factor of Stock Island Unit 3 has ranged from a low of 86.2% in 2014 to a high of 

98.9% in 2018. 

FMPA is contractually obligated to meet approximately 60% (or lower, as mutually agreed to by FMPA and 

Key West) of Key West’s weather normalized firm load with on-island generation over the term of the Key West 

Power Supply Contract, so long as Key West is purchasing its full-requirements from the Project (the “60% On-Island 

Requirement”). During fiscal year 2013, FMPA commissioned a study of the 60% On-Island Requirement that was 

designed to set forth the steps and processes to be taken by FMPA and other related parties, including Key West, to 

(1) initially develop a long-term generation plan for meeting the 60% On-Island Requirement, and (2) monitor and 

update the long-term generation plan over time to address changing circumstances. Based on the information available 

at the time of the study, which was completed in 2014, (i) FMPA found no evidence to refute that the life of the units 

at the Stock Island Plant could be extended through at least 2033 (based on a 20-year study period) at reasonable cost 

using a condition based and preventive maintenance strategy and (ii) there were no known operational limitations of 

maintaining the current capacity ratings over the 20-year study period. FMPA updated its analysis in early 2017 and 

found no change in circumstances that would change FMPA’s conclusion from the prior study. 

Stock Island Unit 4. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 100% undivided ownership interest in a 45 MW 

combustion turbine unit located at the Stock Island Generating Facility near Key West (“Stock Island Unit 4”). Stock 

Island Unit 4 is a GE LM6000 PC-Sprint aeroderivative unit that burns No. 2 oil. Stock Island Unit 4 is operated by 

Key West and provides peaking supply and on island reliability for Key West. See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 

Stock Island Unit 4 was placed in service in July 2006. Stock Island Unit 4’s availability factor has averaged 

96.4% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor of Stock Island Unit 4 has ranged from a 

low of 93.3% in 2017 to a high of 98.6% in 2018. 

Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 100% undivided ownership 

interest in a 300 MW natural gas-fired combined cycle unit located in Fort Pierce (the “Treasure Coast Energy Center 

Unit 1”). The unit is operated under contract by Fort Pierce Utilities Authority (“FPUA”), with gas transportation 

supplied by FGT. 

The Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1 was placed in service in May 2008. The Treasure Coast Energy 

Center Unit 1’s availability factor has averaged 92.6% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability 

Page 128 of 473



 

 - 22 - 

factor of Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1 has ranged from a low of 83.5% in 2015 to a high of 96.0% in 2018. 

The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 96.0%. 

Environmental and Operational Compliance 

FMPA believes that each of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project power generating resources is well 

maintained and is in substantive compliance with all current environmental laws and operating permits. FMPA has 

budgeted capital and operating costs, based on current legal requirements and future requirements that are known and 

understood. Additional costs may arise from new statutes or changing regulations that cannot currently be predicted 

and could range from minimal to significant. See “ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION.” 

Purchased Power and Other Contracts  

FMPA has two long-term contracts with respect to the Project to purchase power and energy from 

subsidiaries of NextEra Energy, Inc., the parent company of FPL (“NextEra”), from assets previously owned and 

operated by Southern Power Company or its subsidiaries. FMPA and Oleander Power Project, L.P. (a NextEra 

subsidiary) have an agreement pursuant to which FMPA purchases the entire output (approximately 160 MW) from 

Oleander Unit No. 5, a natural gas-fired simple cycle generating unit at the Oleander natural gas peaking plant. 

Generation from the unit is dedicated to FMPA. The term of the agreement runs through December 15, 2027. As 

discussed above, FMPA also has a contract for approximately 81 MW summer/87 MW winter of purchased power 

from SCE’s ownership interest in Stanton Unit A. The initial term of the agreement runs through September 30, 2023. 

FMPA has extension options that could extend this agreement to 2033. FMPA believes it will be able to replace these 

resources as the contracts expire, and as capacity needs dictate, with either new resources under contracts at market-

based rates or with jointly-owned or self-built generation.  

FMPA also has entered into solar Power Purchase Agreements (“PPA”) with subsidiaries of Florida 

Renewables Partners, LLC (“FRP”), a subsidiary of NextEra Florida Renewables Holdings, LLC, to purchase a total 

of 58 MW-ac of solar energy on behalf of five Participants in the Project, Jacksonville Beach, FPUA, Key West, KUA 

and Ocala (the “ARP Solar Participants”). FMPA and OUC have entered into purchase agreements with FRP for a 

total of 223.5 MW-AC from three 74.5 MW-ac solar sites in Florida. The solar facilities are planned for commercial 

operation in 2020. The ARP Solar Participants will take power from two of those sites and will have the first obligation 

in the Project, subject to step-up obligations among the ARP Solar Participants, to pay all purchased power costs for 

solar energy. The solar purchase power agreement has a 20-year term and two 5-year options to extend the agreement. 

Member Contributed Resources  

Pursuant to their joining the Project, KUA, Lake Worth, Fort Pierce and Key West entered into a Capacity 

and Energy Sales Contract whereby these Participants sell the capacity and energy from their generating units to the 

Project. These Participants also agreed to sell to the Project any capacity and energy from any Power Entitlement 

Shares they have in the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project or Tri-City Project. In addition, Starke assigned to the 

Project its capacity and energy in the Stanton Project and Stanton II Project. The price paid by the Project to these 

Participants is equal to each month’s billing from FMPA to each of these Participants for their Power Entitlement 

Shares in the Project. The Capacity and Energy Sales Contract with Lake Worth has been terminated. Additionally, 

effective October 1, 2008 and January 1, 2011, respectively, KUA and Key West entered into Revised, Amended and 

Restated Capacity and Energy Sales Contracts.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain 

Participants.” 

FMPA, as a cost of the Project, pays the monthly costs for these Participants under their Power Sales 

Contracts and, under certain circumstances under the Project Support Contracts, with respect to their Power 

Entitlement Shares, and collects these costs through the billings to the Participants in the Project. 

Generating units owned by Participants may be retired in the future, subject to the availability of suitable 

replacement capacity and energy. 

Net Metering 

In order to promote the development of customer-owned renewable generation and comply with statutory 

requirements of Section 366.91, Florida Statutes, and other requirements, FMPA has developed a net metering policy, 

pursuant to which Participants may offer their customers net metering service whereby a customer may install and 

Page 129 of 473



 

 - 23 - 

operate in parallel customer-owned renewable generation in order to offset all or part of the customer’s electricity 

needs with renewable energy. Pursuant to the FMPA policy, the Project will purchase excess customer-owned 

renewable generation from its Participants’ customers that have chosen to take part in the net metering program and 

are interconnected to a Participant’s electric system. Customer-owned renewable generation is first used to offset the 

demand for electricity at a particular premises from a Participant and any excess customer-owned renewable 

generation that is not used to offset the demand for electricity is simultaneously sold to the Project and delivered to 

the Participants through the Participant’s electric distribution system.   

As of December 2018, more than 881 solar power installations in 13 Florida cities are part of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project’s net metering program. These customer-owned installations can produce 

approximately 6,324 MW-AC of energy. 

Fuel Supply 

Coal Supply. For a description of the coal supply to Project generating facilities, see “Project Generating 

Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project” above. 

Gas Supply. Natural gas for Stanton Unit A is obtained by OUC for itself, KUA and FMPA. All physical 

supplies of natural gas used at FMPA-owned or Participant-owned Project generating facilities are purchased by 

Florida Gas Utilities (“FGU”) for FMPA under a service agreement between FMPA and FGU. Typically, these 

supplies are purchased on a month-to-month basis; priced at a NYMEX less basis, a “first-of-the-month” index, or a 

daily index. Adjustments are made by FGU on a daily basis to balance supply with forecasted load by either purchasing 

incremental volumes or selling surplus volumes. FGU also handles all natural gas transportation scheduling and 

settlement functions for FMPA and ensuring reliable fuel deliveries for the Project. In 2019, FGU entered into thirty-

year natural gas supply agreements with The Black Belt Energy Gas District (“Black Belt Energy”) and the Municipal 

Gas Authority of Georgia (“MGAG”) (the “2019 Pre-Pay Contracts”) for the purchase of specified amounts of natural 

gas at discounted prices that FGU expects to supply to FMPA. FMPA’s weighted average discount from the 

transactions involving MGAG is $0.32 per MMBtu on 13,250 MMBtu per day. FMPA’s weighted average discount 

from the transactions involving Black Belt Energy is $0.32 per MMBtu on 10,000 MMBtu per day. 

Florida Gas Transmission Transportation Contracts. Natural gas for the Cane Island Units, the Treasure 

Coast Energy Center Unit 1, the Indian River Units and the Oleander PPA (a tolling structured power purchase deal 

where FMPA delivers natural gas) is transported under long-term firm transportation contracts with FGT. The average 

annual daily capacity is 94,014 MMBtu/d. FMPA also has firm call rights for an additional annual average of 42,000 

MMBtu/d of firm transportation capacity through a long term capacity release arrangement. Firm capacity demand 

charges are only incurred when this capacity is called. FMPA has also contracted for 50,000 MMBtu/d of firm capacity 

on Transco Gas Pipeline from their Station 85 to FGT to achieve a percentage of supply source diversity; taking 

advantage of the development of production from shale sourced gas supplies available at Station 85. FMPA has also 

contracted with the Southern Pines Storage facility currently for 500,000 MMBtu of firm gas storage capacity as a 

reliability measure to ensure natural gas supply availability during times of weather related interruptions. FGU acts as 

FMPA’s agent in the daily management of these natural gas capacity commitments. 

Oil Supply. All physical fuel oil purchases are centrally administered by FMPA. Purchases of fuel oil are 

typically only made to maintain back-up inventories at a level consistent with FMPA’s fuel management policies. 

These inventories provide an alternate fuel source to enhance generator reliability in the event of a natural gas fuel 

interruption. The purchases are made on a spot basis and at the then effective market price. 

Public Gas Partners, Inc. In November 2004, FMPA signed an agreement for the benefit of the Project with 

the other current contract parties consisting of six public gas utilities in five different states to form a gas supply 

agency called Public Gas Partners, Inc. (“PGP”). PGP is formed under Georgia law as a not-for-profit corporation and 

is tax-exempt for federal tax purposes. PGP was created to secure economical, long-term wholesale natural gas 

supplies for its seven members in order to stabilize and reduce the cost of natural gas. Current members of PGP, along 

with FMPA, include Municipal Gas Authority of Georgia, National Public Gas Agency, Patriots Energy Group, 

Southeast Alabama Gas District and Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation. PGP currently produces for FMPA 

approximately 3.5% of the Project’s gas requirements which are financially settled with FMPA.  

FMPA does not presently intend to participate in any further acquisition activities through PGP.  

Page 130 of 473



 

 - 24 - 

FMPA entered into a Production Sharing Agreement (“PSA”) as a participant in PGP Gas Supply Pool No. 

1 (“Pool 1”) in November 2004 and entered into a PSA as a participant in PGP Gas Supply Pool No. 2 (“Pool 2”) in 

October 2005. PGP is presently engaged in marketing the sale of both Pool 1 and Pool 2. PGP has received bids for a 

portion of its Pool 1 reserves in the Permian area of West Texas. Negotiations are ongoing to complete a sales 

agreement with closing expected in the latter part of 2019. It is anticipated that the liquidation of other all other reserve 

assets will be completed over time, focusing upon the most valuable first and then followed with lessor valued assets 

with FMPA receiving its proportional share of net proceeds. 

Transmission and Dispatch Agreements 

Transmission. OUC provides transmission service for delivery of power and energy from FMPA’s ownership 

in Stanton Unit No. 1, Stanton Unit No. 2, Stanton Unit A and the Indian River Units for the Project to the FPL and 

Duke Energy of Florida (“DEF”) interconnections with OUC for subsequent delivery to the Participants over the life 

of the Units. Rates for such transmission wheeling service are based upon OUC’s costs of providing such transmission 

wheeling service and under terms and conditions of the OUC-FMPA firm transmission service contracts for the 

Project. 

FMPA has contracts with DEF, FPL and OUC to transmit the various Project resources over the transmission 

systems of each of these three utilities. The Network Service Agreement with FPL was executed in March 1996 and 

was subsequently amended to both conform to the FERC Pro forma Tariff and to add additional members to the 

Project. The FPL agreement provides for network transmission service for the Participants interconnected to FPL’s 

transmission system. The FPL agreement terminates March 31, 2026, although FMPA has rollover rights to continue 

service beyond the termination date pursuant to the FPL Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Network Service 

Agreement with DEF became effective January 1, 2011 and conforms to FERC’s Pro forma Tariff. The DEF 

agreement provides for network transmission service for the Participants interconnected with DEF’s transmission 

system. The DEF agreement terminates December 31, 2035, subject to successive automatic five-year extensions 

thereafter, unless at least one year notice of termination is provided prior to the end of each term. FMPA also has 

several transmission wheeling agreements with OUC which are associated with each FMPA generation resource 

located on OUC’s system and which also provide for network type transmission service over OUC’s system. FMPA 

is a 68% owner of the transmission lines that connect the Cane Island site to the transmission grid with control rights 

to utilize the full capacity of those transmission lines to serve the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Florida Municipal Power Pool 

The Project is a member of the Florida Municipal Power Pool (“FMPP”). The other members of FMPP are 

Lakeland and OUC. The FMPP is an operating power pool in which the generating resources of members are centrally 

dispatched to meet their combined load requirements. The FMPP began operations in 1988. FMPP resources include 

the members’ coal fired generation, gas/oil fired units, ownership interest in nuclear capacity and various firm capacity 

and partial requirements arrangements with other utilities. Each FMPP member is responsible for maintaining 

sufficient capacity to serve its own load including an adequate amount of reserves. All FMPP transactions are settled 

using the “clearing house price” methodology. The resources of FMPP are essentially committed and dispatched by 

OUC, which handles the day-to-day operations of the FMPP.  

The FMPP operates under a three-year agreement that automatically renews until such time as all of the 

FMPP members elect to terminate the agreement. If a member of FMPP were to withdraw early, the pool continues 

with the remaining members.  

The FMPP Agreement was amended in 2011 to incorporate the dispatch services that were previously 

supplied to FMPA under contract by OUC. Under the revised agreement, FMPA contracts with FMPP for the dispatch 

of FMPA’s generation resources to serve the loads of the Participants on a continuous real-time basis. The Participant 

delivery points were removed from the control areas of DEF and FPL, effectively placing the Participants into the 

FMPP Balancing Authority area, although scheduled power deliveries to the Participants are transmitted to the 

delivery points over the DEF or FPL systems. In order to integrate the Participants into the FMPP Balancing Authority 

area, each delivery point is equipped by FMPA with a Remote Terminal Unit to collect and transmit necessary real-

time load data to the OUC automatic generation control system.  

The 2011 amended agreement provides for (i) FMPP to dispatch FMPA’s resources to serve the combined 

loads of the Participants located in DEF’s service territory and the Participants located in FPL’s service territory; (ii) 

Page 131 of 473



 

 - 25 - 

FMPA installing and maintaining the necessary equipment on the Participants’ systems; (iii) OUC installing and 

maintaining the necessary equipment on its system; and (iv) pricing and payments for services provided.  

The Project’s membership in the FMPP provides several benefits for the Project. By participating in the 

FMPP, the Project is able to realize significant savings due to the fact that FMPA is able to utilize more efficient, less 

costly generation than FMPA could have utilized if the Project were not a member of the pool. A pool marketing 

group that buys or sells capacity and energy on a daily basis provide some non-Participant revenue for the Project 

through the successful sale or purchase of excess capacity and energy outside of the Project. 

Conservation and Demand-Side Management Activities 

As a wholesale supplier of electric energy to the Project, FMPA is not directly responsible for conservation 

and demand-side management (“DSM”) programs. However, the Participants offer a variety of conservation and DSM 

programs to their consumers. 

In July 2008, the Executive Committee established the Conservation and Renewable Energy Advisory 

Committee to evaluate and make recommendations on conservation and renewable energy programs for the Project 

(the “ARP Conservation Program”). Since 2008, the Executive Committee annually has funded the ARP Conservation 

Program. In fiscal year 2019, the Executive Committee budgeted $750,000 for Participants’ conservation and 

renewable energy efforts. 

Future Power Supply 

General. In April 2019, FMPA filed its most recent Ten-Year Site Plan for the Project (“2019 TYSP”) with 

the PSC. The 2019 TYSP provides, among other things, a description of existing electric generation resources, a 10-

year forecast of electric power generating needs and an identification of the general location and type of any proposed 

generation capacity and transmission additions for the next 10-year period. As reported in the 2019 TYSP, the Project 

anticipates additional seasonal (summer) peaking purchases to meet its Participants’ annual load and maintain 15% 

generation reserves for the summer season through 2028. 

FMPA’s 2018 Load Forecast provides a current estimate of its baseline load forecast for the next 20 years as 

well as alternative high and low forecasts reflecting the uncertainty in the primary driving variables (i.e., trends of 

Florida economic activity and weather). The baseline forecast indicates a 1.2% compound annual growth rate in net 

energy for load of the current Project Participants during the period 2018 – 2027, and a 0.9% compound annual growth 

rate in net energy for load for the period 2028 through 2037. Taking into account existing Project resources and 

scheduled power purchase contract expirations, and assuming maintenance of a 15% reserve margin for the summer 

season, the forecast projects additional seasonal (summer) peaking purchases will be necessary over the 10-year TYSP 

study horizon. FMPA staff continuously studies a variety of alternatives to meet future needs for additional resources.  

FMPA’s goal is to have minimum long-term power costs with maximum reliability while maintaining flexibility to 

respond to a changing marketplace and regulatory environment and addressing possible State initiatives relating to 

greenhouse gas emission reductions. FMPA cannot predict what resources will ultimately be required or acquired or 

developed by the Project or the operating and capital costs associated therewith, although any such costs of additional 

generation resources would likely be significant.  

Since 2006, the Project has met increases in demand, in part, with the construction of power generation 

resources, including (i) Cane Island Unit No. 4, an approximately 300 MW combined cycle unit located near 

Kissimmee, which was placed in service in 2011, (ii) the Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1, an approximately 300 

MW combined cycle unit located in Fort Pierce, which was placed in service in 2008 and (iii) Stock Island Unit 4, an 

approximately 46 MW combustion turbine unit located at the Stock Island Plant near Key West, which was placed in 

service in 2006. 

Solar Energy. FMPA has entered into solar power purchase agreements with subsidiaries of FRP to purchase 

a total of 58 MW-ac of solar energy on behalf of five Participants in the Project.  The solar facilities are planned for 

commercial operation in 2020.  See “THE PROJECT – Purchased Power and Other Contracts.”  For additional 

information about the solar energy facilities, see “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – Solar Project.”  FMPA issued a 

Request for Proposals (“RFP”) in March 2019 seeking cost-competitive bids for additional solar power purchase 

agreements. FMPA short-listed and interviewed three solar developers and is currently in the process of negotiating 

PPA terms with the top bidder. Once finalized, it is anticipated that the developer will construct, own, and operate 

solar facilities from which FMPA will purchase a to-be-determined amount of solar energy on behalf of certain 

Page 132 of 473



 

 - 26 - 

Participants in the Project and other FMPA members that will participate in a to-be-established FMPA power supply 

project. It is expected these solar facilities will begin commercial operation in fiscal year 2023. 

Future Natural Gas Combined Cycle Resources. FMPA continues to evaluate the potential to participate in 

future, large-scale combined cycle power plants that may be constructed in Florida. However, FMPA is not currently 

negotiating to participate in such a project.  Such participation would provide FMPA with a highly efficient and 

relatively low-installed cost generation resource. 

Demand-Side Management. The Project does not currently sponsor any demand-side management programs, 

essentially because the Project has excess installed capacity.  See “THE PROJECT – Sales to Non-Participants.”  

FMPA is continuing to evaluate potential DSM programs that the Project could sponsor in the future and that would 

enable the Project to postpone, or mitigate, the need for future supply-side generation resources.  Programs currently 

under consideration include distributed resources, energy storage, direct control load management and back-up 

generator programs. 

Peaking Resources. Peaking resources have a short construction lead time, which will allow FMPA to quickly 

respond to a change in need should load be more than expected, other supply-side or demand-side alternatives do not 

become available, or the regulatory environment or market conditions change. FMPA has identified several sites well-

suited for expansion, with peaking resources including the Stock Island Site, the Cane Island Power Park and the 

Treasure Coast Energy Center. 

Expenditures related to the development, acquisition or construction of future power resources may be 

financed with Additional Bonds or other parity indebtedness. 

Project Operations 

For the fiscal year that ended on September 30, 2018, the coincident peak demand of the Project was 1,239 

MW. This peak demand was a 0.1% increase compared to the 2017 fiscal year.  

For the 2018 fiscal year, the Project produced 5.7 million MWh of billable energy, a 2.0% increase from the 

2017 fiscal year.  

Sales to the Participants in fiscal year 2018 totaled $406 million, a 5.1% decrease compared to the 2017 fiscal 

year which was due primarily to lower natural gas costs.  

For the 2018 fiscal year, Project power costs billed to Participants were 7.2 cents per kWh, a 7% decrease 

compared to the 2017 fiscal year.  

For additional information, see the table titled “HISTORICAL OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE 

PROJECT” below. 

Sales to Non-Participants 

To increase revenue and, thus, reduce Project costs to Participants, FMPA has a strategic goal of selling 

excess capacity to non-Participants when it is economically feasible, does not jeopardize reliability and there is an 

opportunity to do so. From 2011 to 2015, the Project was the full-requirements supplier to the City of Quincy, having 

an approximately 25 MW peak demand.  

In 2017, FMPA won a bid to supply wholesale power to the City of Bartow, having an approximately 62 

MW peak demand. FMPA began supplying the City of Bartow wholesale power on January 1, 2018. For the first three 

years of the agreement, OUC will supply the first 40 MW of Bartow’s power supply needs, and FMPA will supply 

peaking power to Bartow for its needs above 40 MW. In 2021, 2022 and 2023, FMPA will supply Bartow’s full-

requirements power supply needs. The City of Bartow will not, as such, be a Participant.  

Effective January 1, 2019, under a PPA that will run for nine years, the Project began supplying the City of 

Winter Park wholesale capacity and energy. For 2019, the Project will provide 10 MW of capacity and energy to 

Winter Park around the clock. For 2020-2027, the Project will serve Winter Park on a partial basis, net of other existing 

Winter Park wholesale power agreements. The City of Winter Park will not be a Participant.  

Page 133 of 473



 

 - 27 - 

Effective March 27, 2019, pursuant to a tolling agreement and associated transaction schedule that will run 

from July 1, 2019 through and until June 30, 2021, the Project will supply 53 MW of firm energy to Reedy Creek 

Improvement District every hour of the term. Reedy Creek Improvement District will provide the gas quantity 

necessary to supply the firm energy to FMPA for use in the Project natural gas fleet. This exchange avoids running 

more costly Reedy Creek Improvement District generation while rendering a financial benefit to the Project via 

utilization of the Project’s excess generation to provide economy energy.  

Through a letter of commitment for Negotiated Interchange Service executed on February 22, 2019, the terms 

of which are pursuant to the Agreement for Interchange Service between Florida Municipal Power Agency and Tampa 

Electric Company dated April 1, 1986, FMPA is selling Tampa Electric Company 120 MW of energy, 8 hours per 

day from May 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019. The sale of interchange energy is secondary to FMPA native load 

and other firm obligations, subject to recall for emergency or reliability purposes. 

Historical and Projected Future Capacity Requirements and Resources 

The historical and projected future Project capacity requirements and resources for the years ending 

September 30, 2016 through September 30, 2024 are summarized in the following table. 

 

Page 134 of 473



 

 - 28 - 

THE PROJECT 

HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED FUTURE CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS AND RESOURCES 

 

 

|---------- Actual ----------| |----------------------- Estimated -----------------------| 

Project Requirements (MW) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Coincident Peak Demand(1) 1,268 1,237 1,239 1,272 1,289  1,301 1,316 1,330 1,347 

Project Resources (MW)(2) 
  

 
     

 

St. Lucie Unit No. 2(3)(4) 35 35 35 48  46  46  46 46 46 

Stanton Unit 1 92 92 92 112  120  120  120 120 120 

Stanton Unit 2   85 85 85 102  102  102  102 102 102 

Cane Island Unit 1  17 17 17 17  17  17  17 17 17 

Cane Island Unit 2  54 54 54 54  54  54  54 54 54 

Cane Island Unit 3  120 120 120 120  120  120  120 120 240 

Cane Island Unit 4  300 300 300 300  300  300  300 300 300 

Indian River Units A & B  25 25 25 25  25  25  25 25 25 

Indian River Units C & D  44 44 44 44  44  44  44 44 44 

Stock Island Unit 2 & 3  30 30 30 30  30  30  30 30 30 

Stock Island Unit 4 46 46 46 46  46  46  46 46 46 

Treasure Coast Energy Center 

Unit 1 300 300 300 300  300  300  315 315 315 

Key West Native Generation(5) 37 37 38 37  37  37  37 37 37 

Kissimmee Native Generation(5) 200 200 200 200  200  200  200 200 200 

Stanton A(6) 122 122 122 125  125  125  125 125 44 

Oleander(6) 162 162 162 162  162  162 162 162 162 

Short-term Purchases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Resources (MW)  1,667 1,667 1,667 1,721  1,727  1,727 1,742 1,742 1,676 

Total Project Reserve 

Percentage(7) 31% 35% 35% 35% 34% 33% 32% 31% 24% 
 

_____________________ 

(Numbers may not add due to rounding.) 

(1) Peak demands are at the delivery point level (summer season) and exclude sales to Non-Participants. 
(2) Unless otherwise noted, projected future capacity amounts shown reflect either actual ratings of owned resources or capacity purchased 

under firm contracts. Capacity in the projected period is consistent with the 2019 TYSP, which assumed the Project would acquire Vero 

Beach’s entitlements in the Stanton, Stanton 2, and St. Lucie Projects for the 2019 planning year. 
(3) The capacity for years 2016-2018 represents the aggregate amount of capacity from St. Lucie Unit No. 2 for Participants in the Project 

who are also participants in the St. Lucie Project which capacity is an excluded resource under the Power Supply Contracts. 

(4) The decrease in capacity beginning in 2020 reflects the reduction for St. Lucie Unit No. 2 due to the election still in effect at the time of 
the 2019 TYSP by Green Cove Springs to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of the Power Supply Contract, to 

a CROD beginning January 1, 2020. Green Cove Springs has subsequently executed a Supplemental Power Sales Agreement with the 

ARP that will result in adjustments to the 2020 TYSP. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 
(5) Capacity and Energy purchase.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by 

Participants.” 

(6) Capacity shown for Stanton A and Oleander includes amounts currently purchased under contracts from NextEra subsidiaries. See “THE 
PROJECT – Purchased Power and Other Contracts.” 

(7) Reserve Margin calculated as ((Total Resources – Partial Requirements Purchases) – (Total Requirements – Partial Requirements 

Purchases)) / (Total Requirements – Partial Requirements Purchases). Volatility in the Project reserve margin is directly related to 
volatility in peak demand. Planning for future capacity requires that resources be added to reflect expected long-term increases in demand. 

This may cause volatility in the reserve margin but is more practical than adding smaller resources more frequently. The Project has the 

added complexity of being divided into different transmission areas; providing adequate resources to meet demand in each of the 
transmission areas can cause some volatility in the reserve margin for the Project as a whole. 

Page 135 of 473



 

 - 29 - 

The following table summarizes the historical operating results for the Project for the Fiscal Years ending 

September 30, 2016 through September 30, 2018 and for the nine-month period ending June 30, 2019.    

HISTORICAL OPERATING RESULTS 

FOR THE PROJECT(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 Fiscal Year Ending 

September 30, 

Nine-Month Period Ending  

June 30, 

REVENUES: 2016 2017 2018 2018 2019 

Participant Billings(2) ...........................  $409,104  $428,034 $406,073 $287,963 $307,772 

Interest Income(3)(16) .............................  855  1,504   2,739 975 4,736 

Vero Beach Exit Payment(15) ...............  – – – – 105,400 

Due from (to) Participants(4) ................  (12,419)  (3,916) 7,288(5) 11,720 2,153 

Sales to Others(6) ..................................      26,146       33,480     29,883     20,378     29,189 

Total Revenues..........................................  $423,686 $459,102 $445,983 $321,036 $449,250 

OPERATING EXPENSES:      

Fixed Payment Obligations .................  19,738  19,738  19,738 14,884 14,876 

Fixed Operating and Maintenance(7)(16)  67,270  65,550  61,398 45,246 61,629 

Fuel Costs(8)(16) .....................................  162,762  197,232 185,900 128,732 143,067 

Purchased Power .................................  25,546  21,814 23,561 16,863 19,379 

General Administrative and Other(9) .......  22,349  21,841 22,029 16,257 16,364 

Transmission(10) ...................................      26,256      28,187     28,661     20,799     21,200 

Total Operating Expenses .........................  $323,921 $354,362 $341,287 $242,781 $276,515 

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, 

DEPRECIATION AND 

REGULATORY ADJUSTMENT $ 99,765 $104,740 $104,696 $  78,255 $172,735 

Debt Service(11)(16) .....................................     92,445   102,401    91,610(12)     78,339   149,911 

Net Available for Other Purposes(13) .........  $   7,320 $    2,339 $  13,086 $       (84) $  22,824 

Net Sales to Participants (GWh) ...............  5,692 5,554 5,664 4,064 3,915 

Net Power Costs to Participants 

(Cost/MWh)(14) ....................................  $69.69   $76.36 $72.97 $70.86 $78.61 

Days Cash on Hand ...................................  225 167 177 190 162 
_______________________________ 

(1) Based on actual cash flows in accordance with the Resolution.  Amounts will differ from FMPA’s audited financial statements as all accruals, 
amortizations, unrealized liabilities and unrealized gains and losses have been excluded from these amounts 

(2) Participant billing in 2017 was higher due primarily to higher natural gas prices. 

(3) Investment earnings on balances of all accounts. Interest accruals were adjusted out and the non-cash mark-to-market adjustments were removed from the 
corresponding amount reflected in FMPA’s audited financial statements to provide a cash-based amount for this presentation. 

(4) Accounts receivable from/(payable to) Participants due to under/(over) recoveries. 

(5) Amounts that will be refunded to or collected from the Participants in fiscal year 2019. 
(6) Sales to Others in 2016 included sales of $22,413,000 to FMPP, in 2017 included sales of $26,623,000 to FMPP and in 2018 included sales of $18,048,000 

to FMPP. 

(7) FMPA’s share of operation and maintenance expenses, excluding fuel, allocated to the Project 
(8) This amount was adjusted from the corresponding amount reflected in FMPA’s audited financial statement by removing a non-cash amortization for an 

investment in Public Gas Partners, Inc. 
(9) Administrative and general expenses for OUC, KUA, FMPA and NextEra allocated to the Project. 

(10) Includes transmission charges over the transmission systems of FPL, DEF and OUC. 

(11) Amounts paid from Revenues with respect to principal of and interest on Bonds and any other indebtedness issued under the Resolution. 

(12) Amounts funded in fiscal year 2018 for interest and principal on the bonds plus swap payments, differs from financial statement as all accruals have been 

removed from this number. 

(13) Net Available for Other Purposes reflects the impact of accrual accounting on a cash-basis rate and budget process. 
(14) Net power costs are driven primarily by changes in fuel costs. 

(15) See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach.” 

(16) Increase from nine-month period ending June 30, 2018 to nine-month period ending June 30, 2019 is primarily due to cash inflows and operational changes 
due to the transfer and assignment to the Project by Vero Beach of its Power Entitlement Shares in the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie 

Project.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach.” 

(Numbers may not add due to rounding) 

Page 136 of 473



 

 - 30 - 

THE PROJECT PARTICIPANTS 

Description of the Participants 

The Project has fourteen Participants, of which thirteen are currently purchasing capacity and energy from the 

Project.  The thirteen active Participants in the Project are ten Florida municipal corporations, a utility board and two utility 

authorities. Among the economic factors important to the Participants are agriculture, tourism, retirement and light 

manufacturing. Each Participant owns and operates its own retail electric distribution system. During the calendar year 

ended December 31, 2018, these systems sold in the aggregate approximately 5,783 GWh of electric services (including 

sales to other electric utilities), served approximately 261,147 customer accounts and incurred a coincident peak demand of 

approximately 1,239 MW. 

For a discussion of the status of Starke, Lake Worth, Fort Meade, Green Cove Springs, KUA and Key West, see 

“THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants” and “– Withdrawal of Vero Beach.”  Vero 

Beach withdrew as a Member of FMPA and as a Participant in the Project in December 2018.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” herein. 

As set forth in APPENDIX A hereto, the Participants in the Project are also participants in various other projects 

of FMPA. See “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.” 

Major Participants’ Historical Net Energy Requirements and Peak Demand 

The following table summarizes the historical net energy requirements and aggregate non-coincident peak demand 

of the four Major Participants. See “INTRODUCTION – The Major Participants.” 

MAJOR PARTICIPANTS’ 

HISTORICAL NET ENERGY REQUIREMENTS AND PEAK DEMAND 

By Fiscal Year 
(ending September 30) 

Net Energy Requirements (GWh) 

(for native load) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Jacksonville 

Beach 

Key  

West* KUA* Ocala 

     

2014 734 770 1,445 1,263 

2015 739 780 1,508 1,295 

2016 757 800 1,586 1,337 

2017 721 764 1,581 1,297 

2018 744 746 1,624 1,327 
_______________________________ 

*See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 
 

Non-Coincident Peak Demand (MW) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Jacksonville 

Beach 

Key  

West* KUA* Ocala 

     

2014 192 144 327 285 

2015 195 147 335 287 

2016 196 148 354 295 

2017 171 148 353 291 

2018 211 146 356 297 
_______________________________ 

*See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 

 

Major Participants 

APPENDIX B contains certain information about the Major Participants in the Project. 

Page 137 of 473



 

 - 31 - 

OTHER FMPA PROJECTS  

Introduction 

In addition to the Project, FMPA has six other projects (“Other Projects”) in which various Members (including 

some or all of the Participants) participate, including five power supply projects – Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, St. 

Lucie Project, Tri-City Project and Solar Project – and the Initial Pooled Loan Project. 

Each Other Project has been financed, as applicable, by FMPA through senior and, in some cases, subordinated 

debt (other than the Solar Project, although the Solar Project may in the future be financed through senior and/or 

subordinated debt). All debt for a particular Other Project has been issued under various resolutions of FMPA that are 

applicable only to that Other Project. All debt incurred for a particular Other Project is secured only by the revenues of that 

Other Project. Therefore, the revenues of a particular Other Project are not security for the FMPA debt issued for the Project 

or for all Other Projects. 

In the case of the Stanton, Stanton II, St. Lucie and Tri-City Power Sales Contracts and Project Support Contracts, 

as amended, and the Solar Project Power Sales Contracts, the obligation of a Participant for its share of the costs of an Other 

Project under the Power Sales Contract for that Other Project is payable solely from the Participant’s electric or integrated 

utility system revenues and are operating expenses of such system, payable on a parity with the system’s operation and 

maintenance expenses and before debt service on the system’s senior and subordinated debt. Payment by a Participant of 

its share of the costs of an Other Project under the Project Support Contract for an Other Project will be made only after 

payment of all of its system’s current operating and maintenance expenses and debt service on the system’s senior and 

subordinated debt. 

The following is a brief description of each of the Other Projects. APPENDIX A describes each Member’s 

participation in any FMPA Project. 

Stanton Project 

The Stanton Project consists of a 14.8193% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 1. Stanton 

Unit No. 1 is one of the two-unit coal fired electric generators at the Stanton Energy Center. Stanton Unit No. 1 was 

constructed, and is operated, by OUC. Power from the Stanton Project is transmitted to the Stanton Participants utilizing 

the transmission systems of OUC and FPL under the respective contracts with each system. The FPL transmission for the 

Stanton Project Participants that also participate in the Project (Fort Pierce and Starke) is included in the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Network Transmission Service Agreement with FPL which terminates in 2026. Lake Worth’s power 

from the Stanton Project is delivered to the transmission interface between OUC, FPL and DEF and is considered delivered 

to the respective participants by the Stanton Project at that point.  Lake Worth has separately acquired Network Integration 

Transmission Service from FPL for delivery from the OUC/FPL interface to Lake Worth.  The remaining Stanton Project 

Participant in FPL’s territory (Homestead) receives its transmission service under the Transmission Service Agreement 

between FMPA and FPL which terminates upon the earlier of retirement of Stanton Unit No. 1 or December 31, 2026. The 

transmission agreement with OUC expires on the earlier of retirement of Stanton Unit No. 1 or June 2027. 

In addition to the ownership of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 1 representing FMPA’s Stanton Project, the other co-

owners of undivided ownership interests in Stanton Unit No. 1 are (i) OUC, which owns 68.5542%, (ii) FMPA, which owns 

5.3012% as part of the Tri-City Project discussed below, (iii) FMPA, which owns 6.506% as part of the Project, and 

(iv) KUA, which owns 4.8193%. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will not have any outstanding debt for the Stanton Project. 

All debt of FMPA issued for the Stanton Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the Stanton 

Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – Introduction.”  Each participant in the Stanton Project is responsible under its power sales contract and project 

support contract for the costs of the Stanton Project in the amount of its participation share in the Stanton Project as shown 

on APPENDIX A subject to applicable step-up provisions. 

Stanton Unit No. 1 began commercial operation on July 1, 1987. The availability factor has averaged 87.4% since 

that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 61.8% in 2016 to a high of 90.5% in 

2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 90.4%.  For the last five fiscal years, Stanton Project power costs billed 

Page 138 of 473



 

 - 32 - 

to its participants have ranged from approximately 8.3 to 14.2 cents per kWh, and were 8.3 cents per kWh for fiscal year 

2018. 

The determination to retire Stanton Unit No. 1 will be made by OUC. 

Other than the bonds issued with respect to any refunding relating to the Stanton Project and as described under 

“THE PROJECT – Project Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project – Stanton Units,” FMPA has no 

present intention to issue any additional debt for the Stanton Project. [To the extent that additional funds are needed for 

capital expenditures for the Stanton Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, borrow from the Initial Pooled Loan 

Project, or seek bank financing.] 

On December 17, 2018, the Project took a transfer and assignment of Vero Beach’s 32.521% Power Entitlement 

Share (21.3 MW) in the Stanton Project. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for 

additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Stanton II Project 

The Stanton II Project consists of a 23.2367% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in the Stanton Energy Unit 

No. 2. Stanton Unit No. 2 is the second of the two-unit coal fired electric generators at the Stanton Energy Center of OUC. 

Stanton Unit No. 2 was constructed, and is operated by, OUC. Power from the Stanton II Project is transmitted to the 

participants utilizing the transmission systems of OUC, FPL and DEF under the respective contracts with each system. The 

FPL transmission for the Stanton II Project Participants that also participate in the Project (Fort Pierce, Key West, and 

Starke) is included in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Network Transmission Service Agreement with FPL 

which terminates in 2026. The remaining Stanton II Project Participant in FPL’s territory (Homestead) receives its 

transmission service under the Transmission Service Agreement between FMPA and FPL which terminates upon the earlier 

of retirement of Stanton Unit No. 2 or December 31, 2032. The transmission agreement with OUC expires on the earlier of 

retirement of Stanton Unit No. 2 or June 2036. 

In addition to the ownership of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 2 representing FMPA’s Stanton II Project, the other co-

owners of undivided ownership interests in Stanton Unit No. 2 are (i) OUC, which owns 71.5909%, and (ii) FMPA, which 

also owns 5.1724% as part of the Project. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will have outstanding $112,054,000 of senior bonds and $0 of subordinated debt issued for 

the Stanton II Project, the final maturity of which is October 1, 2027. 

All debt of FMPA issued for the Stanton II Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the 

Stanton II Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER 

FMPA PROJECTS – Introduction.” Each participant in the Stanton II Project is responsible under its power sales contract 

and project support contract for the costs of the Stanton II Project in the amount of its participation share in the Stanton 

Project as shown on APPENDIX A. 

Stanton Unit No. 2 began commercial operation on June 1, 1996. The availability factor has averaged 87.9% since 

that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 84.8% in 2018 to a high of 89.9% in 

2015. For the last five fiscal years, Stanton II Project power costs billed to its participants have ranged from approximately 

7.7 to 8.5 cents per kWh, and were 8.5 cents per kWh for fiscal year 2018. 

Other than the bonds issued with respect to any refunding relating to the Stanton II Project, FMPA has no present 

intention to issue any additional debt for the Stanton II Project. To the extent that additional funds are needed for capital 

expenditures for the Stanton II Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, borrow from the Initial Pooled Loan 

Project, or seek bank financing. 

On December 17, 2018, the Project took a transfer and assignment of Vero Beach’s 16.4887% Power Entitlement 

Share (17.2 MW) in the Stanton II Project. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for 

additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Page 139 of 473



 

 - 33 - 

St. Lucie Project  

The St. Lucie Project consists of an 8.806% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in St. Lucie Unit No. 2, a 

pressurized water nuclear generating unit with a summer seasonal net capacity of approximately 984 MW (“St. Lucie Unit 

No. 2”). St. Lucie Unit No. 2 is part of FPL’s two-unit nuclear generating station located in St. Lucie County, Florida. St. 

Lucie Unit No. 2 was constructed and is operated by FPL.  In addition to St. Lucie Unit No. 2, FPL also owns and operates, 

as part of the St. Lucie nuclear generating station, the St. Lucie Unit No. 1 pressurized water nuclear electric generating unit 

which has a summer net capacity of approximately 978 MW (“St. Lucie Unit No. 1”). St. Lucie Units No. 1 and 2 are similar 

units. 

The St. Lucie Project also is party to a Reliability Exchange between FMPA and FPL under which FMPA 

exchanges with FPL 50% of its share of the output from St. Lucie Unit No. 2 for a like amount from St. Lucie Unit No. 1 

in order to provide output when St. Lucie Unit No. 2 is out of service. The result of this exchange is that if St. Lucie Unit 

No. 2 is out of service, FMPA obtains 50% of its entitlement from St. Lucie Unit No. 1, and if St. Lucie Unit No. 1 is out 

of service 50% of FMPA’s entitlement from St. Lucie Unit No. 2 is provided to FPL. The Reliability Exchange initially 

expired on the earlier of (a) the retirement of St. Lucie Units No. 1 and No. 2, and (b) October 1, 2017. FMPA and FPL 

have agreed to extend the reliability arrangements beyond the initial expiration date of October 1, 2017 to October 1, 2022, 

although either party has the unilateral right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days’ notice. 

St. Lucie Unit No. 2 began commercial operation in August 1983. The capacity factor has averaged 84.1% since 

that time. For the last five fiscal years, the capacity factor has ranged from a low of 81.1% in 2014, to a high of 92.5% in 

2016. The capacity factor for 2018 was 88.1%. For the last five fiscal years, St. Lucie Project power costs billed to its 

participants have ranged from approximately 7.8 cents to 8.1 cents per kWh, and were 7.8 cents per kWh for fiscal year 

2018. 

In addition to the ownership of FMPA in St. Lucie Unit No. 2 representing FMPA’s St. Lucie Project, the other 

co-owners of undivided ownership interests in St. Lucie Unit No. 2 are (i) FPL, which owns 85.10449% and (ii) OUC, 

which owns 6.08951%. 

The term of the operating licenses for St. Lucie Unit No. 1 and St. Lucie Unit No. 2 are currently scheduled to 

expire in 2036 and 2043, respectively, as the result of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) granting 20-year 

operating license renewals for each unit. FPL has indicated that it plans to operate into the extended license periods and that 

it will periodically review the prudence and economics of continued operations. FMPA may issue bonds relating to the St. 

Lucie Project to finance its portion of the costs associated with the extension.  

In 2012, a project to increase the electrical generating capacity of St. Lucie Units No. 1 and No. 2 (the “Extended 

Power Uprate Project”) was completed. The Extended Power Uprate Project increased the capacity owned by FMPA 

through the St. Lucie Project by approximately 13 MW.  

FMPA has contracts with FPL and OUC to transmit power and energy from St. Lucie Units No. 1 and No. 2 to the 

participants in the St. Lucie Project. During 2016, the transmission contract with FPL was amended to extend the agreement 

beyond its original expiration date of October 1, 2017.  The amended transmission contract with FPL expires on October 1, 

2042, unless terminated earlier upon mutual agreement of the parties or upon the retirement of St. Lucie Unit No. 2.  The 

transmission contract with OUC ends in 2023 or such earlier time as FMPA is no longer entitled to receive output from the 

St. Lucie Project. 

FPL is responsible for obtaining the fuel for both St. Lucie Units No. 2 and No. 1.  FPL supplements wet storage 

of spent fuel assemblies for St. Lucie with a dry storage process utilizing dry storage containers encased in concrete. This 

process extends FPL’s capability to store spent fuel indefinitely. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will have outstanding $125,335,000 of senior bonds issued for the St. Lucie Project, the final 

maturity of which is October 1, 2026. FMPA, with respect to the St. Lucie Project, also, as of July 31, 2019, has on deposit 

securities with a maturity value of approximately $63.9 million, which FMPA anticipates will be used, together with other 

available funds, to retire the senior bonds issued for the St. Lucie Project on or before October 1, 2026.  [To the extent that 

additional funds are needed for capital expenditures for the St. Lucie Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, 

borrow from the Initial Pooled Loan Project, or seek bank financing.] 

Page 140 of 473



 

 - 34 - 

All debt of FMPA issued for the St. Lucie Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the St. 

Lucie Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – Introduction.” Each participant in the St. Lucie Project is responsible under its power sales contract and 

project support contract for the costs of the St. Lucie Project in the amount of its participation share in the St. Lucie Project 

as shown in APPENDIX A. 

On December 17, 2018, the All-Requirements Power Supply Project took a transfer and assignment of Vero 

Beach’s 15.202% Power Entitlement Share (13.2 MW) in the St. Lucie Project.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach from the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Tri-City Project  

The Tri-City Project consists of a 5.3012% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 1. FMPA 

has contracts with both OUC and FPL to transmit the power and energy from Stanton Unit No. 1 to the participants in the 

Tri-City Project. See “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – Stanton Project” above for a further discussion of Stanton Unit No. 1. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will not have any outstanding debt for the Tri-City Project.  [To the extent that additional 

funds are needed for capital expenditures for the Tri-City Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, borrow from 

the Initial Pooled Loan Project, or seek bank financing.] 

All debt of FMPA issued for the Tri-City Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the Tri-

City Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – Introduction.” Each participant in the Tri-City Project is responsible under its power sales contract and project 

support contract for the costs of the Tri-City Project in the amount of its participation share in the Tri-City Project as shown 

on APPENDIX A. 

For the last five fiscal years, Tri-City Project power costs to its participants have ranged from approximately 8.7 

cents to 14.8 cents per kWh, and were 8.7 cents per kWh for fiscal year 2018. 

Solar Project 

In March 2018, the FMPA Board approved the formation of the Solar Project, as a sixth FMPA power supply 

project, and FMPA has entered into a power purchase agreement for 57 MW-ac of solar energy on behalf of six (6) FMPA 

members that are participants in the Solar Project.  FRP is developing three solar sites totaling 223.5 MW-ac to be located 

in Florida with expected in-service dates of June 30, 2020 for two of the solar sites.  The third site is experiencing delays 

associated with interconnection issues and will achieve commercial operation on a future date that has not yet been 

determined.  FMPA is working with FRP to mitigate these delays.  The Project will receive a portion of one of these sites, 

with the remainder of the associated capacity and energy going to OUC and five (5) Participants, as discussed previously.   

The Solar Project is not expected to incur debt since most cost obligations under the power purchase agreement 

are tied to actual energy produced and does not include any fixed capacity charges. However, any debt of FMPA that may 

be issued for the Solar Project for reimbursable transmission improvements is payable from amounts payable by the 

participants in the Solar Project under power sales contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS 

– Introduction.” Each participant in the Solar Project is responsible under its power sales contract for the costs of the Solar 

Project in the amount of its participation share in the Solar Project. 

Environmental and Operational Compliance – Other Projects 

FMPA believes that each of the Other Projects’ power generating resources is well-maintained and is in substantive 

compliance with all current environmental laws and operating permits. FMPA has budgeted capital and operating costs, 

based on current legal requirements and future requirements that are known and understood. Additional costs may arise 

from new statutes or changing regulations that cannot currently be predicted and could range from minimal to significant. 

See “ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION.” 

Page 141 of 473



 

 - 35 - 

Initial Pooled Loan Project 

FMPA has established the Initial Pooled Loan Project as a vehicle for the financing and refinancing of eligible 

utility-related projects by its members through the making of loans by FMPA to members of FMPA, FMPA itself, and 

FMPA, as agent for any of its other projects.  In order to provide funds for the making of loans on a taxable or tax-exempt 

basis, Capital Bank has extended to FMPA a line of credit in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $25,000,000. 

Future Power Supply and Operations 

In the future, FMPA may pursue additional power supply alternatives which, if shown to be economically feasible, 

will be made available to the membership. Power supply alternatives are examined by FMPA to determine if the resource 

can be competitive with other resources available to the Members or if there is some unique feature which justifies further 

study. A detailed engineering feasibility study is made for those projects which pass this initial screening process. Upon 

completion of the detailed study, the project is offered to those Members of FMPA not participating in the Project, who 

make individual participation decisions and/or to the Project where a decision to participate is made by a majority of the 

Project members. 

STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT 

In general, the rates of municipal electric utilities in Florida, including the Participants, are established by the 

governing bodies of such utilities. Under Chapter 366, Florida Statutes, the PSC has jurisdiction over municipal electric 

utilities to prescribe uniform systems and classifications of accounts, to require electric power conservation and reliability, 

to establish rules and regulations regarding cogeneration, to approve territorial agreements, to resolve territorial disputes, 

to prescribe rate structures and to prescribe and require the periodic filing of reports and other data. Pursuant to the rules of 

the PSC, rate structure is defined as “... the classification system used in justifying different rates between various customer 

classes.”  However, the PSC and the Florida Supreme Court have determined that, except as to rate structure, the PSC does 

not have jurisdiction over municipal electric utility rates, including those of the Participants. The PSC has not asserted any 

jurisdiction over the rates or rate structure of FMPA. The PSC also has the authority to determine the need for certain new 

transmission and generation facilities. 

In 2014, the Office of the Florida Auditor General performed an operational audit of FMPA, as defined in section 

11.45(l)(g), Florida Statutes. The objectives of this type of audit are, in general, to evaluate management’s performance in 

establishing and maintaining internal controls, including controls designed to detect fraud, waste and abuse, as well as to 

evaluate management’s performance in administering assigned responsibilities in accordance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, contracts and other guidelines. The final report, along with FMPA’s response, is available at 

http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/pages/pdf_files/2015-165.pdf.  The final report is not incorporated by reference herein 

and is not a part of this Official Statement.   

The Auditor General’s final report contained fifteen findings, five of which only concern the Project. FMPA 

subsequently addressed every audit finding and hired an independent consultant to advise it on two findings regarding 

natural gas hedging and implementation of the withdrawal provisions of section 29 of the Power Supply Contracts. The 

final consultant’s report was presented to the Executive Committee in December 2015, and all follow-up work was 

completed by FMPA by August 2016. 

During most years from 2008 to 2016, FMPA or its Members faced adverse legislative proposals in each annual 

session of Florida’s Legislature. Most of these adverse legislative efforts were related to efforts by certain Vero Beach 

customers to attempt to force FMPA to grant Vero Beach contractual concessions for the benefit only of Vero Beach 

customers.  Much of this legislation was sponsored by then-Representative Debbie Mayfield.  No such adverse legislation 

was filed in the 2017 Legislative Session or the 2018 Legislative Session, which ended on March 11, 2018. 

On February 16, 2017, Senator Debbie Mayfield requested the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee of the Florida 

Legislature to authorize a study of FMPA by the Legislature’s Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government 

Accountability (“OPPAGA”).  Senator Mayfield was the chair of the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee for the 2017 

Legislative Session.  The study is supposed to address specifically these nine matters: 

(a)  Determine the extent to which the conditions recited in the Interlocal Agreement creating FMPA as 

justification for the creation of FMPA remain present. 

Page 142 of 473



 

 - 36 - 

(b)  Evaluate the feasibility of FMPA being regulated by the PSC and recommend a process for bringing FMPA 

within such regulation. 

(c)  Evaluate the potential impacts of the orderly sale of FMPA’s interest in power generation assets, including the 

impact of such a sale on FMPA’s debt structure, and the wholesale and retail power markets in Florida. 

(d)  Evaluate FMPA’s actions in response to the 2015 report of FMPA by the Florida Auditor General, including 

any remedial or corrective actions taken by FMPA and the effectiveness of the same. 

(e)  Evaluate the feasibility and costs of a municipality terminating its FMPA membership and make 

recommendations for legislative or other action that could reduce those costs. 

(f)  Evaluate the feasibility of the orderly dissolution and liquidation of FMPA and recommend a process 

effectuating the same and providing for the protection of bondholders and other private contractual interests. 

(g)  Identify and evaluate FMPA’s wholesale rates as compared to the wholesale rates of Florida’s investor-owned 

utilities. 

(h)  Identify the benefits of FMPA’s programs unrelated to the power generation (e.g. training) and whether such 

programs can be more efficiently provided by others. 

(i)  Evaluate FMPA’s fuel hedging practices. 

The OPPAGA study was initially scheduled to begin on October 1, 2017. At the request of Senator Mayfield, that 

start date was delayed to January 1, 2018.  As of the date of this Official Statement, no work on the study has, to FMPA’s 

knowledge, commenced. 

On January 30, 2019, the Florida Department of State submitted a proposed constitutional initiative petition to the 

Attorney General entitled “Right to Competitive Energy Market for Customers of Investor-Owned Utilities; Allowing 

Energy Choice.”  If the Supreme Court finds the initiative petition meets the requirements of state law, it can be placed on 

the ballot for Florida’s voters as early as November 2020, provided that a total of 766,200 valid signatures are certified by  

February 1, 2020.  As of [August 15, 2019] approximately [355,000] signatures have been certified.  FMPA, all Florida’s 

major investor-owned utilities, OUC, and a multitude of other parties, filed briefs opposing the initiative petition before the 

Supreme Court.  The Supreme Court held oral arguments on August 28, 2019.  A decision is likely before the end of 2019. 

If approved by the Supreme Court, placed on the 2020 ballot, and adopted by Florida’s voters, the initiative petition 

would have many serious consequences for FMPA, the Project, and the Participants.  Although legislation would be required 

to enact the initiative petition, which legislation must be adopted by June 1, 2023, the effects of the initiative petition would 

include prohibiting FPL and DEF from owning generation and transmission assets, which would affect the Project and its 

ability to deliver power to Participants, and would affect the St. Lucie Project.  Additionally, it would allow all retail 

customers of investor owned utilities to choose to purchase electricity from any provider of their choice, allow customers 

to generate and sell electricity to fellow customers, and establish a completely new competitive market in Florida for retail 

electricity.  The Participants are entitled to opt into such new market under the terms of the initiative petition, but their retail 

electric and integrated utility businesses will be substantially and, possibly, negatively impacted.  The sponsor of initiative 

petition, Citizens for Energy Choices, has made public statements, indicating it believes Florida’s electric utility industry 

would be restructured much as the industry has been restructured in Texas.  It is not possible to predict the Supreme Court’s 

ruling, the likelihood of sufficient signatures being certified for the 2020 ballot, the likelihood of adoption by Florida’s 

voters or, if adopted, the impact that implementing legislation may have on FMPA, the Project, and the Participants, except 

that such impact could be materially adverse. 

CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY 

General 

Several notable factors currently affect the electric utility industry, including increasing competition and related 

regulatory changes, financial difficulties faced by certain industry participants, and increasing costs of complying with 

environmental and other regulations. Public power utilities also are affected by factors related to their ability to issue tax-

exempt obligations and restrictions on the ability to sell, to non-governmental entities, power and energy from generation 

projects that are financed with outstanding, tax-exempt debt. FMPA and its members, including the Participants, also could 

Page 143 of 473



 

 - 37 - 

be adversely affected by technological or market developments that change the relative costs of the electric power and 

energy that FMPA provides to the Participants in comparison with the costs of electric power and energy that is available 

from other utilities in Florida. FMPA cannot predict what effects these factors will have on the business, operations and 

financial condition of FMPA or the Participants, but the effects could be significant.  

The following sections provide brief discussions of certain of these factors. These discussions do not purport to be 

comprehensive or definitive, and these matters are subject to change after the date of this Official Statement. Extensive 

information on the electric utility industry is available from legislative and regulatory bodies and other sources in the public 

domain. 

Energy Policy Act of 1992 

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 (the “Energy Policy Act”) made fundamental changes to federal regulation of the 

electric utility industry, particularly in the area of transmission access. The purpose of the changes was, in part, to bring 

about increased wholesale electric competition. The Energy Policy Act authorized FERC – upon application by an electric 

utility, federal power marketing agency, or other power generator – to require a transmitting utility to provide transmission 

services to the applicant on a cost-of-service basis. Municipally-owned electric utilities are “transmitting utilities” for this 

purpose. At this time, FERC does not have the authority to require “retail wheeling,” under which a distribution customer 

of one utility could purchase electricity from another utility or from a non-utility power generator. 

In addition to providing for transmission access, the Energy Policy Act required states and utilities to consider 

adopting integrated resource planning (“IRP”), which allows utility investments in conservation and other demand-side 

management techniques to be at least as profitable as supply investments. The PSC statutory and regulatory requirements 

do not specifically subject utilities in Florida to IRP, but when taken together equate to an IRP requirement. The most recent 

IRP was completed in February 2015. See “THE PROJECT – Future Power Supply.” The Energy Policy Act also established 

new efficiency standards in industrial and commercial equipment and lighting and required states to establish commercial 

and residential building codes with energy efficiency standards. Energy efficiency must also be included in utilities’ IRPs. 

FERC Transmission Initiatives 

On April 24, 1996, FERC issued two rules on transmission access. Order No. 888 required all FERC-jurisdictional 

utilities to provide transmission service on a non-discriminatory basis. As part of Order No. 888, FERC established a pro 

forma Open Access Transmission Tariff (“OATT”). Order No. 889 established the rules of conduct for open-access 

providers, including a requirement to separate operationally power sales from transmission. Municipally-owned electric 

utilities, including FMPA and the Participants, are not subject to FERC jurisdiction under these orders but may be denied 

transmission service by a FERC-jurisdictional utility if FMPA and the Participants do not offer comparable transmission 

services. To meet this “reciprocity” requirement, FMPA offers transmission service through a tariff that is comparable to 

FERC’s pro forma OATT. 

2005 Energy Policy Act 

The 2005 Energy Policy Act was enacted on August 8, 2005. Among other things, the 2005 Energy Policy Act: 

(a) authorizes FERC to require non-FERC jurisdictional utilities (including FMPA) to provide open access to their 

transmission systems and to comply with certain rate change provisions of section 205 of the FPA; (b) authorizes FERC to 

order refunds for certain short-term, wholesale sales by state and municipal power entities (including FMPA) if such sales 

violate FERC-approved tariffs or FERC rules; (c) allows load-serving entities that hold certain firm transmission rights to 

continue to use those rights to serve their customers; (d) provides for the establishment of a national electric reliability 

organization (“ERO”) to develop and enforce, subject to FERC’s oversight, mandatory reliability standards for operation 

of the transmission grid; I prohibits market manipulation and submission of false information and expands civil and criminal 

penalties for violation of the FPA; (f) gives FERC certain authority to issue construction permits for transmission projects 

that are to be located in “national interest electric transmission corridors” (to be designated by the Department of Energy);  

(g) eliminates certain ownership restrictions on qualifying cogeneration and small power production facilities under section 

210 of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (“PURPA”) and authorizes FERC to eliminate prospectively utilities’ 

obligation to purchase from these qualifying facilities; (h) requires state utility regulatory commissions and “non-regulated 

electric utilities” to consider adopting certain standards on net metering, fuel diversity, fossil fuel plant diversity, certain 

metering and time-based rate schedules and demand response, and interconnection with distributed generation facilities*; 

                                                 
* FMPA is exempt from these requirements of PURPA because FMPA sells power only at the wholesale level and does not sell power at the retail level. 

Page 144 of 473



 

 - 38 - 

(i) replaces regulation of utility holding companies under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 with more limited 

oversight of such companies; (j) increases FERC’s authority to review mergers of public utility companies; and (k) directs 

FERC to establish, for transmission companies whose rates are regulated by FERC, rate incentives to invest in transmission. 

FERC’s implementation of the 2005 Energy Policy Act includes:  transmission pricing reform and issuance of 

rules on the construction of transmission facilities in national interest corridors. Three other, notable implementation efforts 

are as follows: 

First, in February 2007, FERC issued Order No. 890 to reform the pro forma OATT. Order No. 890 reaffirmed 

many elements of Order No. 888, including:  (a) the comparability requirement under which a transmission owner must 

provide, to third-party users, service that is comparable to the transmission owner’s use of its system; (b) protections for 

native load customers; and (c) the reciprocity requirement for non-jurisdictional transmission owners, which include FMPA. 

Order No. 890’s reforms include:  (a) greater consistency and transparency in calculating available transmission capacity; 

(b) open, coordinated and transparent planning; (c) reforms of penalties for energy imbalances; (d) reform of FERC’s policy 

on rollover rights; and I increased transparency and customer access to information. 

All public utilities that own or control transmission facilities, including RTOs and Independent System Operators 

(“ISO”), were required to file revisions to their OATT to conform to pro forma language adopted in Order No. 890. As a 

non-public (non-jurisdictional) utility, FMPA is not required to file an OATT with FERC. However, in order to satisfy the 

reciprocity requirement, FMPA’s OATT conforms with the revisions to the pro forma OATT adopted by FERC in Order 

No. 890.  FMPA participated in joint transmission planning efforts that were conducted by the FRCC to address the need 

for new transmission facilities in the Central Florida region. FMPA plans to participate in ongoing transmission planning 

processes that were called for in Order No. 890 to the extent provided for by the transmission owning utilities in Florida. 

Second, in March 2007, FERC issued Order No. 693 to provide for the development of mandatory, national and 

regional reliability standards. The standards apply to all users, owners and operators of the bulk-power system in the United 

States (other than Alaska or Hawaii), including FMPA. FERC certified the NERC as the ERO and several regional entities 

to develop and enforce the standards. The first set of mandatory, national reliability standards took effect on June 18, 2007. 

FRCC was one of the regional entities that was responsible for monitoring and enforcing compliance with approved 

reliability standards. FMPA was  registered with FRCC from  May 29, 2007 until July 1, 2019 when FRCC dissolved as a 

Regional Entity. FMPA is now registered with SERC.  FMPA has programs in place to ensure that it meets the standards. 

FMPA also provides assistance to certain of its members regarding compliance with the standards. 

During a 2009 compliance audit, FRCC found that FMPA had violated certain reliability standards by failing to 

establish facility rating for its breakers at its Treasure Coast Energy Center.  On November 17, 2010, FMPA and FRCC 

executed a settlement agreement related to these violations. FRCC determined that the violations were not a serious or 

substantial risk to the bulk power system. The settlement agreement required FMPA to pay a $13,600 penalty and follow 

certain mitigation and remediation plans. FERC approved the settlement agreement on December 30, 2010.  FMPA 

completed the required mitigation actions and preventative measures.  FMPA has had no fineable reliability standards 

violations since.  During August 2019, FERC completed the most recent compliance audit of FMPA, with no findings. 

Third, in July 2011, FERC issued Order No. 1000 to build on certain of its reforms in Order No. 888 and Order 

No. 890. Order No. 1000’s requirements apply only to “new transmission facilities” and include: (a) the consideration and 

evaluation of possible transmission alternatives at a regional transmission planning level and the development of a regional 

transmission plan; (b) the development of procedures for interregional planning to determine whether interregional 

transmission facilities are more efficient or cost effective than certain regional facilities; (c) the development of methods 

for regional and interregional cost allocation that is roughly commensurate with the estimated benefits; and (d) for those 

projects eligible for cost sharing, removal of transmission providers’ “right of first refusal” in order to allow competition  

from nonincumbent developers.  

All public utility transmission providers were required to make compliance filings on regional planning and cost 

allocation within 12 months of the effective date and on interregional planning and cost allocation within 18 months of the 

effective date. In general, Order No. 1000 permits each region to develop its own processes and procedures to comply with 

the requirements. FRCC hosted a stakeholder process to discuss proposals for compliance with Order No. 1000, and the 

Florida transmission providers submitted initial compliance filings with FERC in October 2012. On three occasions, FERC 

partially accepted and partially rejected the transmission providers’ compliance filings, and directed them to refile.  The 

Florida utilities’ response to Order No. 1000 was approved by FERC in August 2015, and the process has since been 

implemented by FRCC.  To date, the Order No. 1000 process has not resulted in any negative consequences to FMPA or 

the Participants. 

Page 145 of 473



 

 - 39 - 

Fresh Water Supplies 

Unprecedented increases in demand for fresh water supply in Florida has had an effect on the electric utility 

industry, as the regulating agencies develop programs and activities to address local and regional water resource planning. 

Electric generators will continue to be required to consider utilization of more expensive alternative sources of water and 

to limit consumptive use of the state’s water resources. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION 

FMPA’s electric utility operations are subject to extensive environmental regulation. Federal, state, regional and 

local standards and procedures regulate the environmental impact of FMPA’s projects and facilities.  These regulations are 

complex and constantly changing.  Consequently, there is no assurance that FMPA’s operations will remain subject to the 

regulations currently in effect, will always be in compliance with future regulations or will always be able to obtain all 

required operating permits. Compliance with environmental standards is expensive, and difficulties in complying with 

environmental regulations and permits or changing requirements can increase FMPA’s costs of construction, maintenance, 

refurbishment and operation.  The failure to comply or to invest adequately to maintain compliance can result in the 

curtailment or complete shutdown of individual electric generating units and/or in the imposition of civil and/or criminal 

penalties. FMPA cannot predict whether future changes to existing legislation, regulations or permits will be enacted or 

promulgated in a form that will affect FMPA’s operations, or the costs that might be incurred if such changes are enacted 

or promulgated. 

Air Pollution Prevention and Control 

FMPA’s operations are subject to a wide range of regulations governing emissions of air pollutants and pollution 

control requirements.  In addition to regulating conventional contaminants, such as nitrogen oxides (“NOX”), sulfur dioxide 

(“SO2”), ozone, and fine particulate matter (“PM2.5”), existing state and federal regulations impose permitting and pollution 

control requirements to assess and reduce emissions of carbon dioxide (“CO2”), in connection with the construction of new, 

major stationary sources or significant modifications of such sources.  In addition, various programs impose new regulation 

upon existing major stationary sources, including fossil fuel-fired electricity generating units. 

New Source Review.  EPA and states regularly pursue New Source Review (“NSR”) enforcement actions for 

certain modifications made in the past to air emission units without prior approval under NSR requirements. Additionally, 

private citizens can bring citizen lawsuits to enforce NSR requirements. If modifications conducted at facilities in the past 

were, or in the future are, significant modifications made without NSR, such modifications may result in enforcement action 

or citizen suits; including possible enforcement for routine maintenance, repair and replacement events that may trigger 

NSR.  FMPA and OUC evaluate facility modifications on a regular basis for potential regulatory impacts, including NSR.  

There are no current plans for modifications that would require NSR review.  FMPA and OUC have not received any notice 

of any activity or communication from EPA, the state, or private citizens regarding NSR violations at Project facilities. 

Acid Rain Program. EPA’s acid rain program requires nationwide reductions of SO2 and NOX emissions from 

electric utility generating units by allocating emission allowances to power plants based on historical or calculated levels. 

Both SO2 and NOX emissions were “capped,” and allowances were allocated at levels that declined over time to reduce 

overall emissions.  New and existing FMPA facilities must operate in compliance with these requirements.  FMPA has 

budgeted for such compliance activities and does not anticipate any unexpected acid rain program compliance issues or 

costs. 

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule. EPA’s updated modeling under the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (“CSAPR”), 

based on 2008 and 2015 ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards (“NAAQS”), indicates that the state of Florida does 

not contribute significantly to ozone air quality problems in downwind states.  As a result, the state of Florida has been 

removed from the CSAPR program, effective May 1, 2017.  If CSAPR is reinstated in Florida on a future date as a result 

of updated modeling, FMPA and OUC will operate in accordance with the updated rule. 

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards. In 2012, EPA finalized a rule, called the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards 

(“MATS”), to reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants, including mercury, from electric generating facilities, and 

subsequently amended the rule in 2013 and 2014.  The MATS set technology-based emission limitation standards for 

mercury and other toxic air pollutants, reflecting levels achieved by the best performing coal- and oil-fired electric 

generating units currently in operation.  The final rule set standards for all hazardous air pollutants emitted by coal- and oil-

fired electric generating units with a capacity of 25 megawatts or greater.   

Page 146 of 473



 

 - 40 - 

In June 2015, the U.S. Supreme Court determined that EPA’s rule did not properly consider costs in developing 

the MATS and directed EPA to address costs.  In response to the Supreme Court’s decision, on April 14, 2016, EPA issued 

a cost consideration and a final finding that it is appropriate and necessary to set standards for emissions of air toxics from 

coal-and oil-fired power plants. EPA’s final finding has been challenged in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of 

Columbia.  The Court of Appeals suspended proceedings in that challenge following an EPA request to delay the 

proceedings in light of the change in Administration.  In February 2019, EPA proposed revisions to its appropriate and 

necessary finding. EPA is expected to finalize a revised appropriate and necessary finding in November 2019. 

The MATS rule, despite the pending legal proceedings, is still in effect as finalized, and applies to Stanton Units 

1 and 2, which are currently in compliance with requirements for all pollutants under MATS.   

Ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards. On October 26, 2015, EPA published final rules establishing 

NAAQS for ground level ozone, strengthening the primary and secondary standards from 75 ppb to 70 ppb.  EPA also 

finalized the extended ozone season in Florida, to a twelve-month, or annual, season.  On November 16, 2017, EPA 

published the final rule designating 61 of Florida’s 67 counties as attainment/unclassifiable. On June 4, 2018, EPA published 

designations for the remaining six counties, designating all as attainment/unclassifiable, with the exception of Duval 

County.  On August 18, 2019, EPA proposed re-designation of Duval County to attainment/unclassifiable.  FMPA’s 

facilities are all located within attainment areas and are not impacted by the unclassifiable designation of Duval County.  

Current data provided by FDEP indicates that all areas of Florida will be in attainment with the revised standards. 

EPA Regulatory Actions for Power Plants 

On October 23, 2015, EPA published final performance standards for carbon emissions from new, modified and 

reconstructed electric generating units, establishing standards of performance for CO2 emissions from these units.  Since 

FMPA has no immediate plans to develop, modify or reconstruct any units, this rule is not currently applicable to FMPA.  

On the same date, EPA issued final guidelines for Existing Power Plants, called the Clean Power Plan (“CPP”), which 

requires states to regulate CO2 emissions from existing fossil fuel-fired power plants.  

On February 9, 2016 the United States Supreme Court in a 5-4 decision blocked implementation of CPP pending 

a court challenge by 29 states, various corporations and industry groups. 

On March 28, 2017, President Trump issued a broad Executive Order addressing United States climate change 

policy, directing EPA to immediately review the CPP and the performance standards for new, modified and reconstructed 

units.  On the same date, EPA asked the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit to hold in abeyance the challenges to 

the CPP and new unit standards while EPA works to repeal and replace the rule. On July 8, 2019, EPA issued a final rule 

that would repeal the CPP and also finalized the Affordable Clean Energy (“ACE”) rule to replace the CPP, and the rule 

became effective on September 6, 2019. The ACE rule requires efficiency improvements for some coal-fired power plants.  

The rule is expected to be challenged. 

Due to the pending legal challenges and rulemaking proceedings initiated by EPA, it is unclear when, if at all, 

regulation of CO2 emissions from existing units may become effective.  FMPA continues to actively monitor these activities 

and will participate in such proceedings as necessary.  FMPA remains well-positioned for compliance with CO2-related 

emissions regulation, due to high reliance on Natural Gas Combined Cycle (“NGCC”) generation. The impact to FMPA 

and operations will depend on the development and implementation of applicable regulations and available technologies 

and cannot be determined at this time. 

Waste Management 

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”). CERCLA requires 

cleanup of sites from which there has been a release or threatened release of hazardous substances and authorizes the EPA 

to take any necessary response action at the locations of such releases. The operation of coal-based generating facilities 

produces coal ash and other wastes, which, if released on-site or disposed of inappropriately off-site, may result in liability 

for removal and cleanup, or the payment of damages. 

Coal Ash. Coal-based generating facilities produce coal ash waste that requires disposal. In most cases, coal ash is 

disposed of in on-site landfills that require industrial solid waste permits, and the facility is responsible for the proper 

maintenance and monitoring of the landfill. On April 17, 2015, EPA published a final rule regulating the disposal of coal 

ash under subtitle D of RCRA.  In July 2018, EPA finalized revisions to the CCR rule, but some of the revisions were 

remanded by the D.C. Circuit in August 2018. In July 2019, EPA proposed additional revisions to the CCR rule. Due to the 

Page 147 of 473



 

 - 41 - 

rulemaking proceedings initiated by EPA and potential legal challenges, some of the requirements of the CCR rule could 

change over time. The coal ash rule currently in effect requires OUC to ensure structural integrity of existing landfills, 

follow certain operating criteria, and install groundwater monitoring wells, and may also require the investigation and 

monitoring of releases from landfills.  These requirements apply to the Stanton Units.  OUC has evaluated the impact of the 

CCR Rule and has developed a compliance strategy and does not expect that its costs for compliance with the CCR Rule 

will be material.  

Additional Environmental Issues 

Cooling Water. EPA published Rule 316(b) for cooling water intake on August 15, 2014, and the rule became 

effective on October 14, 2014.  Section 316(b) of the Clean Water Act requires EPA to issue regulations on the design and 

operation of cooling water intake structures in order to minimize adverse environmental impacts.  The rule is applicable to 

sites subject to permitting requirements under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) that 

withdraw cooling water from waters of the U.S. and have design intake flows greater than 2 MGD.  The rule requires that 

the location, design, construction, and capacity of cooling water intake structures reflect the best technology available for 

minimizing adverse environmental impacts. 

The Section 316(b) rule applies to St. Lucie Unit No. 2.  FPL will be upgrading the plant intake velocity caps at 

St. Lucie, if required, to address the impingement provisions of the rule.  In addition, FPL will also perform extensive 

studies over the next several years to determine the extent of environmental impacts associated with the entrainment 

provisions of the rule.  When the studies are completed, FPL, in conjunction with FDEP, will determine if any further 

compliance upgrades are warranted. 

Effluent Guidelines. On November 3, 2015, EPA finalized a rule setting technology-based limits on the levels of 

toxic metals in wastewater discharge from power plants. The Effluent Limitations Guidelines and Standards (“ELGs”) 

require that electric generating units adopt new control technologies, process changes, and internal controls to reduce toxic 

metals in wastewater. The ELGs were scheduled to be implemented starting in 2018; however, EPA finalized a rule in 

September 2017 that delayed implementation of the ELGs until 2020. In April 2019, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth 

Circuit remanded portions of the 2015 ELGs because it determined that some of the standards were not sufficiently stringent. 

EPA also has stated that it intends to propose revisions to the 2015 ELG rule by December 2019. Due to the pending legal 

challenges and rulemaking proceedings initiated by EPA, it is unclear what the ELGs may require and when the ELGs will 

may become effective. 

Litigation. Many of the issues raised by existing and proposed environmental regulations are the subject of frequent 

and pending litigation.  Such litigation challenges the implementation of new rules, and can challenge the application of 

existing rules to specific situations or facilities.  This litigation does not currently affect FMPA directly, but could have 

future effects upon permit requirements applicable to FMPA projects and indirectly upon project costs and operations. 

Changing Legislation. Environmental requirements are driven by state and federal legislation. Such legislation can 

radically change the regulatory context in which FMPA operates, and can require increased capital or operating 

expenditures, or reduced operations, at existing and/or new generating facilities.  Any such legislative changes are inherently 

impossible to predict with any certainty, particularly in the way they might apply to specific organizations or facilities, such 

as FMPA and its facilities.  FMPA, through its lobbyists and participation in state and national advocacy groups, maintains 

awareness of legislative issues that may impact operations, participating in advocacy roles as warranted. 

Page 148 of 473



 

 - 42 - 

UNDERWRITING 

Barclays Capital Inc. is acting as the representative on behalf of itself and BofA Securities, Inc. (collectively, the 

“Underwriters”). The Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all, but not less than all, of the 

Series 2019A Bonds from FMPA at a purchase price of $________, representing the principal amount of the Series 2019A 

Bonds plus original issue premium of $________ and less an underwriting discount of $________.  The Underwriters have 

agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all, but not less than all, of the Series 2019B Bonds from FMPA at a 

purchase price of $________, representing the principal amount of the Series 2019B Bonds less an underwriting discount 

of $________.  The Offered Securities may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing the Offered 

Securities into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than such public offering price and such public offering price 

may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters. 

BofA Securities, Inc., an underwriter of the Offered Securities, has entered into a distribution agreement with its 

affiliate Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (“MLPF&S”).  As part of this arrangement, BofA Securities, 

Inc. may distribute securities to MLPF&S, which may in turn distribute such securities to investors through the financial 

advisor network of MLPF&S.  As part of this arrangement, BofA Securities, Inc. may compensate MLPF&S as a dealer for 

their selling efforts with respect to the Offered Securities. 

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, 

which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, finance advisory, investment management, 

principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the Underwriters and their respective affiliates 

have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various investment banking services for the Agency for 

which they have received or will receive customary fees and expenses. 

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Underwriters and their respective affiliates may make 

or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and 

financial instruments (which may include bank loans and/or credit default swaps) for their own account and for the accounts 

of their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment 

and securities activities may involve securities and instruments of the Agency. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Dunlap & Associates, Inc., Orlando, Florida, is FMPA’s financial advisor for the Offered Securities. The financial 

advisor has provided FMPA advice on the plan of financing and reviewed the pricing of the Offered Securities. The financial 

advisor has not independently verified the information contained in this Official Statement and does not assume 

responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of such information. The financial advisor’s fees for serving as 

financial advisor are not contingent upon the issuance of the Offered Securities. 

FMPA has retained the firms of Dunlap & Associates, Inc. and PFM Financial Advisors LLC as its municipal 

advisors. FMPA is represented by and will rely on Dunlap & Associates, Inc. and PFM Financial Advisors LLC, as 

managing financial advisor and co-financial advisor respectively, to provide advice on proposals from financial services 

firms concerning the issuance of municipal securities and municipal financial products, including investments of bond 

proceeds and escrow investments. PFM Financial Advisors LLC is not acting as a financial advisor for the Offered 

Securities. 

LITIGATION 

No litigation is pending or, to the knowledge of FMPA, threatened in any court to restrain or enjoin the issuance 

of any of the Offered Securities or the collection of revenues pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest 

on the Offered Securities, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Offered Securities or the Resolution or 

the power to collect and pledge revenues to pay the Offered Securities. 

FMPA received notice pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, of an intent to file suit against FMPA for 

property contamination and related damages relating to FMPA’s interests as a co-owner of the Stanton Energy Center. For 

additional information, see paragraph F of Note XVI to the audited financial statements included in FMPA’s Annual Audit 

Report for its fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. See APPENDIX C – “FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR ITS 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018.” 

ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES 

Page 149 of 473



 

 - 43 - 

The remedies available to the Trustee or owners of the Offered Securities upon an event of default under the 

Resolution are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under 

existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, including specifically Title 11 of the United States Code, 

the remedies specified by the federal bankruptcy code, the Resolution and the Offered Securities may not be readily 

available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Offered 

Securities (including Bond Counsel’s approving opinion) are qualified, as to the enforceability of the various legal 

instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of 

creditors enacted before or after such delivery. 

CREDIT RATINGS 

Offered Securities 

The Offered Securities are rated “[__]” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and “[__]” by Fitch 

Ratings (“Fitch”). 

General 

The respective ratings by Fitch and Moody’s of the Offered Securities reflect only the views of such organizations 

and any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings or other statements given by the rating agencies with respect 

thereto should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same, at the following addresses: Fitch, Inc., 33 Whitehall 

Street, New York, New York 10004 and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, 

New York, New York 10007. FMPA has furnished to each rating agency rating the Offered Securities information, including 

information not included in this Official Statement, about FMPA and the Offered Securities. Generally, a rating agency 

bases its rating and outlook on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions 

of its own. There is no assurance such ratings for the Offered Securities will continue for any given period of time or that 

any of such ratings will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by any of the rating agencies, if, in the judgment of 

such rating agency or agencies, circumstances so warrant. Those circumstances may include, among other things, changes 

in or unavailability of information relating to FMPA or the Offered Securities. Any such downward revision or withdrawal 

of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Offered Securities. 

TAX MATTERS 

The Series 2019A Bonds 

Federal Income Taxes 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), imposes certain requirements that must be met 

subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2019A Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded from 

gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest on the Series 

2019A Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue of the Series 

2019A Bonds. Pursuant to the Resolution and the Tax Certificate executed in connection with the delivery of the Series 

2019A Bonds, FMPA has covenanted to comply with the applicable requirements of the Code in order to maintain the 

exclusion of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 

103 of the Code. In addition, FMPA has made certain representations and certifications in the Resolution and the Tax 

Certificate. Bond Counsel will not independently verify the accuracy of those representations and certifications. 

In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the 

aforementioned covenant, and the accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by FMPA described above, 

interest on the Series 2019A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of 

the Code.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is not treated as a preference item in calculating the 

alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code. 

Original Issue Discount 

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that the excess of the principal amount of a maturity of the Series 2019A 

Bonds over the price at which price a substantial amount of such maturity of the Series 2019A Bonds was sold to the public 

(excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) 

(each, a “Discount Bond” and collectively the “Discount Bonds”) constitutes original issue discount which is excluded from 

Page 150 of 473



 

 - 44 - 

gross income for federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the Series 2019A Bonds. Further, such 

original issue discount accrues actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Discount Bond and the 

basis of each Discount Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the 

amount of such accrued original issue discount.  The accrual of original issue discount may be taken into account as an 

increase in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning the 

Discount Bonds, even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment.  Owners of the Discount Bonds are advised 

that they should consult with their own advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning such Discount 

Bonds. 

Original Issue Premium 

Series 2019A Bonds sold at prices in excess of their principal amounts are “Premium Bonds”.  An initial purchaser 

with an initial adjusted basis in a Premium Bond in excess of its principal amount will have amortizable bond premium 

which is not deductible from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The amount of amortizable bond premium for 

a taxable year is determined actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Premium Bond based on the 

purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of Premium Bonds callable prior to their maturity, over the period to the call  

date, based on the purchaser’s yield to the call date and giving effect to any call premium).  For purposes of determining 

gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of a Premium Bond, an initial purchaser who acquires such obligation with an 

amortizable bond premium is required to decrease such purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by the 

amount of amortizable bond premium for the taxable year.  The amortization of bond premium may be taken into account 

as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning 

such Series 2019A Bonds.  Owners of the Premium Bonds are advised that they should consult with their own advisors with 

respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds. 

Ancillary Tax Matters 

Ownership of the Series 2019A Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, 

without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations with branches in the United States, property and casualty 

insurance companies, individuals receiving Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals seeking to claim 

the earned income credit, and taxpayers (including banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions) who may be 

deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or to carry the Series 2019A Bonds. 

Interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the Series 2019A Bonds is subject to information reporting to the 

Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) in a manner similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. In addition, interest on the 

Series 2019A Bonds may be subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to a registered owner that (a) fails to 

provide certain identifying information (such as the registered owner’s taxpayer identification number) in the manner 

required by the IRS, or (b) has been identified by the IRS as being subject to backup withholding. 

Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion as to any Federal tax matters other than those opinions attached as 

Appendix E. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules described above, are advised to 

consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Series 2019A Bonds, 

as well as any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state or other taxing jurisdiction. 

Changes in Law and Post Issuance Events 

Legislative or administrative actions and court decisions, at either the federal or state level, could have an adverse 

impact on the potential benefits of the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds for Federal 

or state income tax purposes, and thus on the value or marketability of the Series 2019A Bonds. This could result from 

changes to Federal or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of Federal or state income taxes (including replacement 

with another type of tax), repeal of the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds from gross income for Federal 

or state income tax purposes, or otherwise.  It is not possible to predict whether any legislative or administrative actions or 

court decisions having an adverse impact on the Federal or state income tax treatment of holders of the Series 2019A Bonds 

may occur.  Prospective purchasers of the Series 2019A Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the impact 

of any change in law on the Series 2019A Bonds. 

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance and delivery 

of the Series 2019A Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Series 2019A Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no 

opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, or the interest thereon, 

Page 151 of 473



 

 - 45 - 

if any action is taken with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds or the proceeds thereof upon the advice or approval of other 

counsel. 

The Series 2019B Bonds 

The following is a summary of certain anticipated United States federal income tax consequences of the purchase, 

ownership and disposition of the Series 2019B Bonds.  The summary is based upon the provisions of the Code, the Treasury 

Regulations promulgated thereunder and the judicial and administrative rulings and decisions now in effect, all of which 

are subject to change.  Such authorities may be repealed, revoked, or modified, possibly with retroactive effect, so as to 

result in United States federal income tax consequences different from those described below.  The summary generally 

addresses Series 2019B Bonds held as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code and does not purport 

to address all aspects of federal income taxation that may affect particular investors in light of their individual circumstances 

or certain types of investors subject to special treatment under the federal income tax laws, including but not limited to 

financial institutions, insurance companies, dealers in securities or currencies, persons holding such Series 2019B Bonds as 

a hedge against currency risks or as a position in a “straddle,” “hedge,” “constructive sale transaction” or “conversion 

transaction” for tax purposes, or persons whose functional currency is not the United States dollar.  It also does not deal 

with holders other than original purchasers that acquire Series 2019B Bonds at their initial issue price except where 

otherwise specifically noted.  Potential purchasers of the Series 2019B Bonds should consult their own tax advisors in 

determining the federal, state or, local, foreign and other tax consequences to them of the purchase, holding and disposition 

of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

FMPA has not sought and will not seek any rulings from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to any matter 

discussed herein.  No assurance can be given that the Internal Revenue Service would not assert, or that a court would not 

sustain, a position contrary to any of the tax characterizations and tax consequences set forth below. 

U.S. Holders 

As used herein, the term “U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of Series 2019B Bonds that is (a) an individual 

citizen or resident of the United States for federal income tax purposes, (b) a corporation, including an entity treated as a 

corporation for federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any State 

thereof (including the District of Columbia), (c) an estate whose income is subject to federal income taxation regardless of 

its source, or (d) a trust if a court within the United States can exercise primary supervision over the administration of the 

trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.  Notwithstanding clause 

(d) of the preceding sentence, to the extent provided in Treasury regulations, certain trusts in existence on August 20, 1996, 

and treated as United States persons prior to that date that elect to continue to be treated as United States persons also will 

be U.S. Holders.  In addition, if a partnership (or other entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for federal income tax 

purposes) holds Series 2019B Bonds, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership generally will depend upon the status 

of the partner and the activities of the partnership.  If a U.S. Holder is a partner in a partnership (or other entity or 

arrangement treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes) that holds Series 2019B Bonds, the U.S. Holder is 

urged to consult its own tax advisor regarding the specific tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and dispositions of 

Series 2019B Bonds. 

Generally 

Interest on the Series 2019B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Code 

section 103 and so will be fully subject to federal income taxation.  Purchasers (other than those who purchase Series 2019B 

Bonds in the initial offering at their principal amounts) will be subject to federal income tax accounting rules affecting the 

timing and/or characterization of payments received with respect to such Series 2019B Bonds.  In general, interest paid on 

the Series 2019B Bonds and recovery of any accrued original issue discount and market discount will be treated as ordinary 

income to a Bondholder, and after adjustment for the foregoing, principal payments will be treated as a return of capital to 

the extent of the U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Series 2019B Bonds and capital gain to the extent of any excess 

received over such basis. 

Original Issue Discount 

The following summary is a general discussion of certain federal income tax consequences of the purchase, 

ownership and disposition of Series 2019B Bonds issued with original issue discount (“Discount Series 2019B Bonds”).  A 

Series 2019B Bond will be treated as having been issued at an original issue discount if the excess of its “stated redemption 

price at maturity” (defined below) over its issue price (defined as the initial offering price to the public at which a substantial 

Page 152 of 473



 

 - 46 - 

amount of the Series 2019B Bonds of the same maturity have first been sold to the public, excluding bond houses and 

brokers) equals or exceeds one quarter of one percent of such Series 2019B Bond’s stated redemption price at maturity 

multiplied by the number of complete years to its maturity (or, in the case of an installment obligation, its weighted average 

maturity). 

A Discount Series 2019B Bond’s “stated redemption price at maturity” is the total of all payments provided by the 

Discount Series 2019B Bond that are not payments of “qualified stated interest.” Generally, the term “qualified stated 

interest” includes stated interest that is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt instruments of the issuer) 

at least annually at a single fixed rate or certain floating rates. 

In general, the amount of original issue discount includible in income by the initial holder of a Discount Series 

2019B Bond is the sum of the “daily portions” of original issue discount with respect to such Discount Series 2019B Bond 

for each day during the taxable year in which such holder held such Discount Series 2019B Bond.  The daily portion of 

original issue discount on any Discount Series 2019B Bond is determined by allocating to each day in any “accrual period” 

a ratable portion of the original issue discount allocable to that accrual period. 

An accrual period may be of any length, and may vary in length over the term of a Discount Series 2019B Bond, 

provided that each accrual period is not longer than one year and each scheduled payment of principal or interest occurs at 

the end of an accrual period.  The amount of original issue discount allocable to each accrual period is equal to the difference 

between (i) the product of the Discount Series 2019B Bond’s adjusted issue price at the beginning of such accrual period 

and its yield to maturity (determined on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and appropriately 

adjusted to take into account the length of the particular accrual period) and (ii) the amount of any qualified stated interest 

payments allocable to such accrual period.  The “adjusted issue price” of a Discount Series 2019B Bond at the beginning 

of any accrual period is the sum of the issue price of the Discount Series 2019B Bond plus the amount of original issue 

discount allocable to all prior accrual periods minus the amount of any prior payments on the Discount Series 2019B Bond 

that were not qualified stated interest payments.  Under these rules, holders generally will have to include in income 

increasingly greater amounts of original issue discount in successive accrual periods. 

Holders utilizing the accrual method of accounting may generally, upon election, include in gross income all 

interest (including stated interest, acquisition discount, original issue discount, de minimis original issue discount, market 

discount, de minimis market discount, and unstated interest, as adjusted by any amortizable bond premium or acquisition 

premium) on the Discount Series 2019B Bond by using the constant yield method applicable to original issue discount, 

subject to certain limitations and exceptions. 

Market Discount 

Any owner who purchases a Series 2019B Bond at a price which includes market discount (i.e., at a purchase price 

that is less than its adjusted issue price in the hands of an original owner) in excess of a prescribed de minimis amount will 

be required to recharacterize all or a portion of the gain as ordinary income upon receipt of each scheduled or unscheduled 

principal payment or upon other disposition.  In particular, such owner will generally be required either (a) to allocate each 

such principal payment to accrued market discount not previously included in income and to recognize ordinary income to 

that extent and to treat any gain upon sale or other disposition of such a Series 2019B Bond as ordinary income to the extent 

of any remaining accrued market discount or (b) to elect to include such market discount in income currently as it accrues 

on all market discount instruments acquired by such owner on or after the first day of the taxable year to which such election 

applies. 

The Code authorizes the Treasury Department to issue regulations providing for the method for accruing market 

discount on debt instruments the principal of which is payable in more than one installment.  Until such time as regulations 

are issued by the Treasury Department, certain rules described in the legislative history of the Tax Reform Act of 1986 will 

apply.  Under those rules, market discount will be included in income either (a) on a constant interest basis or (b) in 

proportion to the accrual of stated interest. 

An owner of a Series 2019B Bond who acquires such Series 2019B Bond at a market discount also may be required 

to defer, until the maturity date of such Series 2019B Bonds or the earlier disposition in a taxable transaction, the deduction 

of a portion of the amount of interest that the owner paid or accrued during the taxable year on indebtedness incurred or 

maintained to purchase or carry a Series 2019B Bond in excess of the aggregate amount of interest (including original issue 

discount) includable in such owner’s gross income for the taxable year with respect to such Series 2019B Bond.  The amount 

of such net interest expense deferred in a taxable year may not exceed the amount of market discount accrued on the Series 

2019B Bond for the days during the taxable year on which the owner held the Series 2019B Bond and, in general, would 

Page 153 of 473



 

 - 47 - 

be deductible when such market discount is includable in income.  The amount of any remaining deferred deduction is to 

be taken into account in the taxable year in which the Series 2019B Bond matures or is disposed of in a taxable transaction.  

In the case of a disposition in which gain or loss is not recognized in whole or in part, any remaining deferred deduction 

will be allowed to the extent gain is recognized on the disposition.  This deferral rule does not apply if the Bondholder elects 

to include such market discount in income currently as described above. 

Bond Premium 

A holder of a Series 2019B Bond who purchases such Series 2019B Bond at a cost greater than its remaining 

redemption amount will have amortizable bond premium.  If the holder elects to amortize this premium under Section 171 

of the Code (which election will apply to all Series 2019B Bonds held by the holder on the first day of the taxable year to 

which the election applies and to all Series 2019B Bonds thereafter acquired by the holder), such a holder must amortize 

the premium using constant yield principles based on the holder’s yield to maturity.  Amortizable bond premium is generally 

treated as an offset to interest income, and a reduction in basis is required for amortizable bond premium that is applied to 

reduce interest payments.  Holders of any Series 2019B Bonds who acquire such Series 2019B Bonds at a premium should 

consult with their own tax advisors with respect to state and local tax consequences of owning such Series 2019B Bonds. 

Surtax on Unearned Income 

Recently enacted legislation generally imposes a tax of 3.8% on the “net investment income” of certain individuals, 

trusts and estates for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012.  Among other items, net investment income generally 

includes gross income from interest and net gain attributable to the disposition of certain property, less certain deductions.  

U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the possible implications of this legislation in their particular 

circumstances. 

Sale or Redemption of Series 2019B Bonds 

A Bondholder’s adjusted tax basis for a Series 2019B Bond is the price such owner pays for the Series 2019B 

Bond plus the amount of original issue discount and market discount previously included in income and reduced on account 

of any payments received on such Series 2019B Bond other than “qualified stated interest” and any amortized bond 

premium.  Gain or loss recognized on a sale, exchange or redemption of a Series 2019B Bond, measured by the difference 

between the amount realized and the Bondholder’s tax basis as so adjusted, will generally give rise to capital gain or loss if 

the Series 2019B Bond is held as a capital asset (except in the case of Series 2019B Bonds acquired at a market discount, 

in which case a portion of the gain will be characterized as interest and therefore ordinary income). 

If the terms of the Series 2019B Bonds are materially modified, in certain circumstances, a new debt obligation 

would be deemed created and exchanged for the prior obligation in a taxable transaction.  Among the modifications which 

may be treated as material are those which related to the redemption provisions and, in the case of a nonrecourse obligation, 

those which involve the substitution of collateral.  The defeasance of the Series 2019B Bonds may also result in a deemed 

sale or exchange of such Series 2019B Bonds under certain circumstances. 

EACH POTENTIAL HOLDER OF SERIES 2019B BONDS SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR 

CONCERNING (1) THE TREATMENT OF GAIN OR LOSS ON SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SERIES 2019B 

BONDS, AND (2) THE CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH SERIES 2019B BONDS WOULD BE DEEMED REISSUED 

AND THE LIKELY EFFECTS, IF ANY, OF SUCH REISSUANCE.  

Backup Withholding 

For each calendar year in which the Series 2019B Bonds are outstanding, FMPA, its agents or paying agents or a 

broker is required to provide the IRS with certain information, including a holder’s name, address and taxpayer identification 

number (either the holder’s Social Security number or its employer identification number, as the case may be), the aggregate 

amount of principal and interest paid to that holder during the calendar year and the amount of tax withheld, if any.  This 

obligation, however, does not apply with respect to certain U.S. Holders, including corporations, tax-exempt organizations, 

qualified pension and profit sharing trusts, and individual retirement accounts and annuities. 

If a U.S. Holder subject to the reporting requirements described above fails to supply its correct taxpayer 

identification number in the manner required by applicable law or under-reports its tax liability, FMPA, its agents or paying 

agents or a broker may be required to make “backup” withholding of tax on each payment of interest or principal on the 

Page 154 of 473



 

 - 48 - 

Series 2019B Bonds.  This backup withholding is not an additional tax and may be credited against the U.S. Holder’s federal 

income tax liability, provided that the U.S. Holder furnishes the required information to the IRS. 

Under current Treasury Regulations, backup withholding and information reporting will not apply to payments of 

interest made by FMPA, its agents (in their capacity as such) or paying agents or a broker to a Non-U.S. Holder if such 

holder has provided the required certification that it is not a U.S. person (as set forth in the second paragraph under “—Non-

U.S. Holders” above), or has otherwise established an exemption (provided that neither FMPA nor its agent has actual 

knowledge that the holder is a U.S. person or that the conditions of an exemption are not in fact satisfied). 

Payments of the proceeds from the sale of a Series 2019B Bond to or through a foreign office of a broker generally 

will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding.  However, information reporting (but not backup 

withholding) may apply to those payments if the broker is one of the following: 

 a U.S. person; 

 a controlled foreign corporation for U.S. tax purposes; 

 a foreign person 50-percent or more of whose gross income from all sources for the three-year period ending 

with the close of its taxable year preceding the payment was effectively connected with a United States trade 

or business; or 

 a foreign partnership with certain connections to the United States. 

Payment of the proceeds from a sale of a Series 2019B Bond to or through the United States office of a broker is 

subject to information reporting and backup withholding unless the holder or beneficial owner certifies as to its taxpayer 

identification number or otherwise establishes an exemption from information reporting and backup withholding. 

The preceding federal income tax discussion is included for general information only and may not be applicable 

depending upon a holder’s particular situation.  Holders should consult their tax advisors with respect to the tax 

consequences to them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2019B Bonds, including the tax consequences 

under federal, state, local, foreign and other tax laws and the possible effects of changes in those tax laws. 

Nonresident Bondowners 

The following is a general discussion of certain United States federal income tax consequences resulting from the 

beneficial ownership of Series 2019B Bonds by a person other than a U.S. Holder, a former United States citizen or resident, 

or a partnership or entity treated as a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes (a “Non-U.S. Holder”). 

Subject to the discussion of backup withholding and the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA”), 

payments of principal by FMPA or any of its agents (acting in its capacity as agent) to any Non-U.S. Holder will not be 

subject to federal withholding tax.  In the case of payments of interest to any Non-U.S. Holder, however, federal withholding 

tax will apply unless the Non-U.S. Holder (1) does not own (actually or constructively) 10-percent or more of the voting 

equity interests of FMPA, (2) is not a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes that is related to FMPA 

(directly or indirectly) through stock ownership, and (3) is not a bank receiving interest in the manner described in Section 

881(c)(3)(A) of the Code.  In addition, either (1) the Non-U.S. Holder must certify on the applicable IRS Form W-8 (series) 

(or successor form) to FMPA, its agents or paying agents or a broker under penalties of perjury that it is not a U.S. person 

and must provide its name and address, or (2) a securities clearing organization, bank or other financial institution, that 

holds customers’ securities in the ordinary course of its trade or business and that also holds the Series 2019B Bonds must 

certify to FMPA or its agent under penalties of perjury that such statement on the applicable IRS Form W-8 (series) (or 

successor form) has been received from the Non-U.S. Holder by it or by another financial institution and must furnish the 

interest payor with a copy. 

Interest payments may also be exempt from federal withholding tax depending on the terms of an existing Federal 

Income Tax Treaty, if any, in force between the U.S. and the resident country of the Non-U.S. Holder. The U.S. has entered 

into an income tax treaty with a limited number of countries. In addition, the terms of each treaty differ in their treatment 

of interest and original issue discount payments. Non-U.S. Holders are urged to consult their own tax advisor regarding the 

specific tax consequences of the receipt of interest payments, including original issue discount.  A Non-U.S. Holder that 

does not qualify for exemption from withholding as described above must provide FMPA or its agent with documentation 

Page 155 of 473



 

 - 49 - 

as to his, her, or its identity to avoid the U.S. backup withholding tax on the amount allocable to a Non-U.S. Holder.  The 

documentation may require that the Non-U.S. Holder provide a U.S. tax identification number. 

If a Non-U.S. Holder is engaged in a trade or business in the United States and interest on a Series 2019B Bond 

held by such holder is effectively connected with the conduct of such trade or business, the Non-U.S. Holder, although 

exempt from the withholding tax discussed above (provided that such holder timely furnishes the required certification to 

claim such exemption), may be subject to United States federal income tax on such interest in the same manner as if it were 

a U.S. Holder.  In addition, if the Non-U.S. Holder is a foreign corporation, it may be subject to a branch profits tax equal 

to 30% (subject to a reduced rate under an applicable treaty) of its effectively connected earnings and profits for the taxable 

year, subject to certain adjustments.  For purposes of the branch profits tax, interest on a Series 2019B Bond will be included 

in the earnings and profits of the holder if the interest is effectively connected with the conduct by the holder of a trade or 

business in the United States.  Such a holder must provide the payor with a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI (or 

successor form) to claim an exemption from United States federal withholding tax. 

Generally, any capital gain realized on the sale, exchange, retirement or other disposition of a Series 2019B Bond 

by a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to United States federal income or withholding taxes if (1) the gain is not 

effectively connected with a United States trade or business of the Non-U.S. Holder, and (2) in the case of an individual, 

the Non-U.S. Holder is not present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of the sale, exchange, 

retirement or other disposition, and certain other conditions are met. 

For newly issued or reissued obligations, such as the Series 2019B Bonds, FATCA imposes U.S. withholding tax 

on interest payments and, for dispositions after December 31, 2018 (see IRS Notice 2015-66), gross proceeds of the sale of 

the Series 2019B Bonds paid to certain foreign financial institutions (which is broadly defined for this purpose to generally 

include non-U.S. investment funds) and certain other non-U.S. entities if certain disclosure and due diligence requirements 

related to U.S. accounts or ownership are not satisfied, unless an exemption applies.  An intergovernmental agreement 

between the United States and an applicable non-U.S. country may modify these requirements. In any event, Bondholders 

or beneficial owners of the Series 2019B Bonds shall have no recourse against FMPA, nor will FMPA be obligated to pay 

any additional amounts to “gross up” payments to such persons, as a result of any withholding or deduction for, or on 

account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or government charges with respect to payments in respect of 

the Series 2019B Bonds. 

Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the possible applicability of federal 

withholding and other taxes upon income realized in respect of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

ERISA 

The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), imposes certain fiduciary 

obligations and prohibited transaction restrictions on employee pension and welfare benefit plans subject to Title I of ERISA 

(“ERISA Plans”). Section 4975 of the Code imposes essentially the same prohibited transaction restrictions on tax-qualified 

retirement plans described in Section 401(a) and 403(a) of the Code, which are exempt from tax under Section 501(a) of 

the Code, other than governmental and church plans as defined herein (“Qualified Retirement Plans”), and on Individual 

Retirement Accounts (“IRAs”) described in Section 408(b) of the Code (collectively, “Tax-Favored Plans”). Certain 

employee benefit plans such as governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA), and, if no election has been 

made under Section 410(d) of the Code, church plans (as defined in Section 3(33) of ERISA), are not subject to ERISA 

requirements. Additionally, such governmental and non-electing church plans are not subject to the requirements of Section 

4975 of the Code. Accordingly, assets of such plans may be invested in the Series 2019B Bonds without regard to the 

ERISA and Code considerations described below, subject to the provisions of applicable federal and state law. 

In addition to the imposition of general fiduciary obligations, including those of investment prudence and 

diversification and the requirement that a plan’s investment be made in accordance with the documents governing the plan, 

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit a broad range of transactions involving assets of ERISA Plans 

and Tax-Favored Plans and entities whose underlying assets include plan assets by reason of ERISA Plans or Tax-Favored 

Plans investing in such entities (collectively, “Benefit Plans”) and persons who have certain specified relationships to the 

Benefit Plans (“Parties In Interest” or “Disqualified Persons”), unless a statutory or administrative exemption is available. 

The definitions of “Party in Interest” and “Disqualified Person” are expansive.  While other entities may be encompassed 

by these definitions, they include, most notably: (1) fiduciary with respect to a plan; (2) a person providing services to a 

plan; and (3) an employer or employee organization any of whose employees or members are covered by the plan.  Certain 

Parties in Interest (or Disqualified Persons) that participate in a prohibited transaction may be subject to a penalty (or an 

Page 156 of 473



 

 - 50 - 

excise tax) imposed pursuant to Section 502(i) of ERISA (or Section 4975 of the Code) unless a statutory or administrative 

exemption is available. 

Certain transactions involving the purchase, holding or transfer of the Series 2019B Bonds might be deemed to 

constitute prohibited transactions under ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code if assets of FMPA were deemed to be assets 

of a Benefit Plan.  Under final regulations issued by the United States Department of Labor (the “Plan Assets Regulation”), 

the assets of FMPA would be treated as plan assets of a Benefit Plan for the purposes of ERISA and Section 4975 of the 

Code only if the Benefit Plan acquires an “equity interest” in FMPA and none of the exceptions contained in the Plan Assets 

Regulation is applicable.  An equity interest is defined under the Plan Assets Regulation as an interest in an entity other 

than an instrument which is treated as indebtedness under applicable local law and which has no substantial equity features.  

Although there can be no assurances in this regard, it appears that the Series 2019B Bonds should be treated as debt without 

substantial equity features for purposes of the Plan Assets Regulation.  This determination is based upon the traditional debt 

features of the Series 2019B Bonds, including the reasonable expectation of purchasers of Series 2019B Bonds that the 

Series 2019B Bonds will be repaid when due, traditional default remedies, as well as the absence of conversion rights, 

warrants and other typical equity features.  The debt treatment of the Series 2019B Bonds for ERISA purposes could change 

subsequent to issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds.  In the event of a withdrawal or downgrade to below investment grade 

of the rating of the Series 2019B Bonds or a characterization of the Bonds as other than indebtedness under applicable local 

law, the subsequent purchase of the Series 2019B Bonds or any interest therein by a Benefit Plan Investor is prohibited. 

However without regard to whether the Series 2019B Bonds are treated as an equity interest for such purposes, 

though, the acquisition or holding of Series 2019B Bonds by or on behalf of a Benefit Plan could be considered to give rise 

to a prohibited transaction if FMPA or the Issuing and Paying Agent, or any of their respective affiliates, is or becomes a 

Party in Interest or a Disqualified Person with respect to such Benefit Plan. 

Most notably, ERISA and the Code generally prohibit the lending of money or other extension of credit between 

an ERISA Plan or Tax-Favored Plan and a Party in Interest or a Disqualified Person, and the acquisition of any of the Series 

2019B Bonds by a Benefit Plan would involve the lending of money or extension of credit by the Benefit Plan.  In such a 

case, however, certain exemptions from the prohibited transaction rules could be applicable depending on the type and 

circumstances of the plan fiduciary making the decision to acquire a Series 2019B Bond.  Included among these exemptions 

are: Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption (“PTCE”) 96-23, regarding transactions effected by certain “in-house asset 

managers”; PTCE 90-1, regarding investments by insurance company pooled separate accounts; PTCE 95-60, regarding 

transactions effected by “insurance company general accounts”; PTCE 91-38, regarding investments by bank collective 

investment funds; and PTCE 84-14, regarding transactions effected by “qualified professional asset managers.”  Further, 

the statutory exemption in Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code provides for an exemption 

for transactions involving “adequate consideration” with persons who are Parties in Interest or Disqualified Persons solely 

by reason of their (or their affiliate’s) status as a service provider to the Benefit Plan involved and none of whom is a 

fiduciary with respect to the Benefit Plan assets involved (or an affiliate of such a fiduciary).  There can be no assurance 

that any class or other exemption will be available with respect to any particular transaction involving the Series 2019B 

Bonds, or that, if available, the exemption would cover all possible prohibited transactions. 

By acquiring a Series 2019B Bond (or interest therein), each purchaser and transferee (and if the purchaser or 

transferee is a Plan, its fiduciary) is deemed to represent and warrant that either (i) it is not acquiring the Series 2019B Bond 

(or interest therein) with the assets of a Benefit Plan Investor, governmental plan or church plan; or (ii) the acquisition and 

holding of the Series 2019B Bond (or interest therein) will not give rise to a nonexempt prohibited transaction under Section 

406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code.  Benefit Plan Investors may not purchase the Series 2019B Bonds at any time 

that the ratings on the Series 2019B Bonds are below investment grade or the Series 2019B Bonds have been characterized 

as other than indebtedness for applicable local law purposes.  A purchaser or transferee who acquires Series 2019B Bonds 

with assets of a Benefit Plan Investor represents that such purchaser or transferee has considered the fiduciary requirements 

of ERISA or other similar laws and has consulted with counsel with regard to the purchase or transfer. 

Any ERISA Plan fiduciary considering whether to purchase the Series 2019B Bonds on behalf of an ERISA Plan 

should consult with its counsel regarding the applicability of the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction 

provisions of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code to such in investment and the availability of any of the exemptions 

referred to above. Persons responsible for investing the assets of Tax-Favored Plans that are not ERISA Plans should seek 

similar counsel with respect to the prohibited transaction provisions of the Code and the applicability of any similar state or 

federal law. 

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Page 157 of 473



 

 - 51 - 

The issuance of the Offered Securities is subject to the approving opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New 

York, Bond Counsel, in substantially the form set forth in APPENDIX E attached hereto. Certain legal matters will be 

passed on for FMPA by Jody L. Finklea, Esquire, its General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer, and for the Underwriters by 

their counsel, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, New York, New York. 

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG PARTIES 

A portion of the proceeds of the Offered Securities will be used to refund the Series 2008C Bonds and pay 

Termination Payments in connection with terminating the 2008C Swap Agreements. BofA Securities, Inc., one of the 

Underwriters of the Offered Securities, is an affiliate of Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc., Bank of America Corp. and 

Bank of America, N.A. Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. is a counterparty to a 2008C Swap Agreement which will be 

terminated and is expected to receive a Termination Payment in connection with the termination, and Bank of America 

Corp. provides a guaranty for the same 2008C Swap Agreement.  Bank of America, N.A. provides an irrevocable letter of 

credit securing payments of the principal of and interest on the Series 2008C Bonds, which will be canceled in connection 

with the redemption of the Series 2008C Bonds.   

VALIDATION 

Judicial validation was not required by law for the issuance of the Offered Securities, and the Offered Securities 

have not been validated.  

FMPA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FMPA’s Annual Audit Report for its fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, included in APPENDIX C to this 

Official Statement, has been audited by Purvis Gray & Company, independent certified accounts, as stated in the Annual 

Audit Report. The Annual Audit Report contains information (on both an individual and combining basis) about the Project 

and the Other Projects of FMPA. The revenues of each Other Project are not security for the obligations of the Project, and 

the revenues of the Project are not security for any Other Project. See “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.” 

Purvis Gray & Company, FMPA’s independent auditor has not reviewed, commented on or approved, and is not 

associated with, this Official Statement. The report of Purvis Gray & Company relating to the Annual Audit Report for the 

fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, which is a matter of public record, is included in this Official Statement, and Purvis 

Gray & Company has consented to the inclusion of such report in this Official Statement. However, Purvis Gray & Company 

has not performed any procedures on any financial statements or other financial information of FMPA, including without 

limitation any of the information contained in this Official Statement, since the date of such report. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE; ADDITIONAL FMPA INFORMATION 

Under the Resolution, Bondholders may, upon written request to FMPA, receive copies of FMPA’s annual audited 

financial statements. Bondholders also may inspect such materials during regular business hours at FMPA’s offices upon 

such reasonable terms and conditions as FMPA may from time to time determine in its sole discretion. Such materials are 

also available on FMPA’s website at https://fmpa.com/.  FMPA has committed to provide to Bondholders, upon request, 

copies of its annual audited financial statements, and other pertinent credit information, and has also committed to provide 

appropriate period credit information to the rating agencies which shall have rated FMPA securities. 

FMPA has authorized and will execute a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Undertaking”) with respect to 

the Offered Securities to assist the Underwriters in complying with U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-

12(b)(5). A summary of certain provisions of the Undertaking is included as APPENDIX G hereto. The Undertaking will 

be for the benefit of the Holders of the Offered Securities, and the beneficial owners of the Offered Securities will be third-

party beneficiaries thereof. Under the Undertaking, FMPA will be obligated to provide for itself and for the Major 

Participants financial information and operating data, financial statements, notice of certain events, and certain other notices 

with the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access System. The execution of the Undertaking is a condition precedent 

to the obligation of the Underwriters to purchase the Offered Securities. 

On two occasions one of the Major Participants in the Stanton and St. Lucie Projects did not timely provide 

information to the Agency, resulting in a late filing of that Participant’s information by the Agency. In both cases, the 

Agency timely filed a notice with the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access System regarding such Major 

Participant’s failure to provide such information. 

Page 158 of 473



 

 - 52 - 

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS 

Florida law requires FMPA to make a full and fair disclosure of any Offered Securities or other debt obligations 

which it has issued or guaranteed and which are or have been in default as to principal or interest at any time after December 

31, 1975. FMPA is not and has not been in default as to principal of and interest on Offered Securities or other debt 

obligations to which revenues of FMPA are pledged. 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  

Page 159 of 473



 

 - 53 - 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

The references herein to the Resolution, the Interlocal Agreement, the Joint Power Act, the Florida Interlocal 

Cooperation Act, the Power Supply Contracts and the Capacity and Energy Sales Contracts are brief outlines of certain 

provisions thereof. Such outlines do not purport to be complete and reference is made to such documents and agreements 

for full and complete statements of such provisions. Copies of such documents are on file at the offices of FMPA and may 

be obtained upon request. Any statements involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as 

such and not as representations of fact. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By:    

Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

By:    

General Manager and CEO 

 

Page 160 of 473



 

  A-1 

APPENDIX A 

 

MEMBERS’ PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS(1)(2)* 

 

Stanton Project(2) Stanton II Project(2) St. Lucie Project Tri-City Project 

All 

Requirements 

Project(3) 

Initial Pooled 

Loan 

Project(7) 

 Entitlement 

Share (%) MW 

Entitlement 

Share (%) MW 

Entitlement 

Share (%) MW 

Entitlement 

Share (%) MW MW  

City of Alachua – – – – 0.430% 0.4 – – – – 

City of Bushnell – – – – – – – – 6 X 

City of Clewiston – – – – 2.202 1.9 – – 27 – 

City of Fort Meade – – – – 0.336 0.3 – – 9(6) – 

Fort Pierce Utilities 

Authority 24.390% 15.9 16.4887% 17.2 15.206% 13.2 22.73% 5.3 112 – 

City of Green Cove 

Springs – – – – 1.757 1.5 – – 25 – 

Town of Havana – – – – – – – – 6 – 

City of Homestead 12.195 8.0 8.2443 8.6 8.269 7.2 22.727 5.3 – – 

City of 

Jacksonville 

Beach – – – – 7.329 6.3 – – 162 – 

Utility Board of the 

City of Key 

West, Florida – – 9.8932 10.3 – – 54.546 12.7 148 – 

Kissimmee Utility 

Authority 12.195 8.0 32.9774 34.5 9.405 8.1 – – 351 – 

City of Lake Worth 16.260 10.6 – – 24.870 21.5 – – 0(4) – 

City of Leesburg – – – – 2.326 2.0 – – 109 – 

City of Moore 

Haven – – – – 0.384 0.3 – – – – 

City of Newberry – – – – 0.184 0.2 – – 8 – 

Utilities 

Commission, 

City of New 

Smyrna Beach – – – – 9.884 8.6 – – – – 

City of Ocala – – – – – – – – 291 – 

City of St. Cloud – – 14.6711 15.3 – – – – – – 

City of Starke  2.439 1.6 1.2366 1.3 2.215 1.9 – – 15 – 

City of Vero Beach  32.521 21.3 16.4887 17.2 15.202 13.2 – – 0(5) – 

 100.00% 65.3 100.00% 104.4 100.00% 86.6 100.00% 23.3 1,270 N/A 

 
* Numbers may not add due to rounding. 

(1) The MWs shown for participants of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, and Tri-City Project are based on the current net summer capability as reported by 
OUC, the majority owner/operator to the Florida Public Service Commission in OUC’s annual Ten-Year Site Plan. 

(2) Power Entitlement Share means the percentage of Project Capability (the amount of net capacity and energy to which FMPA is entitled at any given point in time 

under the respective Participation Agreement, whether the unit is operating or not) that the Participant agrees to purchase from FMPA.  Such amount is also 
provided here by MW purchased. 

(3) Participants’ non-coincident peak demand in the 2018 fiscal year served from the FMPA All-Requirements Power Supply Project. Includes demand served by 

excluded resources.   
(4) The City of Lake Worth has elected under its Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power Supply Project participation and 

implement a CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated as 0 MW.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Contract Rate of Delivery.”  While the City of Lake Worth remains a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, effective January 

1, 2014, it no longer purchases capacity and energy from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and no longer has a representative on the Executive 

Committee.   
(5) Vero Beach elected under its Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power Supply Project participation and implement a 

CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated as 0 MW. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Contract 

Rate of Delivery (CROD).” Effective January 1, 2010, Vero Beach no longer purchased capacity and energy from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and 

no longer had a representative on the Executive Committee. On December 17, 2018, Vero Beach completed the sale of its electric utility system to Florida Power 
& Light Company (“FPL”) and withdrew as a member of FMPA and as a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and transferred and assigned 

to FMPA, with respect to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, the power sales and project support contracts between Vero Beach and FMPA relating to 

each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, as amended.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for 
additional information regarding the expected withdrawal of Vero Beach as a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and as a member of FMPA. 

(6) Fort Meade has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of its Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. The limitation commenced 

January 1, 2015. Based on Fort Meade’s usage between December 2013 and November 2014, the Executive Committee took action in December 2014 to set Fort 
Meade’s CROD at 10.306 MW, which is the maximum hourly obligation through the remaining term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract. Concurrently with 

its notice of the CROD limitation, Fort Meade gave FMPA notice pursuant to Section 2 of the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract to discontinue the 

automatic renewal of the term of its Power Supply Contract. The term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2041. 

Page 161 of 473



 

 

In 2018, Fort Meade approved a supplemental power sales agreement with the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project will provide capacity and energy to Fort Meade as if Fort Meade had not effectuated CROD. Commensurate with this 
agreement, the FMPA Executive Committee adjusted Fort Meade’s CROD downward to 9.009 MW, in accordance with the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Contract. The agreement may be extended beyond the initial 10-year term.   
(7) X = The City of Bushnell is expected to have a loan outstanding as of October 1, 2019.   
 

 

Page 162 of 473



 

  A-1 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 163 of 473



 

B-1 

APPENDIX B 

 

THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS 

Appendix B presents certain information for the Major Participants which was collected and compiled by FMPA from data 

supplied by each of the Major Participants.  Major Participants in the all-Requirements Power Supply Project are defined as Kissimmee 

Utility Authority, City of Ocala, City of Jacksonville Beach and Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida.  Text descriptions were 

developed with each of the Major Participant’s representatives; statistical facts were extracted from records regularly maintained by 

each of the Major Participants; and historical financial data was summarized from each Major Participant’s independent certified audits. 

While FMPA makes no representations as to the adequacy or accuracy of the information contained in this Appendix B, it believes such 

information to be reliable. 

 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  

Page 164 of 473



 

B-2 

 

 

KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY 

General 

The City of Kissimmee (“Kissimmee”) is approximately 18 miles south of Orlando and 7 miles east of the Walt Disney World 

Complex. Kissimmee is the county seat of Osceola County, the geographical center of Florida.  Kissimmee was incorporated in 1883 

and has a Commission/Manager form of government. The Kissimmee Utility Authority (“KUA”), which became effective October 1, 

1985, operates and maintains the electric system. Only the electric utility system revenues of KUA are available to make payments under 

the Power Sales and Project Support Contracts for the St. Lucie, Stanton and Stanton II Projects and its All-Requirements Power Supply 

Contract. 

The economy of Osceola County is primarily based upon tourism, cattle ranching and agriculture. 

Electric Utility System 

Kissimmee Utility Authority (“KUA”) has a 12.195% Power Entitlement Share (8.0 MW) from FMPA’s Stanton Project, a 

32.9774% Power Entitlement Share (34.7 MW) from FMPA’s Stanton II Project and a 9.405% Power Entitlement Share (8.1 MW) from 

FMPA’s St. Lucie Project under the terms of a Power Sales Contract and Project Support Contract for each of the applicable Projects. 

KUA entered into an All-Requirements Power Supply Contract with FMPA and became a full requirements customer as of October 1, 

2002. 

After the execution of the original Power Sales Contracts and Power Support Contracts relating to the Stanton and Stanton II 

Projects, KUA entered into (i) a transfer agreement with Homestead pursuant to which KUA assumed 50% (12.195%) of Homestead’s 

24.390% Power Entitlement Share in the Stanton Project and a transfer agreement pursuant to which KUA assumed 50% (8.24435%) 

of Homestead’s 16.4887% Power Entitlement Share in the Stanton II Project (the “Homestead Transferred Share”) and (ii) a transfer 

agreement with Lake Worth pursuant to which KUA assumed all of Lake Worth’s 8.2443% Power Entitlement Share in the Stanton II  

Project (the “Lake Worth Transferred Share”). 

In connection with the transfer of the Homestead Transferred Share to KUA, KUA in 1995 executed with FMPA an additional 

Power Sales Contract (an “Additional Power Sales Contract”) and an additional Project Support Contract (an “Additional Project 

Support Contract”). KUA also in 1995 executed a similar additional Power Sales Contract and Project Support Contract with FMPA in 

connection with the transfer to it of the Lake Worth Transferred Share. Under each Additional Power Sales Contract and Additional 

Project Support Contract, Homestead and Lake Worth are relieved of their respective obligations (including their payment obligations) 

with respect to their Transferred Shares if and to the extent KUA fulfills such obligations (including the payment obligations). If, 

however, KUA fails to perform any such obligation (including a payment obligation), then Homestead or Lake Worth (depending on 

which Transferred Share KUA is in default under) remains obligated under its Power Sales Contract or Project Support Contract to 

perform such obligation. 

KUA owns 50% of a combustion turbine unit (20 MW), 50% of a combined cycle unit (60 MW), and 50% of a combined cycle 

unit (125 MW) with the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. KUA turned over control and management of these units to FMPA in 

2008 but continues to operate them. KUA operates and maintains the generating units owned by FMPA, and FMPA’s interests in units 

located at the Cane Island Power Park. In addition, KUA has (i) a 4.8% (21 MW) undivided ownership interest in Stanton Energy Center 

Unit No. 1, which is operated by Orlando Utilities Commission (“OUC”); (ii) a 12.2% (11.2 MW) undivided ownership interest in the 

Indian River Combustion Turbine Units A and B, which are also operated by OUC; and (iii) a 3.5% (23 MW) ownership interest in 

Stanton Unit A, a gas-fired combined cycle unit located at OUC’s Stanton Energy Center site and operated by SCE. KUA is a member 

of and has contracted with FGU which acts as an agent to KUA and other Florida utilities. As a result of KUA joining the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project and entering into a Capacity and Energy Sales Contract with the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project, these facilities are treated as resources of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. In addition, under the Capacity and 

Energy Sales Contract, KUA has agreed to sell any capacity and energy from its Power Entitlement Shares in the Stanton Project and 

the Stanton II Project to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

KUA’s 230 kV and 69 kV transmission system includes interconnections with DEF, OUC, TECO and OUC/St. Cloud. Ten 

sub-stations supply the distribution system at voltages of 13.2 kV. The current system is approximately 66% underground and 34% 

overhead construction. Approximately 80% of all new distribution system installations are constructed underground. 

Service Area and Customers 

KUA’s electric utility service area encompasses approximately 85 square miles with Kissimmee’s 12.55 square-mile area 

near the center and 43% of electric customers served reside within the city limits. KUA has a FPSC approved territorial agreement 

with Duke Energy of Florida and OUC/St. Cloud, its neighboring utilities. 

Page 165 of 473



 

B-3 

No one electric customer accounted for more than 5% of the electric revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

Page 166 of 473



 

B-4 

KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017(7) 2018 

Customers (annual average)(2)  ........................................   66,258   67,889   69,919    71,770 73,968 
System Requirements 

 Peak Demands (MW)  .............................................   327   335   354   353  356 

 Energy (MWh)(3)  .....................................................   1,445   1,508   1,586   1,581  1,624 

Total Energy Sales (MWh)(3)  ..........................................   1,381   1,444   1,516   1,510  1,563 

      

Total Operating Revenues ...............................................  $171,772 $189,634 $183,733 $187,031 $214,362 

Operating Expenses:      

Total Power Production and Purchased Power ................  $117,730 $102,490 $106,275 $111,682 $112,215 
All Other Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)  .........................................  $  28,634 $  30,867 $  32,168 $  33,208 $  31,680 
Total Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)  .........................................  $146,364 $133,358 $138,444 $144,890 $143,895 
Net Operating Revenues 

 Available for Debt Service ......................................  $  25,408 $  56,276 $  45,289 $  42,141 $  70,467 

Other Income (Deductions)-Net ......................................  $       428 $       555 $       834 $    1,076 $    641 
Net Revenues and Other Income 

 Available for Debt Service ......................................  $  25,836 $  56,831 $  46,123 $  43,216 $  71,108 

Debt Service-Revenue Bonds ..........................................  $  20,698 $  27,307 $  17,977 $  17,987 $  20,263 
Debt Service Ratios 

 Actual ......................................................................  1.25x 2.08x 2.57x 2.40x 3.51x 
Required Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant ..........................................................  1.10x 1.10x 1.10x 1.10x 1.10x 
Balance available for renewals, 

replacements, capital additions 

and other lawful purposes ..........................................  $    5,139 $  29,524 $  28,146 $  25,229 $  50,845 
Transferred to General Fund 

 (Kissimmee)(4)  ........................................................  $  13,032 $  15,862 $  16,735 $  16,659 $  17,248 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017(7) 2018 
ASSETS: 

Capital Assets – Utility Plant ............................  $193,235 $210,241 

Restricted Assets ...............................................  95,376  72,466 

Other Assets ......................................................  86,840 77,993 

Current Assets ...................................................  74,868  95,303 

Deferred Outflow of Resources(5) ..................    2,209 1,062 

Total Assets ...................................................  $452,528 $457,066 

   
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Current Liabilities .............................................  $  20,847 $  22,147 

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets ........  33,829 36,537 

Long Term Debt ................................................  62,597 43,200 

Other Long-Term Liabilities .............................  28,193 25,466 

Total Liabilities .................................................  $145,466 $127,350 

Net Assets .........................................................  239,460 283,956 

Deferred Inflow of Resources(6) ........................  67,602 45,760 

Total Liabilities and Equity ...........................  $452,528 $457,066 
 

(1) Electric utility participation only. 
(2) Excludes internal customers effective Fiscal Year 2016. 
(3) Excluding sales to other electric utilities, if any. 
(4) Established by KUA at $6.24 mills per kWh sold and amended to 6.91 mills in October 2011. Fiscal Year 2015 is calculated as 7.6% of Electric 

Operating Revenues. 

Page 167 of 473



 

B-5 

(5) Represents unamortized loss on refunded debt. 
(6) Represents regulatory credits, self-insurance and rate stabilization funds. 
(7) Fiscal year 2017 was restated. 

 

  

Page 168 of 473



 

B-6 

CITY OF OCALA 

General 

The City of Ocala (“Ocala” or the “City”) is located in Marion County near the geographic center of the State of Florida, 

approximately 42 miles south of Gainesville and 91 miles north of Orlando.  Ocala operates under the City Council/City Manager form 

of government.  Ocala operates and maintains electric utility operations (the “Electric System”) and water and wastewater utility 

operations (the “Water and Sewer Utility”) which are integrated for bond issuance purposes and which are not integrated for purposes 

of the ARP.  The Electric System revenues will be available for payments under the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract.   

The City Manager oversees all the functions of the City of Ocala. The Water and Sewer and the Electric Utility report to the 

Deputy City Manager. The staff of the Electric Utility is under the direction of the Director of Ocala Electric Utility. 

The economy of Ocala and Marion County is diversified.  The three major payroll classifications in the private sector are:  

services (tourism), manufacturing and retail trade, in that order.  Next are wholesale trade and construction.  Agriculture and the 

thoroughbred horse industry are also major contributors to the area economy.  As the center of retail trade for a four county area, the 

City of Ocala and Marion County have each experienced growth in both retail sales and in the number of establishments catering to the 

retail sector. 

Electric Utility System 

Ocala entered into an All-Requirements Power Supply Contract with FMPA and became a full requirements customer of FMPA 

on May 1, 1986. At that time, Excluded Power Supply Resources for Ocala consisted of a 1.3333% ownership share in Duke Energy of 

Florida’s Crystal River 3 nuclear unit. The Crystal River 3 nuclear unit has since shut down and FMPA, on behalf of Ocala, negotiated 

a settlement with Duke Energy to completely divest Ocala from all ownership and obligations in the Crystal River 3 nuclear plant in 

2014. Today, Ocala comprises approximately 22% of the load served by FMPA. 

Ocala’s 230 kV and 69 kV transmission system include interconnections with Duke Energy of Florida and Seminole Electric 

Cooperative. Eighteen substations supply the distribution system at voltages of 12.47 kV. The distribution system contains 1,130 miles 

of electric lines. Ocala utilizes an advanced meter infrastructure system to remotely read its 76,000 electric and water meters. 

Ocala has 167 solar net meter accounts and 1.5 megawatts of customer owned photovoltaic capacity. Ocala is one of the ARP 

Solar Participants and will be receiving 10 MW of power from the NextEra Florida Renewables, LLC facility in Osceola County, Florida 

when it commences operation by 2020. 

Service Area and Customers 

Ocala’s service area encompasses approximately 171 square miles. Ocala has received FPSC approval of territorial agreements 

with Duke Energy, Clay Electric Cooperative and Sumter Electric Cooperative. The Clay Electric agreement is expired and under 

renegotiation with Clay Electric and we expect to file the new agreement with the FPSC by the second or third quarter of 2019. The 

Sumter Electric is also expired and under renegotiation at this time. We expect to file a new agreement with the FPSC by the end of 

2019. The Electric System has approximately 53,000 customers. Approximately sixty percent of the customers served by Ocala reside 

within the city limits. 

No one customer accounted for more than 5% of electric revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

  

Page 169 of 473



 

B-7 

CITY OF OCALA 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Customers (annual average) 51,007 51,702 52,340 52,834 53,292 

System Requirements 

 Peak Demands (MW) 285 287 295 291 297 

 Energy (MWh) .............................................  1,263,334 1,294,771 1,336,618 1,296,507 1,327,133 

Total Energy Sales (MWh) ..................................  1,220,551 1,249,859 1,295,215 1,261,604 1,273,834 

      

Total Operating Revenues ....................................  $149,081 $143,367 $143,791 $149,363 $151,401 

Operating Expenses:      

Total Power Production and Purchased Power .....  $106,193 $  99,167 $  99,389 $102,760 $  97,606 

All Other Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)...............................  $  23,335 $  22,262 $  27,536 $  32,088 $  31,643 

Total Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)...............................  $129,528 $121,429 $126,925 $134,848 $129,249 

Net Operating Revenues 

 Available for Debt Service ...........................  $  19,553 $  21,938 $  16,866 $  14,515 $  22,152 

Other Income (Deductions)–Net ..........................  $       737 $       975 — $       426 $         37 

Net Revenues and Other Income 

 Available for Debt Service ...........................  $  20,290 $  22,913 $  16,866 $  14,941 $  22,189 

Debt Service–Revenue Bonds ..............................  $       362 — — — — 

Debt Service–Utility Systems Revenue Bonds  $    3,301 $    3,358 $    4,650 $    4,555 $    4,683 

Debt Service Ratios 

 Actual (1) .......................................................  5.54x 6.82x 3.63x 3.28x 4.74x 

Required Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant ..............................................  1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 

Balance available for renewals, 

replacements, capital additions 

and other lawful purposes ..............................  $ 16,627 $  19,555 $  12,216 $  10,386 $  17,506 

Transferred to General Fund 

 (Ocala)(2) ...................................................... 

  $   9,263 $    6,719 $    7,832 $  11,882 $  13,049 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(3) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017 2018 

ASSETS: 

Net Utility Plant ................................................  $115,804 $114,778 

Restricted Assets ...............................................  37,601  35,026 

Current Assets ...................................................  69,314  62,986 

Deferred Outflow ..............................................  10,704 9,726 

Total Asset and Deferred Outflows ...............  $233,423 $222,516 

   

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Current Liabilities .............................................  $  28,146 $  29,931 

Other Liabilities ................................................  28,717  27,490 

Deferred Inflow .................................................  33,898  27,784 

Retained Earnings .............................................  90,804  88,143 

Long-Term Debt ...............................................  51,858 49,168 

Total Liabilities, Equity and  

Deferred Inflows ....................................  $233,423 $222,516 

 
(1) The coverage shown is based on electric revenues; however, the pledge under the bond resolution is of both the Electric System and the Water 

and Sewer Utility. 
(2) For Fiscal Year 2012 through 2015, the General Fund transfer is based on 6% of revenues. For Fiscal Year 2016, the General Fund transfer is 

based on 7% of revenues. 
(3) Electric utility operations. 

 

  

Page 170 of 473



 

B-8 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

General 

The City of Jacksonville Beach (“Jacksonville Beach”) is located in Duval County approximately 18 miles east of Jacksonville. 

Jacksonville Beach operates under the Council/Manager form of government.  

The City of Jacksonville Beach operates and maintains electric, natural gas, water and wastewater utility operations.  As a 

matter of policy, revenue financing combines the resources of all utility operations; thus, these utility services are integrated and revenues 

from all services are available to make payments under the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract.  As the Chief Administrative 

Officer, the City Manager appoints the Director of Electric Utilities. 

Jacksonville Beach is a residential and commercial community whose citizens, for the most part, work in the metropolitan 

Jacksonville area. Additionally, Jacksonville Beach is a major recreation area for the people of Duval County, Florida. 

Electric Utility System 

Jacksonville Beach entered into an All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract with FMPA and became a full 

requirements customer of FMPA on May 1, 1986.  Excluded Power Supply Resources for Jacksonville Beach are its entitlement share 

in FMPA’s St. Lucie Project (which is 7.329% of FMPA’s ownership portion of St. Lucie Unit No. 2). Jacksonville Beach d/b/a Beaches 

Energy Services owns one 230 kV transmission substation that ties to both FPL and JEA. Beaches Energy Services owns five (5) 

distribution substations, which deliver energy at the 26 kV level. Approximately 82% of Beaches Energy Services distribution circuits 

are underground. 

Service Area and Customers 

The Jacksonville Beach electric utility service area encompasses approximately 45 square miles including the neighboring 

town of Neptune Beach as well as the unincorporated areas of Ponte Vedra Beach and Palm Valley located in northeast St. Johns 

County. Forty-one (41) percent of the customers served reside within the Jacksonville Beach city limits. 

No one customer accounted for more than 5% of electric revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

  

Page 171 of 473



 

B-9 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Customers (annual average) .......................  33,966  34,433 34,552 34,739 34,815 
System Requirements 

 Peak Demands (MW) .........................  192 195 196  171   211 

 Energy(MWh) ....................................  733,793  738,958 757,400  721,088 744,119 

Total Energy Sales(MWh) .........................  699,005  716,233 720,318  693,254 708,266 

Total Operating Revenues ..........................  $97,012  $93,588 $82,096 $94,447 $97,814 

Operating Expenses:      

Total Purchased Power ...............................  $63,520  $59,230 $57,970 $56,884 $57,226 
All Other Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation) .....................  $15,239  $15,515 $10,487 $19,642 $19,792 
Total Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation) .....................  $78,759  $74,745 $68,457 $76,526 $77,018 
Net Operating Revenues 

 Available for Debt Service .................  $18,253  $18,843 $13,639 $17,921 $20,796 

Other Income (Deductions)—Net ..............  $     659  $     754 $     615 $  1,515 $     843 
Net Revenues and Other Income 

 Available for Debt Service .................  $18,912 $19,597 $14,254 $19,436 $21,639 

Debt Service—Revenue Bonds ..................  $  4,570 $  4,518 $  4,498 $  4,457 $  4,432 
Debt Service Ratios 

 Actual .................................................  4.14x 4.34x 3.17x 4.36x 4.88x 
Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant ....................................................  1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 
Balance available for renewals, 

 replacements, capital additions 

 and other lawful purposes ...................  $14,342 $15,079 $  9,756 $14,979 $17,207 
Transferred to General Fund 

 (Jacksonville Beach)(2) .......................  $  3,608 $  3,670 $  3,689 $  3,858 $  3,900 

      

 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017 2018 

ASSETS: 

Net Utility Plant ..................................  $159,788 $163,317 

Restricted Assets .................................  9,829 9,761 

Current Assets .....................................  107,503 111,261 

Total Asset ......................................  $277,120 $284,339 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Current Liabilities ...............................  $  57,952 $  59,085 

Retained Earnings ...............................  199,729 209,558 

Long Term Debt ..................................  19,439 15,696 

Total Liabilities and Equity .............  $277,120 $284,339 

 
(1) Electric, water, and wastewater utility. 
(2) Established by Jacksonville Beach ordinance at a maximum 5.5 mills per kWh purchased.  

Page 172 of 473



 

B-10 

UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF KEY WEST, FLORIDA 

General 

The City of Key West was first incorporated in 1828 and is the County seat of Monroe County, Florida. It is located near the 

southern extreme of the Florida Keys, a string of coral islands extending in a southwesterly arc from Biscayne Bay to the Dry Tortugas, 

and lies further south than any other point in the continental United States. The Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida (the 

“Board”) operates the municipally owned electric generation, transmission and distribution facilities in the service area. 

The Board is composed of five members who are elected for terms of four years by the registered electors of the City of Key 

West in even years.  Beginning in 2018, the five members will be elected by the registered electors in the utility’s service area from Key 

West to the northeastern most end of the Seven Mile Bridge. During its organizational meeting, the five members select one member to 

serve as the Chairman for two years. The Board appoints the Manager of the electric utility System. Only electric system revenues are 

available for making payments under the Power Sales Contract and the Project Support Contract for the Tri-City and Stanton II Projects 

and the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract. 

Electric Utility System 

The Utility Board now operates under the name Keys Energy Services (“KEYS”). 

In July 1997, KEYS agreed to become a member of FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project and began operations as 

a project participant effective April 1, 1998. On January 1, 2011, the Capacity and Energy Sales Contract was restructured to become 

the Revised, Amended and Restated Capacity and Energy Sales Contract (C&E Contract). Under the terms of this contract FMPA took 

over operational control and ownership risk for KEYS Stock Island generating units. FMPA has hired KEYS to maintain and operate 

the generating units through the Consolidated Operating and Maintenance Contract for the Stock Island Generating Facility also dated 

January 1, 2011. KEYS retains ownership of the Stock Island land, subject to certain easement and leasehold rights granted to FMPA. 

FMPA will utilize the generating units to provide capacity and energy to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project in 

exchange for $670,000 per year for ten years to be paid by FMPA to KEYS, and the other negotiated agreements of the parties to affect 

a True All-Requirements Project (TARP). At the end of ten years full ownership will transfer to FMPA.   

Under the contractual arrangement with FMPA, KEYS has assigned all of its generating and firm purchased power resources 

to FMPA, and FMPA will serve all of KEYS’ requirements.  

Further, in the event that power cannot be delivered to KEYS’ service area over the tie line from the mainland, KEYS has 

established a policy to have island generation capability equal to at least 60% of KEYS’ peak load. FMPA has agreed to meet these 

criteria by using the existing synchronized generating resources of four combustion turbine units and two medium speed diesels that 

currently total 111.0 MW. As part of the C&E contract, FMPA is required to maintain generation assets within KEYS’ Service Area 

equal to or above 60% of KEYS’ load. The related assignment of resources by KEYS to FMPA, and other matters pertaining to KEYS’ 

power supply are discussed in the following paragraphs. 

KEYS had previously entered into other purchased power agreements with other parties including the FMPA Tri-City Project 

(Stanton 1) and the FMPA Stanton 2 Project. As a member of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, KEYS’ resources and costs 

under these two contracts have been assigned to FMPA.   

Service Area and Customers 

The service area of KEYS consists of the lower Florida Keys, extending approximately 44 miles in an east-west direction from 

Pigeon Key, adjacent to the service area of the Florida Keys Electric Cooperative Association, Inc. to the City of Key West, representing 

approximately 74 square miles. 

The United States Navy is the largest customer of KEYS and accounted for approximately 7.0% of the total kilowatt hours sold 

in both fiscal year 2018 and fiscal year 2017.   

KEYS’ contract with the Navy is for a term of ten years with a provision which requires the parties to commence negotiations 

for a new contract at least one year prior to the end of the current contract. The contract also contains provisions for minimum billing, 

service reduction and exclusive service provisions. Pursuant to this contract, KEYS has agreed to provide a maximum of 15 MW of 

power at multiple locations.   

Page 173 of 473



 

B-11 

On September 12, 2007, both parties signed a contract (the “2007 contract”) which was in effect through August 31, 2017. 

Contract negotiations are being pursued by KEYS; and, the Navy is currently being served non-contractually. 

  

Page 174 of 473



 

B-12 

UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF KEY WEST, FLORIDA 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017(3) 2018(2) 

Customers (annual average). .......................       30,859       30,989       31,303        30,109  30,009 
      
System Requirements      

Peak Demands (MW) ..........................           144          147           148          148 146 
Energy(MWh) .....................................     770,420    779,772     800,265     764,396 746,553 

Total Energy Sales(MWh) ..........................     726,995    730,085     753,051     724,492 698,893 
      
Total Operating Revenues ...........................  $96,295 $86,875 $89,843 $92,695 $87,636 
Operating Expenses:      
Total Power Production and Power Supply .   $52,692  $45,567  $46,745  $51,341 $44,486 
All Other Operating Expenses  

(excluding depreciation and Unfunded 

OPEB) .................................................   $25,837  $27,408  $27,266  $29,457 $29,808 
Total Operating Expenses  

(excluding depreciation and Unfunded 

OPEB) .................................................   $78,529  $72,975  $74,011  $80,798 $74,294 
Net Operating Revenues  

Available for Debt Service ..................   $17,766  $13,900  $15,832  $11,897 $13,342 
Other Income (Deductions)—Net ...............   $  4,170  $  4,745  $  2,608  $  5,419 $  3,288 
Net Revenues and Other Income  

Available for Debt Service ..................   $21,936  $18,645  $18,440  $17,316 $16,630 
Debt Service–Revenue Bonds .....................   $11,259  $11,228  $11,153  $11,153 $11,153 
Debt Service Ratios      

Actual ..................................................  1.95x 1.66x 1.65x 1.55x 1.49x 
Required Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant .....................................  1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 
Balance available for renewals, 

replacements, capital additions and 

other lawful purposes ..........................   $10,677  $  7,417  $  7,287  $  6,163 $  5,477 
Transferred to General Fund  

(City of Key West) ..............................   $     419  $     395  $     391  $     429  $     423 

 
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017(3) 2018 
ASSETS: 

Net Utility Plant ...............................  $153,761 $168,213 

Restricted Assets .............................  23,045 30,783 

 Assets .............................................  58,876 71,717 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,445 8,944 

Total Assets .................................  $249,127 $279,657 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Liabilities .........................................  $104,177 $157,981 

Retained Earnings ............................  91,507 52,369 

Long Term Debt ..............................  53,243 44,272 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 200 25,035 

Total Liabilities and Equity .........  $249,127 $279,657 

 
(1) Electric utility only. 
(2) Fiscal year 2017 was restated. 
(3) Subsequent to the end of the 2018 fiscal year, KEYS issued bonds in the principal amount of $60,000,000. 

Page 175 of 473



 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 176 of 473



 

 C-1 

APPENDIX C 

 

FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

 

Page 177 of 473



 

 D-1 

APPENDIX D 

 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 

RESOLUTION AND POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS 

This Appendix contains summaries of certain provisions of FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as 

supplemented and amended, including as supplemented and amended by the Supplemental and Amendatory All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Governance Amendments) adopted May 24, 2007 

and as supplemented by the Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond 

Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019B 

Bonds, each adopted on [________], 2019 (collectively, the “Supplemental Resolution” and, together with the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution, the “Resolution”); and (ii) separate All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Contracts, as amended and restated (the “All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts”) between 

FMPA and the Participants. These summaries are not to be considered full statements of the terms of the respective 

documents and accordingly are qualified by the reference to such respective documents and subject to the full text 

thereof. Copies of such documents may be obtained from FMPA on request. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined 

herein have the meanings set forth in the respective documents or the Official Statement. 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 

OF THE RESOLUTION 

The following is a general summary of certain provisions of the Resolution. Certain additional provisions 

relating specifically to the Offered Securities issued pursuant to the Supplemental Resolution and Bond Series 

Certificate are presented under “DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES” and “SECURITY AND 

SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES.” 

Definitions 

Accrued Aggregate Debt Service shall mean, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the sum of 

the amounts of accrued Debt Service with respect to all Series and all Parity Debt, calculating the accrued Debt Service 

with respect to each Series at an amount equal to the sum of (i) interest on the Bonds of such Series and all Parity Debt 

accrued and unpaid and to accrue to the end of the then current calendar month, and (ii) Principal Installments due 

and unpaid and that portion of the Principal Installment for such Series and such Parity Debt next due which would 

have accrued (if deemed to accrue in the manner set forth in the definition of Debt Service) to the end of such calendar 

month; provided, however that there shall be excluded from the calculation of Accrued Aggregate Debt Service any 

Principal Installments which are Refundable Principal Installments. 

Adjusted Aggregate Debt Service for any period means, as of any date of calculation, the Aggregate Debt 

Service for such period except that, if any Refundable Principal Installment for any Series of Bonds is included in 

Aggregate Debt Service for such period, Adjusted Aggregate Debt Service shall mean Aggregate Debt Service 

determined as if each such Refundable Principal Installment had been payable, over a period extending from the due 

date of such Principal Installment through the later of the 35th anniversary of the issuance of such Series of Bonds or 

the 10th anniversary of the due date of such Principal Installments, in installments which would have required equal 

annual payments of principal and interest over such period. Interest deemed payable in any Fiscal Year after the actual 

due date of any Refundable Principal Installment of any Series of Bonds shall be calculated at the weighted average 

rate of interest actually payable on the Bonds of such Series at the time the calculation is made or such higher rate as 

FMPA determines appropriate. 

Aggregate Debt Service for any period means, as of any date of calculation, the sum of the amounts of Debt 

Service for such period with respect to all Series and all Parity Debt; provided, however, that for purposes of 

calculating or estimating Aggregate Debt Service for any future period (except as otherwise specifically provided in 

the Resolution): (A) any Variable Interest Rate Bonds shall be deemed to bear interest at all times prior to the maturity 

date thereof for which the interest rate payable thereon has not yet been determined at the Estimated Average Interest 

Rate applicable thereto; (B) any Bonds, other than Variable Interest Rate Bonds, in respect of which FMPA has entered 

Page 178 of 473



 

 D-2 

into a Qualified Swap shall during the period for which such Qualified Swap is in effect be deemed to bear interest at 

the highest of the fixed rate or the maximum interest rate payable on such Bonds or pursuant to such Qualified Swap; 

(C) any Put Bonds Outstanding during such period which by their terms are not required to be paid by FMPA upon 

tender by the Holder thereof shall be assumed to mature on the stated maturity date thereof; (D) any Put Bonds 

Outstanding during such period which by their terms are required to be paid by FMPA upon tender by the Holder 

thereof shall be assumed to mature on the earliest to occur of (1) the stated maturity date thereof, (2) the date provided 

in an applicable Supplemental Resolution, or (3) if the Bond Support Facility securing such Put Bonds expires within 

six months or fewer of the date of calculation and has not been renewed or replaced, the expiration date of such Bond 

Support Facility; I the principal amount of any Put Bonds tendered for payment by FMPA which are required to be 

paid by FMPA which have not yet been purchased in lieu of such payment by FMPA shall be deemed to mature on 

the date required to be paid pursuant to such tender; and (F) subject to the provisions of the Supplemental Resolution 

authorizing any Extendible Maturity Bonds, Extendible Maturity Bonds Outstanding during such period shall be 

deemed to mature on the later of the stated maturity date or the date to which such stated maturity date has been 

extended. 

Annual Budget shall mean the annual budget, as amended or supplemented, adopted or in effect for a 

particular Fiscal Year as provided in the Resolution. 

Bond or Bonds shall mean any bond or bonds, note or notes, or other evidences of indebtedness (other than 

Subordinated Debt), as the case may be, authenticated and delivered under and pursuant to the Resolution. 

Bond Series Certificate means a certificate of an Authorized Officer fixing terms, conditions and other 

details of the Bonds or Parity Debt, in accordance with the delegation of power to do so under a Supplemental 

Resolution. 

Bond Support Facility means any irrevocable letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement, line of 

credit, policy of bond insurance, surety bond, guarantee or similar instrument which is obtained by FMPA and is 

issued by a financial, insurance or other institution and which provides security or liquidity in respect of the Bonds of 

any Series (and with respect to a policy of bond insurance guarantees the payment of principal of and interest on the 

Bonds), not including any Reserve Account Credit Facility. 

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the State of Florida or a day 

on which banks in New York City are authorized by law or executive order to close. 

Contingency Requirement shall mean, at any date of calculation, with respect to the Contingency Account 

in the Reserve and Contingency Fund, such amount as at the date of calculation shall have been established by FMPA 

as the Contingency Requirement in its Annual Budget which is then in effect. 

Cost of Acquisition and Construction means all costs, expenses and liabilities of FMPA related to the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project or the System which on the date hereof or in the future shall be permitted to be 

funded with the proceeds of Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Act or any other applicable laws of the State of 

Florida. 

Credit Facility shall mean an irrevocable letter of credit, surety bond, loan agreement, Standby Purchase 

Agreement or other agreement, facility or insurance or guaranty arrangement issued or extended by a bank, a trust 

company, a national banking association, an organization subject to registration with the Board of Governors of the 

Federal Reserve System under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 or any successor provisions of law, a federal 

branch pursuant to the International Banking Act of 1978 or any successor provisions of law, a savings bank, a saving 

and loan association, an insurance company or association chartered or organized under the laws of any state of the 

United States of America, the Government National Mortgage Association or any successor thereto, the Federal 

National Mortgage Association or any successor thereto, or any other federal agency or instrumentality approved by 

FMPA, pursuant to which FMPA is entitled to obtain monies to pay the principal, purchase price or Redemption Price 

of Bonds due in accordance with their terms or tendered for purchase or redemption, plus accrued interest thereon to 

the date of payment, purchase or redemption thereof in accordance with the Resolution, whether or not FMPA is in 

default under the Resolution. 

Page 179 of 473



 

 D-3 

Debt Service for any period shall mean, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any Series or any 

Parity Debt, an amount equal to the sum of (i) interest accruing during such period on Bonds of such Series and all 

additional interest amounts to accrue to the end of such period pursuant to any related Parity Debt, except to the extent 

that such interest is to be paid from deposits made from Bond proceeds into the Debt Service Account in the Debt 

Service Fund (including amounts, if any, transferred thereto from the Construction Fund), and (ii) that portion of each 

Principal Installment for such Series and such Parity Debt which would accrue during such period if such Principal 

Installment were deemed to accrue daily in equal amounts from the next preceding Principal Installment due date for 

such Series and such Parity Debt (or, if there shall be no such preceding Principal Installment due date, from a date 

one year preceding the due date of such Principal Installment or from the date of issuance of the Bonds of such Series 

and such Parity Debt, whichever date is later). Such interest and Principal Installments for such Series shall be 

calculated on the assumption that (x) no Bonds (except for Put Bonds actually tendered for payment or for purchase 

in accordance with the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the Series of Bonds of which such Bond is one prior to 

the stated maturity thereof and not purchased or remarketed on the date required to be paid or purchased) of such 

Series Outstanding at the date of calculation will cease to be Outstanding except by reason of the payment of each 

Principal Installment on the due date thereof and (y) the principal amount of Put Bonds tendered for payment before 

the stated maturity thereof shall be deemed to accrue on the date required to be paid pursuant to such tender. 

Debt Service Reserve Requirement shall mean, with respect to a particular Series of Bonds, the amount, if 

any, set forth in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds. Any amounts on deposit in the Debt 

Service Reserve Account for such Bonds shall, unless otherwise provided in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing 

such Bonds, secure only such Outstanding Bonds (and related Parity Reimbursement Obligations) and shall not be 

available to pay Debt Service on any other Bonds from time to time Outstanding hereunder. 

Extendible Maturity Bonds shall mean Bonds the maturities of which, by their terms, may be extended by 

and at the option of the Holder thereof. 

Net Revenues for any period means the Revenues during such period, determined on an accrual basis, plus 

(x) the amounts, if any, transferred from the Rate Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund into 

the Revenue Fund during such period and minus (y) the sum of (a) Operation and Maintenance Expenses during such 

period, determined on an accrual basis, to the extent paid or to be paid from Revenues and (b) the amounts, if any, 

accrued in the Revenue Fund for transfer to the Rate Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund 

during such period. 

Option Bonds shall mean both Extendible Maturity Bonds and Put Bonds. 

Put Bonds shall mean Bonds which by their terms may be tendered by and at the option of the Holder thereof 

for payment by FMPA or purchase and remarketing prior to the stated maturity or redemption date thereof either (a) 

by FMPA and by the Person and/or from the source specified in a Supplemental Resolution or (b), without recourse 

to FMPA by the Person and/or from the source specified in a Supplemental Resolution; provided, however, that such 

payment by FMPA shall in all events be required to be supported by a Bond Support Facility. 

Refundable Principal Installment means any Principal Installment for any Series of Bonds which FMPA 

intends to pay with monies which are not Revenues, provided that such intent shall have been expressed in the 

Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds and provided further that such Principal Installment shall 

be a Refundable Principal Installment only through the first day of the twelfth month preceding the month in which 

such Principal Installment comes due or such earlier time as FMPA no longer intends to pay such Principal Installment 

with monies which are not Revenues. 

Revenues shall mean (i) all revenues, income, rents, user fees or charges and receipts derived by FMPA from 

or attributable to the ownership and operation of the System, including all revenues attributable to the System or to 

the payment of the costs thereof received by FMPA under any contract for the sale of power, energy, transmission, 

dispatching or other service from the System or any part thereof or any contractual arrangement with respect to the 

use of the System or any portion thereof or the services, output or capacity thereof, (ii) the proceeds of any insurance  

covering business interruption loss relating to the System and (iii) interest received on any monies or securities held 

pursuant to the Resolution and paid or required to be paid into the Revenue Fund. Revenues shall not include any 

amounts paid to FMPA pursuant to a Qualified Swap or similar financial arrangements. 

Page 180 of 473



 

 D-4 

[System means all items of real and personal property, all interests in or rights to the use of services, output 

or capacity acquired or purchased by FMPA for the purposes of, or designated by FMPA to be used for the purpose 

of, meeting its obligations under the All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts, which now or in the future shall be 

permitted to be included in the System pursuant to the provisions of the Act or other applicable laws of the State of 

Florida. Unless otherwise provided by action of the Agency designating such items as part of the System, the System 

shall not include FMPA’s 8.806% undivided ownership interest in St. Lucie Unit No. 2, or any rights to receive any 

electric capacity or energy therefrom; any rights to receive electric capacity and energy pursuant to the St. Lucie 

Nuclear Reliability Exchange Agreement, dated March 26, 1982, as amended, or the St. Lucie Replacement Power 

Agreement, dated February 11, 1982; or FMPA’s 14.8193% undivided ownership interest in Stanton Unit No. 1 

acquired pursuant to the Stanton Unit No. 1 Participation Agreement dated as of January 16, 1984, as amended (the 

“Stanton Project”); or FMPA’s 5.3012% undivided ownership interest in Stanton Unit No. 1 acquired pursuant to 

Stanton Unit No. 1 Participation Agreement dated as of March 22, 1985, as amended (the “Tri-City Project”); 

provided, however, that certain Project Participants having Entitlement Shares in the Tri-City Project, Stanton Project, 

Stanton II Project and/or St. Lucie Project have agreed to sell and make available to FMPA for the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project, the capacity and energy from such Entitlement Shares pursuant to the Capacity and Energy 

Sales Contracts between FMPA and such Project Participants and the right to receive such capacity and energy shall 

be a part of the System. Notwithstanding the foregoing definition of the term System, such term shall not include any 

properties, rights or interests in properties of FMPA which FMPA determines shall not constitute a part of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project or the System for the purposes of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contracts.] 

Trust Estate shall mean (i) the proceeds of the sale of Bonds, (ii) all right, title and interest of FMPA in, to 

and under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, (iii) the Revenues, and (iv) all Funds established by 

the Resolution (other than the Decommissioning Fund) including the investments, if any, thereof, and the same are 

hereby pledged and assigned, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the application thereof for 

the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

Pledge 

The Bonds and any Parity Debt shall be special obligations of FMPA payable solely from and secured as to 

the payment of the principal and Redemption Price thereof, and interest thereon, in accordance with their terms and 

the provisions of the Resolution solely by the Trust Estate. 

Application Of Revenues 

Revenues are pledged by the Resolution to payment of principal and redemption price of and interest on the 

Bonds, subject to the provisions of the Resolution permitting application thereof for other purposes. The Resolution 

establishes the following Funds and Accounts: 

Funds Held by: 

  

Construction Fund  Trustee 

Revenue Fund   FMPA 

Operation and Maintenance Fund   FMPA 

 Operation and Maintenance 

Account 

 

 Working Capital Account  

 Rate Stabilization Account  

Debt Service Fund   Trustee 

 Debt Service Account  

 Debt Service Reserve Account  

Subordinated Debt Fund   Held as determined by 

the Supplemental 

Resolution 

Reserve and Contingency Fund   FMPA 

Page 181 of 473



 

 D-5 

 Renewal and Replacement 

Account 

 

Contingency Account  

General Reserve Fund   FMPA 

 

Pursuant to the Resolution, all Revenues are to be deposited promptly by FMPA upon receipt thereof into 

the Revenue Fund. Each month, amounts in the Revenue Fund are to be paid to the following Funds in the order of 

priority for application therefrom as follows: 

 To the credit of the Operation and Maintenance Account, the Working Capital Account and the Rate 

Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the respective amounts which are equal to (i) 

in respect to the Operation and Maintenance Account, the amount required so that the balance credited to 

such Account shall equal the amount estimated to be necessary for the payment of Operation and 

Maintenance Expenses for the next succeeding calendar month and (ii) in respect to the Working Capital 

Account and the Rate Stabilization Account, the amount required so that the balance credited to such 

Accounts equals the monies budgeted to be on credit to said Accounts in the Annual Budget for the next 

succeeding calendar month. Amounts credited to the Operation and Maintenance Account will be applied by 

FMPA to the payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses. Amounts credited to the Working Capital 

Account shall, at the direction of FMPA, (i) be credited to the Operation and Maintenance Account, (ii) be 

applied directly to any of the purposes for which amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Account could 

be applied, (iii) to the extent provided in the current Annual Budget, be transferred to the Debt Service 

Account, or (iv) to the extent that such amounts were not credited thereto from the proceeds of the  Bonds, 

be credited to the Reserve and Contingency Fund or to the Decommissioning Fund, if then created. Amounts 

credited to the Rate Stabilization Account shall, at the direction of FMPA, (i) to the extent provided in the 

current Annual Budget, be credited to or transferred to, as appropriate, any other Fund or Account held under 

the Resolution, (ii) be applied to make up deficiencies in the Debt Service Account and the Debt Service 

Reserve Account except deficiencies in the Debt Service Reserve Account due to transfers to the Debt Service 

Account, (iii) be paid to each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider to reimburse such provider for any 

amounts advanced under its Reserve Account Credit Facility, (iv) be applied to make up deficiencies in the 

Debt Service Reserve Account due to transfers to the Debt Service Account, and (v) be applied to make up 

deficiencies in the Renewal and Replacement Account and the Contingency Account. The Resolution 

provides for the application of excess amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Account to make up any 

deficiencies in certain other Funds established under the Resolution, with any balance to be deposited in the 

General Reserve Fund. The determination of the amounts and application of any such excess amounts shall 

be made by FMPA. 

 For deposit into the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund, the amounts required so that 

the balance (excluding capitalized interest on deposit therein in excess of the amount thereof to be applied to 

pay interest accrued and to accrue on all outstanding Bonds to the end of the then current calendar month) in 

said Account equals the Accrued Aggregate Debt Service as of the last day of the then current calendar month 

or, if interest and/or principal are required to be paid to Holders of Bonds during the next succeeding calendar 

month on a day other than the first day of such calendar month, Accrued Aggregate Debt Service as of the 

day through and including which such interest and/or principal is required to be paid. The Trustee will apply 

amounts in the Debt Service Account to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

With respect to amounts accumulated in the Debt Service Account with respect to any Sinking Fund 

Installments, the Trustee may, and if directed by FMPA, shall apply such amounts on or prior to the 40th day preceding 

the due date of such Sinking Fund Installment to (i) the purchase of Bonds of the Series, maturity and interest rate 

within each maturity for which such Sinking Fund Installment was established or (ii) the redemption at the applicable 

Redemption Price of such Bonds. 

 To reimburse each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider for any amounts advanced under its 

Reserve Account Credit Facility, including paying interest thereon, in accordance with the terms of such 

Reserve Account Credit Facility and any reimbursement agreement between FMPA and the Reserve Account 

Page 182 of 473



 

 D-6 

Credit Facility Provider; to the extent that on any date the amounts available for such reimbursement 

payments are insufficient to make all such payments, including interest, the amounts actually available shall 

be paid pro rata, to each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider in proportion to the payments then due 

under the respective Reserve Account Credit Facilities; provided, however, that if any such payment shall 

not result in the reinstatement of a portion of such Reserve Account Credit Facility in an amount equal to 

such payment (excluding the portion thereof representing interest on such advance), such reimbursement 

payment shall be made only after the payments otherwise required by the Resolution. 

 To the credit of each subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, the amount, if any, required 

for such subaccounts to equal the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as of the last day of the current calendar 

month. 

Amounts in the Debt Service Reserve Account are to be applied to make up any deficiency in the Debt 

Service Account. Whenever the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, together with the amount in the Debt 

Service Account, is sufficient to pay in full all outstanding Bonds in accordance with their terms, the funds on deposit 

in the Debt Service Reserve Account will be transferred to the Debt Service Account. Whenever monies on deposit in 

the Debt Service Reserve Account exceed the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, the excess may, if requested by 

FMPA, be deposited in the Revenue Fund. 

 To the Subordinated Debt Fund, the amount, if any, required by the Supplemental Resolution 

authorizing such issue to pay principal or sinking fund installments of and premiums, if any, and interest on 

each issue of Subordinated Debt and reserves therefor. FMPA will apply amounts in the Subordinated Debt 

Fund in accordance with the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issue. If at any time the amount in the 

Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund is deficient or the amount in the Debt Service Reserve 

Account is less than the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as a result of a transfer to the Debt Service 

Account, and there are no available monies sufficient to cure such deficiency in the Reserve and Contingency 

Fund or the General Reserve Fund, amounts in the Subordinated Debt Fund will be applied to make up such 

deficiency. 

 To the credit of the Reserve and Contingency Fund, for credit to (i) the Renewal and Replacement 

Account, the amount, if any, budgeted for credit therein during such month in the then current Annual Budget, 

and (ii) the Contingency Account, the amount, if any, required for such Account to equal the Contingency 

Requirement. 

Amounts in the Renewal and Replacement Account will be applied to the payment of Development Costs 

and costs of renewals, replacements, repairs, additions, betterments, enlargements and improvements to the System 

necessary to keep the same in good operating condition or to prevent a loss of Revenues therefrom, or required by any 

governmental agency having jurisdiction over the System or any part thereof. 

Amounts in the Contingency Account will be applied to the payment of costs of major renewals, 

replacements, repairs, additions, betterments, enlargements and improvements with respect to the System and to the 

payment of Development Costs, in each case to the extent that amounts credited to the Renewal and Replacement 

Account are insufficient. 

If at any time the amount in the Debt Service Account is deficient or the amount in the Debt Service Reserve 

Account is less than the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as a result of a transfer to the Debt Service Account, and 

there are not on deposit in the General Reserve Fund available monies sufficient to cure such deficiency, then FMPA 

will transfer from the Reserve and Contingency Fund the amount necessary to make up such deficiency. 

Amounts in the Renewal and Replacement Account and the Contingency Account which exceed the 

respective amounts required to be held therein, to the extent not required to make up deficiencies in the Debt Service 

Fund may be deposited in the Decommissioning Fund, if established, or, in the General Reserve Fund. 

 To the credit of the General Reserve Fund, the balance, if any, in the Revenue Fund; FMPA will 

transfer from the General Reserve Fund amounts in the following order of priority:  (i) to the Debt Service 

Page 183 of 473



 

 D-7 

Account and the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Debt Service Fund the amount necessary to make up 

any deficiencies in payments to said Accounts except deficiencies in the Debt Service Reserve Account due 

to transfers to the Debt Service Account (ii) to the Debt Service Reserve Account the amount of any 

deficiency in such Account resulting from any transfer to the Debt Service Account, and (iii) to the Renewal 

and Replacement Account and the Contingency Account in the Reserve and Contingency Fund, in that order, 

the amount necessary to make up any deficiencies in payments to said Fund. 

Amounts in the General Reserve Fund not required for any of the above purposes shall upon  determination 

of FMPA be applied to or set aside by FMPA for any one or more of the following:  (i)  the purchase or redemption 

of Bonds, and expenses and reserves in connection therewith; (ii) payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

or credit to the Working Capital Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund; (iii) payments into any separate 

accounts established in the Construction Fund; (iv)  transfer to the credit of the Renewal and Replacement Account or 

the Contingency Account in the Reserve and Contingency Fund;  (v) transfer to the Subordinated Debt Fund; 

(vi) transfer to the Rate Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund; (vii) payments of any 

termination or other fees, expenses, indemnification or other obligations to a Qualified Swap Provider; and (viii) any 

other lawful purpose of FMPA related to the System. 

Debt Service Reserve Account 

In lieu of the required deposits and transfers to any subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, FMPA 

may at any time cause to be deposited into such subaccount for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and any related 

Parity Reimbursement Obligations, an insurance policy or a letter of credit in an amount equal to the difference 

between the Debt Service Reserve Requirement and the sums, if any, then on deposit in such subaccount or being 

deposited in such subaccount concurrently with such insurance policy or letter of credit. The insurance policy or letter 

of credit shall be payable (upon the giving of notice as required thereunder) on any date on which monies will be 

required to be withdrawn from the subaccount and applied to the payment of a Principal Installment of or interest on 

any Bonds and any related Parity Debt entitled to the benefit of such amounts in such subaccount and such withdrawal 

cannot be met by amounts on deposit in such subaccount. The insurer providing such insurance policy shall be a 

municipal bond or other insurance company, obligations insured by which are rated in one of the two highest rating 

categories by each nationally recognized rating agency then rating any Series of Bonds at the request of FMPA. The 

letter of credit issuer shall be a bank or savings and loan association whose long-term uncollateralized debt obligations 

are rated in either of the two highest rating categories by each nationally recognized rating agency then rating any 

Series of Bonds at the request of FMPA. If a disbursement is made pursuant to an insurance policy or a letter of credit, 

FMPA shall be obligated either (i) to reinstate the maximum limits of such insurance policy or letter of credit or (ii) 

to deposit into the appropriate subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, funds in the amount of the 

disbursement made under such insurance policy or letter of credit, or a combination of such alternatives, as shall 

provide that the amount in such subaccount equals the Debt Service Reserve Requirement. 

In the event of the refunding of any Bonds, the Trustee shall, if FMPA so directs, withdraw from the related 

subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Debt Service Fund all, or any portion of, the amounts 

accumulated therein with respect to the Bonds being refunded and deposit such amounts with itself as Trustee to be 

held for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds being refunded; 

provided that such withdrawal shall not be made unless (a) immediately thereafter the Bonds being refunded shall be 

deemed to have been paid pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution, and (b) the amount remaining in the related 

subaccount, after giving effect to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds and the disposition of the proceeds thereof and 

to any insurance policy or letter of credit deposited in such subaccount, shall not be less than the Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement. In the event of such refunding, FMPA may also direct the Trustee to withdraw from the related 

subaccount all, or any portion of, the amounts accumulated therein with respect to Debt Service on the Bonds being 

refunded and deposit such amounts in any Fund or Account under the Resolution; provided, however, that such 

withdrawal shall not be made unless items (a) and (b) referred to hereinabove have been satisfied and provided, further, 

at the time of withdrawal, there shall exist no deficiency in any Fund or Account held under the Resolution. 

Construction Fund 

The Resolution establishes a Construction Fund, to be held by the Trustee, into which will be paid amounts 

required by the provisions of the Resolution and any Supplemental Resolution and, at the option of FMPA, any monies 

Page 184 of 473



 

 D-8 

received for or in connection with the System by FMPA from any other source, unless required to be otherwise applied 

as provided in the Resolution. In addition, subject to the provisions of any agreements relating to the purchase, 

ownership or operation of any part of the System, proceeds of insurance for physical loss of or damage to the System 

or of contractors’ performance bonds with respect thereto pertaining to the period of construction will be paid into the 

Construction Fund. 

The Trustee will pay to or for the account of FMPA, upon the requisitions of FMPA therefor pursuant to the 

Resolution, from the Construction Fund, the Cost of Acquisition and Construction of the System. The Trustee will 

pay to FMPA, upon the requisition therefor, a sum or sums aggregating not more than $10,000,000 to be used by 

FMPA to establish a revolving fund to pay Costs of Acquisition and Construction which cannot conveniently be paid 

through the requisition process. 

To the extent that other monies are not available therefor, amounts in the Construction Fund will be applied 

to the payment of principal of and interest on Bonds when due. 

Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds 

FMPA may issue Bonds for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the Cost of Acquisition and Construction 

of the System. 

Refunding Bonds 

One or more Series of Refunding Bonds may be issued to refund any Outstanding Bonds or Parity Debt. The 

issuance of Refunding Bonds to refund Outstanding Bonds is subject to the receipt by the Trustee of, among other 

things, a certificate of an Authorized Officer stating that such Refunding Bonds are being issued to reduce amounts 

payable under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or that the issuance of such Refunding Bonds is 

otherwise advantageous to FMPA or the Project Participants. 

Investment of Certain Funds 

The Resolution provides that certain funds and accounts held thereunder may, and in the case of the Debt 

Service Account and the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Debt Service Fund and of the Subordinated Debt Fund 

must be invested to the fullest extent practicable in Investment Securities. The Resolution provides that such 

investments will mature no later than such times as necessary to provide monies when needed for payments from such 

Funds and Accounts. “Investment Securities” are defined in the Resolution to mean and include any of the following 

securities, if and to the extent the same are at the time legal for investment of FMPA’s funds: 

(i) any bonds or other obligations which as to principal and interest constitute direct obligations of, or 

are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America, including obligations of any of the Federal agencies 

set forth in clause (iii) below to the extent unconditionally guaranteed by United States of America; 

(ii) any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, 

instrumentality or local governmental unit of such state (a) which are not callable prior to maturity or as to which 

irrevocable instructions have been given to the trustee of such bonds or other obligations by the obligor to give due 

notice of redemption and to call such bonds for redemption on the date or dates specified in such instructions, (b) which 

are secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting only of cash or bonds or 

other obligations of the character described in clause (i) hereof which fund may be applied only to the payment of 

such principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date 

or dates thereof or the redemption date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to in subclause (a) of 

this clause (ii), as appropriate, and (c) as to which the principal of and interest on the bonds and obligations of the 

character described in clause (i) hereof which have been deposited in such fund along with any cash on deposit in such 

fund are sufficient to pay principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations 

described in this clause (ii) on the maturity date or dates thereof or on the redemption date or dates specified in the 

irrevocable instructions referred to in subclause (a) of this clause (ii), as appropriate; 

Page 185 of 473



 

 D-9 

(iii) bonds, debentures, or other evidences of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any agency or 

corporation which has been or may hereafter be created pursuant to an Act of Congress as an agency or instrumentality 

of the United States of America; 

(iv) New Housing Authority Bonds issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully secured as to 

the payment of both principal and interest by a pledge of annual contributions under an Annual Contributions Contract 

or Contracts with the United States of America; or Project Notes issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully 

secured as to the payment of both principal and interest by a requisition or payment agreement with the United States 

of America; 

(v) direct and general obligations of any state of the United States of America or any agency, 

instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such state, to the payment of the principal of and interest on which 

the full faith and credit of such state, agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit is pledged, provided that at 

the time of their purchase under the Resolution such obligations are rated in either of the two highest categories by a 

nationally recognized bond rating agency; 

(vi) obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any 

agency or instrumentality of any state or political subdivision which shall be rated in the highest rating category by a 

nationally recognized bond rating agency; 

(vii) certificates or other instruments that evidence ownership of the right to payments of principal of or 

interest on obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any agency 

or instrumentality of any state or political subdivision, provided that such obligations shall be held in trust by a bank 

or trust company or a national banking association meeting the requirements for a successor Trustee in accordance 

with the Resolution, and provided further that the payments of all principal of and interest on such certificates or such 

obligations shall be fully insured or unconditionally guaranteed by, or otherwise unconditionally payable pursuant to 

a credit support arrangement provided by, one or more financial institutions or insurance companies or associations 

which at the date of investment shall have an outstanding, unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt issue rated in 

the highest rating category by a nationally recognized bond rating agency, or, in the case of an insurer providing 

municipal bond insurance policies insuring the payment, when due, of the principal of and interest on municipal bonds, 

such insurance policy shall result in such municipal bonds being rated in the highest rating category by a nationally 

recognized bond rating agency; 

(viii) certificates that evidence ownership of the right to payments of principal or interest on obligations 

described in clause (i), provided that such obligations shall be held in trust by a bank or trust company or a national 

banking association meeting the requirements for a successor Trustee in accordance with the Resolution; 

(ix) certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non-negotiable, and banker’s acceptances of the 50 

largest banks in the United States or commercial paper issued by the parent holding company of any such bank which 

at the time of investment has an outstanding unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt issue ranked in either of the 

two highest rating categories by a nationally recognized bond rating agency (including the Trustee and its parent 

holding company, if any, if it otherwise qualifies); 

(x) commercial paper, other than that issued by bank holding companies, (1) rated at the date of 

investment in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized bond rating agency, or (2) issued by United States 

corporations which at the date of investment have an outstanding, unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt issue 

rated in either of the two highest rating categories by a nationally recognized bond rating agency; 

(xi) any repurchase agreement with any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of 

the United States of America or any national banking association or government bond dealer reporting to, trading 

with, and recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, which agreement is secured by 

any one or more of the securities described in clauses (i), (iii), (iv), (ix), or (x) above, which securities shall at all times 

have a market value (exclusive of accrued interest) not less than the full amount of the repurchase agreement, and be 

delivered to another bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America or 

any national banking by association, as custodian in the name of or for exclusive benefit of FMPA; 

Page 186 of 473



 

 D-10 

(xii) shares of an Investment Company, organized under the Investment Company Act of 1940 as 

amended, which invests its assets exclusively in obligations of the type described in clause (i), (vi), (ix), (x), or (xi) 

above; 

(xiii) Local Government Surplus Trust Fund of the State of Florida; 

(xiv) Certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non-negotiable, and banker’s acceptance of the 10 

largest banks in the State of Florida measured in terms of their primary capital (i.e., equity minus reserves); 

(xv) Money market funds rated in the highest category for comparable types of obligations by each 

Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds at the request of FMPA; 

(xvi) investment agreements or guaranteed investment contracts with any financial institution whose 

senior long-term debt obligations or whose obligations under such investment agreement or guaranteed investment 

contract are guaranteed by a financial institution whose senior long-term debt obligations have a rating (at the time 

such agreement or contract is entered into) one of the two highest rating categories for comparable types of obligations 

by each Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds at the request of FMPA ; and 

(xvii) any other investment in which FMPA is authorized from time to time to invest under applicable law 

with respect to which an Authorized Officer has, on or before the date thereof, delivered to the Trustee (A) a certificate 

to the Trustee designating the additional investment as an Investment Security and (B) a Rating Confirmation. 

Interest (net of the return of accrued interest paid in connection with the purchase of any investment) earned 

on any monies or investments in such Funds or Accounts, other than the Construction Fund, shall be paid into the 

Revenue Fund. Interest on monies or investments in the Construction Fund shall be held in such Fund for the purposes 

thereof. 

The Trustee and FMPA may deposit monies in all Funds and Accounts held by it under the Resolution in 

banks or trust companies organized under the laws of any state of the United States or national banking associations 

having capital stock, surplus and undivided earnings of $50,000,000 or more (“Depositories”). All monies held under 

the Resolution by the Trustee, FMPA or any Depository must be either (i) fully insured by the Federal Deposit 

Insurance Corporation, or (ii) continuously and fully secured by lodging with the Trustee or FMPA, as custodian, as 

collateral security, such securities as are described in clauses (i) through (iv), inclusive or in clause (viii), of the 

definition of “Investment Securities” having a market value not less than the amount of such monies, and secured in 

such other manner as may then be required by applicable Federal or State of Florida laws and regulations and 

applicable state laws and regulations of the state in which the Trustee, FMPA or such Depository is located; provided, 

however, that, to the extent permitted by law, it will not be necessary for the Trustee or any Paying Agent to give 

security for the deposit of any monies held in trust by it and set aside for the payment of the principal of, Redemption 

Price of, or interest on any Bonds, or for the Trustee, FMPA or any Depository to give security for any monies which 

are represented by obligations or certificates of deposit purchased as an investment of such monies. 

Creation of Liens 

FMPA will not issue any bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness of a similar nature, 

other than the Bonds and Parity Debt, payable out of or secured by a security interest in or pledge or assignment of 

the Trust Estate or other monies, securities or funds held or set aside under the Resolution, nor will it create or cause 

to be created any lien or charge thereon; provided, however, to the extent permitted by law, FMPA may issue (a) bond 

anticipation notes, (b) evidences of indebtedness (i) payable out of monies in the Construction Fund as part of the Cost 

of Acquisition and Construction or (ii) payable out of, or secured by a security interest in a pledge and assignment of, 

Revenues to be received after the discharge of the pledge of Revenues provided in the Resolution or (c) Subordinated 

Debt. 

Page 187 of 473



 

 D-11 

Rate Covenant 

FMPA covenants that it will fix, establish, maintain and collect rents, rates, fees and charges under the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts and shall otherwise charge and collect rents, rates, fees and charges for 

the use or the sale of the output, electric capacity and energy or service of the System which, together with other 

available Revenues, are reasonably expected to yield Net Revenues for the 12-month period commencing with the 

effective date of such rents, rates and charges which shall be equal to at least the Aggregate Debt Service for such 

period and, in any event, as shall be required, together with other available funds, to pay or discharge all other 

indebtedness, charges and liens whatsoever payable out of Revenues under the Resolution; provided, however, that 

any Principal Installment which is a Refundable Principal Installment may be excluded from Aggregate Debt Service 

for purposes of the foregoing but only to the extent that FMPA intends to pay such Principal Installment from sources 

other than Revenues. Promptly upon (a) any material decrease in any month in the Revenues anticipated to be produced 

by any rents, rates or charges at the time of adoption of such rents, rates or charges or any later review thereof, (b) any 

material increase in expenses of operation of the System on any month not contemplated at the time of adoption of 

the rents, rates and charges then in effect or any later review thereof, or (c) any other material change in the 

circumstances which were contemplated at the time such rents, rates and charges were most recently reviewed, but 

not less frequently than once every 12 months, FMPA shall review the rents, rates, fees and charges so established 

and shall promptly establish or revise such rents, rates, fees and charges as necessary to comply with the foregoing 

requirements, provided that such rents, rates, fees and charges shall in any event produce monies sufficient to enable 

FMPA to comply with all its covenants under the Resolution. 

In estimating Aggregate Debt Service on any Variable Rate Bonds for the purposes of the foregoing 

paragraph, FMPA shall be entitled to assume that such Variable Rate Bonds will bear such interest rate or rates as 

FMPA shall determine; provided, however, that the interest rate or rates assumed shall not be less than the interest 

rate borne by such Variable Rate Bonds at the time such estimate is made. 

Covenants with Respect to All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts 

FMPA covenants that it will collect and cause to be deposited in the Revenue Fund all amounts payable to it 

under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or payable to it pursuant to any other contract for the sale 

or the use of output, capacity, or other service from the System. FMPA will enforce the provisions of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts and duly perform its covenants and agreements thereunder. FMPA will 

not consent to any rescission of, or amendment to, or take any action under or in connection with, the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Contracts unless it complies with the requirements in the Resolution. 

Annual Budget 

FMPA will file with the Trustee an Annual Budget for each Fiscal Year. The Annual Budget will include 

monthly appropriations for the estimated Operation and Maintenance Expenses and other expenditures for the System 

for such year, monthly appropriations for the estimated amount to be credited during each month to the Rate 

Stabilization Account, the Operation and Maintenance Account and the Working Capital Account in the Operation 

and Maintenance Fund, and the estimated amount to be credited during each month in the Renewal and Replacement 

Account and the Contingency Account in the Reserve and Contingency Fund and the Decommissioning Fund, if 

established, and the requirements, if any, for and the amounts estimated to be expended during each month from each 

Fund and Account. FMPA shall review quarterly, and at such other times as it deems desirable, its estimates set forth 

in the Annual Budget and in the event such estimates do not substantially correspond with actual Revenues, Operation 

and Maintenance Expenses or other requirements, or if there are extraordinary expenses, FMPA shall prepare an 

amended Annual Budget for the remainder of such fiscal year. FMPA may also at any time adopt an amended Annual 

Budget for the remainder of the then current Fiscal Year. 

Insurance 

FMPA will use its best efforts to keep or cause to be kept the properties of the System which are of an 

insurable nature and of the character usually insured by those operating properties similar to the System and in which 

FMPA has an insurable interest insured against loss or damage by fire and from other causes customarily insured 

against and in such relative amounts as are usually obtained. FMPA will at all times use its best efforts to maintain or 

Page 188 of 473



 

 D-12 

cause to be maintained insurance or reserves against loss or damage from such hazards and risks to the person and 

property of others as are usually insured or reserved against by those operating properties similar to the properties of 

the System. FMPA will only be required to obtain such insurance if the same is available at reasonable rates and upon 

reasonable terms and conditions but if such insurance is not so obtainable, FMPA shall deliver an opinion to the 

Trustee of an independent insurance consultant to that effect. 

Accounts and Reports 

FMPA will keep or cause to be kept proper and separate books of records and accounts relating to the System, 

the Funds and Accounts established under the Resolution and relating to costs and charges under the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Contracts. Such books, together with all contracts and all other books and papers of FMPA 

relating to the System, will at all times be subject to the inspection of the Trustee and the holders of not less than 5% 

in principal amount of Bonds then outstanding. 

FMPA will file annually with the Trustee and the Consulting Engineer an annual report, accompanied by an 

accountant’s certificate, relating to the financial position of the System, statements of assets and liabilities, statements 

of Revenues and Operation and Maintenance Expenses, a summary with respect to Funds and Accounts established 

under the Resolution of the changes in financial condition during such year, and a statement as to the existence of any 

default under the provisions of the Resolution. 

FMPA will notify the Trustee forthwith of any Event of Default or default in the performance by FMPA of 

any covenant, agreement or condition of the Resolution. FMPA will file annually with the Trustee a certificate stating 

whether, to the best of the signer’s knowledge and belief, FMPA has complied with its covenants and obligations in 

the Resolution and whether there is then existing any Event of Default or other event which would become an Event 

of Default upon lapse of time. 

The reports, statements and other documents required to be furnished to the Trustee pursuant to provisions 

of the Resolution will be available for the inspection of holders of the Bonds at the office of the Trustee and will be 

mailed to each holder of the Bonds who files a written request therefor with FMPA. FMPA may charge for such 

reports, statements and other documents a reasonable fee to cover reproduction, handling and postage. 

Amendments and Supplemental Resolutions 

Any of the provisions of the Resolution may be amended by FMPA by a supplemental resolution upon the 

consent (a) of the holders of at least a majority in principal amount of the Bonds outstanding at the time such consent 

is given and (b) if less than all of the several Series of outstanding Bonds are affected of the holders of at least a 

majority in principal amount of each Series so affected and outstanding. No such amendment may permit a change in 

the terms of redemption (including Sinking Fund Installments) or maturity of the principal of any outstanding Bond 

or any installment of interest thereon or make any reduction in principal amount, redemption price or rate of interest 

without consent of each affected holder, or reduce the percentages of consents required for a further amendment. 

Also, to the extent that all or any portion of Bonds or any Series of Bonds are insured by any nationally 

recognized company engaged in the business of insuring municipal bonds, such insurance company will be deemed 

to be the holder of Bonds of any Series as to which it is the insurer at all times for the purpose of giving any approval 

or consent to the execution and delivery of any supplemental resolution or any amendment, change or modification of 

the Resolution which requires the written approval or consent of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal 

amount of Bonds of such Series at the time Outstanding. 

FMPA may adopt (without the consent of any holders of the Bonds) supplemental resolutions to close the 

Resolution against, or impose limitations upon, issuance of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness; to add to the 

covenants and agreements of FMPA in the Resolution; to add to the limitations and restrictions contained in the 

Resolution; to authorize Bonds of a Series; to authorize, in compliance with all applicable law, Bonds of each Series 

to be issued in the form of coupon bonds registrable as to principal only or in the form of Bonds issued and held in 

book-entry form on the books of FMPA or any Fiduciary appointed for that purpose by FMPA; to establish for any 

Series of Bonds a separate subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account and make such other amendments to the 

Page 189 of 473



 

 D-13 

Resolution necessary or desirable to insure that such Accounts and subaccounts functions in the manner contemplated; 

to authorize Parity Debt; to authorize Subordinated Debt of a Series; to provide for a Bond Support Facility, Reserve 

Account Credit Facility, Qualified Swap or other similar arrangement with respect to any Series of Bonds; to reflect 

the substitution of a new Bond Support Facility or a new Qualified Swap Provider; to confirm any pledge under the 

Resolution of Revenues or other monies, securities or other funds; to modify any of the provisions of the Resolution 

provided that such modification is effective only after all Bonds of each Series outstanding at the date of such 

modification will cease to be outstanding; to add additional Events of Default; to add provisions relating to the 

application of interest earnings on any Fund or Account under the Resolution required by law to preserve the 

exemption of interest received on Bonds then Outstanding or to be issued from Federal and/or State income taxation; 

and to appoint a Trustee. FMPA may adopt (without the consent of any holders of the Bonds but with the consent of 

the Trustee) supplemental resolutions to cure any ambiguity, supply any omission or cure or correct any defect or 

inconsistent provision in the Resolution, and to clarify matters or questions arising under the Resolution and not 

contrary to or inconsistent with the Resolution. 

In addition to the purposes described above, FMPA may with the consent of the Trustee but without the 

consent of Bondholders amend the Resolution to make any amendment or modification which the Trustee, in its sole 

discretion, determines will not have a material adverse effect on Bondholders. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Resolution to the contrary, the consent of the owners of any Series of Bonds 

to be issued thereunder shall be deemed given if the underwriters or initial purchasers for resale consent in writing to 

such Supplemental Resolution and the nature of the amendment effected by such Supplemental Resolution is disclosed 

in the official statement or other offering document pursuant to which such Series of Additional Bonds is offered and 

sold to the public. 

Trustee, Paying Agents 

The Resolution requires the appointment by FMPA of one or more Paying Agents (which may include the 

Trustee). The Trustee may at any time resign on 120 days’ written notice to FMPA and may at any time be removed 

by FMPA with or without cause provided that no Event of Default exists or would exist with notice and/or passage of 

time. A successor Trustee may be appointed by FMPA, or if FMPA fails to appoint a successor Trustee within 60 

days, by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. Any successor Trustee must be 

a bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state or a national banking association having capital stock, 

surplus and undivided earnings aggregating at least $50,000,000 if there be such an entity willing to accept such 

appointment. 

Exchange, Transfer and Registry 

In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging the Bonds is exercised, FMPA will execute 

and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution. For every 

such exchange or transfer of the Bonds, FMPA or the Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for 

any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer. Neither FMPA 

nor the Bond Registrar will be required to transfer or exchange the Bonds for a period of 15 days next preceding an 

interest payment date or next preceding any selection of the Bonds to be redeemed or thereafter until after the mailing 

of any notice of redemption. 

Defeasance 

The pledge of the Trust Estate, and all covenants, agreements and other obligations of FMPA to the holders 

of the Bonds under the Resolution will cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied whenever 

all Bonds have been paid in full. Bonds will be deemed to have been so paid whenever the following conditions are 

met:  (a) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either monies in an amount which will be sufficient, or 

Investment Securities (as defined in the paragraph under the heading “Investments of Certain Funds and Accounts”), 

the principal of and the interest on which, when due, will provide monies which, together with any monies also 

deposited with the Trustee, will be sufficient, to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and 

interest due or to become due on such Bonds, (b) in the case of Bonds to be redeemed prior to maturity, FMPA has 

given to the Trustee instructions to mail the notice of redemption therefor, (c) in the event such Bonds are not subject 

Page 190 of 473



 

 D-14 

to redemption within the next succeeding 60 days, FMPA has given to the Trustee instructions to mail a notice to the 

holders of such Bonds that the deposit required by (a) above has been made with the Trustee and that such Bonds are 

deemed to be paid and stating the maturity or redemption date upon which monies are to be available to pay the 

principal or redemption price, if applicable, on such Bonds, and (d) all Parity Debt has been repaid in full or payment 

thereof has been otherwise provided for. The Trustee will, as and to the extent necessary, apply monies held by it as 

above described to the retirement of said Bonds in amounts equal to the unsatisfied balances of any Sinking Fund 

Installments with respect to such Bonds, all in the manner provided in the Resolution. 

If so directed by FMPA prior to (i) the maturity date of Bonds deemed to have been paid as described in the 

preceding paragraph which are not to be redeemed prior to their maturity date or (ii) the mailing of the notice referred 

to in clause (b) above with respect to Bonds deemed to have been paid as described above which are to be redeemed 

prior to their maturity date, the Trustee is required to apply monies deposited with it in respect of Bonds in accordance 

with clause (a) above and redeem or sell Investment Securities so deposited with it and apply the proceeds thereof to 

the purchase of such Bonds and the Bonds so purchased shall be immediately cancelled by the Trustee. No such Bonds 

shall be purchased unless the monies and the Investment Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee after such 

purchase and cancellation would be sufficient to pay when due the Principal Installment or redemption price, if 

applicable, and interest due, or to become due, on all Bonds in respect to which such monies and Investment Securities 

are being held by the Trustee. If, at any time prior to the happening of the events described in clauses (i) and (ii) of 

this paragraph, FMPA shall purchase or otherwise acquire any such Bonds and deliver such Bonds to the Trustee prior 

to their maturity date or redemption date, as the case may be, the Trustee shall immediately cancel all such Bonds so 

delivered. In the event that on any interest payment date as a result of any such purchases or deliveries and 

cancellations of Bonds the total amount of monies and Investment Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee is 

in excess of the total amount required to be deposited with the Trustee on such date in respect to the remaining Bonds 

in order to comply with clause (a) of the first paragraph of this section, the Trustee shall, if requested by FMPA, pay 

the amount of such excess to FMPA free and clear of the pledge or lien of the Resolution. 

For purposes of defeasance, Investment Securities mean (i) only such securities as are described in clause (i), 

(iv), (vi), (vii) or (viii) of the definition of Investment Securities under the caption “Investment of Certain Funds and 

Accounts” above which shall not be subject to redemption prior to their maturity other than at the option of the holder 

thereof; (ii) such securities as are described in clause (ii) of the definition of Investment Securities which shall not be 

subject to redemption prior to their maturity other than at the option of the Holder thereof or as to which an irrevocable 

notice of redemption of such securities on a specified redemption date has been given and such securities are not 

otherwise subject to redemption prior to such specified date other than at the option of the Holder thereof or (iii) upon 

compliance with the provisions of the following paragraph, securities described in clause (i), (iv), (vi), (vii) or (viii) 

of the definition of Investment Securities which are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the issuer 

thereof on a specified date or dates. 

Investment Securities described in clause (iii) of the foregoing paragraph may be included in the Investment 

Securities deposited with the Trustee for purposes of defeasance only if the determination as to whether the monies 

and Investment Securities to be deposited with the Trustee would be sufficient to pay when due, either at the maturity 

date thereof or, in the case of any Bonds to be redeemed prior to the maturity date thereof, on the redemption date or 

dates specified in any notice of redemption to be mailed by the Trustee or in the instructions to mail notice of 

redemption provided to the Trustee in accordance with the Resolution, the principal and Redemption Price, if 

applicable, and interest on the Bonds is made both on the assumption that the Investment Securities described in clause 

(iii) of the foregoing paragraph were not redeemed at the option of the issuer prior to the maturity date thereof and on 

the assumptions that such Investment Securities would be redeemed by the issuer thereof at its option on each date on 

which such option could be exercised, that as of such date or dates interest ceased to accrue on such Investment 

Securities and that the proceeds of such redemption would not be reinvested by the Trustee. 

In the event that Investment Securities described in such clause (iii) are deposited with the Trustee, then any 

notice of redemption to be mailed by the Trustee and any set of instructions relating to a notice of redemption given 

to the Trustee may provide, at the option of FMPA, that any redemption date or dates in respect of all or any portion 

of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date or dates may at the option of FMPA be changed to any other permissible 

redemption date or dates and that redemption dates may be established for any Bonds deemed to have been paid in 

accordance with the defeasance provisions of the Resolution upon their maturity date or dates at any time prior to the 

Page 191 of 473



 

 D-15 

actual mailing of any applicable notice of redemption in the event that all or any portion of such Investment Securities 

have been called for redemption or have been redeemed by the issuer thereof prior to the maturity date thereof. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

Events of Default specified in the Resolution include (i) failure to pay principal or redemption price of any 

Bond or Parity Reimbursement Obligation when due; (ii) failure to pay any interest installment on any Bond or Parity 

Reimbursement Obligation or the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund Installment thereon when due; (iii) certain 

events of bankruptcy or insolvency of FMPA, and (iv) default by FMPA in the performance or observance of any 

other of the covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in the Resolution or in the Bonds, and such 

default shall continue for a period of 90 days after written notice thereof specifying such default and requiring that it 

shall have been remedied and stating that such notice is a “Notice of Default” under the Resolution has been given to 

FMPA by the Trustee or to FMPA and to the Trustee by the Holders of not less than 10% principal amount of the 

Bonds Outstanding. Upon the happening of any such Event of Default the Trustee or the Holders of not less than 25% 

in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding may declare the principal of and any accrued interest on all Bonds 

then outstanding due and payable immediately (subject to a rescission of such declaration upon the curing of such 

default before the Bonds have matured). 

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default which has not been remedied, FMPA will, upon demand of the 

Trustee (a) order all Project Participants to make payments due under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contracts directly to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund, (b) grant to the Trustee all rights and remedies of 

FMPA in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, and (c) pay over or cause to be paid over to the 

Trustee forthwith, all monies, securities and funds held by FMPA in any Fund under the Resolution and all Revenues 

which are not paid directly to the Trustee. The Trustee will apply all monies, securities, funds and Revenues received 

during the continuance of an Event of Default in the following order:  (i) to payment of the reasonable and proper 

fees, charges, expenses and liabilities of the Trustee and Paying Agents, (ii) to the payment of Operation and 

Maintenance Expenses and for reasonable renewals, repairs and replacements of the System necessary in the Trustee’s 

judgment to prevent loss of Revenues, and (iii) to the payment of interest and principal or redemption price of Bonds 

or Parity Debt without preference or priority of interest over principal or principal over interest or of any installment 

of interest over any other installment of interest or of any Bond or Parity Debt over any other Bond or Parity Debt, 

unless the principal of all Bonds has not become or has not been declared due and payable, in which case first to the 

payment of interest and second to the payment of principal or redemption price on those Bonds or Parity Debt which 

have become due and payable in order of their due dates and, if the amount available is not sufficient to pay in full all 

the amounts due on any date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of interest, principal or 

redemption price due on such date. In addition, the Trustee will have the right to apply in an appropriate proceeding 

for appointment of a receiver of the System. 

If an Event of Default has occurred and has not been remedied the Trustee may, and on written request of the 

holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of Bonds outstanding must, proceed to protect and enforce its rights 

and the rights of the holders of the Bonds under the Resolution forthwith by a suit or suits in equity or at law, whether 

for the specific performance of any covenant in the Resolution or in aid of the execution of any power granted in the 

Resolution or for an accounting against FMPA or in the enforcement of any other legal or equitable right, as the 

Trustee deems most effectual to enforce any of its rights or to perform any of its duties under the Resolution. The 

Trustee may, and upon the request of the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then 

outstanding and upon being furnished with reasonable security and indemnity must, institute and maintain such suits 

and proceedings to prevent any impairment of the security under the Resolution or to preserve or protect the interests 

of the Trustee and of the holders of the Bonds. 

No holder of the Bonds will have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding for the enforcement of 

any provision of the Resolution or the execution of any trust under the Resolution or for any remedy under the 

Resolution, unless (a) such holder of the Bonds previously has given the Trustee written notice of an Event of Default, 

(b) the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding have filed a written request with the 

Trustee and have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity to exercise its powers or institute such suit, action or 

proceeding, (c) there have been offered to the Trustee adequate security and indemnity against its costs, expenses and 

liabilities to be incurred and (d) the Trustee has refused to comply with such request within 60 days after receipt of 

such notice, request and offer of indemnity. Nothing in the Resolution or the Bonds affects or impairs FMPA’s 

Page 192 of 473



 

 D-16 

obligation to pay the Bonds and interest thereon when due or the right of any holder of the Bonds to enforce such 

payment. 

The holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of Bonds then outstanding may direct the time, 

method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or of exercising any trust or 

power conferred upon the Trustee, subject to the Trustee’s right to decline to follow such direction upon advice of 

counsel as to the unlawfulness thereof or upon its good faith determination that such action would involve the Trustee 

in personal liability and the holders shall not indemnify the Trustee or would be unjustly prejudicial to holders of the 

Bonds not parties to such direction. 

If the Bonds have not yet been accelerated and with the consent of the Insurer, the holders of not less than a 

majority in principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding may, on behalf of the holders of all the Bonds, waive 

any past default under the Resolution and its consequences, except a default in the payment of interest on or principal 

of, or premium, if any, on the Bonds. 

Notice of Default 

Notice of the occurrence of any Event of Default will be promptly mailed to each registered owner of Bonds 

then outstanding at his address appearing in the registry books of FMPA. 

Additional Provisions Relating to the Offered Securities – Tax Covenants Relating to the Offered 

Securities 

FMPA covenants that, in order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes 

of the interest on the Offered Securities, FMPA will satisfy, or take such actions as are necessary to cause to be 

satisfied, each provision of the Code necessary to maintain such exclusion. In furtherance of this covenant, FMPA 

agrees to comply with such written instructions as may be provided by Bond Counsel. In furtherance of the covenant 

contained in the preceding sentence, FMPA agrees to continually comply with the provisions of the “Tax Certificate 

as to Arbitrage and the Provisions of Sections 141-150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986” to be executed by 

FMPA in connection with the execution and delivery of the Offered Securities, as amended from time to time. 

The Supplemental Resolution also contains provisions and restrictions with respect to defeasance which are 

related to the Code. 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACTS 

Term 

Unless otherwise described in this Official Statement, the All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts shall 

remain in effect until October 1, 2049, and are thereafter subject to an automatic extension of one additional year each 

October 1.  Each year the Power Supply Contract is automatically extended for one additional year so that it will 

always have a term of at least 30 years unless a Project Participant affirmatively elects, upon one year’s prior notice, 

not to extend the Power Supply Contract. See also “Withdrawal by Participant” below. 

Sale and Purchase 

FMPA agrees to sell and deliver to the Project Participant, and the Project Participant agrees to purchase and 

receive from FMPA, all electric capacity and energy (including any associated transmission and dispatching services) 

which the Project Participant shall require for the operation of its municipal electric system over and above the Project 

Participant’s Excluded Power Supply Resources, if any, specified in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contract and over and above Backup and Support Services (the “All-Requirements Services”). 

However, on any January 1, upon at least five years prior written notice to FMPA, the Project Participant 

may limit the maximum amount of electric capacity and energy required to be sold and delivered by FMPA and 

Page 193 of 473



 

 D-17 

purchased and received by the Project Participant as All-Requirements Services for the remainder of the term of the 

contract so as not to exceed the CROD determined as follows:  the “Contract Rate of Delivery” shall be the peak 

demand of the Project Participant for electric capacity and energy as All-Requirements Services under the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contract during the 12 months preceding the date one month prior to the date 

such limitation shall commence, as determined by FMPA, adjusted up or down by not more than 15% so as to provide 

optimal utilization of the FMPA power supply resources, such adjustment to be made by FMPA in its sole discretion. 

Such CROD shall be reduced by FMPA by the total of the Project Participant’s then current Capacity Credit Resources, 

and Partial Requirements Purchase Contract and any power supply resources the Project Participant is obligated to 

purchase from other FMPA power supply projects, if any, as defined and determined pursuant to the Project 

Participant’s Capacity and Energy Sales Contract, if applicable. However, such reduction of the CROD shall not result 

in a negative amount of the CROD. Additionally, the Project Participant may not make such a reduction in the CROD 

more than once during the term of the Contract. 

Payments by Each Participant 

Each Project Participant is required to pay for all electric capacity and energy furnished pursuant to its All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contract at its point or points of delivery according to rates to be established by 

FMPA. The rates of FMPA are to be reviewed at least once a year and, if necessary, revised so as to provide revenues 

sufficient to meet the estimated “Revenue Requirements” of FMPA. The term Revenue Requirements is defined to 

include generally all costs and expenses paid or incurred or to be paid or incurred by FMPA resulting from the 

ownership, operation, maintenance, termination, retirement from service and decommissioning of, and repairs, 

renewals, replacements, additions, improvements, betterments and modifications to, the System or otherwise relating 

to the acquisition and sale of electric capacity and energy and dispatching and transmission services, providing Back-

up and Support Services and the performance by FMPA of its obligations under the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Contracts. The term Revenue Requirements includes, without limitation, all debt service on Bonds issued by 

FMPA to finance its system and, all amounts required, under the Resolution, to be deposited in funds, including the 

Operation and Maintenance Fund established thereunder. FMPA is also required to bill each Project Participant 

monthly on a prompt and timely basis in accordance with a schedule to be determined by FMPA. 

If a Project Participant fails to take power made available by FMPA which it is required to take under its All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, it will be obligated to pay the Agency for such availability an amount 

equal to the product of the demand charge in FMPA’s rate schedule and the billing demand computed on the basis of 

the kilowatts that would otherwise have been taken from FMPA. 

Payments by each Participant under its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract shall be treated as 

an operating expense from the revenues of its electric utility system (or, if the electric utility system is part of an 

integrated utility system, from the revenues of such larger system), and from other funds of such system legally 

available therefor. The obligation of each Project Participant to make such payments is not a general obligation and 

each Project Participant is not required to make such payments from any funds other than those of its electric utility 

system or integrated utility system of the Project Participant of which the electric utility system is part, and from other 

funds of such system legally available therefor. 

The obligations of each Project Participant to make payments under the rate schedule shall not be subject to 

any reduction, whether by offset, counterclaim, recoupment or otherwise, and shall not be otherwise conditioned upon 

the performance by FMPA under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract or any other agreement. 

Rate Covenant 

Each Project Participant agrees to establish, levy and collect rents, rates and other charges for all products 

and services provided by its electric or integrated utility system which rents, rates, and other charges shall be at least 

sufficient (i) to meet the operation and maintenance expenses of such electric or integrated utility system, (ii) to comply 

with all covenants pertaining thereto contained in, and all other provisions of, any resolution, trust indenture, or other 

security agreement relating to any bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued or to be issued by the Project 

Participant, (iii) to generate funds sufficient to fulfill the terms of all other contracts and agreements made by the 

Project Participant, including, without limitation, its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, and (iv) to pay 

Page 194 of 473



 

 D-18 

all other amounts payable from or constituting a lien or charge on the revenues of its electric or integrated utility 

system. 

Restrictions on Disposition of Electrical System, Sales for Resale 

Each Project Participant has agreed that it will not sell, lease, abandon or otherwise dispose of all or 

substantially all of its electric or integrated utility system except on 90 days’ prior written notice to FMPA and, in any 

event, shall not so sell, lease, abandon or otherwise dispose of the same unless the following conditions are met:  (i) 

the Project Participant shall assign the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract and its rights and interest 

thereunder to the purchaser or lessee of the electric system and such purchaser or lessee shall assume all obligations 

of the Project Participant under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract; (ii) FMPA shall be permitted 

by then applicable law to sell electric capacity and energy to said purchaser or lessee, if any; and (iii) FMPA shall by 

appropriate action determine, in its sole discretion, that such sale, lease, abandonment or other disposition will not 

adversely affect FMPA’s ability to meet its obligations under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract or 

any contract, agreement or arrangement to which FMPA is a party as either principal or agent pursuant to which FMPA 

satisfies all or any part of its obligations to provide electric capacity and energy and dispatching and transmission 

services under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract or the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contracts with the other Project Participants, and will not adversely affect the value of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Contract as security for the payment of Bonds and interest thereon or adversely affect the eligibility of 

interest on Bonds then outstanding or which could be issued in the future for federal or State of Florida tax-exempt 

status. 

A Project Participant may sell at wholesale any of the electric capacity and energy delivered to it pursuant to 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract to any customer of the Project Participant or any other entity for 

resale by that customer or entity, provided that it has first given FMPA five years’ written notice of its intent to sell 

such electric capacity and energy and at the time of such notice provided FMPA with projected data regarding any 

such sales anticipated for the ensuing five year period. FMPA, after receipt of such notice, shall have 180 days in 

which to impose limits on the amount of electric capacity and energy to be sold or to veto such sale if the sale will 

jeopardize FMPA’s availability of resources to serve its Project Participants, increase the cost of electric capacity and 

energy to FMPA, or violate the covenant of the Project Participant that it shall not use or permit to be used any of the 

electric capacity and energy acquired under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract in any manner or 

for any purpose or take any other action or omit to take any action which would result in the loss of the federal or 

State of Florida tax-exempt status of the interest on any Bond or Bonds issued by FMPA or which could be issued by 

FMPA in the future. 

Authorization and Approval of Additional Projects for the System 

FMPA is authorized by the Project Participants to undertake projects to be included in the System as part of 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project from time to time which are necessary or desirable to enable FMPA to 

fulfill satisfactorily its obligations to use its best efforts to supply electric capacity and energy to the Project 

Participants pursuant to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts and which projects, to the extent 

required by the next paragraph, have been approved by the Executive Committee and the Project Participants pursuant 

to the terms of the next paragraph and to issue Bonds for the purpose of paying all or any part of the costs of any of 

the projects or for any other purposes authorized by the laws of the State of Florida relating to the System. 

The participation of FMPA in any project for the construction, acquisition, purchase, lease or other use of 

any generation, dispatching, load management or transmission resources, output or services that is to be included in 

the System requiring the issuance of Bonds by FMPA or assumption or guaranty by FMPA of other obligations or 

requiring the execution by FMPA of any power supply contract or agreement (other than interchange agreements with 

other utilities) with a basic term of more than seven (7) years must be approved by (a) a majority affirmative vote of 

all of the Project Participants, with each Project Participant entitled to cast one vote, and if so approved, (b) the 

Executive Committee, to the extent and in a manner provided by the laws of the State of Florida, the Interlocal 

Agreement, the By-Laws of FMPA and/or the Resolution. 

Page 195 of 473



 

 D-19 

Withdrawal by Participant 

A Participant may, but only upon satisfaction of certain conditions, terminate its Power Supply Contract and 

withdraw from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project by notifying FMPA and all other Participants in writing 

of its intention to do so at least three years prior to the intended Withdrawal Date (which date must be a September 

30). Any such notice shall be irrevocable. 

The Project Participant shall, on the anticipated Withdrawal Date, pay to FMPA an amount in cash equal to: 

1. the amount necessary to call (including payment of any required call premiums and interest to the 

call date or dates), on the first permissible call date or dates, a percentage of FMPA’s then outstanding Bonds (other 

than Bonds issued to finance additions to the System which FMPA committed to after the receipt of the Project 

Participant’s withdrawal notice) equal to the greater of the Project Participant’s share of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project’s total electric load on the date of receipt of the withdrawal notice or such share on the Withdrawal 

Date. Such amount shall be calculated on the assumption that the Bonds to be called will be the applicable percentage 

of each Series of such Bonds and of each maturity within each such Series. Unless all or any portion of such cash is 

needed at any time to cure any deficiency in any fund or account under the Resolution, FMPA will deposit such 

amount in a separate account in the General Reserve Fund and will retain such amount in such account pending its 

application to redeem Bonds, to purchase Bonds in the open market, or to pay other capital costs of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project; pending the decision as to such application, such cash may be invested only in 

securities which could be deposited in an escrow fund to defease Bonds under the Resolution; and 

2. an amount equal to the present value on the Withdrawal Date, calculated at the rate of 6% per annum, 

of all of the additional costs reasonably incurred, paid or reasonably anticipated to be incurred or paid, or reasonably 

projected to be incurred by FMPA (as determined by FMPA in its sole discretion) as a result of the withdrawal of the 

Project Participant, over the term specified in such Project Participant’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contract (as determined on the anticipated Withdrawal Date). Such costs shall be determined on the assumption that, 

during the remaining term of such Project Participant’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, FMPA was 

unable to make use of or sell any generating, transmission or other resources (or portions thereof) which FMPA had 

anticipated would be used to supply, or had acquired with the intention of supplying, all or any portion of the 

withdrawing Project Participant’s electric load. Such amount shall, unless all or any portion thereof is required at any 

time to be used to cure any deficiency in any fund or account under the Resolution, be deposited into and retained in 

a separate account in the General Reserve Fund to be applied to pay any such costs actually incurred and/or to make 

any payments required to be made to such withdrawing Project Participant described below. 

If and to the extent that any amounts received by FMPA pursuant to either clause 1 or clause 2 described 

above are applied to cure any deficiency in any fund or account under the Resolution, FMPA shall be required to 

restore to the separate account under clause 1 or clause 2 the amount so applied from the Revenues (as defined in the 

Resolution) of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and FMPA shall treat such obligation to restore as an 

expense of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project in determining Revenue Requirements. In addition, at the end 

of each fiscal year of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, FMPA may, in its sole discretion, remove from 

either the separate account provided for payments received under clause 1 described above or the account provided 

for payments received under clause 2 described above, or both, such amounts determined by FMPA to be in excess of 

the amounts needed to make the payments anticipated to be made from such accounts and deposit such excess amounts 

in the General Reserve Fund itself. 

In addition to the cash payments described above, any such withdrawal is subject to the receipt of the 

following approval, confirmation and opinion. If FMPA has Bonds outstanding which are secured by some form of 

credit support, any required approvals of the provider thereof shall have been obtained within six months of receipt of 

notice of withdrawal. If FMPA has any Bonds outstanding which are not so secured and which are rated by a national 

rating agency, the rating in effect prior to the delivery to FMPA of notice of such withdrawal must be confirmed by 

the rating agency within six months of such notice of withdrawal. FMPA must receive an opinion of Bond Counsel 

which determines that such withdrawal does not adversely affect the federal and/or State of Florida tax-exempt status 

on any Bonds then outstanding or which FMPA may issue in the future. If such withdrawal would require FMPA to 

obtain a “cap’ allocation to issue any future Bonds, such requirement shall be treated as adversely affecting the federal 

and/or State of Florida tax-exempt status of Bonds or future bonds. 

Page 196 of 473



 

 D-20 

Within 180 days after the first anniversary of such withdrawal and annually thereafter for the specified term 

of the withdrawing Project Participant’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract (as such term is determined 

on the Withdrawal Date), FMPA will pay to the withdrawing Project Participant an amount equal to the additional 

benefits actually received by FMPA during the preceding year as a result of such withdrawal as calculated by FMPA 

in its sole discretion. The net amount of payments to the withdrawing Project Participant may not exceed 90% of the 

payment to FMPA by the Project Participant as described in clause 2 above. To the extent that the amounts remaining 

on deposit in the separate account described in clause 2 above are, or are anticipated to be, insufficient to make any 

payment described in this paragraph, the amount required to make such payment shall be treated as an expense of the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project to be recovered as a Revenue Requirement. 

If all of the foregoing conditions have not been satisfied on the anticipated Withdrawal Date, the Project 

Participant shall continue as a Project Participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. In such event, the 

Project Participant shall pay all costs incurred by FMPA as a result of the Project Participant’s anticipated withdrawal 

and subsequent continuance in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and FMPA shall have no obligation to 

make any payments to the Project Participant described in the preceding paragraph. 

Page 197 of 473



 

 E-1 

APPENDIX E 

 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon delivery of the Offered Securities in definitive form, Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel 

to FMPA, proposes to render its final approving opinion in substantially the following form:  

[Date of Closing] 

Executive Committee 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have examined a record of proceedings relating to the issuance of the $________ aggregate principal 

amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “2019A Bonds”), 

$________ aggregate principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “2019B Bonds” and, collectively with the 2019A Bonds, the “Offered Securities”) of 

Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”), a governmental legal entity of the State of Florida, organized and 

existing under Section 163.01 and Chapter 36l, Part II, of the Florida Statutes, as amended (collectively, the “Act”). 

The Offered Securities are issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Florida, 

and particularly Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, and under and pursuant to a resolution of FMPA 

adopted on March 22, 1985 entitled “All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution”, as amended 

and restated in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as supplemented and amended to the date hereof, including as 

supplemented and amended by the Supplemental and Amendatory All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bond Resolution (Governance Amendments) adopted May 24, 2007 and as supplemented by the Series 2019A 

Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the 

2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the 2019B Bonds, each adopted on [________], 2019 (such All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution as so supplemented and amended being herein called the “Resolution”). 

The Offered Securities are numbered from one (1) consecutively upward and have the numbers and letters 

19AR- prefixed to their numbers in the case of the 2019A Bonds and the numbers and letters 19BR- prefixed to their 

numbers in the case of the 2019B Bonds. The Offered Securities are dated their date of delivery, and, except as 

otherwise provided in the Resolution, bear interest from such date or the most recent payment date to which interest 

has been paid or duly provided for. Interest on the Offered Securities is payable on each April 1 and October 1, 

commencing April 1, 2020. The Offered Securities will mature on the dates and in the principal amounts, and will 

bear interest at the respective rates per annum, shown or described in the Official Statement relating to the Offered 

Securities. The Offered Securities are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.  

The Offered Securities are issuable in the form of fully registered bonds in the denomination of $5,000 or 

any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof. The Offered Securities are exchangeable as provided in the 

Resolution. 

FMPA reserves the right to issue Additional Bonds and Refunding Bonds on the terms and conditions and 

for the purposes stated in the Resolution. Under the provisions of the Resolution, such Additional Bonds will rank 

equally as to security and payment with the Offered Securities and with FMPA’s currently Outstanding All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds. 

All terms defined in the Resolution and used herein shall have the meanings assigned in the Resolution, 

except where the context hereof otherwise requires. 

Page 198 of 473



 

 E-2 

FMPA has entered into separate All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts with [fourteen] Florida 

entities (the “Participants”) (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the “Power Supply Contracts”), 

pursuant to which FMPA will sell and deliver to each Participant, and each Participant agrees to purchase and receive 

from FMPA, all electric capacity and energy (including any associated transmission and dispatching services) which 

such Participant shall require for the operation of its municipal electric system over and above the Excluded Power 

Supply Resources (as defined in the Power Supply Contracts) or, if a Participant has so elected, electric capacity and 

energy at a CROD (as defined in the Power Supply Contracts). The payments by each Participant under its Power 

Supply Contract shall be treated as an operating expense payable from the revenues of its electric utility system (or, if 

the electric utility system is part of an integrated utility system, from the revenues of such larger system) and from 

other funds of such system legally available therefor. The obligation of each Participant to make such payments is not 

a general obligation, and each Participant is not required to make such payments from any funds other than those of 

its electric utility system, or integrated utility system of the Participant of which the electric utility system is part, and 

from other funds of such system legally available therefor. 

We have also examined one of said 2019A Bonds and one of said 2019B Bonds, as executed and, in our 

opinion, the form of said 2019A Bond and the form of said 2019B Bond are each regular and proper. 

We are of the opinion that: 

1. FMPA is a governmental legal entity duly created and validly existing under the provisions of the 

Act. 

2. FMPA has the right and power under the Act to adopt the Resolution, and the Resolution has been 

duly and lawfully adopted by FMPA, is in full force and effect, is valid and binding upon FMPA and is enforceable 

in accordance with its terms, and no other authorization for the Resolution is required. The Resolution creates the 

valid pledge which it purports to create for the benefit of the holders of the Offered Securities of (i) the proceeds of 

the sale of Bonds (ii) all right, title and interest of FMPA in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the 

Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all Funds, established by the Resolution (other than the 

Decommissioning Fund, if established) including the investment income, if any, thereon, subject only to the provisions 

of the Resolution permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Resolution. 

3. FMPA is duly authorized and entitled to issue the Offered Securities, and the Offered Securities 

have been duly and validly authorized and issued by FMPA in accordance with the Constitution and Statutes of the 

State of Florida, and particularly Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, and the Resolution, and constitute 

the valid and binding obligations of FMPA as provided in the Resolution, enforceable in accordance with their terms 

and the terms of the Resolution and entitled to the benefits of the Act and the Resolution. The Offered Securities are 

special obligations of FMPA payable solely out of the Revenues and other funds pledged thereto under the Resolution, 

and neither the State of Florida nor any political subdivision thereof, nor any city or other entity which is a member 

of FMPA, other than FMPA, is obligated to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Offered 

Securities, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of Florida or any political subdivision 

thereof or any such city or other entity is pledged to the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest 

on the Offered Securities. Under the Resolution, FMPA may issue additional Bonds and may incur additional 

obligations constituting Parity Debt on parity with the Bonds. 

4. FMPA has the right and power to enter into and carry out its obligations under each Power Supply 

Contract, and each Power Supply Contract has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by FMPA and, assuming 

due authorization, execution and delivery by each respective Participant, constitutes a valid and binding agreement of 

FMPA in accordance with its terms. 

5. The Refunded Bonds have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the 

Resolution, and the covenants, agreements and obligations of FMPA to the holders of the Refunded Bonds have been 

discharged and satisfied. 

6. Under the Constitution and general laws of the State of Florida, the Power Supply Contracts of the 

respective Participants constitute the valid and binding agreements of the respective Participants, enforceable in 

Page 199 of 473



 

 E-3 

accordance with their respective terms. In rendering the foregoing opinion, we have made no investigation of, and do 

not express any opinion with respect to, the following as they may relate to the valid and binding nature of such Power 

Supply Contracts:  (i) the legal existence or formation of any Participant or the incumbency of any official or officer 

thereof, (ii) the charter, bylaws or other governing instruments of any Participant, (iii) any local or special acts or any 

ordinance, resolution or other proceedings of any Participant, including, without limitation, any proceedings relating 

to the negotiation or authorization of any such Power Supply Contract or the execution, delivery or performance 

thereof, (iv) any bond resolution, indenture, contract, debt instrument, agreement or other instrument (other than such 

Power Supply Contracts) or any governmental order, regulation or rule of or applicable to any Participant, (v) any 

judicial order, judgment or decree in a proceeding to which any Participant is a party, or (vi) any approval, consent, 

filing, registration or authorization by or with any regulatory authority or other governmental or public agency, 

authority or person which may be or has been required for the authorization, execution, delivery or performance by 

any Participant of its Power Supply Contract. FMPA has received opinions, independent from this opinion, with 

respect to, among other things, the validity and enforceability of the Power Supply Contracts with the Participants 

rendered by legal counsel to the respective Participants. 

7. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), sets forth certain requirements which 

must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the 2019A Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded 

from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest 

on the 2019A Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue 

of the 2019A Bonds. Pursuant to the Resolution, FMPA has covenanted to comply with applicable requirements of 

the Code in order to maintain the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the 2019A Bonds pursuant to Section 

103(a) of the Code, and in furtherance thereof, to comply with the tax certificate executed by FMPA in connection 

with the issuance and delivery of the 2019A Bonds. In addition, FMPA has made certain factual representations and 

certifications of expectations as to tax matters, contained in that tax certificate. We have not independently verified 

the accuracy of those certifications and representations. Under existing law, and assuming compliance with the tax 

covenants described herein and the accuracy of the aforementioned representations and certifications, interest on the 

2019A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. We are 

also of the opinion that such interest is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax 

imposed under the Code. 

8. The excess of the principal amount of a maturity of the 2019A Bonds over the price at which price 

a substantial amount of such maturity of the 2019A Bonds was sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers or 

similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) (each, a “Discount Bond” and 

collectively the “Discount Bonds”)  constitutes original issue discount which is excluded from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the 2019A Bonds.  Further, such original issue discount accrues 

actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Discount Bond and the basis of each Discount Bond 

acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the amount of such accrued 

original issue discount.  The accrual of original issue discount may be taken into account as an increase in the amount 

of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning the Discount Bonds, 

even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment. 

9. We note that interest on the 2019B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes and so will be fully subject to federal income taxation; this opinion is not intended or provided by Bond 

Counsel to be used and cannot be used by an owner of the 2019B Bonds for the purpose of avoiding penalties that 

may be imposed on the owner of such 2019B Bonds.  The opinion set forth in this paragraph is provided to support 

the promotion or marketing of the 2019B Bonds.  Each owner of the 2019B Bonds should seek advice based on its 

particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor. 

Except as stated in the preceding paragraphs (7), (8) and (9), we express no opinion as to any other Federal, 

state or local tax consequences of the ownership or disposition of the Offered Securities. Furthermore, we express no 

opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with respect to the Offered Securities, or the interest 

thereon, if any action is taken or not taken with respect to the Offered Securities or the proceeds thereof upon the 

advice or approval of other bond counsel. 

The opinions set forth above are subject to the effect of, and restrictions and limitations imposed by or 

resulting from, bankruptcy, insolvency, debt adjustment, moratorium, reorganization or other similar laws affecting 

Page 200 of 473



 

 E-4 

creditors’ rights and judicial discretion and the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida 

and of the constitutional power of the United States of America. 

By use of the word “enforceable” in this opinion, we are not rendering any opinion as to the availability of 

the remedy of specific performance or other equitable relief. 

Very truly yours, 

Page 201 of 473



 

 F-1 

APPENDIX F 

 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Offered 

Securities. The Offered Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 

(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One 

fully-registered Offered Security certificate will be issued for each Series and maturity of the Offered Securities, in 

the aggregate principal amount of such Series and maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New 

York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 

Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 

and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and 

municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct 

Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and 

other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges 

between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct 

Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 

corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing 

Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed 

Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its 

regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 

brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial 

relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard & 

Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Offered Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 

will receive a credit for the Offered Securities on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 

each Offered Security (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. 

Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, 

expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their 

holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. 

Transfers of ownership interests in the Offered Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of 

Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates 

representing their ownership interests in Offered Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for 

the Offered Securities is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Offered Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 

registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 

authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Offered Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of 

Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of 

the actual Beneficial Owners of the Offered Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct 

Participants to whose accounts such Offered Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. 

The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 

customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 

Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 

arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF OFFERED SECURITIES MAY WISH TO TAKE CERTAIN STEPS TO AUGMENT 

THE TRANSMISSION TO THEM OF NOTICES OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE 

OFFERED SECURITIES, SUCH AS REDEMPTIONS, TENDERS, DEFAULTS, AND PROPOSED 

AMENDMENTS TO THE SECURITY DOCUMENTS. FOR EXAMPLE, BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF OFFERED 

Page 202 of 473

http://www.dtcc/


 

 F-2 

SECURITIES MAY WISH TO ASCERTAIN THAT THE NOMINEE HOLDING THE OFFERED SECURITIES 

FOR THEIR BENEFIT HAS AGREED TO OBTAIN AND TRANSMIT NOTICES TO BENEFICIAL OWNERS. 

IN THE ALTERNATIVE, BENEFICIAL OWNERS MAY WISH TO PROVIDE THEIR NAMES AND 

ADDRESSES TO THE REGISTRAR AND REQUEST THAT COPIES OF NOTICES BE PROVIDED DIRECTLY 

TO THEM. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Offered Securities within an issue are being 

redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to 

be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Offered 

Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual 

procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to FMPA as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy 

assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Offered Securities 

are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Offered Securities will be made to Cede 

& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit 

Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from FMPA or its 

agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants 

to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities 

held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such 

Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, or FMPA, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 

effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or 

such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of FMPA or the 

Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of 

such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Offered Securities purchased or tendered, through 

its Participant, to Tender Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Offered Securities by causing the Direct Participant 

to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Offered Securities, on DTC’s records, to Tender Agent. The requirement 

for physical delivery of Offered Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be 

deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Offered Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s 

records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Offered Securities to Tender Agent’s DTC account. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Offered Securities at any time 

by giving reasonable notice to FMPA or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor 

depository is not obtained, Offered Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

FMPA may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor 

securities depository). In that event, Offered Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

NEITHER FMPA NOR THE TRUSTEE NOR THE UNDERWRITER (OTHER THAN IN ITS 

CAPACITY, IF ANY, AS A DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR AN INDIRECT PARTICIPANT) WILL HAVE ANY 

OBLIGATION TO THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS 

FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO DTC’S PROCEDURES OR ANY PROCEDURES 

OR ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS AND THE 

PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT RELATING TO THE MAKING OF ANY DEMAND BY CEDE & CO. AS 

THE REGISTERED OWNER OF OFFERED SECURITIES, THE ADHERENCE TO SUCH PROCEDURES OR 

ARRANGEMENTS OR THE EFFECTIVENESS OF ANY ACTION TAKEN PURSUANT TO SUCH 

PROCEDURES OR ARRANGEMENTS. 

THE ABOVE INFORMATION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM HAS BEEN 

OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT FMPA BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT FMPA TAKES NO 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NEITHER FMPA NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE 

ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPANTS, BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR OTHER 

Page 203 of 473



 

 F-3 

NOMINEES OF SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNERS FOR (1) SENDING TRANSACTION STATEMENTS; 

(2) MAINTAINING, SUPERVISING OR REVIEWING, OR THE ACCURACY OF, ANY RECORDS 

MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNERS; 

(3) PAYMENT OR THE TIMELINESS OF PAYMENT BY DTC TO ANY PARTICIPANT, OR BY ANY 

PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER, OF ANY 

AMOUNT DUE IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUM, IF ANY, INTEREST OR 

PURCHASE PRICE ON OFFERED SECURITIES; (4) DELIVERY OR TIMELY DELIVERY BY DTC TO ANY 

PARTICIPANT, OR BY ANY PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO ANY 

BENEFICIAL OWNERS, OF ANY NOTICE (INCLUDING NOTICE OF REDEMPTION) OR OTHER 

COMMUNICATION WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE RESOLUTION 

TO BE GIVEN TO HOLDERS OR OWNERS OF OFFERED SECURITIES; (5) THE SELECTION OF THE 

BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF 

OFFERED SECURITIES; OR (6) ANY ACTION TAKEN BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEE AS THE REGISTERED 

OWNER OF OFFERED SECURITIES. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of Offered Securities, as nominee for DTC, references in this 

Official Statement to the Bondholders, Holders or registered owners of Offered Securities (other than under the caption 

“TAX MATTERS” herein) shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of Offered 

Securities. 

When reference is made to any action which is required or permitted to be taken by the Beneficial Owners, 

such reference shall only relate to those permitted to act (by statute, regulation or otherwise) on behalf of such 

Beneficial Owners for such purposes. When notices are given, they shall be sent by FMPA or the Trustee to DTC 

only. 

As long as the book-entry system is used for Offered Securities, the Trustee and FMPA will give any notices 

required to be given to Owners of Offered Securities only to DTC. Any failure of DTC to advise any Direct Participant, 

or of any Direct Participant to notify any Indirect Participant, or of any Direct Participant or Indirect Participant to 

notify any Beneficial Owner, of any such notice and its content or effect will not affect the validity of the action 

premised on such notice. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 

Participants to Indirect Participants and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 

governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 

time to time. Beneficial owners may desire to make arrangements with a Direct Participant or Indirect Participant so 

that all notices of redemption or other communications to DTC which affect such Beneficial Owners will be forwarded 

in writing by such Direct Participant or Indirect Participant. 

NEITHER FMPA NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO 

SUCH DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES, WITH 

RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, 

THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF OFFERED SECURITIES. 

For every transfer and exchange of a beneficial ownership interest in Offered Securities, the Beneficial Owner 

may be charged a sum sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation 

thereto. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to Offered Securities at any time by 

giving reasonable notice to FMPA or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository 

is not obtained, certificates for the Offered Securities are required to be printed and delivered. 

FMPA may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor 

securities depository). In that event, certificates for the Offered Securities will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from 

sources that FMPA believes to be reliable, but FMPA takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

Page 204 of 473



 

  

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 205 of 473



 

 G-1 

 

APPENDIX G 

 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER SEC RULE 15C2-12 

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the provisions of paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 

promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 

(“Rule 15c2-12”), FMPA and the Trustee will enter into a written agreement for the benefit of the holders of the 

Offered Securities (the “Disclosure Agreement”) to provide continuing disclosure. FMPA will undertake in the 

Disclosure Agreement to provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) in electronic format 

through the Electronic Municipal Market Access website of the MSRB (“EMMA”), currently located at 

https://emma.msrb.org, on an annual basis by no later than nine months after the end of each fiscal year of FMPA 

commencing with the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 certain financial information and operating data, referred 

to herein as “Annual Financial Information,” including, but not limited to annual financial statements of FMPA.  In 

addition, FMPA will undertake in the Disclosure Agreement, for the benefit of the holders of the Offered Securities, 

to provide to the MSRB, in a timely manner (not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of the event), 

the notices required to be provided by Rule 15c2-12 and described below. 

The required Annual Financial Information shall consist of (1) the annual agency financial information 

consisting of (A) financial and operating data relating to the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

consisting of: (i) a description of the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project; (ii) information of the type 

included in the table captioned “Historical and Projected Future Capacity Requirements and Resources” under the 

heading “THE PROJECT” for the three most recently completed fiscal years; (iii) historical operating results for the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project for the three most recently completed fiscal years, including net sales to 

Participants and net power costs; and (iv) information concerning the Agency’s debt service requirements for the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project; (B) a presentation of the Agency’s financial results in accordance with GAAP 

for the two most recent completed fiscal years for which that information is then currently available; (C) material 

litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with (D) such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid 

misunderstanding and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information and operating data 

concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the Agency (collectively, the “Annual Agency Financial 

Information”); and (2) the annual Major Participant financial information consisting of (A) financial and operating 

data consisting of:  (i) the information of the type contained herein in Appendix B — “THE MAJOR 

PARTICIPANTS”, after fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, other than the information contained under the 

heading “General”; (ii) information concerning sales of electric services, customers, and non-coincident peak demand; 

and (iii) a presentation of the Major Participants’ information concerning historical net energy requirements and peak 

demand; (B) material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with (C) such narrative explanation as may 

be necessary to avoid misunderstanding and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial 

information and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the Major Participants 

(collectively, the “Annual Major Participant Financial Information”).  For the purpose of determining which 

Participants constitute “Major Participants,” any Participant which as of September 30 in any year accounts for 10% 

or more of the Revenues for the All-Requirements Power Supply Project for the preceding fiscal year will be deemed 

a Major Participant. 

The type of historical financial information and operating data relating to FMPA described above is currently 

included herein under the headings “DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS,” “THE PROJECT” and “LITIGATION.”  

The type of financial information and operating data relating to the Major Participants described above is currently 

included herein under the headings “THE PROJECT PARTICIPANTS”, APPENDIX A — “MEMBERS’ 

PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS” and APPENDIX B — “THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS.”  The 

requirements contained in the undertaking discussed above are intended to set forth a general description of the type 

of financial information and operating data to be provided; such descriptions are not intended to state more than 

general categories of financial information and operating data; and where information required to be disclosed can no 

longer be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially changed or discontinued, a 

statement to that effect shall be provided. 

All or any portion of the Annual Financial Information, as well as the audited financial statements, may be 

incorporated therein by cross reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB through its 

EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, that if the document is an official 

Page 206 of 473



 

 G-2 

 

statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not have been filed elsewhere. Annual Financial 

Information for any fiscal year containing any modified operating data or financial information for each such fiscal 

year shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for such modification and the effect of such modification on the 

Annual Financial Information being provided for such fiscal year. If a change in accounting principles is included in 

any such modification, such Annual Financial Information shall present a comparison between the financial statements 

or information prepared on the basis of the modified accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the 

former accounting principles. Such comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 

accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial 

information. To the extent feasible, such comparison shall also be quantitative. A notice of any such change in 

accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB through its EMMA system. 

Pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, FMPA will undertake for the benefit 

of Holders of the Offered Securities to provide or cause to be provided either directly or through the Trustee, Audited 

Financial Statements of the Agency and the Major Participants by no later than nine months after the end of each fiscal 

year commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, when and if such audited financial statements 

become available and, if such audited financial statements are not available on the date which is nine months after the 

end of a fiscal year, the unaudited financial statements of FMPA and Major Participants for such fiscal year. The 

Audited Agency Financial Statements and the Audited Major Participant Financial Statements will be filed with the 

MSRB through its EMMA system. 

FMPA will undertake, for the benefit of Holders of the Offered Securities, to provide or cause to be provided 

either directly or through the Trustee, notice to EMMA of any of the following events (1) principal and interest 

payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves 

reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) 

substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the 

Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-

TEB) or other material notices and determinations with respect to the tax status of the Offered Securities or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the Offered Securities; (7) modifications to the rights of Holders of the 

Offered Securities, if material; (8) bond calls, if material; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property 

securing repayment of the Offered Securities, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) tender offers; (13) bankruptcy, 

insolvency, receivership or similar event of FMPA or a Major Participant; (14) consummation of a merger, 

consolidation or acquisition involving FMPA, the sale of all or substantially all of FMPA’s assets, other than in the 

ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a 

definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; (15) appointment of a 

successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if material; (16) the incurrence of a Financial 

Obligation (as defined below) of FMPA or a Major Participant, if material, or agreement as to covenants, events of 

default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of FMPA or a Major Participant, any 

of which affect holders of the Offered Securities, if material; (17) a default, event of acceleration, termination event, 

modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of FMPA or a Major 

Participant, any of which reflect financial difficulties and (18) failure to provide annual financial information as 

required.  “Financial Obligation” (i) means a: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative instrument entered into in connection 

with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (C) guarantee of (A) 

or (B), but (ii) shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the 

MSRB consistent with Rule 15c2-12. 

FMPA will request, obtain and provide, pursuant to the Power Supply Contracts or otherwise, Annual Major 

Participant Financial Information, Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, and information relating to any 

change in fiscal year and the basis on which audited financial statements are prepared, from time to time and in 

sufficient time to permit FMPA to comply with the provisions of the undertaking, and shall enforce such provisions 

of the undertaking; the failure of any Major Participant to furnish any such requested information or data shall not 

excuse the performance by FMPA of any of its obligations under the undertaking. Under the Power Supply Contracts, 

the Participants are required to furnish to FMPA, upon request, all information, financial statements and other 

documents as shall be reasonably necessary in connection with the financing of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project. 

Page 207 of 473



 

 G-3 

 

If FMPA fails to comply with any provision of its undertaking described herein, then the Trustee or any 

Holder of the Offered Securities (which will include beneficial owners during any period that DTC acts as securities 

depository for, and DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of, the Offered Securities) may enforce, for the equal 

benefit and protection of all Holders similarly situated, by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity, 

the undertaking against FMPA and any of its officers, agents and employees, and may compel FMPA or any such 

officers, agents or employees to perform and carry out their duties thereunder; provided that the sole and exclusive 

remedy for breach or default under the undertaking is an action to compel specific performance, and no person, 

including any Holder of Offered Securities, may recover monetary damages thereunder under any circumstances, and 

provided further that any challenge to the adequacy of any information under the undertaking may be brought only by 

the Trustee or the Holders of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Offered Securities at the time outstanding 

which are affected thereby. Failure to comply with any provisions of the undertaking shall not constitute a default 

under the Resolution nor give right to the Trustee or any Holder to exercise any of the remedies under the Resolution. 

The foregoing is intended to set forth a general description of the type of financial information and operating 

data that will be provided; the descriptions are not intended to state more than general categories of financial 

information and operating data; and where FMPA’s undertaking calls for information that no longer can be generated 

or is no longer relevant because the operations to which it related have been materially changed or discontinued, a 

statement to that effect will be provided.  FMPA does not anticipate that it often will be necessary to amend the 

undertaking. The undertaking, however, may be amended or modified under certain circumstances set forth therein 

and the undertaking will continue until the earlier of the date the Offered Securities have been paid in full or legally 

defeased pursuant to the Resolution or the date the undertaking is no longer required by law. Copies of the undertaking 

when executed by the parties will be on file at the office of FMPA. 

Page 208 of 473



 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 209 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

EXHIBIT C  

FORM OF ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

by and between 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

(ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT) 

and 

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

as Escrow Agent and Trustee 

______________________ 

Dated November ___, 2019 

______________________ 

Relating to the Payment on the Redemption Date of the  

Redemption Price and interest on the outstanding 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand  

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds 

Series 2013A (Taxable) 

 

 

Page 210 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- i - 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

SECTION 1.    Irrevocable Instructions. ..........................................................................................2 

SECTION 2.    Investment of Money. ............................................................................................ 4 

SECTION 3.    Substitute Securities. .............................................................................................. 4 

SECTION 4.    Bondholder’s Lien.................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 5.    Defeasance. ............................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 6.    Amendments. ......................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 7.    Bank’s Duties. ........................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 8.    Compensation......................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 9.    Governing Law. ..................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 10.  Counterparts. .......................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 11.  Severability. ........................................................................................................... 6 

 

Schedule 1 – BONDS TO BE REDEEMED ............................................................................ S-1-1 

Schedule 2 – DESCRIPTION OF ESCROW INVESTMENTS .............................................. S-2-1 

 

Exhibit A – FORM OF NOTICE OF REDEMPTION .................................................. Exhibit A-1 

Exhibit B – NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE AND PRIOR REDEMPTION .................... Exhibit B-1 

 

Page 211 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

 

ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

This ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (this “Escrow Agreement”) is made as of 

November ___, 2019, by and between the Florida Municipal Power Agency (All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project) (“FMPA”) and TD Bank, National Association, as escrow agent 

hereunder and as Trustee under the Resolution (defined below) (the “Bank”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, FMPA, under and pursuant to its All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety 

on May 23, 2003 (the “Bond Resolution”), as supplemented and amended including as 

supplemented by the Series 2008 Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution (Variable Rate Bonds), adopted by the Executive Committee on 

August 13, 2008 (the “Series 2008 Supplemental Resolution”), which authorized, among other 

things, the issuance of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C in an aggregate principal amount of $154,565,000 

(the “Series 2008C Bonds”), and as supplemented by the Series 2013A Supplemental All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted by the Executive 

Committee on July 19, 2013 (the “Series 2013 Supplemental Resolution” and together with the 

Series 2008 Supplemental Resolution, the “Refunded Bonds Supplemental Resolutions”), 

which authorized the issuance of $15,000,000 aggregate principal amount of All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) (the “Series 2013A Bonds”); 

and 

WHEREAS, FMPA wishes to defease all of the outstanding Series 2008C Bonds 

shown in Schedule 1 (“the “Refunded Series 2008C Bonds”) and all of the outstanding Series 

2013A Bonds shown in Schedule 1 (the “Refunded Series 2013A Bonds” and, together with the 

Refunded Series 2008C Bonds, the “Refunded Bonds”);  

WHEREAS, FMPA has determined to issue (i) $__________ principal amount 

of its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the 

“Series 2019A Bonds”) under and pursuant to the Bond Resolution and the Series 2019A 

Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate 

Bonds), adopted on September 19, 2019 (the “Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution”) and the 

Initial Bond Series Certificate, dated as of October __, 2019 (the “Series 2019A Bond Series 

Certificate), executed by FMPA in connection with the Series 2019A Bonds and (ii) 

$__________ principal amount of its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (the “Series 2019B Bonds”) under and pursuant to the Bond 

Resolution and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds), adopted on September 19, 2019 (the “Series 2019B 

Supplemental Resolution”) and the Initial Bond Series Certificate, dated as of October __, 2019 

(the “Series 2019B Bond Series Certificate), executed by FMPA in connection with the Series 

2019B Bonds (said Series 2019B Bond Series Certificate, together with the Bond Resolution, the 

Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution and the 

Series 2019A Bond Series Certificate(the “Resolution”);  

Page 212 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 2 - 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, a portion of the 

proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds will be provided to the Bank, along with $__________ from 

amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund to enable the Bank to 

have moneys sufficient to pay on the redemption date the redemption price of and interest on the 

Refunded Series 2008C Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution, a portion of the 

proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds will be provided to the Bank, along with $__________ from 

amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund to enable the Bank to 

have moneys sufficient to pay on the redemption date the redemption price of and interest on the 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFOR, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants, 

agreements and representations herein set forth, FMPA and the Bank hereby agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.    Irrevocable Instructions.  FMPA hereby irrevocably instructs the Bank, 

and the Bank hereby agrees, as follows: 

(a)    The Bank shall establish (i) a special trust account to be known as the “Florida 

Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2019A Escrow Account (the “Series 2019A Escrow Account”,” and (ii)  a special trust 

account to be known as the “Florida Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B Escrow Account (the “Series 2019B Escrow 

Account,” and together with the Series 2019A Escrow Account, the“Escrow Account”); 

(b)    On the date of delivery of the Series 2019A Bonds, FMPA shall deposit, or cause to 

be deposited, with the Bank the following amounts that the Bank shall deposit in the Series 

2019A Escrow Account (i) an amount equal to $__________ from the proceeds of the Series 

2019A Bonds, and (ii) an amount equal to $__________ from monies held by it as trustee under 

the Resolution in the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund with respect to the 

Refunded Series 2008C Bonds.  The Bank shall use $__________ of the amount deposited in the 

Series 2019A Escrow Account to purchase the escrow investments described in Schedule 2 

attached hereto (the “Series 2019A Escrow Investments”).  The remaining sum of 

$__________ shall be held in cash uninvested. 

(c)     On the date of delivery of the Series 2019B Bonds, FMPA shall deposit, or cause to 

be deposited, with the Bank the following amounts that the Bank shall deposit in the Series 

2019B Escrow Account (i) an amount equal to $__________ from the proceeds of the Series 

2019B Bonds, and (ii) an amount equal to $__________ from monies held by it as trustee under 

the Resolution in the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund with respect to the 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds.  The Bank shall use $__________ of the amount deposited in the 

Series 2019B Escrow Account to purchase the escrow investments described in Schedule 2 

attached hereto (the “Series 2019B Escrow Investments”).  The remaining sum of 

$__________ shall be held in cash uninvested. 

(d)    The Bank shall collect and deposit in the Series 2019A Escrow Account the 

principal of and interest on all investments (the “Series 2019A Earnings”) held for the account 

Page 213 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 3 - 
 

of the Series 2019A Escrow Account promptly as such principal matures and such interest 

becomes due and shall apply such principal and interest, together with any other moneys on 

deposit in the Series 2019A Escrow Account, in accordance with this Escrow Agreement; 

(e)    The Bank shall collect and deposit in the Series 2019B Escrow Account the 

principal of and interest on all investments (the “Series 2019B Earnings”) held for the account 

of the Series 2019B Escrow Account promptly as such principal matures and such interest 

becomes due and shall apply such principal and interest, together with any other moneys on 

deposit in the Series 2019B Escrow Account, in accordance with this Escrow Agreement; 

(f)    The Bank shall hold the Series 2019A Escrow Account, together with the Series 

2019A Escrow Investments and all money from time to time therein, as a special and separate 

trust account, wholly segregated from all other securities and money on deposit with the Bank, 

for the payment of the redemption price of and interest on the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds on 

their respective redemption date shown on Schedule 1 hereto; 

(g)    The Bank shall hold the Series 2019B Escrow Account, together with the Series 

2019B Escrow Investments and all money from time to time therein, as a special and separate 

trust account, wholly segregated from all other securities and money on deposit with the Bank, 

for the payment of the redemption price of and interest on the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds on 

their respective redemption date shown on Schedule 1 hereto; 

(h)    FMPA directs the Bank, as Trustee for the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds, to give 

notice of redemption of the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds to be redeemed on the applicable 

redemption date as provided in Section 405 of the Resolution, as supplemented by the Series 

2008 Supplemental Resolution relating to the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds, on behalf of FMPA 

in the form provided in Exhibit A attached hereto.  FMPA hereby directs the Bank, as Trustee for 

the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds, to give notice of redemption of the Refunded Series 2013A 

Bonds to be redeemed on the applicable redemption date as provided in Section 405 of the 

Resolution, as supplemented by the Series 2013A Supplemental Resolution relating to the 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds, on behalf of FMPA in the form provided in Exhibit A attached 

hereto.  FMPA directs the Bank, as Trustee for the Refunded Bonds, to provide notice of 

defeasance in the form provided in Exhibit B attached hereto for the Refunded Bonds.  

Redemption notices and defeasance notices distributed by the Trustee will be sent to bondholders 

pursuant to the Resolution and will be distributed to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 

(“MSRB”) through the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system. 

(i)    The Bank shall apply the money in the Escrow Account to the payment of the 

redemption price of and interest on the Refunded Bonds on their respective redemption dates in 

the amounts set forth in Schedule 1 hereto; and 

(j)    After payment in full in accordance herewith of the redemption price of and the 

interest due on the Refunded Bonds on their respective redemption dates, the Bank shall transfer 

(i) from the Series 2019A Escrow Account to the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund 

for the Series 2019A Bonds or to such other account directed by FMPA and in accordance with 

applicable law and acceptable to the Bond Counsel, held  under the Resolution, free and clear of 

the trusts created hereby, any and all money remaining in the Series 2019A Escrow Account and 

Page 214 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 4 - 
 

(ii) from the Series 2019B Escrow Account to the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service 

Fund for the Series 2019B Bonds or to such other account directed by FMPA and in accordance 

with applicable law and acceptable to the Bond Counsel, held  under the Resolution, free and 

clear of the trusts created hereby, any and all money remaining in the Series 2019B Escrow 

Account. 

Neither the Series 2019A Escrow Investments, the Series 2019B Escrow Investments, the 

money deposited in the Series 2019A Escrow Account, and the money deposited in the Series 

2019B Escrow Account pursuant to this Escrow Agreement, nor the principal or interest 

payments on any such Series 2019A Escrow Investments and Series 2019B Escrow Investments, 

respectively, shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than as set forth in this Escrow 

Agreement, and shall be held in trust for the payment of the redemption price of the Refunded 

Bonds when due and the payment of interest on the Refunded Bonds when due. 

SECTION 2.    Investment of Money.No money held in the Escrow Account shall be 

invested by the Bank other than as provided in Section 1(b) and Section 3 hereof. 

SECTION 3.    Substitution of Escrow Investments.(a) If any of the Series 2019A 

Escrow Investments or the Series 2019B Escrow Investments are not available for delivery on 

the date of the issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds or the Series 2019B Bonds, respectively, the 

Escrow Agent is directed to accept moneys and/or other Series 2019A Escrow Investments or 

Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable (“Substituted Securities”) in lieu thereof, 

provided:  (1) the Substituted Securities are non-callable direct obligations of the United States 

of America, (2) the maturing principal of and interest on such Substituted Securities is equal to 

or greater than the maturity value of the unavailable Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 

2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable and is payable on or prior to the dates payments were 

scheduled to be made on the unavailable Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B 

Escrow Investments, as applicable, (3) if moneys are delivered, such moneys (to be held 

uninvested) are delivered in an amount which, together with any Substituted Securities and any 

Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable listed in 

Schedule 2 hereof for which no substitution is made, will be sufficient to pay all of the principal 

of and interest to become due on the Refunded Bonds, (4) FMPA and Bond Counsel approve 

such substitution, and (5) FMPA, the Trustee and Bond Counsel receive verification from an 

independent certified public accountant stating that the principal of and interest on the 

Substituted Securities and the Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B Escrow 

Investments, as applicable together with the uninvested cash in the Series 2019A Escrow 

Account or Series 2019B Escrow Account, as applicable, will be sufficient, without 

reinvestment, to pay  all of the principal of and interest to become due on the Refunded Bonds.  

In the event that moneys are required to be delivered on the date of issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds or the Series 2019B Bonds and the original Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 

2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable become available and are tendered to the Escrow 

Agent at the original applicable price offered using the date of issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds or Series 2019B Bonds, as applicable by or on behalf of [_____] in full on or in part on or 

before [_______], the Escrow Agent shall accept such Series 2019A Escrow Investments or 

Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable and credit [______], in whole or on a pro-rated 

basis, as applicable, the moneys for any or all portions of the undelivered Series 2019A Escrow 

Investments or Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable. In the event that [___] delivers 

Page 215 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 5 - 
 

the original Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as 

applicable in part subsequent to the date of issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds or Series 2019B 

Bonds, such delivery must occur on [_____]. 

(b) Other than as provided in Section 3(a) hereof, FMPA shall not have, and 

hereby waives any right to deliver to the Bank, in substitution for any Series 2019A Escrow 

Investments or any Series 2019B Escrow Investments, any other securities or investments. 

SECTION 4.    Bondholder’s Lien.The Series 2019A Escrow Investments, money 

representing the Series 2019A Earnings thereon or redemption price thereof and any other 

money on deposit in the Series 2019A Escrow Account shall be subject to an express lien and 

trust for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds until used and applied in 

accordance with the terms of this Escrow Agreement subject to the provisions hereof. 

The Series 2019B Escrow Investments, money representing the Series 2019B 

Earnings thereon or redemption price thereof and any other money on deposit in the Series 

2019B Escrow Account shall be subject to an express lien and trust for the benefit of the holders 

of the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds until used and applied in accordance with the terms of this 

Escrow Agreement subject to the provisions hereof. 

SECTION 5.    Defeasance.In accordance with Section 1201 of the Resolution [and 

Section [___] of the Refunded Bonds Supplemental Resolutions], FMPA by this writing 

exercises the option to have the covenants, agreements and other obligations of FMPA to the 

holders of the Refunded Bonds discharged and satisfied. 

SECTION 6.    Amendments.This Escrow Agreement may not be amended except to 

cure any ambiguity or defect or inconsistent provision herein or any provision which is 

inconsistent with the Resolution or to insert such provisions clarifying matters or questions 

arising hereunder or under the Resolution as are necessary or desirable, provided that such 

provisions are not contrary to or inconsistent herewith or with the Resolutions. 

SECTION 7.    Bank’s Duties.The duties and obligations of the Bank shall be determined 

by the express provisions of this Escrow Agreement and the Bank shall not be liable except for 

the performance of such duties and obligations as are specifically set forth herein.  The Bank 

shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it so long as such action or omission is 

made or taken in good faith and belief by the Bank, and is within the discretion or rights or 

powers conferred upon it hereby.  The Bank shall not be liable in connection with the 

performance of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or default. 

SECTION 8.    Compensation.The Bank shall be entitled to, and FMPA hereby 

confirms its obligation to pay, the reasonable compensation heretofore mutually agreed to by 

FMPA and the Bank, for the performance of its duties and responsibilities hereunder.  The Bank 

shall not have any lien for the payment of any fees or expenses on any of the money or Series 

2019A Escrow Investments, Series 2019B Escrow Investments, Series 2019A Earnings or Series 

2019B Earnings from time to time held by it hereunder or transferred to any accounts held by it 

as trustee under the Resolution. 

Page 216 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 6 - 
 

SECTION 9.    Governing Law.This Escrow Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to conflict of law 

principles. 

SECTION 10.    Counterparts.This Escrow Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts and when each party hereto has executed and delivered at least one counterpart, this 

Escrow Agreement shall become binding on all parties and such counterparts shall be deemed to 

be one and the same document.   

SECTION 11.    Severability.If one or more provisions of this Escrow Agreement or the 

application of any such provisions to any set of circumstances shall be determined to be invalid 

or ineffective for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity and enforceability 

of the remaining provisions or the application of the same provisions or any of the remaining 

provisions to other circumstances. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page follows] 

Page 217 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

[Signature page to Escrow Agreement] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bank and FMPA have caused this Escrow Agreement to 

be executed by their respective duly authorized officers, all as of the date and year first above 

written. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

(ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY 

PROJECT) 

By:     

Authorized Officer 

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

   as Escrow Agent and Trustee 

By:     

Authorized Officer 

Page 218 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Schedule-1-1 
 

SCHEDULE 1 

BONDS TO BE REDEEMED 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2008C 

 

Amount Rate 

Maturity 

(October 1) CUSIP 

 

 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) 

Amount Rate 

Maturity 

(October 1) CUSIP 

 

Page 219 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Schedule-2-1 
 

SCHEDULE 2 

DESCRIPTION OF ESCROW INVESTMENTS 

SERIES 2019A ESCROW INVESTMENTS 

 

 

SERIES 2019B ESCROW INVESTMENTS 

 

Page 220 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT VARIABLE RATE DEMAND 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008C 

 

MATURING ON: 

Series Date CUSIP No. 1 

   

   

   

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS,  

SERIES 2013A (Taxable) 

MATURING ON: 

Series Date CUSIP No. 2 

   

   

   

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the (i) outstanding All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (the “Series 

2008C Bonds”) and (ii) outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2013A (Taxable) (the “Series 2013A Bonds”), in each case which mature on October 1 in 

each of the years set forth above (the Series 2008C Bonds together with the Series 2013A Bonds, 

the “Refunded Bonds”) that the above-mentioned Refunded Bonds have been called for 

redemption prior to maturity on [______]  in accordance with their terms at a redemption price 

equal to [100]% of the principal amount thereof, together in each case with accrued interest 

thereon to, but not including, [_______].  

                                                 
1  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

2  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

Page 221 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit A-2 
 

[The source of the funds to be used for such redemption is the principal of and interest on 

Investment Securities heretofore deposited with the Escrow Agent, together with moneys, if any, 

heretofore deposited with the Escrow Agent.] 

The redemption price of and accrued interest on the Refunded Bonds shall become due 

and payable on [________] and from and after [________] interest on the Refunded Bonds shall 

cease to accrue and be payable. 

To assure that the holders of the Refunded Bonds receive payment of the redemption 

price and accrued interest to which they are entitled, send your Registered Bond, unendorsed, 

about [two (2) weeks] prior to [______] to the principal corporate trust office of the Escrow 

Agent: 

 

By Mail By Hand 

[address] [address] 

[address] [address] 

Sending your certificates by registered, insured mail is recommended. 

To avoid a _____% backup withholding tax required by the Interest and Dividend Tax 

Compliance Act of 1983, holders must submit a properly completed IRS Form W-9 with their 

Bonds, unless such form has been previously provided. 

Dated this _____ day of __________, _____. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By: TD Bank, National Association, 

  as Escrow Agent and Trustee 

Page 222 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE AND [PRIOR] REDEMPTION 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

Relating to 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT VARIABLE RATE DEMAND 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

SERIES 2008C 

 

MATURING ON: 

Date CUSIP No. 1 

  

 

 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS,  

SERIES 2013A 

 

MATURING ON: 

Date CUSIP No. 2 

  

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the outstanding bonds designated Florida 

Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (the “Refunded Series 2008C Bonds”), and Florida 

Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 

2013A (the “Refunded Series 2013A Bonds” and, together with the Refunded Series 2008C 

Bonds, the “Refunded Bonds”) which mature on October 1 in each of the years set forth above 

(the “Refunded Bonds”) (i) that there has been deposited with TD Bank, National Association, as 

Escrow Agent, moneys and/or government obligations permitted by the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted by Florida Municipal Power Agency 

(the “Agency”) on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in the entirety on May 23, 2003, as 

amended and supplemented (the “Resolution”), the principal of and the interest on which when 

due will provide moneys which, together with such moneys deposited with the Escrow Agent, 

shall be sufficient and available to pay (a) on [_______] the principal of all Refunded Series 

2008C Bonds and interest on all Refunded Series 2008C Bonds on and prior to such redemption 

                                                 
1  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

2  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

Page 223 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit B-2 
 

date, and (b) on [______] the principal of all Refunded Series 2013A Bonds and interest on all 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds on and prior to such redemption date; (ii) that the Escrow Agent 

has been irrevocably instructed to redeem (a) the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds on [________], 

and (b) the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds on [________] and (iii) that the Refunded Bonds are 

deemed to be paid in accordance the Resolution. 

Dated this _____ day of __________, _____. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By: TD Bank National Association, 

  as Escrow Agent 

 

Page 224 of 473



4836-5648-3232.7 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-EC7 

FMPA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

September 19, 2019 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF FLORIDA 

MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY (I) RECITING STATEMENT OF 

AUTHORITY; (II) APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE SERIES 2019B 

SUPPLEMENTAL ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION (FIXED RATE BONDS) WHICH 

AUTHORIZES THE ISSUANCE OF FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REFUNDING REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) TO BE SOLD ON OR 

BEFORE MAY 31, 2020 IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT SUFFICIENT TO 

PRODUCE NOT TO EXCEED EIGHT MILLION DOLLARS ($8,000,000) IN NET 

PROCEEDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING ALL OR A PORTION OF 

FMPA’S ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2013A AND TO PAY ANY COSTS OF ISSUANCE RELATED 

TO THE SERIES 2019B BONDS AND DELEGATES TO AUTHORIZED 

SIGNATORIES AND AUTHORIZED OFFICERS CERTAIN MATTERS 

RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH SERIES 2019B BONDS INCLUDING 

(1) WHETHER AND WHEN TO ISSUE SUCH SERIES 2019B BONDS, 

(2) DETERMINATION OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, MATURITIES, 

INTEREST RATES, SINKING FUND INSTALLMENTS AND OTHER 

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS OF THE SERIES 2019B BONDS, (3) APPROVAL 

OF THE SALE AND PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE SERIES 2019B BONDS, 

(4) DETERMINATION OF AMOUNT, IF ANY, OF THE DEBT SERVICE 

RESERVE REQUIREMENT FOR THE SERIES 2019B BONDS, (5) 

DETERMINATION OF THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SERIES 

2019B BONDS TO BE ISSUED, (6) DETERMINATION OF PRESENT VALUE 

SAVINGS FROM ISSUING THE SERIES 2019B BONDS AND FROM ISSUING 

FMPA’S ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REFUNDING 

REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A AND (7) DETERMINATION OF THE 

ADVISABILITY OF SECURING BOND INSURANCE FOR SUCH SERIES 2019B 

BONDS;  (III) MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AS TO THE REASONS 

REQUIRING THE NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE SERIES 2019B BONDS; (IV) 

ACKNOWLEDGING REQUIREMENT TO OBTAIN DISCLOSURE 

STATEMENT FROM THE UNDERWRITERS AND APPROVING THE FORM 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT; (V) AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE 

AWARD AND SALE  OF THE SERIES 2019B BONDS TO ONE OR MORE 

UNDERWRITERS OF BONDS OF FMPA AND THE EXECUTION OF A BOND 

PURCHASE CONTRACT; (VI) APPROVING THE PREPARATION, 

EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND USE OF A PRELIMINARY AND A FINAL 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT, THE DEEMING “FINAL” OF THE PRELIMINARY 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND 

PERFORMANCE OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND, IF 

NECESSARY, AN ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT; (VII) DESIGNATING 

AUTHORIZED OFFICERS AND APPROVING AND RATIFYING PREVIOUS 

ACTIONS; (VIII) PROVIDING FOR THE TAKING OF CERTAIN OTHER 

ACTIONS; (IX) PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND (X) PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

Page 225 of 473



4836-5648-3232.7 

 

- 2 - 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY (“FMPA”) THAT: 

SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This resolution (the “Resolution”) 

is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Part II, Chapter 361, Florida Statutes, as amended, 

Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, as amended, and Part II, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

SECTION 2.  APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE SERIES 2019B SUPPLEMENTAL 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION 

(FIXED RATE BONDS).  The terms of the Series 2019B Supplemental 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) (the “Series 

2019B Supplemental Resolution”), in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, which delegates to 

Authorized Signatories, defined therein, certain matters relating to the issuance by FMPA of its All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the 

“Series 2019B Bonds”) including, without limitation, whether and when to issue the Series 2019B Bonds, 

the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2019B Bonds, various matters relating to the initial issuance 

of the Series 2019B Bonds, including the interest rates, maturities, principal amounts, sinking fund 

installments and other redemption provisions relating to the Series 2019B Bonds, determination of 

amount, if any, of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series 2019B Bonds, determination of 

present value savings from issuing the Series 2019B Bonds and from issuing FMPA’s All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A, provisions relating to the sale and 

purchase of the Series 2019B Bonds, the execution and delivery of an Escrow Deposit Agreement, if any, 

are hereby approved and said Supplemental Resolution is hereby adopted and the Authorized Officers 

designated herein are hereby authorized and directed to execute and file the same with the Trustee.  In 

connection with such delegation, the Authorized Officers are further authorized to execute and deliver a 

Bond Series Certificate fixing the terms and other details of the Series 2019B Bonds. Capitalized terms 

used herein but not defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted by FMPA on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated 

in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as supplemented and amended (the “Bond Resolution”).  

SECTION 3.  FINDINGS RELATING TO THE NEGOTIATED SALE OF THE SERIES 

2019B BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE SERIES 2019B SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION.  

Pursuant to Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, as amended, it is hereby found, determined and declared in 

respect of any negotiated sale of the Series 2019B Bonds authorized by the Series 2019B Supplemental 

Resolution, as follows: 

3.01 The Series 2019B Bonds to be sold will provide funds to pay the costs of refunding all or 

a portion of FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A 

(the “Refunded Bonds”) and to pay Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2019B Bonds. 

3.02 The Series 2019B Bonds authorized by the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution are 

expected to be issued in a single series at a time deemed most beneficial to providing monies to refund the 

Refunded Bonds and to pay any Costs of Issuance relating to the Series 2019B Bonds as economically 

and expeditiously as possible and the successful sale of such Series 2019B Bonds would be made more 

difficult and expensive if required to be sold at competitive sale.   

3.03 Due to the characteristics of the Series 2019B Bonds, prevailing and anticipated market 

conditions and the need for flexibility in timing the issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds, it is necessary 

and in the best interests of FMPA to sell the Series 2019B Bonds at a negotiated sale to the underwriters, 

upon satisfaction of the terms and conditions set forth in the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution and 

in the Bond Purchase Contract (as defined below). 

Page 226 of 473



4836-5648-3232.7 

 

- 3 - 

 

 

SECTION 4.  ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF REQUIREMENT TO OBTAIN DISCLOSURE 

STATEMENT FROM UNDERWRITERS; APPROVAL OF FORM OF DISCLOSURE 

STATEMENT.  FMPA hereby acknowledges that it is required to receive from the Underwriters a 

disclosure statement containing the information required pursuant to Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes.  

The form of disclosure statement, in substantially the form attached as an exhibit to the form of Bond 

Purchase Contract attached as Exhibit “A” to the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution, is hereby 

approved (the “Bond Purchase Contract”). 

SECTION 5.  AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL FOR THE AWARD OF SALE OF 

THE SERIES 2019B BONDS TO THE UNDERWRITERS OF FMPA’S SERIES 2019B BONDS 

AND THE EXECUTION OF A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT BETWEEN FMPA AND 

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., AS REPRESENTATIVE OF THE UNDERWRITERS.  The sale of 

the Series 2019B Bonds to Barclays Capital Inc., on behalf of itself and as representative for BofA 

Securities, Inc. (collectively, the “Underwriters”), is hereby authorized, together with the execution and 

delivery by the Authorized Officers of a Bond Purchase Contract, substantially in the form attached to the 

Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution as Exhibit “A”, with such changes therein as such Authorized 

Officers may deem necessary or desirable, for such sale to the Underwriters, as provided in the Series 

2019B Supplemental Resolution.  

SECTION 6.  APPROVING THE FORM OF AND THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND 

THE USE OF A PRELIMINARY AND A FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AUTHORIZING 

THE AUTHORIZED OFFICERS TO DEEM “FINAL” THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 

STATEMENT, AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND PERFORMANCE OF 

A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND, IF NECESSARY, AN ESCROW 

DEPOSIT AGREEMENT.   

(a) The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized to prepare a Preliminary Official Statement 

and a Final Official Statement in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement approved 

and attached as Exhibit “B” to the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution, with such revisions to reflect 

the operations of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and with such other changes, omissions, 

insertions and revisions as the Authorized Officers may approve.  Such Authorized Officers are hereby 

authorized to make public and permit the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and to execute 

and deliver a final Official Statement relating to the Series 2019B Bonds on behalf of FMPA with such 

changes, omissions, insertions, revisions or modifications in and such additions to or deletions thereto as 

such Authorized Officers may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution 

thereof by such Authorized Officers and such Official Statement as so executed and delivered is hereby 

approved. The Authorized Officers are authorized to deliver a certification to the effect that the 

Preliminary Official Statement, together with such other documents, if any, described in such certificate 

was deemed final as of its date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Such Authorized Officers are also hereby authorized to execute, deliver and provide for the performance 

by FMPA of the terms and conditions of a Continuing Disclosure Agreement in substantially the form 

appended to the Bond Purchase Contract with such changes therein as such Officers deem necessary or 

desirable, such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution of such Continuing Disclosure 

Agreement by said Authorized Officers of FMPA. The Authorized Officers of FMPA are hereby 

authorized and directed to execute and deliver an Escrow Deposit Agreement, if necessary or desirable, in 

substantially the form attached to the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution as Exhibit “C,” subject to 

such changes or modifications therein as the Authorized Officers may approve as necessary or desirable 

thereto, such approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution of such Escrow Deposit Agreement 

by said Authorized Officers of FMPA.  

Page 227 of 473



4836-5648-3232.7 

 

- 4 - 

 

(b) The Preliminary Official Statement, Final Official Statement, Continuing Disclosure 

Agreement and all other disclosure documentation relating to the issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds will 

be prepared in accordance with FMPA’s Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures, adopted on 

November 10, 2015, as amended (the “Disclosure Procedures”). 

SECTION 7.  DESIGNATION OF AUTHORIZED OFFICERS AND APPROVAL AND 

RATIFICATION OF PREVIOUS ACTIONS.  The Chairperson of the Executive Committee and the 

Vice Chairperson of the Executive Committee and the Secretary, elected Treasurer, General Manager and 

CEO, any Assistant Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of FMPA are each hereby designated as (i) 

Authorized Officers for the purposes of executing and delivering the Series 2019B Supplemental 

Resolution and, subject to the provisions of the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution, taking any other 

actions authorized by this Resolution and in connection with the issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds 

under the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution and (ii) as Authorized Officers as defined in Section 

101 of the Bond Resolution for the purpose of executing and delivering the documents set forth herein 

and taking any other actions authorized by this Resolution in connection with the issuance of the Series 

2019B Bonds and any actions taken prior to the date hereof in connection with any actions authorized by 

this Resolution are hereby approved and ratified.  

SECTION 8.  FURTHER ACTIONS.  Each Authorized Officer designated hereunder is hereby 

authorized and empowered to take all further actions as may be necessary or desirable in carrying out the 

terms and provisions of this Resolution and each of the documents referred to herein. 

SECTION 9.  SEVERABILITY.  If one or more provisions of this Resolution should be 

determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such provisions shall be deemed to 

be severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and shall in no way affect the validity or 

enforceability of such remaining provisions. 

SECTION 10.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption. 

This Resolution 2019-EC[_] is hereby approved and adopted by the Executive Committee of the 

Florida Municipal Power Agency on September 19, 2019. 

  

Chairperson, Executive Committee 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

Page 228 of 473



4836-5648-3232.7 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that, on September 19, 2019, the above Resolution 2019-EC[_] was 

approved and adopted by the Executive Committee of the Florida Municipal Power Agency, and that this 

is a true and conformed copy of Resolution 2019-EC[_]. 

ATTEST: 

  

 Secretary or Assistant Secretary SEAL 

Page 229 of 473



4836-5648-3232.7 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) 

Page 230 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

_______________ 

Series 2019B Supplemental 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds)  

_______________ 

Adopted September 19, 2019 

 

 

Page 231 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- i - 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I. 

 

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

SECTION 1.01. Supplemental Resolution .................................................................................. 1 
SECTION 1.02. Definitions......................................................................................................... 1 
SECTION 1.03. Authority for this Supplemental Resolution ..................................................... 2 

ARTICLE II. 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF SERIES 2019B BONDS; 

TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 2019B BONDS 

SECTION 2.01. Principal Amount, Designation of Series, Purpose, Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement ...................................................................................................... 2 
SECTION 2.02. Date, Maturities, Principal Amounts and Interest ............................................. 3 
SECTION 2.03. Forms of Series 2019B Bonds and Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication, 

Denominations, Numbers and Letters............................................................... 3 
SECTION 2.04. Place and Medium of Payment; Paying Agent ................................................. 4 
SECTION 2.05. Sinking Fund Installments ................................................................................ 4 
SECTION 2.06. Redemption Prices and Terms .......................................................................... 4 
SECTION 2.07. Delegation to Authorized Signatories ............................................................... 4 
SECTION 2.08. Sale of Series 2019B Bonds. ............................................................................. 7 

SECTION 2.09. Compliance with Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures. .......................... 9 
SECTION 2.10. Appointment of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Series 2019B 

Bonds. ............................................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 2.11. Dealings in Series 2019B Bonds with FMPA................................................... 9 
SECTION 2.12. Book-Entry-Only System.................................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE III. 

 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIES 2019B BONDS 

SECTION 3.01. Disposition of Series 2019B Bond Proceeds. ................................................. 11 
SECTION 3.02. Purchase of Escrow Securities ........................................................................ 12 

ARTICLE IV. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 4.01. Effective Date ................................................................................................. 12 
 

Page 232 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

 

SERIES 2019B SUPPLEMENTAL 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION (FIXED RATE BONDS)  

BE IT RESOLVED by Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”) as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 

 

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

SECTION 1.01. Supplemental Resolution.  This Series 2019B Supplemental 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) 

(the “Supplemental Resolution”) is supplemental to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution adopted by FMPA on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its 

entirety on May 23, 2003, as supplemented and amended to the date hereof (the “Bond 

Resolution”).  The Bond Resolution as so supplemented and amended is hereinafter referred to 

as the “Resolution”. 

SECTION 1.02. Definitions.  1.  Except as provided by this Supplemental 

Resolution, all terms which are defined in Section 101 of the Resolution shall have the same 

meanings, respectively, in this Supplemental Resolution as such terms are given in said 

Section 101 of the Resolution. 

2. In this Supplemental Resolution: 

Authorized Signatories means (i) Chairperson of the Executive Committee or the Vice 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee and (ii) the General Manager and CEO of FMPA or the 

Chief Financial Officer of FMPA.  

Bond Counsel means Nixon Peabody LLP or any other attorney at law or a firm of 

attorneys, designated by FMPA, of nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the 

tax-exempt nature of interest on bonds issued by states and their political subdivisions, duly 

admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any state of the United States of 

America selected by FMPA. 

Bond Series Certificate means a certificate fixing the terms and other details of the 

Series 2019B Bonds, executed by the Authorized Signatories in accordance with delegation of 

power to do so under Section 2.07 hereof. 

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which 

commercial lenders in New York City or the State of Florida are closed. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable 

regulations thereunder. 

DTC means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, as initial Securities 

Depository or any substitute securities depository appointed pursuant to Section 2.12.3(c) hereof. 

Page 233 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 2 - 

 

Net Proceeds shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01 of this Supplemental 

Resolution. 

Opinion of Bond Counsel means a written opinion signed by Bond Counsel. 

Refunded Bonds means FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2013A to be refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds, 

as more particularly described in the Bond Series Certificate.  

Securities Depository means a recognized securities depository selected by FMPA to 

maintain a book-entry system with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds, and shall include any 

substitute for or successor to the securities depository initially acting as Securities Depository. 

Securities Depository Nominee means, as to any Securities Depository, such Securities 

Depository or the nominee of such Securities Depository in whose name there shall be registered 

on the registration books maintained by FMPA at the office of the Bond Registrar the bond 

certificates to be delivered to and immobilized at such Securities Depository during the 

continuation with such Securities Depository of participation in its book-entry system. 

Series 2019B Bonds means FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable), authorized by Article II of this Supplemental 

Resolution. 

Supplemental Resolution means, collectively, this Supplemental Resolution and Bond 

Series Certificate, which is supplemental to the Bond Resolution as from time to time amended 

or supplemented by other supplemental resolutions in accordance with the terms of the 

Resolution and the terms hereof.  This Supplemental Resolution shall constitute a “Supplemental 

Resolution” within the meaning of the Resolution. 

SECTION 1.03. Authority for this Supplemental Resolution.  This Supplemental 

Resolution is adopted (i) pursuant to the provisions of the Act and (ii) in accordance with 

Article II and Article X of the Bond Resolution. 

ARTICLE II. 

 

AUTHORIZATION OF SERIES 2019B BONDS;  

TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 2019B BONDS 

SECTION 2.01. Principal Amount, Designation of Series, Purpose, Debt 

Service Reserve Requirement.  1.  Pursuant to the provisions of the Bond Resolution, a Series 

of Additional Bonds entitled to the benefit, protection and security of the Bond Resolution, 

which for purposes of this Supplemental Resolution shall be referred to herein as the 

“Series 2019B Bonds”, is hereby authorized to be issued from the date of this Supplemental 

Resolution to and including May 31, 2020 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the 

principal amount necessary so that, after giving effect to any original issue discount 

(exclusive of any premium) and underwriters' discount from the principal amount and 

exclusive of the amount, if any, required to be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve 

Account to satisfy the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any (other than the amount, if 

Page 234 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 3 - 

 

any, provided from other available funds of FMPA), the amount to be applied to the 

refunding of the Refunded Bonds pursuant to Section 3.01(a) of this Supplemental 

Resolution, or otherwise applied to effectuate the purposes of subsection 3 of Section 2.01 

(exclusive of the amount so deposited therein determined in any Bond Series Certificate as 

estimated to be necessary to pay capitalized interest or to pay any Costs of Issuance of the 

Series 2019B Bonds) payable from the proceeds of such Series 2019B Bonds, shall not 

exceed the amount or amounts determined in the Bond Series Certificate to be necessary to 

effectuate the purposes set forth in subsection 3 of Section 2.01 hereof (“Net Proceeds”); 

provided, however, that as of any date of original issuance of any Series 2019B Bonds 

issued to finance all or a portion of the cost of refunding the Refunded Bonds, the aggregate 

amount of Net Proceeds shall not exceed $8,000,000. 

2. Series 2019B Bonds shall be designated as, and shall be distinguished from the 

Bonds of all other Series by the title, “All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B” or such other title or titles as are set forth in the Bond Series 

Certificate. 

3. The purposes for which the Series 2019B Bonds are issued is to provide for the 

payment of all or any part of the cost of refunding the Refunded Bonds deemed advisable by the 

Authorized Signatories executing a Bond Series Certificate pursuant to Section 2.07.1 hereof in 

accordance with Section 204 of the Bond Resolution, to fund the Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement, if any, to pay Costs of Issuance and to fund any related capitalized interest, all to 

the extent and in the manner provided in this Supplemental Resolution. 

4. The Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, for the Series 2019B Bonds shall 

be the amount set forth in the Bond Series Certificate. 

SECTION 2.02. Date, Maturities, Principal Amounts and Interest.  The 

Series 2019B Bonds, except as otherwise provided in the Resolution, shall be dated the date or 

dates determined in the Bond Series Certificate. The Series 2019B Bonds shall mature on the 

date or dates and in the year or years and principal amount or amounts, and shall bear interest at 

the rate or rates per annum, if any, specified in the Bond Series Certificate. 

The Series 2019B Bonds shall bear interest from their date or dates and be payable on 

such date or dates as may be determined pursuant to the Bond Series Certificate. Except as 

otherwise provided in the Bond Series Certificate, interest on the Series 2019B Bonds shall be 

computed on the basis of twelve 30-day months and a 360-day year. 

SECTION 2.03. Forms of Series 2019B Bonds and Trustee’s Certificate of 

Authentication, Denominations, Numbers and Letters.  1.  Unless otherwise provided in the 

Bond Series Certificate, the Series 2019B Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, subject 

to the provisions of a book-entry-only system (as hereinafter described), without coupons. 

Subject to the provisions of the Resolution, the form of registered Series 2019B Bonds, and the 

Trustee’s certificate of authentication, shall be substantially in the form and in the authorized 

denominations set forth in the Bond Series Certificate.  The Series 2019B Bonds shall be lettered 

and numbered as provided in the Bond Series Certificate. 

Page 235 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 4 - 

 

2. At the written direction of an Authorized Officer, “CUSIP” identification 

numbers will be imprinted on the Series 2019B Bonds, but such numbers shall not constitute a 

part of the contract evidenced by the Series 2019B Bonds and any error or omission with respect 

thereto shall not constitute cause for refusal of any purchaser to accept delivery of and pay for 

the Series 2019B Bonds.  In addition, failure on the part of FMPA or the Trustee to use such 

CUSIP numbers in any notice to Holders of the Series 2019B Bonds shall not constitute an event 

of default or any similar violation of FMPA’s contract with such Holders. 

SECTION 2.04. Place and Medium of Payment; Paying Agent.  Except as 

otherwise provided in the Bond Series Certificate, principal and Redemption Price of the 

Series 2019B Bonds shall be payable to the registered owner of each Series 2019B Bond when 

due upon presentation of such Series 2019B Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the 

Trustee. Except as otherwise provided in the Bond Series Certificate, interest on the registered 

Series 2019B Bonds will be paid by check or draft mailed on the interest payment date by the 

Paying Agent, to the registered owner at his address as it appears on the registration books or, at 

the option of any Holder of at least one million dollars ($1,000,000) in principal amount of the 

Series 2019B Bonds, by wire transfer in immediately available funds on each interest payment 

date to such Holder thereof upon written notice from such Holder to the Trustee, at such address 

as the Trustee may from time to time notify such Holder, containing the wire transfer address 

(which shall be in the continental United States) to which such Holder wishes to have such wire 

directed, if such written notice is received not less than twenty (20) days prior to the related 

interest payment date (such notice may refer to multiple interest payments). 

SECTION 2.05. Sinking Fund Installments.  The Series 2019B Bonds as 

determined in the Bond Series Certificate shall be subject to redemption in part, selected in such 

manner as the Trustee deems fair and appropriate, on each date in the year or years determined in 

the Bond Series Certificate at the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest up to but not 

including the date of redemption thereof, from mandatory Sinking Fund Installments which are 

required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on each such date the principal amount of 

such Series 2019B Bonds. 

SECTION 2.06. Redemption Prices and Terms.  The Series 2019B Bonds as 

determined in the Bond Series Certificate may also be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at 

the option of FMPA, at the Redemption Price or Redemption Prices, if any, and on the 

redemption terms, if any, as provided in the Bond Series Certificate, upon notice as provided in 

Article IV of the Resolution, at any time as a whole or in part (selected in such manner as the 

Trustee deems fair and appropriate within a maturity if less than all of a maturity is to be 

redeemed), from maturities designated by FMPA on and after the date and in the years and at a 

Redemption Price equal the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest up to but not 

including the redemption date. 

SECTION 2.07. Delegation to Authorized Signatories.  1.  There is hereby 

delegated to the Authorized Signatories, subject to the limitations contained in this Supplemental 

Resolution, the following powers with respect to the issuance of any Series 2019B Bonds: 

(a) to determine when to issue any Series 2019B Bonds, the amount of Net 

Proceeds to be provided by the Series 2019B Bonds, and the amount of the proceeds of 

Page 236 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 5 - 

 

the Series 2019B Bonds estimated to be necessary to pay the Costs of Issuance of the 

Series 2019B Bonds and to fund capitalized interest, if any;  

(b) to determine the amount, if any, of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement 

for the Series 2019B Bonds and the amount of the proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds 

estimated to be necessary to fund any such Debt Service Reserve Requirement; 

(c) to determine the principal amounts of the Series 2019B Bonds to be 

issued, which aggregate principal amounts shall not exceed the principal amounts 

permitted by Section 2.01 of this Supplemental Resolution, and to determine Accreted 

Values and Appreciated Values, if applicable; 

(d) to determine the maturity date and principal amount of each maturity of 

the Series 2019B Bonds and the amount and due date of each Sinking Fund Installment, 

if any; provided, however, that the final maturity date of the Series 2019B Bonds shall 

be no later than October 1, 2023;  

(e) to determine the date or dates which the Series 2019B Bonds shall be 

dated and the interest rate or rates of the Series 2019B Bonds; provided, however, that 

the Series 2019B Bonds shall not have a true interest cost in excess of 4.00%; 

(f) to determine the Redemption Price or Redemption Prices, if any, and the 

redemption terms, if any, for the Series 2019B Bonds; provided, however, that if the 

Series 2019B Bonds are to be redeemable at the election of FMPA, the Redemption 

Price shall not be greater than one hundred two percent (102%) of the principal amount 

of the Series 2019B Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon up to but not 

including the date of redemption; 

(g) to determine the purchase price for the Series 2019B Bonds to be paid by 

the purchasers referred to in the Purchase Contract, as such document is described in 

Section 2.08 of this Supplemental Resolution which may include such original issue 

discount and original issue premium as shall be determined in the Bond Series 

Certificate; provided, however, that the underwriters’ discount reflected in such purchase 

price shall not exceed $5.00 for each one thousand dollars ($1,000) principal amount of 

the Series 2019B Bonds;  

(h) to determine the advisability, as compared to an unenhanced transaction, 

of obtaining bond insurance, to select a provider or providers thereof and to determine 

and accept the terms and provisions and price thereof, to determine such other matters 

related thereto as in the opinion of the Authorized Signatories executing the Bond Series 

Certificate shall be considered necessary or appropriate and to effect such determinations 

by making any changes in or additions to this Supplemental Resolution required by bond 

insurance providers, if any, or required by a Rating Agency in order to attain or maintain 

specific ratings on the Series 2019B Bonds, or relating to the mechanisms for the 

repayment of amounts advanced thereunder or payment of fees, premiums, expenses or 

any other amounts, notices, the provision of information, and such other matters of a 

technical, mechanical, procedural or descriptive nature necessary or appropriate to 

Page 237 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 6 - 

 

obtain or implement bond insurance with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds, and to 

make any changes in connection therewith; 

(i) to take all actions required for the Series 2019B Bonds to be eligible under 

the rules and regulations of DTC for investment and trading as uncertificated securities, 

to execute and deliver a standard form of letter of representation with DTC and, 

notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained in this Supplemental 

Resolution, to include in the Bond Series Certificate such terms and provisions in 

addition to or modifying those contained in Section 2.12 hereof as may be appropriate or 

necessary to provide for uncertificated securities in lieu of Series 2019B Bonds issuable 

in fully registered form; 

(j) to determine whether to (i) enter into an Escrow Deposit Agreement (as 

hereinafter defined) or other arrangement in connection with the issuance of the Series 

2019B Bonds, including the selection of a verification agent, if any, and the manner of 

determining specified matters relating to the defeasance of the Refunded Bonds and 

(ii) purchase SLGs or open market securities and the form and substance thereof and any 

related investment agreement, and to determine the application of any amounts released 

in connection with any such refunding from any funds and accounts held under the 

Resolution;  

(k) to determine the present value savings from FMPA issuing the Series 

2019B Bonds as compared to the Refunded Bonds and from FMPA issuing the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A as 

compared to FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, such total combined present value savings 

shall be no less than negative present value savings of $500,000 and the Authorized 

Signatories may rely on a certificate from FMPA’s financial advisor in order to confirm 

the savings determinations made in this clause (k); 

(l) to make such changes in or from the form of this Supplemental Resolution 

as may be necessary or desirable in connection with obtaining a rating with respect to the 

Series 2019B Bonds or, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, in order to cure any 

ambiguities, inconsistencies or other defects; and 

(m) to determine such other matters specified in or permitted by (i) Sections 

202 and 204 of the Bond Resolution or (ii) any provision of this Supplemental 

Resolution, including preparation of any documentation therefore. 

2. The Authorized Signatories shall execute a Bond Series Certificate evidencing the 

determinations made pursuant to this Supplemental Resolution and any such Bond Series 

Certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the determinations of the Authorized Signatories as 

stated therein.  The Bond Series Certificate shall be delivered to the Trustee prior to or 

contemporaneous with the authentication and delivery of the Series 2019B Bonds accompanied 

by a certificate of Dunlap & Associates, Inc., as financial advisor to FMPA, certifying that, based 

on such assumptions  as such financial advisor deems appropriate, issuance of the Series 2019B 

Bonds for the purposes of refunding the Refunded Bonds and payment of the Costs of Issuance 

Page 238 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 7 - 

 

of the Series 2019B Bonds is advisable given current and expected financial market conditions.  

Determinations set forth in any Bond Series Certificate shall have the same effect as if set forth 

in this Supplemental Resolution. 

3. In the event that the Authorized Signatories exercise any of the authority 

delegated to them pursuant to this Section 2.07 and execute a Bond Series Certificate evidencing 

such exercise, a report describing the exercise of such delegated authority shall be delivered at 

the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Executive Committee of FMPA following the 

closing of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

SECTION 2.08. Sale of Series 2019B Bonds.    

1. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to sell and award the Series 2019B 

Bonds to the purchasers referred to in the Purchase Contract, which Purchase Contract shall be 

substantially in the form of the draft Purchase Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A with such 

revisions to reflect the terms and provisions of the Series 2019B Bonds as may be approved by 

the Officer executing the Purchase Contract (the “Purchase Contract”). Each Authorized Officer 

is hereby authorized to agree to the selection of the representative of the underwriters as referred 

to in the Purchase Contract and to execute and deliver the Purchase Contract for and on behalf 

and in the name of FMPA with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as may be 

approved by the Authorized Officer executing the Purchase Contract, said execution being 

conclusive evidence of such approval and concurrence in the selection of the representative of 

the underwriters; provided, however, that at or prior to the time of the execution and delivery of 

the Purchase Contract, FMPA shall have received from the senior managing underwriter the 

disclosure statement required pursuant to Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes.  The purchase 

price of the Series 2019B Bonds to be paid by the Underwriters pursuant to the Purchase 

Contract shall be determined as provided in Section 2.07 hereof, subject to the limitations set 

forth therein. 

2. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to make public and to authorize the 

use and distribution by said purchasers or other appropriate parties of a preliminary official 

statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) in connection with the public offering of the 

Series 2019B Bonds, in substantially the form of the draft Preliminary Official Statement 

attached hereto as Exhibit B with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such 

Officer shall deem necessary or appropriate. FMPA authorizes any of said Authorized Officers to 

deliver a certification to the effect that such Preliminary Official Statement, together with such 

other documents, if any, described in such certificate, was deemed final as of its date for 

purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission as applicable. 

3. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to make public and to authorize 

distribution of a final Official Statement in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official 

Statement, with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such Officer shall deem 

necessary or appropriate, to sign such Official Statement and to deliver such Official Statement 

to the purchasers of such issue of the Series 2019B Bonds, such execution being conclusive 

evidence of the approval of such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions. 

Page 239 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 8 - 

 

4. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver for and on 

behalf and in the name of FMPA, to the extent determined by such Authorized Officer to be 

necessary or convenient, a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, substantially in the form appended 

to the Purchase Contract, with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such Officer 

shall deem advisable (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”), said execution being conclusive 

evidence of the approval of such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions. 

5. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver for and on 

behalf and in the name of FMPA, to the extent determined by such Authorized Officer to be 

necessary or convenient, an Escrow Deposit Agreement, with TD Bank, National Association, as 

Escrow Agent (the "Escrow Agent"), substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, with 

such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as such Officer shall deem advisable (the 

"Escrow Deposit Agreement"), said execution being conclusive evidence of the approval of such 

changes, omissions, insertions and revisions. 

6. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to take any and all action which 

they deem necessary or advisable in order to effect the registration or qualification (or exemption 

therefrom) of the Series 2019B Bonds for issue, offer, sale or trade under the Blue Sky or 

securities laws of any of the states of the United States of America and in connection therewith 

to execute, acknowledge, verify, deliver, file or cause to be published any applications, reports, 

consents to service of process, appointments of attorneys to receive service of process and other 

papers and instruments which may be required under such laws, and to take any and all further 

action which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain any such registration or 

qualification for as long as they deem necessary or as required by law or by the underwriters. 

7. The proceeds of the good faith check, if any, received by FMPA from the 

purchasers of the Series 2019B Bonds under the terms of the Purchase Contract may be invested 

by FMPA pending application of the proceeds of such good faith check for the purposes 

provided in Section 2.01 of this Supplemental Resolution at the time of the issuance and delivery 

of such Series 2019B Bonds or such good faith check may be held by FMPA uncashed and 

returned to the representative of the underwriters at the time of the issuance and delivery of the 

Series 2019B Bonds. 

8. Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 

or cause to be executed and delivered any and all documents and instruments (including any 

insurance agreements or documents or instruments relating to bond insurance deemed 

appropriate) and to do and cause to be done any and all administrative acts and things as may be 

necessary or desirable in connection with the approval, execution and delivery of the Purchase 

Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Escrow Deposit Agreement, if any, the 

terms of any bond insurance or other such agreement or arrangement and the carrying out of their 

terms and the terms of the Bond Resolution and this Supplemental Resolution and the issuance, 

sale and delivery the Series 2019B Bonds and for implementing the terms of the Series 2019B 

Bonds and the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.  

9. When reference is made in this Supplemental Resolution to the authorization of 

an Authorized Officer to do any act, such act may be accomplished by any of such Officers 

individually. 

Page 240 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 9 - 

 

SECTION 2.09. Compliance with Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures.   

All actions taken by the Authorized Signatories under Section 2.07 and by the Authorized 

Officers under Section 2.08 shall be in compliance with all applicable provisions of FMPA’s 

Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures, adopted on November 10, 2015, as may be amended 

from time to time. 

SECTION 2.10. Appointment of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the 

Series 2019B Bonds.   Unless otherwise provided by the Bond Series Certificate, TD Bank, 

National Association is hereby appointed Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Series 2019B 

Bonds, such appointments to be effective immediately upon the filing of this Supplemental 

Resolution with the Trustee. 

SECTION 2.11. Dealings in Series 2019B Bonds with FMPA.   The Trustee, the 

Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar, each in its individual capacity, may in good faith buy, sell, 

own, hold and deal in any of the Series 2019B Bonds issued hereunder, and may join in any 

action which any Holder of the Series 2019B Bonds may be entitled to take with like effect as if 

it did not act in any capacity hereunder.  The Trustee, the Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar, 

each in its individual capacity, either as principal or agent, may also engage in or be interested in 

any financial or other transaction with FMPA, and may act as depository, trustee, or agent for 

any committee or body of Holders of any Series 2019B Bonds secured hereby or other 

obligations of FMPA as freely as if it did not act in any capacity hereunder. 

SECTION 2.12. Book-Entry-Only System.   1.  Except as provided in subsections 

2 and 3 of this Section 2.12, the registered holder of all Series 2019B Bonds shall be, and the 

Series 2019B Bonds shall be registered in the name of, Cede & Co. (“Cede”), as nominee of 

DTC.  Payment of interest for any Series 2019B Bond, as applicable, shall be made in 

accordance with the provisions of this Supplemental Resolution to the account of Cede on the 

interest payment dates for the Series 2019B Bonds at the address indicated for Cede in the 

registration books of FMPA kept by the Bond Registrar. 

2. (a)  The Series 2019B Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate 

single fully registered Bond in the amount of each separate stated maturity of the Series 2019B 

Bonds.  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such Series 2019B Bond shall be registered 

in the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC.  

With respect to Series 2019B Bonds so registered in the name of Cede, FMPA, the Trustee, the 

Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC 

participant or to any beneficial owner of any of such Series 2019B Bonds.  Without limiting the 

immediately preceding sentence, FMPA, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent 

shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, 

Cede or any DTC participant with respect to any beneficial ownership interest in the 

Series 2019B Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC participant, beneficial owner or other person, 

other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds, including any notice of 

redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC participant, beneficial owner or other person, other 

than DTC, of any amount with respect to the principal or Redemption Price of, or interest on, any 

of the Series 2019B Bonds.  FMPA, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and any Paying Agent may 

treat DTC as, and deem DTC to be, the absolute owner of each Series 2019B Bond for all 

purposes whatsoever, including (but not limited to) (a) payment of the principal or Redemption 

Page 241 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 10 - 

 

Price of, and interest on, each such Series 2019B Bond, (b) giving notices of redemption and 

other matters with respect to such Series 2019B Bonds and (c) registering transfers with respect 

to such Series 2019B Bonds.  The Paying Agent shall pay the principal or Redemption Price of, 

and interest on, all Series 2019B Bonds only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments 

shall be valid and effective to satisfy fully and discharge FMPA’s obligations with respect to 

such principal or Redemption Price and interest, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  Except 

as provided in subsection 3 of this Section 2.12, no person other than DTC shall receive a 

Series 2019B Bond evidencing the obligation of FMPA to make payments of principal or 

Redemption Price of, and interest on, any such Series 2019B Bond pursuant to the Resolution.  

Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to 

substitute a new nominee in place of Cede, and subject to the transfer provisions of the 

Resolution, the word “Cede” in this Supplemental Resolution shall refer to such new nominee of 

DTC. 

(b) Except as provided in subsection 3(c) of this Section 2.12, and notwithstanding 

any other provisions of the Resolution or this Supplemental Resolution, the Series 2019B Bonds 

may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC 

to DTC or another nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC to any successor securities 

depository appointed pursuant to this Section 2.12 or any nominee thereof. 

3. (a)   DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the 

Series 2019B Bonds at any time by giving written notice to FMPA, the Trustee, the Bond 

Registrar and the Paying Agent, which notice shall certify that DTC has discharged its 

responsibilities with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds under applicable law.   

(b) FMPA, in its sole discretion and without the consent of any other person, may, by 

written notice to the Trustee, terminate the services of DTC with respect to the Series 2019B 

Bonds if FMPA determines that the continuation of the system of book-entry-only transfers 

through DTC is not in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Series 2019B Bonds or 

FMPA; and FMPA shall, by written notice to the Trustee, terminate the services of DTC with 

respect to the Series 2019B Bonds upon receipt by FMPA, the Bond Registrar, the Trustee and 

the Paying Agent of written notice from DTC to the effect that DTC has received written notice 

from DTC participants having interests, as shown in the records of DTC, in an aggregate 

principal amount of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate principal amount of the 

then Outstanding Series 2019B Bonds to the effect that:  (i) DTC is unable to discharge its 

responsibilities with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds; or (ii) a continuation of the requirement 

that all of the Outstanding Series 2019B Bonds be registered in the registration books kept by 

Bond Registrar, in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC, is not in the best interests of the 

beneficial owners of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

(c) Upon the termination of the services of DTC with respect to the Series 2019B 

Bonds pursuant to subsection 3(b)(ii) hereof, or upon the discontinuance or termination of the 

services of DTC with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds pursuant to subsection 3(a) or 

subsection 3(b)(i) hereof, FMPA may within 90 days thereafter appoint a substitute Securities 

Depository which, in the opinion of FMPA, is willing and able to undertake the functions of 

DTC hereunder upon reasonable and customary terms.  If no such successor can be found within 

such period, the Series 2019B Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the 

Page 242 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 11 - 

 

registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, in the name of Cede, as nominee of DTC.  In such 

event, FMPA shall execute and the Trustee or its authenticating agent shall authenticate 

Series 2019B Bond certificates as requested by DTC of like principal amount, maturity and 

Series, in authorized denominations and the Trustee or its authenticating agent shall deliver such 

certificates at its corporate trust office to the beneficial owners identified in writing by the 

Securities Depository in replacement of such beneficial owners’ beneficial interests in the 

Series 2019B Bonds. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution or this Supplemental 

Resolution to the contrary, so long as any Series 2019B Bond is registered in the name of Cede, 

as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the principal or Redemption Price of, and 

interest on, such Series 2019B Bond and all notices with respect to such Series 2019B Bond shall 

be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the blanket letter of representations of 

FMPA addressed to DTC with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds. 

(e)  In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to Holders 

of Series 2019B Bonds registered in the name of Cede pursuant to the Resolution by FMPA or 

the Trustee with respect to any consent or other action to be taken by such Holders, FMPA shall 

establish a record date for such consent or other action by such Holders and give DTC notice of 

such record date not less than fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of such record date to the 

extent reasonably possible.  

ARTICLE III. 

 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF SERIES 2019B BONDS 

SECTION 3.01. Disposition of Series 2019B Bond Proceeds.   Unless otherwise 

provided in the Bond Series Certificate, any proceeds of the sale of the Series 2019B Bonds, 

other than accrued interest, if any, shall be applied, simultaneously with the issuance and 

delivery of the Series 2019B Bonds, at one time or from time to time in one or more Series or 

subseries, as follows: 

(a) the amount specified in the Bond Series Certificate shall be transferred to 

the Trustee or to the Escrow Agent under the Escrow Deposit Agreement, as applicable, to be 

applied to the refunding of the Refunded Bonds; and 

(b) the amount, if any, specified in the Bond Series Certificate shall be 

transferred to the Trustee to be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve Fund; and 

(c) the balance of such proceeds, exclusive of accrued interest, if any, shall be 

deposited in the Costs of Issuance Account which is deemed to be established for such Series in 

the Construction Fund and applied to the payment of Costs of Issuance. 

Unless otherwise provided in a Bond Series Certificate, the accrued interest, if any, and 

the capitalized interest, if any, received on the sale of the Series 2019B Bonds shall be deposited 

in the Debt Service Fund. 

Page 243 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

- 12 - 

 

SECTION 3.02. Purchase of Escrow Securities.  Upon the issuance of the 

Series 2019B Bonds, the Authorized Officers of FMPA may determine it is necessary or 

convenient for FMPA to enter into an Escrow Deposit Agreement for the purpose of securing the 

money and securities to be used to provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds.  In such 

event, the Authorized Officers of FMPA are hereby authorized (a) to deposit monies in an 

amount which shall be sufficient, or (b) to acquire or cause to be acquired either (i) state and 

local government series securities from the United States Treasury or (ii) open market securities 

acquired through a competitive bidding process, the principal of and the interest on which 

securities when due will provide monies which, together with the monies, if any, deposited with 

the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient, to pay when due the principal or Redemption 

Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become due on said Refunded Bonds on or prior to 

the redemption date or maturity date thereof in accordance with Article XII of the Bond 

Resolution. 

.   

ARTICLE IV. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 4.01. Effective Date.  This Series 2019B Supplemental All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) shall take 

effect immediately after its adoption by the Executive Committee and the filing of a copy thereof 

certified by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Executive Committee with the Trustee. 

 FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ATTEST: 

By:    

Secretary or Assistant Secretary 

By:    

          Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

 

Page 244 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Form of Bond Purchase Contract 

Page 245 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Form of Preliminary Official Statement 

Page 246 of 473



4815-3754-7679.5 

 

 

C-1 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Form of Escrow Deposit Agreement 

Page 247 of 473



OHS Draft 9/3/19 

 

1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

$[________] 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

[________], 2019 

PURCHASE CONTRACT 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Dear Sirs: 

The undersigned Barclays Capital Inc. (the “Representative”) on behalf of itself and BofA 

Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriters”) offers to enter into this Purchase Contract with you, the Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (the “Agency”). This offer is made subject to written acceptance hereof by the 

Agency at or before 12:00 midnight, New York time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accepted, will be 

subject to withdrawal by the Underwriters upon notice delivered to the Agency at any time prior to the 

acceptance hereof by the Agency.  The Representative hereby represents that it is authorized to act on 

behalf of the Underwriters. 

1. Purchase and Sale. Upon the terms and conditions and in reliance on the representations, 

warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, the Underwriters hereby agree to purchase from 

the Agency, and the Agency hereby agrees to sell and deliver to the Underwriters, all (but not less than 

all) of the $[________] aggregate principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] aggregate principal amount 

of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

(the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”). The 2019 

Bonds shall be dated, shall mature on such dates, bear such rates of interest and be subject to redemption, 

and have such other terms and provisions, all as set forth in the Official Statement of the Agency relating 

to the 2019 Bonds, dated [________], 2019 (the “Official Statement”).  The Official Statement shall be 

substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement (defined below), with only such changes as 

shall have been accepted by the Representative. The purchase price for the Series 2019A Bonds shall be 

$[________] (representing the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2019A Bonds plus net original 

issue premium of $[________] and less an underwriters’ discount of $[________]) and the purchase price 

for the Series 2019B Bonds shall be $[________] (representing the aggregate principal amount of the 

Series 2019B Bonds less an underwriters’ discount of $[________]). 

The statements required by Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, are attached hereto as Exhibits B-1, 

B-2 and C. 

The 2019 Bonds shall be as described in, and shall be issued and secured under the provisions of 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as 

amended and restated in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as amended and supplemented, including as 

supplemented by the Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019A Bonds, adopted on [________], 2019 

and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution 

Page 248 of 473



 

 2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019B Bonds, adopted on [________], 2019, and as it may be 

further supplemented from time to time on or prior to the date hereof, together with such amendments, 

modifications or supplements which have been approved by the Representative prior to the Closing 

referred to in Section 5 hereof, are hereinafter collectively called the “Resolution.”  The Underwriters 

agree to make promptly a public offering of the 2019 Bonds at the initial offering price or prices as set 

forth in the Official Statement.  The 2019 Bonds shall initially bear interest as set forth in the Official 

Statement.  The proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of 

the Agency (if any), to (i) currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, (ii) pay the costs of terminating existing interest rate 

swap agreements associated with such bonds and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds. The proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of the 

Agency (if any), to (i) currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019B 

Bonds. 

2. Delivery of Official Statement and Other Documents. (a)  Prior to the date hereof, you 

have provided to the Underwriters for their review the Preliminary Official Statement dated [________], 

2019 (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), in connection with the pricing of the 2019 Bonds. The 

Underwriters have reviewed the Preliminary Official Statement prior to the execution of this Purchase 

Contract. The Agency hereby confirms that the Preliminary Official Statement was deemed final as of its 

date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Rule 15c2-

12”). 

(b) As soon as practicable and in all events within seven business days of the date hereof (but in 

no event less than two business days prior to the Closing), the Agency will deliver, at its expense to the 

Representative, sufficient copies of the final Official Statement as may be reasonably requested by the 

Representative to enable the Underwriters to fulfill their obligations pursuant to the securities laws of 

Florida and the United States and to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 and all applicable 

rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”).  The Agency agrees to deliver to the 

Underwriters an electronic copy of the Official Statement in a form that permits the Underwriters to 

satisfy their obligations under the rules and regulations of the MSRB and the Securities and Exchange 

Commission. 

The Representative agrees to (i) promptly file a copy of the Official Statement with the MSRB 

and its Electronic Municipal Market Access system (the “Repository”) upon receipt of the final Official 

Statement by delivering such Official Statement (with any required forms) to the Repository within one 

(1) business day after receipt of such final Official Statement from the Agency pursuant to MSRB Rule 

G-32, and (ii) take any and all other actions necessary to comply with applicable Securities and Exchange 

Commission and MSRB rules governing the offering, sale and delivery of the 2019 Bonds to ultimate 

purchasers.  The Representative shall notify the Agency of the date on which the final Official Statement 

is filed with the Repository. 

The Agency ratifies the use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and authorizes 

the use of the Official Statement in connection with the public offering and sale of the 2019 Bonds. The 

Underwriters agree that they will not confirm the sale of any 2019 Bonds unless the confirmation of sale 

requesting payment is accompanied or preceded by the delivery of a copy of the Official Statement. 

Unless otherwise notified in writing by the Representative on or prior to the date of Closing, the Agency 

can assume that the “end of the underwriting period” for the 2019 Bonds for all purposes of Rule 15c2-12 

is the date of the Closing. In the event such notice is given in writing by the Representative, the 

Representative shall notify the Agency in writing following the occurrence of the “end of the 

underwriting period” for the 2019 Bonds as defined in Rule 15c2-12. The “end of the underwriting 

Page 249 of 473



 

 3 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

period” for the 2019 Bonds as used in this Purchase Contract shall mean the date of Closing or such later 

date as to which notice is given by the Representative in accordance with the preceding sentence. 

(c) From the date hereof to and including the date which is twenty-five days from the end of the 

underwriting period, if there shall exist any event which, in the opinion of the Representative or in the 

opinion of the Agency, requires a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement so that it will not 

contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make 

the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, 

when it is delivered to a potential investor, the Agency will supplement or amend at its own expense the 

Official Statement in a form and in a manner approved by the Representative and the Agency. The 

Agency will promptly notify the Representative of the occurrence of any event of which it has 

knowledge, which, in its opinion, is an event described in the preceding sentence. The amendments or 

supplements that may be authorized for use with respect to the 2019 Bonds are hereinafter included 

within the term “Official Statement.” 

(d) The Agency has previously entered into separate All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts, 

each by and between the Agency and the respective Participants (which are the City of Bushnell, the City 

of Clewiston, the City of Fort Meade, the Fort Pierce Utilities Authority, the City of Green Cove Springs, 

the Town of Havana, the City of Jacksonville Beach, the Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida, 

Kissimmee Utility Authority, the City of Lake Worth, the City of Leesburg, the City of Newberry, the 

City of Ocala and the City of Starke, collectively referred to herein as the “Participants”) (the “Power 

Supply Contracts”). The Power Supply Contracts are also hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

“Related Documents.” 

The Agency hereby authorizes the Underwriters to use the Official Statement, the forms or copies 

of the Resolution and the Related Documents and the information contained therein in connection with 

the public offering and sale of the 2019 Bonds. 

3. Public Offering; Establishment of Issue Price.   

(a) The Underwriters agree to make a bona fide public offering of the Series 2019A Bonds at 

prices not in excess of the initial offering price or prices (or at yields not lower than the yield or yields) 

set forth in the Official Statement.  The Underwriters reserve the right to change such public offering 

prices as the Underwriters deem necessary or desirable, in its sole discretion, in connection with the 

marketing of the Series 2019A Bonds, and may offer and sell the Series 2019A Bonds to certain dealers, 

unit investment trusts and money market funds, certain of which may be sponsored or managed by one or 

more of the Underwriters at prices lower than the public offering prices or yields greater than the yields 

set forth therein. 

(b) The Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agrees to assist the Agency in establishing 

the issue price of the Series 2019A Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Agency at Closing an 

“issue price” or similar certificate, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G, together with 

the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, with such modifications as may be deemed 

appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, the Agency and Bond 

Counsel, to accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices 

to the public of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

(c) The Agency represents that it will treat the first price at which 10% of each maturity of the 

Series 2019A Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity (if different 

interest rates apply within a maturity, each separate CUSIP number within that maturity will be subject to 

the 10% test).  If, as of the date hereof, the 10% test has not been satisfied as to any maturity of the Series 

Page 250 of 473



 

 4 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

2019A Bonds the Representative confirms that the Underwriters have offered the Series 2019A Bonds to 

the public on or before the date of this Purchase Contract at the offering price or prices (the “initial 

offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the Official Statement.  Schedule I 

also sets forth, as of the date of this Purchase Contract, the maturities, if any, of the Series 2019A Bonds 

for which the 10% test has not been satisfied and for which the Agency and the Representative, on behalf 

of the Underwriters, agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply (the “hold-the-

offering-price rule”).  So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains applicable to any maturity of the 

Series 2019A Bonds, the Underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Series 2019A Bonds of that 

maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period 

starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:  

(i) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or 

(ii) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the 

Series 2019A to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public. 

The Agency acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this subsection, the 

Representative will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with the hold-the-offering-

price rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event 

a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the 

public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the hold-the-

offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the 

event that an Underwriter or selling group member is a party to a retail distribution agreement that was 

employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public, the agreement of 

each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set 

forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The Agency further acknowledges 

that each Underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-

the-offering-price rule and that no Underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other Underwriter, or 

of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail 

distribution agreement, to comply with its corresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price 

rule as applicable to the Series 2019A Bonds. 

(d) The Representative confirms that: 

(i) any retail distribution agreement (to which the Representative and any member 

of a selling group is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public, together 

with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter, each dealer 

who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution 

agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series 2019A 

Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Representative that either the 10% test has 

been satisfied as to the Series 2019A Bonds of that maturity or all Series 2019A Bonds of that maturity 

have been sold to the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each 

case if and for so long as directed by the Representative and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and 

(ii) any agreement among underwriters and any selling group agreement relating to 

the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or 

will contain language obligating each Underwriter and any member of a selling group that is a party to a 

retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds 

to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement to (A) report 

the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Series 2019A Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until 

it is notified by the Representative or the Underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the 

Page 251 of 473



 

 5 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

2019 Bonds of that maturity or all Series 2019A Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and 

(B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed 

by the Representative or the Underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 

(e) The Underwriters acknowledge that sales of any Series 2019A Bonds to any person that is a 

related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section.  

Further, for purposes of this section: 

(i) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party to an 

underwriter, 

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract 

with the Agency (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the 

initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 

contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the 

Series 2019A Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution 

agreement participating in the initial sale of the Series 2019A Bonds to the public),  

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Series 2019A Bonds is a “related party” to an 

underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser have greater than 50% common ownership, directly or 

indirectly, to (A) more than 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, 

if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (B) more than 

50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships 

(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of 

the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the 

partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including 

direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and 

(iv) “sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Contract by all parties. 

4. Good Faith Deposit.  Delivered to the Agency herewith is a federal funds wire or a check 

payable to the order of the Agency in the amount of $[________] (the “Good Faith Deposit”) as security 

for the performance by the Underwriters of their obligation to accept and pay for the 2019 Bonds on the 

date of the Closing in accordance with the provisions hereof.  The Agency shall hold such check (if 

applicable) uncashed until the date of the Closing.  In the event of the Underwriters’ compliance with 

their obligations hereunder, the Good Faith Deposit shall be returned to the Representative on the date of 

the Closing upon payment to the Agency as provided in Section 1 hereof of the purchase price of the 2019 

Bonds.  In the event the Agency does not accept this offer, or upon the failure of the Agency to deliver the 

2019 Bonds on the date of the Closing, or if the Agency shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the 

obligations of the Underwriters contained in this Purchase Contract, or if such obligations of the 

Underwriters shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Contract except for the 

reasons set forth in Section 10 hereof, the Good Faith Deposit shall immediately be returned to the 

Representative.  If the Underwriters fail (other than for a reason permitted hereunder) to accept and pay 

for the 2019 Bonds upon tender thereof by the Agency on the date of the Closing as herein provided, the 

Good Faith Deposit shall be retained by the Agency as and for full and agreed upon liquidated damages, 

and not as a penalty, to the Agency for such failure, and the retention of the Good Faith Deposit shall 

constitute a full release and discharge of all claims and damages for such failure and of any and all 

defaults hereunder on the part of the Underwriters. 

Page 252 of 473



 

 6 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

5. Agency Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Agreements. The Agency represents 

and warrants to and covenants and agrees with the Underwriters that, as of the date hereof and as of the 

date of the Closing: 

(a) The Agency has been duly and validly created under and pursuant to Chapter 361, Part II, 

Florida Statutes and Chapter 163, Part I, Florida Statutes, (collectively, the “Act”) and the Interlocal 

Agreement Creating the Florida Municipal Power Agency, as amended and supplemented (the “Interlocal 

Agreement”) and is a duly and validly existing governmental legal entity under the laws of the State of 

Florida, and has full legal right, power and authority to acquire, construct, operate, maintain, improve, 

finance and refinance the All-Requirements Power Supply Project (as defined in the Resolution) as 

contemplated by the Related Documents and the Official Statement. 

(b) The Agency has, or had on the date of execution, full legal right, power and authority to enter 

into this Purchase Contract and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated the date of Closing, 

substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H (the “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”) to assist 

the Underwriters in complying with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5), to 

adopt the Resolution and to issue, sell and deliver the 2019 Bonds to the Underwriters as provided herein; 

by official action of the Agency taken prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the Agency has 

duly enacted the Resolution in accordance with the Act, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as 

amended, and the Interlocal Agreement; the Resolution is in full force and has not been amended, 

modified or rescinded; the Agency has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of, and 

the performance by the Agency of its obligations contained in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and 

this Purchase Contract; and the Agency has duly authorized and approved the performance by the Agency 

of its obligations contained in the Resolution and the consummation by it of all other transactions 

contemplated by the Related Documents, the Resolution, the Official Statement and this Purchase 

Contract to have been performed or consummated in connection with the Closing at or prior to the date of 

Closing, and the Agency is in compliance with the provisions of the Resolution. 

(c) The Agency had at their respective dates of execution and has full legal right, power and 

authority to enter into the Related Documents. By appropriate official action, the Agency has duly 

authorized and approved the execution and delivery of and the performance by the Agency of its 

obligations under the Related Documents. The Related Documents are or will at the Closing be in full 

force and effect and have not been amended, modified or rescinded since their respective dates of 

execution except as provided by amendments, copies of which shall have been furnished to the 

Representative on or before the date hereof. The Related Documents constitute or will at the Closing 

constitute valid and legally binding agreements of the Agency enforceable against the Agency in 

accordance with their terms; provided, however, that the enforceability thereof may be subject to judicial 

discretion, the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida and of the 

constitutional powers of the United States and valid bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 

and other laws affecting creditors’ rights. 

(d) Except as disclosed by the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, the 

Agency is not in breach of or default under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative 

regulation of the State of Florida or the United States, or any agency or department of either, or the 

Interlocal Agreement, or the bylaws of the Agency, or any applicable judgment or decree or any loan 

agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the Agency is a 

party or to which the Agency or any of its properties or other assets is otherwise subject, and no event has 

occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

constitute a default or event of default under any such instrument, in any such case to the extent that the 

same would have a material and adverse effect upon the business or properties or financial condition of 

the Agency; to the best knowledge of the Agency there is no default by any party to the Related 

Page 253 of 473



 

 7 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

Documents and no legal impediment to the performance thereof by any party thereto; and the execution 

and delivery of the 2019 Bonds, this Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and the 

Related Documents and the adoption of the Resolution, and compliance with the provisions on the 

Agency’s part contained therein, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under the Act, 

the Interlocal Agreement or the by-laws of the Agency or under any constitutional provision, law, 

administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement 

or other instrument to which the Agency is a party or to which the Agency or any of its properties or other 

assets is otherwise subject, nor will any such execution, delivery, adoption or compliance result in the 

creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature 

whatsoever upon any of the properties or the assets of the Agency under the terms of any such law, 

regulation or instrument, except as provided or permitted by the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Related Documents.  The Agency has not been in default in 

the payment of either principal or interest on any of its obligations issued by it since its inception in 1978. 

The foregoing representation and warranty is given and made by the Agency in contemplation of Section 

517.051(l), Florida Statutes. 

(e) All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority, legislative body, board, 

agency or commission having jurisdiction which would constitute a condition precedent to or the absence 

of which would materially adversely affect the due performance by the Agency of its obligations under 

this Purchase Contract, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Related Documents 

and the 2019 Bonds have been, or prior to the Closing will have been, duly obtained, except for (i) such 

approvals, consents and orders as may be required under the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in 

connection with the offering and sale of the 2019 Bonds or (ii) such approvals, consents and orders 

described in the Official Statement as not having been obtained or (iii) not of material significance to the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project or customarily granted in due course after application therefor 

and expected to be obtained without material difficulty or delay. 

(f) Under the laws of the State of Florida, the authority of the Agency and each of the 

Participants to determine, fix, impose and collect rates and charges for electric power and energy sold and 

delivered is not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission, and there 

is no other regional or State governmental regulatory authority with the authority to limit or restrict such 

rates and charges, in each case except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement (including, but not limited to, “STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT”). 

(g) The 2019 Bonds, when issued, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Resolution 

and sold to the Underwriters as provided herein and in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, 

will be valid and legally enforceable obligations of the Agency in accordance with their terms and the 

terms of the Resolution, and will be direct and special obligations of the Agency payable solely from and 

secured solely by a pledge and assignment of (a) with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, the proceeds of 

the sale of the Series 2019A Bonds, and with respect to the Series 2019B Bonds, the proceeds of the sale 

of the Series 2019B Bonds, (b) all right, title and interest of the Agency in, to and under the Power Supply 

Contracts, (c) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (d) all funds established by the Resolution 

(other than the Decommissioning Fund, if established) including investment income, if any, thereon, 

subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on 

the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

(h) The Preliminary Official Statement was, as of its date, and the Official Statement, as of the 

date hereof, is and at all times subsequent hereto up to and including the date of the Closing will be, true 

and correct in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 

state a material fact which is necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading. In addition, any amendments or supplements to the Official 

Page 254 of 473



 

 8 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

Statement prepared and furnished by the Agency pursuant hereto, at the time of each amendment or 

supplement thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented or amended) at all times subsequent 

thereto up to and including the time of Closing, will be true and correct in all material respects and will 

not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the 

statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

(i) The 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Related 

Documents conform in all material respects to the descriptions thereof contained in the Official Statement 

as it is delivered in final form. 

(j) Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, since 

the date of the Agency’s last audited financial statements, the Agency has not or will not have incurred 

any material liabilities direct or contingent, or entered into any material transaction related to the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project, in each case other than in the ordinary course of its business, and 

there has not or shall not have been any material adverse change in the condition, financial or physical, of 

the Agency or its properties or other assets related to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

(k) Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, there is 

no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity before or by any court, 

government agency or public board or body, pending or, to the best knowledge of the Agency, threatened, 

which may affect the corporate existence of the Agency or the titles of its officers to their respective 

offices, or which may affect or which seeks to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of 

the 2019 Bonds or the collection of the amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and 

interest on the 2019 Bonds, or which in any way contests or affects the validity or enforceability of the 

2019 Bonds, the Resolution, this Purchase Contract, the Related Documents, the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking or any of them, or which may result in any material adverse change in the business, 

properties, other assets or financial condition of the Agency, or which contests in any way the 

completeness or accuracy of the Official Statement or which contests the power of the Agency or any 

authority or proceedings for the issuance, sale or delivery of this Purchase Contract, the Related 

Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, or any of them, nor, to the best knowledge of the 

Agency, is there any basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially 

adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Related Documents, 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or this Purchase Contract. 

(l) The Agency will furnish such information, execute such instruments and take such other 

action not inconsistent with law in cooperation with the Representative as the Representative may 

reasonably request in order to qualify the 2019 Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or securities 

laws and regulations of the states and other jurisdictions of the United States as the Representative may 

designate provided that the Agency shall not be obligated to take any action that would subject it to the 

general service of process in any state where it is not now so subject. 

(m) The Agency will advise the Representative promptly of any proposal to amend or supplement 

the Official Statement and will not effect any such amendment or supplement without the consent of the 

Representative. The Agency will advise the Representative promptly of the institution of any proceedings 

known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise affecting the use of the Official 

Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the 2019 Bonds. 

(n) Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, the 

Agency has not failed during the previous five years to comply in all material respects with any previous 

undertakings in a written continuing disclosure contract or agreement under Rule 15c2-12. 

Page 255 of 473



 

 9 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

6. The Closing. At noon, New York time, on [________], 2019, or at such earlier or later 

time or date to which the Agency and the Representative may mutually agree, the Agency will, subject to 

the terms and conditions hereof, deliver the 2019 Bonds to the Underwriters in full book-entry form, duly 

executed, together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned, and, subject to the terms and 

conditions hereof, the Underwriters will accept such delivery and pay the aggregate purchase price of the 

2019 Bonds in Federal Funds to the Agency (such delivery of and payment for the 2019 Bonds is herein 

called the “Closing”). The Agency shall cause CUSIP identification numbers to be printed on the 2019 

Bonds, but neither the failure to print such number on any 2019 Bond nor any error with respect thereto 

shall constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the Underwriters to accept delivery of and pay for the 

2019 Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Purchase Contract. The Closing shall occur at the offices 

of the Agency, or such other place to which the Agency and the Representative shall have mutually 

agreed. The 2019 Bonds shall be prepared and delivered as fully registered bonds in such authorized 

denominations and registered in full book-entry form in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 

Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) and shall be made available to the 

Representative during the business day prior to the Closing for purposes of inspection.  Simultaneously 

with the delivery of the 2019 Bonds, the Representative shall cause the 2019 Bonds to be delivered to 

DTC or its designee. 

7. Closing Conditions. The Underwriters have entered into this Purchase Contract in 

reliance upon the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Agency contained herein 

and in reliance upon the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements to be contained in the 

documents and instruments to be delivered at the Closing and upon the performance by the Agency of its 

obligations hereunder, both as of the date hereof and as of the date of the Closing. Accordingly, the 

Underwriters’ obligations under this Purchase Contract to purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for 

the 2019 Bonds shall be conditioned upon the performance by the Agency of its obligations to be 

performed hereunder and under such documents and instruments at or prior to the Closing, and shall also 

be subject to the following additional conditions: 

(a) The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Agency contained herein 

shall be true, complete and correct on the date hereof and on and as of the date of the Closing, as if made 

on the date of the Closing; 

(b) At the time of Closing, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the 

Related Documents shall be in full force and effect and the Resolution and the Related Documents shall 

not have been amended, modified or supplemented since the date hereof  and the form of the Continuing 

Disclosure Undertaking shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented since the date hereof  

except if approved by the Representative, and the Official Statement as delivered to the Representative 

shall not have been supplemented or amended, except in any such case as may have been approved by the 

Representative; 

(c) At the time of the Closing, all official action of the Agency relating to this Purchase Contract, 

the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Related Documents taken 

as of the date hereof shall be in full force and effect and shall not have been amended, modified or 

supplemented, except for amendments, modifications or supplements which have been approved by the 

Representative prior to the Closing; 

(d) At the time of the Closing, except as contemplated by the Official Statement, there shall have 

been no material adverse change or any development involving a prospective material adverse change in 

the status of operation and required permits and approvals for All-Requirements Power Supply Project in 

the condition, financial or otherwise, or in the revenue or operations of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project as described in the Official Statement; 

Page 256 of 473



 

 10 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(e) At or prior to the Closing, the Representative shall have received copies of each of the 

following documents: 

(1) The Official Statement and each supplement or amendment, if any, thereto 

executed on behalf of the Agency by an Authorized Officer of the Agency; 

(2) The Continuing Disclosure Agreement and each supplement or amendment, 

if any, thereto executed on behalf of the Agency by an Authorized Officer of the Agency; 

(3) An opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Agency, of 

Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Agency, in 

substantially the form attached as Appendix E to the Official Statement, accompanied by 

a letter authorizing the Underwriters to rely thereon as though such opinion were 

addressed to the Underwriters; 

(4) An opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Underwriters, 

of Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Agency, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D; 

(5) An opinion, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Underwriters, 

of Jody L. Finklea, Esquire, General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of the Agency, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E; 

(6) An opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, dated the date of the 

Closing, addressed to the Underwriters in a form reasonably acceptable to the 

Underwriters; 

(7) An opinion of counsel to the Trustee, dated the date of the Closing, in a form 

reasonably acceptable to the Agency and Underwriters; 

(8) The Blue Sky Memorandum; 

(9) Federal Tax Regulatory Certificate with Form 8038 in connection with the 

Series 2019A Bonds; 

(10) A certificate, dated the date of the Closing, signed by the Chairperson of 

the Executive Committee and the General Manager and Chief Executive Officer of the 

Agency or other authorized officer of the Agency in substantially the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit F (but in lieu of or in conjunction with such certificate the 

Representative may, in its sole discretion, accept certificates or opinions of Nixon 

Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the Agency, Jody L. Finklea, 

Esquire, General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of the Agency, or of other counsel 

acceptable to the Representative, that in the opinion of such counsel the issues raised in 

any pending or threatened litigation referred to in such certificate are without substance 

or that the contentions of all plaintiffs therein are without merit); 

(11) Certified copies of the proceedings of the Executive Committee of the 

Agency authorizing and approving the Supplemental Resolutions for the Series 2019A 

Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds; 

Page 257 of 473



 

 11 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(12) A transcript of all proceedings relating to the authorization and issuance 

of the 2019 Bonds certified by the Secretary of the Agency; 

(13) Evidence of an “[A+]” rating from Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) and an “[A2]” 

rating from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) on the 2019 Bonds or such 

other ratings to which the Representative may agree; and 

(14) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other 

documents as the Representative may reasonably request to evidence the truth and 

accuracy, as of the date hereof and as of the date of the Closing, of the representations, 

warranties, covenants and agreements of the Agency contained herein and the truth, 

accuracy and completeness of the statements and information contained in the Official 

Statement and the due performance or satisfaction by the Agency on or prior to the date 

of the Closing of all agreements then to be performed and conditions then to be satisfied 

by it. 

All of the evidence, opinions, letters, certificates, instruments and other documents mentioned 

above or elsewhere in this Purchase Contract shall be deemed to be in compliance with the provisions 

hereof if, but only if, they are in form and substance satisfactory to the Representative with such 

exceptions and modifications as shall be approved by the Representative and as shall not in the opinion of 

the Representative materially impair the investment quality of the 2019 Bonds. The opinions and 

certificates referred to in clauses (4), (5) and (10) of such subparagraph (e) shall be deemed satisfactory 

provided they are substantially in the forms attached as exhibits to this Purchase Contract. 

If the Agency shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriters to 

purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for the 2019 Bonds contained in this Purchase Contract, or if 

the obligations of the Underwriters to purchase, to accept delivery of and to pay for the 2019 Bonds shall 

be terminated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Contract, this Purchase Contract shall terminate 

and neither the Underwriters nor the Agency shall be under any further obligation hereunder, the 

respective obligations of the Agency and the Underwriters set forth in Paragraph 8 hereof shall continue 

in full force and effect. 

8. Termination. The Underwriters may terminate this Purchase Contract by notice to the 

Agency in the event that between the date hereof and the Closing: 

(a) legislation shall be introduced in or enacted by the Congress of the United States or adopted 

by either House thereof, or a decision by a federal court (including the Tax Court of the United States), or 

a ruling, regulation (proposed, temporary or final) or official statement by or on behalf of the Treasury 

Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or other federal agency shall be made, with 

respect to taxation upon revenues or other income of the general character expected to be derived by the 

Agency or upon interest received on bonds of the general character of the Series 2019A Bonds, or which 

would have the effect of changing directly or indirectly the federal income tax consequences of interest on 

bonds of the general character of the Series 2019A Bonds in the hands of the holders thereof, which 

legislation, ruling, regulation or official statement would, in the reasonable judgment of the 

Representative, materially adversely affect the market price of the Series 2019A Bonds; 

(b) there shall occur any event or circumstance occurs or information becomes known, which, in 

the reasonable judgment of the Representative, either (i) makes untrue any statement of a material fact set 

forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and the final Official Statement (other than any statement or 

information relating to the Underwriters) or results in an omission to state a  material fact necessary to 

make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

Page 258 of 473



 

 12 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

misleading or (ii) the Agency refuses to permit the Preliminary Official Statement or the final Official 

Statement to be supplemented to correct or supply such statement or information, or the effect of the 

Preliminary Official Statement or the final Official Statement as so corrected or supplemented is, in the 

reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially adversely affect the market for the 2019 Bonds 

or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or yield or yields), by the Underwriters of the 

2019 Bonds; 

(c) there shall occur any outbreak of hostilities or any national or international calamity or crisis 

or a financial crisis, or an escalation of any such hostilities, calamity or crisis, the effect of which on the 

financial markets of the United States is, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially 

adversely affect the market for the 2019 Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or 

yield or yields), by the Underwriters of the 2019 Bonds; 

(d) a general suspension of trading on the New York Stock Exchange shall have occurred and be 

in force or minimum or maximum prices for trading shall have been fixed and be in force or maximum 

ranges for prices for securities shall have been required and be in force on the New York Stock Exchange, 

whether by virtue of a determination by such Exchange or by order of the Securities and Exchange 

Commission or any other governmental authority the effect of which on the financial markets of the 

United States is, in the reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially adversely affect the 

market for the 2019 Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or yield or yields), by 

the Underwriters of the 2019 Bonds; 

(e) a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by either federal, New York or 

Florida authorities and be in force, the effect of which on the financial markets of the United States is, in 

the reasonable judgment of the Representative, to materially adversely affect the market for the 2019 

Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering price or prices (or yield or yields), by the Underwriters of 

the 2019 Bonds; 

(f) a material disruption in commercial banking or securities settlement, payment or clearance 

services in the United States shall have occurred; 

(g) legislation shall have been enacted, a decision of any federal or Florida court shall have been 

made, or a ruling or regulation (proposed, temporary or final) of the Securities and Exchange Commission 

or other governmental agency shall have been made or issued that, in the opinion of the Representative 

and its counsel, has the effect of requiring the contemplated distribution of the 2019 Bonds to be 

registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Indenture to be qualified under the Trust 

Indenture Act of 1939, as amended; or 

(h) the purchase of and payment for the 2019 Bonds by the Underwriters, or the resale of the 

2019 Bonds by the Underwriters, on the terms and conditions herein provided shall be prohibited by any 

applicable law, governmental regulation or order of any court, governmental authority, board, agency or 

commission. 

9. Expenses. The Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Agency shall 

pay, any expenses incident to the performance of the obligations of the Agency hereunder including, but 

not limited to: (a) the cost of preparation, printing or other reproduction of the Resolution and Related 

Documents; (b) the cost of preparation and printing of the 2019 Bonds; (c) the fees and disbursements of 

Bond Counsel and the General Counsel to the Agency; (d) the fees and disbursements of the financial 

advisor to the Agency; (e) the fees and disbursements of any experts, consultants or advisors retained by 

the Agency; (f) fees for bond ratings; (g) the fees and expenses of the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the 

Trustee and of their respective counsel; and (h) the costs of preparing, printing and delivering the 

Page 259 of 473



 

 13 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

Preliminary Official Statement, Official Statement and any supplements or amendments to either of them; 

however, the Agency shall have no obligation to pay any fees, costs or other amounts relating to any 

supplements or amendments to the Official Statement to the extent such amendment or supplement is 

prepared after the period described in paragraph 2(c) hereof (provided that for purposes of this paragraph 

the end of the underwriting period shall be deemed to be the date of the Closing).   

The Underwriters shall pay (which may be included as an expense component of the 

Underwriter’s discount): (a) the cost of all “blue sky” and legal investment memoranda; (b) all advertising 

expenses; and (c) all other expenses incurred by them or any of them in connection with the public 

offering of the 2019 Bonds, including the fees of Underwriters’ counsel. In the event that either party 

shall have paid obligations of the other as set forth in this Section 9, adjustment shall be made at the time 

of the Closing. 

10. Termination by the Agency.  In the absence of a termination of this Agreement by the 

Underwriters as permitted by Section 8 hereof, this Purchase Contract may be terminated in writing by 

the Agency in the event that the Underwriters shall fail to accept delivery and pay the purchase price of 

the 2019 Bonds at the Closing upon (i) tender thereof to or on behalf of the Underwriters by the Agency 

and (ii) delivery to the Underwriters of all of the documents to be delivered at Closing, all as provided in 

Section 7(e) hereof, and in such event the Agency shall retain the Good Faith Deposit as provided in 

Section 4 hereof. 

11. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the Agency under this 

Purchase Contract may be given by delivering the same in writing at its address set forth above, and any 

notice or other communication to be given to the Underwriters may be given by delivering the same in 

writing to Barclays Capital Inc. 745 Seventh Avenue, 19th Floor, New York, New York 10019; 

Attention: Brian Middlebrook. 

12. Parties in Interest. This Purchase Contract is made solely for the benefit of the Agency 

and the Underwriters (including the successors or assignees of the Agency or the Underwriters) and no 

other party or person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. All representations, 

warranties, covenants and agreements in this Purchase Contract shall remain operative and in full force 

and effect, regardless of: (i) any investigations made by or on behalf of any of the Underwriters; (ii) the 

delivery of and payment for the 2019 Bonds pursuant to this Purchase Contract; or (iii) any termination of 

this Purchase Contract but only to the extent provided by the last paragraph of Section 6 hereof. 

13. Waiver. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the performance of any 

and all obligations of the Agency hereunder and the performance of any and all conditions contained 

herein for the benefit of the Underwriters may be waived by the Representative, in its sole discretion, and 

the approval of the Underwriters when required hereunder or the determination of their satisfaction as to 

any document referred to herein shall be in writing, signed by appropriate officer or officers of the 

Representative and delivered to you. 

14. Effectiveness. This Purchase Contract shall become effective upon the execution of the 

acceptance hereof by the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson of the Executive Committee or the General 

Manager and the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency or the Chief Financial Officer (and attestation of 

such execution by the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or Treasurer or of the Agency) and shall be valid and 

enforceable at the time of such acceptance. 

15. Counterparts. This Purchase Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of 

which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. 

Page 260 of 473



 

 14 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

16. Headings. The headings of the sections of this Purchase Contract are inserted for 

convenience only and shall not be deemed to be a part hereof. 

17. Florida Law Governs. The validity, interpretation and performance of this Purchase 

Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. 

18. No Advisory or Fiduciary Role. The Agency acknowledges and agrees that (i) the 

primary role of the Underwriters, as underwriters, is for the purchase and sale of the 2019 Bonds pursuant 

to this Purchase Contract is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Agency and the 

Underwriters, (ii) in connection with such transaction, each Underwriter is acting solely as a principal and 

not as an agent or a fiduciary of the Agency, (iii) the Underwriters have not assumed any advisory or 

fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Agency with respect to the offering of the 2019 Bonds or the 

process leading thereto (whether or not the Underwriters have advised or are currently advising the 

Agency on other matters) or any other obligation to the Agency except the obligations expressly set forth 

in this Purchase Contract, (iv) the Underwriters have financial interests that differ from those of the 

Agency and are not acting as municipal advisors (as defined in Section 15B of the Securities Exchange 

Act of 1934, as amended) or financial advisors and (v) the Agency has consulted with its own municipal, 

accounting, tax, legal and financial advisors to the extent it deemed it appropriate in connection with the 

offering of the 2019 Bonds. 

Page 261 of 473



 

[Purchase Contract Signature Page] 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

19. Entire Agreement.  This Purchase Contract when accepted by you in writing as heretofore 

specified shall constitute the entire agreement between us and is made solely for the benefit of the Agency 

and the Underwriters. 

 

Very truly yours, 

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., as Representative 

By:   

 Name:  

 Title:  

Accepted by: 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

 

By:    

 Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

By:   

Chief Financial Officer 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

   

Assistant Secretary 

 

Page 262 of 473



 

  

 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE I 

Maturities of 2019 Bonds 

Less Than 10% of Which Were Sold to the Public 

 

 

 

Page 263 of 473



 

 A-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT A 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT OF THE AGENCY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 264 of 473



 

 B-1-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 

$[________] 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

[Purchase Contract Date], 2019 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with the proposed issuance by the Florida Municipal Power Agency (the 

“Agency”) of $[________] principal amount of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 

2019A Bonds”) and $[________] principal amount of Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 

(Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 

Bonds”), Barclays Capital Inc. and BofA Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriters”) have agreed to underwrite a 

public offering of the Bonds. Arrangement for underwriting the Bonds will include a Purchase Contract 

between the Agency and the Underwriters. 

The purpose of this letter is to furnish, pursuant to the provisions of Section 218.385(6), Florida 

Statutes, as amended, certain information in respect to the arrangement contemplated for the underwriting 

of the 2019 Bonds as follows: 

(a)  The nature and estimated amount of expenses to be incurred by the Underwriters and paid 

by the Underwriters in connection with the purchase and offering of the 2019 Bonds are set forth on 

Schedule I attached hereto. 

(b)  No person has entered into an understanding with any Underwriter, or to the knowledge 

of the Underwriters, with the Agency for any paid or promised compensation or valuable consideration, 

directly or indirectly, expressly or implied, to act solely as an intermediary between the Agency and the 

Underwriters for the purpose of influencing any transaction in the purchase of the 2019 Bonds. 

(c) The amount of underwriting spread, including the management fee (if any), expected to 

be realized is as follows: 

Page 265 of 473



 

 B-1-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

 
 Per $1,000 

Series 2019A 

Bond 

Per $1,000 

Series 2019B 

Bond 

Average Takedown   

Underwriter’s Expenses   

Total Underwriting Spread   

 

(d) No other fee, bonus or other compensation is estimated to be paid by the Underwriters in 

connection with the issuance of the 2019 Bonds to any person not regularly employed or retained by the 

Underwriters (including any “finder”, as defined in Section 218.386 (1) (a), Florida Statutes, as 

amended), except as specifically enumerated as expenses to be incurred and paid by the Underwriters, as 

set forth in Schedule I attached hereto. 

(e) The names and addresses of the Underwriters are set forth below: 

Barclays Capital Inc. 

745 Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor 

New York, New York 10019 

 

BofA Securities, Inc. 

One Bryant Park, 12th Floor 

New York, New York 10036 

Page 266 of 473



 

 B-1-3 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

We understand that you do not require any further disclosure from the Underwriters, pursuant to 

Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes, as amended. 

 

Very truly yours, 

Barclays Capital Inc., as Representative 

By:   

 Name:  

 Title:  

Page 267 of 473



 

 B-1-4 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE I 

ESTIMATED UNDERWRITER’S FEE AND EXPENSES 

SERIES 2019A BONDS 

UNDERWRITER’S DISCOUNT Per $1,000 Bond Dollar Amount 

Average Takedown   

Underwriter’s Expenses   

Total Underwriting Spread   

 

DETAILED EXPENSE BREAKDOWN 

[Underwriters’ Counsel  

i-Deal (Bookrunning, Wire Services, EOE)  

Out of Pocket  

DTC  

CUSIP]  

Total Underwriting Expenses  

 

SERIES 2019B BONDS 

UNDERWRITER’S DISCOUNT Per $1,000 Bond Dollar Amount 

Average Takedown   

Underwriter’s Expenses   

Total Underwriting Spread   

 

DETAILED EXPENSE BREAKDOWN 

[Underwriters’ Counsel  

i-Deal (Bookrunning, Wire Services, EOE)  

Out of Pocket  

DTC  

CUSIP]  

Total Underwriting Expenses  

 

 

Page 268 of 473



 

 B-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT B-2 

$[________] 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

[Purchase Contract Date], 2019 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with our serving as Financial Advisor to the Florida Municipal Power Agency (the 

“Agency”) in connection with the sale by the Agency of its bonds referred to above, we have not paid any 

fee, bonus or gratuity to any person not regularly employed or engaged by us. 

DUNLAP & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

By:  

Page 269 of 473



 

 C-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT C 

TRUTH-IN-BONDING STATEMENT 

 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Re:   $[________] 

  FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

$[________] SERIES 2019A AND 

$[________] SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 

[Purchase Contract Date], 2019 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with the proposed issuance by the Florida Municipal Power Agency (the 

“Agency”) of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the 

“Series 2019A Bonds”) and All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the 

“Bonds”) referred to above, Barclays Capital Inc. and BofA Securities, Inc. (the “Underwriters”) have 

agreed to underwrite a public offering of the Bonds. Arrangements for underwriting the Bonds will 

include a Purchase Contract between the Agency and the Underwriters. 

The purpose of this letter is to furnish, pursuant to the provisions of Section 218.385(2) and (3), 

Florida Statutes, as amended, the truth-in-bonding statement required thereby, as follows: 

(a) (i) The Agency is proposing to issue $[________] of its limited obligations for the principal 

purposes of (i) providing funds to currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, (ii) paying any costs of terminating existing interest 

rate swap agreements associated therewith and (iii) paying certain expenses related to the issuance and 

sale of the Bonds. The final maturity of the Series 2019A Bonds is [________] and the average life of the 

Series 2019A Bonds is [____] years.  The Series 2019A Bonds have a true interest cost of [____]%. 

(ii) The sources of repayment for the Series 2019A Bonds are (i) the proceeds of the sale of the 

Series 2019A Bonds pending application thereof, (ii) all right, title and interest of the Agency in, to and 

under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all Funds 

(except as otherwise specifically provided in the Resolution) established by the Resolution, including the 

investment income, if any, thereof, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the 

application thereof for the purpose and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

Authorizing this obligation will result in approximately $[________], plus interest of $[________], of the 

above sources of repayment not being available to finance the other services of the Agency over the life 

of the Bonds. 

Page 270 of 473



 

 C-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(b) (i) The Agency is proposing to issue $[________] of its limited obligations for the principal 

purposes of (i) providing funds to currently refund all of the Agency’s outstanding All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) and (ii) paying certain expenses related to 

the issuance and sale of the Bonds. The final maturity of the Series 2019B Bonds is [________] and the 

average life of the Series 2019B Bonds is [____] years.  The Series 2019B Bonds have a true interest cost 

of [____]%. 

(ii) The sources of repayment for the Series 2019B Bonds are (i) the proceeds of the sale of the 

Series 2019B Bonds pending application thereof, (ii) all right, title and interest of the Agency in, to and 

under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all Funds 

(except as otherwise specifically provided in the Resolution) established by the Resolution, including the 

investment income, if any, thereof, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the 

application thereof for the purpose and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

Authorizing this obligation will result in approximately $[________], plus interest of $[________], of the 

above sources of repayment not being available to finance the other services of the Agency over the life 

of the Bonds. 

 

Page 271 of 473



 

 C-3 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

The foregoing is provided for informational purposes only and shall not affect or control the 

actual terms and conditions of the Bonds. 

Yours very truly, 

Barclays Capital Inc., as Representative 

By:    

 Name: 

 Title:  

  

 

Page 272 of 473



 

 D-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT D 

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

(Date of Closing) 

Florida Municipal Power Agency  

8553 Commodity Circle  

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Barclays Capital Inc. 

 as Representative of the Underwriters named in 

 the Purchase Contract dated [________], 2019 

 with the Florida Municipal Power Agency 

 

Gentlemen: 

We have served as Bond Counsel to Florida Municipal Power Agency in connection with the 

issuance and sale of its $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together 

with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”), to the Underwriters named in the Purchase Contract 

referred to herein. Terms used herein which are defined in said Purchase Contract shall have the meanings 

specified therein. 

We have examined, among other things, the Act, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, the 

Interlocal Agreement, the Resolution, the proceedings of the Executive Committee of the Agency with 

respect to the authorization and issuance of the 2019 Bonds, the proceedings of the Executive Committee 

of the Agency with respect to the authorization, execution and delivery of each of the Power Supply 

Contracts, the Participation Agreement, the Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking 

and the Official Statement and such certificates and other documents relating to the Agency, the 2019 

Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Power Supply Contracts, and have 

made such other examination of applicable Florida and other laws as we have deemed necessary in giving 

this opinion. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

(a) The Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated [________], 2019 and the Purchase 

Contract between the Agency and the Underwriters named therein, dated [________], 2019, relating to 

the sale of the 2019 Bonds (the “Purchase Contract”), have each been duly authorized, executed and 

delivered by the Agency, and assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the respective other 

parties thereto, each constitutes the legal, valid and binding agreement of the Agency in accordance with 

its terms. The opinion set forth in this paragraph (a) is subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, 

moratorium, reorganization or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and judicial discretion, and the 

valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida and of the constitutional power of the 

United States of America. 

(b) The 2019 Bonds are exempted securities as described in Section 3 (a) (2) of the Securities 

Act of 1933 and Section 304 (a) (4) of the Trust Indenture Act, each as amended and now in effect, and 

Page 273 of 473



 

 D-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

the offer and sale of the 2019 Bonds does not require any registration under such Securities Act or the 

qualification of any indenture under such Trust Indenture Act. 

(c) The statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement under the captions “INTRODUCTION — Authority for the Offered Securities, Additional 

Bonds, Subordinated Indebtedness, Payments under the Power  Supply Contracts, Security for the 

Offered Securities, “DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES,” “SECURITY AND SOURCES 

OF PAYMENT FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES,” “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS,” 

“VALIDATION,” APPENDIX D — “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 

RESOLUTION AND POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS,” and APPENDIX G — “CONTINUING 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEC RULE 15C2-12” insofar as such statements constitute summaries of certain 

provisions of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Act, the Power Supply Contracts, the Participation 

Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the documents referred to therein present a fair 

and accurate summary of such provisions. The statements in the Preliminary Official Statement and the 

Official Statement under the caption “TAX MATTERS” are accurate statements or summaries of the 

matters therein set forth. 

Because the primary purpose of our professional engagement, as Bond Counsel to the Agency 

was not to establish factual matters, and because of the wholly or partially nonlegal character of many of 

the determinations involved in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement, we are not passing upon and do not assume any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness 

or fairness of the statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement 

(except to the extent expressly set forth in paragraph (c) above) and we make no representation that we 

have independently verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of such statements.  However, in the 

course of our participation in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement as Bond Counsel to the Agency, we conferred (which conferences did not extend beyond the 

date of the Official Statement) with representatives of the Agency, Jody L. Finklea, General Counsel to 

the Agency, the underwriters, underwriters’ counsel and the financial advisor, at which conferences the 

contents of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and related matters were 

discussed.  Our participation in the preparation of the Official Statement did not disclose to us any reason 

to believe that (A) the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date and as of the date of the Purchase 

Contract or the Official Statement as of its date contained any untrue statement of a material fact or 

omitted to state material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading (except for APPENDIX C — “FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT 

REPORT FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018,” except for APPENDIX F — 

“BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM,” and except for the maps and schematic, graphic, pictorial, financial 

and statistical information included in the Official Statement, and including such information in the 

appendices thereto, as to all of which we express no view) or (B) that the Official Statement, as of the 

date hereof, contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading (except as aforesaid). 

We hereby consent to references to us contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the 

Official Statement. 

We are furnishing this letter to the Agency and to you, as Representative of the Underwriters of 

the 2019 Bonds, solely for your benefit. The letter is not to be used, circulated, quoted or otherwise 

referred to for any other purpose. 

Very truly yours, 

Page 274 of 473



 

 E-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT E 

OPINION OF JODY L. FINKLEA, ESQUIRE 

(Date of Closing) 

Barclays Capital Inc., 

 as Representative of the Underwriters named 

 in the Purchase Contract 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have served as General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of  Florida Municipal Power Agency in 

connection with the issuance and sale of its $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the 

“Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”), to the 

Underwriters named in the Purchase Contract referred to herein. Terms used herein which are defined in 

said Purchase Contract shall have the meanings specified therein or, if not defined therein, in the Official 

Statement, dated [________], 2019, relating to the 2019 Bonds. 

I have examined, among other things, the Act, Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, the 

Interlocal Agreement, the Resolution, the proceedings of the Executive Committee of the Agency with 

respect to the authorization and issuance of the 2019 Bonds and the authorization, execution and delivery 

of each of the Related Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated [________], 2019 (the 

“Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”), the Purchase Contract and the Official Statement and such 

certificates and other documents relating to the Agency, the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution and the Related 

Documents, and have made such other examination of applicable Florida law as I have deemed necessary 

in giving this opinion. 

Based upon the foregoing, I am of the opinion that: 

(a) The Agency is duly existing as a governmental legal entity and, under the Constitution 

and laws of Florida, has full legal right, power and authority to acquire, construct, operate, maintain and 

improve the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

(b) The execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking and the Related Documents and the Official Statement have been duly authorized by the 

Agency. 

(c) The Related Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Purchase 

Contract have been duly executed and delivered by the Agency and, assuming due authorization and 

execution by the other parties thereto, are valid and enforceable against the Agency in accordance with 

their respective terms. 

(d) Under the laws of Florida, the authority of the Agency and each of the Participants to 

determine, fix, impose and collect rates and charges for electric power and energy sold and delivered is 

not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission, except as disclosed in 

the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement (including, but not limited to, “STATE 

REGULATORY OVERSIGHT”). 

Page 275 of 473



 

 E-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

(e) All Florida governmental regulatory approvals necessary to the issuance of the 2019 

Bonds have been obtained. 

(f) The execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure 

Undertaking, the Related Documents and the 2019 Bonds by the Agency, the adoption and 

implementation of the Resolution, and compliance with the provisions of said Purchase Contract, the 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Resolution, the Related Documents and the 2019 Bonds, will not 

conflict with or constitute a breach of any Florida law, administrative regulation or court decree of any 

Florida court to which the Agency is subject. 

(g) The Resolution has been duly adopted and is valid, binding and enforceable against the 

Agency in accordance with its terms. 

(h) The authorization, execution and delivery by the Agency of the Related Documents and 

the Agency’s compliance with all terms and provisions thereof will not be a breach of, or constitute a 

default under, the terms and conditions of any indenture, resolution, loan, mortgage, contract or other 

agreement to which the Agency is a party or by which the Agency or its properties is or may be bound. 

(i) The statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement under the captions “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS,” “FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY,” “THE PROJECT,” “STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT”, “CERTAIN 

FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY,” “ENVIRONMENTAL 

REGULATION,” “LITIGATION”, “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE; ADDITIONAL FMPA 

INFORMATION” and “Summary of Certain Provisions of the Power Supply Contracts” contained in 

APPENDIX D are true, correct and complete in all material respects and do not omit any material fact 

known to me, which, in my opinion, should be included or referred to therein so as to make the 

information or statements made therein not misleading. 

(j) Based upon my participation in the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and 

the Official Statement as General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of the Agency and without having 

undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements contained 

in the Official Statement, I have no reason to believe that the Preliminary Official Statement, as of its 

date, or the Official Statement, as of the date hereof (except for APPENDIX C — “FMPA’S ANNUAL 

AUDIT REPORT FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018,” except for APPENDIX F 

— “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM” and except for the maps and schematic, graphic, pictorial, 

financial and statistical information included in the Preliminary Official Statement, including such 

information in the Appendices thereto, as to which I express no view) contained or contains any untrue 

statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or 

necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 

not misleading (except as aforesaid). 

It is to be understood that the rights and obligations of the parties under the Purchase Contract, 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Related Documents and the Resolution and the enforceability 

thereof may be subject to judicial discretion, the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State 

of Florida and the constitutional powers of the United States of America, and valid bankruptcy, 

insolvency, reorganization and other laws affecting creditors’ rights. 

I am furnishing this letter to you, as Underwriters of the 2019 Bonds, solely for your benefit. The 

letter is not to be used, circulated, quoted or otherwise referred to for any other purpose. 

Very truly yours, 

Page 276 of 473



 

 F-1 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT F 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

CERTIFICATE 

We, Howard McKinnon, Chairperson of the Executive Committee of Florida Municipal Power 

Agency (the “Agency”), and Jacob A. Williams, General Manager and Chief Executive Officer of the 

Agency, hereby certify that: 

1. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the representations, warranties, covenants and 

agreements of the Agency contained in the Purchase Contract dated [________], 2019 between the 

Agency and the Underwriters named therein (the “Purchase Contract”), with respect to the sale by the 

Agency of $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[________] All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds” and, together with the 

Series 2019A Bonds, the “2019 Bonds”), are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the date 

of the Closing as if made on the date of the Closing. 

2. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, dated [________], 2019, 

relating to the 2019 Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) and the Official Statement, dated 

[________], 2019, relating to the 2019 Bonds (the “Official Statement”), no action, suit, proceeding, 

inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, government agency or public board or 

body, is pending against or, to the best of our knowledge, threatened against the Agency, affecting the 

legal existence of the Agency or the titles of its officers to their respective offices or affecting or seeking 

to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of the 2019 Bonds or the collection of the 

amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest on the 2019 Bonds, or in any way 

contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Purchase 

Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or the Related Documents or contesting the tax-exempt 

status of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds as described in the Official Statement, or contesting in 

any way the completeness or accuracy of the Official Statement or any supplement or amendment thereto, 

or contesting the powers of the Agency or any authority or proceedings for the issuance, sale and delivery 

of the 2019 Bonds, the adoption of the Resolution or the execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract, 

the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or the Related Documents or the performance of the Agency’s 

obligations under the Resolution, the Purchase Contract or the Related Documents, nor to the best of our 

knowledge, is there any basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would 

materially adversely affect the validity or enforceability of the 2019 Bonds, the Resolution, the Related 

Documents, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or the Purchase Contract. 

3. To the best of our knowledge, no event affecting the Agency has occurred since the date 

of the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the Official Statement so that the Official 

Statement will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required 

to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 

which they were made, not misleading, and which has not been disclosed in a supplement or amendment 

to the Official Statement. 

4. The Agency has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its 

part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof pursuant to the Purchase Contract. 

Page 277 of 473



 

 F-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

5. All capitalized terms employed herein which are not otherwise defined shall have the 

same meanings as in the Purchase Contract. 

[Closing Date], 2019 

 

___________________________________ 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

of the Agency  

 

___________________________________ 

General Manager and Chief Executive Officer 

of the Agency 

Page 278 of 473



 

G-1 

 4163-8041-3470 

 

EXHIBIT G 

 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITER 

 

The undersigned, on behalf of Barclays Capital Inc. (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and 

BofA Securities, Inc., hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance by Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (the “Issuer”) of its $[________] aggregate principal amount of All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “Bonds”). 

1. Sale of the Bonds. As of the date of this certificate, for each Maturity of the Bonds, the 

first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective 

price listed in Schedule A. 

2. Defined Terms. 

(a) Issuer means the Florida Municipal Power Agency. 

(b) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with different 

maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as 

separate Maturities. 

(c) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, 

company or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related 

party” for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 

percent common ownership, directly or indirectly. 

(d) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 

Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of 

the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly 

with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 

Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in 

the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public). 

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this 

certificate represents the Representative’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 

and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. 

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect 

to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with the 

federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Nixon Peabody LLP in connection with rendering its 

opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the 

preparation of the Internal Revenue Service form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it may 

give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds.  

Page 279 of 473



 

 G-2 
 4163-8041-3470 

 

 

BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC., as Representative of the 

Underwriters 

 

 

By: ________________________________  

Name:  

Title:  

 

Dated:  [Closing Date], 2019

Page 280 of 473



 

G-3 

 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE A 

 

SALE PRICES 

 

Due  

October 1, 

Principal  

Amount 

Interest  

Rate Yield Price 

     

     

     

     

 

 

   

Page 281 of 473



 

G-4 

 4163-8041-3470 

 

SCHEDULE B 

 

PRICING WIRE 

Page 282 of 473



 

 

EXHIBIT H 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A 

AND 

SERIES 2019B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 
  

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

  

THIS AGREEMENT, dated [________], 2019, is made by and between the Agency and 

the Trustee, each as defined below in Section 1. 

In order to permit the Underwriters to comply with the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 in 

connection with the public offering of the Bonds, the parties hereto, in consideration of the 

mutual covenants herein contained and other good and lawful consideration, hereby agree, for 

the sole and exclusive benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, as follows: 

Section 1.  Definitions; Rules of Construction. 

(i) Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings 

ascribed to them in the Resolutions. 

“Agency” shall mean Florida Municipal Power Agency, a governmental legal 

entity created pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida. 

“Annual Agency Financial Information” shall mean the information specified in 

Section 3(i) hereof. 

“Annual Financial Information” shall mean the Annual Major Participant 

Financial Information and Annual Agency Financial Information, collectively. 

“Annual Major Participant Financial Information” shall mean the information 

specified in Section 3(ii) hereof. 

“Audited Financial Statements” shall mean the Audited Agency Financial 

Statements and the Audited Major Participant Financial Statements. 

“Audited Agency Financial Statements” shall mean the annual financial 

statements of the Agency, audited by such auditors as shall then be required or permitted 

by State law or the Resolutions.  Audited Agency Financial Statements shall be prepared 

in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that the Agency may, from time to time, if 

Page 283 of 473



 

H-2 

required by federal or State legal requirements, modify the accounting principles to be 

followed in preparing its financial statements.  

“Audited Major Participant Financial Statements” shall mean the annual financial 

statements of each Major Participant audited by such auditors as shall then be required or 

permitted by State law.  Audited Major Participant Financial Statements shall be prepared 

in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that Major Participants may, from time to 

time, if required, by federal or State legal requirements, or otherwise, modify the 

accounting principles to be followed in preparing its financial statements. 

“Bonds” shall mean the Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds. 

“EMMA” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system, the 

electronic format information repository to the MSRB, created in accordance with certain 

amendments to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or 

its successor. 

“Financial Obligation” shall mean a: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative 

instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment 

for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (C) guarantee of (A) or (B), but (ii) shall 

not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided 

to the MSRB consistent with Rule 15c2-12 

“GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from 

time to time in the United States. 

“Holder” shall mean any registered owner of Bonds, and, for purposes of 

Section 5 of this Agreement only, if registered in the name of DTC (or a nominee 

thereof) or in the name of any other entity (or a nominee thereof) that acts as a “clearing 

corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and is a 

“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, any beneficial owner of Bonds. 

“Major Participants” shall mean, individually or collectively as the context 

requires, each Participant which shall have a Participant’s Share and each Participant or 

other unit of local government which pursuant to the Power Sales Contracts or otherwise 

shall have and/or shall have assumed (by agreement or by operation of law) the 

obligations of one or more Participants under the Power Sales Contracts to the extent of 

an aggregate Participant’s Share in excess of 10%.  The Major Participants currently are 

the City of Jacksonville Beach, the Utility Board of the City of Key West, the Kissimmee 

Utility Authority and the City of Ocala.  

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934. 

“Participants” shall mean City of Bushnell, City of Clewiston, City of Fort 

Meade, Town of Havana, City of Green Cove Springs, City of Jacksonville Beach, City 

Page 284 of 473



 

H-3 

of Leesburg, City of Ocala, Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida, Kissimmee 

Utility Authority, City of Lake Worth, City of Newberry, City of Starke and Fort Pierce 

Utilities Authority. 

“Participant’s Share” shall mean the Participant’s prior years kWh purchases from 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

“Resolutions” shall mean the All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond 

Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on 

May 23, 2003, as amended and supplemented, including as supplemented by the 

Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) and Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply 

Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds), each adopted on [________], 2019. 

“Rule 15c2-12” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 (as amended through the date of this 

Agreement) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including any 

official interpretations thereof promulgated on or prior to the effective date hereof. 

“Series 2019A Bonds” shall mean the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A. 

“Series 2019B Bonds” shall mean the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable). 

“State” shall mean the State of Florida. 

“Trustee” shall mean TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, or 

any successor trustee under the Resolution. 

“Unaudited Agency Financial Statements” shall mean the same as Audited 

Agency Financial Statements except that they shall not have been audited. 

“Unaudited Major Participant Financial Statements” shall mean the same as 

Audited Major Participant Financial Statements except that they shall not have been 

audited. 

“Underwriters” shall mean the underwriter or underwriters that have contracted to 

purchase the Bonds from the Agency upon initial issuance. 

(ii) Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, the following rules shall apply 

to the construction of this Agreement: 

(a) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and 

vice versa. 

(b) Any reference herein to a particular Section or subsection without further 

reference to a particular document or provision of law or regulation is a reference to a 

Section or subsection of this Agreement. 

Page 285 of 473



 

H-4 

(c) The captions and headings herein are solely for convenience of reference 

and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement nor shall they affect its meaning, 

construction or effect. 

Section 2.  Obligation to Provide Continuing Disclosure. 

(i) The Agency hereby undertakes, for the benefit of Holders of the Bonds, to 

provide or cause to be provided: 

(a) to the MSRB through its EMMA system, no later than nine months after 

the end of each fiscal year, commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, 

the Annual Financial Information relating to such fiscal year; 

(b) if not submitted as part of the Annual Financial Information, to the MSRB 

through its EMMA system, not later than nine months after the end of each fiscal year 

commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, (1) Audited Agency 

Financial Statements for such fiscal year when and if they become available and, if such 

Audited Agency Financial Statements are not available on the date which is nine months 

after the end of a fiscal year, the Unaudited Agency Financial Statements for such fiscal 

year and (2) Audited Major Participant Financial Statements for such fiscal year when 

and if they become available and, if such Audited Major Participant Financial Statements 

are not available on the date which is nine months after the end of a fiscal year, the 

Unaudited Major Participation Financial Statements for such fiscal year; provided, 

however, in the case of Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, that the same 

can practicably be obtained by the Agency;   

(c) to EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with 

respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the 

event: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 

perform; 

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service 

of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of 

Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 

determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

7. modifications to the rights of Bondholders, if material; 

8. bond calls, if material, and tender offers;  

Page 286 of 473



 

H-5 

9 defeasances; 

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

Bonds, if material; 

11. rating changes; 

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings of the 

Agency or a Major Participant; 

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition, or the 

sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Agency or a 

Major Participant, other than in the ordinary course of business, the 

entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such action or the 

termination of a definitive agreement relating to such actions, other 

than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

14. appointment of a successor trustee or additional trustee or the 

change of name of a trustee, if material; 

15. the incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Agency or a Major 

Participant, if material, or agreement as to covenants, events of 

default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 

Financial Obligation of the Agency or a Major Participant, any of 

which affect holders of the Bonds, if material; and 

16. a default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of 

terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial 

Obligation of the Agency or a Major Participant, any of which 

reflect financial difficulties. 

(d) to EMMA, in a timely manner, notice of a failure to provide any Annual 

Financial Information required by clause (i)(a) of this Section 2. 

(ii) The Agency may satisfy its obligations hereunder by filing any notice, document 

or information with the MSRB through its EMMA system, to the extent permitted or required by 

the SEC. 

(iii) Other Information.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent the Agency from 

disseminating any other information in addition to that required hereby in the manner set forth 

herein or in any other manner.  If the Agency should disseminate any such additional 

information, the Agency shall not have any obligation hereunder to update such information or to 

include it in any future materials disseminated hereunder. 

(iv) Disclaimer.  The Agency and the Trustee shall be obligated to perform only those 

duties expressly provided for such entity in this Agreement, and neither of the foregoing shall be 

under any obligation to the Holders or other parties hereto to perform, or monitor the 

performance of, any duties of the other party. 

Section 3.  Annual Financial Information. 

(i) The required Annual Agency Financial Information shall consist of the following: 

Page 287 of 473



 

H-6 

(A) financial and operating data relating to the Agency’s All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project consisting of:  (1) a description of the Agency’s All-

Requirements Power Supply Project; (2) information of the type included in the 

table captioned “Historical Capacity Requirements and Resources” under the 

heading “THE PROJECT” in the Official Statement for the three most recently 

completed fiscal years; (3) historical operating results for the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project for the three most recently completed fiscal years, including 

net sales to cities and net power costs; and (4) information concerning the 

Agency’s debt service requirements for the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project; 

(B) a presentation of the Agency’s financial results in accordance with GAAP 

for the two most recent completed fiscal years for which that information is then 

currently available;  

(C)  material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(D) such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding 

and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information 

and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the 

Agency. 

(ii) The required Annual Major Participant Financial Information shall consist of the 

following: 

(A)  financial and operating data consisting of:  (1) the information of the type 

contained in Appendix B to the Official Statement, other than the information 

contained under the headings “General”; (2) information concerning sales of 

electric services, customers, and non-coincident peak demand; and (3) a 

presentation of the Major Participants’ information concerning historical net 

energy requirements and peak demand;  

(B)  material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(C)  such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding 

and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information 

and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the 

Major Participants. 

The type of financial information and operating data relating to the Agency described in 

Sections 3(i)(A), (B) and (C) is currently included in the Official Statement dated [________], 

2019 and relating to the Bonds under the headings “DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS”, 

“THE PROJECT” and “LITIGATION”.  The type of financial information and operating data 

relating to the Major Participants described in Sections 3(ii)(A), (B) and (C) is currently included 

in the Official Statement dated [________], 2019 under the headings “THE PROJECT 

PARTICIPANTS”, APPENDIX A – “MEMBER PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS” and 

APPENDIX B – “THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS”.  The requirements contained in this section 

are intended to set forth a general description of the type of financial information and operating 

Page 288 of 473



 

H-7 

data to be provided; such descriptions are not intended to state more than general categories of 

financial information and operating data; and where the provisions of clause (i) call for 

information that no longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been 

materially changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided. 

All or any portion of the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated therein by 

cross reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB through its 

EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, that if the 

document is an official statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not have been 

filed elsewhere. 

Annual Financial Information for any fiscal year containing any modified operating data 

or financial information (as contemplated by Section 7 hereof) for each such fiscal year shall 

explain, in narrative form, the reasons for such modification and the effect of such modification 

on the Annual Financial Information being provided for such fiscal year.  If a change in 

accounting principles is included in any such modification, such Annual Financial Information 

shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis 

of the modified accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 

principles.  Such comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 

accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the 

presentation of the financial information.  To the extent feasible, such comparison shall also be 

quantitative.  A notice of any such change in accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB 

through its EMMA system. 

Information From Major Participants.  The Agency agrees to request, obtain and 

provide, pursuant to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or otherwise, Annual 

Major Participant Financial Information, Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, and 

information relating to any change in fiscal year and the basis on which audited financial 

statements are prepared, from time to time and in sufficient time to permit the Agency to comply 

with the provisions of this Agreement, and shall enforce such provisions of this Agreement; the 

failure of any Major Participant to furnish any such requested information or data shall not 

excuse the performance by the Agency of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  Under the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, the Participants are required to furnish to the 

Agency, upon request all information, financial statements and other documents as shall be 

reasonably necessary in connection with the financing of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project. 

Section 4.  Financial Statements.   The Audited Financial Statements for each fiscal 

year shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP as in effect from time to time.  Such financial 

statements shall be audited by an independent accounting firm. 

All or any portion of the Audited or Unaudited Financial Statements may be incorporated 

therein by specific reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB 

through its EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, 

that if the document is an official statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not 

have been filed elsewhere. 

Page 289 of 473



 

H-8 

Section 5.  Remedies.   If the Agency shall fail to comply with any provision of this 

Agreement, then the Trustee or any Holder of Bonds may enforce, for the equal benefit and 

protection of all Holders similarly situated, by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in 

equity, this Agreement against the Agency and any of its officers, agents and employees, and 

may compel the Agency or any of its officers, agents or employees to perform and carry out their 

duties under this Agreement; provided that the sole and exclusive remedy for breach of this 

Agreement shall be an action to compel specific performance of the obligations of the Agency 

hereunder and no person or entity shall be entitled to recover monetary damages hereunder under 

any circumstances, and, provided further, that any challenge to the adequacy of any information 

provided pursuant to Section 2 shall be brought only by the Trustee or the Holders of 25% in 

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding which are affected thereby.  

Failure to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a default under the 

Resolutions nor give right to the Trustee or any Holder to exercise any of the remedies under the 

Resolutions. 

Section 6.  Parties in Interest.   This Agreement is executed and delivered solely for the 

benefit of the Holders of the Bonds which, for the purposes of Section 5, include those beneficial 

owners of Bonds specified in the definition of Holder set forth in Section 1.  For the purposes of 

such Section 5, such beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-party beneficiaries of this 

Agreement.  No person other than those described in Section 5 shall have any right to enforce the 

provisions hereof or any other rights hereunder. 

Section 7.  Amendments.   Without the consent of any Holders (except to the extent 

expressly provided below), the Agency and the Trustee at any time and from time to time may 

enter into any amendments or changes to this Agreement for any of the following purposes: 

(i) to comply with or conform to Rule 15c2-12 or any amendments thereto or 

authoritative interpretations thereof by the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff 

(whether required or optional) which are applicable to the Agreement; 

(ii) to add a dissemination agent for the information required to be provided hereby 

and to make any necessary or desirable provisions with respect thereto; 

(iii) to evidence the succession of another person to the Agency and the assumption by 

any such successor of the covenants of the Agency hereunder; 

(iv) to add to the covenants of the Agency for the benefit of the Holders, or to 

surrender any right or power herein conferred upon the Agency; or 

(v) for any other purpose as a result of a change in circumstances that arises from a 

change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the 

Agency, or type of business conducted; provided that (1) the Agreement, as amended, would 

have complied with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 at the time of the offering of the Bonds, 

after taking into account any amendments or authoritative interpretations of Rule 15c2-12, as 

well as any change in circumstances, (2) the amendment or change either (a) does not materially 

impair the interests of Holders, as determined by bond counsel or (b) is approved by the vote or 

consent of Holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Bonds affected thereby 

Page 290 of 473



 

H-9 

at or prior to the time of such amendment or change and (3) the Trustee receives an opinion of 

bond counsel that such amendment is authorized or permitted by this Agreement. 

Section 8.  Termination.   This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such 

time as all principal, redemption premiums, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall have been 

paid in full or legally defeased pursuant to the Resolutions (a “Legal Defeasance”); provided, 

however, that if Rule 15c2-12 (or successor provision) shall be amended, modified or changed so 

that all or any part of the information currently required to be provided thereunder shall no 

longer be required to be provided thereunder, then such information shall no longer be required 

to be provided hereunder; and provided, further, that if and to the extent Rule 15c2-12 

(or successor provision), or any provision thereof shall be declared by a court of competent and 

final jurisdiction to be, in whole or in part, invalid, unconstitutional, null and void, or otherwise 

inapplicable to the Bonds, then the information required to be provided hereunder, insofar as it 

was required to be provided by a provision of Rule 15c2-12 so declared, shall no longer be 

required to be provided hereunder.  Upon any Legal Defeasance, the Agency shall provide notice 

of such defeasance to the MSRB through its EMMA system.  Such notice shall state whether the 

Bonds have been defeased to maturity or to redemption and the timing of such maturity or 

redemption.  Upon any other termination pursuant to this Section 8, the Agency shall provide 

notice of such termination to the MSRB through its EMMA system. 

Section 9.  The Trustee. 

(i) Except as otherwise set forth herein, this Agreement shall not create any 

obligation or duty on the part of the Trustee and the Trustee shall not be subject to any liability 

hereunder for acting or failing to act as the case may be. 

(ii) The Agency shall indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee in connection with 

this Agreement, to the same extent provided in the Resolutions for matters arising thereunder. 

Section 10.  Governing Law.   This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Florida determined without regard to principles of conflict of law. 

Section 11.  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but which together shall constitute one and the 

same Agreement. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signatures appear on following page] 

Page 291 of 473



 

[Signature page to Continuing Disclosure Agreement] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly authorized, executed and 

delivered this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By:   

Name:  Jacob Williams 

Title:  General Manager and CEO  

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
   as Trustee 

By:   

Name: David C. Leondi 

Title: Vice President 

Page 292 of 473



OHS Draft 8/30/19 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED [________], 2019 

 

 

T
h

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

 O
ff

ic
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 c
o
n

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
h

an
g
e,

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

w
it

h
o
u
t 

n
o
ti

ce
. 
 T

h
e 

O
ff

er
ed

 S
ec

u
ri

ti
es

 m
ay

 n
o
t 

b
e 

so
ld

 n
o

r 
m

ay
 o

ff
er

s 
to

 b
u

y
 b

e 
ac

ce
p
te

d
 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e 

ti
m

e 
th

e 
O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 i
n

 f
in

al
 f

o
rm

. 
 U

n
d
er

 n
o

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s 

sh
al

l 
th

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y
 O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

co
n
st

it
u

te
 a

n
 o

ff
er

 t
o

 s
el

l 
o

r 
th

e 
so

li
ci

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
 o

ff
er

 t
o
 b

u
y
, 
n

o
r 

sh
al

l 
th

er
e 

b
e 

an
y

 

sa
le

 o
f 

th
e 

O
ff

er
ed

 S
ec

u
ri

ti
es

 i
n

 a
n
y

 j
u

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
ch

 o
ff

er
, 

so
li

ci
ta

ti
o
n

 o
r 

sa
le

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e 
u
n

la
w

fu
l 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
r 

q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 u

n
d
er

 t
h

e 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

 l
aw

s 
o

f 
su

ch
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 

NEW ISSUE–BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY Ratings: Moody’s: [__] 

 Fitch: [__] 

 See “Credit Ratings” herein. 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the tax covenants described herein, 

and the accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by Florida Municipal Power Agency described herein, interest 

on the Series 2019A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest on the Series 2019A Bonds 

is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code.  Interest on the Series 

2019B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein regarding certain 

other tax considerations. 

$[82,095,000]* 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

$[75,425,000]*  

All-Requirements Power Supply Project  

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A 

$[6,670,000]*  

All-Requirements Power Supply Project  

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B  

(Federally Taxable) 

DATED:  DATE OF ISSUANCE DUE: AS SHOWN ON INSIDE FRONT COVER 

The Series 2019A Bonds are being issued by the Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”) to (i) currently refund all 

of FMPA’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, 

(ii) pay the costs of terminating existing interest rate swap agreements associated with such bonds and (iii) pay the costs of issuance 

of the Series 2019A Bonds. The Series 2019B Bonds are being issued by FMPA to (i) currently refund all of FMPA’s outstanding 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 

2019B Bonds. The Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds are referred to herein as the “Offered Securities.” 

The Offered Securities are payable and secured on a parity with FMPA’s senior lien Bonds (as defined in 

“INTRODUCTION – Outstanding Indebtedness”) issued for the Project (as defined in “INTRODUCTION – The Project”), 

including those senior lien Bonds presently outstanding and those that may be issued for the Project in the future. 

The Offered Securities are issuable as fully registered bonds and when issued will be registered in the name of Cede & 

Co., as Bondholder and Securities Depository Nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. Individual 

purchases will be made in book-entry-only form through DTC Participants. TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New 

Jersey, is the Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Offered Securities and all other parity senior lien Bonds of the 

Project. 

The Offered Securities will be issued in authorized denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and will 

accrue interest from their dated date payable on each April 1 and October 1, commencing April 1, 2020, at the rates and mature on 

the dates set forth on the inside front cover of this Official Statement. 

The Offered Securities are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

The Offered Securities are direct and special obligations of FMPA, payable from the revenues and other funds of 

the Project pledged thereto under the Resolution. Neither the State of Florida nor any political subdivision thereof other 

than FMPA, nor any Member of FMPA, is obligated to pay the Offered Securities. Neither the full faith and credit nor the 

taxing power of the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof or any Member is pledged to the payment of the 

Offered Securities. FMPA has no taxing power. 

MATURITY SCHEDULE – See Inside Front Cover 

The Offered Securities are offered when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriters, subject to the approval of 

legality by Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters in connection with the Offered 

Securities will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, New York, New York. 

Certain legal matters in connection with the Offered Securities are subject to the approval of Jody L. Finklea, Esquire, FMPA’s 

General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer. Dunlap & Associates, Inc., Orlando, Florida, is acting as FMPA’s Financial Advisor. It 

is expected that the Offered Securities in book-entry-only form will be available for delivery through The Depository Trust 

Company in New York, New York on or about [________], 2019. 

Barclays BofA Merrill Lynch 
________, 2019  

                                                 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 293 of 473



 

 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

$[75,425,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds,  

Series 2019A 

DUE  

OCTOBER 1, 

PRINCIPAL  

AMOUNT 

INTEREST  

RATE 

PRICE OR  

YIELD CUSIP(1) 

2025     

2026     

2027     

2028     

2029     

2030     

2031     

 

$[6,670,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds,  

Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

DUE  

OCTOBER 1, 

PRINCIPAL  

AMOUNT 

INTEREST  

RATE 

PRICE OR  

YIELD CUSIP(1) 

2020     

2021     

2022     

2023     

 

 

 

 

                                                 
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 
(1) Copyright, American Bankers Association (the “ABA”).  CUSIP data herein are provided by CUSIP Global Services, operated on behalf of 

the ABA by CUSIP Global Services, which is managed on behalf of the ABA by S&P Global Market Intelligence, a division of S&P Global 

Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for the convenience of Holders of the Offered Securities only at the time of 

issuance of the Offered Securities and FMPA, and the Underwriters do not make any representation with respect to such numbers or undertake 
any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any time in the future. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed 

after the issuance of the Offered Securities as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in 

part of such maturity or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that 
is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the Offered Securities. 

Page 294 of 473



 

-i- 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

Operational Offices 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

(407) 355-7767 

Facsimile: (850) 297-2014 

OFFICERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Howard McKinnon, Chairperson 

Lynne Tejeda, Vice Chairperson 

PARTICIPANTS IN THE PROJECT 

City of Bushnell 

City of Clewiston 

City of Fort Meade 

Fort Pierce Utilities Authority 

City of Green Cove Springs 

Town of Havana 

City of Jacksonville Beach 

Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida 

Kissimmee Utility Authority 

City of Lake Worth 

City of Leesburg 

City of Newberry 

City of Ocala 

City of Starke 

MANAGEMENT 

Jacob A. Williams, General Manager and CEO 

Jody Lamar Finklea, Esquire, General Counsel and CLO 

Linda S. Howard, CPA, CTP, Chief Financial Officer 

Ken Rutter, Chief Operating Officer 

Carol Chinn, Chief Information Security Officer 

Mark T. McCain, Assistant General Manager of Public Relations and Member Services 

Richard Popp, Treasurer and Risk Director 

Jason Wolfe, Financial Planning, Rates & Budget Director 

Danyel Sullivan-Marrero, Controller 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Dunlap & Associates, Inc. 

Orlando, Florida 

BOND COUNSEL 

Nixon Peabody LLP 

New York, New York 

TRUSTEE 

TD Bank, National Association 

Cherry Hill, New Jersey 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Purvis Gray & Company 

Ocala, Florida 

 

SWAP ADVISOR 

Swap Financial Group 

South Orange, New Jersey 

Page 295 of 473



 

-ii- 

No dealer or any other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation, 

other than the information and representations contained herein, in connection with the offering of the Offered 

Securities and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon. This Official Statement 

does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Offered 

Securities, to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is unlawful to make such solicitation, offer or sale. The 

information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this 

Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall create, under any circumstances, any implication that there has 

been no change in the affairs of FMPA or the Participants since the date hereof. 

The information in this Official Statement has been furnished by FMPA and the Participants and 

includes information obtained from other sources, all of which are believed to be reliable. The purpose of this 

Official Statement is to provide information to prospective investors in the Offered Securities and is not to be 

used for any other purpose or relied on by any other person. 

This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of historical 

fact, constitute “forward-looking statements.”  In this respect, the words “estimate”, “project”, “anticipate”, 

“expect”, “intend”, “believe” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. A 

number of factors affecting FMPA’s and the Participants’ business and financial results could cause actual 

results to differ materially from those stated in the forward-looking statements. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES, THE 

UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR 

MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF SUCH OFFERED SECURITIES AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT 

WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF 

COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

THE OFFERED SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 

OF 1933 NOR HAS THE RESOLUTION BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 

1939 IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS. 

THE OFFERED SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR 

STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY.  FURTHERMORE, THE 

FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE 

ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT.  ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL 

OFFENSE.  IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN 

EXAMINATION OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, 

INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  The 

Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their 

responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 

transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

 

Page 296 of 473



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 -iii-  

 

INTRODUCTION .............................................................1 
Florida Municipal Power Agency ......................................1 
The Project ........................................................................1 
Authority for the Offered Securities ..................................2 
Purpose of the Offered Securities ......................................2 
Outstanding Indebtedness ..................................................2 
Additional Bonds ..............................................................2 
Subordinated Indebtedness ................................................3 
Trustee ..............................................................................3 
Payments under the Power Supply Contracts ....................3 
Security for the Offered Securities ....................................3 
Major Participants .............................................................4 
DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES.........5 
General ..............................................................................5 
No Redemption .................................................................6 
PLAN OF FINANCE ........................................................6 
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS..........6 
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ...............................7 
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 

OFFERED SECURITIES .........................................8 
Pledge Under the Resolution .............................................8 
Rates..................................................................................8 
All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts .......................8 
Additional Bonds ..............................................................9 
Flow of Funds Under the Resolution .................................9 
Debt Service Reserve ........................................................9 
THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS ..........................10 
Introduction .....................................................................10 
Purchase and Sale ............................................................10 
Payments under Power Supply Contracts ........................10 
Early Termination of a Power Supply Contract ...............10 
Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD) .................................11 
Elections of Certain Participants .....................................11 
Withdrawal of Vero Beach ..............................................12 
Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by  

Participants ...............................................................13 
RISK MANAGEMENT ..................................................13 
General ............................................................................13 
Natural Gas Supply Hedging ...........................................14 
Rate Setting .....................................................................14 
Interest Rate Swaps .........................................................14 
Insurance .........................................................................15 
Cyber Security .................................................................15 
FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY ................15 
General ............................................................................15 
Organization and Management ........................................15 
THE PROJECT  ..............................................................18 
Introduction .....................................................................18 
Project Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of 

the Project .................................................................19 
Environmental and Operational Compliance ...................22 
Purchased Power and Other Contracts.............................22 
Member Contributed Resources ......................................22 
Net Metering ...................................................................22 
Fuel Supply .....................................................................23 
Transmission and Dispatch Agreements ..........................24 
Florida Municipal Power Pool .........................................24 
Conservation and Demand-Side Management Activities 25 
Future Power Supply .......................................................25 
Project Operations ...........................................................26 
Sales to Non-Participants ................................................26 
Historical and Projected Future Capacity Requirements 

and Resources ...........................................................27 
THE PROJECT PARTICIPANTS ..................................30 
Description of the Participants ........................................30 

Major Participants’ Historical Net Energy Requirements 

and Peak Demand .................................................... 30 
Major Participants .......................................................... 30 
OTHER FMPA PROJECTS ........................................... 31 
Introduction .................................................................... 31 
Stanton Project ............................................................... 31 
Stanton II Project ............................................................ 32 
St. Lucie Project ............................................................. 33 
Tri-City Project............................................................... 34 
Solar Project ................................................................... 34 
Environmental and Operational Compliance – Other 

Projects .................................................................... 34 
Initial Pooled Loan Project ............................................. 35 
Future Power Supply and Operations ............................. 35 
STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT ........................ 35 
CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC 

UTILITY INDUSTRY .......................................... 36 
General ........................................................................... 36 
Energy Policy Act of 1992 ............................................. 37 
FERC Transmission Initiatives ....................................... 37 
2005 Energy Policy Act .................................................. 37 
Fresh Water Supplies ...................................................... 39 
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION ........................... 39 
Air Pollution Prevention and Control ............................. 39 
EPA Regulatory Actions for Power Plants ..................... 40 
Waste Management ........................................................ 40 
Additional Environmental Issues .................................... 41 
UNDERWRITING ......................................................... 42 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR ................................................ 42 
LITIGATION  ............................................................. 42 
ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES ........................... 42 
CREDIT RATINGS ....................................................... 43 
Offered Securities ........................................................... 43 
General ........................................................................... 43 
TAX MATTERS ............................................................ 43 
The Series 2019A Bonds ................................................ 43 
The Series 2019B Bonds ................................................ 45 
APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ................... 50 
RELATIONSHIPS AMONG PARTIES ........................ 51 
VALIDATION  ............................................................. 51 
FMPA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................ 51 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE; ADDITIONAL FMPA 

INFORMATION ................................................... 51 
DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY 

REGULATIONS ................................................... 52 
MISCELLANEOUS ....................................................... 53 
APPENDIX A MEMBERS’ PARTICIPATION IN 

FMPA PROJECTS .............................................. A-1 
APPENDIX B THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS ........ B-1 
APPENDIX C FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 

30, 2018  ........................................................... C-1 
APPENDIX D SUMMARY OF CERTAIN 

PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS ....................... D-1 
APPENDIX E PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF 

BOND COUNSEL ............................................... E-1 
APPENDIX F BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM ...... F-1 
APPENDIX G CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER 

SEC RULE 15C2-12............................................ G-1 

Page 297 of 473



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -iv-  

 

Page 298 of 473



 

   

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 299 of 473



 

 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

of the 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

relating to its 

$[75,425,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A 

and 

$[6,670,000]* All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of this Official Statement (which includes the cover page and appendices hereto) of the Florida 

Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA” or the “Agency”) is to set forth information concerning FMPA, its Members and 

its $[75,425,000]* principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019A (the “Series 2019A Bonds”) and $[6,670,000]* principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2019B Bonds”).  The Series 2019A Bonds 

and the Series 2019B Bonds together are referred to herein as the “Offered Securities.” 

This Introduction contains a summary of certain of the information contained in this Official Statement. In 

order to make an informed decision as to whether to invest in the Offered Securities, a potential investor must read 

this Official Statement in its entirety. 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Official Statement shall have the meanings set forth in the 

Appendices to this Official Statement. 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

FMPA is a governmental legal entity, organized and existing under (i) Section 163.01 of the Florida Statutes 

(the “Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act”), (ii)  Part II, Chapter 361 of the Florida Statutes (the “Joint Power Act”), 

and (iii) an interlocal agreement creating FMPA among the 31 members of FMPA (each individually a “Member” and 

collectively, the “Members”) executed pursuant to the foregoing statutory authority and exercising supplemental 

authority granted under the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act or the Joint Power Act, or both (the “Interlocal 

Agreement”). The Members of FMPA are 31 Florida city commissions, city and town councils, utility commissions, 

utility authorities and a utility board. Under Florida law, FMPA has authority to undertake and finance specified 

projects and, among other things, to plan, finance, acquire, construct, reconstruct, own, lease, operate, maintain, repair, 

improve, extend or otherwise participate jointly in those projects. FMPA has the authority to issue bonds or bond 

anticipation notes for the purpose of financing or refinancing the costs of these projects. See “FLORIDA MUNICIPAL 

POWER AGENCY.” 

The Project 

The All-Requirements Power Supply Project (the “Project” or the “All-Requirements Power Supply Project”) 

is a power supply project under which FMPA provides to each of the active participating Members (the “Participants”) 

in the Project their individual All-Requirements Service. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of 

Certain Participants.”  For a particular Participant, its “All-Requirements Service” is all of its needed electric power 

and energy, transmission and associated services, unless limited by a contract rate of delivery, except for certain 

excluded resources. A Participant purchases its All-Requirements Service pursuant to an All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Contract with FMPA (each individually a “Power Supply Contract” and collectively, the “Power 

Supply Contracts”). See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

The power supply assets of the Project include (i) undivided interests in generating facilities that are owned 

in whole or in part by FMPA; (ii) power supply resources under long-term and short-term contracts of FMPA; 

(iii) generation assets owned by some of the Participants or in which some Participants have entitlement shares, the 

                                                 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 300 of 473



 

- 2 - 

capacity and energy of which are sold to the Project; and (iv) transmission arrangements. For further description of 

the Project, see “THE PROJECT.” 

Authority for the Offered Securities 

The Offered Securities are being issued pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, the Joint Power 

Act and Part II, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes (collectively, the “Act”), and the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on May 23, 

2003, as amended and supplemented, including as supplemented by the Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019A Bonds and the 

Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) 

authorizing the Series 2019B Bonds, each adopted on [________], 2019 (collectively, the “Resolution”). 

Purpose of the Offered Securities 

The proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of the Agency, to 

(i) currently refund all of FMPA’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, (ii) pay the costs of terminating existing interest rate swap agreements 

associated with such bonds and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

The proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds will be used, together with other available funds of the Agency, to 

(i) currently refund all of FMPA’s outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A 

(Taxable) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

See “PLAN OF FINANCE.” 

Outstanding Indebtedness 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been 

deposited with the Trustee, FMPA will have $788,968,000 principal amount of Bonds outstanding in the following 

amounts with respect to the Project: 

$57,790,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A 

(the “Series 2018A Bonds”) 

69,625,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A 

(the “Series 2017A Bonds”) 

52,925,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B 

(Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2017B Bonds”) 

424,120,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A 

(the “Series 2016A Bonds”) 

98,790,000 All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2015B (the “Series 

2015B Bonds”) 

6,615,000* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) 

(the “Series 2013A Bonds”) 

79,103,000* All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2008C (the “Series 2008C Bonds”) 

_______________________ 
* The Agency expects to use a portion of the proceeds of the Offered Securities, together with other available funds, to 

refund the Series 2008C Bonds and the Series 2013A Bonds.  See “PLAN OF FINANCE.” 

When issued, the Offered Securities together with the Series 2018A Bonds, the Series 2017A Bonds, the 

Series 2017B Bonds, the Series 2016A Bonds and the Series 2015B Bonds will be parity senior lien bonds and, 

together with all additional senior lien bonds on a parity therewith issued in the future (the “Additional Bonds”), are 

called the “Bonds.” 

Additional Bonds 

FMPA may, upon compliance with certain terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution, issue additional 

parity senior lien bonds in an unlimited amount, subject to the conditions specified in the Resolution, for the purpose 

Page 301 of 473



 

- 3 - 

of providing additional funds to finance costs incurred by FMPA in connection with the Project, including 

developmental costs, costs of acquisition and construction of additional power supply resources, operating costs and 

retirement costs. See “THE PROJECT – Future Power Supply” for a discussion of future additional power supply 

resources. The Resolution also authorizes the issuance of Additional Bonds to refund outstanding Bonds under the 

conditions specified in the Resolution. 

Subordinated Indebtedness 

The Resolution authorizes FMPA to incur subordinated indebtedness (“Subordinated Debt”) in an unlimited 

amount for any lawful purpose of FMPA related to the Project.  All Subordinated Debt will be subordinate as to 

security and source of payment to the Bonds, including all Additional Bonds. 

FMPA maintains two lines of credit that constitute Subordinated Debt and that are outstanding to pay 

operating and maintenance costs, including posting collateral as may be required by fuel and interest rate hedges.  One 

line of credit is a revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (the “JPMorgan 

Revolving Credit Agreement”) in the principal amount of $75 million.  It is expected that as of October 1, 2019, $5 

million will have been drawn under the JPMorgan Revolving Credit Agreement. The JPMorgan Revolving Credit 

Agreement expires on July 1, 2020.   

FMPA’s second line of credit is a revolving credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. in the principal 

amount of $25 million (the “Wells Line of Credit”).  It is expected that as of October 1, 2019, nothing will be drawn 

under the Wells Line of Credit.  The Wells Line of Credit expires on November 1, 2020. 

The interest rates on amounts drawn under the JPMorgan Revolving Credit Agreement and the Wells Line 

of Credit will be LIBOR-based interest rates or alternatively interest rates based off of the greater of a prime rate or 

federal funds based-rate calculation.  The United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority, a regulator of financial 

services firms and financial markets in the U.K., has stated that they will plan for a phase out of LIBOR with a target 

end to the indices in December 2021.  It is not known at this time what the alternate rate replacing LIBOR under the 

JPMorgan Revolving Credit Agreement or under the Wells Line of Credit will be.  Under the JPMorgan Revolving 

Credit Agreement, the parties will endeavor to reach agreement on an alternate rate and under the Wells Line of Credit, 

the rate may be based off another recognized source of interbank quotation determined by Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

Trustee 

TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, is the Trustee under the Resolution for all debt 

issued for the Project under the Resolution, including all Bonds. 

Payments under the Power Supply Contracts 

The Power Supply Contracts provide for payments by the Participants of amounts sufficient to pay debt 

service on all Bonds, including the Offered Securities, and Subordinated Debt and all other payments required by the 

Resolution, such as operation and maintenance costs of the Project and deposits to reserves. See “THE POWER 

SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

Security for the Offered Securities 

The Offered Securities are direct and special obligations of FMPA payable solely from and secured solely 

by a pledge and assignment of (i) the proceeds of the sale of the Offered Securities, (ii) all right, title and interest of 

FMPA in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all 

funds established by the Resolution including the investment income, if any, thereof, subject only to the provisions of 

the Resolution permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Resolution. 

FMPA has covenanted in the Resolution to fix, charge and collect rates and charges for the sale of the output 

of the Project to generate revenues in each year in an amount (with other available funds of FMPA) sufficient to pay 

all of FMPA’s costs and expenses of the Project for that year, including Project operation and maintenance costs and 

all debt service on all Bonds and Subordinated Debt for that year. 

Page 302 of 473



 

- 4 - 

Each Participant has agreed in its Power Supply Contract to fix, charge and collect rates and charges for the 

services of its electric or integrated utility system in each year sufficient to pay costs and expenses of its utility system 

for that year, including all amounts payable to FMPA under its Power Supply Contract for that year. 

There is no Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Offered Securities. 

See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES.” 

Major Participants 

Attached hereto as APPENDIX B is certain information for the following four Participants – Kissimmee 

Utility Authority (“KUA”), City of Ocala (“Ocala”), City of Jacksonville Beach, doing business as Beaches Energy 

Services (“Jacksonville Beach”) and Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida, doing business as Keys Energy 

Services (“Key West”) – each of which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues from the Project in fiscal 

year 2018. These four Participants are referred to in this Official Statement as the “Major Participants.”  See also 

“THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.”  

Based on current power supply needs of the other Participants, no additional Participants account for 10% or 

more of the Agency’s revenues from the Project.  The aggregate payments to FMPA by the Major Participants with 

respect to the Project as of September 30, 2018 were approximately 73.04% of all revenues of the Project. As the 

revenues provided to the Project by each Participant change from time to time, the Participants that make up the top 

revenue-providing Participants may also change.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain 

Participants.” 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

Page 303 of 473



 

- 5 - 

Participant’s Fiscal Year 2018 Power Supply and Revenue Share 

Member MW(1) 

% of 2018 

Revenues 

Kissimmee Utility Authority 363 26.53% 

City of Ocala 297 24.22 

City of Jacksonville Beach 214 13.14 

Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida 145 11.87 

City of Leesburg 115 9.02 

Fort Pierce Utilities Authority 112 8.24 

City of Green Cove Springs 31 1.93 

City of Clewiston 25 1.66 

City of Starke  17 1.06 

City of Fort Meade  12(2) 0.69 

City of Newberry 10 0.69 

City of Bushnell 7 0.51 

Town of Havana 7 0.44 

City of Lake Worth 0(3) 0.00 

City of Vero Beach         0(4)       0.00 

Total: 1,355 100.00% 
   

________________________________________ 

(1) Participants’ non-coincident peak demand in fiscal year 2018 (rounded) that is served from the Project.  This amount includes demand served 
by excluded resources.  

(2) Fort Meade has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of its Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. The limitation 

commenced January 1, 2015. Based on Fort Meade’s usage between December 2013 and November 2014, the Executive Committee took 
action in December 2014 to set Fort Meade’s CROD at 10.306 MW, which was the initially established maximum hourly obligation through 

the remaining term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract. Concurrently with its notice of the CROD limitation, Fort Meade gave FMPA 

notice pursuant to Section 2 of the Power Supply Contract to discontinue the automatic renewal of the term of its Power Supply Contract. The 
term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2041. In 2018, Fort Meade approved a supplemental 

power sales agreement with the Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the Project will provide capacity and energy to Fort Meade as if 

Fort Meade had not effectuated CROD. Commensurate with this agreement, the FMPA Executive Committee adjusted Fort Meade’s CROD 
downward to 9.009 MW, in accordance with the Power Supply Contract. The agreement may be extended beyond the initial 10-year term. 

(3) The City of Lake Worth has elected under the Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

participation and implement a CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated as 0 MW.  See 
“THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Contract Rate of Delivery.”  While the City of Lake Worth remains a participant in the Project, 

effective January 1, 2014, it no longer purchases capacity and energy from the Project and no longer has a representative on the Executive 

Committee.   

(4) The City of Vero Beach (“Vero Beach”) elected under its Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project participation and implement a CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated 
as 0 MW. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD).” Effective January 1, 2010, Vero Beach no longer 

purchased capacity and energy from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and no longer had a representative on the Executive 

Committee. On December 17, 2018, Vero Beach completed the sale of its electric utility system to Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”) 
and withdrew as a member of FMPA and as a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and transferred and assigned to FMPA, 

with respect to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, the power sales and project support contracts between Vero Beach and FMPA 

relating to each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, as amended. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – 
Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach as a participant in the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project and as a member of FMPA. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES 

General 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Offered Securities. Reference is made to the Offered 

Securities themselves for the complete text thereof and to the Resolution, and the discussion herein is qualified by 

such references. 

The Offered Securities will be dated the date of delivery thereof and will bear interest from such date payable 

semiannually on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2020, until the principal amount is paid. 

The Offered Securities shall mature on October 1 in the years and principal amounts and bear interest at the rates per 

annum set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the Offered Securities will be computed 

on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

The Offered Securities are issuable only as fully registered bonds in authorized denominations of $5,000 or 

any integral multiple thereof. The Offered Securities will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as Bondholder and 

Page 304 of 473



 

- 6 - 

Securities Depository Nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. Individual purchases will 

be made in book-entry only form through DTC Participants. So long as the Offered Securities are registered in the 

name of Cede & Co., principal of, and interest on, the Offered Securities will be paid to Cede & Co. as the registered 

owner. See APPENDIX F – “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.” 

No Redemption 

The Offered Securities are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

The proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds, together with other available funds of FMPA, will be used to (i) 

currently refund all of the outstanding Series 2008C Bonds outstanding in the principal amount of $[________], (ii) 

pay the costs of terminating four existing interest rate swap agreements associated with the Series 2008C Bonds 

(together, the “2008C Swap Agreements”) and (iii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds. 

The proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds, together with other available funds of FMPA, will be used to (i) 

currently refund all of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (together with the Series 2008C Bonds, the “Refunded 

Bonds”) outstanding in the principal amount of $[________] and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019B 

Bonds. 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds will be used, together with 

other available funds of FMPA, to redeem the Refunded Bonds on or about the date of issuance of the Offered 

Securities, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of 

redemption. 

Certain terms of the 2008C Swap Agreements are described herein under “RISK MANAGEMENT – Interest 

Rate Swaps.” FMPA expects to terminate the 2008C Swap Agreements on the date of pricing of the Series 2019A 

Bonds, at which time the costs for terminating the 2008C Swap Agreements will be established. On the date of issuance 

of the Series 2019A Bonds, FMPA expects to use a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds to pay the costs 

of terminating the 2008C Swap Agreements to the counterparties (such costs are referred to herein as the “Termination 

Payments”). 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The following table sets forth the estimated sources and uses of funds for the Offered Securities: 

Sources Series 2019A Bonds Series 2019B Bonds 

Principal Amount    

Original Issue Premium   

Funds of FMPA   

Total   

Uses   

Redemption of Refunded Bonds   

Termination Payments for 2008C Swap 

Agreements 

  

Costs of Issuance(1)   

Total   

________________________ 
(1) Including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of attorneys, accountants and advisors, printing expenses and underwriters’ discount. 

  

Page 305 of 473



 

- 7 - 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

The following schedule shows the debt service requirements for the Offered Securities and the other 

Outstanding Bonds for the Project following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019:  

Period 

Ending 

October 1, 

Debt Service on 

Outstanding 

Bonds(1) 

Series 2019A Bonds 

Debt Service 
Series 2019B Bonds 

Debt Service 

Aggregate Debt 

Service on All 

Bonds 

Principal Interest Principal Interest  

2020       

2021       

2022       
2023       

2024       

2025       
2026       

2027       

2028       
2029       

2030       

2031       
2032       

2033       

2034       

2035       

Total:       

 

________________________ 

Totals may not add due to rounding. 
(1) Includes debt service on the Refunded Bonds, which are expected to be refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Offered Securities. 

Interest on the Series 2008C variable rate bonds which are hedged with an interest rate swap is calculated at the respective fixed swap rates 

for the swaps relating to a particular series of bonds. Interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is calculated at an assumed interest rate of 3.00%. 

See “RISK MANAGEMENT – Interest Rate Swaps” for swap information on the Series 2008C variable rate bonds. Debt service on the 

Series 2008C Bonds does not include remarketing or liquidity fees payable under the respective third-party agreements. 
 
 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

 

Page 306 of 473



 

 - 8 - 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT 

FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES 

Pledge Under the Resolution 

The principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds issued under the Resolution, including the 

Offered Securities and any Additional Bonds hereafter issued and any Parity Debt are payable solely from and secured 

as to payment of the principal and Redemption Price thereof, and interest thereon, in accordance with their terms and 

the provisions of the Resolution solely by (i) proceeds of the sale of the Offered Securities, (ii) all right, title and 

interest of FMPA in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the Revenues and (iv) all funds established by the 

Resolution including investment income, if any, thereon, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting 

the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

The Offered Securities are direct and special obligations of FMPA payable solely out of the Revenues and 

other funds pledged thereto under the Resolution as described above. Neither the State of Florida nor any political 

subdivision thereof nor any city or other entity which is a Member of FMPA, other than FMPA, is obligated to pay 

the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Offered Securities, and neither the faith and credit nor the 

taxing power of the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof or of any city or other entity is pledged to the 

payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Offered Securities. FMPA has no taxing power. 

FMPA may issue Additional Bonds on a parity basis with the Offered Securities pursuant to the Resolution. 

For a more extensive discussion of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the levels at which the funds 

and accounts established thereby are to be maintained and the purposes to which moneys in such funds and accounts 

may be applied, see APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND 

THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

Rates 

FMPA has covenanted in the Resolution to fix, establish, maintain and collect rents, rates, fees and charges 

under the Power Supply Contracts and to otherwise charge and collect rents, rates, fees and charges for the use or the 

sale of the output, electric capacity and energy or service of the System which, together with other available Revenues, 

are reasonably expected to yield Net Revenues for the twelve-month period commencing with the effective date of 

such rents, rates, fees and charges which shall be equal to at least the Aggregate Debt Service for such period and, in 

any event, as shall be required, together with other available funds, to pay or discharge all other indebtedness, charges 

and liens whatsoever payable out of Revenues under the Resolution, excluding from Aggregate Debt Service for 

purposes of the foregoing any Principal Installment which is a Refundable Principal Installment and which FMPA 

intends to pay from sources other than Revenues. 

Each Participant is required by the terms of its respective Power Supply Contract to establish, levy and collect 

rents, rates and other charges for the products and services provided by its electric or integrated utility system, which 

rents, rates and other charges shall be at least sufficient (i) to meet the operation and maintenance expenses of such 

electric or integrated utility system, (ii) to comply with all covenants pertaining thereto contained in, and all other 

provisions of, any resolution, trust indenture, or other security agreement relating to any bonds or other evidences of 

indebtedness issued or to be issued by the Participant, (iii) to generate funds sufficient to fulfill the terms of all other 

contracts and agreements made by the Participant, including, without limitation, its Power Supply Contract, and (iv) to 

pay all other amounts payable from or constituting a lien or charge on the revenues of its electric or integrated utility 

system. 

The Florida Public Service Commission (“PSC”) and the Florida Supreme Court have determined that, except 

as to rate structure, the PSC does not have jurisdiction over municipal electric utility rates, including those of the 

Participants. The PSC has not asserted any jurisdiction over the rates or rate structure of FMPA. 

See “RISK MANAGEMENT – Rate Setting.” 

All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts 

The Power Supply Contracts provide for payments by the Participants of amounts sufficient to pay debt 

service on all Bonds (including the Offered Securities) and Subordinated Debt, and all other payments required by the 

Page 307 of 473



 

 - 9 - 

Resolution, such as operation and maintenance costs of the Project and deposits to reserves. See “THE POWER 

SUPPLY CONTRACTS” and “THE PROJECT – Member Contributed Resources.” 

Additional Bonds 

FMPA may, upon compliance with certain terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution, issue additional 

bonds for the purpose of (i) providing additional funds to finance costs incurred by FMPA in connection with the 

Project, including developmental costs, costs of acquisition and construction of additional power supply resources, 

operating costs and retirement costs and (ii) refunding any of the Bonds then outstanding under the Resolution. 

Flow of Funds Under the Resolution 

Pursuant to the Resolution, all Revenues are deposited with FMPA to the credit of the Revenue Fund. Each 

month funds are to be transferred from the Revenue Fund in the following amounts and in the order of priority set 

forth below: 

First, to the Operation and Maintenance Fund held by FMPA (i) for credit to the Operation and Maintenance 

Account in the amount, if any, required so that the balance credited to said Account equals the amount estimated to 

be necessary for the payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the succeeding month, (ii) for credit to the 

Working Capital Account in the amount, if any, required so that the balance credited to said Account equals the amount 

budgeted therefor, and (iii) for credit to the Rate Stabilization Account Reserve in the amount, if any, required so that 

the balance credited to said Account equals the amount so budgeted therefor; 

Second, to the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee for credit to the Debt Service Account, the amount 

required so that the balance in such Account (excluding capitalized interest on deposit therein in excess of the amount 

thereof to be applied to pay interest accrued and to accrue on all outstanding Bonds for the period) shall equal the 

Accrued Aggregate Debt Service; 

Third, to reimburse each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider for any amounts advanced under its 

Reserve Account Credit Facility; 

Fourth, to the Debt Service Fund held by the Trustee for credit to each subaccount of the Debt Service 

Reserve Account, the amount required for such subaccount to equal the Debt Service Reserve Requirement; 

Fifth, to the Subordinated Debt Fund maintained and held as determined by the Supplemental Resolution, 

the amount, if any, required to pay principal or sinking fund installments of or premium, if any, and interest on each 

issue of Subordinated Debt and reserves therefor, as required by the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such issue 

of Subordinated Debt; 

Sixth, for credit to the Reserve and Contingency Fund maintained and held by FMPA (i) for credit to the 

Renewal and Replacement Account, the amount budgeted therefor and (ii) for credit to the Contingency Account, the 

amount required for such account to equal the Contingency Requirement; 

Seventh, for credit to the Decommissioning Fund, if one has been established pursuant to the Resolution, the 

amount budgeted for credit to such fund for the month, if any; and 

Eighth, for credit to the General Reserve Fund maintained and held by FMPA, the remaining balance, if any, 

of moneys in the Revenue Fund. 

Debt Service Reserve 

There is no Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Offered Securities. 

Page 308 of 473



 

 - 10 - 

THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS 

Introduction 

Each Participant in the Project has entered into a Power Supply Contract with FMPA. Subject to the early 

withdrawal of a Participant from the Project, as discussed below, each Power Supply Contract had an initial term of 

at least 30 years. Each year, each Participant’s Power Supply Contract is automatically extended for one additional 

year so that it will always have a term of at least 30 years unless a Project Participant affirmatively elects, upon one 

year’s prior notice to FMPA, not to continue to automatically extend the Power Supply Contract. Except for the Power 

Supply Contracts with respect to Starke, Green Cove Springs and Fort Meade, as described below under “– Elections 

of Certain Participants,” the Power Supply Contracts will remain in effect until at least October 1, 2049. 

Purchase and Sale 

Under the Power Supply Contract with a particular Participant, FMPA agrees to sell and deliver to that 

Participant, and that Participant agrees to purchase and take from FMPA, that Participant’s “All-Requirements 

Service.” For a particular Participant, its All-Requirements Service is all of its needed electric power and energy, 

transmission and associated services (unless limited by a CROD, as described under “– Contract Rate of Delivery 

(CROD)” below) other than energy supplied by resources excluded by the Power Supply Contract, which consist of 

entitlement shares in the St. Lucie Project (“Excluded Power Supply Resources”). If and to the extent that such 

Participant has any Excluded Power Supply Resources, FMPA agrees to sell and deliver to such Participant and such 

Participant agrees to purchase and receive from FMPA generating backup and support services for such Excluded 

Power Supply Resources including reserves, deficiency energy, transmission losses and firming capacity associated 

with the delivery of the Excluded Power Supply Resources or the replacement thereof and any associated transmission 

and dispatching services (the “Back-up and Support Services”). 

Payments under Power Supply Contracts 

Payments made under the Power Supply Contracts are payable solely from the Participants’ electric or 

integrated utility system revenues. Payments by a Participant under its Power Supply Contract are operating expenses 

of the Participant’s electric or integrated utility system, payable on parity with the system’s operation and maintenance 

expenses and before debt service on each Participant’s senior and subordinated debt. 

The Power Supply Contracts may not be amended, terminated or modified in any manner which will 

materially adversely affect the security for the Offered Securities. 

See APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND THE 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Summary of Certain Provisions of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Contracts.” See also “STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT” herein and “– Elections of Certain Participants” below. 

Early Termination of a Power Supply Contract 

A Participant may, but only upon satisfaction of the conditions described below, terminate its Power Supply 

Contract by written notice given at least three years prior to the intended Withdrawal Date (which date must be a 

September 30). Any such notice by the Participant shall be irrevocable. 

The conditions which must be satisfied before any such withdrawal may occur include: (i)(a) payment by the 

withdrawing Participant of an amount in cash equal to the amount necessary to call a percentage of Bonds and 

Subordinated Debt equal to the withdrawing Participant’s share of the current total energy load of the Project plus 

(b) the payment of the present value of all additional costs FMPA determines at its sole discretion may be incurred as 

a result of such withdrawal; (ii) the obtaining of any required approval of any credit facility providers if any Bonds 

and Subordinated Debt are then secured by a credit facility; (iii) the confirmation of then effective ratings on any 

Bonds and Subordinated Debt not secured by a credit facility and rated by a national rating agency; and (iv) a 

determination by bond counsel for FMPA that such withdrawal does not adversely affect the exclusion from gross 

income for Federal tax purposes of and/or the State of Florida tax exemption of interest on outstanding or future Bond 

and Subordinated Debt. Within 180 days after the first anniversary of the Withdrawal Date and annually thereafter for 

the remaining term of the withdrawing Participant’s Power Supply Contract, FMPA will reimburse the Participant in 

an amount equal to the additional benefits, if any, actually received by FMPA during such preceding year as a result 

of the withdrawal from the Project by the Participant as solely determined by FMPA. The net amount of such payments 

Page 309 of 473



 

 - 11 - 

by FMPA to the Participant shall not exceed 90% of the payment made by the Participant to FMPA under clause (i)(b) 

above. 

See APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE RESOLUTION AND THE 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS.” 

Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD) 

Effective on any January 1 upon at least five years’ prior written notice to FMPA prior to that January 1, a 

Participant may limit the maximum amount of electric capacity and energy required as All-Requirements Service for 

the remainder of the term of its Power Supply Contract so as not to exceed the Contract Rate of Delivery (“CROD”). 

The CROD is the peak demand of a Participant for electric capacity and energy as All-Requirements Service under 

the Power Supply Contract during the twelve-month period preceding the date one month prior to the date that such 

limitation shall become effective, adjusted up or down by FMPA by not more than 15%, so as to provide optimal 

utilization of the FMPA power supply resources, such adjustment to be made by FMPA in its sole discretion, and 

subject to certain other reductions relating to capacity available from the Participant’s own generating facilities and 

from contractual arrangements under which the Participant is entitled to receive capacity and energy, including 

contracts relating to other FMPA projects. As discussed below, each of Vero Beach (prior to its withdrawal from the 

Project and as a member of FMPA), Lake Worth and Fort Meade has limited its obligations under its respective Power 

Supply Contract to a CROD that became effective January 1, 2010, January 1, 2014 and January 1, 2015, respectively. 

In the case of Lake Worth, the CROD is zero. For the City of Fort Meade, the CROD is now 9.009 MW. Additionally, 

Green Cove Springs has notified FMPA of its intent to limit its obligations under its Power Supply Contract to a 

CROD to be effective January 1, 2020 (see “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants 

– Green Cove Springs”). Prior to Vero Beach’s withdrawal from the Project and as a member of FMPA, the CROD 

for Vero Beach was zero. 

Generally, because the calculation of a Participant’s CROD involves reducing a Participant’s peak demand 

for a period by that Participant’s other power generating capacity, including capacity from FMPA’s other projects, a 

Participant must have other capacity equal to or greater than its peak demand to achieve a 0 MW CROD. Lake Worth 

achieved a 0 MW CROD. Currently, no other Participant is expected to be able to achieve such a 0 MW CROD based 

upon each Participant’s current and forecasted demands and available capacity for each Participant. Additionally, 

KUA and Key West have each waived their rights to limit their capacity and energy taken from the Project to a CROD.  

See also “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 

Elections of Certain Participants 

Green Cove Springs. Green Cove Springs has notified FMPA of its election to limit its All-Requirements 

Service, as permitted in Section 3 of the Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. Beginning January 1, 2020, and 

continuing for the term of the Power Supply Contract, the Project will serve Green Cove Springs with a maximum 

hourly obligation to be calculated in December 2019. In 2019, Green Cove Springs approved a supplemental power 

sales agreement with the Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the Project will provide capacity and energy to 

Green Cove Springs as if Green Cove Springs had not effectuated a CROD. The agreement may be extended beyond 

the initial 10-year term. Green Cove Springs has also given FMPA notice pursuant to Section 2 of the Power Supply 

Contract that the term of its contract will not automatically renew each year and the term of Green Cove Springs’ 

Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2037. 

Starke.  In 2003, Starke gave FMPA notice of its election to not continue the automatic extension of the term 

of its Power Supply Contract, under Section 2 of its Power Supply Contract. Upon the expiration of the term of its 

Power Supply Contract with the Agency on October 1, 2035, Starke will no longer be a Participant in the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Fort Meade.  Fort Meade has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of its 

Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. The limitation commenced January 1, 2015. Based on Fort Meade’s usage 

between December 2013 and November 2014, the Executive Committee took action in December 2014 to set Fort 

Meade’s CROD at 10.306 MW, which is the maximum hourly obligation through the remaining term of Fort Meade’s 

Power Supply Contract.  In 2018, Fort Meade approved a supplemental power sales agreement with the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

will provide capacity and energy to Fort Meade as if Fort Meade had not effectuated CROD. Commensurate with this 

Page 310 of 473



 

 - 12 - 

agreement, the FMPA Executive Committee adjusted Fort Meade’s CROD downward to 9.009 MW, in accordance 

with the Power Supply Contract. The agreement may be extended beyond the initial 10-year term. 

Concurrently with its notice of the CROD limitation, Fort Meade gave FMPA notice pursuant to Section 2 

of the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract to discontinue the automatic renewal of the term of its Power Supply 

Contract. The term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2041.  

Lake Worth. Lake Worth has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service to a CROD, as permitted by the 

Power Supply Contract. The limitation commenced January 1, 2014. The CROD was determined to be 0 MW. 

Additionally, effective January 1, 2014, the Capacity and Energy Sales Contract between Lake Worth and FMPA 

terminated. See “Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD)” above.  In addition, in conjunction with the withdrawal of Vero 

Beach from the Project and as a member of FMPA, Lake Worth and FMPA have entered an agreement that FMPA 

will not attribute any associated costs incurred by FMPA, with respect to the Vero Beach withdrawal from the Project, 

to Lake Worth as costs for All-Requirements Services for so long as Lake Worth is a 0 MW CROD Participant, and 

not purchasing electric capacity and energy from the Project. 

Vero Beach. Vero Beach previously elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 

of its Power Supply Contract, to a CROD.  The limitation commenced January 1, 2010.  In December 2009, the amount 

of capacity and energy that Vero Beach is obligated to purchase under this limitation of its Power Supply Contract 

was determined to be 0 MW.  Additionally, effective January 1, 2010, the Capacity and Energy Sales Contract between 

Vero Beach and FMPA terminated. See “Contract Rate of Delivery (CROD)” above. 

In September 2014, Vero Beach gave notice to FMPA of its election to discontinue the automatic extension 

of the term of its Power Supply Contract. In the event that Vero Beach did not withdraw from the Project as described 

below, the term of Vero Beach’s Power Supply Contract would have been fixed and would have terminated October 

1, 2046. 

Withdrawal of Vero Beach 

On October 24, 2017, Vero Beach entered into an agreement (the “Sale Agreement”) to sell its electric utility 

system to FPL (the “Sale”). Vero Beach provided notice to FMPA, in accordance with the terms of the Power Supply 

Contract, that the terms of the Sale require Vero Beach to terminate its Power Supply Contract and withdraw from the 

Project effective upon the closing of the Sale. In addition, Vero Beach agreed that effective upon the closing of the 

Sale, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent (including, but not limited to, the payment to FMPA 

of approximately $108 million (subject to adjustment based on the closing date)), Vero Beach would transfer and 

assign to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, its power sales and project support contracts, as amended, 

relating to each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project (the “Vero Contracts”). The Vero 

Contracts constitute a part of the security for bonds issued by FMPA for its Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. 

Lucie Project. The Sale Agreement requires that Vero Beach be fully and completely released and discharged by 

FMPA from any and all obligations arising from Vero Beach’s participation in the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project and each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, and generally as to FMPA.  

At meetings of each of the FMPA Board of Directors and Executive Committee held on March 21, 2018, the 

FMPA Board of Directors and Executive Committee unanimously approved the form of the agreements and the taking 

of certain actions that would enable Vero Beach to withdraw from or transfer and assign its contracts relating to, and 

be released from all of its obligations to, the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and each of the Stanton Project, 

Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, and FMPA generally. The approvals of the FMPA Board of Directors and 

Executive Committee followed unanimous approvals given by governing bodies of the 19 member cities of FMPA 

who are the other participants in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and 

St. Lucie Project which consent to such transfer and assignment and complete release and discharge of Vero Beach, 

after closing of the Sale.  

On December 17, 2018, Vero Beach completed the Sale and withdrew as a member of FMPA and as a 

participant in the Project, transferred and assigned to FMPA, with respect to the Project, its interests as a participant 

in certain of FMPA’s power supply projects. Prior to the Sale, Vero Beach had a 32.521% Power Entitlement Share 

(21.3 MW) in the Stanton Project, a 16.4887% Power Entitlement Share (17.2 MW) in the Stanton II Project and a 

15.202% Power Entitlement Share (13.2 MW) in the St. Lucie Project. Vero Beach no longer purchased energy and 

capacity from the Project having elected to modify its participation by implementation of a CROD, which pursuant to 

contract terms had been calculated at 0 MW, as described above under “Election of Certain Participants – Vero Beach.” 

Page 311 of 473



 

 - 13 - 

In connection with such Sale,  

(i)  Vero Beach terminated its Power Supply Contract with FMPA in accordance with its terms, which 

included making a payment to the Project in the amount of $105,400,000 (including approximately $30,000,000 

pursuant to Section 29 of its Power Supply Contract) pursuant to the applicable contract terms governing withdrawal 

and termination;  

(ii)  Vero Beach transferred and assigned to FMPA, with respect to the Project, the Vero Contracts, 

which Vero Contracts constitute a part of the security for the bonds issued by FMPA for its Stanton Project, Stanton 

II Project and St. Lucie Project; and  

(iii)  FMPA and the participants in each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, St. Lucie Project and 

the Project fully and completely released and discharged Vero Beach from any and all obligations arising from Vero 

Beach’s participation in each of the Project, the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, and generally 

as a member of FMPA pursuant to a general release approved by the Board of Directors. 

Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by Participants  

KUA. Effective October 1, 2008, the Project entered into a Revised, Amended and Restated Capacity and 

Energy Sales Contract with KUA whereby the Project has assumed all cost liability and operational management of 

all KUA-owned generation assets and agreed to pay to KUA agreed-upon fixed annual capacity payments totaling 

$342,357,889 over preset periods relating to each asset beginning in fiscal year 2009. On July 1, 2019 the agreement 

was amended to extend the minimum fixed capacity payment term for Cane Island Units 1 and 2 to 2026, with agreed 

upon additional payments to be made starting October 1, 2020. As of July 1, 2019, $144,483,038 of the total fixed 

payments remain to be paid by FMPA under the agreement. The revised, amended and restated contract provides the 

Project the right to retire KUA’s generation assets at any time during the term of the contract, without shortening the 

applicable fixed payment term. Through fiscal year 2020, the fixed annual capacity payment is $18,993,010, and after 

fiscal year 2020 payments will vary based on the revised schedule of payments for Cane Island Units 1 and 2. If the 

Project elects not to retire Cane Island Units 1-3 after the minimum fixed payment period for each unit, payments 

under the contract will be linked to an agreed-upon capacity price and a calculated service factor that is based on the 

unit’s average annual usage level over the preceding three years. KUA also waived its right to elect CROD in the 

revised, amended and restated contract. 

Key West. Effective January 1, 2011, the Project entered into a Revised, Amended and Restated Capacity and 

Energy Sales Contract for Key West whereby the Project has assumed all cost liability and operational management 

of all Key West-owned generation assets and agreed to pay to Key West $6.7 million in fixed annual capacity payments 

of $670,000 each January 1 from 2011 through 2020 of which $670,000 will remain to be paid by FMPA as of October 

1, 2019. Upon final payment Key West will convey its interest in its generation assets to FMPA. The revised, amended 

and restated contract provides the Project the right to retire Key West’s generation assets at any time during the term 

of the contract, without shortening the fixed payment term, subject to the 60% on-island capacity requirement. FMPA 

is contractually obligated to meet approximately 60% (or lower, as mutually agreed to by FMPA and Key West) of 

Key West’s weather normalized firm load with on-island generation over the term of the Key West Power Supply 

Contract, so long as Key West is purchasing its full-requirements from the Project. Key West also waived its right to 

elect CROD in the revised, amended and restated contract. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

General 

FMPA has formalized its risk management activities through the creation and adoption by its Board of an 

Agency-wide risk management program. The FMPA Board initially created a committee in 2002 to oversee the risk 

management program and evaluate risk matters for FMPA, which role is currently addressed by the Finance 

Committee, and it has adopted several risk-related policies to guide Agency activities since then. These policies 

include its Agency-wide risk management, origination, investments, debt, credit, insurance, purchasing, accounting 

and internal control policies, power supply and resource planning, operations, contract management, human resources, 

records and data management, contingency and disaster planning policies. The Executive Committee has also adopted 

these policies for the Project. 

Page 312 of 473



 

 - 14 - 

The Treasurer and Risk Director is charged with creating risk management policies, while the Internal Audit 

group is charged with monitoring compliance and reporting annually to the Finance Committee on the effectiveness 

of each policy. The Internal Audit group works in conjunction with other Agency departments to provide risk oversight 

within operational function lines. The Treasurer and Risk Director has the responsibility for FMPA’s commercial 

insurance policies. These policies include: property, workers’ compensation, general liability, auto, crime, cyber, 

professional liability and directors and officers liability. 

Natural Gas Supply Hedging 

On May 21, 2015, the Executive Committee of the Agency discontinued all fuel hedging programs and made 

the affirmative decision not to engage in further fuel hedging. 

Rate Setting 

All Project rates – energy, demand and transmission – have automatic monthly cost adjustments. Tied to its 

Operating and Maintenance Fund cash position and the cash balance target which is set by Executive Committee 

policy, the rate process includes a base rate and a cost adjustment factor which is calculated to maintain the Project’s 

cash target, given the cost outlook for the following four months. This billing structure has been in place since 2006.  

The rate adjustment process is automatic and does not require any action by the Executive Committee. This system 

increases the speed that over and under recoveries are dealt with through the billing process and tracks costs on a 

current basis as well as targets the maintenance of an operation and maintenance cash balance at twice that required 

by the Resolution (two months). The Executive Committee has never stopped or reversed any portion of the automatic 

rate adjustment process. 

Interest Rate Swaps 

On May 21, 2015, the Executive Committee of FMPA voted to eliminate consideration of all new interest 

rate swaps in the future. 

As part of its debt management policy, prior to 2015 FMPA used interest rate swap agreements in an effort 

to lower borrowing costs and reduce the risk of fluctuating interest rates. By entering into interest rate swap agreements 

that exchanged variable payments for fixed payments, FMPA sought to achieve a lower interest rate than it would 

have had if it issued fixed rate debt while at the same time producing a more certain liability than it would have had 

if it had not hedged its variable rate liability. Arrangements made under such interest rate swap agreements do not 

alter FMPA’s obligation to pay principal of and interest on Bonds. Regularly scheduled payments under such interest 

rate swap agreements are payable on parity with debt service payments on Bonds. 

The related series of Bonds of each interest rate swap agreement, notional amount, effective date, fixed rate 

paid, variable rate received, termination date, and current counterparty are as shown in following table.  As described 

under “PLAN OF FINANCE,” it is expected that FMPA will terminate each of the interest rate swap agreements 

shown below on the date of issuance of the Offered Securities.  Upon such termination FMPA will have no interest 

rate swaps outstanding. 

Page 313 of 473



 

 - 15 - 

Summary of Interest Rate Swaps Outstanding 

Bonds 

Notional 

Amount 

(in thousands) 

Effective 

Date 

Fixed 

Rate Paid 

Variable Rate 

Received 

Scheduled 

Termination 

Date 

Current 

Counterparty 

Series 2008C $17,540 10/1/2006 3.698% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2027 Merrill Lynch Capital 

Services, Inc.(1) 

Series 2008C $22,953 10/1/2006 3.701% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2027 Goldman Sachs Bank USA(2) 

Series 2008C $22,953 10/1/2006 3.649% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2027 Morgan Stanley Capital 

Services, Inc.(3) 

Series 2008C $15,656 10/1/2006 3.737% 72% LIBOR 10/1/2035 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.(4) 

Series 2008C Total $79,103 

     

__________________________ 
(1) Guaranty provided by Bank of America Corp. 
(2) Goldman Sachs Capital Markets, L.P. pursuant to a merger, has changed its name to Goldman Sachs Bank USA and a guaranty is provided by 

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 
(3) Guaranty provided by Morgan Stanley 
(4) As successor to Wachovia Bank, N.A. 

 

Insurance 

FMPA maintains commercial insurance that management believes is sufficient to cover applicable risks. 

FMPA funds a self-insurance account within the general reserve fund for $2.75 million, which is two times the highest 

non-storm property deductible. The Cane Island Units and Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1 are insured at full 

replacement value by FM Global. All FMPA’s sites are classified as Highly Protected Sites by FM Global and there 

are no outstanding wind storm recommendations. 

Cyber Security 

FMPA invests in physical and cyber security protections for its generation assets and corporate cyber 

security.  FMPA has staff dedicated to cyber security.  Cyber security protections for FMPA’s corporate information 

technology and generation operations include advanced technologies, best practices, and staff 

training.  Comprehensive penetration tests are periodically performed for both corporate information technology and 

operations technology.  FMPA complies with the applicable North American Electric Reliability Corporation 

(“NERC”) Critical Infrastructure Protection Standards (“CIP Standards”), which provide a cyber security framework 

for the identification and protection of Bulk Electric System cyber assets. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

General 

FMPA was created on February 24, 1978, in accordance with the provisions of Article VII, Section 10 of the 

Florida Constitution, the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, the Joint Power Act and the Interlocal Agreement as 

executed by the then Members of FMPA.  FMPA may exercise authority under (i) either the Florida Interlocal 

Cooperation Act of 1969 or the Joint Power Act or (ii) both. 

FMPA has authority to plan, finance, acquire, construct, purchase, reconstruct, own, lease, use, share in, 

operate, maintain, repair, improve, extend or otherwise participate jointly in projects, including projects for the 

generation and transmission of electricity and to issue bonds or bond anticipation notes for the purpose of financing 

or refinancing the costs of such projects. See “THE PROJECT” and “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.” 

Organization and Management 

Effective May 24, 2007, the FMPA Board of Directors reorganized the governance structure of FMPA to 

give the Project Participants more control over the business and affairs of the Project. 

Page 314 of 473



 

 - 16 - 

Each of the 31 Members appoints its director to the Board of Directors of FMPA (the “Board”). The Board 

is FMPA’s governing body generally, except as regards the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. The Board has 

the responsibility for hiring a General Manager and General Counsel and establishing bylaws, which govern how 

FMPA operates, and policies which implement such bylaws. The Board also authorizes all non-Project debt issued by 

FMPA. The Board annually elects a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman, a Secretary and a Treasurer. 

The Executive Committee consists of one representative for each Participant, unless a Participant has elected 

CROD and the CROD is established at less than 15% of the Participant’s demand. The Executive Committee is the 

governing body of the Project. The Executive Committee elects a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson who are in those 

roles only with regard to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee adopts bylaws and has policy making 

authority and control over all the business and affairs of the Project, including the authorization of Project debt. The 

Project budget and FMPA agency general budget are developed and approved by the Executive Committee. 

The General Manager, General Counsel, Secretary and Treasurer of FMPA serve in their same position for 

both the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee. The day-to-day operations and expenditures of FMPA for 

projects other than the Project are controlled by the Board of Directors. Control over the same function for the Project 

is vested in the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee makes decisions on a one-vote-one-participant basis. 

A majority vote of a quorum (7 members) present is necessary for the Executive Committee to take action, except that 

on certain matters (generally (i) rate schedule amendments, (ii) approval of power supply or other contracts with a 

term of seven years or more, and (iii) any approval requiring the issuance of debt) a supermajority approval of 75% 

of the votes present is required for action, if requested by two or more members of the Executive Committee. 

The following is a brief description of the officers of the Executive Committee, and the principal staff 

members of FMPA: 

Executive Committee Chairperson: HOWARD MCKINNON 

Howard McKinnon, CPA, is the Town Manager of the Town of Havana. He serves as the elected Chairperson of 

FMPA’s Executive Committee for the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. Mr. McKinnon was first elected as 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee in July 2011. He has been a member of the Executive Committee and 

FMPA’s Board of Directors since 2006. Mr. McKinnon has served as Town of Havana’s Town Manager since 2006. 

He joined the Town of Havana as Finance Director in 2005. Mr. McKinnon had previously served eight years as 

County Manager of Gadsden County, Florida. Mr. McKinnon is active in the Florida Municipal Electric Association 

and is a past President of the association. He is also active in the American Public Power Association and received the 

association’s Larry Hobart Seven Hats Award in 2010. The Florida Rural Water Association selected Mr. McKinnon 

as Manager of the Year in 2012. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 

the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. McKinnon holds a bachelor’s degree in finance and a 

master’s degree in public administration from Florida State University.  

Executive Committee Vice Chairperson: LYNNE TEJEDA 

Lynne Tejeda is General Manager and CEO of Keys Energy Services. She serves as the elected Vice Chair of both 

FMPA’s Board of Directors and Executive Committee. Ms. Tejeda was first appointed as her utility’s alternate to 

FMPA’s Board of Directors in 2005 and has been a member of the Board since 2013. She was first elected Vice Chair 

of the Executive Committee in December 2014 and has been a member of the Committee since 2005. Ms. Tejeda is 

also Chair of FMPA’s Conservation and Renewable Energy Advisory Committee, of which she is a founding member. 

Ms. Tejeda has served as Keys Energy Services’ General Manager and CEO since 2005. She has been employed by 

the utility since 1989 in positions including Assistant General Manager and Chief Operating Officer. Ms. Tejeda is 

active in the Florida Municipal Electric Association and is a past President of the association. Ms. Tejeda previously 

served on the American Public Power Association’s Board of Directors and was the 2013 recipient of the association’s 

Harold Kramer-John Preston Personal Service Award. She currently serves on the Board of the Key West Chamber 

of Commerce. Ms. Tejeda holds a bachelor’s degree in journalism from the University of North Carolina at Chapel 

Hill and a Master of Business Administration from Regis University in Denver, Colorado. She is a Certified Public 

Manager and a graduate of the Berkeley Executive Leadership Program. 

General Manager and CEO of FMPA: JACOB A. WILLIAMS 

Jacob A. Williams is General Manager and CEO of FMPA. He has 34 years of experience in the electric utility 

industry, including both public power and investor owned utilities. Prior to joining FMPA in 2016, Mr. Williams 

Page 315 of 473



 

 - 17 - 

served as Vice President of Global Energy Analytics and Generation Development at Peabody Energy in St. Louis, 

Missouri. He also was previously with Alliant Energy (formerly Wisconsin Power & Light). Throughout his career, 

Mr. Williams has served in various positions including energy marketing, trading, integrated resource planning, and 

generation planning. Mr. Williams holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from the University of Illinois 

at Urbana-Champaign and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Wisconsin-Madison. 

General Counsel and CLO of FMPA: JODY LAMAR FINKLEA, ESQUIRE 

Jody Lamar Finklea is General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer for FMPA. Mr. Finklea is a Board appointed officer, 

responsible for all legal affairs of the Agency, as specified in the Board’s by-laws, and he manages FMPA’s reliability 

compliance area. Mr. Finklea joined FMPA in 2001 and has held several positions during his tenure. Most recently, 

he served as Deputy General Counsel and Manager of Legal Affairs. Mr. Finklea has more than 19 years of experience 

in municipal utility law. As FMPA’s General Counsel, Mr. Finklea also serves as general and regulatory counsel for 

Florida Municipal Electric Association, Inc. (“FMEA”). Most of FMPA’s members are also members of FMEA, so 

this partnership provides value to both organizations. He holds a bachelor’s degree in philosophy from The Catholic 

University of America in Washington, D.C., a master’s degree in public administration from the University of North 

Florida and a juris doctor degree from Florida State University. Mr. Finklea is admitted to The Florida Bar and is 

board certified as an expert in city, county and local government law. Mr. Finklea is active in the American Public 

Power Association (“APPA”) and served as the 2017 Chairman of the Legal Section. In 2011, Mr. Finklea was 

recognized by APPA as a Rising Star in Public Power. He holds a peer review rating as AV-Preeminent by Martindale 

Hubble. 

Chief Financial Officer of FMPA: LINDA S. HOWARD, CPA, CTP 

Linda Howard is Chief Financial Officer for FMPA, a position she was promoted to in September 2018. Mrs. Howard 

joined FMPA as Treasurer in January 2017. Prior to joining FMPA, Mrs. Howard served as Finance Bureau Chief for 

the Southwest Florida Water Management District where she managed the accounting, budget and procurement 

functions. For most of her career, Mrs. Howard worked at Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC). Her 25 years at OUC 

included experience in accounting, auditing and supervisory roles, leading to nine years as the Director of Fiscal 

Services and then five years as OUC’s Treasurer. Mrs. Howard has a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the 

University of Central Florida (UCF) and a Master of Business Administration from UCF. She is a Certified Public 

Accountant in Florida and a Certified Treasury Professional. Mrs. Howard is active in the Florida Government Finance 

Officers Association, where she served as President for the 2017-2018 term. In addition, she serves on the Board of 

the National Association of Black Accountants Greater Orlando Chapter, of which she is a charter member, and she 

is a member of the Association for Financial Professionals and a member of the Florida Institute of CPAs. 

Chief Operating Officer of FMPA: KEN RUTTER 

Ken Rutter is Chief Operating Officer for FMPA. Mr. Rutter joined FMPA in March 2019, and he manages the 

Agency’s power resources division. Prior to joining FMPA, Mr. Rutter worked with the Basin Electric Cooperative 

and Dakota Gasification in Bismarck, North Dakota, where he served for more than six years as senior vice president 

of marketing and asset management. Among other responsibilities, he led a team that restructured short-term power 

and natural gas management contracts, as well as created many value enhancements and commercial transactions for 

Basin and Dakota Gasification. He also spent more than 12 years with Ameren in St. Louis, Missouri, serving in 

several roles, most notably director of risk management and a short period as an internal auditor. Mr. Rutter has a 

bachelor’s degree in engineering from Purdue University and a Master of Business Administration from Washington 

University. 

Chief Information Security Officer of FMPA: CAROL CHINN 

Carol Chinn is Chief Information Security Officer for FMPA. She joined FMPA in July 2013. Ms. Chinn has 38 years 

of experience in the electric utility industry. Prior to joining FMPA, Ms. Chinn worked with American Transmission 

Company as the company’s Chief Operating Officer. She was also formerly with the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission in the Division of Reliability and was President and Chief Executive Officer at Georgia Transmission 

Corp. She began her career with Florida Power & Light. Ms. Chinn serves on the North American Electric Reliability 

Corporation’s Member Representatives Committee and was the Chair in 2013. She is a Board Member of the 

Transmission Access Policy Study Group and the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council. Ms. Chinn holds a 

bachelor’s degree in environmental engineering from the University of Florida, a bachelor’s degree in electrical 

engineering from the University of Miami and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Florida. 

Page 316 of 473



 

 - 18 - 

Assistant General Manager of Public Relations and Member Services of FMPA: MARK T. McCAIN 

Mark McCain is Assistant General Manager of Public Relations and Member Services for FMPA. Mr. McCain has 

33 years of experience in the municipal electric utility industry. He began his career with FMPA in 1986 as 

Communication Specialist. He was promoted in 1995 to Public Relations Manager. In 1998, he was given the added 

responsibilities of public affairs management. Mr. McCain is active in professional associations and has served in 

various leadership positions for those organizations. He is a long-time member of the Public Relations Society of 

America (PRSA), the world’s largest organization for public relations professionals, and is a past President of the 

Orlando Regional Chapter of PRSA. He is also an active member of the American Public Power Association (APPA), 

the service organization for the nation’s more than 2,000 publicly owned electric utilities. Mr. McCain has held several 

leadership positions for APPA’s Energy/Customer Service & Communication Section, including Chairman in 1999 

and Chairman of the Communications Committee in 1996. Mr. McCain holds a bachelor’s degree in journalism from 

Ohio University. 

Treasurer and Risk Director of FMPA: RICHARD POPP, CTP 

Richard Popp is Treasurer and Risk Director for FMPA. He previously served as Contract Compliance Audit and Risk 

Manager. Mr. Popp has 25 years of experience in municipal utility accounting. He began his career with FMPA in 

1994 as an accountant, until 1996. After his departure from the Agency, he was employed by Kissimmee Utility 

Authority for nearly six years as Senior Financial Analyst. Mr. Popp returned to FMPA in April 2002 as Accounting 

Supervisor. Mr. Popp holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the University of Central Florida and a master’s 

degree in accounting from Nova Southeastern University. 

Financial Planning, Rates & Budget Director of FMPA: JASON WOLFE 

Jason Wolfe is Financial Planning, Rates and Budget Director of FMPA. Mr. Wolfe joined FMPA in 2011 and has 

held several positions during his tenure, including roles in FMPA’s System Planning Department and Financial 

Planning and Analysis Department. Mr. Wolfe has 19 years of experience in the utility industry, including experience 

working with or for municipal, cooperative and investor-owned utilities. Prior to joining FMPA, he worked 11 years 

in various roles with R.W. Beck, Inc. (acquired by SAIC in 2009), including as an analyst and as a consultant. He 

holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration, with a concentration in finance, from the University of Central 

Florida. 

Controller of FMPA:  DANYEL SULLIVAN-MARRERO, CPA 

Danyel Sullivan-Marrero is the Controller at FMPA. She joined FMPA in 2018 and has 25 years of experience in 

accounting and finance. Prior to joining FMPA, Ms. Sullivan-Marrero worked four years as chief financial officer 

(CFO) for KENPAT and 11 years as controller/CFO for Hartford South. She holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting 

and a bachelor’s degree in marketing, both from Florida Southern University. Ms. Sullivan-Marrero is a Certified 

Public Accountant in Florida. 

THE PROJECT 

Introduction 

The Participants in the Project are the following 14 Members: Bushnell, Clewiston, Fort Meade, Fort Pierce, 

Green Cove Springs, Havana, Jacksonville Beach, Key West, Kissimmee, Lake Worth, Leesburg, Newberry, Ocala 

and Starke.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants” and “– Status of Certain 

Generation Units Owned by Participants” herein.  Vero Beach withdrew as a Member of FMPA and as a Participant 

in the Project in December 2018.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” herein. 

FMPA has the responsibility to plan for the Participant’s future power supply needs (taking into account 

circumstances such as elections of Participants to implement a CROD, as described under “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants” herein).  FMPA is continually evaluating its power supply resource 

mix, projecting the Project’s future power needs, and seeking cost-effective generation additions.  [Inclusive of Project 

generating facilities owned by FMPA as part of the Project as summarized in the table below under “Project 

Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project” and additional Member contributed resources as 

described below under “Member Contributed Resources,” the Project’s aggregate generating capacity share on a net 

summer basis is approximately 1,392 MW, which represents approximately 113% of the Project’s delivered summer 

Page 317 of 473



 

 - 19 - 

coincident peak demand in 2017. In addition, load from the Project is served via an excluded resource and two long-

term contracts with respect to the Project to purchase power and energy from subsidiaries of NextEra Energy, Inc.  

While the ownership percentages set forth in the table below did not change as a result of the transfer and assignment 

of the power entitlement shares of Vero Beach in the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project to the 

Project, the amount of capacity and energy included in the System from certain of these facilities increased in 

connection with such withdrawal.  See “Purchased Power and Other Contracts” below and “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach.”] 

Project Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project 

Name of Unit In-Service Date 

Primary 

Fuel Source 

Net Summer 

Capability Rating 

(MWs) 

Percentage of 

Ownership 

Stanton Unit No. 1  July 1, 1987 Coal 441  6.51% 

Stanton Unit No. 2  June 1, 1996 Coal 450  5.17 

Stanton Unit A  October 1, 2003 Natural Gas 639  3.50 

Cane Island Unit 1  January 1, 1995 Natural Gas 35  50.00 

Cane Island Unit 2  June 1, 1995 Natural Gas 109  50.00 

Cane Island Unit 3  January 25, 2001 Natural Gas 240 50.00 

Cane Island Unit 4  July 12, 2011 Natural Gas 300 100.00 

Indian River Unit A  July 1, 1989 Natural Gas 32 39.00 

Indian River Unit B  July 1, 1989 Natural Gas 32 39.00 

Indian River Unit C  October 1, 1992 Natural Gas 105 21.00 

Indian River Unit D  October 1, 1992 Natural Gas 105 21.00 

Stock Island Unit 2 June 21, 1998 Fuel Oil 16 100.00 

Stock Island Unit 3 August 1, 1998 Fuel Oil 14 100.00 

Stock Island Unit 4  July 1, 2006 Fuel Oil 46 100.00 

Treasure Coast Energy 

 Center Unit 1  

May 31, 2008 Natural Gas 300 100.00 

Stanton Units. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 6.5060% undivided ownership in Stanton Unit No. 1, a 

coal-fired electric generating unit with a net summer capability rating of 441 MW (“Stanton Unit No. 1”), and a 

5.1724% undivided ownership interest in Stanton Unit No. 2, a coal-fired electric generating unit with a net summer 

capability rating of 450 MW (“Stanton Unit No. 2” and, together with Stanton Unit No. 1, the “Stanton Units”) at the 

Stanton Energy Center of the Orlando Utilities Commission located in Orange County, Florida. The Stanton Units 

were constructed and are operated by OUC. 

Additional ownership interest by FMPA and other entities in the Stanton Units is described below under 

“OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.”  Pursuant to the 2018 transfer and assignment of the Vero Beach power supply and 

project support contracts, as amended, to the Project, the Project’s portfolio of power supply now includes a 32.521% 

Power Entitlement Share (21.3 MW) from the Stanton Project (see “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – Stanton Project”), 

a 16.4887% Power Entitlement Share (17.2 MW) from the Stanton II Project (see “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – 

Stanton II Project”), and a 15.202% Power Entitlement Share (13.2 MW) in the St. Lucie Project (see “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – St. Lucie Project”). 

Stanton Unit No. 1 began commercial operation on July 1, 1987. The availability factor has averaged 87.4% 

since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 61.8% in 2016 to a high 

of 90.5% in 2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 90.4%. 

Stanton Unit No. 2 began commercial operation on June 1, 1996. The availability factor has averaged 87.9% 

since that time. For the past five fiscal years, the availability factor ranged from a low of 84.8% in 2017 to a high of 

89.9% in 2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 84.8%. 

Cooling water for the Stanton Units is provided by the Orange County, Florida Eastern Sub-Regional 

Wastewater Treatment Plant under an agreement between OUC and Orange County. 

During calendar years 2014 through 2018, the Stanton Units combined to burn an average of approximately 

1.8 million tons of coal per year. Coal is supplied to the Stanton Units under contracts between OUC and Crimson 

Coal Corporation (“Crimson”) and Foresight Coal Sales, LLC (“Foresight”). The contract with Crimson will supply 

Page 318 of 473



 

 - 20 - 

200,000 tons for 2019 with no options. The contract with Foresight will supply 400,000 tons with two options of 

225,000 tons for 2019. FMPA believes that OUC will be able to make up any deficiencies in supply for the Stanton 

Units through short-term purchases at spot market prices. 

OUC continues to monitor environmental requirements that will be applicable to the Stanton Units in the 

future and has stated that it currently believes it can meet known environmental laws and regulations regarding NOx 

emissions through, among other means, implementation of capital projects with a significantly lower total cost than 

the SCR project. See “LITIGATION.” 

Stanton Unit A. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 3.5% undivided ownership interest in a 639 MW 

(summer rating), gas-fired combined cycle unit located at OUC’s Stanton Energy Center site (“Stanton Unit A”). The 

remaining ownership interests in Stanton Unit A are held by KUA (3.5%), OUC (28%) and Stanton Clean Energy 

LLC, a NextEra Energy, Inc. subsidiary (“SCE”) (65%). FMPA is purchasing 20% of SCE’s ownership share in 

Stanton Unit A until 2023 and OUC is purchasing the remaining 80% under a separate agreement. See “Purchased 

Power and Other Contracts” below. Gas transportation is supplied via the Florida Gas Transmission (“FGT”) interstate 

gas line. Stanton Unit A also has fuel oil as a back-up capability. See “Member Contributed Resources” below. 

Stanton Unit A began commercial operation on October 1, 2003. The availability factor has averaged 89.7% 

since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 83.4% in 2018 to a high 

of 94.3% in 2014. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 83.4%. 

Cane Island Units. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 50% undivided ownership interest in each of Cane 

Island Unit No. 1 (“Cane Island Unit 1”), Cane Island Unit No. 2 (“Cane Island Unit 2”) and Cane Island Unit No. 3 

(“Cane Island Unit 3” and, together with Cane Island Unit 1 and Cane Island Unit 2, “Cane Island Units 1-3”) and 

owns a 100% undivided ownership interest in Cane Island Unit No. 4 (“Cane Island Unit 4” and together with Cane 

Island Units 1-3, the “Cane Island Units”).  The Cane Island Units are located at KUA’s Cane Island Power Park site 

in Osceola County, Florida. The Cane Island Units are natural gas-fired electric generating units with No. 2 oil as a 

backup capability for Cane Island Unit 1 and Cane Island Unit 2. Cane Island Unit 1 is a combustion turbine, and 

Cane Island Unit 2, Cane Island Unit 3, and Cane Island Unit 4 are combined cycle units. Cane Island Units 1-3 were 

constructed, and are operated, by KUA. Cane Island Unit 4 was constructed by FMPA and is operated by KUA.  KUA 

owns the remaining 50% of Cane Island Units 1-3.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain 

Participants” and “– Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by Participants.” 

Cane Island Unit 1 has a summer rating of 35 MW and was placed in service in January 1995. Cane Island 

Unit 1’s availability factor has averaged 97.2% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has 

ranged from a low of 91.9% in 2016 to a high of 98.5% in 2017. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 97.94%. 

Cane Island Unit 2 has a summer rating of 109 MW and was placed in service in June 1995. Cane Island Unit 

2’s availability factor has averaged 86.6% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has 

ranged from a low of 50.3% in 2016 to a high of 92.1% in 2015. The lower availability factor in fiscal year 2016 was 

due to a catastrophic equipment failure in 2016. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 90.3%. 

Cane Island Unit 3 has a summer rating of 240 MW and was placed in service in June 2002. Cane Island Unit 

3’s availability factor has averaged 89.5% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has 

ranged from a low of 73.6% in 2017 to a high of 95.6% in 2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 88.8%. 

Cane Island Unit 4 has a summer rating of 300 MW and was placed in service in July 2011.  Cane Island 

Unit 4’s availability factor has averaged 90.6% since it was placed in service. For the last five fiscal years, the 

availability factor has ranged from a low of 84.5% in 2018 to a high of 94.3% in 2016. The availability factor in fiscal 

year 2018 was 84.5%. 

Indian River Units. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 39% undivided ownership interest in each of the 

Indian River Combustion Turbine Units A & B (“Indian River Units A & B”) and a 21% undivided ownership interest 

in each of the Indian River Combustion Turbine Units C & D (“Indian River Units C & D” and, together with Indian 

River Units A & B, the “Indian River Units”) located in Brevard County, Florida. The remaining ownership interests 

in Indian River Units A & B are held by (i) OUC (48.8%) and (ii) KUA (12.2%), and the remaining ownership interests 

in Indian River Units C & D are held by OUC (79%). The Indian River Units were constructed and are operated by 

OUC on behalf of the co-owners. 

Page 319 of 473



 

 - 21 - 

All four Indian River Units are used as peaking units. The Indian River Units burn either natural gas or No. 2 

fuel oil, with gas transportation supplied via FGT. 

Indian River Units A & B each have a summer rating of 32 MW and were placed in service on July 1, 1989. 

For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor of Indian River Unit A has ranged from a low of 91.4% in 2018 to 

a high of 98.5% in 2017. Indian River Unit B’s availability factor has averaged 95.2% since it was placed in service. 

For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor of Indian River Unit B has ranged from a low of 92.7% in 2018 to 

a high of 97.91% in 2017. 

Indian River Units C & D each have a summer rating of 105 MW and were placed in service on October 1, 

1992. Indian River Unit C’s availability factor has averaged 89.9% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the 

availability factor of Indian River Unit C has ranged from a low of 85.6% in 2014 to a high of 96.5% in 2017. Indian 

River Unit D’s availability factor has averaged 92.9% since it was placed in service. For the last five fiscal years, the 

availability factor of Indian River Unit D has ranged from a low of 91.5% in 2015 to a high of 97.31% in 2018. 

Stock Island Units 2 and 3. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 100% undivided ownership interest in each 

of two combustion turbines at the Stock Island Generating Facility near Key West.  Stock Island Units 2 & 3 are 

refurbished GE Frame 5 units that burn No. 2 oil.  FMPA constructed Stock Island Units 2 & 3 to provide peaking 

supply and on-island reliability for the Key West System.   

Stock Island Unit 2 has a summer rating of 16 MW and was placed in service in June 1998. For the last five 

fiscal years, the availability factor of Stock Island Unit 2 has ranged from a low of 93.2% in 2017 to a high of 100% 

in 2014. 

Stock Island Unit 3 has a summer rating of 14 MW and was placed in service in August 1998. For the last 

five fiscal years, the availability factor of Stock Island Unit 3 has ranged from a low of 86.2% in 2014 to a high of 

98.9% in 2018. 

FMPA is contractually obligated to meet approximately 60% (or lower, as mutually agreed to by FMPA and 

Key West) of Key West’s weather normalized firm load with on-island generation over the term of the Key West 

Power Supply Contract, so long as Key West is purchasing its full-requirements from the Project (the “60% On-Island 

Requirement”). During fiscal year 2013, FMPA commissioned a study of the 60% On-Island Requirement that was 

designed to set forth the steps and processes to be taken by FMPA and other related parties, including Key West, to 

(1) initially develop a long-term generation plan for meeting the 60% On-Island Requirement, and (2) monitor and 

update the long-term generation plan over time to address changing circumstances. Based on the information available 

at the time of the study, which was completed in 2014, (i) FMPA found no evidence to refute that the life of the units 

at the Stock Island Plant could be extended through at least 2033 (based on a 20-year study period) at reasonable cost 

using a condition based and preventive maintenance strategy and (ii) there were no known operational limitations of 

maintaining the current capacity ratings over the 20-year study period. FMPA updated its analysis in early 2017 and 

found no change in circumstances that would change FMPA’s conclusion from the prior study. 

Stock Island Unit 4. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 100% undivided ownership interest in a 45 MW 

combustion turbine unit located at the Stock Island Generating Facility near Key West (“Stock Island Unit 4”). Stock 

Island Unit 4 is a GE LM6000 PC-Sprint aeroderivative unit that burns No. 2 oil. Stock Island Unit 4 is operated by 

Key West and provides peaking supply and on island reliability for Key West. See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 

Stock Island Unit 4 was placed in service in July 2006. Stock Island Unit 4’s availability factor has averaged 

96.4% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor of Stock Island Unit 4 has ranged from a 

low of 93.3% in 2017 to a high of 98.6% in 2018. 

Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1. As part of the Project, FMPA owns a 100% undivided ownership 

interest in a 300 MW natural gas-fired combined cycle unit located in Fort Pierce (the “Treasure Coast Energy Center 

Unit 1”). The unit is operated under contract by Fort Pierce Utilities Authority (“FPUA”), with gas transportation 

supplied by FGT. 

The Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1 was placed in service in May 2008. The Treasure Coast Energy 

Center Unit 1’s availability factor has averaged 92.6% since that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability 

Page 320 of 473



 

 - 22 - 

factor of Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1 has ranged from a low of 83.5% in 2015 to a high of 96.0% in 2018. 

The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 96.0%. 

Environmental and Operational Compliance 

FMPA believes that each of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project power generating resources is well 

maintained and is in substantive compliance with all current environmental laws and operating permits. FMPA has 

budgeted capital and operating costs, based on current legal requirements and future requirements that are known and 

understood. Additional costs may arise from new statutes or changing regulations that cannot currently be predicted 

and could range from minimal to significant. See “ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION.” 

Purchased Power and Other Contracts  

FMPA has two long-term contracts with respect to the Project to purchase power and energy from 

subsidiaries of NextEra Energy, Inc., the parent company of FPL (“NextEra”), from assets previously owned and 

operated by Southern Power Company or its subsidiaries. FMPA and Oleander Power Project, L.P. (a NextEra 

subsidiary) have an agreement pursuant to which FMPA purchases the entire output (approximately 160 MW) from 

Oleander Unit No. 5, a natural gas-fired simple cycle generating unit at the Oleander natural gas peaking plant. 

Generation from the unit is dedicated to FMPA. The term of the agreement runs through December 15, 2027. As 

discussed above, FMPA also has a contract for approximately 81 MW summer/87 MW winter of purchased power 

from SCE’s ownership interest in Stanton Unit A. The initial term of the agreement runs through September 30, 2023. 

FMPA has extension options that could extend this agreement to 2033. FMPA believes it will be able to replace these 

resources as the contracts expire, and as capacity needs dictate, with either new resources under contracts at market-

based rates or with jointly-owned or self-built generation.  

FMPA also has entered into solar Power Purchase Agreements (“PPA”) with subsidiaries of Florida 

Renewables Partners, LLC (“FRP”), a subsidiary of NextEra Florida Renewables Holdings, LLC, to purchase a total 

of 58 MW-ac of solar energy on behalf of five Participants in the Project, Jacksonville Beach, FPUA, Key West, KUA 

and Ocala (the “ARP Solar Participants”). FMPA and OUC have entered into purchase agreements with FRP for a 

total of 223.5 MW-AC from three 74.5 MW-ac solar sites in Florida. The solar facilities are planned for commercial 

operation in 2020. The ARP Solar Participants will take power from two of those sites and will have the first obligation 

in the Project, subject to step-up obligations among the ARP Solar Participants, to pay all purchased power costs for 

solar energy. The solar purchase power agreement has a 20-year term and two 5-year options to extend the agreement. 

Member Contributed Resources  

Pursuant to their joining the Project, KUA, Lake Worth, Fort Pierce and Key West entered into a Capacity 

and Energy Sales Contract whereby these Participants sell the capacity and energy from their generating units to the 

Project. These Participants also agreed to sell to the Project any capacity and energy from any Power Entitlement 

Shares they have in the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project or Tri-City Project. In addition, Starke assigned to the 

Project its capacity and energy in the Stanton Project and Stanton II Project. The price paid by the Project to these 

Participants is equal to each month’s billing from FMPA to each of these Participants for their Power Entitlement 

Shares in the Project. The Capacity and Energy Sales Contract with Lake Worth has been terminated. Additionally, 

effective October 1, 2008 and January 1, 2011, respectively, KUA and Key West entered into Revised, Amended and 

Restated Capacity and Energy Sales Contracts.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain 

Participants.” 

FMPA, as a cost of the Project, pays the monthly costs for these Participants under their Power Sales 

Contracts and, under certain circumstances under the Project Support Contracts, with respect to their Power 

Entitlement Shares, and collects these costs through the billings to the Participants in the Project. 

Generating units owned by Participants may be retired in the future, subject to the availability of suitable 

replacement capacity and energy. 

Net Metering 

In order to promote the development of customer-owned renewable generation and comply with statutory 

requirements of Section 366.91, Florida Statutes, and other requirements, FMPA has developed a net metering policy, 

pursuant to which Participants may offer their customers net metering service whereby a customer may install and 

Page 321 of 473



 

 - 23 - 

operate in parallel customer-owned renewable generation in order to offset all or part of the customer’s electricity 

needs with renewable energy. Pursuant to the FMPA policy, the Project will purchase excess customer-owned 

renewable generation from its Participants’ customers that have chosen to take part in the net metering program and 

are interconnected to a Participant’s electric system. Customer-owned renewable generation is first used to offset the 

demand for electricity at a particular premises from a Participant and any excess customer-owned renewable 

generation that is not used to offset the demand for electricity is simultaneously sold to the Project and delivered to 

the Participants through the Participant’s electric distribution system.   

As of December 2018, more than 881 solar power installations in 13 Florida cities are part of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project’s net metering program. These customer-owned installations can produce 

approximately 6,324 MW-AC of energy. 

Fuel Supply 

Coal Supply. For a description of the coal supply to Project generating facilities, see “Project Generating 

Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project” above. 

Gas Supply. Natural gas for Stanton Unit A is obtained by OUC for itself, KUA and FMPA. All physical 

supplies of natural gas used at FMPA-owned or Participant-owned Project generating facilities are purchased by 

Florida Gas Utilities (“FGU”) for FMPA under a service agreement between FMPA and FGU. Typically, these 

supplies are purchased on a month-to-month basis; priced at a NYMEX less basis, a “first-of-the-month” index, or a 

daily index. Adjustments are made by FGU on a daily basis to balance supply with forecasted load by either purchasing 

incremental volumes or selling surplus volumes. FGU also handles all natural gas transportation scheduling and 

settlement functions for FMPA and ensuring reliable fuel deliveries for the Project. In 2019, FGU entered into thirty-

year natural gas supply agreements with The Black Belt Energy Gas District (“Black Belt Energy”) and the Municipal 

Gas Authority of Georgia (“MGAG”) (the “2019 Pre-Pay Contracts”) for the purchase of specified amounts of natural 

gas at discounted prices that FGU expects to supply to FMPA. FMPA’s weighted average discount from the 

transactions involving MGAG is $0.32 per MMBtu on 13,250 MMBtu per day. FMPA’s weighted average discount 

from the transactions involving Black Belt Energy is $0.32 per MMBtu on 10,000 MMBtu per day. 

Florida Gas Transmission Transportation Contracts. Natural gas for the Cane Island Units, the Treasure 

Coast Energy Center Unit 1, the Indian River Units and the Oleander PPA (a tolling structured power purchase deal 

where FMPA delivers natural gas) is transported under long-term firm transportation contracts with FGT. The average 

annual daily capacity is 94,014 MMBtu/d. FMPA also has firm call rights for an additional annual average of 42,000 

MMBtu/d of firm transportation capacity through a long term capacity release arrangement. Firm capacity demand 

charges are only incurred when this capacity is called. FMPA has also contracted for 50,000 MMBtu/d of firm capacity 

on Transco Gas Pipeline from their Station 85 to FGT to achieve a percentage of supply source diversity; taking 

advantage of the development of production from shale sourced gas supplies available at Station 85. FMPA has also 

contracted with the Southern Pines Storage facility currently for 500,000 MMBtu of firm gas storage capacity as a 

reliability measure to ensure natural gas supply availability during times of weather related interruptions. FGU acts as 

FMPA’s agent in the daily management of these natural gas capacity commitments. 

Oil Supply. All physical fuel oil purchases are centrally administered by FMPA. Purchases of fuel oil are 

typically only made to maintain back-up inventories at a level consistent with FMPA’s fuel management policies. 

These inventories provide an alternate fuel source to enhance generator reliability in the event of a natural gas fuel 

interruption. The purchases are made on a spot basis and at the then effective market price. 

Public Gas Partners, Inc. In November 2004, FMPA signed an agreement for the benefit of the Project with 

the other current contract parties consisting of six public gas utilities in five different states to form a gas supply 

agency called Public Gas Partners, Inc. (“PGP”). PGP is formed under Georgia law as a not-for-profit corporation and 

is tax-exempt for federal tax purposes. PGP was created to secure economical, long-term wholesale natural gas 

supplies for its seven members in order to stabilize and reduce the cost of natural gas. Current members of PGP, along 

with FMPA, include Municipal Gas Authority of Georgia, National Public Gas Agency, Patriots Energy Group, 

Southeast Alabama Gas District and Tennessee Energy Acquisition Corporation. PGP currently produces for FMPA 

approximately 3.5% of the Project’s gas requirements which are financially settled with FMPA.  

FMPA does not presently intend to participate in any further acquisition activities through PGP.  

Page 322 of 473



 

 - 24 - 

FMPA entered into a Production Sharing Agreement (“PSA”) as a participant in PGP Gas Supply Pool No. 

1 (“Pool 1”) in November 2004 and entered into a PSA as a participant in PGP Gas Supply Pool No. 2 (“Pool 2”) in 

October 2005. PGP is presently engaged in marketing the sale of both Pool 1 and Pool 2. PGP has received bids for a 

portion of its Pool 1 reserves in the Permian area of West Texas. Negotiations are ongoing to complete a sales 

agreement with closing expected in the latter part of 2019. It is anticipated that the liquidation of other all other reserve 

assets will be completed over time, focusing upon the most valuable first and then followed with lessor valued assets 

with FMPA receiving its proportional share of net proceeds. 

Transmission and Dispatch Agreements 

Transmission. OUC provides transmission service for delivery of power and energy from FMPA’s ownership 

in Stanton Unit No. 1, Stanton Unit No. 2, Stanton Unit A and the Indian River Units for the Project to the FPL and 

Duke Energy of Florida (“DEF”) interconnections with OUC for subsequent delivery to the Participants over the life 

of the Units. Rates for such transmission wheeling service are based upon OUC’s costs of providing such transmission 

wheeling service and under terms and conditions of the OUC-FMPA firm transmission service contracts for the 

Project. 

FMPA has contracts with DEF, FPL and OUC to transmit the various Project resources over the transmission 

systems of each of these three utilities. The Network Service Agreement with FPL was executed in March 1996 and 

was subsequently amended to both conform to the FERC Pro forma Tariff and to add additional members to the 

Project. The FPL agreement provides for network transmission service for the Participants interconnected to FPL’s 

transmission system. The FPL agreement terminates March 31, 2026, although FMPA has rollover rights to continue 

service beyond the termination date pursuant to the FPL Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Network Service 

Agreement with DEF became effective January 1, 2011 and conforms to FERC’s Pro forma Tariff. The DEF 

agreement provides for network transmission service for the Participants interconnected with DEF’s transmission 

system. The DEF agreement terminates December 31, 2035, subject to successive automatic five-year extensions 

thereafter, unless at least one year notice of termination is provided prior to the end of each term. FMPA also has 

several transmission wheeling agreements with OUC which are associated with each FMPA generation resource 

located on OUC’s system and which also provide for network type transmission service over OUC’s system. FMPA 

is a 68% owner of the transmission lines that connect the Cane Island site to the transmission grid with control rights 

to utilize the full capacity of those transmission lines to serve the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Florida Municipal Power Pool 

The Project is a member of the Florida Municipal Power Pool (“FMPP”). The other members of FMPP are 

Lakeland and OUC. The FMPP is an operating power pool in which the generating resources of members are centrally 

dispatched to meet their combined load requirements. The FMPP began operations in 1988. FMPP resources include 

the members’ coal fired generation, gas/oil fired units, ownership interest in nuclear capacity and various firm capacity 

and partial requirements arrangements with other utilities. Each FMPP member is responsible for maintaining 

sufficient capacity to serve its own load including an adequate amount of reserves. All FMPP transactions are settled 

using the “clearing house price” methodology. The resources of FMPP are essentially committed and dispatched by 

OUC, which handles the day-to-day operations of the FMPP.  

The FMPP operates under a three-year agreement that automatically renews until such time as all of the 

FMPP members elect to terminate the agreement. If a member of FMPP were to withdraw early, the pool continues 

with the remaining members.  

The FMPP Agreement was amended in 2011 to incorporate the dispatch services that were previously 

supplied to FMPA under contract by OUC. Under the revised agreement, FMPA contracts with FMPP for the dispatch 

of FMPA’s generation resources to serve the loads of the Participants on a continuous real-time basis. The Participant 

delivery points were removed from the control areas of DEF and FPL, effectively placing the Participants into the 

FMPP Balancing Authority area, although scheduled power deliveries to the Participants are transmitted to the 

delivery points over the DEF or FPL systems. In order to integrate the Participants into the FMPP Balancing Authority 

area, each delivery point is equipped by FMPA with a Remote Terminal Unit to collect and transmit necessary real-

time load data to the OUC automatic generation control system.  

The 2011 amended agreement provides for (i) FMPP to dispatch FMPA’s resources to serve the combined 

loads of the Participants located in DEF’s service territory and the Participants located in FPL’s service territory; (ii) 

Page 323 of 473



 

 - 25 - 

FMPA installing and maintaining the necessary equipment on the Participants’ systems; (iii) OUC installing and 

maintaining the necessary equipment on its system; and (iv) pricing and payments for services provided.  

The Project’s membership in the FMPP provides several benefits for the Project. By participating in the 

FMPP, the Project is able to realize significant savings due to the fact that FMPA is able to utilize more efficient, less 

costly generation than FMPA could have utilized if the Project were not a member of the pool. A pool marketing 

group that buys or sells capacity and energy on a daily basis provide some non-Participant revenue for the Project 

through the successful sale or purchase of excess capacity and energy outside of the Project. 

Conservation and Demand-Side Management Activities 

As a wholesale supplier of electric energy to the Project, FMPA is not directly responsible for conservation 

and demand-side management (“DSM”) programs. However, the Participants offer a variety of conservation and DSM 

programs to their consumers. 

In July 2008, the Executive Committee established the Conservation and Renewable Energy Advisory 

Committee to evaluate and make recommendations on conservation and renewable energy programs for the Project 

(the “ARP Conservation Program”). Since 2008, the Executive Committee annually has funded the ARP Conservation 

Program. In fiscal year 2019, the Executive Committee budgeted $750,000 for Participants’ conservation and 

renewable energy efforts. 

Future Power Supply 

General. In April 2019, FMPA filed its most recent Ten-Year Site Plan for the Project (“2019 TYSP”) with 

the PSC. The 2019 TYSP provides, among other things, a description of existing electric generation resources, a 10-

year forecast of electric power generating needs and an identification of the general location and type of any proposed 

generation capacity and transmission additions for the next 10-year period. As reported in the 2019 TYSP, the Project 

anticipates additional seasonal (summer) peaking purchases to meet its Participants’ annual load and maintain 15% 

generation reserves for the summer season through 2028. 

FMPA’s 2018 Load Forecast provides a current estimate of its baseline load forecast for the next 20 years as 

well as alternative high and low forecasts reflecting the uncertainty in the primary driving variables (i.e., trends of 

Florida economic activity and weather). The baseline forecast indicates a 1.2% compound annual growth rate in net 

energy for load of the current Project Participants during the period 2018 – 2027, and a 0.9% compound annual growth 

rate in net energy for load for the period 2028 through 2037. Taking into account existing Project resources and 

scheduled power purchase contract expirations, and assuming maintenance of a 15% reserve margin for the summer 

season, the forecast projects additional seasonal (summer) peaking purchases will be necessary over the 10-year TYSP 

study horizon. FMPA staff continuously studies a variety of alternatives to meet future needs for additional resources.  

FMPA’s goal is to have minimum long-term power costs with maximum reliability while maintaining flexibility to 

respond to a changing marketplace and regulatory environment and addressing possible State initiatives relating to 

greenhouse gas emission reductions. FMPA cannot predict what resources will ultimately be required or acquired or 

developed by the Project or the operating and capital costs associated therewith, although any such costs of additional 

generation resources would likely be significant.  

Since 2006, the Project has met increases in demand, in part, with the construction of power generation 

resources, including (i) Cane Island Unit No. 4, an approximately 300 MW combined cycle unit located near 

Kissimmee, which was placed in service in 2011, (ii) the Treasure Coast Energy Center Unit 1, an approximately 300 

MW combined cycle unit located in Fort Pierce, which was placed in service in 2008 and (iii) Stock Island Unit 4, an 

approximately 46 MW combustion turbine unit located at the Stock Island Plant near Key West, which was placed in 

service in 2006. 

Solar Energy. FMPA has entered into solar power purchase agreements with subsidiaries of FRP to purchase 

a total of 58 MW-ac of solar energy on behalf of five Participants in the Project.  The solar facilities are planned for 

commercial operation in 2020.  See “THE PROJECT – Purchased Power and Other Contracts.”  For additional 

information about the solar energy facilities, see “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – Solar Project.”  FMPA issued a 

Request for Proposals (“RFP”) in March 2019 seeking cost-competitive bids for additional solar power purchase 

agreements. FMPA short-listed and interviewed three solar developers and is currently in the process of negotiating 

PPA terms with the top bidder. Once finalized, it is anticipated that the developer will construct, own, and operate 

solar facilities from which FMPA will purchase a to-be-determined amount of solar energy on behalf of certain 

Page 324 of 473



 

 - 26 - 

Participants in the Project and other FMPA members that will participate in a to-be-established FMPA power supply 

project. It is expected these solar facilities will begin commercial operation in fiscal year 2023. 

Future Natural Gas Combined Cycle Resources. FMPA continues to evaluate the potential to participate in 

future, large-scale combined cycle power plants that may be constructed in Florida. However, FMPA is not currently 

negotiating to participate in such a project.  Such participation would provide FMPA with a highly efficient and 

relatively low-installed cost generation resource. 

Demand-Side Management. The Project does not currently sponsor any demand-side management programs, 

essentially because the Project has excess installed capacity.  See “THE PROJECT – Sales to Non-Participants.”  

FMPA is continuing to evaluate potential DSM programs that the Project could sponsor in the future and that would 

enable the Project to postpone, or mitigate, the need for future supply-side generation resources.  Programs currently 

under consideration include distributed resources, energy storage, direct control load management and back-up 

generator programs. 

Peaking Resources. Peaking resources have a short construction lead time, which will allow FMPA to quickly 

respond to a change in need should load be more than expected, other supply-side or demand-side alternatives do not 

become available, or the regulatory environment or market conditions change. FMPA has identified several sites well-

suited for expansion, with peaking resources including the Stock Island Site, the Cane Island Power Park and the 

Treasure Coast Energy Center. 

Expenditures related to the development, acquisition or construction of future power resources may be 

financed with Additional Bonds or other parity indebtedness. 

Project Operations 

For the fiscal year that ended on September 30, 2018, the coincident peak demand of the Project was 1,239 

MW. This peak demand was a 0.1% increase compared to the 2017 fiscal year.  

For the 2018 fiscal year, the Project produced 5.7 million MWh of billable energy, a 2.0% increase from the 

2017 fiscal year.  

Sales to the Participants in fiscal year 2018 totaled $406 million, a 5.1% decrease compared to the 2017 fiscal 

year which was due primarily to lower natural gas costs.  

For the 2018 fiscal year, Project power costs billed to Participants were 7.2 cents per kWh, a 7% decrease 

compared to the 2017 fiscal year.  

For additional information, see the table titled “HISTORICAL OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE 

PROJECT” below. 

Sales to Non-Participants 

To increase revenue and, thus, reduce Project costs to Participants, FMPA has a strategic goal of selling 

excess capacity to non-Participants when it is economically feasible, does not jeopardize reliability and there is an 

opportunity to do so. From 2011 to 2015, the Project was the full-requirements supplier to the City of Quincy, having 

an approximately 25 MW peak demand.  

In 2017, FMPA won a bid to supply wholesale power to the City of Bartow, having an approximately 62 

MW peak demand. FMPA began supplying the City of Bartow wholesale power on January 1, 2018. For the first three 

years of the agreement, OUC will supply the first 40 MW of Bartow’s power supply needs, and FMPA will supply 

peaking power to Bartow for its needs above 40 MW. In 2021, 2022 and 2023, FMPA will supply Bartow’s full-

requirements power supply needs. The City of Bartow will not, as such, be a Participant.  

Effective January 1, 2019, under a PPA that will run for nine years, the Project began supplying the City of 

Winter Park wholesale capacity and energy. For 2019, the Project will provide 10 MW of capacity and energy to 

Winter Park around the clock. For 2020-2027, the Project will serve Winter Park on a partial basis, net of other existing 

Winter Park wholesale power agreements. The City of Winter Park will not be a Participant.  

Page 325 of 473



 

 - 27 - 

Effective March 27, 2019, pursuant to a tolling agreement and associated transaction schedule that will run 

from July 1, 2019 through and until June 30, 2021, the Project will supply 53 MW of firm energy to Reedy Creek 

Improvement District every hour of the term. Reedy Creek Improvement District will provide the gas quantity 

necessary to supply the firm energy to FMPA for use in the Project natural gas fleet. This exchange avoids running 

more costly Reedy Creek Improvement District generation while rendering a financial benefit to the Project via 

utilization of the Project’s excess generation to provide economy energy.  

Through a letter of commitment for Negotiated Interchange Service executed on February 22, 2019, the terms 

of which are pursuant to the Agreement for Interchange Service between Florida Municipal Power Agency and Tampa 

Electric Company dated April 1, 1986, FMPA is selling Tampa Electric Company 120 MW of energy, 8 hours per 

day from May 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019. The sale of interchange energy is secondary to FMPA native load 

and other firm obligations, subject to recall for emergency or reliability purposes. 

Historical and Projected Future Capacity Requirements and Resources 

The historical and projected future Project capacity requirements and resources for the years ending 

September 30, 2016 through September 30, 2024 are summarized in the following table. 

 

Page 326 of 473



 

 - 28 - 

THE PROJECT 

HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED FUTURE CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS AND RESOURCES 

 

 

|---------- Actual ----------| |----------------------- Estimated -----------------------| 

Project Requirements (MW) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Coincident Peak Demand(1) 1,268 1,237 1,239 1,272 1,289  1,301 1,316 1,330 1,347 

Project Resources (MW)(2) 
  

 
     

 

St. Lucie Unit No. 2(3)(4) 35 35 35 48  46  46  46 46 46 

Stanton Unit 1 92 92 92 112  120  120  120 120 120 

Stanton Unit 2   85 85 85 102  102  102  102 102 102 

Cane Island Unit 1  17 17 17 17  17  17  17 17 17 

Cane Island Unit 2  54 54 54 54  54  54  54 54 54 

Cane Island Unit 3  120 120 120 120  120  120  120 120 240 

Cane Island Unit 4  300 300 300 300  300  300  300 300 300 

Indian River Units A & B  25 25 25 25  25  25  25 25 25 

Indian River Units C & D  44 44 44 44  44  44  44 44 44 

Stock Island Unit 2 & 3  30 30 30 30  30  30  30 30 30 

Stock Island Unit 4 46 46 46 46  46  46  46 46 46 

Treasure Coast Energy Center 

Unit 1 300 300 300 300  300  300  315 315 315 

Key West Native Generation(5) 37 37 38 37  37  37  37 37 37 

Kissimmee Native Generation(5) 200 200 200 200  200  200  200 200 200 

Stanton A(6) 122 122 122 125  125  125  125 125 44 

Oleander(6) 162 162 162 162  162  162 162 162 162 

Short-term Purchases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Resources (MW)  1,667 1,667 1,667 1,721  1,727  1,727 1,742 1,742 1,676 

Total Project Reserve 

Percentage(7) 31% 35% 35% 35% 34% 33% 32% 31% 24% 
 

_____________________ 

(Numbers may not add due to rounding.) 

(1) Peak demands are at the delivery point level (summer season) and exclude sales to Non-Participants. 
(2) Unless otherwise noted, projected future capacity amounts shown reflect either actual ratings of owned resources or capacity purchased 

under firm contracts. Capacity in the projected period is consistent with the 2019 TYSP, which assumed the Project would acquire Vero 

Beach’s entitlements in the Stanton, Stanton 2, and St. Lucie Projects for the 2019 planning year. 
(3) The capacity for years 2016-2018 represents the aggregate amount of capacity from St. Lucie Unit No. 2 for Participants in the Project 

who are also participants in the St. Lucie Project which capacity is an excluded resource under the Power Supply Contracts. 

(4) The decrease in capacity beginning in 2020 reflects the reduction for St. Lucie Unit No. 2 due to the election still in effect at the time of 
the 2019 TYSP by Green Cove Springs to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of the Power Supply Contract, to 

a CROD beginning January 1, 2020. Green Cove Springs has subsequently executed a Supplemental Power Sales Agreement with the 

ARP that will result in adjustments to the 2020 TYSP. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 
(5) Capacity and Energy purchase.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Status of Certain Generation Units Owned by 

Participants.” 

(6) Capacity shown for Stanton A and Oleander includes amounts currently purchased under contracts from NextEra subsidiaries. See “THE 
PROJECT – Purchased Power and Other Contracts.” 

(7) Reserve Margin calculated as ((Total Resources – Partial Requirements Purchases) – (Total Requirements – Partial Requirements 

Purchases)) / (Total Requirements – Partial Requirements Purchases). Volatility in the Project reserve margin is directly related to 
volatility in peak demand. Planning for future capacity requires that resources be added to reflect expected long-term increases in demand. 

This may cause volatility in the reserve margin but is more practical than adding smaller resources more frequently. The Project has the 

added complexity of being divided into different transmission areas; providing adequate resources to meet demand in each of the 
transmission areas can cause some volatility in the reserve margin for the Project as a whole. 

Page 327 of 473



 

 - 29 - 

The following table summarizes the historical operating results for the Project for the Fiscal Years ending 

September 30, 2016 through September 30, 2018 and for the nine-month period ending June 30, 2019.    

HISTORICAL OPERATING RESULTS 

FOR THE PROJECT(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 Fiscal Year Ending 

September 30, 

Nine-Month Period Ending  

June 30, 

REVENUES: 2016 2017 2018 2018 2019 

Participant Billings(2) ...........................  $409,104  $428,034 $406,073 $287,963 $307,772 

Interest Income(3)(16) .............................  855  1,504   2,739 975 4,736 

Vero Beach Exit Payment(15) ...............  – – – – 105,400 

Due from (to) Participants(4) ................  (12,419)  (3,916) 7,288(5) 11,720 2,153 

Sales to Others(6) ..................................      26,146       33,480     29,883     20,378     29,189 

Total Revenues..........................................  $423,686 $459,102 $445,983 $321,036 $449,250 

OPERATING EXPENSES:      

Fixed Payment Obligations .................  19,738  19,738  19,738 14,884 14,876 

Fixed Operating and Maintenance(7)(16)  67,270  65,550  61,398 45,246 61,629 

Fuel Costs(8)(16) .....................................  162,762  197,232 185,900 128,732 143,067 

Purchased Power .................................  25,546  21,814 23,561 16,863 19,379 

General Administrative and Other(9) .......  22,349  21,841 22,029 16,257 16,364 

Transmission(10) ...................................      26,256      28,187     28,661     20,799     21,200 

Total Operating Expenses .........................  $323,921 $354,362 $341,287 $242,781 $276,515 

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, 

DEPRECIATION AND 

REGULATORY ADJUSTMENT $ 99,765 $104,740 $104,696 $  78,255 $172,735 

Debt Service(11)(16) .....................................     92,445   102,401    91,610(12)     78,339   149,911 

Net Available for Other Purposes(13) .........  $   7,320 $    2,339 $  13,086 $       (84) $  22,824 

Net Sales to Participants (GWh) ...............  5,692 5,554 5,664 4,064 3,915 

Net Power Costs to Participants 

(Cost/MWh)(14) ....................................  $69.69   $76.36 $72.97 $70.86 $78.61 

Days Cash on Hand ...................................  225 167 177 190 162 
_______________________________ 

(1) Based on actual cash flows in accordance with the Resolution.  Amounts will differ from FMPA’s audited financial statements as all accruals, 
amortizations, unrealized liabilities and unrealized gains and losses have been excluded from these amounts 

(2) Participant billing in 2017 was higher due primarily to higher natural gas prices. 

(3) Investment earnings on balances of all accounts. Interest accruals were adjusted out and the non-cash mark-to-market adjustments were removed from the 
corresponding amount reflected in FMPA’s audited financial statements to provide a cash-based amount for this presentation. 

(4) Accounts receivable from/(payable to) Participants due to under/(over) recoveries. 

(5) Amounts that will be refunded to or collected from the Participants in fiscal year 2019. 
(6) Sales to Others in 2016 included sales of $22,413,000 to FMPP, in 2017 included sales of $26,623,000 to FMPP and in 2018 included sales of $18,048,000 

to FMPP. 

(7) FMPA’s share of operation and maintenance expenses, excluding fuel, allocated to the Project 
(8) This amount was adjusted from the corresponding amount reflected in FMPA’s audited financial statement by removing a non-cash amortization for an 

investment in Public Gas Partners, Inc. 
(9) Administrative and general expenses for OUC, KUA, FMPA and NextEra allocated to the Project. 

(10) Includes transmission charges over the transmission systems of FPL, DEF and OUC. 

(11) Amounts paid from Revenues with respect to principal of and interest on Bonds and any other indebtedness issued under the Resolution. 

(12) Amounts funded in fiscal year 2018 for interest and principal on the bonds plus swap payments, differs from financial statement as all accruals have been 

removed from this number. 

(13) Net Available for Other Purposes reflects the impact of accrual accounting on a cash-basis rate and budget process. 
(14) Net power costs are driven primarily by changes in fuel costs. 

(15) See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach.” 

(16) Increase from nine-month period ending June 30, 2018 to nine-month period ending June 30, 2019 is primarily due to cash inflows and operational changes 
due to the transfer and assignment to the Project by Vero Beach of its Power Entitlement Shares in the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie 

Project.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach.” 

(Numbers may not add due to rounding) 

Page 328 of 473



 

 - 30 - 

THE PROJECT PARTICIPANTS 

Description of the Participants 

The Project has fourteen Participants, of which thirteen are currently purchasing capacity and energy from the 

Project.  The thirteen active Participants in the Project are ten Florida municipal corporations, a utility board and two utility 

authorities. Among the economic factors important to the Participants are agriculture, tourism, retirement and light 

manufacturing. Each Participant owns and operates its own retail electric distribution system. During the calendar year 

ended December 31, 2018, these systems sold in the aggregate approximately 5,783 GWh of electric services (including 

sales to other electric utilities), served approximately 261,147 customer accounts and incurred a coincident peak demand of 

approximately 1,239 MW. 

For a discussion of the status of Starke, Lake Worth, Fort Meade, Green Cove Springs, KUA and Key West, see 

“THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants” and “– Withdrawal of Vero Beach.”  Vero 

Beach withdrew as a Member of FMPA and as a Participant in the Project in December 2018.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” herein. 

As set forth in APPENDIX A hereto, the Participants in the Project are also participants in various other projects 

of FMPA. See “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.” 

Major Participants’ Historical Net Energy Requirements and Peak Demand 

The following table summarizes the historical net energy requirements and aggregate non-coincident peak demand 

of the four Major Participants. See “INTRODUCTION – The Major Participants.” 

MAJOR PARTICIPANTS’ 

HISTORICAL NET ENERGY REQUIREMENTS AND PEAK DEMAND 

By Fiscal Year 
(ending September 30) 

Net Energy Requirements (GWh) 

(for native load) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Jacksonville 

Beach 

Key  

West* KUA* Ocala 

     

2014 734 770 1,445 1,263 

2015 739 780 1,508 1,295 

2016 757 800 1,586 1,337 

2017 721 764 1,581 1,297 

2018 744 746 1,624 1,327 
_______________________________ 

*See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 
 

Non-Coincident Peak Demand (MW) 

Fiscal 

Year 

Jacksonville 

Beach 

Key  

West* KUA* Ocala 

     

2014 192 144 327 285 

2015 195 147 335 287 

2016 196 148 354 295 

2017 171 148 353 291 

2018 211 146 356 297 
_______________________________ 

*See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Elections of Certain Participants.” 

 

Major Participants 

APPENDIX B contains certain information about the Major Participants in the Project. 

Page 329 of 473



 

 - 31 - 

OTHER FMPA PROJECTS  

Introduction 

In addition to the Project, FMPA has six other projects (“Other Projects”) in which various Members (including 

some or all of the Participants) participate, including five power supply projects – Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, St. 

Lucie Project, Tri-City Project and Solar Project – and the Initial Pooled Loan Project. 

Each Other Project has been financed, as applicable, by FMPA through senior and, in some cases, subordinated 

debt (other than the Solar Project, although the Solar Project may in the future be financed through senior and/or 

subordinated debt). All debt for a particular Other Project has been issued under various resolutions of FMPA that are 

applicable only to that Other Project. All debt incurred for a particular Other Project is secured only by the revenues of that 

Other Project. Therefore, the revenues of a particular Other Project are not security for the FMPA debt issued for the Project 

or for all Other Projects. 

In the case of the Stanton, Stanton II, St. Lucie and Tri-City Power Sales Contracts and Project Support Contracts, 

as amended, and the Solar Project Power Sales Contracts, the obligation of a Participant for its share of the costs of an Other 

Project under the Power Sales Contract for that Other Project is payable solely from the Participant’s electric or integrated 

utility system revenues and are operating expenses of such system, payable on a parity with the system’s operation and 

maintenance expenses and before debt service on the system’s senior and subordinated debt. Payment by a Participant of 

its share of the costs of an Other Project under the Project Support Contract for an Other Project will be made only after 

payment of all of its system’s current operating and maintenance expenses and debt service on the system’s senior and 

subordinated debt. 

The following is a brief description of each of the Other Projects. APPENDIX A describes each Member’s 

participation in any FMPA Project. 

Stanton Project 

The Stanton Project consists of a 14.8193% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 1. Stanton 

Unit No. 1 is one of the two-unit coal fired electric generators at the Stanton Energy Center. Stanton Unit No. 1 was 

constructed, and is operated, by OUC. Power from the Stanton Project is transmitted to the Stanton Participants utilizing 

the transmission systems of OUC and FPL under the respective contracts with each system. The FPL transmission for the 

Stanton Project Participants that also participate in the Project (Fort Pierce and Starke) is included in the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Network Transmission Service Agreement with FPL which terminates in 2026. Lake Worth’s power 

from the Stanton Project is delivered to the transmission interface between OUC, FPL and DEF and is considered delivered 

to the respective participants by the Stanton Project at that point.  Lake Worth has separately acquired Network Integration 

Transmission Service from FPL for delivery from the OUC/FPL interface to Lake Worth.  The remaining Stanton Project 

Participant in FPL’s territory (Homestead) receives its transmission service under the Transmission Service Agreement 

between FMPA and FPL which terminates upon the earlier of retirement of Stanton Unit No. 1 or December 31, 2026. The 

transmission agreement with OUC expires on the earlier of retirement of Stanton Unit No. 1 or June 2027. 

In addition to the ownership of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 1 representing FMPA’s Stanton Project, the other co-

owners of undivided ownership interests in Stanton Unit No. 1 are (i) OUC, which owns 68.5542%, (ii) FMPA, which owns 

5.3012% as part of the Tri-City Project discussed below, (iii) FMPA, which owns 6.506% as part of the Project, and 

(iv) KUA, which owns 4.8193%. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will not have any outstanding debt for the Stanton Project. 

All debt of FMPA issued for the Stanton Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the Stanton 

Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – Introduction.”  Each participant in the Stanton Project is responsible under its power sales contract and project 

support contract for the costs of the Stanton Project in the amount of its participation share in the Stanton Project as shown 

on APPENDIX A subject to applicable step-up provisions. 

Stanton Unit No. 1 began commercial operation on July 1, 1987. The availability factor has averaged 87.4% since 

that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 61.8% in 2016 to a high of 90.5% in 

2015. The availability factor in fiscal year 2018 was 90.4%.  For the last five fiscal years, Stanton Project power costs billed 

Page 330 of 473



 

 - 32 - 

to its participants have ranged from approximately 8.3 to 14.2 cents per kWh, and were 8.3 cents per kWh for fiscal year 

2018. 

The determination to retire Stanton Unit No. 1 will be made by OUC. 

Other than the bonds issued with respect to any refunding relating to the Stanton Project and as described under 

“THE PROJECT – Project Generating Facilities Owned by FMPA as Part of the Project – Stanton Units,” FMPA has no 

present intention to issue any additional debt for the Stanton Project. [To the extent that additional funds are needed for 

capital expenditures for the Stanton Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, borrow from the Initial Pooled Loan 

Project, or seek bank financing.] 

On December 17, 2018, the Project took a transfer and assignment of Vero Beach’s 32.521% Power Entitlement 

Share (21.3 MW) in the Stanton Project. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for 

additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Stanton II Project 

The Stanton II Project consists of a 23.2367% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in the Stanton Energy Unit 

No. 2. Stanton Unit No. 2 is the second of the two-unit coal fired electric generators at the Stanton Energy Center of OUC. 

Stanton Unit No. 2 was constructed, and is operated by, OUC. Power from the Stanton II Project is transmitted to the 

participants utilizing the transmission systems of OUC, FPL and DEF under the respective contracts with each system. The 

FPL transmission for the Stanton II Project Participants that also participate in the Project (Fort Pierce, Key West, and 

Starke) is included in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Network Transmission Service Agreement with FPL 

which terminates in 2026. The remaining Stanton II Project Participant in FPL’s territory (Homestead) receives its 

transmission service under the Transmission Service Agreement between FMPA and FPL which terminates upon the earlier 

of retirement of Stanton Unit No. 2 or December 31, 2032. The transmission agreement with OUC expires on the earlier of 

retirement of Stanton Unit No. 2 or June 2036. 

In addition to the ownership of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 2 representing FMPA’s Stanton II Project, the other co-

owners of undivided ownership interests in Stanton Unit No. 2 are (i) OUC, which owns 71.5909%, and (ii) FMPA, which 

also owns 5.1724% as part of the Project. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will have outstanding $112,054,000 of senior bonds and $0 of subordinated debt issued for 

the Stanton II Project, the final maturity of which is October 1, 2027. 

All debt of FMPA issued for the Stanton II Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the 

Stanton II Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER 

FMPA PROJECTS – Introduction.” Each participant in the Stanton II Project is responsible under its power sales contract 

and project support contract for the costs of the Stanton II Project in the amount of its participation share in the Stanton 

Project as shown on APPENDIX A. 

Stanton Unit No. 2 began commercial operation on June 1, 1996. The availability factor has averaged 87.9% since 

that time. For the last five fiscal years, the availability factor has ranged from a low of 84.8% in 2018 to a high of 89.9% in 

2015. For the last five fiscal years, Stanton II Project power costs billed to its participants have ranged from approximately 

7.7 to 8.5 cents per kWh, and were 8.5 cents per kWh for fiscal year 2018. 

Other than the bonds issued with respect to any refunding relating to the Stanton II Project, FMPA has no present 

intention to issue any additional debt for the Stanton II Project. To the extent that additional funds are needed for capital 

expenditures for the Stanton II Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, borrow from the Initial Pooled Loan 

Project, or seek bank financing. 

On December 17, 2018, the Project took a transfer and assignment of Vero Beach’s 16.4887% Power Entitlement 

Share (17.2 MW) in the Stanton II Project. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for 

additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Page 331 of 473



 

 - 33 - 

St. Lucie Project  

The St. Lucie Project consists of an 8.806% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in St. Lucie Unit No. 2, a 

pressurized water nuclear generating unit with a summer seasonal net capacity of approximately 984 MW (“St. Lucie Unit 

No. 2”). St. Lucie Unit No. 2 is part of FPL’s two-unit nuclear generating station located in St. Lucie County, Florida. St. 

Lucie Unit No. 2 was constructed and is operated by FPL.  In addition to St. Lucie Unit No. 2, FPL also owns and operates, 

as part of the St. Lucie nuclear generating station, the St. Lucie Unit No. 1 pressurized water nuclear electric generating unit 

which has a summer net capacity of approximately 978 MW (“St. Lucie Unit No. 1”). St. Lucie Units No. 1 and 2 are similar 

units. 

The St. Lucie Project also is party to a Reliability Exchange between FMPA and FPL under which FMPA 

exchanges with FPL 50% of its share of the output from St. Lucie Unit No. 2 for a like amount from St. Lucie Unit No. 1 

in order to provide output when St. Lucie Unit No. 2 is out of service. The result of this exchange is that if St. Lucie Unit 

No. 2 is out of service, FMPA obtains 50% of its entitlement from St. Lucie Unit No. 1, and if St. Lucie Unit No. 1 is out 

of service 50% of FMPA’s entitlement from St. Lucie Unit No. 2 is provided to FPL. The Reliability Exchange initially 

expired on the earlier of (a) the retirement of St. Lucie Units No. 1 and No. 2, and (b) October 1, 2017. FMPA and FPL 

have agreed to extend the reliability arrangements beyond the initial expiration date of October 1, 2017 to October 1, 2022, 

although either party has the unilateral right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days’ notice. 

St. Lucie Unit No. 2 began commercial operation in August 1983. The capacity factor has averaged 84.1% since 

that time. For the last five fiscal years, the capacity factor has ranged from a low of 81.1% in 2014, to a high of 92.5% in 

2016. The capacity factor for 2018 was 88.1%. For the last five fiscal years, St. Lucie Project power costs billed to its 

participants have ranged from approximately 7.8 cents to 8.1 cents per kWh, and were 7.8 cents per kWh for fiscal year 

2018. 

In addition to the ownership of FMPA in St. Lucie Unit No. 2 representing FMPA’s St. Lucie Project, the other 

co-owners of undivided ownership interests in St. Lucie Unit No. 2 are (i) FPL, which owns 85.10449% and (ii) OUC, 

which owns 6.08951%. 

The term of the operating licenses for St. Lucie Unit No. 1 and St. Lucie Unit No. 2 are currently scheduled to 

expire in 2036 and 2043, respectively, as the result of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) granting 20-year 

operating license renewals for each unit. FPL has indicated that it plans to operate into the extended license periods and that 

it will periodically review the prudence and economics of continued operations. FMPA may issue bonds relating to the St. 

Lucie Project to finance its portion of the costs associated with the extension.  

In 2012, a project to increase the electrical generating capacity of St. Lucie Units No. 1 and No. 2 (the “Extended 

Power Uprate Project”) was completed. The Extended Power Uprate Project increased the capacity owned by FMPA 

through the St. Lucie Project by approximately 13 MW.  

FMPA has contracts with FPL and OUC to transmit power and energy from St. Lucie Units No. 1 and No. 2 to the 

participants in the St. Lucie Project. During 2016, the transmission contract with FPL was amended to extend the agreement 

beyond its original expiration date of October 1, 2017.  The amended transmission contract with FPL expires on October 1, 

2042, unless terminated earlier upon mutual agreement of the parties or upon the retirement of St. Lucie Unit No. 2.  The 

transmission contract with OUC ends in 2023 or such earlier time as FMPA is no longer entitled to receive output from the 

St. Lucie Project. 

FPL is responsible for obtaining the fuel for both St. Lucie Units No. 2 and No. 1.  FPL supplements wet storage 

of spent fuel assemblies for St. Lucie with a dry storage process utilizing dry storage containers encased in concrete. This 

process extends FPL’s capability to store spent fuel indefinitely. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will have outstanding $125,335,000 of senior bonds issued for the St. Lucie Project, the final 

maturity of which is October 1, 2026. FMPA, with respect to the St. Lucie Project, also, as of July 31, 2019, has on deposit 

securities with a maturity value of approximately $63.9 million, which FMPA anticipates will be used, together with other 

available funds, to retire the senior bonds issued for the St. Lucie Project on or before October 1, 2026.  [To the extent that 

additional funds are needed for capital expenditures for the St. Lucie Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, 

borrow from the Initial Pooled Loan Project, or seek bank financing.] 

Page 332 of 473



 

 - 34 - 

All debt of FMPA issued for the St. Lucie Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the St. 

Lucie Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – Introduction.” Each participant in the St. Lucie Project is responsible under its power sales contract and 

project support contract for the costs of the St. Lucie Project in the amount of its participation share in the St. Lucie Project 

as shown in APPENDIX A. 

On December 17, 2018, the All-Requirements Power Supply Project took a transfer and assignment of Vero 

Beach’s 15.202% Power Entitlement Share (13.2 MW) in the St. Lucie Project.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for additional information regarding the withdrawal of Vero Beach from the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Tri-City Project  

The Tri-City Project consists of a 5.3012% undivided ownership interest of FMPA in Stanton Unit No. 1. FMPA 

has contracts with both OUC and FPL to transmit the power and energy from Stanton Unit No. 1 to the participants in the 

Tri-City Project. See “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS – Stanton Project” above for a further discussion of Stanton Unit No. 1. 

Following debt service payments to be made on October 1, 2019, for which moneys have already been deposited 

with the bond trustee, FMPA will not have any outstanding debt for the Tri-City Project.  [To the extent that additional 

funds are needed for capital expenditures for the Tri-City Project, FMPA expects that it would issue bonds, borrow from 

the Initial Pooled Loan Project, or seek bank financing.] 

All debt of FMPA issued for the Tri-City Project is payable from amounts payable by the participants in the Tri-

City Project under power sales contracts and project support contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA 

PROJECTS – Introduction.” Each participant in the Tri-City Project is responsible under its power sales contract and project 

support contract for the costs of the Tri-City Project in the amount of its participation share in the Tri-City Project as shown 

on APPENDIX A. 

For the last five fiscal years, Tri-City Project power costs to its participants have ranged from approximately 8.7 

cents to 14.8 cents per kWh, and were 8.7 cents per kWh for fiscal year 2018. 

Solar Project 

In March 2018, the FMPA Board approved the formation of the Solar Project, as a sixth FMPA power supply 

project, and FMPA has entered into a power purchase agreement for 57 MW-ac of solar energy on behalf of six (6) FMPA 

members that are participants in the Solar Project.  FRP is developing three solar sites totaling 223.5 MW-ac to be located 

in Florida with expected in-service dates of June 30, 2020 for two of the solar sites.  The third site is experiencing delays 

associated with interconnection issues and will achieve commercial operation on a future date that has not yet been 

determined.  FMPA is working with FRP to mitigate these delays.  The Project will receive a portion of one of these sites, 

with the remainder of the associated capacity and energy going to OUC and five (5) Participants, as discussed previously.   

The Solar Project is not expected to incur debt since most cost obligations under the power purchase agreement 

are tied to actual energy produced and does not include any fixed capacity charges. However, any debt of FMPA that may 

be issued for the Solar Project for reimbursable transmission improvements is payable from amounts payable by the 

participants in the Solar Project under power sales contracts of the type described above under “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS 

– Introduction.” Each participant in the Solar Project is responsible under its power sales contract for the costs of the Solar 

Project in the amount of its participation share in the Solar Project. 

Environmental and Operational Compliance – Other Projects 

FMPA believes that each of the Other Projects’ power generating resources is well-maintained and is in substantive 

compliance with all current environmental laws and operating permits. FMPA has budgeted capital and operating costs, 

based on current legal requirements and future requirements that are known and understood. Additional costs may arise 

from new statutes or changing regulations that cannot currently be predicted and could range from minimal to significant. 

See “ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION.” 

Page 333 of 473



 

 - 35 - 

Initial Pooled Loan Project 

FMPA has established the Initial Pooled Loan Project as a vehicle for the financing and refinancing of eligible 

utility-related projects by its members through the making of loans by FMPA to members of FMPA, FMPA itself, and 

FMPA, as agent for any of its other projects.  In order to provide funds for the making of loans on a taxable or tax-exempt 

basis, Capital Bank has extended to FMPA a line of credit in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $25,000,000. 

Future Power Supply and Operations 

In the future, FMPA may pursue additional power supply alternatives which, if shown to be economically feasible, 

will be made available to the membership. Power supply alternatives are examined by FMPA to determine if the resource 

can be competitive with other resources available to the Members or if there is some unique feature which justifies further 

study. A detailed engineering feasibility study is made for those projects which pass this initial screening process. Upon 

completion of the detailed study, the project is offered to those Members of FMPA not participating in the Project, who 

make individual participation decisions and/or to the Project where a decision to participate is made by a majority of the 

Project members. 

STATE REGULATORY OVERSIGHT 

In general, the rates of municipal electric utilities in Florida, including the Participants, are established by the 

governing bodies of such utilities. Under Chapter 366, Florida Statutes, the PSC has jurisdiction over municipal electric 

utilities to prescribe uniform systems and classifications of accounts, to require electric power conservation and reliability, 

to establish rules and regulations regarding cogeneration, to approve territorial agreements, to resolve territorial disputes, 

to prescribe rate structures and to prescribe and require the periodic filing of reports and other data. Pursuant to the rules of 

the PSC, rate structure is defined as “... the classification system used in justifying different rates between various customer 

classes.”  However, the PSC and the Florida Supreme Court have determined that, except as to rate structure, the PSC does 

not have jurisdiction over municipal electric utility rates, including those of the Participants. The PSC has not asserted any 

jurisdiction over the rates or rate structure of FMPA. The PSC also has the authority to determine the need for certain new 

transmission and generation facilities. 

In 2014, the Office of the Florida Auditor General performed an operational audit of FMPA, as defined in section 

11.45(l)(g), Florida Statutes. The objectives of this type of audit are, in general, to evaluate management’s performance in 

establishing and maintaining internal controls, including controls designed to detect fraud, waste and abuse, as well as to 

evaluate management’s performance in administering assigned responsibilities in accordance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, contracts and other guidelines. The final report, along with FMPA’s response, is available at 

http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/pages/pdf_files/2015-165.pdf.  The final report is not incorporated by reference herein 

and is not a part of this Official Statement.   

The Auditor General’s final report contained fifteen findings, five of which only concern the Project. FMPA 

subsequently addressed every audit finding and hired an independent consultant to advise it on two findings regarding 

natural gas hedging and implementation of the withdrawal provisions of section 29 of the Power Supply Contracts. The 

final consultant’s report was presented to the Executive Committee in December 2015, and all follow-up work was 

completed by FMPA by August 2016. 

During most years from 2008 to 2016, FMPA or its Members faced adverse legislative proposals in each annual 

session of Florida’s Legislature. Most of these adverse legislative efforts were related to efforts by certain Vero Beach 

customers to attempt to force FMPA to grant Vero Beach contractual concessions for the benefit only of Vero Beach 

customers.  Much of this legislation was sponsored by then-Representative Debbie Mayfield.  No such adverse legislation 

was filed in the 2017 Legislative Session or the 2018 Legislative Session, which ended on March 11, 2018. 

On February 16, 2017, Senator Debbie Mayfield requested the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee of the Florida 

Legislature to authorize a study of FMPA by the Legislature’s Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government 

Accountability (“OPPAGA”).  Senator Mayfield was the chair of the Joint Legislative Auditing Committee for the 2017 

Legislative Session.  The study is supposed to address specifically these nine matters: 

(a)  Determine the extent to which the conditions recited in the Interlocal Agreement creating FMPA as 

justification for the creation of FMPA remain present. 

Page 334 of 473



 

 - 36 - 

(b)  Evaluate the feasibility of FMPA being regulated by the PSC and recommend a process for bringing FMPA 

within such regulation. 

(c)  Evaluate the potential impacts of the orderly sale of FMPA’s interest in power generation assets, including the 

impact of such a sale on FMPA’s debt structure, and the wholesale and retail power markets in Florida. 

(d)  Evaluate FMPA’s actions in response to the 2015 report of FMPA by the Florida Auditor General, including 

any remedial or corrective actions taken by FMPA and the effectiveness of the same. 

(e)  Evaluate the feasibility and costs of a municipality terminating its FMPA membership and make 

recommendations for legislative or other action that could reduce those costs. 

(f)  Evaluate the feasibility of the orderly dissolution and liquidation of FMPA and recommend a process 

effectuating the same and providing for the protection of bondholders and other private contractual interests. 

(g)  Identify and evaluate FMPA’s wholesale rates as compared to the wholesale rates of Florida’s investor-owned 

utilities. 

(h)  Identify the benefits of FMPA’s programs unrelated to the power generation (e.g. training) and whether such 

programs can be more efficiently provided by others. 

(i)  Evaluate FMPA’s fuel hedging practices. 

The OPPAGA study was initially scheduled to begin on October 1, 2017. At the request of Senator Mayfield, that 

start date was delayed to January 1, 2018.  As of the date of this Official Statement, no work on the study has, to FMPA’s 

knowledge, commenced. 

On January 30, 2019, the Florida Department of State submitted a proposed constitutional initiative petition to the 

Attorney General entitled “Right to Competitive Energy Market for Customers of Investor-Owned Utilities; Allowing 

Energy Choice.”  If the Supreme Court finds the initiative petition meets the requirements of state law, it can be placed on 

the ballot for Florida’s voters as early as November 2020, provided that a total of 766,200 valid signatures are certified by  

February 1, 2020.  As of [August 15, 2019] approximately [355,000] signatures have been certified.  FMPA, all Florida’s 

major investor-owned utilities, OUC, and a multitude of other parties, filed briefs opposing the initiative petition before the 

Supreme Court.  The Supreme Court held oral arguments on August 28, 2019.  A decision is likely before the end of 2019. 

If approved by the Supreme Court, placed on the 2020 ballot, and adopted by Florida’s voters, the initiative petition 

would have many serious consequences for FMPA, the Project, and the Participants.  Although legislation would be required 

to enact the initiative petition, which legislation must be adopted by June 1, 2023, the effects of the initiative petition would 

include prohibiting FPL and DEF from owning generation and transmission assets, which would affect the Project and its 

ability to deliver power to Participants, and would affect the St. Lucie Project.  Additionally, it would allow all retail 

customers of investor owned utilities to choose to purchase electricity from any provider of their choice, allow customers 

to generate and sell electricity to fellow customers, and establish a completely new competitive market in Florida for retail 

electricity.  The Participants are entitled to opt into such new market under the terms of the initiative petition, but their retail 

electric and integrated utility businesses will be substantially and, possibly, negatively impacted.  The sponsor of initiative 

petition, Citizens for Energy Choices, has made public statements, indicating it believes Florida’s electric utility industry 

would be restructured much as the industry has been restructured in Texas.  It is not possible to predict the Supreme Court’s 

ruling, the likelihood of sufficient signatures being certified for the 2020 ballot, the likelihood of adoption by Florida’s 

voters or, if adopted, the impact that implementing legislation may have on FMPA, the Project, and the Participants, except 

that such impact could be materially adverse. 

CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY 

General 

Several notable factors currently affect the electric utility industry, including increasing competition and related 

regulatory changes, financial difficulties faced by certain industry participants, and increasing costs of complying with 

environmental and other regulations. Public power utilities also are affected by factors related to their ability to issue tax-

exempt obligations and restrictions on the ability to sell, to non-governmental entities, power and energy from generation 

projects that are financed with outstanding, tax-exempt debt. FMPA and its members, including the Participants, also could 

Page 335 of 473



 

 - 37 - 

be adversely affected by technological or market developments that change the relative costs of the electric power and 

energy that FMPA provides to the Participants in comparison with the costs of electric power and energy that is available 

from other utilities in Florida. FMPA cannot predict what effects these factors will have on the business, operations and 

financial condition of FMPA or the Participants, but the effects could be significant.  

The following sections provide brief discussions of certain of these factors. These discussions do not purport to be 

comprehensive or definitive, and these matters are subject to change after the date of this Official Statement. Extensive 

information on the electric utility industry is available from legislative and regulatory bodies and other sources in the public 

domain. 

Energy Policy Act of 1992 

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 (the “Energy Policy Act”) made fundamental changes to federal regulation of the 

electric utility industry, particularly in the area of transmission access. The purpose of the changes was, in part, to bring 

about increased wholesale electric competition. The Energy Policy Act authorized FERC – upon application by an electric 

utility, federal power marketing agency, or other power generator – to require a transmitting utility to provide transmission 

services to the applicant on a cost-of-service basis. Municipally-owned electric utilities are “transmitting utilities” for this 

purpose. At this time, FERC does not have the authority to require “retail wheeling,” under which a distribution customer 

of one utility could purchase electricity from another utility or from a non-utility power generator. 

In addition to providing for transmission access, the Energy Policy Act required states and utilities to consider 

adopting integrated resource planning (“IRP”), which allows utility investments in conservation and other demand-side 

management techniques to be at least as profitable as supply investments. The PSC statutory and regulatory requirements 

do not specifically subject utilities in Florida to IRP, but when taken together equate to an IRP requirement. The most recent 

IRP was completed in February 2015. See “THE PROJECT – Future Power Supply.” The Energy Policy Act also established 

new efficiency standards in industrial and commercial equipment and lighting and required states to establish commercial 

and residential building codes with energy efficiency standards. Energy efficiency must also be included in utilities’ IRPs. 

FERC Transmission Initiatives 

On April 24, 1996, FERC issued two rules on transmission access. Order No. 888 required all FERC-jurisdictional 

utilities to provide transmission service on a non-discriminatory basis. As part of Order No. 888, FERC established a pro 

forma Open Access Transmission Tariff (“OATT”). Order No. 889 established the rules of conduct for open-access 

providers, including a requirement to separate operationally power sales from transmission. Municipally-owned electric 

utilities, including FMPA and the Participants, are not subject to FERC jurisdiction under these orders but may be denied 

transmission service by a FERC-jurisdictional utility if FMPA and the Participants do not offer comparable transmission 

services. To meet this “reciprocity” requirement, FMPA offers transmission service through a tariff that is comparable to 

FERC’s pro forma OATT. 

2005 Energy Policy Act 

The 2005 Energy Policy Act was enacted on August 8, 2005. Among other things, the 2005 Energy Policy Act: 

(a) authorizes FERC to require non-FERC jurisdictional utilities (including FMPA) to provide open access to their 

transmission systems and to comply with certain rate change provisions of section 205 of the FPA; (b) authorizes FERC to 

order refunds for certain short-term, wholesale sales by state and municipal power entities (including FMPA) if such sales 

violate FERC-approved tariffs or FERC rules; (c) allows load-serving entities that hold certain firm transmission rights to 

continue to use those rights to serve their customers; (d) provides for the establishment of a national electric reliability 

organization (“ERO”) to develop and enforce, subject to FERC’s oversight, mandatory reliability standards for operation 

of the transmission grid; I prohibits market manipulation and submission of false information and expands civil and criminal 

penalties for violation of the FPA; (f) gives FERC certain authority to issue construction permits for transmission projects 

that are to be located in “national interest electric transmission corridors” (to be designated by the Department of Energy);  

(g) eliminates certain ownership restrictions on qualifying cogeneration and small power production facilities under section 

210 of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (“PURPA”) and authorizes FERC to eliminate prospectively utilities’ 

obligation to purchase from these qualifying facilities; (h) requires state utility regulatory commissions and “non-regulated 

electric utilities” to consider adopting certain standards on net metering, fuel diversity, fossil fuel plant diversity, certain 

metering and time-based rate schedules and demand response, and interconnection with distributed generation facilities*; 

                                                 
* FMPA is exempt from these requirements of PURPA because FMPA sells power only at the wholesale level and does not sell power at the retail level. 

Page 336 of 473



 

 - 38 - 

(i) replaces regulation of utility holding companies under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 with more limited 

oversight of such companies; (j) increases FERC’s authority to review mergers of public utility companies; and (k) directs 

FERC to establish, for transmission companies whose rates are regulated by FERC, rate incentives to invest in transmission. 

FERC’s implementation of the 2005 Energy Policy Act includes:  transmission pricing reform and issuance of 

rules on the construction of transmission facilities in national interest corridors. Three other, notable implementation efforts 

are as follows: 

First, in February 2007, FERC issued Order No. 890 to reform the pro forma OATT. Order No. 890 reaffirmed 

many elements of Order No. 888, including:  (a) the comparability requirement under which a transmission owner must 

provide, to third-party users, service that is comparable to the transmission owner’s use of its system; (b) protections for 

native load customers; and (c) the reciprocity requirement for non-jurisdictional transmission owners, which include FMPA. 

Order No. 890’s reforms include:  (a) greater consistency and transparency in calculating available transmission capacity; 

(b) open, coordinated and transparent planning; (c) reforms of penalties for energy imbalances; (d) reform of FERC’s policy 

on rollover rights; and I increased transparency and customer access to information. 

All public utilities that own or control transmission facilities, including RTOs and Independent System Operators 

(“ISO”), were required to file revisions to their OATT to conform to pro forma language adopted in Order No. 890. As a 

non-public (non-jurisdictional) utility, FMPA is not required to file an OATT with FERC. However, in order to satisfy the 

reciprocity requirement, FMPA’s OATT conforms with the revisions to the pro forma OATT adopted by FERC in Order 

No. 890.  FMPA participated in joint transmission planning efforts that were conducted by the FRCC to address the need 

for new transmission facilities in the Central Florida region. FMPA plans to participate in ongoing transmission planning 

processes that were called for in Order No. 890 to the extent provided for by the transmission owning utilities in Florida. 

Second, in March 2007, FERC issued Order No. 693 to provide for the development of mandatory, national and 

regional reliability standards. The standards apply to all users, owners and operators of the bulk-power system in the United 

States (other than Alaska or Hawaii), including FMPA. FERC certified the NERC as the ERO and several regional entities 

to develop and enforce the standards. The first set of mandatory, national reliability standards took effect on June 18, 2007. 

FRCC was one of the regional entities that was responsible for monitoring and enforcing compliance with approved 

reliability standards. FMPA was  registered with FRCC from  May 29, 2007 until July 1, 2019 when FRCC dissolved as a 

Regional Entity. FMPA is now registered with SERC.  FMPA has programs in place to ensure that it meets the standards. 

FMPA also provides assistance to certain of its members regarding compliance with the standards. 

During a 2009 compliance audit, FRCC found that FMPA had violated certain reliability standards by failing to 

establish facility rating for its breakers at its Treasure Coast Energy Center.  On November 17, 2010, FMPA and FRCC 

executed a settlement agreement related to these violations. FRCC determined that the violations were not a serious or 

substantial risk to the bulk power system. The settlement agreement required FMPA to pay a $13,600 penalty and follow 

certain mitigation and remediation plans. FERC approved the settlement agreement on December 30, 2010.  FMPA 

completed the required mitigation actions and preventative measures.  FMPA has had no fineable reliability standards 

violations since.  During August 2019, FERC completed the most recent compliance audit of FMPA, with no findings. 

Third, in July 2011, FERC issued Order No. 1000 to build on certain of its reforms in Order No. 888 and Order 

No. 890. Order No. 1000’s requirements apply only to “new transmission facilities” and include: (a) the consideration and 

evaluation of possible transmission alternatives at a regional transmission planning level and the development of a regional 

transmission plan; (b) the development of procedures for interregional planning to determine whether interregional 

transmission facilities are more efficient or cost effective than certain regional facilities; (c) the development of methods 

for regional and interregional cost allocation that is roughly commensurate with the estimated benefits; and (d) for those 

projects eligible for cost sharing, removal of transmission providers’ “right of first refusal” in order to allow competition  

from nonincumbent developers.  

All public utility transmission providers were required to make compliance filings on regional planning and cost 

allocation within 12 months of the effective date and on interregional planning and cost allocation within 18 months of the 

effective date. In general, Order No. 1000 permits each region to develop its own processes and procedures to comply with 

the requirements. FRCC hosted a stakeholder process to discuss proposals for compliance with Order No. 1000, and the 

Florida transmission providers submitted initial compliance filings with FERC in October 2012. On three occasions, FERC 

partially accepted and partially rejected the transmission providers’ compliance filings, and directed them to refile.  The 

Florida utilities’ response to Order No. 1000 was approved by FERC in August 2015, and the process has since been 

implemented by FRCC.  To date, the Order No. 1000 process has not resulted in any negative consequences to FMPA or 

the Participants. 

Page 337 of 473



 

 - 39 - 

Fresh Water Supplies 

Unprecedented increases in demand for fresh water supply in Florida has had an effect on the electric utility 

industry, as the regulating agencies develop programs and activities to address local and regional water resource planning. 

Electric generators will continue to be required to consider utilization of more expensive alternative sources of water and 

to limit consumptive use of the state’s water resources. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION 

FMPA’s electric utility operations are subject to extensive environmental regulation. Federal, state, regional and 

local standards and procedures regulate the environmental impact of FMPA’s projects and facilities.  These regulations are 

complex and constantly changing.  Consequently, there is no assurance that FMPA’s operations will remain subject to the 

regulations currently in effect, will always be in compliance with future regulations or will always be able to obtain all 

required operating permits. Compliance with environmental standards is expensive, and difficulties in complying with 

environmental regulations and permits or changing requirements can increase FMPA’s costs of construction, maintenance, 

refurbishment and operation.  The failure to comply or to invest adequately to maintain compliance can result in the 

curtailment or complete shutdown of individual electric generating units and/or in the imposition of civil and/or criminal 

penalties. FMPA cannot predict whether future changes to existing legislation, regulations or permits will be enacted or 

promulgated in a form that will affect FMPA’s operations, or the costs that might be incurred if such changes are enacted 

or promulgated. 

Air Pollution Prevention and Control 

FMPA’s operations are subject to a wide range of regulations governing emissions of air pollutants and pollution 

control requirements.  In addition to regulating conventional contaminants, such as nitrogen oxides (“NOX”), sulfur dioxide 

(“SO2”), ozone, and fine particulate matter (“PM2.5”), existing state and federal regulations impose permitting and pollution 

control requirements to assess and reduce emissions of carbon dioxide (“CO2”), in connection with the construction of new, 

major stationary sources or significant modifications of such sources.  In addition, various programs impose new regulation 

upon existing major stationary sources, including fossil fuel-fired electricity generating units. 

New Source Review.  EPA and states regularly pursue New Source Review (“NSR”) enforcement actions for 

certain modifications made in the past to air emission units without prior approval under NSR requirements. Additionally, 

private citizens can bring citizen lawsuits to enforce NSR requirements. If modifications conducted at facilities in the past 

were, or in the future are, significant modifications made without NSR, such modifications may result in enforcement action 

or citizen suits; including possible enforcement for routine maintenance, repair and replacement events that may trigger 

NSR.  FMPA and OUC evaluate facility modifications on a regular basis for potential regulatory impacts, including NSR.  

There are no current plans for modifications that would require NSR review.  FMPA and OUC have not received any notice 

of any activity or communication from EPA, the state, or private citizens regarding NSR violations at Project facilities. 

Acid Rain Program. EPA’s acid rain program requires nationwide reductions of SO2 and NOX emissions from 

electric utility generating units by allocating emission allowances to power plants based on historical or calculated levels. 

Both SO2 and NOX emissions were “capped,” and allowances were allocated at levels that declined over time to reduce 

overall emissions.  New and existing FMPA facilities must operate in compliance with these requirements.  FMPA has 

budgeted for such compliance activities and does not anticipate any unexpected acid rain program compliance issues or 

costs. 

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule. EPA’s updated modeling under the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (“CSAPR”), 

based on 2008 and 2015 ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards (“NAAQS”), indicates that the state of Florida does 

not contribute significantly to ozone air quality problems in downwind states.  As a result, the state of Florida has been 

removed from the CSAPR program, effective May 1, 2017.  If CSAPR is reinstated in Florida on a future date as a result 

of updated modeling, FMPA and OUC will operate in accordance with the updated rule. 

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards. In 2012, EPA finalized a rule, called the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards 

(“MATS”), to reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants, including mercury, from electric generating facilities, and 

subsequently amended the rule in 2013 and 2014.  The MATS set technology-based emission limitation standards for 

mercury and other toxic air pollutants, reflecting levels achieved by the best performing coal- and oil-fired electric 

generating units currently in operation.  The final rule set standards for all hazardous air pollutants emitted by coal- and oil-

fired electric generating units with a capacity of 25 megawatts or greater.   

Page 338 of 473



 

 - 40 - 

In June 2015, the U.S. Supreme Court determined that EPA’s rule did not properly consider costs in developing 

the MATS and directed EPA to address costs.  In response to the Supreme Court’s decision, on April 14, 2016, EPA issued 

a cost consideration and a final finding that it is appropriate and necessary to set standards for emissions of air toxics from 

coal-and oil-fired power plants. EPA’s final finding has been challenged in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of 

Columbia.  The Court of Appeals suspended proceedings in that challenge following an EPA request to delay the 

proceedings in light of the change in Administration.  In February 2019, EPA proposed revisions to its appropriate and 

necessary finding. EPA is expected to finalize a revised appropriate and necessary finding in November 2019. 

The MATS rule, despite the pending legal proceedings, is still in effect as finalized, and applies to Stanton Units 

1 and 2, which are currently in compliance with requirements for all pollutants under MATS.   

Ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards. On October 26, 2015, EPA published final rules establishing 

NAAQS for ground level ozone, strengthening the primary and secondary standards from 75 ppb to 70 ppb.  EPA also 

finalized the extended ozone season in Florida, to a twelve-month, or annual, season.  On November 16, 2017, EPA 

published the final rule designating 61 of Florida’s 67 counties as attainment/unclassifiable. On June 4, 2018, EPA published 

designations for the remaining six counties, designating all as attainment/unclassifiable, with the exception of Duval 

County.  On August 18, 2019, EPA proposed re-designation of Duval County to attainment/unclassifiable.  FMPA’s 

facilities are all located within attainment areas and are not impacted by the unclassifiable designation of Duval County.  

Current data provided by FDEP indicates that all areas of Florida will be in attainment with the revised standards. 

EPA Regulatory Actions for Power Plants 

On October 23, 2015, EPA published final performance standards for carbon emissions from new, modified and 

reconstructed electric generating units, establishing standards of performance for CO2 emissions from these units.  Since 

FMPA has no immediate plans to develop, modify or reconstruct any units, this rule is not currently applicable to FMPA.  

On the same date, EPA issued final guidelines for Existing Power Plants, called the Clean Power Plan (“CPP”), which 

requires states to regulate CO2 emissions from existing fossil fuel-fired power plants.  

On February 9, 2016 the United States Supreme Court in a 5-4 decision blocked implementation of CPP pending 

a court challenge by 29 states, various corporations and industry groups. 

On March 28, 2017, President Trump issued a broad Executive Order addressing United States climate change 

policy, directing EPA to immediately review the CPP and the performance standards for new, modified and reconstructed 

units.  On the same date, EPA asked the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit to hold in abeyance the challenges to 

the CPP and new unit standards while EPA works to repeal and replace the rule. On July 8, 2019, EPA issued a final rule 

that would repeal the CPP and also finalized the Affordable Clean Energy (“ACE”) rule to replace the CPP, and the rule 

became effective on September 6, 2019. The ACE rule requires efficiency improvements for some coal-fired power plants.  

The rule is expected to be challenged. 

Due to the pending legal challenges and rulemaking proceedings initiated by EPA, it is unclear when, if at all, 

regulation of CO2 emissions from existing units may become effective.  FMPA continues to actively monitor these activities 

and will participate in such proceedings as necessary.  FMPA remains well-positioned for compliance with CO2-related 

emissions regulation, due to high reliance on Natural Gas Combined Cycle (“NGCC”) generation. The impact to FMPA 

and operations will depend on the development and implementation of applicable regulations and available technologies 

and cannot be determined at this time. 

Waste Management 

The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”). CERCLA requires 

cleanup of sites from which there has been a release or threatened release of hazardous substances and authorizes the EPA 

to take any necessary response action at the locations of such releases. The operation of coal-based generating facilities 

produces coal ash and other wastes, which, if released on-site or disposed of inappropriately off-site, may result in liability 

for removal and cleanup, or the payment of damages. 

Coal Ash. Coal-based generating facilities produce coal ash waste that requires disposal. In most cases, coal ash is 

disposed of in on-site landfills that require industrial solid waste permits, and the facility is responsible for the proper 

maintenance and monitoring of the landfill. On April 17, 2015, EPA published a final rule regulating the disposal of coal 

ash under subtitle D of RCRA.  In July 2018, EPA finalized revisions to the CCR rule, but some of the revisions were 

remanded by the D.C. Circuit in August 2018. In July 2019, EPA proposed additional revisions to the CCR rule. Due to the 

Page 339 of 473



 

 - 41 - 

rulemaking proceedings initiated by EPA and potential legal challenges, some of the requirements of the CCR rule could 

change over time. The coal ash rule currently in effect requires OUC to ensure structural integrity of existing landfills, 

follow certain operating criteria, and install groundwater monitoring wells, and may also require the investigation and 

monitoring of releases from landfills.  These requirements apply to the Stanton Units.  OUC has evaluated the impact of the 

CCR Rule and has developed a compliance strategy and does not expect that its costs for compliance with the CCR Rule 

will be material.  

Additional Environmental Issues 

Cooling Water. EPA published Rule 316(b) for cooling water intake on August 15, 2014, and the rule became 

effective on October 14, 2014.  Section 316(b) of the Clean Water Act requires EPA to issue regulations on the design and 

operation of cooling water intake structures in order to minimize adverse environmental impacts.  The rule is applicable to 

sites subject to permitting requirements under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) that 

withdraw cooling water from waters of the U.S. and have design intake flows greater than 2 MGD.  The rule requires that 

the location, design, construction, and capacity of cooling water intake structures reflect the best technology available for 

minimizing adverse environmental impacts. 

The Section 316(b) rule applies to St. Lucie Unit No. 2.  FPL will be upgrading the plant intake velocity caps at 

St. Lucie, if required, to address the impingement provisions of the rule.  In addition, FPL will also perform extensive 

studies over the next several years to determine the extent of environmental impacts associated with the entrainment 

provisions of the rule.  When the studies are completed, FPL, in conjunction with FDEP, will determine if any further 

compliance upgrades are warranted. 

Effluent Guidelines. On November 3, 2015, EPA finalized a rule setting technology-based limits on the levels of 

toxic metals in wastewater discharge from power plants. The Effluent Limitations Guidelines and Standards (“ELGs”) 

require that electric generating units adopt new control technologies, process changes, and internal controls to reduce toxic 

metals in wastewater. The ELGs were scheduled to be implemented starting in 2018; however, EPA finalized a rule in 

September 2017 that delayed implementation of the ELGs until 2020. In April 2019, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth 

Circuit remanded portions of the 2015 ELGs because it determined that some of the standards were not sufficiently stringent. 

EPA also has stated that it intends to propose revisions to the 2015 ELG rule by December 2019. Due to the pending legal 

challenges and rulemaking proceedings initiated by EPA, it is unclear what the ELGs may require and when the ELGs will 

may become effective. 

Litigation. Many of the issues raised by existing and proposed environmental regulations are the subject of frequent 

and pending litigation.  Such litigation challenges the implementation of new rules, and can challenge the application of 

existing rules to specific situations or facilities.  This litigation does not currently affect FMPA directly, but could have 

future effects upon permit requirements applicable to FMPA projects and indirectly upon project costs and operations. 

Changing Legislation. Environmental requirements are driven by state and federal legislation. Such legislation can 

radically change the regulatory context in which FMPA operates, and can require increased capital or operating 

expenditures, or reduced operations, at existing and/or new generating facilities.  Any such legislative changes are inherently 

impossible to predict with any certainty, particularly in the way they might apply to specific organizations or facilities, such 

as FMPA and its facilities.  FMPA, through its lobbyists and participation in state and national advocacy groups, maintains 

awareness of legislative issues that may impact operations, participating in advocacy roles as warranted. 

Page 340 of 473



 

 - 42 - 

UNDERWRITING 

Barclays Capital Inc. is acting as the representative on behalf of itself and BofA Securities, Inc. (collectively, the 

“Underwriters”). The Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all, but not less than all, of the 

Series 2019A Bonds from FMPA at a purchase price of $________, representing the principal amount of the Series 2019A 

Bonds plus original issue premium of $________ and less an underwriting discount of $________.  The Underwriters have 

agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all, but not less than all, of the Series 2019B Bonds from FMPA at a 

purchase price of $________, representing the principal amount of the Series 2019B Bonds less an underwriting discount 

of $________.  The Offered Securities may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing the Offered 

Securities into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than such public offering price and such public offering price 

may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters. 

BofA Securities, Inc., an underwriter of the Offered Securities, has entered into a distribution agreement with its 

affiliate Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (“MLPF&S”).  As part of this arrangement, BofA Securities, 

Inc. may distribute securities to MLPF&S, which may in turn distribute such securities to investors through the financial 

advisor network of MLPF&S.  As part of this arrangement, BofA Securities, Inc. may compensate MLPF&S as a dealer for 

their selling efforts with respect to the Offered Securities. 

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, 

which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, finance advisory, investment management, 

principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the Underwriters and their respective affiliates 

have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various investment banking services for the Agency for 

which they have received or will receive customary fees and expenses. 

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Underwriters and their respective affiliates may make 

or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and 

financial instruments (which may include bank loans and/or credit default swaps) for their own account and for the accounts 

of their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment 

and securities activities may involve securities and instruments of the Agency. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Dunlap & Associates, Inc., Orlando, Florida, is FMPA’s financial advisor for the Offered Securities. The financial 

advisor has provided FMPA advice on the plan of financing and reviewed the pricing of the Offered Securities. The financial 

advisor has not independently verified the information contained in this Official Statement and does not assume 

responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of such information. The financial advisor’s fees for serving as 

financial advisor are not contingent upon the issuance of the Offered Securities. 

FMPA has retained the firms of Dunlap & Associates, Inc. and PFM Financial Advisors LLC as its municipal 

advisors. FMPA is represented by and will rely on Dunlap & Associates, Inc. and PFM Financial Advisors LLC, as 

managing financial advisor and co-financial advisor respectively, to provide advice on proposals from financial services 

firms concerning the issuance of municipal securities and municipal financial products, including investments of bond 

proceeds and escrow investments. PFM Financial Advisors LLC is not acting as a financial advisor for the Offered 

Securities. 

LITIGATION 

No litigation is pending or, to the knowledge of FMPA, threatened in any court to restrain or enjoin the issuance 

of any of the Offered Securities or the collection of revenues pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest 

on the Offered Securities, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Offered Securities or the Resolution or 

the power to collect and pledge revenues to pay the Offered Securities. 

FMPA received notice pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, of an intent to file suit against FMPA for 

property contamination and related damages relating to FMPA’s interests as a co-owner of the Stanton Energy Center. For 

additional information, see paragraph F of Note XVI to the audited financial statements included in FMPA’s Annual Audit 

Report for its fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. See APPENDIX C – “FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR ITS 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018.” 

ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEDIES 

Page 341 of 473



 

 - 43 - 

The remedies available to the Trustee or owners of the Offered Securities upon an event of default under the 

Resolution are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under 

existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, including specifically Title 11 of the United States Code, 

the remedies specified by the federal bankruptcy code, the Resolution and the Offered Securities may not be readily 

available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Offered 

Securities (including Bond Counsel’s approving opinion) are qualified, as to the enforceability of the various legal 

instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of 

creditors enacted before or after such delivery. 

CREDIT RATINGS 

Offered Securities 

The Offered Securities are rated “[__]” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and “[__]” by Fitch 

Ratings (“Fitch”). 

General 

The respective ratings by Fitch and Moody’s of the Offered Securities reflect only the views of such organizations 

and any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings or other statements given by the rating agencies with respect 

thereto should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same, at the following addresses: Fitch, Inc., 33 Whitehall 

Street, New York, New York 10004 and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, 

New York, New York 10007. FMPA has furnished to each rating agency rating the Offered Securities information, including 

information not included in this Official Statement, about FMPA and the Offered Securities. Generally, a rating agency 

bases its rating and outlook on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions 

of its own. There is no assurance such ratings for the Offered Securities will continue for any given period of time or that 

any of such ratings will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by any of the rating agencies, if, in the judgment of 

such rating agency or agencies, circumstances so warrant. Those circumstances may include, among other things, changes 

in or unavailability of information relating to FMPA or the Offered Securities. Any such downward revision or withdrawal 

of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Offered Securities. 

TAX MATTERS 

The Series 2019A Bonds 

Federal Income Taxes 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), imposes certain requirements that must be met 

subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2019A Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded from 

gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest on the Series 

2019A Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue of the Series 

2019A Bonds. Pursuant to the Resolution and the Tax Certificate executed in connection with the delivery of the Series 

2019A Bonds, FMPA has covenanted to comply with the applicable requirements of the Code in order to maintain the 

exclusion of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 

103 of the Code. In addition, FMPA has made certain representations and certifications in the Resolution and the Tax 

Certificate. Bond Counsel will not independently verify the accuracy of those representations and certifications. 

In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with the 

aforementioned covenant, and the accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by FMPA described above, 

interest on the Series 2019A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of 

the Code.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is not treated as a preference item in calculating the 

alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code. 

Original Issue Discount 

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that the excess of the principal amount of a maturity of the Series 2019A 

Bonds over the price at which price a substantial amount of such maturity of the Series 2019A Bonds was sold to the public 

(excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) 

(each, a “Discount Bond” and collectively the “Discount Bonds”) constitutes original issue discount which is excluded from 

Page 342 of 473



 

 - 44 - 

gross income for federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the Series 2019A Bonds. Further, such 

original issue discount accrues actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Discount Bond and the 

basis of each Discount Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the 

amount of such accrued original issue discount.  The accrual of original issue discount may be taken into account as an 

increase in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning the 

Discount Bonds, even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment.  Owners of the Discount Bonds are advised 

that they should consult with their own advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning such Discount 

Bonds. 

Original Issue Premium 

Series 2019A Bonds sold at prices in excess of their principal amounts are “Premium Bonds”.  An initial purchaser 

with an initial adjusted basis in a Premium Bond in excess of its principal amount will have amortizable bond premium 

which is not deductible from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The amount of amortizable bond premium for 

a taxable year is determined actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Premium Bond based on the 

purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of Premium Bonds callable prior to their maturity, over the period to the call  

date, based on the purchaser’s yield to the call date and giving effect to any call premium).  For purposes of determining 

gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of a Premium Bond, an initial purchaser who acquires such obligation with an 

amortizable bond premium is required to decrease such purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Premium Bond annually by the 

amount of amortizable bond premium for the taxable year.  The amortization of bond premium may be taken into account 

as a reduction in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning 

such Series 2019A Bonds.  Owners of the Premium Bonds are advised that they should consult with their own advisors with 

respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds. 

Ancillary Tax Matters 

Ownership of the Series 2019A Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, 

without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations with branches in the United States, property and casualty 

insurance companies, individuals receiving Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals seeking to claim 

the earned income credit, and taxpayers (including banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions) who may be 

deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or to carry the Series 2019A Bonds. 

Interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the Series 2019A Bonds is subject to information reporting to the 

Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) in a manner similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. In addition, interest on the 

Series 2019A Bonds may be subject to backup withholding if such interest is paid to a registered owner that (a) fails to 

provide certain identifying information (such as the registered owner’s taxpayer identification number) in the manner 

required by the IRS, or (b) has been identified by the IRS as being subject to backup withholding. 

Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion as to any Federal tax matters other than those opinions attached as 

Appendix E. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules described above, are advised to 

consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Series 2019A Bonds, 

as well as any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state or other taxing jurisdiction. 

Changes in Law and Post Issuance Events 

Legislative or administrative actions and court decisions, at either the federal or state level, could have an adverse 

impact on the potential benefits of the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds for Federal 

or state income tax purposes, and thus on the value or marketability of the Series 2019A Bonds. This could result from 

changes to Federal or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of Federal or state income taxes (including replacement 

with another type of tax), repeal of the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2019A Bonds from gross income for Federal 

or state income tax purposes, or otherwise.  It is not possible to predict whether any legislative or administrative actions or 

court decisions having an adverse impact on the Federal or state income tax treatment of holders of the Series 2019A Bonds 

may occur.  Prospective purchasers of the Series 2019A Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the impact 

of any change in law on the Series 2019A Bonds. 

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance and delivery 

of the Series 2019A Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Series 2019A Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no 

opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds, or the interest thereon, 

Page 343 of 473



 

 - 45 - 

if any action is taken with respect to the Series 2019A Bonds or the proceeds thereof upon the advice or approval of other 

counsel. 

The Series 2019B Bonds 

The following is a summary of certain anticipated United States federal income tax consequences of the purchase, 

ownership and disposition of the Series 2019B Bonds.  The summary is based upon the provisions of the Code, the Treasury 

Regulations promulgated thereunder and the judicial and administrative rulings and decisions now in effect, all of which 

are subject to change.  Such authorities may be repealed, revoked, or modified, possibly with retroactive effect, so as to 

result in United States federal income tax consequences different from those described below.  The summary generally 

addresses Series 2019B Bonds held as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code and does not purport 

to address all aspects of federal income taxation that may affect particular investors in light of their individual circumstances 

or certain types of investors subject to special treatment under the federal income tax laws, including but not limited to 

financial institutions, insurance companies, dealers in securities or currencies, persons holding such Series 2019B Bonds as 

a hedge against currency risks or as a position in a “straddle,” “hedge,” “constructive sale transaction” or “conversion 

transaction” for tax purposes, or persons whose functional currency is not the United States dollar.  It also does not deal 

with holders other than original purchasers that acquire Series 2019B Bonds at their initial issue price except where 

otherwise specifically noted.  Potential purchasers of the Series 2019B Bonds should consult their own tax advisors in 

determining the federal, state or, local, foreign and other tax consequences to them of the purchase, holding and disposition 

of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

FMPA has not sought and will not seek any rulings from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to any matter 

discussed herein.  No assurance can be given that the Internal Revenue Service would not assert, or that a court would not 

sustain, a position contrary to any of the tax characterizations and tax consequences set forth below. 

U.S. Holders 

As used herein, the term “U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of Series 2019B Bonds that is (a) an individual 

citizen or resident of the United States for federal income tax purposes, (b) a corporation, including an entity treated as a 

corporation for federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any State 

thereof (including the District of Columbia), (c) an estate whose income is subject to federal income taxation regardless of 

its source, or (d) a trust if a court within the United States can exercise primary supervision over the administration of the 

trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.  Notwithstanding clause 

(d) of the preceding sentence, to the extent provided in Treasury regulations, certain trusts in existence on August 20, 1996, 

and treated as United States persons prior to that date that elect to continue to be treated as United States persons also will 

be U.S. Holders.  In addition, if a partnership (or other entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for federal income tax 

purposes) holds Series 2019B Bonds, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership generally will depend upon the status 

of the partner and the activities of the partnership.  If a U.S. Holder is a partner in a partnership (or other entity or 

arrangement treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes) that holds Series 2019B Bonds, the U.S. Holder is 

urged to consult its own tax advisor regarding the specific tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and dispositions of 

Series 2019B Bonds. 

Generally 

Interest on the Series 2019B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Code 

section 103 and so will be fully subject to federal income taxation.  Purchasers (other than those who purchase Series 2019B 

Bonds in the initial offering at their principal amounts) will be subject to federal income tax accounting rules affecting the 

timing and/or characterization of payments received with respect to such Series 2019B Bonds.  In general, interest paid on 

the Series 2019B Bonds and recovery of any accrued original issue discount and market discount will be treated as ordinary 

income to a Bondholder, and after adjustment for the foregoing, principal payments will be treated as a return of capital to 

the extent of the U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Series 2019B Bonds and capital gain to the extent of any excess 

received over such basis. 

Original Issue Discount 

The following summary is a general discussion of certain federal income tax consequences of the purchase, 

ownership and disposition of Series 2019B Bonds issued with original issue discount (“Discount Series 2019B Bonds”).  A 

Series 2019B Bond will be treated as having been issued at an original issue discount if the excess of its “stated redemption 

price at maturity” (defined below) over its issue price (defined as the initial offering price to the public at which a substantial 

Page 344 of 473



 

 - 46 - 

amount of the Series 2019B Bonds of the same maturity have first been sold to the public, excluding bond houses and 

brokers) equals or exceeds one quarter of one percent of such Series 2019B Bond’s stated redemption price at maturity 

multiplied by the number of complete years to its maturity (or, in the case of an installment obligation, its weighted average 

maturity). 

A Discount Series 2019B Bond’s “stated redemption price at maturity” is the total of all payments provided by the 

Discount Series 2019B Bond that are not payments of “qualified stated interest.” Generally, the term “qualified stated 

interest” includes stated interest that is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt instruments of the issuer) 

at least annually at a single fixed rate or certain floating rates. 

In general, the amount of original issue discount includible in income by the initial holder of a Discount Series 

2019B Bond is the sum of the “daily portions” of original issue discount with respect to such Discount Series 2019B Bond 

for each day during the taxable year in which such holder held such Discount Series 2019B Bond.  The daily portion of 

original issue discount on any Discount Series 2019B Bond is determined by allocating to each day in any “accrual period” 

a ratable portion of the original issue discount allocable to that accrual period. 

An accrual period may be of any length, and may vary in length over the term of a Discount Series 2019B Bond, 

provided that each accrual period is not longer than one year and each scheduled payment of principal or interest occurs at 

the end of an accrual period.  The amount of original issue discount allocable to each accrual period is equal to the difference 

between (i) the product of the Discount Series 2019B Bond’s adjusted issue price at the beginning of such accrual period 

and its yield to maturity (determined on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and appropriately 

adjusted to take into account the length of the particular accrual period) and (ii) the amount of any qualified stated interest 

payments allocable to such accrual period.  The “adjusted issue price” of a Discount Series 2019B Bond at the beginning 

of any accrual period is the sum of the issue price of the Discount Series 2019B Bond plus the amount of original issue 

discount allocable to all prior accrual periods minus the amount of any prior payments on the Discount Series 2019B Bond 

that were not qualified stated interest payments.  Under these rules, holders generally will have to include in income 

increasingly greater amounts of original issue discount in successive accrual periods. 

Holders utilizing the accrual method of accounting may generally, upon election, include in gross income all 

interest (including stated interest, acquisition discount, original issue discount, de minimis original issue discount, market 

discount, de minimis market discount, and unstated interest, as adjusted by any amortizable bond premium or acquisition 

premium) on the Discount Series 2019B Bond by using the constant yield method applicable to original issue discount, 

subject to certain limitations and exceptions. 

Market Discount 

Any owner who purchases a Series 2019B Bond at a price which includes market discount (i.e., at a purchase price 

that is less than its adjusted issue price in the hands of an original owner) in excess of a prescribed de minimis amount will 

be required to recharacterize all or a portion of the gain as ordinary income upon receipt of each scheduled or unscheduled 

principal payment or upon other disposition.  In particular, such owner will generally be required either (a) to allocate each 

such principal payment to accrued market discount not previously included in income and to recognize ordinary income to 

that extent and to treat any gain upon sale or other disposition of such a Series 2019B Bond as ordinary income to the extent 

of any remaining accrued market discount or (b) to elect to include such market discount in income currently as it accrues 

on all market discount instruments acquired by such owner on or after the first day of the taxable year to which such election 

applies. 

The Code authorizes the Treasury Department to issue regulations providing for the method for accruing market 

discount on debt instruments the principal of which is payable in more than one installment.  Until such time as regulations 

are issued by the Treasury Department, certain rules described in the legislative history of the Tax Reform Act of 1986 will 

apply.  Under those rules, market discount will be included in income either (a) on a constant interest basis or (b) in 

proportion to the accrual of stated interest. 

An owner of a Series 2019B Bond who acquires such Series 2019B Bond at a market discount also may be required 

to defer, until the maturity date of such Series 2019B Bonds or the earlier disposition in a taxable transaction, the deduction 

of a portion of the amount of interest that the owner paid or accrued during the taxable year on indebtedness incurred or 

maintained to purchase or carry a Series 2019B Bond in excess of the aggregate amount of interest (including original issue 

discount) includable in such owner’s gross income for the taxable year with respect to such Series 2019B Bond.  The amount 

of such net interest expense deferred in a taxable year may not exceed the amount of market discount accrued on the Series 

2019B Bond for the days during the taxable year on which the owner held the Series 2019B Bond and, in general, would 

Page 345 of 473



 

 - 47 - 

be deductible when such market discount is includable in income.  The amount of any remaining deferred deduction is to 

be taken into account in the taxable year in which the Series 2019B Bond matures or is disposed of in a taxable transaction.  

In the case of a disposition in which gain or loss is not recognized in whole or in part, any remaining deferred deduction 

will be allowed to the extent gain is recognized on the disposition.  This deferral rule does not apply if the Bondholder elects 

to include such market discount in income currently as described above. 

Bond Premium 

A holder of a Series 2019B Bond who purchases such Series 2019B Bond at a cost greater than its remaining 

redemption amount will have amortizable bond premium.  If the holder elects to amortize this premium under Section 171 

of the Code (which election will apply to all Series 2019B Bonds held by the holder on the first day of the taxable year to 

which the election applies and to all Series 2019B Bonds thereafter acquired by the holder), such a holder must amortize 

the premium using constant yield principles based on the holder’s yield to maturity.  Amortizable bond premium is generally 

treated as an offset to interest income, and a reduction in basis is required for amortizable bond premium that is applied to 

reduce interest payments.  Holders of any Series 2019B Bonds who acquire such Series 2019B Bonds at a premium should 

consult with their own tax advisors with respect to state and local tax consequences of owning such Series 2019B Bonds. 

Surtax on Unearned Income 

Recently enacted legislation generally imposes a tax of 3.8% on the “net investment income” of certain individuals, 

trusts and estates for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012.  Among other items, net investment income generally 

includes gross income from interest and net gain attributable to the disposition of certain property, less certain deductions.  

U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the possible implications of this legislation in their particular 

circumstances. 

Sale or Redemption of Series 2019B Bonds 

A Bondholder’s adjusted tax basis for a Series 2019B Bond is the price such owner pays for the Series 2019B 

Bond plus the amount of original issue discount and market discount previously included in income and reduced on account 

of any payments received on such Series 2019B Bond other than “qualified stated interest” and any amortized bond 

premium.  Gain or loss recognized on a sale, exchange or redemption of a Series 2019B Bond, measured by the difference 

between the amount realized and the Bondholder’s tax basis as so adjusted, will generally give rise to capital gain or loss if 

the Series 2019B Bond is held as a capital asset (except in the case of Series 2019B Bonds acquired at a market discount, 

in which case a portion of the gain will be characterized as interest and therefore ordinary income). 

If the terms of the Series 2019B Bonds are materially modified, in certain circumstances, a new debt obligation 

would be deemed created and exchanged for the prior obligation in a taxable transaction.  Among the modifications which 

may be treated as material are those which related to the redemption provisions and, in the case of a nonrecourse obligation, 

those which involve the substitution of collateral.  The defeasance of the Series 2019B Bonds may also result in a deemed 

sale or exchange of such Series 2019B Bonds under certain circumstances. 

EACH POTENTIAL HOLDER OF SERIES 2019B BONDS SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR 

CONCERNING (1) THE TREATMENT OF GAIN OR LOSS ON SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SERIES 2019B 

BONDS, AND (2) THE CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH SERIES 2019B BONDS WOULD BE DEEMED REISSUED 

AND THE LIKELY EFFECTS, IF ANY, OF SUCH REISSUANCE.  

Backup Withholding 

For each calendar year in which the Series 2019B Bonds are outstanding, FMPA, its agents or paying agents or a 

broker is required to provide the IRS with certain information, including a holder’s name, address and taxpayer identification 

number (either the holder’s Social Security number or its employer identification number, as the case may be), the aggregate 

amount of principal and interest paid to that holder during the calendar year and the amount of tax withheld, if any.  This 

obligation, however, does not apply with respect to certain U.S. Holders, including corporations, tax-exempt organizations, 

qualified pension and profit sharing trusts, and individual retirement accounts and annuities. 

If a U.S. Holder subject to the reporting requirements described above fails to supply its correct taxpayer 

identification number in the manner required by applicable law or under-reports its tax liability, FMPA, its agents or paying 

agents or a broker may be required to make “backup” withholding of tax on each payment of interest or principal on the 

Page 346 of 473



 

 - 48 - 

Series 2019B Bonds.  This backup withholding is not an additional tax and may be credited against the U.S. Holder’s federal 

income tax liability, provided that the U.S. Holder furnishes the required information to the IRS. 

Under current Treasury Regulations, backup withholding and information reporting will not apply to payments of 

interest made by FMPA, its agents (in their capacity as such) or paying agents or a broker to a Non-U.S. Holder if such 

holder has provided the required certification that it is not a U.S. person (as set forth in the second paragraph under “—Non-

U.S. Holders” above), or has otherwise established an exemption (provided that neither FMPA nor its agent has actual 

knowledge that the holder is a U.S. person or that the conditions of an exemption are not in fact satisfied). 

Payments of the proceeds from the sale of a Series 2019B Bond to or through a foreign office of a broker generally 

will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding.  However, information reporting (but not backup 

withholding) may apply to those payments if the broker is one of the following: 

 a U.S. person; 

 a controlled foreign corporation for U.S. tax purposes; 

 a foreign person 50-percent or more of whose gross income from all sources for the three-year period ending 

with the close of its taxable year preceding the payment was effectively connected with a United States trade 

or business; or 

 a foreign partnership with certain connections to the United States. 

Payment of the proceeds from a sale of a Series 2019B Bond to or through the United States office of a broker is 

subject to information reporting and backup withholding unless the holder or beneficial owner certifies as to its taxpayer 

identification number or otherwise establishes an exemption from information reporting and backup withholding. 

The preceding federal income tax discussion is included for general information only and may not be applicable 

depending upon a holder’s particular situation.  Holders should consult their tax advisors with respect to the tax 

consequences to them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2019B Bonds, including the tax consequences 

under federal, state, local, foreign and other tax laws and the possible effects of changes in those tax laws. 

Nonresident Bondowners 

The following is a general discussion of certain United States federal income tax consequences resulting from the 

beneficial ownership of Series 2019B Bonds by a person other than a U.S. Holder, a former United States citizen or resident, 

or a partnership or entity treated as a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes (a “Non-U.S. Holder”). 

Subject to the discussion of backup withholding and the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA”), 

payments of principal by FMPA or any of its agents (acting in its capacity as agent) to any Non-U.S. Holder will not be 

subject to federal withholding tax.  In the case of payments of interest to any Non-U.S. Holder, however, federal withholding 

tax will apply unless the Non-U.S. Holder (1) does not own (actually or constructively) 10-percent or more of the voting 

equity interests of FMPA, (2) is not a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes that is related to FMPA 

(directly or indirectly) through stock ownership, and (3) is not a bank receiving interest in the manner described in Section 

881(c)(3)(A) of the Code.  In addition, either (1) the Non-U.S. Holder must certify on the applicable IRS Form W-8 (series) 

(or successor form) to FMPA, its agents or paying agents or a broker under penalties of perjury that it is not a U.S. person 

and must provide its name and address, or (2) a securities clearing organization, bank or other financial institution, that 

holds customers’ securities in the ordinary course of its trade or business and that also holds the Series 2019B Bonds must 

certify to FMPA or its agent under penalties of perjury that such statement on the applicable IRS Form W-8 (series) (or 

successor form) has been received from the Non-U.S. Holder by it or by another financial institution and must furnish the 

interest payor with a copy. 

Interest payments may also be exempt from federal withholding tax depending on the terms of an existing Federal 

Income Tax Treaty, if any, in force between the U.S. and the resident country of the Non-U.S. Holder. The U.S. has entered 

into an income tax treaty with a limited number of countries. In addition, the terms of each treaty differ in their treatment 

of interest and original issue discount payments. Non-U.S. Holders are urged to consult their own tax advisor regarding the 

specific tax consequences of the receipt of interest payments, including original issue discount.  A Non-U.S. Holder that 

does not qualify for exemption from withholding as described above must provide FMPA or its agent with documentation 

Page 347 of 473



 

 - 49 - 

as to his, her, or its identity to avoid the U.S. backup withholding tax on the amount allocable to a Non-U.S. Holder.  The 

documentation may require that the Non-U.S. Holder provide a U.S. tax identification number. 

If a Non-U.S. Holder is engaged in a trade or business in the United States and interest on a Series 2019B Bond 

held by such holder is effectively connected with the conduct of such trade or business, the Non-U.S. Holder, although 

exempt from the withholding tax discussed above (provided that such holder timely furnishes the required certification to 

claim such exemption), may be subject to United States federal income tax on such interest in the same manner as if it were 

a U.S. Holder.  In addition, if the Non-U.S. Holder is a foreign corporation, it may be subject to a branch profits tax equal 

to 30% (subject to a reduced rate under an applicable treaty) of its effectively connected earnings and profits for the taxable 

year, subject to certain adjustments.  For purposes of the branch profits tax, interest on a Series 2019B Bond will be included 

in the earnings and profits of the holder if the interest is effectively connected with the conduct by the holder of a trade or 

business in the United States.  Such a holder must provide the payor with a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI (or 

successor form) to claim an exemption from United States federal withholding tax. 

Generally, any capital gain realized on the sale, exchange, retirement or other disposition of a Series 2019B Bond 

by a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to United States federal income or withholding taxes if (1) the gain is not 

effectively connected with a United States trade or business of the Non-U.S. Holder, and (2) in the case of an individual, 

the Non-U.S. Holder is not present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of the sale, exchange, 

retirement or other disposition, and certain other conditions are met. 

For newly issued or reissued obligations, such as the Series 2019B Bonds, FATCA imposes U.S. withholding tax 

on interest payments and, for dispositions after December 31, 2018 (see IRS Notice 2015-66), gross proceeds of the sale of 

the Series 2019B Bonds paid to certain foreign financial institutions (which is broadly defined for this purpose to generally 

include non-U.S. investment funds) and certain other non-U.S. entities if certain disclosure and due diligence requirements 

related to U.S. accounts or ownership are not satisfied, unless an exemption applies.  An intergovernmental agreement 

between the United States and an applicable non-U.S. country may modify these requirements. In any event, Bondholders 

or beneficial owners of the Series 2019B Bonds shall have no recourse against FMPA, nor will FMPA be obligated to pay 

any additional amounts to “gross up” payments to such persons, as a result of any withholding or deduction for, or on 

account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or government charges with respect to payments in respect of 

the Series 2019B Bonds. 

Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the possible applicability of federal 

withholding and other taxes upon income realized in respect of the Series 2019B Bonds. 

ERISA 

The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), imposes certain fiduciary 

obligations and prohibited transaction restrictions on employee pension and welfare benefit plans subject to Title I of ERISA 

(“ERISA Plans”). Section 4975 of the Code imposes essentially the same prohibited transaction restrictions on tax-qualified 

retirement plans described in Section 401(a) and 403(a) of the Code, which are exempt from tax under Section 501(a) of 

the Code, other than governmental and church plans as defined herein (“Qualified Retirement Plans”), and on Individual 

Retirement Accounts (“IRAs”) described in Section 408(b) of the Code (collectively, “Tax-Favored Plans”). Certain 

employee benefit plans such as governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA), and, if no election has been 

made under Section 410(d) of the Code, church plans (as defined in Section 3(33) of ERISA), are not subject to ERISA 

requirements. Additionally, such governmental and non-electing church plans are not subject to the requirements of Section 

4975 of the Code. Accordingly, assets of such plans may be invested in the Series 2019B Bonds without regard to the 

ERISA and Code considerations described below, subject to the provisions of applicable federal and state law. 

In addition to the imposition of general fiduciary obligations, including those of investment prudence and 

diversification and the requirement that a plan’s investment be made in accordance with the documents governing the plan, 

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit a broad range of transactions involving assets of ERISA Plans 

and Tax-Favored Plans and entities whose underlying assets include plan assets by reason of ERISA Plans or Tax-Favored 

Plans investing in such entities (collectively, “Benefit Plans”) and persons who have certain specified relationships to the 

Benefit Plans (“Parties In Interest” or “Disqualified Persons”), unless a statutory or administrative exemption is available. 

The definitions of “Party in Interest” and “Disqualified Person” are expansive.  While other entities may be encompassed 

by these definitions, they include, most notably: (1) fiduciary with respect to a plan; (2) a person providing services to a 

plan; and (3) an employer or employee organization any of whose employees or members are covered by the plan.  Certain 

Parties in Interest (or Disqualified Persons) that participate in a prohibited transaction may be subject to a penalty (or an 

Page 348 of 473



 

 - 50 - 

excise tax) imposed pursuant to Section 502(i) of ERISA (or Section 4975 of the Code) unless a statutory or administrative 

exemption is available. 

Certain transactions involving the purchase, holding or transfer of the Series 2019B Bonds might be deemed to 

constitute prohibited transactions under ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code if assets of FMPA were deemed to be assets 

of a Benefit Plan.  Under final regulations issued by the United States Department of Labor (the “Plan Assets Regulation”), 

the assets of FMPA would be treated as plan assets of a Benefit Plan for the purposes of ERISA and Section 4975 of the 

Code only if the Benefit Plan acquires an “equity interest” in FMPA and none of the exceptions contained in the Plan Assets 

Regulation is applicable.  An equity interest is defined under the Plan Assets Regulation as an interest in an entity other 

than an instrument which is treated as indebtedness under applicable local law and which has no substantial equity features.  

Although there can be no assurances in this regard, it appears that the Series 2019B Bonds should be treated as debt without 

substantial equity features for purposes of the Plan Assets Regulation.  This determination is based upon the traditional debt 

features of the Series 2019B Bonds, including the reasonable expectation of purchasers of Series 2019B Bonds that the 

Series 2019B Bonds will be repaid when due, traditional default remedies, as well as the absence of conversion rights, 

warrants and other typical equity features.  The debt treatment of the Series 2019B Bonds for ERISA purposes could change 

subsequent to issuance of the Series 2019B Bonds.  In the event of a withdrawal or downgrade to below investment grade 

of the rating of the Series 2019B Bonds or a characterization of the Bonds as other than indebtedness under applicable local 

law, the subsequent purchase of the Series 2019B Bonds or any interest therein by a Benefit Plan Investor is prohibited. 

However without regard to whether the Series 2019B Bonds are treated as an equity interest for such purposes, 

though, the acquisition or holding of Series 2019B Bonds by or on behalf of a Benefit Plan could be considered to give rise 

to a prohibited transaction if FMPA or the Issuing and Paying Agent, or any of their respective affiliates, is or becomes a 

Party in Interest or a Disqualified Person with respect to such Benefit Plan. 

Most notably, ERISA and the Code generally prohibit the lending of money or other extension of credit between 

an ERISA Plan or Tax-Favored Plan and a Party in Interest or a Disqualified Person, and the acquisition of any of the Series 

2019B Bonds by a Benefit Plan would involve the lending of money or extension of credit by the Benefit Plan.  In such a 

case, however, certain exemptions from the prohibited transaction rules could be applicable depending on the type and 

circumstances of the plan fiduciary making the decision to acquire a Series 2019B Bond.  Included among these exemptions 

are: Prohibited Transaction Class Exemption (“PTCE”) 96-23, regarding transactions effected by certain “in-house asset 

managers”; PTCE 90-1, regarding investments by insurance company pooled separate accounts; PTCE 95-60, regarding 

transactions effected by “insurance company general accounts”; PTCE 91-38, regarding investments by bank collective 

investment funds; and PTCE 84-14, regarding transactions effected by “qualified professional asset managers.”  Further, 

the statutory exemption in Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code provides for an exemption 

for transactions involving “adequate consideration” with persons who are Parties in Interest or Disqualified Persons solely 

by reason of their (or their affiliate’s) status as a service provider to the Benefit Plan involved and none of whom is a 

fiduciary with respect to the Benefit Plan assets involved (or an affiliate of such a fiduciary).  There can be no assurance 

that any class or other exemption will be available with respect to any particular transaction involving the Series 2019B 

Bonds, or that, if available, the exemption would cover all possible prohibited transactions. 

By acquiring a Series 2019B Bond (or interest therein), each purchaser and transferee (and if the purchaser or 

transferee is a Plan, its fiduciary) is deemed to represent and warrant that either (i) it is not acquiring the Series 2019B Bond 

(or interest therein) with the assets of a Benefit Plan Investor, governmental plan or church plan; or (ii) the acquisition and 

holding of the Series 2019B Bond (or interest therein) will not give rise to a nonexempt prohibited transaction under Section 

406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code.  Benefit Plan Investors may not purchase the Series 2019B Bonds at any time 

that the ratings on the Series 2019B Bonds are below investment grade or the Series 2019B Bonds have been characterized 

as other than indebtedness for applicable local law purposes.  A purchaser or transferee who acquires Series 2019B Bonds 

with assets of a Benefit Plan Investor represents that such purchaser or transferee has considered the fiduciary requirements 

of ERISA or other similar laws and has consulted with counsel with regard to the purchase or transfer. 

Any ERISA Plan fiduciary considering whether to purchase the Series 2019B Bonds on behalf of an ERISA Plan 

should consult with its counsel regarding the applicability of the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction 

provisions of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code to such in investment and the availability of any of the exemptions 

referred to above. Persons responsible for investing the assets of Tax-Favored Plans that are not ERISA Plans should seek 

similar counsel with respect to the prohibited transaction provisions of the Code and the applicability of any similar state or 

federal law. 

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Page 349 of 473



 

 - 51 - 

The issuance of the Offered Securities is subject to the approving opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New 

York, Bond Counsel, in substantially the form set forth in APPENDIX E attached hereto. Certain legal matters will be 

passed on for FMPA by Jody L. Finklea, Esquire, its General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer, and for the Underwriters by 

their counsel, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, New York, New York. 

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG PARTIES 

A portion of the proceeds of the Offered Securities will be used to refund the Series 2008C Bonds and pay 

Termination Payments in connection with terminating the 2008C Swap Agreements. BofA Securities, Inc., one of the 

Underwriters of the Offered Securities, is an affiliate of Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc., Bank of America Corp. and 

Bank of America, N.A. Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. is a counterparty to a 2008C Swap Agreement which will be 

terminated and is expected to receive a Termination Payment in connection with the termination, and Bank of America 

Corp. provides a guaranty for the same 2008C Swap Agreement.  Bank of America, N.A. provides an irrevocable letter of 

credit securing payments of the principal of and interest on the Series 2008C Bonds, which will be canceled in connection 

with the redemption of the Series 2008C Bonds.   

VALIDATION 

Judicial validation was not required by law for the issuance of the Offered Securities, and the Offered Securities 

have not been validated.  

FMPA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FMPA’s Annual Audit Report for its fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, included in APPENDIX C to this 

Official Statement, has been audited by Purvis Gray & Company, independent certified accounts, as stated in the Annual 

Audit Report. The Annual Audit Report contains information (on both an individual and combining basis) about the Project 

and the Other Projects of FMPA. The revenues of each Other Project are not security for the obligations of the Project, and 

the revenues of the Project are not security for any Other Project. See “OTHER FMPA PROJECTS.” 

Purvis Gray & Company, FMPA’s independent auditor has not reviewed, commented on or approved, and is not 

associated with, this Official Statement. The report of Purvis Gray & Company relating to the Annual Audit Report for the 

fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, which is a matter of public record, is included in this Official Statement, and Purvis 

Gray & Company has consented to the inclusion of such report in this Official Statement. However, Purvis Gray & Company 

has not performed any procedures on any financial statements or other financial information of FMPA, including without 

limitation any of the information contained in this Official Statement, since the date of such report. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE; ADDITIONAL FMPA INFORMATION 

Under the Resolution, Bondholders may, upon written request to FMPA, receive copies of FMPA’s annual audited 

financial statements. Bondholders also may inspect such materials during regular business hours at FMPA’s offices upon 

such reasonable terms and conditions as FMPA may from time to time determine in its sole discretion. Such materials are 

also available on FMPA’s website at https://fmpa.com/.  FMPA has committed to provide to Bondholders, upon request, 

copies of its annual audited financial statements, and other pertinent credit information, and has also committed to provide 

appropriate period credit information to the rating agencies which shall have rated FMPA securities. 

FMPA has authorized and will execute a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Undertaking”) with respect to 

the Offered Securities to assist the Underwriters in complying with U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-

12(b)(5). A summary of certain provisions of the Undertaking is included as APPENDIX G hereto. The Undertaking will 

be for the benefit of the Holders of the Offered Securities, and the beneficial owners of the Offered Securities will be third-

party beneficiaries thereof. Under the Undertaking, FMPA will be obligated to provide for itself and for the Major 

Participants financial information and operating data, financial statements, notice of certain events, and certain other notices 

with the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access System. The execution of the Undertaking is a condition precedent 

to the obligation of the Underwriters to purchase the Offered Securities. 

On two occasions one of the Major Participants in the Stanton and St. Lucie Projects did not timely provide 

information to the Agency, resulting in a late filing of that Participant’s information by the Agency. In both cases, the 

Agency timely filed a notice with the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access System regarding such Major 

Participant’s failure to provide such information. 

Page 350 of 473



 

 - 52 - 

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY FLORIDA BLUE SKY REGULATIONS 

Florida law requires FMPA to make a full and fair disclosure of any Offered Securities or other debt obligations 

which it has issued or guaranteed and which are or have been in default as to principal or interest at any time after December 

31, 1975. FMPA is not and has not been in default as to principal of and interest on Offered Securities or other debt 

obligations to which revenues of FMPA are pledged. 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  

Page 351 of 473



 

 - 53 - 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

The references herein to the Resolution, the Interlocal Agreement, the Joint Power Act, the Florida Interlocal 

Cooperation Act, the Power Supply Contracts and the Capacity and Energy Sales Contracts are brief outlines of certain 

provisions thereof. Such outlines do not purport to be complete and reference is made to such documents and agreements 

for full and complete statements of such provisions. Copies of such documents are on file at the offices of FMPA and may 

be obtained upon request. Any statements involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as 

such and not as representations of fact. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By:    

Chairperson of the Executive Committee 

By:    

General Manager and CEO 

 

Page 352 of 473



 

  A-1 

APPENDIX A 

 

MEMBERS’ PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS(1)(2)* 

 

Stanton Project(2) Stanton II Project(2) St. Lucie Project Tri-City Project 

All 

Requirements 

Project(3) 

Initial Pooled 

Loan 

Project(7) 

 Entitlement 

Share (%) MW 

Entitlement 

Share (%) MW 

Entitlement 

Share (%) MW 

Entitlement 

Share (%) MW MW  

City of Alachua – – – – 0.430% 0.4 – – – – 

City of Bushnell – – – – – – – – 6 X 

City of Clewiston – – – – 2.202 1.9 – – 27 – 

City of Fort Meade – – – – 0.336 0.3 – – 9(6) – 

Fort Pierce Utilities 

Authority 24.390% 15.9 16.4887% 17.2 15.206% 13.2 22.73% 5.3 112 – 

City of Green Cove 

Springs – – – – 1.757 1.5 – – 25 – 

Town of Havana – – – – – – – – 6 – 

City of Homestead 12.195 8.0 8.2443 8.6 8.269 7.2 22.727 5.3 – – 

City of 

Jacksonville 

Beach – – – – 7.329 6.3 – – 162 – 

Utility Board of the 

City of Key 

West, Florida – – 9.8932 10.3 – – 54.546 12.7 148 – 

Kissimmee Utility 

Authority 12.195 8.0 32.9774 34.5 9.405 8.1 – – 351 – 

City of Lake Worth 16.260 10.6 – – 24.870 21.5 – – 0(4) – 

City of Leesburg – – – – 2.326 2.0 – – 109 – 

City of Moore 

Haven – – – – 0.384 0.3 – – – – 

City of Newberry – – – – 0.184 0.2 – – 8 – 

Utilities 

Commission, 

City of New 

Smyrna Beach – – – – 9.884 8.6 – – – – 

City of Ocala – – – – – – – – 291 – 

City of St. Cloud – – 14.6711 15.3 – – – – – – 

City of Starke  2.439 1.6 1.2366 1.3 2.215 1.9 – – 15 – 

City of Vero Beach  32.521 21.3 16.4887 17.2 15.202 13.2 – – 0(5) – 

 100.00% 65.3 100.00% 104.4 100.00% 86.6 100.00% 23.3 1,270 N/A 

 
* Numbers may not add due to rounding. 

(1) The MWs shown for participants of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, and Tri-City Project are based on the current net summer capability as reported by 
OUC, the majority owner/operator to the Florida Public Service Commission in OUC’s annual Ten-Year Site Plan. 

(2) Power Entitlement Share means the percentage of Project Capability (the amount of net capacity and energy to which FMPA is entitled at any given point in time 

under the respective Participation Agreement, whether the unit is operating or not) that the Participant agrees to purchase from FMPA.  Such amount is also 
provided here by MW purchased. 

(3) Participants’ non-coincident peak demand in the 2018 fiscal year served from the FMPA All-Requirements Power Supply Project. Includes demand served by 

excluded resources.   
(4) The City of Lake Worth has elected under its Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power Supply Project participation and 

implement a CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated as 0 MW.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 

CONTRACTS – Contract Rate of Delivery.”  While the City of Lake Worth remains a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, effective January 

1, 2014, it no longer purchases capacity and energy from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and no longer has a representative on the Executive 

Committee.   
(5) Vero Beach elected under its Power Supply Contract to exercise its right to modify its All-Requirements Power Supply Project participation and implement a 

CROD, which limitation, pursuant to the terms of its Power Supply Contract, has been calculated as 0 MW. See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Contract 

Rate of Delivery (CROD).” Effective January 1, 2010, Vero Beach no longer purchased capacity and energy from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and 

no longer had a representative on the Executive Committee. On December 17, 2018, Vero Beach completed the sale of its electric utility system to Florida Power 
& Light Company (“FPL”) and withdrew as a member of FMPA and as a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and transferred and assigned 

to FMPA, with respect to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, the power sales and project support contracts between Vero Beach and FMPA relating to 

each of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project and St. Lucie Project, as amended.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS – Withdrawal of Vero Beach” for 
additional information regarding the expected withdrawal of Vero Beach as a participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project and as a member of FMPA. 

(6) Fort Meade has elected to limit its All-Requirements Service, as permitted in Section 3 of its Power Supply Contract, to a CROD. The limitation commenced 

January 1, 2015. Based on Fort Meade’s usage between December 2013 and November 2014, the Executive Committee took action in December 2014 to set Fort 
Meade’s CROD at 10.306 MW, which is the maximum hourly obligation through the remaining term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract. Concurrently with 

its notice of the CROD limitation, Fort Meade gave FMPA notice pursuant to Section 2 of the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract to discontinue the 

automatic renewal of the term of its Power Supply Contract. The term of Fort Meade’s Power Supply Contract is now fixed and will terminate on October 1, 2041. 

Page 353 of 473



 

 

In 2018, Fort Meade approved a supplemental power sales agreement with the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, for a minimum of 10 years, such that the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project will provide capacity and energy to Fort Meade as if Fort Meade had not effectuated CROD. Commensurate with this 
agreement, the FMPA Executive Committee adjusted Fort Meade’s CROD downward to 9.009 MW, in accordance with the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Contract. The agreement may be extended beyond the initial 10-year term.   
(7) X = The City of Bushnell is expected to have a loan outstanding as of October 1, 2019.   
 

 

Page 354 of 473



 

  A-1 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 355 of 473



 

B-1 

APPENDIX B 

 

THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS 

Appendix B presents certain information for the Major Participants which was collected and compiled by FMPA from data 

supplied by each of the Major Participants.  Major Participants in the all-Requirements Power Supply Project are defined as Kissimmee 

Utility Authority, City of Ocala, City of Jacksonville Beach and Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida.  Text descriptions were 

developed with each of the Major Participant’s representatives; statistical facts were extracted from records regularly maintained by 

each of the Major Participants; and historical financial data was summarized from each Major Participant’s independent certified audits. 

While FMPA makes no representations as to the adequacy or accuracy of the information contained in this Appendix B, it believes such 

information to be reliable. 

 

[Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  

Page 356 of 473



 

B-2 

 

 

KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY 

General 

The City of Kissimmee (“Kissimmee”) is approximately 18 miles south of Orlando and 7 miles east of the Walt Disney World 

Complex. Kissimmee is the county seat of Osceola County, the geographical center of Florida.  Kissimmee was incorporated in 1883 

and has a Commission/Manager form of government. The Kissimmee Utility Authority (“KUA”), which became effective October 1, 

1985, operates and maintains the electric system. Only the electric utility system revenues of KUA are available to make payments under 

the Power Sales and Project Support Contracts for the St. Lucie, Stanton and Stanton II Projects and its All-Requirements Power Supply 

Contract. 

The economy of Osceola County is primarily based upon tourism, cattle ranching and agriculture. 

Electric Utility System 

Kissimmee Utility Authority (“KUA”) has a 12.195% Power Entitlement Share (8.0 MW) from FMPA’s Stanton Project, a 

32.9774% Power Entitlement Share (34.7 MW) from FMPA’s Stanton II Project and a 9.405% Power Entitlement Share (8.1 MW) from 

FMPA’s St. Lucie Project under the terms of a Power Sales Contract and Project Support Contract for each of the applicable Projects. 

KUA entered into an All-Requirements Power Supply Contract with FMPA and became a full requirements customer as of October 1, 

2002. 

After the execution of the original Power Sales Contracts and Power Support Contracts relating to the Stanton and Stanton II 

Projects, KUA entered into (i) a transfer agreement with Homestead pursuant to which KUA assumed 50% (12.195%) of Homestead’s 

24.390% Power Entitlement Share in the Stanton Project and a transfer agreement pursuant to which KUA assumed 50% (8.24435%) 

of Homestead’s 16.4887% Power Entitlement Share in the Stanton II Project (the “Homestead Transferred Share”) and (ii) a transfer 

agreement with Lake Worth pursuant to which KUA assumed all of Lake Worth’s 8.2443% Power Entitlement Share in the Stanton II  

Project (the “Lake Worth Transferred Share”). 

In connection with the transfer of the Homestead Transferred Share to KUA, KUA in 1995 executed with FMPA an additional 

Power Sales Contract (an “Additional Power Sales Contract”) and an additional Project Support Contract (an “Additional Project 

Support Contract”). KUA also in 1995 executed a similar additional Power Sales Contract and Project Support Contract with FMPA in 

connection with the transfer to it of the Lake Worth Transferred Share. Under each Additional Power Sales Contract and Additional 

Project Support Contract, Homestead and Lake Worth are relieved of their respective obligations (including their payment obligations) 

with respect to their Transferred Shares if and to the extent KUA fulfills such obligations (including the payment obligations). If, 

however, KUA fails to perform any such obligation (including a payment obligation), then Homestead or Lake Worth (depending on 

which Transferred Share KUA is in default under) remains obligated under its Power Sales Contract or Project Support Contract to 

perform such obligation. 

KUA owns 50% of a combustion turbine unit (20 MW), 50% of a combined cycle unit (60 MW), and 50% of a combined cycle 

unit (125 MW) with the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. KUA turned over control and management of these units to FMPA in 

2008 but continues to operate them. KUA operates and maintains the generating units owned by FMPA, and FMPA’s interests in units 

located at the Cane Island Power Park. In addition, KUA has (i) a 4.8% (21 MW) undivided ownership interest in Stanton Energy Center 

Unit No. 1, which is operated by Orlando Utilities Commission (“OUC”); (ii) a 12.2% (11.2 MW) undivided ownership interest in the 

Indian River Combustion Turbine Units A and B, which are also operated by OUC; and (iii) a 3.5% (23 MW) ownership interest in 

Stanton Unit A, a gas-fired combined cycle unit located at OUC’s Stanton Energy Center site and operated by SCE. KUA is a member 

of and has contracted with FGU which acts as an agent to KUA and other Florida utilities. As a result of KUA joining the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project and entering into a Capacity and Energy Sales Contract with the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project, these facilities are treated as resources of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. In addition, under the Capacity and 

Energy Sales Contract, KUA has agreed to sell any capacity and energy from its Power Entitlement Shares in the Stanton Project and 

the Stanton II Project to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

KUA’s 230 kV and 69 kV transmission system includes interconnections with DEF, OUC, TECO and OUC/St. Cloud. Ten 

sub-stations supply the distribution system at voltages of 13.2 kV. The current system is approximately 66% underground and 34% 

overhead construction. Approximately 80% of all new distribution system installations are constructed underground. 

Service Area and Customers 

KUA’s electric utility service area encompasses approximately 85 square miles with Kissimmee’s 12.55 square-mile area 

near the center and 43% of electric customers served reside within the city limits. KUA has a FPSC approved territorial agreement 

with Duke Energy of Florida and OUC/St. Cloud, its neighboring utilities. 

Page 357 of 473



 

B-3 

No one electric customer accounted for more than 5% of the electric revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

Page 358 of 473



 

B-4 

KISSIMMEE UTILITY AUTHORITY 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017(7) 2018 

Customers (annual average)(2)  ........................................   66,258   67,889   69,919    71,770 73,968 
System Requirements 

 Peak Demands (MW)  .............................................   327   335   354   353  356 

 Energy (MWh)(3)  .....................................................   1,445   1,508   1,586   1,581  1,624 

Total Energy Sales (MWh)(3)  ..........................................   1,381   1,444   1,516   1,510  1,563 

      

Total Operating Revenues ...............................................  $171,772 $189,634 $183,733 $187,031 $214,362 

Operating Expenses:      

Total Power Production and Purchased Power ................  $117,730 $102,490 $106,275 $111,682 $112,215 
All Other Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)  .........................................  $  28,634 $  30,867 $  32,168 $  33,208 $  31,680 
Total Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)  .........................................  $146,364 $133,358 $138,444 $144,890 $143,895 
Net Operating Revenues 

 Available for Debt Service ......................................  $  25,408 $  56,276 $  45,289 $  42,141 $  70,467 

Other Income (Deductions)-Net ......................................  $       428 $       555 $       834 $    1,076 $    641 
Net Revenues and Other Income 

 Available for Debt Service ......................................  $  25,836 $  56,831 $  46,123 $  43,216 $  71,108 

Debt Service-Revenue Bonds ..........................................  $  20,698 $  27,307 $  17,977 $  17,987 $  20,263 
Debt Service Ratios 

 Actual ......................................................................  1.25x 2.08x 2.57x 2.40x 3.51x 
Required Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant ..........................................................  1.10x 1.10x 1.10x 1.10x 1.10x 
Balance available for renewals, 

replacements, capital additions 

and other lawful purposes ..........................................  $    5,139 $  29,524 $  28,146 $  25,229 $  50,845 
Transferred to General Fund 

 (Kissimmee)(4)  ........................................................  $  13,032 $  15,862 $  16,735 $  16,659 $  17,248 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017(7) 2018 
ASSETS: 

Capital Assets – Utility Plant ............................  $193,235 $210,241 

Restricted Assets ...............................................  95,376  72,466 

Other Assets ......................................................  86,840 77,993 

Current Assets ...................................................  74,868  95,303 

Deferred Outflow of Resources(5) ..................    2,209 1,062 

Total Assets ...................................................  $452,528 $457,066 

   
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Current Liabilities .............................................  $  20,847 $  22,147 

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets ........  33,829 36,537 

Long Term Debt ................................................  62,597 43,200 

Other Long-Term Liabilities .............................  28,193 25,466 

Total Liabilities .................................................  $145,466 $127,350 

Net Assets .........................................................  239,460 283,956 

Deferred Inflow of Resources(6) ........................  67,602 45,760 

Total Liabilities and Equity ...........................  $452,528 $457,066 
 

(1) Electric utility participation only. 
(2) Excludes internal customers effective Fiscal Year 2016. 
(3) Excluding sales to other electric utilities, if any. 
(4) Established by KUA at $6.24 mills per kWh sold and amended to 6.91 mills in October 2011. Fiscal Year 2015 is calculated as 7.6% of Electric 

Operating Revenues. 

Page 359 of 473



 

B-5 

(5) Represents unamortized loss on refunded debt. 
(6) Represents regulatory credits, self-insurance and rate stabilization funds. 
(7) Fiscal year 2017 was restated. 

 

  

Page 360 of 473



 

B-6 

CITY OF OCALA 

General 

The City of Ocala (“Ocala” or the “City”) is located in Marion County near the geographic center of the State of Florida, 

approximately 42 miles south of Gainesville and 91 miles north of Orlando.  Ocala operates under the City Council/City Manager form 

of government.  Ocala operates and maintains electric utility operations (the “Electric System”) and water and wastewater utility 

operations (the “Water and Sewer Utility”) which are integrated for bond issuance purposes and which are not integrated for purposes 

of the ARP.  The Electric System revenues will be available for payments under the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract.   

The City Manager oversees all the functions of the City of Ocala. The Water and Sewer and the Electric Utility report to the 

Deputy City Manager. The staff of the Electric Utility is under the direction of the Director of Ocala Electric Utility. 

The economy of Ocala and Marion County is diversified.  The three major payroll classifications in the private sector are:  

services (tourism), manufacturing and retail trade, in that order.  Next are wholesale trade and construction.  Agriculture and the 

thoroughbred horse industry are also major contributors to the area economy.  As the center of retail trade for a four county area, the 

City of Ocala and Marion County have each experienced growth in both retail sales and in the number of establishments catering to the 

retail sector. 

Electric Utility System 

Ocala entered into an All-Requirements Power Supply Contract with FMPA and became a full requirements customer of FMPA 

on May 1, 1986. At that time, Excluded Power Supply Resources for Ocala consisted of a 1.3333% ownership share in Duke Energy of 

Florida’s Crystal River 3 nuclear unit. The Crystal River 3 nuclear unit has since shut down and FMPA, on behalf of Ocala, negotiated 

a settlement with Duke Energy to completely divest Ocala from all ownership and obligations in the Crystal River 3 nuclear plant in 

2014. Today, Ocala comprises approximately 22% of the load served by FMPA. 

Ocala’s 230 kV and 69 kV transmission system include interconnections with Duke Energy of Florida and Seminole Electric 

Cooperative. Eighteen substations supply the distribution system at voltages of 12.47 kV. The distribution system contains 1,130 miles 

of electric lines. Ocala utilizes an advanced meter infrastructure system to remotely read its 76,000 electric and water meters. 

Ocala has 167 solar net meter accounts and 1.5 megawatts of customer owned photovoltaic capacity. Ocala is one of the ARP 

Solar Participants and will be receiving 10 MW of power from the NextEra Florida Renewables, LLC facility in Osceola County, Florida 

when it commences operation by 2020. 

Service Area and Customers 

Ocala’s service area encompasses approximately 171 square miles. Ocala has received FPSC approval of territorial agreements 

with Duke Energy, Clay Electric Cooperative and Sumter Electric Cooperative. The Clay Electric agreement is expired and under 

renegotiation with Clay Electric and we expect to file the new agreement with the FPSC by the second or third quarter of 2019. The 

Sumter Electric is also expired and under renegotiation at this time. We expect to file a new agreement with the FPSC by the end of 

2019. The Electric System has approximately 53,000 customers. Approximately sixty percent of the customers served by Ocala reside 

within the city limits. 

No one customer accounted for more than 5% of electric revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

  

Page 361 of 473



 

B-7 

CITY OF OCALA 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Customers (annual average) 51,007 51,702 52,340 52,834 53,292 

System Requirements 

 Peak Demands (MW) 285 287 295 291 297 

 Energy (MWh) .............................................  1,263,334 1,294,771 1,336,618 1,296,507 1,327,133 

Total Energy Sales (MWh) ..................................  1,220,551 1,249,859 1,295,215 1,261,604 1,273,834 

      

Total Operating Revenues ....................................  $149,081 $143,367 $143,791 $149,363 $151,401 

Operating Expenses:      

Total Power Production and Purchased Power .....  $106,193 $  99,167 $  99,389 $102,760 $  97,606 

All Other Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)...............................  $  23,335 $  22,262 $  27,536 $  32,088 $  31,643 

Total Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation)...............................  $129,528 $121,429 $126,925 $134,848 $129,249 

Net Operating Revenues 

 Available for Debt Service ...........................  $  19,553 $  21,938 $  16,866 $  14,515 $  22,152 

Other Income (Deductions)–Net ..........................  $       737 $       975 — $       426 $         37 

Net Revenues and Other Income 

 Available for Debt Service ...........................  $  20,290 $  22,913 $  16,866 $  14,941 $  22,189 

Debt Service–Revenue Bonds ..............................  $       362 — — — — 

Debt Service–Utility Systems Revenue Bonds  $    3,301 $    3,358 $    4,650 $    4,555 $    4,683 

Debt Service Ratios 

 Actual (1) .......................................................  5.54x 6.82x 3.63x 3.28x 4.74x 

Required Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant ..............................................  1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 

Balance available for renewals, 

replacements, capital additions 

and other lawful purposes ..............................  $ 16,627 $  19,555 $  12,216 $  10,386 $  17,506 

Transferred to General Fund 

 (Ocala)(2) ...................................................... 

  $   9,263 $    6,719 $    7,832 $  11,882 $  13,049 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(3) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017 2018 

ASSETS: 

Net Utility Plant ................................................  $115,804 $114,778 

Restricted Assets ...............................................  37,601  35,026 

Current Assets ...................................................  69,314  62,986 

Deferred Outflow ..............................................  10,704 9,726 

Total Asset and Deferred Outflows ...............  $233,423 $222,516 

   

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Current Liabilities .............................................  $  28,146 $  29,931 

Other Liabilities ................................................  28,717  27,490 

Deferred Inflow .................................................  33,898  27,784 

Retained Earnings .............................................  90,804  88,143 

Long-Term Debt ...............................................  51,858 49,168 

Total Liabilities, Equity and  

Deferred Inflows ....................................  $233,423 $222,516 

 
(1) The coverage shown is based on electric revenues; however, the pledge under the bond resolution is of both the Electric System and the Water 

and Sewer Utility. 
(2) For Fiscal Year 2012 through 2015, the General Fund transfer is based on 6% of revenues. For Fiscal Year 2016, the General Fund transfer is 

based on 7% of revenues. 
(3) Electric utility operations. 

 

  

Page 362 of 473



 

B-8 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

General 

The City of Jacksonville Beach (“Jacksonville Beach”) is located in Duval County approximately 18 miles east of Jacksonville. 

Jacksonville Beach operates under the Council/Manager form of government.  

The City of Jacksonville Beach operates and maintains electric, natural gas, water and wastewater utility operations.  As a 

matter of policy, revenue financing combines the resources of all utility operations; thus, these utility services are integrated and revenues 

from all services are available to make payments under the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract.  As the Chief Administrative 

Officer, the City Manager appoints the Director of Electric Utilities. 

Jacksonville Beach is a residential and commercial community whose citizens, for the most part, work in the metropolitan 

Jacksonville area. Additionally, Jacksonville Beach is a major recreation area for the people of Duval County, Florida. 

Electric Utility System 

Jacksonville Beach entered into an All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract with FMPA and became a full 

requirements customer of FMPA on May 1, 1986.  Excluded Power Supply Resources for Jacksonville Beach are its entitlement share 

in FMPA’s St. Lucie Project (which is 7.329% of FMPA’s ownership portion of St. Lucie Unit No. 2). Jacksonville Beach d/b/a Beaches 

Energy Services owns one 230 kV transmission substation that ties to both FPL and JEA. Beaches Energy Services owns five (5) 

distribution substations, which deliver energy at the 26 kV level. Approximately 82% of Beaches Energy Services distribution circuits 

are underground. 

Service Area and Customers 

The Jacksonville Beach electric utility service area encompasses approximately 45 square miles including the neighboring 

town of Neptune Beach as well as the unincorporated areas of Ponte Vedra Beach and Palm Valley located in northeast St. Johns 

County. Forty-one (41) percent of the customers served reside within the Jacksonville Beach city limits. 

No one customer accounted for more than 5% of electric revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018. 

  

Page 363 of 473



 

B-9 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Customers (annual average) .......................  33,966  34,433 34,552 34,739 34,815 
System Requirements 

 Peak Demands (MW) .........................  192 195 196  171   211 

 Energy(MWh) ....................................  733,793  738,958 757,400  721,088 744,119 

Total Energy Sales(MWh) .........................  699,005  716,233 720,318  693,254 708,266 

Total Operating Revenues ..........................  $97,012  $93,588 $82,096 $94,447 $97,814 

Operating Expenses:      

Total Purchased Power ...............................  $63,520  $59,230 $57,970 $56,884 $57,226 
All Other Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation) .....................  $15,239  $15,515 $10,487 $19,642 $19,792 
Total Operating Expenses 

 (excluding depreciation) .....................  $78,759  $74,745 $68,457 $76,526 $77,018 
Net Operating Revenues 

 Available for Debt Service .................  $18,253  $18,843 $13,639 $17,921 $20,796 

Other Income (Deductions)—Net ..............  $     659  $     754 $     615 $  1,515 $     843 
Net Revenues and Other Income 

 Available for Debt Service .................  $18,912 $19,597 $14,254 $19,436 $21,639 

Debt Service—Revenue Bonds ..................  $  4,570 $  4,518 $  4,498 $  4,457 $  4,432 
Debt Service Ratios 

 Actual .................................................  4.14x 4.34x 3.17x 4.36x 4.88x 
Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant ....................................................  1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 
Balance available for renewals, 

 replacements, capital additions 

 and other lawful purposes ...................  $14,342 $15,079 $  9,756 $14,979 $17,207 
Transferred to General Fund 

 (Jacksonville Beach)(2) .......................  $  3,608 $  3,670 $  3,689 $  3,858 $  3,900 

      

 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017 2018 

ASSETS: 

Net Utility Plant ..................................  $159,788 $163,317 

Restricted Assets .................................  9,829 9,761 

Current Assets .....................................  107,503 111,261 

Total Asset ......................................  $277,120 $284,339 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Current Liabilities ...............................  $  57,952 $  59,085 

Retained Earnings ...............................  199,729 209,558 

Long Term Debt ..................................  19,439 15,696 

Total Liabilities and Equity .............  $277,120 $284,339 

 
(1) Electric, water, and wastewater utility. 
(2) Established by Jacksonville Beach ordinance at a maximum 5.5 mills per kWh purchased.  

Page 364 of 473



 

B-10 

UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF KEY WEST, FLORIDA 

General 

The City of Key West was first incorporated in 1828 and is the County seat of Monroe County, Florida. It is located near the 

southern extreme of the Florida Keys, a string of coral islands extending in a southwesterly arc from Biscayne Bay to the Dry Tortugas, 

and lies further south than any other point in the continental United States. The Utility Board of the City of Key West, Florida (the 

“Board”) operates the municipally owned electric generation, transmission and distribution facilities in the service area. 

The Board is composed of five members who are elected for terms of four years by the registered electors of the City of Key 

West in even years.  Beginning in 2018, the five members will be elected by the registered electors in the utility’s service area from Key 

West to the northeastern most end of the Seven Mile Bridge. During its organizational meeting, the five members select one member to 

serve as the Chairman for two years. The Board appoints the Manager of the electric utility System. Only electric system revenues are 

available for making payments under the Power Sales Contract and the Project Support Contract for the Tri-City and Stanton II Projects 

and the All-Requirements Power Supply Contract. 

Electric Utility System 

The Utility Board now operates under the name Keys Energy Services (“KEYS”). 

In July 1997, KEYS agreed to become a member of FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project and began operations as 

a project participant effective April 1, 1998. On January 1, 2011, the Capacity and Energy Sales Contract was restructured to become 

the Revised, Amended and Restated Capacity and Energy Sales Contract (C&E Contract). Under the terms of this contract FMPA took 

over operational control and ownership risk for KEYS Stock Island generating units. FMPA has hired KEYS to maintain and operate 

the generating units through the Consolidated Operating and Maintenance Contract for the Stock Island Generating Facility also dated 

January 1, 2011. KEYS retains ownership of the Stock Island land, subject to certain easement and leasehold rights granted to FMPA. 

FMPA will utilize the generating units to provide capacity and energy to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project in 

exchange for $670,000 per year for ten years to be paid by FMPA to KEYS, and the other negotiated agreements of the parties to affect 

a True All-Requirements Project (TARP). At the end of ten years full ownership will transfer to FMPA.   

Under the contractual arrangement with FMPA, KEYS has assigned all of its generating and firm purchased power resources 

to FMPA, and FMPA will serve all of KEYS’ requirements.  

Further, in the event that power cannot be delivered to KEYS’ service area over the tie line from the mainland, KEYS has 

established a policy to have island generation capability equal to at least 60% of KEYS’ peak load. FMPA has agreed to meet these 

criteria by using the existing synchronized generating resources of four combustion turbine units and two medium speed diesels that 

currently total 111.0 MW. As part of the C&E contract, FMPA is required to maintain generation assets within KEYS’ Service Area 

equal to or above 60% of KEYS’ load. The related assignment of resources by KEYS to FMPA, and other matters pertaining to KEYS’ 

power supply are discussed in the following paragraphs. 

KEYS had previously entered into other purchased power agreements with other parties including the FMPA Tri-City Project 

(Stanton 1) and the FMPA Stanton 2 Project. As a member of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, KEYS’ resources and costs 

under these two contracts have been assigned to FMPA.   

Service Area and Customers 

The service area of KEYS consists of the lower Florida Keys, extending approximately 44 miles in an east-west direction from 

Pigeon Key, adjacent to the service area of the Florida Keys Electric Cooperative Association, Inc. to the City of Key West, representing 

approximately 74 square miles. 

The United States Navy is the largest customer of KEYS and accounted for approximately 7.0% of the total kilowatt hours sold 

in both fiscal year 2018 and fiscal year 2017.   

KEYS’ contract with the Navy is for a term of ten years with a provision which requires the parties to commence negotiations 

for a new contract at least one year prior to the end of the current contract. The contract also contains provisions for minimum billing, 

service reduction and exclusive service provisions. Pursuant to this contract, KEYS has agreed to provide a maximum of 15 MW of 

power at multiple locations.   

Page 365 of 473



 

B-11 

On September 12, 2007, both parties signed a contract (the “2007 contract”) which was in effect through August 31, 2017. 

Contract negotiations are being pursued by KEYS; and, the Navy is currently being served non-contractually. 

  

Page 366 of 473



 

B-12 

UTILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF KEY WEST, FLORIDA 

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For The Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2014 2015 2016 2017(3) 2018(2) 

Customers (annual average). .......................       30,859       30,989       31,303        30,109  30,009 
      
System Requirements      

Peak Demands (MW) ..........................           144          147           148          148 146 
Energy(MWh) .....................................     770,420    779,772     800,265     764,396 746,553 

Total Energy Sales(MWh) ..........................     726,995    730,085     753,051     724,492 698,893 
      
Total Operating Revenues ...........................  $96,295 $86,875 $89,843 $92,695 $87,636 
Operating Expenses:      
Total Power Production and Power Supply .   $52,692  $45,567  $46,745  $51,341 $44,486 
All Other Operating Expenses  

(excluding depreciation and Unfunded 

OPEB) .................................................   $25,837  $27,408  $27,266  $29,457 $29,808 
Total Operating Expenses  

(excluding depreciation and Unfunded 

OPEB) .................................................   $78,529  $72,975  $74,011  $80,798 $74,294 
Net Operating Revenues  

Available for Debt Service ..................   $17,766  $13,900  $15,832  $11,897 $13,342 
Other Income (Deductions)—Net ...............   $  4,170  $  4,745  $  2,608  $  5,419 $  3,288 
Net Revenues and Other Income  

Available for Debt Service ..................   $21,936  $18,645  $18,440  $17,316 $16,630 
Debt Service–Revenue Bonds .....................   $11,259  $11,228  $11,153  $11,153 $11,153 
Debt Service Ratios      

Actual ..................................................  1.95x 1.66x 1.65x 1.55x 1.49x 
Required Per Bond Resolution Rate 

Covenant .....................................  1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 
Balance available for renewals, 

replacements, capital additions and 

other lawful purposes ..........................   $10,677  $  7,417  $  7,287  $  6,163 $  5,477 
Transferred to General Fund  

(City of Key West) ..............................   $     419  $     395  $     391  $     429  $     423 

 
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET(1) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

 2017(3) 2018 
ASSETS: 

Net Utility Plant ...............................  $153,761 $168,213 

Restricted Assets .............................  23,045 30,783 

 Assets .............................................  58,876 71,717 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,445 8,944 

Total Assets .................................  $249,127 $279,657 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 

Liabilities .........................................  $104,177 $157,981 

Retained Earnings ............................  91,507 52,369 

Long Term Debt ..............................  53,243 44,272 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 200 25,035 

Total Liabilities and Equity .........  $249,127 $279,657 

 
(1) Electric utility only. 
(2) Fiscal year 2017 was restated. 
(3) Subsequent to the end of the 2018 fiscal year, KEYS issued bonds in the principal amount of $60,000,000. 

Page 367 of 473



 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 368 of 473



 

 C-1 

APPENDIX C 

 

FMPA’S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR ITS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

 

Page 369 of 473



 

 D-1 

APPENDIX D 

 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 

RESOLUTION AND POWER SUPPLY CONTRACTS 

This Appendix contains summaries of certain provisions of FMPA’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as 

supplemented and amended, including as supplemented and amended by the Supplemental and Amendatory All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Governance Amendments) adopted May 24, 2007 

and as supplemented by the Series 2019A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond 

Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the Series 2019B 

Bonds, each adopted on [________], 2019 (collectively, the “Supplemental Resolution” and, together with the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution, the “Resolution”); and (ii) separate All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Contracts, as amended and restated (the “All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts”) between 

FMPA and the Participants. These summaries are not to be considered full statements of the terms of the respective 

documents and accordingly are qualified by the reference to such respective documents and subject to the full text 

thereof. Copies of such documents may be obtained from FMPA on request. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined 

herein have the meanings set forth in the respective documents or the Official Statement. 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 

OF THE RESOLUTION 

The following is a general summary of certain provisions of the Resolution. Certain additional provisions 

relating specifically to the Offered Securities issued pursuant to the Supplemental Resolution and Bond Series 

Certificate are presented under “DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFERED SECURITIES” and “SECURITY AND 

SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE OFFERED SECURITIES.” 

Definitions 

Accrued Aggregate Debt Service shall mean, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the sum of 

the amounts of accrued Debt Service with respect to all Series and all Parity Debt, calculating the accrued Debt Service 

with respect to each Series at an amount equal to the sum of (i) interest on the Bonds of such Series and all Parity Debt 

accrued and unpaid and to accrue to the end of the then current calendar month, and (ii) Principal Installments due 

and unpaid and that portion of the Principal Installment for such Series and such Parity Debt next due which would 

have accrued (if deemed to accrue in the manner set forth in the definition of Debt Service) to the end of such calendar 

month; provided, however that there shall be excluded from the calculation of Accrued Aggregate Debt Service any 

Principal Installments which are Refundable Principal Installments. 

Adjusted Aggregate Debt Service for any period means, as of any date of calculation, the Aggregate Debt 

Service for such period except that, if any Refundable Principal Installment for any Series of Bonds is included in 

Aggregate Debt Service for such period, Adjusted Aggregate Debt Service shall mean Aggregate Debt Service 

determined as if each such Refundable Principal Installment had been payable, over a period extending from the due 

date of such Principal Installment through the later of the 35th anniversary of the issuance of such Series of Bonds or 

the 10th anniversary of the due date of such Principal Installments, in installments which would have required equal 

annual payments of principal and interest over such period. Interest deemed payable in any Fiscal Year after the actual 

due date of any Refundable Principal Installment of any Series of Bonds shall be calculated at the weighted average 

rate of interest actually payable on the Bonds of such Series at the time the calculation is made or such higher rate as 

FMPA determines appropriate. 

Aggregate Debt Service for any period means, as of any date of calculation, the sum of the amounts of Debt 

Service for such period with respect to all Series and all Parity Debt; provided, however, that for purposes of 

calculating or estimating Aggregate Debt Service for any future period (except as otherwise specifically provided in 

the Resolution): (A) any Variable Interest Rate Bonds shall be deemed to bear interest at all times prior to the maturity 

date thereof for which the interest rate payable thereon has not yet been determined at the Estimated Average Interest 

Rate applicable thereto; (B) any Bonds, other than Variable Interest Rate Bonds, in respect of which FMPA has entered 

Page 370 of 473



 

 D-2 

into a Qualified Swap shall during the period for which such Qualified Swap is in effect be deemed to bear interest at 

the highest of the fixed rate or the maximum interest rate payable on such Bonds or pursuant to such Qualified Swap; 

(C) any Put Bonds Outstanding during such period which by their terms are not required to be paid by FMPA upon 

tender by the Holder thereof shall be assumed to mature on the stated maturity date thereof; (D) any Put Bonds 

Outstanding during such period which by their terms are required to be paid by FMPA upon tender by the Holder 

thereof shall be assumed to mature on the earliest to occur of (1) the stated maturity date thereof, (2) the date provided 

in an applicable Supplemental Resolution, or (3) if the Bond Support Facility securing such Put Bonds expires within 

six months or fewer of the date of calculation and has not been renewed or replaced, the expiration date of such Bond 

Support Facility; I the principal amount of any Put Bonds tendered for payment by FMPA which are required to be 

paid by FMPA which have not yet been purchased in lieu of such payment by FMPA shall be deemed to mature on 

the date required to be paid pursuant to such tender; and (F) subject to the provisions of the Supplemental Resolution 

authorizing any Extendible Maturity Bonds, Extendible Maturity Bonds Outstanding during such period shall be 

deemed to mature on the later of the stated maturity date or the date to which such stated maturity date has been 

extended. 

Annual Budget shall mean the annual budget, as amended or supplemented, adopted or in effect for a 

particular Fiscal Year as provided in the Resolution. 

Bond or Bonds shall mean any bond or bonds, note or notes, or other evidences of indebtedness (other than 

Subordinated Debt), as the case may be, authenticated and delivered under and pursuant to the Resolution. 

Bond Series Certificate means a certificate of an Authorized Officer fixing terms, conditions and other 

details of the Bonds or Parity Debt, in accordance with the delegation of power to do so under a Supplemental 

Resolution. 

Bond Support Facility means any irrevocable letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement, line of 

credit, policy of bond insurance, surety bond, guarantee or similar instrument which is obtained by FMPA and is 

issued by a financial, insurance or other institution and which provides security or liquidity in respect of the Bonds of 

any Series (and with respect to a policy of bond insurance guarantees the payment of principal of and interest on the 

Bonds), not including any Reserve Account Credit Facility. 

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the State of Florida or a day 

on which banks in New York City are authorized by law or executive order to close. 

Contingency Requirement shall mean, at any date of calculation, with respect to the Contingency Account 

in the Reserve and Contingency Fund, such amount as at the date of calculation shall have been established by FMPA 

as the Contingency Requirement in its Annual Budget which is then in effect. 

Cost of Acquisition and Construction means all costs, expenses and liabilities of FMPA related to the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project or the System which on the date hereof or in the future shall be permitted to be 

funded with the proceeds of Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Act or any other applicable laws of the State of 

Florida. 

Credit Facility shall mean an irrevocable letter of credit, surety bond, loan agreement, Standby Purchase 

Agreement or other agreement, facility or insurance or guaranty arrangement issued or extended by a bank, a trust 

company, a national banking association, an organization subject to registration with the Board of Governors of the 

Federal Reserve System under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 or any successor provisions of law, a federal 

branch pursuant to the International Banking Act of 1978 or any successor provisions of law, a savings bank, a saving 

and loan association, an insurance company or association chartered or organized under the laws of any state of the 

United States of America, the Government National Mortgage Association or any successor thereto, the Federal 

National Mortgage Association or any successor thereto, or any other federal agency or instrumentality approved by 

FMPA, pursuant to which FMPA is entitled to obtain monies to pay the principal, purchase price or Redemption Price 

of Bonds due in accordance with their terms or tendered for purchase or redemption, plus accrued interest thereon to 

the date of payment, purchase or redemption thereof in accordance with the Resolution, whether or not FMPA is in 

default under the Resolution. 

Page 371 of 473



 

 D-3 

Debt Service for any period shall mean, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any Series or any 

Parity Debt, an amount equal to the sum of (i) interest accruing during such period on Bonds of such Series and all 

additional interest amounts to accrue to the end of such period pursuant to any related Parity Debt, except to the extent 

that such interest is to be paid from deposits made from Bond proceeds into the Debt Service Account in the Debt 

Service Fund (including amounts, if any, transferred thereto from the Construction Fund), and (ii) that portion of each 

Principal Installment for such Series and such Parity Debt which would accrue during such period if such Principal 

Installment were deemed to accrue daily in equal amounts from the next preceding Principal Installment due date for 

such Series and such Parity Debt (or, if there shall be no such preceding Principal Installment due date, from a date 

one year preceding the due date of such Principal Installment or from the date of issuance of the Bonds of such Series 

and such Parity Debt, whichever date is later). Such interest and Principal Installments for such Series shall be 

calculated on the assumption that (x) no Bonds (except for Put Bonds actually tendered for payment or for purchase 

in accordance with the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the Series of Bonds of which such Bond is one prior to 

the stated maturity thereof and not purchased or remarketed on the date required to be paid or purchased) of such 

Series Outstanding at the date of calculation will cease to be Outstanding except by reason of the payment of each 

Principal Installment on the due date thereof and (y) the principal amount of Put Bonds tendered for payment before 

the stated maturity thereof shall be deemed to accrue on the date required to be paid pursuant to such tender. 

Debt Service Reserve Requirement shall mean, with respect to a particular Series of Bonds, the amount, if 

any, set forth in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds. Any amounts on deposit in the Debt 

Service Reserve Account for such Bonds shall, unless otherwise provided in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing 

such Bonds, secure only such Outstanding Bonds (and related Parity Reimbursement Obligations) and shall not be 

available to pay Debt Service on any other Bonds from time to time Outstanding hereunder. 

Extendible Maturity Bonds shall mean Bonds the maturities of which, by their terms, may be extended by 

and at the option of the Holder thereof. 

Net Revenues for any period means the Revenues during such period, determined on an accrual basis, plus 

(x) the amounts, if any, transferred from the Rate Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund into 

the Revenue Fund during such period and minus (y) the sum of (a) Operation and Maintenance Expenses during such 

period, determined on an accrual basis, to the extent paid or to be paid from Revenues and (b) the amounts, if any, 

accrued in the Revenue Fund for transfer to the Rate Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund 

during such period. 

Option Bonds shall mean both Extendible Maturity Bonds and Put Bonds. 

Put Bonds shall mean Bonds which by their terms may be tendered by and at the option of the Holder thereof 

for payment by FMPA or purchase and remarketing prior to the stated maturity or redemption date thereof either (a) 

by FMPA and by the Person and/or from the source specified in a Supplemental Resolution or (b), without recourse 

to FMPA by the Person and/or from the source specified in a Supplemental Resolution; provided, however, that such 

payment by FMPA shall in all events be required to be supported by a Bond Support Facility. 

Refundable Principal Installment means any Principal Installment for any Series of Bonds which FMPA 

intends to pay with monies which are not Revenues, provided that such intent shall have been expressed in the 

Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds and provided further that such Principal Installment shall 

be a Refundable Principal Installment only through the first day of the twelfth month preceding the month in which 

such Principal Installment comes due or such earlier time as FMPA no longer intends to pay such Principal Installment 

with monies which are not Revenues. 

Revenues shall mean (i) all revenues, income, rents, user fees or charges and receipts derived by FMPA from 

or attributable to the ownership and operation of the System, including all revenues attributable to the System or to 

the payment of the costs thereof received by FMPA under any contract for the sale of power, energy, transmission, 

dispatching or other service from the System or any part thereof or any contractual arrangement with respect to the 

use of the System or any portion thereof or the services, output or capacity thereof, (ii) the proceeds of any insurance  

covering business interruption loss relating to the System and (iii) interest received on any monies or securities held 

pursuant to the Resolution and paid or required to be paid into the Revenue Fund. Revenues shall not include any 

amounts paid to FMPA pursuant to a Qualified Swap or similar financial arrangements. 

Page 372 of 473



 

 D-4 

[System means all items of real and personal property, all interests in or rights to the use of services, output 

or capacity acquired or purchased by FMPA for the purposes of, or designated by FMPA to be used for the purpose 

of, meeting its obligations under the All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts, which now or in the future shall be 

permitted to be included in the System pursuant to the provisions of the Act or other applicable laws of the State of 

Florida. Unless otherwise provided by action of the Agency designating such items as part of the System, the System 

shall not include FMPA’s 8.806% undivided ownership interest in St. Lucie Unit No. 2, or any rights to receive any 

electric capacity or energy therefrom; any rights to receive electric capacity and energy pursuant to the St. Lucie 

Nuclear Reliability Exchange Agreement, dated March 26, 1982, as amended, or the St. Lucie Replacement Power 

Agreement, dated February 11, 1982; or FMPA’s 14.8193% undivided ownership interest in Stanton Unit No. 1 

acquired pursuant to the Stanton Unit No. 1 Participation Agreement dated as of January 16, 1984, as amended (the 

“Stanton Project”); or FMPA’s 5.3012% undivided ownership interest in Stanton Unit No. 1 acquired pursuant to 

Stanton Unit No. 1 Participation Agreement dated as of March 22, 1985, as amended (the “Tri-City Project”); 

provided, however, that certain Project Participants having Entitlement Shares in the Tri-City Project, Stanton Project, 

Stanton II Project and/or St. Lucie Project have agreed to sell and make available to FMPA for the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project, the capacity and energy from such Entitlement Shares pursuant to the Capacity and Energy 

Sales Contracts between FMPA and such Project Participants and the right to receive such capacity and energy shall 

be a part of the System. Notwithstanding the foregoing definition of the term System, such term shall not include any 

properties, rights or interests in properties of FMPA which FMPA determines shall not constitute a part of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project or the System for the purposes of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contracts.] 

Trust Estate shall mean (i) the proceeds of the sale of Bonds, (ii) all right, title and interest of FMPA in, to 

and under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, (iii) the Revenues, and (iv) all Funds established by 

the Resolution (other than the Decommissioning Fund) including the investments, if any, thereof, and the same are 

hereby pledged and assigned, subject only to the provisions of the Resolution permitting the application thereof for 

the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Resolution. 

Pledge 

The Bonds and any Parity Debt shall be special obligations of FMPA payable solely from and secured as to 

the payment of the principal and Redemption Price thereof, and interest thereon, in accordance with their terms and 

the provisions of the Resolution solely by the Trust Estate. 

Application Of Revenues 

Revenues are pledged by the Resolution to payment of principal and redemption price of and interest on the 

Bonds, subject to the provisions of the Resolution permitting application thereof for other purposes. The Resolution 

establishes the following Funds and Accounts: 

Funds Held by: 

  

Construction Fund  Trustee 

Revenue Fund   FMPA 

Operation and Maintenance Fund   FMPA 

 Operation and Maintenance 

Account 

 

 Working Capital Account  

 Rate Stabilization Account  

Debt Service Fund   Trustee 

 Debt Service Account  

 Debt Service Reserve Account  

Subordinated Debt Fund   Held as determined by 

the Supplemental 

Resolution 

Reserve and Contingency Fund   FMPA 

Page 373 of 473



 

 D-5 

 Renewal and Replacement 

Account 

 

Contingency Account  

General Reserve Fund   FMPA 

 

Pursuant to the Resolution, all Revenues are to be deposited promptly by FMPA upon receipt thereof into 

the Revenue Fund. Each month, amounts in the Revenue Fund are to be paid to the following Funds in the order of 

priority for application therefrom as follows: 

 To the credit of the Operation and Maintenance Account, the Working Capital Account and the Rate 

Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the respective amounts which are equal to (i) 

in respect to the Operation and Maintenance Account, the amount required so that the balance credited to 

such Account shall equal the amount estimated to be necessary for the payment of Operation and 

Maintenance Expenses for the next succeeding calendar month and (ii) in respect to the Working Capital 

Account and the Rate Stabilization Account, the amount required so that the balance credited to such 

Accounts equals the monies budgeted to be on credit to said Accounts in the Annual Budget for the next 

succeeding calendar month. Amounts credited to the Operation and Maintenance Account will be applied by 

FMPA to the payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses. Amounts credited to the Working Capital 

Account shall, at the direction of FMPA, (i) be credited to the Operation and Maintenance Account, (ii) be 

applied directly to any of the purposes for which amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Account could 

be applied, (iii) to the extent provided in the current Annual Budget, be transferred to the Debt Service 

Account, or (iv) to the extent that such amounts were not credited thereto from the proceeds of the  Bonds, 

be credited to the Reserve and Contingency Fund or to the Decommissioning Fund, if then created. Amounts 

credited to the Rate Stabilization Account shall, at the direction of FMPA, (i) to the extent provided in the 

current Annual Budget, be credited to or transferred to, as appropriate, any other Fund or Account held under 

the Resolution, (ii) be applied to make up deficiencies in the Debt Service Account and the Debt Service 

Reserve Account except deficiencies in the Debt Service Reserve Account due to transfers to the Debt Service 

Account, (iii) be paid to each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider to reimburse such provider for any 

amounts advanced under its Reserve Account Credit Facility, (iv) be applied to make up deficiencies in the 

Debt Service Reserve Account due to transfers to the Debt Service Account, and (v) be applied to make up 

deficiencies in the Renewal and Replacement Account and the Contingency Account. The Resolution 

provides for the application of excess amounts in the Operation and Maintenance Account to make up any 

deficiencies in certain other Funds established under the Resolution, with any balance to be deposited in the 

General Reserve Fund. The determination of the amounts and application of any such excess amounts shall 

be made by FMPA. 

 For deposit into the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund, the amounts required so that 

the balance (excluding capitalized interest on deposit therein in excess of the amount thereof to be applied to 

pay interest accrued and to accrue on all outstanding Bonds to the end of the then current calendar month) in 

said Account equals the Accrued Aggregate Debt Service as of the last day of the then current calendar month 

or, if interest and/or principal are required to be paid to Holders of Bonds during the next succeeding calendar 

month on a day other than the first day of such calendar month, Accrued Aggregate Debt Service as of the 

day through and including which such interest and/or principal is required to be paid. The Trustee will apply 

amounts in the Debt Service Account to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

With respect to amounts accumulated in the Debt Service Account with respect to any Sinking Fund 

Installments, the Trustee may, and if directed by FMPA, shall apply such amounts on or prior to the 40th day preceding 

the due date of such Sinking Fund Installment to (i) the purchase of Bonds of the Series, maturity and interest rate 

within each maturity for which such Sinking Fund Installment was established or (ii) the redemption at the applicable 

Redemption Price of such Bonds. 

 To reimburse each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider for any amounts advanced under its 

Reserve Account Credit Facility, including paying interest thereon, in accordance with the terms of such 

Reserve Account Credit Facility and any reimbursement agreement between FMPA and the Reserve Account 

Page 374 of 473



 

 D-6 

Credit Facility Provider; to the extent that on any date the amounts available for such reimbursement 

payments are insufficient to make all such payments, including interest, the amounts actually available shall 

be paid pro rata, to each Reserve Account Credit Facility Provider in proportion to the payments then due 

under the respective Reserve Account Credit Facilities; provided, however, that if any such payment shall 

not result in the reinstatement of a portion of such Reserve Account Credit Facility in an amount equal to 

such payment (excluding the portion thereof representing interest on such advance), such reimbursement 

payment shall be made only after the payments otherwise required by the Resolution. 

 To the credit of each subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, the amount, if any, required 

for such subaccounts to equal the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as of the last day of the current calendar 

month. 

Amounts in the Debt Service Reserve Account are to be applied to make up any deficiency in the Debt 

Service Account. Whenever the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, together with the amount in the Debt 

Service Account, is sufficient to pay in full all outstanding Bonds in accordance with their terms, the funds on deposit 

in the Debt Service Reserve Account will be transferred to the Debt Service Account. Whenever monies on deposit in 

the Debt Service Reserve Account exceed the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, the excess may, if requested by 

FMPA, be deposited in the Revenue Fund. 

 To the Subordinated Debt Fund, the amount, if any, required by the Supplemental Resolution 

authorizing such issue to pay principal or sinking fund installments of and premiums, if any, and interest on 

each issue of Subordinated Debt and reserves therefor. FMPA will apply amounts in the Subordinated Debt 

Fund in accordance with the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issue. If at any time the amount in the 

Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund is deficient or the amount in the Debt Service Reserve 

Account is less than the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as a result of a transfer to the Debt Service 

Account, and there are no available monies sufficient to cure such deficiency in the Reserve and Contingency 

Fund or the General Reserve Fund, amounts in the Subordinated Debt Fund will be applied to make up such 

deficiency. 

 To the credit of the Reserve and Contingency Fund, for credit to (i) the Renewal and Replacement 

Account, the amount, if any, budgeted for credit therein during such month in the then current Annual Budget, 

and (ii) the Contingency Account, the amount, if any, required for such Account to equal the Contingency 

Requirement. 

Amounts in the Renewal and Replacement Account will be applied to the payment of Development Costs 

and costs of renewals, replacements, repairs, additions, betterments, enlargements and improvements to the System 

necessary to keep the same in good operating condition or to prevent a loss of Revenues therefrom, or required by any 

governmental agency having jurisdiction over the System or any part thereof. 

Amounts in the Contingency Account will be applied to the payment of costs of major renewals, 

replacements, repairs, additions, betterments, enlargements and improvements with respect to the System and to the 

payment of Development Costs, in each case to the extent that amounts credited to the Renewal and Replacement 

Account are insufficient. 

If at any time the amount in the Debt Service Account is deficient or the amount in the Debt Service Reserve 

Account is less than the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as a result of a transfer to the Debt Service Account, and 

there are not on deposit in the General Reserve Fund available monies sufficient to cure such deficiency, then FMPA 

will transfer from the Reserve and Contingency Fund the amount necessary to make up such deficiency. 

Amounts in the Renewal and Replacement Account and the Contingency Account which exceed the 

respective amounts required to be held therein, to the extent not required to make up deficiencies in the Debt Service 

Fund may be deposited in the Decommissioning Fund, if established, or, in the General Reserve Fund. 

 To the credit of the General Reserve Fund, the balance, if any, in the Revenue Fund; FMPA will 

transfer from the General Reserve Fund amounts in the following order of priority:  (i) to the Debt Service 

Page 375 of 473



 

 D-7 

Account and the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Debt Service Fund the amount necessary to make up 

any deficiencies in payments to said Accounts except deficiencies in the Debt Service Reserve Account due 

to transfers to the Debt Service Account (ii) to the Debt Service Reserve Account the amount of any 

deficiency in such Account resulting from any transfer to the Debt Service Account, and (iii) to the Renewal 

and Replacement Account and the Contingency Account in the Reserve and Contingency Fund, in that order, 

the amount necessary to make up any deficiencies in payments to said Fund. 

Amounts in the General Reserve Fund not required for any of the above purposes shall upon  determination 

of FMPA be applied to or set aside by FMPA for any one or more of the following:  (i)  the purchase or redemption 

of Bonds, and expenses and reserves in connection therewith; (ii) payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

or credit to the Working Capital Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund; (iii) payments into any separate 

accounts established in the Construction Fund; (iv)  transfer to the credit of the Renewal and Replacement Account or 

the Contingency Account in the Reserve and Contingency Fund;  (v) transfer to the Subordinated Debt Fund; 

(vi) transfer to the Rate Stabilization Account in the Operation and Maintenance Fund; (vii) payments of any 

termination or other fees, expenses, indemnification or other obligations to a Qualified Swap Provider; and (viii) any 

other lawful purpose of FMPA related to the System. 

Debt Service Reserve Account 

In lieu of the required deposits and transfers to any subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, FMPA 

may at any time cause to be deposited into such subaccount for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and any related 

Parity Reimbursement Obligations, an insurance policy or a letter of credit in an amount equal to the difference 

between the Debt Service Reserve Requirement and the sums, if any, then on deposit in such subaccount or being 

deposited in such subaccount concurrently with such insurance policy or letter of credit. The insurance policy or letter 

of credit shall be payable (upon the giving of notice as required thereunder) on any date on which monies will be 

required to be withdrawn from the subaccount and applied to the payment of a Principal Installment of or interest on 

any Bonds and any related Parity Debt entitled to the benefit of such amounts in such subaccount and such withdrawal 

cannot be met by amounts on deposit in such subaccount. The insurer providing such insurance policy shall be a 

municipal bond or other insurance company, obligations insured by which are rated in one of the two highest rating 

categories by each nationally recognized rating agency then rating any Series of Bonds at the request of FMPA. The 

letter of credit issuer shall be a bank or savings and loan association whose long-term uncollateralized debt obligations 

are rated in either of the two highest rating categories by each nationally recognized rating agency then rating any 

Series of Bonds at the request of FMPA. If a disbursement is made pursuant to an insurance policy or a letter of credit, 

FMPA shall be obligated either (i) to reinstate the maximum limits of such insurance policy or letter of credit or (ii) 

to deposit into the appropriate subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account, funds in the amount of the 

disbursement made under such insurance policy or letter of credit, or a combination of such alternatives, as shall 

provide that the amount in such subaccount equals the Debt Service Reserve Requirement. 

In the event of the refunding of any Bonds, the Trustee shall, if FMPA so directs, withdraw from the related 

subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Debt Service Fund all, or any portion of, the amounts 

accumulated therein with respect to the Bonds being refunded and deposit such amounts with itself as Trustee to be 

held for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds being refunded; 

provided that such withdrawal shall not be made unless (a) immediately thereafter the Bonds being refunded shall be 

deemed to have been paid pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution, and (b) the amount remaining in the related 

subaccount, after giving effect to the issuance of the Refunding Bonds and the disposition of the proceeds thereof and 

to any insurance policy or letter of credit deposited in such subaccount, shall not be less than the Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement. In the event of such refunding, FMPA may also direct the Trustee to withdraw from the related 

subaccount all, or any portion of, the amounts accumulated therein with respect to Debt Service on the Bonds being 

refunded and deposit such amounts in any Fund or Account under the Resolution; provided, however, that such 

withdrawal shall not be made unless items (a) and (b) referred to hereinabove have been satisfied and provided, further, 

at the time of withdrawal, there shall exist no deficiency in any Fund or Account held under the Resolution. 

Construction Fund 

The Resolution establishes a Construction Fund, to be held by the Trustee, into which will be paid amounts 

required by the provisions of the Resolution and any Supplemental Resolution and, at the option of FMPA, any monies 

Page 376 of 473



 

 D-8 

received for or in connection with the System by FMPA from any other source, unless required to be otherwise applied 

as provided in the Resolution. In addition, subject to the provisions of any agreements relating to the purchase, 

ownership or operation of any part of the System, proceeds of insurance for physical loss of or damage to the System 

or of contractors’ performance bonds with respect thereto pertaining to the period of construction will be paid into the 

Construction Fund. 

The Trustee will pay to or for the account of FMPA, upon the requisitions of FMPA therefor pursuant to the 

Resolution, from the Construction Fund, the Cost of Acquisition and Construction of the System. The Trustee will 

pay to FMPA, upon the requisition therefor, a sum or sums aggregating not more than $10,000,000 to be used by 

FMPA to establish a revolving fund to pay Costs of Acquisition and Construction which cannot conveniently be paid 

through the requisition process. 

To the extent that other monies are not available therefor, amounts in the Construction Fund will be applied 

to the payment of principal of and interest on Bonds when due. 

Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds 

FMPA may issue Bonds for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the Cost of Acquisition and Construction 

of the System. 

Refunding Bonds 

One or more Series of Refunding Bonds may be issued to refund any Outstanding Bonds or Parity Debt. The 

issuance of Refunding Bonds to refund Outstanding Bonds is subject to the receipt by the Trustee of, among other 

things, a certificate of an Authorized Officer stating that such Refunding Bonds are being issued to reduce amounts 

payable under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or that the issuance of such Refunding Bonds is 

otherwise advantageous to FMPA or the Project Participants. 

Investment of Certain Funds 

The Resolution provides that certain funds and accounts held thereunder may, and in the case of the Debt 

Service Account and the Debt Service Reserve Account in the Debt Service Fund and of the Subordinated Debt Fund 

must be invested to the fullest extent practicable in Investment Securities. The Resolution provides that such 

investments will mature no later than such times as necessary to provide monies when needed for payments from such 

Funds and Accounts. “Investment Securities” are defined in the Resolution to mean and include any of the following 

securities, if and to the extent the same are at the time legal for investment of FMPA’s funds: 

(i) any bonds or other obligations which as to principal and interest constitute direct obligations of, or 

are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America, including obligations of any of the Federal agencies 

set forth in clause (iii) below to the extent unconditionally guaranteed by United States of America; 

(ii) any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, 

instrumentality or local governmental unit of such state (a) which are not callable prior to maturity or as to which 

irrevocable instructions have been given to the trustee of such bonds or other obligations by the obligor to give due 

notice of redemption and to call such bonds for redemption on the date or dates specified in such instructions, (b) which 

are secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting only of cash or bonds or 

other obligations of the character described in clause (i) hereof which fund may be applied only to the payment of 

such principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date 

or dates thereof or the redemption date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to in subclause (a) of 

this clause (ii), as appropriate, and (c) as to which the principal of and interest on the bonds and obligations of the 

character described in clause (i) hereof which have been deposited in such fund along with any cash on deposit in such 

fund are sufficient to pay principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations 

described in this clause (ii) on the maturity date or dates thereof or on the redemption date or dates specified in the 

irrevocable instructions referred to in subclause (a) of this clause (ii), as appropriate; 

Page 377 of 473



 

 D-9 

(iii) bonds, debentures, or other evidences of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any agency or 

corporation which has been or may hereafter be created pursuant to an Act of Congress as an agency or instrumentality 

of the United States of America; 

(iv) New Housing Authority Bonds issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully secured as to 

the payment of both principal and interest by a pledge of annual contributions under an Annual Contributions Contract 

or Contracts with the United States of America; or Project Notes issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully 

secured as to the payment of both principal and interest by a requisition or payment agreement with the United States 

of America; 

(v) direct and general obligations of any state of the United States of America or any agency, 

instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such state, to the payment of the principal of and interest on which 

the full faith and credit of such state, agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit is pledged, provided that at 

the time of their purchase under the Resolution such obligations are rated in either of the two highest categories by a 

nationally recognized bond rating agency; 

(vi) obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any 

agency or instrumentality of any state or political subdivision which shall be rated in the highest rating category by a 

nationally recognized bond rating agency; 

(vii) certificates or other instruments that evidence ownership of the right to payments of principal of or 

interest on obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any agency 

or instrumentality of any state or political subdivision, provided that such obligations shall be held in trust by a bank 

or trust company or a national banking association meeting the requirements for a successor Trustee in accordance 

with the Resolution, and provided further that the payments of all principal of and interest on such certificates or such 

obligations shall be fully insured or unconditionally guaranteed by, or otherwise unconditionally payable pursuant to 

a credit support arrangement provided by, one or more financial institutions or insurance companies or associations 

which at the date of investment shall have an outstanding, unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt issue rated in 

the highest rating category by a nationally recognized bond rating agency, or, in the case of an insurer providing 

municipal bond insurance policies insuring the payment, when due, of the principal of and interest on municipal bonds, 

such insurance policy shall result in such municipal bonds being rated in the highest rating category by a nationally 

recognized bond rating agency; 

(viii) certificates that evidence ownership of the right to payments of principal or interest on obligations 

described in clause (i), provided that such obligations shall be held in trust by a bank or trust company or a national 

banking association meeting the requirements for a successor Trustee in accordance with the Resolution; 

(ix) certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non-negotiable, and banker’s acceptances of the 50 

largest banks in the United States or commercial paper issued by the parent holding company of any such bank which 

at the time of investment has an outstanding unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt issue ranked in either of the 

two highest rating categories by a nationally recognized bond rating agency (including the Trustee and its parent 

holding company, if any, if it otherwise qualifies); 

(x) commercial paper, other than that issued by bank holding companies, (1) rated at the date of 

investment in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized bond rating agency, or (2) issued by United States 

corporations which at the date of investment have an outstanding, unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt issue 

rated in either of the two highest rating categories by a nationally recognized bond rating agency; 

(xi) any repurchase agreement with any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of 

the United States of America or any national banking association or government bond dealer reporting to, trading 

with, and recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, which agreement is secured by 

any one or more of the securities described in clauses (i), (iii), (iv), (ix), or (x) above, which securities shall at all times 

have a market value (exclusive of accrued interest) not less than the full amount of the repurchase agreement, and be 

delivered to another bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America or 

any national banking by association, as custodian in the name of or for exclusive benefit of FMPA; 

Page 378 of 473



 

 D-10 

(xii) shares of an Investment Company, organized under the Investment Company Act of 1940 as 

amended, which invests its assets exclusively in obligations of the type described in clause (i), (vi), (ix), (x), or (xi) 

above; 

(xiii) Local Government Surplus Trust Fund of the State of Florida; 

(xiv) Certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non-negotiable, and banker’s acceptance of the 10 

largest banks in the State of Florida measured in terms of their primary capital (i.e., equity minus reserves); 

(xv) Money market funds rated in the highest category for comparable types of obligations by each 

Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds at the request of FMPA; 

(xvi) investment agreements or guaranteed investment contracts with any financial institution whose 

senior long-term debt obligations or whose obligations under such investment agreement or guaranteed investment 

contract are guaranteed by a financial institution whose senior long-term debt obligations have a rating (at the time 

such agreement or contract is entered into) one of the two highest rating categories for comparable types of obligations 

by each Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds at the request of FMPA ; and 

(xvii) any other investment in which FMPA is authorized from time to time to invest under applicable law 

with respect to which an Authorized Officer has, on or before the date thereof, delivered to the Trustee (A) a certificate 

to the Trustee designating the additional investment as an Investment Security and (B) a Rating Confirmation. 

Interest (net of the return of accrued interest paid in connection with the purchase of any investment) earned 

on any monies or investments in such Funds or Accounts, other than the Construction Fund, shall be paid into the 

Revenue Fund. Interest on monies or investments in the Construction Fund shall be held in such Fund for the purposes 

thereof. 

The Trustee and FMPA may deposit monies in all Funds and Accounts held by it under the Resolution in 

banks or trust companies organized under the laws of any state of the United States or national banking associations 

having capital stock, surplus and undivided earnings of $50,000,000 or more (“Depositories”). All monies held under 

the Resolution by the Trustee, FMPA or any Depository must be either (i) fully insured by the Federal Deposit 

Insurance Corporation, or (ii) continuously and fully secured by lodging with the Trustee or FMPA, as custodian, as 

collateral security, such securities as are described in clauses (i) through (iv), inclusive or in clause (viii), of the 

definition of “Investment Securities” having a market value not less than the amount of such monies, and secured in 

such other manner as may then be required by applicable Federal or State of Florida laws and regulations and 

applicable state laws and regulations of the state in which the Trustee, FMPA or such Depository is located; provided, 

however, that, to the extent permitted by law, it will not be necessary for the Trustee or any Paying Agent to give 

security for the deposit of any monies held in trust by it and set aside for the payment of the principal of, Redemption 

Price of, or interest on any Bonds, or for the Trustee, FMPA or any Depository to give security for any monies which 

are represented by obligations or certificates of deposit purchased as an investment of such monies. 

Creation of Liens 

FMPA will not issue any bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness of a similar nature, 

other than the Bonds and Parity Debt, payable out of or secured by a security interest in or pledge or assignment of 

the Trust Estate or other monies, securities or funds held or set aside under the Resolution, nor will it create or cause 

to be created any lien or charge thereon; provided, however, to the extent permitted by law, FMPA may issue (a) bond 

anticipation notes, (b) evidences of indebtedness (i) payable out of monies in the Construction Fund as part of the Cost 

of Acquisition and Construction or (ii) payable out of, or secured by a security interest in a pledge and assignment of, 

Revenues to be received after the discharge of the pledge of Revenues provided in the Resolution or (c) Subordinated 

Debt. 

Page 379 of 473



 

 D-11 

Rate Covenant 

FMPA covenants that it will fix, establish, maintain and collect rents, rates, fees and charges under the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts and shall otherwise charge and collect rents, rates, fees and charges for 

the use or the sale of the output, electric capacity and energy or service of the System which, together with other 

available Revenues, are reasonably expected to yield Net Revenues for the 12-month period commencing with the 

effective date of such rents, rates and charges which shall be equal to at least the Aggregate Debt Service for such 

period and, in any event, as shall be required, together with other available funds, to pay or discharge all other 

indebtedness, charges and liens whatsoever payable out of Revenues under the Resolution; provided, however, that 

any Principal Installment which is a Refundable Principal Installment may be excluded from Aggregate Debt Service 

for purposes of the foregoing but only to the extent that FMPA intends to pay such Principal Installment from sources 

other than Revenues. Promptly upon (a) any material decrease in any month in the Revenues anticipated to be produced 

by any rents, rates or charges at the time of adoption of such rents, rates or charges or any later review thereof, (b) any 

material increase in expenses of operation of the System on any month not contemplated at the time of adoption of 

the rents, rates and charges then in effect or any later review thereof, or (c) any other material change in the 

circumstances which were contemplated at the time such rents, rates and charges were most recently reviewed, but 

not less frequently than once every 12 months, FMPA shall review the rents, rates, fees and charges so established 

and shall promptly establish or revise such rents, rates, fees and charges as necessary to comply with the foregoing 

requirements, provided that such rents, rates, fees and charges shall in any event produce monies sufficient to enable 

FMPA to comply with all its covenants under the Resolution. 

In estimating Aggregate Debt Service on any Variable Rate Bonds for the purposes of the foregoing 

paragraph, FMPA shall be entitled to assume that such Variable Rate Bonds will bear such interest rate or rates as 

FMPA shall determine; provided, however, that the interest rate or rates assumed shall not be less than the interest 

rate borne by such Variable Rate Bonds at the time such estimate is made. 

Covenants with Respect to All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts 

FMPA covenants that it will collect and cause to be deposited in the Revenue Fund all amounts payable to it 

under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or payable to it pursuant to any other contract for the sale 

or the use of output, capacity, or other service from the System. FMPA will enforce the provisions of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts and duly perform its covenants and agreements thereunder. FMPA will 

not consent to any rescission of, or amendment to, or take any action under or in connection with, the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Contracts unless it complies with the requirements in the Resolution. 

Annual Budget 

FMPA will file with the Trustee an Annual Budget for each Fiscal Year. The Annual Budget will include 

monthly appropriations for the estimated Operation and Maintenance Expenses and other expenditures for the System 

for such year, monthly appropriations for the estimated amount to be credited during each month to the Rate 

Stabilization Account, the Operation and Maintenance Account and the Working Capital Account in the Operation 

and Maintenance Fund, and the estimated amount to be credited during each month in the Renewal and Replacement 

Account and the Contingency Account in the Reserve and Contingency Fund and the Decommissioning Fund, if 

established, and the requirements, if any, for and the amounts estimated to be expended during each month from each 

Fund and Account. FMPA shall review quarterly, and at such other times as it deems desirable, its estimates set forth 

in the Annual Budget and in the event such estimates do not substantially correspond with actual Revenues, Operation 

and Maintenance Expenses or other requirements, or if there are extraordinary expenses, FMPA shall prepare an 

amended Annual Budget for the remainder of such fiscal year. FMPA may also at any time adopt an amended Annual 

Budget for the remainder of the then current Fiscal Year. 

Insurance 

FMPA will use its best efforts to keep or cause to be kept the properties of the System which are of an 

insurable nature and of the character usually insured by those operating properties similar to the System and in which 

FMPA has an insurable interest insured against loss or damage by fire and from other causes customarily insured 

against and in such relative amounts as are usually obtained. FMPA will at all times use its best efforts to maintain or 

Page 380 of 473



 

 D-12 

cause to be maintained insurance or reserves against loss or damage from such hazards and risks to the person and 

property of others as are usually insured or reserved against by those operating properties similar to the properties of 

the System. FMPA will only be required to obtain such insurance if the same is available at reasonable rates and upon 

reasonable terms and conditions but if such insurance is not so obtainable, FMPA shall deliver an opinion to the 

Trustee of an independent insurance consultant to that effect. 

Accounts and Reports 

FMPA will keep or cause to be kept proper and separate books of records and accounts relating to the System, 

the Funds and Accounts established under the Resolution and relating to costs and charges under the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Contracts. Such books, together with all contracts and all other books and papers of FMPA 

relating to the System, will at all times be subject to the inspection of the Trustee and the holders of not less than 5% 

in principal amount of Bonds then outstanding. 

FMPA will file annually with the Trustee and the Consulting Engineer an annual report, accompanied by an 

accountant’s certificate, relating to the financial position of the System, statements of assets and liabilities, statements 

of Revenues and Operation and Maintenance Expenses, a summary with respect to Funds and Accounts established 

under the Resolution of the changes in financial condition during such year, and a statement as to the existence of any 

default under the provisions of the Resolution. 

FMPA will notify the Trustee forthwith of any Event of Default or default in the performance by FMPA of 

any covenant, agreement or condition of the Resolution. FMPA will file annually with the Trustee a certificate stating 

whether, to the best of the signer’s knowledge and belief, FMPA has complied with its covenants and obligations in 

the Resolution and whether there is then existing any Event of Default or other event which would become an Event 

of Default upon lapse of time. 

The reports, statements and other documents required to be furnished to the Trustee pursuant to provisions 

of the Resolution will be available for the inspection of holders of the Bonds at the office of the Trustee and will be 

mailed to each holder of the Bonds who files a written request therefor with FMPA. FMPA may charge for such 

reports, statements and other documents a reasonable fee to cover reproduction, handling and postage. 

Amendments and Supplemental Resolutions 

Any of the provisions of the Resolution may be amended by FMPA by a supplemental resolution upon the 

consent (a) of the holders of at least a majority in principal amount of the Bonds outstanding at the time such consent 

is given and (b) if less than all of the several Series of outstanding Bonds are affected of the holders of at least a 

majority in principal amount of each Series so affected and outstanding. No such amendment may permit a change in 

the terms of redemption (including Sinking Fund Installments) or maturity of the principal of any outstanding Bond 

or any installment of interest thereon or make any reduction in principal amount, redemption price or rate of interest 

without consent of each affected holder, or reduce the percentages of consents required for a further amendment. 

Also, to the extent that all or any portion of Bonds or any Series of Bonds are insured by any nationally 

recognized company engaged in the business of insuring municipal bonds, such insurance company will be deemed 

to be the holder of Bonds of any Series as to which it is the insurer at all times for the purpose of giving any approval 

or consent to the execution and delivery of any supplemental resolution or any amendment, change or modification of 

the Resolution which requires the written approval or consent of the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal 

amount of Bonds of such Series at the time Outstanding. 

FMPA may adopt (without the consent of any holders of the Bonds) supplemental resolutions to close the 

Resolution against, or impose limitations upon, issuance of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness; to add to the 

covenants and agreements of FMPA in the Resolution; to add to the limitations and restrictions contained in the 

Resolution; to authorize Bonds of a Series; to authorize, in compliance with all applicable law, Bonds of each Series 

to be issued in the form of coupon bonds registrable as to principal only or in the form of Bonds issued and held in 

book-entry form on the books of FMPA or any Fiduciary appointed for that purpose by FMPA; to establish for any 

Series of Bonds a separate subaccount in the Debt Service Reserve Account and make such other amendments to the 

Page 381 of 473



 

 D-13 

Resolution necessary or desirable to insure that such Accounts and subaccounts functions in the manner contemplated; 

to authorize Parity Debt; to authorize Subordinated Debt of a Series; to provide for a Bond Support Facility, Reserve 

Account Credit Facility, Qualified Swap or other similar arrangement with respect to any Series of Bonds; to reflect 

the substitution of a new Bond Support Facility or a new Qualified Swap Provider; to confirm any pledge under the 

Resolution of Revenues or other monies, securities or other funds; to modify any of the provisions of the Resolution 

provided that such modification is effective only after all Bonds of each Series outstanding at the date of such 

modification will cease to be outstanding; to add additional Events of Default; to add provisions relating to the 

application of interest earnings on any Fund or Account under the Resolution required by law to preserve the 

exemption of interest received on Bonds then Outstanding or to be issued from Federal and/or State income taxation; 

and to appoint a Trustee. FMPA may adopt (without the consent of any holders of the Bonds but with the consent of 

the Trustee) supplemental resolutions to cure any ambiguity, supply any omission or cure or correct any defect or 

inconsistent provision in the Resolution, and to clarify matters or questions arising under the Resolution and not 

contrary to or inconsistent with the Resolution. 

In addition to the purposes described above, FMPA may with the consent of the Trustee but without the 

consent of Bondholders amend the Resolution to make any amendment or modification which the Trustee, in its sole 

discretion, determines will not have a material adverse effect on Bondholders. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Resolution to the contrary, the consent of the owners of any Series of Bonds 

to be issued thereunder shall be deemed given if the underwriters or initial purchasers for resale consent in writing to 

such Supplemental Resolution and the nature of the amendment effected by such Supplemental Resolution is disclosed 

in the official statement or other offering document pursuant to which such Series of Additional Bonds is offered and 

sold to the public. 

Trustee, Paying Agents 

The Resolution requires the appointment by FMPA of one or more Paying Agents (which may include the 

Trustee). The Trustee may at any time resign on 120 days’ written notice to FMPA and may at any time be removed 

by FMPA with or without cause provided that no Event of Default exists or would exist with notice and/or passage of 

time. A successor Trustee may be appointed by FMPA, or if FMPA fails to appoint a successor Trustee within 60 

days, by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. Any successor Trustee must be 

a bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state or a national banking association having capital stock, 

surplus and undivided earnings aggregating at least $50,000,000 if there be such an entity willing to accept such 

appointment. 

Exchange, Transfer and Registry 

In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging the Bonds is exercised, FMPA will execute 

and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution. For every 

such exchange or transfer of the Bonds, FMPA or the Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for 

any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer. Neither FMPA 

nor the Bond Registrar will be required to transfer or exchange the Bonds for a period of 15 days next preceding an 

interest payment date or next preceding any selection of the Bonds to be redeemed or thereafter until after the mailing 

of any notice of redemption. 

Defeasance 

The pledge of the Trust Estate, and all covenants, agreements and other obligations of FMPA to the holders 

of the Bonds under the Resolution will cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied whenever 

all Bonds have been paid in full. Bonds will be deemed to have been so paid whenever the following conditions are 

met:  (a) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either monies in an amount which will be sufficient, or 

Investment Securities (as defined in the paragraph under the heading “Investments of Certain Funds and Accounts”), 

the principal of and the interest on which, when due, will provide monies which, together with any monies also 

deposited with the Trustee, will be sufficient, to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and 

interest due or to become due on such Bonds, (b) in the case of Bonds to be redeemed prior to maturity, FMPA has 

given to the Trustee instructions to mail the notice of redemption therefor, (c) in the event such Bonds are not subject 

Page 382 of 473



 

 D-14 

to redemption within the next succeeding 60 days, FMPA has given to the Trustee instructions to mail a notice to the 

holders of such Bonds that the deposit required by (a) above has been made with the Trustee and that such Bonds are 

deemed to be paid and stating the maturity or redemption date upon which monies are to be available to pay the 

principal or redemption price, if applicable, on such Bonds, and (d) all Parity Debt has been repaid in full or payment 

thereof has been otherwise provided for. The Trustee will, as and to the extent necessary, apply monies held by it as 

above described to the retirement of said Bonds in amounts equal to the unsatisfied balances of any Sinking Fund 

Installments with respect to such Bonds, all in the manner provided in the Resolution. 

If so directed by FMPA prior to (i) the maturity date of Bonds deemed to have been paid as described in the 

preceding paragraph which are not to be redeemed prior to their maturity date or (ii) the mailing of the notice referred 

to in clause (b) above with respect to Bonds deemed to have been paid as described above which are to be redeemed 

prior to their maturity date, the Trustee is required to apply monies deposited with it in respect of Bonds in accordance 

with clause (a) above and redeem or sell Investment Securities so deposited with it and apply the proceeds thereof to 

the purchase of such Bonds and the Bonds so purchased shall be immediately cancelled by the Trustee. No such Bonds 

shall be purchased unless the monies and the Investment Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee after such 

purchase and cancellation would be sufficient to pay when due the Principal Installment or redemption price, if 

applicable, and interest due, or to become due, on all Bonds in respect to which such monies and Investment Securities 

are being held by the Trustee. If, at any time prior to the happening of the events described in clauses (i) and (ii) of 

this paragraph, FMPA shall purchase or otherwise acquire any such Bonds and deliver such Bonds to the Trustee prior 

to their maturity date or redemption date, as the case may be, the Trustee shall immediately cancel all such Bonds so 

delivered. In the event that on any interest payment date as a result of any such purchases or deliveries and 

cancellations of Bonds the total amount of monies and Investment Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee is 

in excess of the total amount required to be deposited with the Trustee on such date in respect to the remaining Bonds 

in order to comply with clause (a) of the first paragraph of this section, the Trustee shall, if requested by FMPA, pay 

the amount of such excess to FMPA free and clear of the pledge or lien of the Resolution. 

For purposes of defeasance, Investment Securities mean (i) only such securities as are described in clause (i), 

(iv), (vi), (vii) or (viii) of the definition of Investment Securities under the caption “Investment of Certain Funds and 

Accounts” above which shall not be subject to redemption prior to their maturity other than at the option of the holder 

thereof; (ii) such securities as are described in clause (ii) of the definition of Investment Securities which shall not be 

subject to redemption prior to their maturity other than at the option of the Holder thereof or as to which an irrevocable 

notice of redemption of such securities on a specified redemption date has been given and such securities are not 

otherwise subject to redemption prior to such specified date other than at the option of the Holder thereof or (iii) upon 

compliance with the provisions of the following paragraph, securities described in clause (i), (iv), (vi), (vii) or (viii) 

of the definition of Investment Securities which are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the issuer 

thereof on a specified date or dates. 

Investment Securities described in clause (iii) of the foregoing paragraph may be included in the Investment 

Securities deposited with the Trustee for purposes of defeasance only if the determination as to whether the monies 

and Investment Securities to be deposited with the Trustee would be sufficient to pay when due, either at the maturity 

date thereof or, in the case of any Bonds to be redeemed prior to the maturity date thereof, on the redemption date or 

dates specified in any notice of redemption to be mailed by the Trustee or in the instructions to mail notice of 

redemption provided to the Trustee in accordance with the Resolution, the principal and Redemption Price, if 

applicable, and interest on the Bonds is made both on the assumption that the Investment Securities described in clause 

(iii) of the foregoing paragraph were not redeemed at the option of the issuer prior to the maturity date thereof and on 

the assumptions that such Investment Securities would be redeemed by the issuer thereof at its option on each date on 

which such option could be exercised, that as of such date or dates interest ceased to accrue on such Investment 

Securities and that the proceeds of such redemption would not be reinvested by the Trustee. 

In the event that Investment Securities described in such clause (iii) are deposited with the Trustee, then any 

notice of redemption to be mailed by the Trustee and any set of instructions relating to a notice of redemption given 

to the Trustee may provide, at the option of FMPA, that any redemption date or dates in respect of all or any portion 

of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date or dates may at the option of FMPA be changed to any other permissible 

redemption date or dates and that redemption dates may be established for any Bonds deemed to have been paid in 

accordance with the defeasance provisions of the Resolution upon their maturity date or dates at any time prior to the 

Page 383 of 473



 

 D-15 

actual mailing of any applicable notice of redemption in the event that all or any portion of such Investment Securities 

have been called for redemption or have been redeemed by the issuer thereof prior to the maturity date thereof. 

Events of Default and Remedies 

Events of Default specified in the Resolution include (i) failure to pay principal or redemption price of any 

Bond or Parity Reimbursement Obligation when due; (ii) failure to pay any interest installment on any Bond or Parity 

Reimbursement Obligation or the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund Installment thereon when due; (iii) certain 

events of bankruptcy or insolvency of FMPA, and (iv) default by FMPA in the performance or observance of any 

other of the covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in the Resolution or in the Bonds, and such 

default shall continue for a period of 90 days after written notice thereof specifying such default and requiring that it 

shall have been remedied and stating that such notice is a “Notice of Default” under the Resolution has been given to 

FMPA by the Trustee or to FMPA and to the Trustee by the Holders of not less than 10% principal amount of the 

Bonds Outstanding. Upon the happening of any such Event of Default the Trustee or the Holders of not less than 25% 

in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding may declare the principal of and any accrued interest on all Bonds 

then outstanding due and payable immediately (subject to a rescission of such declaration upon the curing of such 

default before the Bonds have matured). 

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default which has not been remedied, FMPA will, upon demand of the 

Trustee (a) order all Project Participants to make payments due under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contracts directly to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund, (b) grant to the Trustee all rights and remedies of 

FMPA in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, and (c) pay over or cause to be paid over to the 

Trustee forthwith, all monies, securities and funds held by FMPA in any Fund under the Resolution and all Revenues 

which are not paid directly to the Trustee. The Trustee will apply all monies, securities, funds and Revenues received 

during the continuance of an Event of Default in the following order:  (i) to payment of the reasonable and proper 

fees, charges, expenses and liabilities of the Trustee and Paying Agents, (ii) to the payment of Operation and 

Maintenance Expenses and for reasonable renewals, repairs and replacements of the System necessary in the Trustee’s 

judgment to prevent loss of Revenues, and (iii) to the payment of interest and principal or redemption price of Bonds 

or Parity Debt without preference or priority of interest over principal or principal over interest or of any installment 

of interest over any other installment of interest or of any Bond or Parity Debt over any other Bond or Parity Debt, 

unless the principal of all Bonds has not become or has not been declared due and payable, in which case first to the 

payment of interest and second to the payment of principal or redemption price on those Bonds or Parity Debt which 

have become due and payable in order of their due dates and, if the amount available is not sufficient to pay in full all 

the amounts due on any date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of interest, principal or 

redemption price due on such date. In addition, the Trustee will have the right to apply in an appropriate proceeding 

for appointment of a receiver of the System. 

If an Event of Default has occurred and has not been remedied the Trustee may, and on written request of the 

holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of Bonds outstanding must, proceed to protect and enforce its rights 

and the rights of the holders of the Bonds under the Resolution forthwith by a suit or suits in equity or at law, whether 

for the specific performance of any covenant in the Resolution or in aid of the execution of any power granted in the 

Resolution or for an accounting against FMPA or in the enforcement of any other legal or equitable right, as the 

Trustee deems most effectual to enforce any of its rights or to perform any of its duties under the Resolution. The 

Trustee may, and upon the request of the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then 

outstanding and upon being furnished with reasonable security and indemnity must, institute and maintain such suits 

and proceedings to prevent any impairment of the security under the Resolution or to preserve or protect the interests 

of the Trustee and of the holders of the Bonds. 

No holder of the Bonds will have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding for the enforcement of 

any provision of the Resolution or the execution of any trust under the Resolution or for any remedy under the 

Resolution, unless (a) such holder of the Bonds previously has given the Trustee written notice of an Event of Default, 

(b) the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding have filed a written request with the 

Trustee and have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity to exercise its powers or institute such suit, action or 

proceeding, (c) there have been offered to the Trustee adequate security and indemnity against its costs, expenses and 

liabilities to be incurred and (d) the Trustee has refused to comply with such request within 60 days after receipt of 

such notice, request and offer of indemnity. Nothing in the Resolution or the Bonds affects or impairs FMPA’s 

Page 384 of 473



 

 D-16 

obligation to pay the Bonds and interest thereon when due or the right of any holder of the Bonds to enforce such 

payment. 

The holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of Bonds then outstanding may direct the time, 

method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or of exercising any trust or 

power conferred upon the Trustee, subject to the Trustee’s right to decline to follow such direction upon advice of 

counsel as to the unlawfulness thereof or upon its good faith determination that such action would involve the Trustee 

in personal liability and the holders shall not indemnify the Trustee or would be unjustly prejudicial to holders of the 

Bonds not parties to such direction. 

If the Bonds have not yet been accelerated and with the consent of the Insurer, the holders of not less than a 

majority in principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding may, on behalf of the holders of all the Bonds, waive 

any past default under the Resolution and its consequences, except a default in the payment of interest on or principal 

of, or premium, if any, on the Bonds. 

Notice of Default 

Notice of the occurrence of any Event of Default will be promptly mailed to each registered owner of Bonds 

then outstanding at his address appearing in the registry books of FMPA. 

Additional Provisions Relating to the Offered Securities – Tax Covenants Relating to the Offered 

Securities 

FMPA covenants that, in order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for Federal income tax purposes 

of the interest on the Offered Securities, FMPA will satisfy, or take such actions as are necessary to cause to be 

satisfied, each provision of the Code necessary to maintain such exclusion. In furtherance of this covenant, FMPA 

agrees to comply with such written instructions as may be provided by Bond Counsel. In furtherance of the covenant 

contained in the preceding sentence, FMPA agrees to continually comply with the provisions of the “Tax Certificate 

as to Arbitrage and the Provisions of Sections 141-150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986” to be executed by 

FMPA in connection with the execution and delivery of the Offered Securities, as amended from time to time. 

The Supplemental Resolution also contains provisions and restrictions with respect to defeasance which are 

related to the Code. 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT CONTRACTS 

Term 

Unless otherwise described in this Official Statement, the All-Requirements Power Supply Contracts shall 

remain in effect until October 1, 2049, and are thereafter subject to an automatic extension of one additional year each 

October 1.  Each year the Power Supply Contract is automatically extended for one additional year so that it will 

always have a term of at least 30 years unless a Project Participant affirmatively elects, upon one year’s prior notice, 

not to extend the Power Supply Contract. See also “Withdrawal by Participant” below. 

Sale and Purchase 

FMPA agrees to sell and deliver to the Project Participant, and the Project Participant agrees to purchase and 

receive from FMPA, all electric capacity and energy (including any associated transmission and dispatching services) 

which the Project Participant shall require for the operation of its municipal electric system over and above the Project 

Participant’s Excluded Power Supply Resources, if any, specified in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contract and over and above Backup and Support Services (the “All-Requirements Services”). 

However, on any January 1, upon at least five years prior written notice to FMPA, the Project Participant 

may limit the maximum amount of electric capacity and energy required to be sold and delivered by FMPA and 

Page 385 of 473



 

 D-17 

purchased and received by the Project Participant as All-Requirements Services for the remainder of the term of the 

contract so as not to exceed the CROD determined as follows:  the “Contract Rate of Delivery” shall be the peak 

demand of the Project Participant for electric capacity and energy as All-Requirements Services under the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contract during the 12 months preceding the date one month prior to the date 

such limitation shall commence, as determined by FMPA, adjusted up or down by not more than 15% so as to provide 

optimal utilization of the FMPA power supply resources, such adjustment to be made by FMPA in its sole discretion. 

Such CROD shall be reduced by FMPA by the total of the Project Participant’s then current Capacity Credit Resources, 

and Partial Requirements Purchase Contract and any power supply resources the Project Participant is obligated to 

purchase from other FMPA power supply projects, if any, as defined and determined pursuant to the Project 

Participant’s Capacity and Energy Sales Contract, if applicable. However, such reduction of the CROD shall not result 

in a negative amount of the CROD. Additionally, the Project Participant may not make such a reduction in the CROD 

more than once during the term of the Contract. 

Payments by Each Participant 

Each Project Participant is required to pay for all electric capacity and energy furnished pursuant to its All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contract at its point or points of delivery according to rates to be established by 

FMPA. The rates of FMPA are to be reviewed at least once a year and, if necessary, revised so as to provide revenues 

sufficient to meet the estimated “Revenue Requirements” of FMPA. The term Revenue Requirements is defined to 

include generally all costs and expenses paid or incurred or to be paid or incurred by FMPA resulting from the 

ownership, operation, maintenance, termination, retirement from service and decommissioning of, and repairs, 

renewals, replacements, additions, improvements, betterments and modifications to, the System or otherwise relating 

to the acquisition and sale of electric capacity and energy and dispatching and transmission services, providing Back-

up and Support Services and the performance by FMPA of its obligations under the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Contracts. The term Revenue Requirements includes, without limitation, all debt service on Bonds issued by 

FMPA to finance its system and, all amounts required, under the Resolution, to be deposited in funds, including the 

Operation and Maintenance Fund established thereunder. FMPA is also required to bill each Project Participant 

monthly on a prompt and timely basis in accordance with a schedule to be determined by FMPA. 

If a Project Participant fails to take power made available by FMPA which it is required to take under its All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, it will be obligated to pay the Agency for such availability an amount 

equal to the product of the demand charge in FMPA’s rate schedule and the billing demand computed on the basis of 

the kilowatts that would otherwise have been taken from FMPA. 

Payments by each Participant under its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract shall be treated as 

an operating expense from the revenues of its electric utility system (or, if the electric utility system is part of an 

integrated utility system, from the revenues of such larger system), and from other funds of such system legally 

available therefor. The obligation of each Project Participant to make such payments is not a general obligation and 

each Project Participant is not required to make such payments from any funds other than those of its electric utility 

system or integrated utility system of the Project Participant of which the electric utility system is part, and from other 

funds of such system legally available therefor. 

The obligations of each Project Participant to make payments under the rate schedule shall not be subject to 

any reduction, whether by offset, counterclaim, recoupment or otherwise, and shall not be otherwise conditioned upon 

the performance by FMPA under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract or any other agreement. 

Rate Covenant 

Each Project Participant agrees to establish, levy and collect rents, rates and other charges for all products 

and services provided by its electric or integrated utility system which rents, rates, and other charges shall be at least 

sufficient (i) to meet the operation and maintenance expenses of such electric or integrated utility system, (ii) to comply 

with all covenants pertaining thereto contained in, and all other provisions of, any resolution, trust indenture, or other 

security agreement relating to any bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued or to be issued by the Project 

Participant, (iii) to generate funds sufficient to fulfill the terms of all other contracts and agreements made by the 

Project Participant, including, without limitation, its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, and (iv) to pay 

Page 386 of 473



 

 D-18 

all other amounts payable from or constituting a lien or charge on the revenues of its electric or integrated utility 

system. 

Restrictions on Disposition of Electrical System, Sales for Resale 

Each Project Participant has agreed that it will not sell, lease, abandon or otherwise dispose of all or 

substantially all of its electric or integrated utility system except on 90 days’ prior written notice to FMPA and, in any 

event, shall not so sell, lease, abandon or otherwise dispose of the same unless the following conditions are met:  (i) 

the Project Participant shall assign the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract and its rights and interest 

thereunder to the purchaser or lessee of the electric system and such purchaser or lessee shall assume all obligations 

of the Project Participant under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract; (ii) FMPA shall be permitted 

by then applicable law to sell electric capacity and energy to said purchaser or lessee, if any; and (iii) FMPA shall by 

appropriate action determine, in its sole discretion, that such sale, lease, abandonment or other disposition will not 

adversely affect FMPA’s ability to meet its obligations under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract or 

any contract, agreement or arrangement to which FMPA is a party as either principal or agent pursuant to which FMPA 

satisfies all or any part of its obligations to provide electric capacity and energy and dispatching and transmission 

services under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract or the All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contracts with the other Project Participants, and will not adversely affect the value of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Contract as security for the payment of Bonds and interest thereon or adversely affect the eligibility of 

interest on Bonds then outstanding or which could be issued in the future for federal or State of Florida tax-exempt 

status. 

A Project Participant may sell at wholesale any of the electric capacity and energy delivered to it pursuant to 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract to any customer of the Project Participant or any other entity for 

resale by that customer or entity, provided that it has first given FMPA five years’ written notice of its intent to sell 

such electric capacity and energy and at the time of such notice provided FMPA with projected data regarding any 

such sales anticipated for the ensuing five year period. FMPA, after receipt of such notice, shall have 180 days in 

which to impose limits on the amount of electric capacity and energy to be sold or to veto such sale if the sale will 

jeopardize FMPA’s availability of resources to serve its Project Participants, increase the cost of electric capacity and 

energy to FMPA, or violate the covenant of the Project Participant that it shall not use or permit to be used any of the 

electric capacity and energy acquired under the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract in any manner or 

for any purpose or take any other action or omit to take any action which would result in the loss of the federal or 

State of Florida tax-exempt status of the interest on any Bond or Bonds issued by FMPA or which could be issued by 

FMPA in the future. 

Authorization and Approval of Additional Projects for the System 

FMPA is authorized by the Project Participants to undertake projects to be included in the System as part of 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project from time to time which are necessary or desirable to enable FMPA to 

fulfill satisfactorily its obligations to use its best efforts to supply electric capacity and energy to the Project 

Participants pursuant to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts and which projects, to the extent 

required by the next paragraph, have been approved by the Executive Committee and the Project Participants pursuant 

to the terms of the next paragraph and to issue Bonds for the purpose of paying all or any part of the costs of any of 

the projects or for any other purposes authorized by the laws of the State of Florida relating to the System. 

The participation of FMPA in any project for the construction, acquisition, purchase, lease or other use of 

any generation, dispatching, load management or transmission resources, output or services that is to be included in 

the System requiring the issuance of Bonds by FMPA or assumption or guaranty by FMPA of other obligations or 

requiring the execution by FMPA of any power supply contract or agreement (other than interchange agreements with 

other utilities) with a basic term of more than seven (7) years must be approved by (a) a majority affirmative vote of 

all of the Project Participants, with each Project Participant entitled to cast one vote, and if so approved, (b) the 

Executive Committee, to the extent and in a manner provided by the laws of the State of Florida, the Interlocal 

Agreement, the By-Laws of FMPA and/or the Resolution. 

Page 387 of 473



 

 D-19 

Withdrawal by Participant 

A Participant may, but only upon satisfaction of certain conditions, terminate its Power Supply Contract and 

withdraw from the All-Requirements Power Supply Project by notifying FMPA and all other Participants in writing 

of its intention to do so at least three years prior to the intended Withdrawal Date (which date must be a September 

30). Any such notice shall be irrevocable. 

The Project Participant shall, on the anticipated Withdrawal Date, pay to FMPA an amount in cash equal to: 

1. the amount necessary to call (including payment of any required call premiums and interest to the 

call date or dates), on the first permissible call date or dates, a percentage of FMPA’s then outstanding Bonds (other 

than Bonds issued to finance additions to the System which FMPA committed to after the receipt of the Project 

Participant’s withdrawal notice) equal to the greater of the Project Participant’s share of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project’s total electric load on the date of receipt of the withdrawal notice or such share on the Withdrawal 

Date. Such amount shall be calculated on the assumption that the Bonds to be called will be the applicable percentage 

of each Series of such Bonds and of each maturity within each such Series. Unless all or any portion of such cash is 

needed at any time to cure any deficiency in any fund or account under the Resolution, FMPA will deposit such 

amount in a separate account in the General Reserve Fund and will retain such amount in such account pending its 

application to redeem Bonds, to purchase Bonds in the open market, or to pay other capital costs of the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project; pending the decision as to such application, such cash may be invested only in 

securities which could be deposited in an escrow fund to defease Bonds under the Resolution; and 

2. an amount equal to the present value on the Withdrawal Date, calculated at the rate of 6% per annum, 

of all of the additional costs reasonably incurred, paid or reasonably anticipated to be incurred or paid, or reasonably 

projected to be incurred by FMPA (as determined by FMPA in its sole discretion) as a result of the withdrawal of the 

Project Participant, over the term specified in such Project Participant’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Contract (as determined on the anticipated Withdrawal Date). Such costs shall be determined on the assumption that, 

during the remaining term of such Project Participant’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract, FMPA was 

unable to make use of or sell any generating, transmission or other resources (or portions thereof) which FMPA had 

anticipated would be used to supply, or had acquired with the intention of supplying, all or any portion of the 

withdrawing Project Participant’s electric load. Such amount shall, unless all or any portion thereof is required at any 

time to be used to cure any deficiency in any fund or account under the Resolution, be deposited into and retained in 

a separate account in the General Reserve Fund to be applied to pay any such costs actually incurred and/or to make 

any payments required to be made to such withdrawing Project Participant described below. 

If and to the extent that any amounts received by FMPA pursuant to either clause 1 or clause 2 described 

above are applied to cure any deficiency in any fund or account under the Resolution, FMPA shall be required to 

restore to the separate account under clause 1 or clause 2 the amount so applied from the Revenues (as defined in the 

Resolution) of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and FMPA shall treat such obligation to restore as an 

expense of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project in determining Revenue Requirements. In addition, at the end 

of each fiscal year of the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, FMPA may, in its sole discretion, remove from 

either the separate account provided for payments received under clause 1 described above or the account provided 

for payments received under clause 2 described above, or both, such amounts determined by FMPA to be in excess of 

the amounts needed to make the payments anticipated to be made from such accounts and deposit such excess amounts 

in the General Reserve Fund itself. 

In addition to the cash payments described above, any such withdrawal is subject to the receipt of the 

following approval, confirmation and opinion. If FMPA has Bonds outstanding which are secured by some form of 

credit support, any required approvals of the provider thereof shall have been obtained within six months of receipt of 

notice of withdrawal. If FMPA has any Bonds outstanding which are not so secured and which are rated by a national 

rating agency, the rating in effect prior to the delivery to FMPA of notice of such withdrawal must be confirmed by 

the rating agency within six months of such notice of withdrawal. FMPA must receive an opinion of Bond Counsel 

which determines that such withdrawal does not adversely affect the federal and/or State of Florida tax-exempt status 

on any Bonds then outstanding or which FMPA may issue in the future. If such withdrawal would require FMPA to 

obtain a “cap’ allocation to issue any future Bonds, such requirement shall be treated as adversely affecting the federal 

and/or State of Florida tax-exempt status of Bonds or future bonds. 

Page 388 of 473



 

 D-20 

Within 180 days after the first anniversary of such withdrawal and annually thereafter for the specified term 

of the withdrawing Project Participant’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contract (as such term is determined 

on the Withdrawal Date), FMPA will pay to the withdrawing Project Participant an amount equal to the additional 

benefits actually received by FMPA during the preceding year as a result of such withdrawal as calculated by FMPA 

in its sole discretion. The net amount of payments to the withdrawing Project Participant may not exceed 90% of the 

payment to FMPA by the Project Participant as described in clause 2 above. To the extent that the amounts remaining 

on deposit in the separate account described in clause 2 above are, or are anticipated to be, insufficient to make any 

payment described in this paragraph, the amount required to make such payment shall be treated as an expense of the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project to be recovered as a Revenue Requirement. 

If all of the foregoing conditions have not been satisfied on the anticipated Withdrawal Date, the Project 

Participant shall continue as a Project Participant in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. In such event, the 

Project Participant shall pay all costs incurred by FMPA as a result of the Project Participant’s anticipated withdrawal 

and subsequent continuance in the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, and FMPA shall have no obligation to 

make any payments to the Project Participant described in the preceding paragraph. 

Page 389 of 473



 

 E-1 

APPENDIX E 

 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon delivery of the Offered Securities in definitive form, Nixon Peabody LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel 

to FMPA, proposes to render its final approving opinion in substantially the following form:  

[Date of Closing] 

Executive Committee 

Florida Municipal Power Agency 

8553 Commodity Circle 

Orlando, Florida 32819 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have examined a record of proceedings relating to the issuance of the $________ aggregate principal 

amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the “2019A Bonds”), 

$________ aggregate principal amount of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 

2019B (Federally Taxable) (the “2019B Bonds” and, collectively with the 2019A Bonds, the “Offered Securities”) of 

Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”), a governmental legal entity of the State of Florida, organized and 

existing under Section 163.01 and Chapter 36l, Part II, of the Florida Statutes, as amended (collectively, the “Act”). 

The Offered Securities are issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Florida, 

and particularly Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, and under and pursuant to a resolution of FMPA 

adopted on March 22, 1985 entitled “All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution”, as amended 

and restated in its entirety on May 23, 2003, as supplemented and amended to the date hereof, including as 

supplemented and amended by the Supplemental and Amendatory All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bond Resolution (Governance Amendments) adopted May 24, 2007 and as supplemented by the Series 2019A 

Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the 

2019A Bonds and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) authorizing the 2019B Bonds, each adopted on [________], 2019 (such All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution as so supplemented and amended being herein called the “Resolution”). 

The Offered Securities are numbered from one (1) consecutively upward and have the numbers and letters 

19AR- prefixed to their numbers in the case of the 2019A Bonds and the numbers and letters 19BR- prefixed to their 

numbers in the case of the 2019B Bonds. The Offered Securities are dated their date of delivery, and, except as 

otherwise provided in the Resolution, bear interest from such date or the most recent payment date to which interest 

has been paid or duly provided for. Interest on the Offered Securities is payable on each April 1 and October 1, 

commencing April 1, 2020. The Offered Securities will mature on the dates and in the principal amounts, and will 

bear interest at the respective rates per annum, shown or described in the Official Statement relating to the Offered 

Securities. The Offered Securities are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.  

The Offered Securities are issuable in the form of fully registered bonds in the denomination of $5,000 or 

any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof. The Offered Securities are exchangeable as provided in the 

Resolution. 

FMPA reserves the right to issue Additional Bonds and Refunding Bonds on the terms and conditions and 

for the purposes stated in the Resolution. Under the provisions of the Resolution, such Additional Bonds will rank 

equally as to security and payment with the Offered Securities and with FMPA’s currently Outstanding All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds. 

All terms defined in the Resolution and used herein shall have the meanings assigned in the Resolution, 

except where the context hereof otherwise requires. 

Page 390 of 473



 

 E-2 

FMPA has entered into separate All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts with [fourteen] Florida 

entities (the “Participants”) (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the “Power Supply Contracts”), 

pursuant to which FMPA will sell and deliver to each Participant, and each Participant agrees to purchase and receive 

from FMPA, all electric capacity and energy (including any associated transmission and dispatching services) which 

such Participant shall require for the operation of its municipal electric system over and above the Excluded Power 

Supply Resources (as defined in the Power Supply Contracts) or, if a Participant has so elected, electric capacity and 

energy at a CROD (as defined in the Power Supply Contracts). The payments by each Participant under its Power 

Supply Contract shall be treated as an operating expense payable from the revenues of its electric utility system (or, if 

the electric utility system is part of an integrated utility system, from the revenues of such larger system) and from 

other funds of such system legally available therefor. The obligation of each Participant to make such payments is not 

a general obligation, and each Participant is not required to make such payments from any funds other than those of 

its electric utility system, or integrated utility system of the Participant of which the electric utility system is part, and 

from other funds of such system legally available therefor. 

We have also examined one of said 2019A Bonds and one of said 2019B Bonds, as executed and, in our 

opinion, the form of said 2019A Bond and the form of said 2019B Bond are each regular and proper. 

We are of the opinion that: 

1. FMPA is a governmental legal entity duly created and validly existing under the provisions of the 

Act. 

2. FMPA has the right and power under the Act to adopt the Resolution, and the Resolution has been 

duly and lawfully adopted by FMPA, is in full force and effect, is valid and binding upon FMPA and is enforceable 

in accordance with its terms, and no other authorization for the Resolution is required. The Resolution creates the 

valid pledge which it purports to create for the benefit of the holders of the Offered Securities of (i) the proceeds of 

the sale of Bonds (ii) all right, title and interest of FMPA in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, (iii) the 

Revenues (as defined in the Resolution), and (iv) all Funds, established by the Resolution (other than the 

Decommissioning Fund, if established) including the investment income, if any, thereon, subject only to the provisions 

of the Resolution permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the 

Resolution. 

3. FMPA is duly authorized and entitled to issue the Offered Securities, and the Offered Securities 

have been duly and validly authorized and issued by FMPA in accordance with the Constitution and Statutes of the 

State of Florida, and particularly Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, and the Resolution, and constitute 

the valid and binding obligations of FMPA as provided in the Resolution, enforceable in accordance with their terms 

and the terms of the Resolution and entitled to the benefits of the Act and the Resolution. The Offered Securities are 

special obligations of FMPA payable solely out of the Revenues and other funds pledged thereto under the Resolution, 

and neither the State of Florida nor any political subdivision thereof, nor any city or other entity which is a member 

of FMPA, other than FMPA, is obligated to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Offered 

Securities, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of Florida or any political subdivision 

thereof or any such city or other entity is pledged to the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest 

on the Offered Securities. Under the Resolution, FMPA may issue additional Bonds and may incur additional 

obligations constituting Parity Debt on parity with the Bonds. 

4. FMPA has the right and power to enter into and carry out its obligations under each Power Supply 

Contract, and each Power Supply Contract has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by FMPA and, assuming 

due authorization, execution and delivery by each respective Participant, constitutes a valid and binding agreement of 

FMPA in accordance with its terms. 

5. The Refunded Bonds have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the 

Resolution, and the covenants, agreements and obligations of FMPA to the holders of the Refunded Bonds have been 

discharged and satisfied. 

6. Under the Constitution and general laws of the State of Florida, the Power Supply Contracts of the 

respective Participants constitute the valid and binding agreements of the respective Participants, enforceable in 

Page 391 of 473



 

 E-3 

accordance with their respective terms. In rendering the foregoing opinion, we have made no investigation of, and do 

not express any opinion with respect to, the following as they may relate to the valid and binding nature of such Power 

Supply Contracts:  (i) the legal existence or formation of any Participant or the incumbency of any official or officer 

thereof, (ii) the charter, bylaws or other governing instruments of any Participant, (iii) any local or special acts or any 

ordinance, resolution or other proceedings of any Participant, including, without limitation, any proceedings relating 

to the negotiation or authorization of any such Power Supply Contract or the execution, delivery or performance 

thereof, (iv) any bond resolution, indenture, contract, debt instrument, agreement or other instrument (other than such 

Power Supply Contracts) or any governmental order, regulation or rule of or applicable to any Participant, (v) any 

judicial order, judgment or decree in a proceeding to which any Participant is a party, or (vi) any approval, consent, 

filing, registration or authorization by or with any regulatory authority or other governmental or public agency, 

authority or person which may be or has been required for the authorization, execution, delivery or performance by 

any Participant of its Power Supply Contract. FMPA has received opinions, independent from this opinion, with 

respect to, among other things, the validity and enforceability of the Power Supply Contracts with the Participants 

rendered by legal counsel to the respective Participants. 

7. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), sets forth certain requirements which 

must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the 2019A Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded 

from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest 

on the 2019A Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue 

of the 2019A Bonds. Pursuant to the Resolution, FMPA has covenanted to comply with applicable requirements of 

the Code in order to maintain the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the 2019A Bonds pursuant to Section 

103(a) of the Code, and in furtherance thereof, to comply with the tax certificate executed by FMPA in connection 

with the issuance and delivery of the 2019A Bonds. In addition, FMPA has made certain factual representations and 

certifications of expectations as to tax matters, contained in that tax certificate. We have not independently verified 

the accuracy of those certifications and representations. Under existing law, and assuming compliance with the tax 

covenants described herein and the accuracy of the aforementioned representations and certifications, interest on the 

2019A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. We are 

also of the opinion that such interest is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax 

imposed under the Code. 

8. The excess of the principal amount of a maturity of the 2019A Bonds over the price at which price 

a substantial amount of such maturity of the 2019A Bonds was sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers or 

similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) (each, a “Discount Bond” and 

collectively the “Discount Bonds”)  constitutes original issue discount which is excluded from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the 2019A Bonds.  Further, such original issue discount accrues 

actuarially on a constant interest rate basis over the term of each Discount Bond and the basis of each Discount Bond 

acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the amount of such accrued 

original issue discount.  The accrual of original issue discount may be taken into account as an increase in the amount 

of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning the Discount Bonds, 

even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment. 

9. We note that interest on the 2019B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes and so will be fully subject to federal income taxation; this opinion is not intended or provided by Bond 

Counsel to be used and cannot be used by an owner of the 2019B Bonds for the purpose of avoiding penalties that 

may be imposed on the owner of such 2019B Bonds.  The opinion set forth in this paragraph is provided to support 

the promotion or marketing of the 2019B Bonds.  Each owner of the 2019B Bonds should seek advice based on its 

particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor. 

Except as stated in the preceding paragraphs (7), (8) and (9), we express no opinion as to any other Federal, 

state or local tax consequences of the ownership or disposition of the Offered Securities. Furthermore, we express no 

opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with respect to the Offered Securities, or the interest 

thereon, if any action is taken or not taken with respect to the Offered Securities or the proceeds thereof upon the 

advice or approval of other bond counsel. 

The opinions set forth above are subject to the effect of, and restrictions and limitations imposed by or 

resulting from, bankruptcy, insolvency, debt adjustment, moratorium, reorganization or other similar laws affecting 

Page 392 of 473



 

 E-4 

creditors’ rights and judicial discretion and the valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State of Florida 

and of the constitutional power of the United States of America. 

By use of the word “enforceable” in this opinion, we are not rendering any opinion as to the availability of 

the remedy of specific performance or other equitable relief. 

Very truly yours, 

Page 393 of 473



 

 F-1 

APPENDIX F 

 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Offered 

Securities. The Offered Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 

(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One 

fully-registered Offered Security certificate will be issued for each Series and maturity of the Offered Securities, in 

the aggregate principal amount of such Series and maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New 

York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 

Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 

and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and 

municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct 

Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and 

other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges 

between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct 

Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 

corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing 

Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed 

Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its 

regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 

brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial 

relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard & 

Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Offered Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 

will receive a credit for the Offered Securities on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 

each Offered Security (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. 

Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, 

expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their 

holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. 

Transfers of ownership interests in the Offered Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of 

Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates 

representing their ownership interests in Offered Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for 

the Offered Securities is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Offered Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 

registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 

authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Offered Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of 

Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of 

the actual Beneficial Owners of the Offered Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct 

Participants to whose accounts such Offered Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. 

The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 

customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 

Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 

arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF OFFERED SECURITIES MAY WISH TO TAKE CERTAIN STEPS TO AUGMENT 

THE TRANSMISSION TO THEM OF NOTICES OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE 

OFFERED SECURITIES, SUCH AS REDEMPTIONS, TENDERS, DEFAULTS, AND PROPOSED 

AMENDMENTS TO THE SECURITY DOCUMENTS. FOR EXAMPLE, BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF OFFERED 

Page 394 of 473

http://www.dtcc/


 

 F-2 

SECURITIES MAY WISH TO ASCERTAIN THAT THE NOMINEE HOLDING THE OFFERED SECURITIES 

FOR THEIR BENEFIT HAS AGREED TO OBTAIN AND TRANSMIT NOTICES TO BENEFICIAL OWNERS. 

IN THE ALTERNATIVE, BENEFICIAL OWNERS MAY WISH TO PROVIDE THEIR NAMES AND 

ADDRESSES TO THE REGISTRAR AND REQUEST THAT COPIES OF NOTICES BE PROVIDED DIRECTLY 

TO THEM. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Offered Securities within an issue are being 

redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to 

be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Offered 

Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual 

procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to FMPA as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy 

assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Offered Securities 

are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Offered Securities will be made to Cede 

& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit 

Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from FMPA or its 

agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants 

to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities 

held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such 

Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, or FMPA, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 

effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or 

such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of FMPA or the 

Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of 

such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Offered Securities purchased or tendered, through 

its Participant, to Tender Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Offered Securities by causing the Direct Participant 

to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Offered Securities, on DTC’s records, to Tender Agent. The requirement 

for physical delivery of Offered Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be 

deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Offered Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s 

records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Offered Securities to Tender Agent’s DTC account. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Offered Securities at any time 

by giving reasonable notice to FMPA or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor 

depository is not obtained, Offered Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

FMPA may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor 

securities depository). In that event, Offered Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

NEITHER FMPA NOR THE TRUSTEE NOR THE UNDERWRITER (OTHER THAN IN ITS 

CAPACITY, IF ANY, AS A DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR AN INDIRECT PARTICIPANT) WILL HAVE ANY 

OBLIGATION TO THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS 

FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO DTC’S PROCEDURES OR ANY PROCEDURES 

OR ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS AND THE 

PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT RELATING TO THE MAKING OF ANY DEMAND BY CEDE & CO. AS 

THE REGISTERED OWNER OF OFFERED SECURITIES, THE ADHERENCE TO SUCH PROCEDURES OR 

ARRANGEMENTS OR THE EFFECTIVENESS OF ANY ACTION TAKEN PURSUANT TO SUCH 

PROCEDURES OR ARRANGEMENTS. 

THE ABOVE INFORMATION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM HAS BEEN 

OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT FMPA BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT FMPA TAKES NO 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NEITHER FMPA NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE 

ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPANTS, BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR OTHER 

Page 395 of 473



 

 F-3 

NOMINEES OF SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNERS FOR (1) SENDING TRANSACTION STATEMENTS; 

(2) MAINTAINING, SUPERVISING OR REVIEWING, OR THE ACCURACY OF, ANY RECORDS 

MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNERS; 

(3) PAYMENT OR THE TIMELINESS OF PAYMENT BY DTC TO ANY PARTICIPANT, OR BY ANY 

PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER, OF ANY 

AMOUNT DUE IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUM, IF ANY, INTEREST OR 

PURCHASE PRICE ON OFFERED SECURITIES; (4) DELIVERY OR TIMELY DELIVERY BY DTC TO ANY 

PARTICIPANT, OR BY ANY PARTICIPANT OR OTHER NOMINEES OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO ANY 

BENEFICIAL OWNERS, OF ANY NOTICE (INCLUDING NOTICE OF REDEMPTION) OR OTHER 

COMMUNICATION WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE RESOLUTION 

TO BE GIVEN TO HOLDERS OR OWNERS OF OFFERED SECURITIES; (5) THE SELECTION OF THE 

BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF 

OFFERED SECURITIES; OR (6) ANY ACTION TAKEN BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEE AS THE REGISTERED 

OWNER OF OFFERED SECURITIES. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of Offered Securities, as nominee for DTC, references in this 

Official Statement to the Bondholders, Holders or registered owners of Offered Securities (other than under the caption 

“TAX MATTERS” herein) shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of Offered 

Securities. 

When reference is made to any action which is required or permitted to be taken by the Beneficial Owners, 

such reference shall only relate to those permitted to act (by statute, regulation or otherwise) on behalf of such 

Beneficial Owners for such purposes. When notices are given, they shall be sent by FMPA or the Trustee to DTC 

only. 

As long as the book-entry system is used for Offered Securities, the Trustee and FMPA will give any notices 

required to be given to Owners of Offered Securities only to DTC. Any failure of DTC to advise any Direct Participant, 

or of any Direct Participant to notify any Indirect Participant, or of any Direct Participant or Indirect Participant to 

notify any Beneficial Owner, of any such notice and its content or effect will not affect the validity of the action 

premised on such notice. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 

Participants to Indirect Participants and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 

governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from 

time to time. Beneficial owners may desire to make arrangements with a Direct Participant or Indirect Participant so 

that all notices of redemption or other communications to DTC which affect such Beneficial Owners will be forwarded 

in writing by such Direct Participant or Indirect Participant. 

NEITHER FMPA NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO 

SUCH DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES, WITH 

RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, 

THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF OFFERED SECURITIES. 

For every transfer and exchange of a beneficial ownership interest in Offered Securities, the Beneficial Owner 

may be charged a sum sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation 

thereto. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to Offered Securities at any time by 

giving reasonable notice to FMPA or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository 

is not obtained, certificates for the Offered Securities are required to be printed and delivered. 

FMPA may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor 

securities depository). In that event, certificates for the Offered Securities will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from 

sources that FMPA believes to be reliable, but FMPA takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

Page 396 of 473



 

  

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Page 397 of 473



 

 G-1 

 

APPENDIX G 

 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDER SEC RULE 15C2-12 

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the provisions of paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 

promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 

(“Rule 15c2-12”), FMPA and the Trustee will enter into a written agreement for the benefit of the holders of the 

Offered Securities (the “Disclosure Agreement”) to provide continuing disclosure. FMPA will undertake in the 

Disclosure Agreement to provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) in electronic format 

through the Electronic Municipal Market Access website of the MSRB (“EMMA”), currently located at 

https://emma.msrb.org, on an annual basis by no later than nine months after the end of each fiscal year of FMPA 

commencing with the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 certain financial information and operating data, referred 

to herein as “Annual Financial Information,” including, but not limited to annual financial statements of FMPA.  In 

addition, FMPA will undertake in the Disclosure Agreement, for the benefit of the holders of the Offered Securities, 

to provide to the MSRB, in a timely manner (not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of the event), 

the notices required to be provided by Rule 15c2-12 and described below. 

The required Annual Financial Information shall consist of (1) the annual agency financial information 

consisting of (A) financial and operating data relating to the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

consisting of: (i) a description of the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project; (ii) information of the type 

included in the table captioned “Historical and Projected Future Capacity Requirements and Resources” under the 

heading “THE PROJECT” for the three most recently completed fiscal years; (iii) historical operating results for the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project for the three most recently completed fiscal years, including net sales to 

Participants and net power costs; and (iv) information concerning the Agency’s debt service requirements for the All-

Requirements Power Supply Project; (B) a presentation of the Agency’s financial results in accordance with GAAP 

for the two most recent completed fiscal years for which that information is then currently available; (C) material 

litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with (D) such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid 

misunderstanding and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information and operating data 

concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the Agency (collectively, the “Annual Agency Financial 

Information”); and (2) the annual Major Participant financial information consisting of (A) financial and operating 

data consisting of:  (i) the information of the type contained herein in Appendix B — “THE MAJOR 

PARTICIPANTS”, after fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, other than the information contained under the 

heading “General”; (ii) information concerning sales of electric services, customers, and non-coincident peak demand; 

and (iii) a presentation of the Major Participants’ information concerning historical net energy requirements and peak 

demand; (B) material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with (C) such narrative explanation as may 

be necessary to avoid misunderstanding and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial 

information and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the Major Participants 

(collectively, the “Annual Major Participant Financial Information”).  For the purpose of determining which 

Participants constitute “Major Participants,” any Participant which as of September 30 in any year accounts for 10% 

or more of the Revenues for the All-Requirements Power Supply Project for the preceding fiscal year will be deemed 

a Major Participant. 

The type of historical financial information and operating data relating to FMPA described above is currently 

included herein under the headings “DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS,” “THE PROJECT” and “LITIGATION.”  

The type of financial information and operating data relating to the Major Participants described above is currently 

included herein under the headings “THE PROJECT PARTICIPANTS”, APPENDIX A — “MEMBERS’ 

PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS” and APPENDIX B — “THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS.”  The 

requirements contained in the undertaking discussed above are intended to set forth a general description of the type 

of financial information and operating data to be provided; such descriptions are not intended to state more than 

general categories of financial information and operating data; and where information required to be disclosed can no 

longer be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially changed or discontinued, a 

statement to that effect shall be provided. 

All or any portion of the Annual Financial Information, as well as the audited financial statements, may be 

incorporated therein by cross reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB through its 

EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, that if the document is an official 

Page 398 of 473



 

 G-2 

 

statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not have been filed elsewhere. Annual Financial 

Information for any fiscal year containing any modified operating data or financial information for each such fiscal 

year shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for such modification and the effect of such modification on the 

Annual Financial Information being provided for such fiscal year. If a change in accounting principles is included in 

any such modification, such Annual Financial Information shall present a comparison between the financial statements 

or information prepared on the basis of the modified accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the 

former accounting principles. Such comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 

accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial 

information. To the extent feasible, such comparison shall also be quantitative. A notice of any such change in 

accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB through its EMMA system. 

Pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, FMPA will undertake for the benefit 

of Holders of the Offered Securities to provide or cause to be provided either directly or through the Trustee, Audited 

Financial Statements of the Agency and the Major Participants by no later than nine months after the end of each fiscal 

year commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, when and if such audited financial statements 

become available and, if such audited financial statements are not available on the date which is nine months after the 

end of a fiscal year, the unaudited financial statements of FMPA and Major Participants for such fiscal year. The 

Audited Agency Financial Statements and the Audited Major Participant Financial Statements will be filed with the 

MSRB through its EMMA system. 

FMPA will undertake, for the benefit of Holders of the Offered Securities, to provide or cause to be provided 

either directly or through the Trustee, notice to EMMA of any of the following events (1) principal and interest 

payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves 

reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) 

substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the 

Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-

TEB) or other material notices and determinations with respect to the tax status of the Offered Securities or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the Offered Securities; (7) modifications to the rights of Holders of the 

Offered Securities, if material; (8) bond calls, if material; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property 

securing repayment of the Offered Securities, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) tender offers; (13) bankruptcy, 

insolvency, receivership or similar event of FMPA or a Major Participant; (14) consummation of a merger, 

consolidation or acquisition involving FMPA, the sale of all or substantially all of FMPA’s assets, other than in the 

ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a 

definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; (15) appointment of a 

successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if material; (16) the incurrence of a Financial 

Obligation (as defined below) of FMPA or a Major Participant, if material, or agreement as to covenants, events of 

default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of FMPA or a Major Participant, any 

of which affect holders of the Offered Securities, if material; (17) a default, event of acceleration, termination event, 

modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of FMPA or a Major 

Participant, any of which reflect financial difficulties and (18) failure to provide annual financial information as 

required.  “Financial Obligation” (i) means a: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative instrument entered into in connection 

with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (C) guarantee of (A) 

or (B), but (ii) shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the 

MSRB consistent with Rule 15c2-12. 

FMPA will request, obtain and provide, pursuant to the Power Supply Contracts or otherwise, Annual Major 

Participant Financial Information, Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, and information relating to any 

change in fiscal year and the basis on which audited financial statements are prepared, from time to time and in 

sufficient time to permit FMPA to comply with the provisions of the undertaking, and shall enforce such provisions 

of the undertaking; the failure of any Major Participant to furnish any such requested information or data shall not 

excuse the performance by FMPA of any of its obligations under the undertaking. Under the Power Supply Contracts, 

the Participants are required to furnish to FMPA, upon request, all information, financial statements and other 

documents as shall be reasonably necessary in connection with the financing of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project. 

Page 399 of 473



 

 G-3 

 

If FMPA fails to comply with any provision of its undertaking described herein, then the Trustee or any 

Holder of the Offered Securities (which will include beneficial owners during any period that DTC acts as securities 

depository for, and DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of, the Offered Securities) may enforce, for the equal 

benefit and protection of all Holders similarly situated, by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity, 

the undertaking against FMPA and any of its officers, agents and employees, and may compel FMPA or any such 

officers, agents or employees to perform and carry out their duties thereunder; provided that the sole and exclusive 

remedy for breach or default under the undertaking is an action to compel specific performance, and no person, 

including any Holder of Offered Securities, may recover monetary damages thereunder under any circumstances, and 

provided further that any challenge to the adequacy of any information under the undertaking may be brought only by 

the Trustee or the Holders of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Offered Securities at the time outstanding 

which are affected thereby. Failure to comply with any provisions of the undertaking shall not constitute a default 

under the Resolution nor give right to the Trustee or any Holder to exercise any of the remedies under the Resolution. 

The foregoing is intended to set forth a general description of the type of financial information and operating 

data that will be provided; the descriptions are not intended to state more than general categories of financial 

information and operating data; and where FMPA’s undertaking calls for information that no longer can be generated 

or is no longer relevant because the operations to which it related have been materially changed or discontinued, a 

statement to that effect will be provided.  FMPA does not anticipate that it often will be necessary to amend the 

undertaking. The undertaking, however, may be amended or modified under certain circumstances set forth therein 

and the undertaking will continue until the earlier of the date the Offered Securities have been paid in full or legally 

defeased pursuant to the Resolution or the date the undertaking is no longer required by law. Copies of the undertaking 

when executed by the parties will be on file at the office of FMPA. 

Page 400 of 473



 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 401 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

EXHIBIT C  

FORM OF ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

by and between 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

(ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT) 

and 

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

as Escrow Agent and Trustee 

______________________ 

Dated November ___, 2019 

______________________ 

Relating to the Payment on the Redemption Date of the  

Redemption Price and interest on the outstanding 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand  

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C, 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds 

Series 2013A (Taxable) 

 

 

Page 402 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- i - 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

SECTION 1.    Irrevocable Instructions. ..........................................................................................2 

SECTION 2.    Investment of Money. ............................................................................................ 4 

SECTION 3.    Substitute Securities. .............................................................................................. 4 

SECTION 4.    Bondholder’s Lien.................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 5.    Defeasance. ............................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 6.    Amendments. ......................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 7.    Bank’s Duties. ........................................................................................................ 5 

SECTION 8.    Compensation......................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 9.    Governing Law. ..................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 10.  Counterparts. .......................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 11.  Severability. ........................................................................................................... 6 

 

Schedule 1 – BONDS TO BE REDEEMED ............................................................................ S-1-1 

Schedule 2 – DESCRIPTION OF ESCROW INVESTMENTS .............................................. S-2-1 

 

Exhibit A – FORM OF NOTICE OF REDEMPTION .................................................. Exhibit A-1 

Exhibit B – NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE AND PRIOR REDEMPTION .................... Exhibit B-1 

 

Page 403 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

 

ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

This ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (this “Escrow Agreement”) is made as of 

November ___, 2019, by and between the Florida Municipal Power Agency (All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project) (“FMPA”) and TD Bank, National Association, as escrow agent 

hereunder and as Trustee under the Resolution (defined below) (the “Bank”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, FMPA, under and pursuant to its All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety 

on May 23, 2003 (the “Bond Resolution”), as supplemented and amended including as 

supplemented by the Series 2008 Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Revenue Bond Resolution (Variable Rate Bonds), adopted by the Executive Committee on 

August 13, 2008 (the “Series 2008 Supplemental Resolution”), which authorized, among other 

things, the issuance of All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C in an aggregate principal amount of $154,565,000 

(the “Series 2008C Bonds”), and as supplemented by the Series 2013A Supplemental All-

Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted by the Executive 

Committee on July 19, 2013 (the “Series 2013 Supplemental Resolution” and together with the 

Series 2008 Supplemental Resolution, the “Refunded Bonds Supplemental Resolutions”), 

which authorized the issuance of $15,000,000 aggregate principal amount of All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) (the “Series 2013A Bonds”); 

and 

WHEREAS, FMPA wishes to defease all of the outstanding Series 2008C Bonds 

shown in Schedule 1 (“the “Refunded Series 2008C Bonds”) and all of the outstanding Series 

2013A Bonds shown in Schedule 1 (the “Refunded Series 2013A Bonds” and, together with the 

Refunded Series 2008C Bonds, the “Refunded Bonds”);  

WHEREAS, FMPA has determined to issue (i) $__________ principal amount 

of its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A (the 

“Series 2019A Bonds”) under and pursuant to the Bond Resolution and the Series 2019A 

Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate 

Bonds), adopted on September 19, 2019 (the “Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution”) and the 

Initial Bond Series Certificate, dated as of October __, 2019 (the “Series 2019A Bond Series 

Certificate), executed by FMPA in connection with the Series 2019A Bonds and (ii) 

$__________ principal amount of its All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (the “Series 2019B Bonds”) under and pursuant to the Bond 

Resolution and the Series 2019B Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue 

Bond Resolution (Fixed Rate Bonds), adopted on September 19, 2019 (the “Series 2019B 

Supplemental Resolution”) and the Initial Bond Series Certificate, dated as of October __, 2019 

(the “Series 2019B Bond Series Certificate), executed by FMPA in connection with the Series 

2019B Bonds (said Series 2019B Bond Series Certificate, together with the Bond Resolution, the 

Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution and the 

Series 2019A Bond Series Certificate(the “Resolution”);  

Page 404 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 2 - 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Series 2019A Supplemental Resolution, a portion of the 

proceeds of the Series 2019A Bonds will be provided to the Bank, along with $__________ from 

amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund to enable the Bank to 

have moneys sufficient to pay on the redemption date the redemption price of and interest on the 

Refunded Series 2008C Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Series 2019B Supplemental Resolution, a portion of the 

proceeds of the Series 2019B Bonds will be provided to the Bank, along with $__________ from 

amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund to enable the Bank to 

have moneys sufficient to pay on the redemption date the redemption price of and interest on the 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFOR, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants, 

agreements and representations herein set forth, FMPA and the Bank hereby agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.    Irrevocable Instructions.  FMPA hereby irrevocably instructs the Bank, 

and the Bank hereby agrees, as follows: 

(a)    The Bank shall establish (i) a special trust account to be known as the “Florida 

Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2019A Escrow Account (the “Series 2019A Escrow Account”,” and (ii)  a special trust 

account to be known as the “Florida Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B Escrow Account (the “Series 2019B Escrow 

Account,” and together with the Series 2019A Escrow Account, the“Escrow Account”); 

(b)    On the date of delivery of the Series 2019A Bonds, FMPA shall deposit, or cause to 

be deposited, with the Bank the following amounts that the Bank shall deposit in the Series 

2019A Escrow Account (i) an amount equal to $__________ from the proceeds of the Series 

2019A Bonds, and (ii) an amount equal to $__________ from monies held by it as trustee under 

the Resolution in the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund with respect to the 

Refunded Series 2008C Bonds.  The Bank shall use $__________ of the amount deposited in the 

Series 2019A Escrow Account to purchase the escrow investments described in Schedule 2 

attached hereto (the “Series 2019A Escrow Investments”).  The remaining sum of 

$__________ shall be held in cash uninvested. 

(c)     On the date of delivery of the Series 2019B Bonds, FMPA shall deposit, or cause to 

be deposited, with the Bank the following amounts that the Bank shall deposit in the Series 

2019B Escrow Account (i) an amount equal to $__________ from the proceeds of the Series 

2019B Bonds, and (ii) an amount equal to $__________ from monies held by it as trustee under 

the Resolution in the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund with respect to the 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds.  The Bank shall use $__________ of the amount deposited in the 

Series 2019B Escrow Account to purchase the escrow investments described in Schedule 2 

attached hereto (the “Series 2019B Escrow Investments”).  The remaining sum of 

$__________ shall be held in cash uninvested. 

(d)    The Bank shall collect and deposit in the Series 2019A Escrow Account the 

principal of and interest on all investments (the “Series 2019A Earnings”) held for the account 

Page 405 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 3 - 
 

of the Series 2019A Escrow Account promptly as such principal matures and such interest 

becomes due and shall apply such principal and interest, together with any other moneys on 

deposit in the Series 2019A Escrow Account, in accordance with this Escrow Agreement; 

(e)    The Bank shall collect and deposit in the Series 2019B Escrow Account the 

principal of and interest on all investments (the “Series 2019B Earnings”) held for the account 

of the Series 2019B Escrow Account promptly as such principal matures and such interest 

becomes due and shall apply such principal and interest, together with any other moneys on 

deposit in the Series 2019B Escrow Account, in accordance with this Escrow Agreement; 

(f)    The Bank shall hold the Series 2019A Escrow Account, together with the Series 

2019A Escrow Investments and all money from time to time therein, as a special and separate 

trust account, wholly segregated from all other securities and money on deposit with the Bank, 

for the payment of the redemption price of and interest on the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds on 

their respective redemption date shown on Schedule 1 hereto; 

(g)    The Bank shall hold the Series 2019B Escrow Account, together with the Series 

2019B Escrow Investments and all money from time to time therein, as a special and separate 

trust account, wholly segregated from all other securities and money on deposit with the Bank, 

for the payment of the redemption price of and interest on the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds on 

their respective redemption date shown on Schedule 1 hereto; 

(h)    FMPA directs the Bank, as Trustee for the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds, to give 

notice of redemption of the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds to be redeemed on the applicable 

redemption date as provided in Section 405 of the Resolution, as supplemented by the Series 

2008 Supplemental Resolution relating to the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds, on behalf of FMPA 

in the form provided in Exhibit A attached hereto.  FMPA hereby directs the Bank, as Trustee for 

the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds, to give notice of redemption of the Refunded Series 2013A 

Bonds to be redeemed on the applicable redemption date as provided in Section 405 of the 

Resolution, as supplemented by the Series 2013A Supplemental Resolution relating to the 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds, on behalf of FMPA in the form provided in Exhibit A attached 

hereto.  FMPA directs the Bank, as Trustee for the Refunded Bonds, to provide notice of 

defeasance in the form provided in Exhibit B attached hereto for the Refunded Bonds.  

Redemption notices and defeasance notices distributed by the Trustee will be sent to bondholders 

pursuant to the Resolution and will be distributed to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 

(“MSRB”) through the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system. 

(i)    The Bank shall apply the money in the Escrow Account to the payment of the 

redemption price of and interest on the Refunded Bonds on their respective redemption dates in 

the amounts set forth in Schedule 1 hereto; and 

(j)    After payment in full in accordance herewith of the redemption price of and the 

interest due on the Refunded Bonds on their respective redemption dates, the Bank shall transfer 

(i) from the Series 2019A Escrow Account to the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund 

for the Series 2019A Bonds or to such other account directed by FMPA and in accordance with 

applicable law and acceptable to the Bond Counsel, held  under the Resolution, free and clear of 

the trusts created hereby, any and all money remaining in the Series 2019A Escrow Account and 

Page 406 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 4 - 
 

(ii) from the Series 2019B Escrow Account to the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service 

Fund for the Series 2019B Bonds or to such other account directed by FMPA and in accordance 

with applicable law and acceptable to the Bond Counsel, held  under the Resolution, free and 

clear of the trusts created hereby, any and all money remaining in the Series 2019B Escrow 

Account. 

Neither the Series 2019A Escrow Investments, the Series 2019B Escrow Investments, the 

money deposited in the Series 2019A Escrow Account, and the money deposited in the Series 

2019B Escrow Account pursuant to this Escrow Agreement, nor the principal or interest 

payments on any such Series 2019A Escrow Investments and Series 2019B Escrow Investments, 

respectively, shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than as set forth in this Escrow 

Agreement, and shall be held in trust for the payment of the redemption price of the Refunded 

Bonds when due and the payment of interest on the Refunded Bonds when due. 

SECTION 2.    Investment of Money.No money held in the Escrow Account shall be 

invested by the Bank other than as provided in Section 1(b) and Section 3 hereof. 

SECTION 3.    Substitution of Escrow Investments.(a) If any of the Series 2019A 

Escrow Investments or the Series 2019B Escrow Investments are not available for delivery on 

the date of the issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds or the Series 2019B Bonds, respectively, the 

Escrow Agent is directed to accept moneys and/or other Series 2019A Escrow Investments or 

Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable (“Substituted Securities”) in lieu thereof, 

provided:  (1) the Substituted Securities are non-callable direct obligations of the United States 

of America, (2) the maturing principal of and interest on such Substituted Securities is equal to 

or greater than the maturity value of the unavailable Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 

2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable and is payable on or prior to the dates payments were 

scheduled to be made on the unavailable Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B 

Escrow Investments, as applicable, (3) if moneys are delivered, such moneys (to be held 

uninvested) are delivered in an amount which, together with any Substituted Securities and any 

Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable listed in 

Schedule 2 hereof for which no substitution is made, will be sufficient to pay all of the principal 

of and interest to become due on the Refunded Bonds, (4) FMPA and Bond Counsel approve 

such substitution, and (5) FMPA, the Trustee and Bond Counsel receive verification from an 

independent certified public accountant stating that the principal of and interest on the 

Substituted Securities and the Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B Escrow 

Investments, as applicable together with the uninvested cash in the Series 2019A Escrow 

Account or Series 2019B Escrow Account, as applicable, will be sufficient, without 

reinvestment, to pay  all of the principal of and interest to become due on the Refunded Bonds.  

In the event that moneys are required to be delivered on the date of issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds or the Series 2019B Bonds and the original Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 

2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable become available and are tendered to the Escrow 

Agent at the original applicable price offered using the date of issuance of the Series 2019A 

Bonds or Series 2019B Bonds, as applicable by or on behalf of [_____] in full on or in part on or 

before [_______], the Escrow Agent shall accept such Series 2019A Escrow Investments or 

Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable and credit [______], in whole or on a pro-rated 

basis, as applicable, the moneys for any or all portions of the undelivered Series 2019A Escrow 

Investments or Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as applicable. In the event that [___] delivers 

Page 407 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 5 - 
 

the original Series 2019A Escrow Investments or Series 2019B Escrow Investments, as 

applicable in part subsequent to the date of issuance of the Series 2019A Bonds or Series 2019B 

Bonds, such delivery must occur on [_____]. 

(b) Other than as provided in Section 3(a) hereof, FMPA shall not have, and 

hereby waives any right to deliver to the Bank, in substitution for any Series 2019A Escrow 

Investments or any Series 2019B Escrow Investments, any other securities or investments. 

SECTION 4.    Bondholder’s Lien.The Series 2019A Escrow Investments, money 

representing the Series 2019A Earnings thereon or redemption price thereof and any other 

money on deposit in the Series 2019A Escrow Account shall be subject to an express lien and 

trust for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds until used and applied in 

accordance with the terms of this Escrow Agreement subject to the provisions hereof. 

The Series 2019B Escrow Investments, money representing the Series 2019B 

Earnings thereon or redemption price thereof and any other money on deposit in the Series 

2019B Escrow Account shall be subject to an express lien and trust for the benefit of the holders 

of the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds until used and applied in accordance with the terms of this 

Escrow Agreement subject to the provisions hereof. 

SECTION 5.    Defeasance.In accordance with Section 1201 of the Resolution [and 

Section [___] of the Refunded Bonds Supplemental Resolutions], FMPA by this writing 

exercises the option to have the covenants, agreements and other obligations of FMPA to the 

holders of the Refunded Bonds discharged and satisfied. 

SECTION 6.    Amendments.This Escrow Agreement may not be amended except to 

cure any ambiguity or defect or inconsistent provision herein or any provision which is 

inconsistent with the Resolution or to insert such provisions clarifying matters or questions 

arising hereunder or under the Resolution as are necessary or desirable, provided that such 

provisions are not contrary to or inconsistent herewith or with the Resolutions. 

SECTION 7.    Bank’s Duties.The duties and obligations of the Bank shall be determined 

by the express provisions of this Escrow Agreement and the Bank shall not be liable except for 

the performance of such duties and obligations as are specifically set forth herein.  The Bank 

shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it so long as such action or omission is 

made or taken in good faith and belief by the Bank, and is within the discretion or rights or 

powers conferred upon it hereby.  The Bank shall not be liable in connection with the 

performance of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or default. 

SECTION 8.    Compensation.The Bank shall be entitled to, and FMPA hereby 

confirms its obligation to pay, the reasonable compensation heretofore mutually agreed to by 

FMPA and the Bank, for the performance of its duties and responsibilities hereunder.  The Bank 

shall not have any lien for the payment of any fees or expenses on any of the money or Series 

2019A Escrow Investments, Series 2019B Escrow Investments, Series 2019A Earnings or Series 

2019B Earnings from time to time held by it hereunder or transferred to any accounts held by it 

as trustee under the Resolution. 

Page 408 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

- 6 - 
 

SECTION 9.    Governing Law.This Escrow Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to conflict of law 

principles. 

SECTION 10.    Counterparts.This Escrow Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts and when each party hereto has executed and delivered at least one counterpart, this 

Escrow Agreement shall become binding on all parties and such counterparts shall be deemed to 

be one and the same document.   

SECTION 11.    Severability.If one or more provisions of this Escrow Agreement or the 

application of any such provisions to any set of circumstances shall be determined to be invalid 

or ineffective for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity and enforceability 

of the remaining provisions or the application of the same provisions or any of the remaining 

provisions to other circumstances. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page follows] 

Page 409 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

[Signature page to Escrow Agreement] 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bank and FMPA have caused this Escrow Agreement to 

be executed by their respective duly authorized officers, all as of the date and year first above 

written. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

(ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY 

PROJECT) 

By:     

Authorized Officer 

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

   as Escrow Agent and Trustee 

By:     

Authorized Officer 

Page 410 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Schedule-1-1 
 

SCHEDULE 1 

BONDS TO BE REDEEMED 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2008C 

 

Amount Rate 

Maturity 

(October 1) CUSIP 

 

 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (Taxable) 

Amount Rate 

Maturity 

(October 1) CUSIP 

 

Page 411 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Schedule-2-1 
 

SCHEDULE 2 

DESCRIPTION OF ESCROW INVESTMENTS 

SERIES 2019A ESCROW INVESTMENTS 

 

 

SERIES 2019B ESCROW INVESTMENTS 

 

Page 412 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT VARIABLE RATE DEMAND 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008C 

 

MATURING ON: 

Series Date CUSIP No. 1 

   

   

   

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS,  

SERIES 2013A (Taxable) 

MATURING ON: 

Series Date CUSIP No. 2 

   

   

   

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the (i) outstanding All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Variable Rate Demand Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (the “Series 

2008C Bonds”) and (ii) outstanding All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, 

Series 2013A (Taxable) (the “Series 2013A Bonds”), in each case which mature on October 1 in 

each of the years set forth above (the Series 2008C Bonds together with the Series 2013A Bonds, 

the “Refunded Bonds”) that the above-mentioned Refunded Bonds have been called for 

redemption prior to maturity on [______]  in accordance with their terms at a redemption price 

equal to [100]% of the principal amount thereof, together in each case with accrued interest 

thereon to, but not including, [_______].  

                                                 
1  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

2  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

Page 413 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit A-2 
 

[The source of the funds to be used for such redemption is the principal of and interest on 

Investment Securities heretofore deposited with the Escrow Agent, together with moneys, if any, 

heretofore deposited with the Escrow Agent.] 

The redemption price of and accrued interest on the Refunded Bonds shall become due 

and payable on [________] and from and after [________] interest on the Refunded Bonds shall 

cease to accrue and be payable. 

To assure that the holders of the Refunded Bonds receive payment of the redemption 

price and accrued interest to which they are entitled, send your Registered Bond, unendorsed, 

about [two (2) weeks] prior to [______] to the principal corporate trust office of the Escrow 

Agent: 

 

By Mail By Hand 

[address] [address] 

[address] [address] 

Sending your certificates by registered, insured mail is recommended. 

To avoid a _____% backup withholding tax required by the Interest and Dividend Tax 

Compliance Act of 1983, holders must submit a properly completed IRS Form W-9 with their 

Bonds, unless such form has been previously provided. 

Dated this _____ day of __________, _____. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By: TD Bank, National Association, 

  as Escrow Agent and Trustee 

Page 414 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE AND [PRIOR] REDEMPTION 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

Relating to 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT VARIABLE RATE DEMAND 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS,  

SERIES 2008C 

 

MATURING ON: 

Date CUSIP No. 1 

  

 

 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS,  

SERIES 2013A 

 

MATURING ON: 

Date CUSIP No. 2 

  

Notice is hereby given to the holders of the outstanding bonds designated Florida 

Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply Project Variable Rate Demand 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (the “Refunded Series 2008C Bonds”), and Florida 

Municipal Power Agency All-Requirements Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds, Series 

2013A (the “Refunded Series 2013A Bonds” and, together with the Refunded Series 2008C 

Bonds, the “Refunded Bonds”) which mature on October 1 in each of the years set forth above 

(the “Refunded Bonds”) (i) that there has been deposited with TD Bank, National Association, as 

Escrow Agent, moneys and/or government obligations permitted by the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project Project Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted by Florida Municipal Power Agency 

(the “Agency”) on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in the entirety on May 23, 2003, as 

amended and supplemented (the “Resolution”), the principal of and the interest on which when 

due will provide moneys which, together with such moneys deposited with the Escrow Agent, 

shall be sufficient and available to pay (a) on [_______] the principal of all Refunded Series 

2008C Bonds and interest on all Refunded Series 2008C Bonds on and prior to such redemption 

                                                 
1  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

2  No representation is made as to the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers either as printed on the Refunded Bonds or 

as set forth in this Notice of Redemption. 

Page 415 of 473



4817-5073-8592.2 

 

 

Exhibit B-2 
 

date, and (b) on [______] the principal of all Refunded Series 2013A Bonds and interest on all 

Refunded Series 2013A Bonds on and prior to such redemption date; (ii) that the Escrow Agent 

has been irrevocably instructed to redeem (a) the Refunded Series 2008C Bonds on [________], 

and (b) the Refunded Series 2013A Bonds on [________] and (iii) that the Refunded Bonds are 

deemed to be paid in accordance the Resolution. 

Dated this _____ day of __________, _____. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By: TD Bank National Association, 

  as Escrow Agent 

 

Page 416 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      AGENDA ITEM 9 – INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

b) Update on FP&L Transmission Rate 
Increases 

 
 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 417 of 473



1

BOD 9c-EC9b – FPL Rate Increase Update

September 19, 2019

Board of Directors & Executive Committee

Page 418 of 473



FPL Rate Increase

2

• FPL filed an application with FERC mid August to update its network and 
point-to-point transmission service converting to formula rates.  Planned 
effective date of 11/1/19.

 Proposed formula rate produces a rate of $2.10/kW-month based on 2019 
projections (the current rate is $1.59/kW-month)

• The filing also updated FPL’s rate for – Reactive Supply and Voltage Control 
Service

 Proposed new rate is $0.1757/kW-month, derived using AEP methodology (current 
rate is $0.1008/kW-month)

• FPL on 9/3 posted their 2020 formula rate projections that would become 
effective 1/1/20.  

 2020 updated formula rate adjusted to $2.36/kW-month.  Essentially 12.4% higher 
than November increase and 48% higher than current rate.

Page 419 of 473



FPL Filing Means Unanticipated Impact to FY 2020 ARP Costs

3

• FY 2020 ARP Budget not reflective of FPL transmission rate increase

• Estimated FY2020 cost impact to ARP for 11 months of higher rates is 
now $3.2 million ($0.57/MWh)

• Settlement discussions, delay in effective date, true-up process are 
factors that could potentially help to reduce some of the cost impact 

• Secured costs resulting from the physical gas purchases at levels 
below budget should help ARP absorb a substantial part of the 
increased FPL transmission costs in FY 2020

Page 420 of 473



FMPA working with Peers & Outside Support

4

• Legal (Spiegel & McDiarmid) and consulting (nFront) assistance

• FMPA coordinating with other major FPL transmission customers 
(Seminole, Lee County Electric Cooperative, FKEC).  Joint meeting 
scheduled with FPL on 9/16.

• FMPA plans to file protest with FERC on 9/20 

• FMPA will seek 5-month suspension of November effective date

• If suspension approved by FERC, formula rate could be effective 4/1/20.

• FMPA continuing discussion with members with significant FPL 
transmission cost exposure to offer assistance with analysis and settlement 
discussions 

Page 421 of 473



Questions?

5
Page 422 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       AGENDA ITEM 9 – INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

c. Review of the Finance Municipal Disclosure 
Procedure Changes 

 
 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 423 of 473



Executive Committee

September 19, 2019

EC 9c –Review of Municipal Finance Disclosure 
Procedure Changes

Page 424 of 473



Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures

• FMPA is committed to ensuring that disclosures made in connection with 
our debt transactions and required filings are fair, accurate, and in 
compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws

• These procedures were designed to ensure compliance with section 4.11 of 
the Debt Risk Management Policy 

• No changes to the Debt Policy, just the underlying disclosure procedures

• The Finance Committee (replaces the Audit Risk Oversight Committee) 
plays a major part in implementation and management of these 
procedures as part of their general oversight responsibilities

2

Background

Page 425 of 473



Recommended Changes

• Updates to the procedures to reflect the two new reporting events that 
were added to Rule 15c2-12 back in February:

1. Incurrence of a financial obligation of FMPA or a Major Participant, if material or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other 
similar terms of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of 
which affect security holders, if material

2. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 
similar events under terms of a financial obligation of FMPA or a Major 
Participant, any of which reflect financial difficulties

• Note: These new events include events for Major Participants

• Other administrative changes for names and titles changes

3

Summarized

Page 426 of 473



After Today

Changes 
included in 

next OS

FC shares 
changes 

with Board 
and EC

FC reviews 
changes to 

the 
procedures

4

Next Steps in the Process

Page 427 of 473



Recommended Motion

• Information Only.  No further action

5
Page 428 of 473



6

/FloridaMunicipalPowerAgency @FMPANews /company/fmpa
Page 429 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

Municipal Finance Disclosure Procedures 

Introduction 

The Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA” or the “Agency”) is committed to 

ensuring that disclosures made in connection with its municipal finance offerings and required 

periodic filings related thereto are fair, accurate, and comply with applicable federal and state 

securities laws including common law antifraud provisions under state law and all other 

applicable laws.  Further, it is the policy of FMPA to satisfy in a timely manner its contractual 

obligations undertaken pursuant to continuing disclosure agreements entered into in connection 

with municipal finance offerings. In furtherance of these objectives and policies, and to promote 

best practices relating to disclosures, the Board of FMPA and Executive Committee of FMPA’s 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project have adopted the Municipal Finance Disclosure 

Procedures set forth below (the “Disclosure Procedures”) to achieve the objectives established by 

the Disclosure Policy as set forth in Section 4.11 of the Debt Risk Management Policy.  While 

the Board and Executive Committee have adopted these Disclosure Procedures, it is recognized 

that the Finance Committee (“FC”) will play a part in the implementation and management of 

the Disclosure Policy and these Disclosure Procedures as part of its general oversight 

responsibilities. 

The failure to comply with the Disclosure Procedures shall not affect the authorization or 

the validity or enforceability of any Bonds that are issued by the Agency in accordance with 

applicable law nor imply a failure to comply with disclosure requirements of the federal or state 

securities laws. 

Definitions 

Capitalized terms used in these Disclosure Procedures have the meanings set forth below: 

“All-Requirements Project” means the All-Requirements Power Supply Project, under 

which FMPA provides to each of the participating Members in the project their 

individual “All-Requirements Service,” as defined in the All-Requirements Project 

Contract. 

“All Requirements Project Contract” means the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project Contract entered into between FMPA and each of the All-Requirements Project 

participating members of FMPA, as amended. 

“All-Requirements Major Participants” means those participants in the All-

Requirements Project each of which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues 

from the All-Requirements Project for the applicable fiscal year. 

“Annual Agency Financial Information” means the information required to be 

delivered under and as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Agreements, a sample of 

which is attached hereto as Appendix A. 

Page 430 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 2 - 

“Annual Major Participant Financial Information” means the information required to 

be delivered under and as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Agreements, a sample of 

which is attached hereto as Appendix A. 

“Annual Disclosure Filing” means the Annual Agency Financial Information and 

Annual Major Participant Financial Information. 

“Authorized Officers” means, means, unless otherwise provided in a supplemental 

resolution for a particular series of Bonds, with respect to the All-Requirements Project, 

the Chairperson of the Executive Committee and the Vice Chairperson of the Executive 

Committee and the Secretary, Treasurer, General Manager and CEO, any Assistant 

Secretary and the Assistant General Manager, Finance and Information Technology and 

CFO of FMPA, and (B) with respect to the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, St. Lucie 

Project and the Tri-City Project, Chairperson of the Board and the Vice Chairperson of the 

Board and the Secretary, Treasurer, General Manager and CEO, any Assistant Secretary and 

the Assistant General Manager, Finance and Information Technology and CFO of FMPA. 

“Authorized Signatories” means, unless otherwise provided in a supplemental 

resolution for a particular series of bonds, (A) with respect to the All-Requirements 

Project (i) the Chairperson of the Executive Committee or the Vice Chairperson of the 

Executive Committee and (ii) the General Manager and CEO of FMPA or the Assistant 

General Manager, and CFO of FMPA and (B) with respect to the Stanton Project, Stanton 

II Project, St. Lucie Project and the Tri-City Project, (i) the Chairperson of the Board or 

the Vice Chairperson of the Board and (ii) the General Manager and CEO of FMPA or 

the Assistant General Manager, Finance and Information Technology and CFO of FMPA. 

“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of FMPA. 

“Bond Counsel” shall mean any attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized 

standing in the field of law relating to the issuance of obligations by state and municipal 

entities and federal securities laws selected by the Agency. 

“Bonds” or “bonds” shall refer to any bonds, notes or other securities offered by FMPA, 

the disclosure relating to which is subject to the requirements of Section 17(a) of the 

Securities Act of 1933, Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including 

Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and Securities Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12. 

“Chief Financial Officer” means the CFO of FMPA or, if such title changes, the Staff 

person designated as FMPA’s Chief Financial Officer or who has lead responsibility for 

the financials affairs of the Agency in support of the General Manager of the Agency. 

“Continuing Disclosure Agreements” means FMPA’s contractual obligations to 

provide updates on an annual basis to certain financial and operating data with respect to 

itself and the Major Participants and to provide certain Event Notices in accordance with 

Rule 15c2-12. 

“Co-owner” means each co-owner of the Stanton Project, Stanton II Project, St. Lucie 

Project and Tri-City Project. 

Page 431 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 3 - 

“Debt Financing Team” means a team consisting of the consisting of the following 

members: 

 Chief Financial Officer, who shall serve as the Chairperson of the Debt 

Financing Team; 

 Treasurer and Risk Director; 

 FMPA General Counsel; 

 System Planning Manager (as necessary); 

 FMPA’s financial advisor; 

 FMPA’s swap advisor (as necessary); 

 Bond Counsel (as necessary);  

 Disclosure Counsel (if separate from Bond Counsel) (as necessary); and 

 Other legal counsel (as necessary) 

 Other (as necessary) 
 

 

“Debt Risk Management Policy” means the Debt Risk Management Policy and any 

effective subordinate procedures establishing the governance, framework and the controls 

under which FMPA may engage in activities to identify, measure and minimize future 

business risk resulting from the issuance and management of all FMPA debt financing. 

“Director” means each of the Agency’s member-appointed directors serving on the 

Board or the Executive Committee, as appropriate. 

“Disclosure Counsel” means an attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized 

standing in the field of law relating to the federal securities laws selected by the Agency.  

If a separate Disclosure Counsel is not engaged by FMPA, Bond Counsel will assume all 

the duties, responsibilities and obligations that otherwise would be provided by a separate 

Disclosure Counsel. 

“Disclosure Documents” means FMPA’s documents and materials specifically 

prepared, issued, and distributed in connection with FMPA’s disclosure obligations under 

applicable federal securities laws or that otherwise could potentially subject FMPA, its 

Directors and its Staff to liability under such laws, and shall include, but not be limited to 

the following: 

 Annual Disclosure Filing, 

 Official Statements, 

 Any filing made by FMPA with EMMA pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure 

Agreement, including material event notices, 

 Any voluntary filing made by FMPA that is posted on EMMA, 

 Any other document that is reviewed and approved in accordance with these 

Disclosure Procedures, and 

Page 432 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 4 - 

 Any document or other communication from FMPA that could be viewed as 

reasonably expected to reach, in the normal course of its business, investors 

and the trading market for FMPA’s Bonds. 

“Disclosure Policy” means the policy set forth in Section 4.11 of the Debt Risk 

Management Policy establishing FMPA’s intent to comply fully with applicable 

securities law regarding disclosure in connection with the issuance of Bonds and with the 

terms of its Continuing Disclosure Agreements. 

“Disclosure Working Group” means the officers or employees of FMPA charged with 

exercising certain responsibilities in connection with the preparation or checking of the 

disclosures made by FMPA in its Disclosure Documents. Initially, such group shall 

consist of the Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Debt, FMPA Assistant General Counsel, 

Counsel, Manager of Risk Management and Audit Manager. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system maintained by the 

MSRB or such other repository as may be designated by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission or the MSRB. 

“Event Notice” means a notice relating to those events which FMPA is required to 

monitor and to provide notice to the MSRB in accordance with the Continuing Disclosure 

Agreements. 

“Executive Committee” means the governing body of the All-Requirements Power 

Supply Project. 

“FC” means the Agency’s Finance Committee, or any successor committee or body 

designated by the Agency to fulfill the role provided for in these Disclosure Procedures 

“Final Official Statements” means a document prepared by or on behalf of the issuer 

of municipal securities in connection with a primary offering that discloses material 

information on the offering of such securities. Final Official Statements typically include 

information regarding the purposes of the issue, how the securities will be repaid, and the 

financial and economic characteristics of the issuer, conduit borrower or other obligated 

person with respect to the offered securities. Investors and market intermediaries may use 

this information to evaluate the credit quality of the securities and potential risks of the 

primary offering and the prices and redemption provisions for such securities. 

“Finance Staff” means the CFO, Treasurer and Risk Director and the Assistant 

Treasurer, Debt. 

“FMPA” means the Florida Municipal Power Agency. 

“FMPA Assistant General Counsel” means the Assistant General Counsel and 

Manager of Legal Affairs of FMPA or, if such title changes, the senior most attorney 

working under the direction of the FMPA General Counsel or the FMPA General 

Counsel. 

Page 433 of 473

http://www.msrb.org/glossary/definition/issuer.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/glossary/definition/municipal-securities.aspx


4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 5 - 

“FMPA General Counsel” means the General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer of 

FMPA, as appointed by the Board of Directors. 

“Material Supplier” means any major fuel or commodity supplier, power purchase 

contract counterparty or generation or transmission facility operator.  As of the date 

hererof, FMPA’s Material Suppliers are Florida Power & Light Company, Orlando 

Utilities Commission, Southern Power Company, Florida Gas Utilities, Kissimmee 

Utility Authority, Fort Pierce Utilities Authority and Keys Energy Services. 

“Major Participants” means the All-Requirements Major Participants, the Stanton 

Major Participants, the Stanton II Major Participants, the St. Lucie Major Participants and 

the Tri-City Major Participants. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Official Statements” means, collectively, Preliminary and Final Official Statements, 

remarketing circulars or offering memoranda used in connection with the offering of 

Bonds. Official Statements may include such information by specific cross-reference, as 

expressly authorized by Rule 15c2-12. 

“Preliminary Official Statement” means the version of the official statement prepared 

by or for an issuer of municipal securities for potential customers, as the same may be 

supplemented or amended, prior to the availability of the Final Official Statement that is 

“deemed final” for purposes of Rule 15c2-12.  Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) requires an 

underwriter obtain and review a Preliminary Official Statement that the issuer deems to 

be “final” except for the omission of no more than the following information:  “the 

offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal 

amount per maturity, delivery dates, any other terms or provisions required by an issuer 

of such securities to be specified in a competitive bid, ratings, other terms of the 

securities depending on such matters” (such as optional redemption call dates and prices 

and, in some cases, the determination of whether bonds will be secured by a bond 

insurance policy or other credit facility), “and the identity of the underwriter(s).  In the 

event that such a preliminary official statement is not prepared for an offering of 

municipal securities and a Final Official Statement is prepared for such offering of 

municipal securities, references in these Disclosure Procedures to a Preliminary Official 

Statement will mean the Final Official Statement. 

“Projects” means the All-Requirements Project, the Stanton Project, the Stanton II 

Project, the St. Lucie Project and the Tri-City Project. 

“Rule 15c2-12” means Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including any 

official interpretations thereof. 

“Staff” means employees of FMPA. 

“Stanton Project” means FMPA’s 14.8193% undivided ownership interest in the 

Stanton Energy Center Unit No. 1. 

Page 434 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 6 - 

“Stanton Major Participants” means those participants in the Stanton Project each of 

which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues from the Stanton Project for 

applicable fiscal year. 

“Stanton II Project” means FMPA’s 23.2367% undivided ownership interest in the 

Stanton Energy Center Unit No. 2. 

“Stanton II Major Participants” means those participants in the Stanton II Project each 

of which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues from the Stanton II Project for 

applicable fiscal year. 

“St. Lucie Project” means FMPA’s 8.806% undivided ownership interest St. Lucie Unit 

No. 2. 

“St. Lucie Major Participants” means those participants in the St. Lucie Project each of 

which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues from the St. Lucie Project for 

applicable fiscal year. 

“Subject Matter Expert” has the meaning set forth in Section II.1.c. 

“Tri-City Project” means FMPA’s 5.3012% undivided ownership interest in Stanton 

Unit No. 1. 

“Tri-City Major Participants” means those participants in the Tri-City Project each of 

which provided to FMPA at least 10.0% of the revenues from the Tri-City Project for 

applicable fiscal year. 

I. General and On-Going Disclosure Practices 

1. The Board or the Executive Committee, as applicable, through approval of the 

documentation relating to individual financings, remarketing and refinancings and the review of 

the related agenda items and resolutions, delegates authority and responsibility with respect to 

individual financings, remarketing and refinancings to Authorized Officers and Authorized 

Signatories to prepare and distribute a Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official 

Statement, Annual Disclosure Filings and Event Notices and updates thereto in the case of 

securities subject to remarketing. All documentation relating to said financings will be prepared 

in accordance with these Disclosure Procedures and any Disclosure Document shall comply with 

any requirements contained in these Disclosure Procedures.  

2. The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for compliance with the 

Disclosure Procedures and for all Disclosure Documents and must give his or her written 

approval before their use.  Correspondingly, all Disclosure Documents must be reviewed and 

approved in writing for use by the FMPA General Counsel or his or her designee. Any such 

approval may be evidenced by e-mail or other electronic communication.  Either may seek the 

advice of outside counsel, acting in the capacity of FMPA’s Disclosure Counsel. 

3. The Finance Staff and members of the FMPA General Counsel’s office with 

financial disclosure responsibilities, in consultation with FMPA’s Disclosure Counsel, shall 

Page 435 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 7 - 

continually evaluate the adequacy of FMPA’s financial disclosures and bring any 

recommendations for changes to the Chief Financial Officer and to FMPA General Counsel for 

discussion and resolution in accordance with Article VII hereof. 

4. At least annually, the Debt Financing Team shall formally review FMPA’s 

Disclosure Procedures and compliance therewith.  A written report of this review will be 

presented to the FC at their next regularly scheduled meeting and the FC shall provide a report 

together with any recommendations to the General Manager. The General Manager shall provide 

a report to the Board and to the Executive Committee. 

5. All unresolved differences of opinion between any Staff on any matters related to 

any of these procedures shall be decided by the General Manager. 

II. Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement Review and Disclosure 

Procedures Generally; Notice of Disclosure Obligations to Major Participants 

1. The Chief Financial Officer, with the assistance of the Disclosure Working Group, 

shall timely identify those Staff who, for a particular financing, are appropriate to assist the 

Finance Staff in the preparation and review of the Preliminary Official Statement and Final 

Official Statement for each proposed financing.  Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, other legal 

counsel (as needed), underwriter(s), underwriter’s counsel, financial advisors, Major 

Participants, Participants, Co-owners, Material Suppliers and any other individuals determined 

by the Disclosure Working Group to be necessary will also be called upon to assist in the 

preparation and review of the related Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official 

Statement.  Any and all individuals outside the Debt Finance Team will be timely contacted in 

writing by a member of the Finance Staff and informed that their assistance will be needed for 

the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement. 

a. The Staff, Major Participants, Participants, Co-owners and Material Suppliers shall be 

contacted as soon as reasonably practical in order to provide adequate time for such 

individuals to perform a thoughtful and critical review or to provide information to be 

used by the Disclosure Working Group to prepare or to draft those portions of the 

Preliminary Official Statement assigned to them and to allow the Disclosure Working 

Group to review the revised portions of the Preliminary Official Statement as needed. 

b. The written request for information shall provide that Staff must raise any item which 

could be material for inclusion in the Preliminary Official Statement and Final 

Official Statement, as applicable. The written request for information shall include, 

but not be limited to, the description of any item or event of which the Disclosure 

Working Group is aware which could be material for review by such individuals, 

departments, other necessary entities or other governmental officials and potential 

inclusion in the Disclosure Document. 

c. The Treasurer shall maintain or cause to be maintained an accurate log of all 

individuals, departments, Co-owners and Major Participants (each a “Subject Matter 

Expert”) that were requested to review or draft information in connection with 

Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement, including what sections 

Page 436 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 8 - 

such individuals or entities listed above prepared, provided information to the 

Disclosure Working Group, drafted  or reviewed and shall also be responsible for 

collecting all transmittal letters, certifications, and lists of sources for incorporation of 

such information into the records to be maintained by the Treasurer.  Each Subject 

Matter Expert shall have confirmed in writing (which may be by email) to the 

Treasurer as of a date that is no more than two Business Days prior to the release of 

the Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement, as applicable, that he 

or she has reviewed the sections of the Preliminary Official Statement and Final 

Official Statement, as applicable, for which he or she is responsible and that to his or 

her knowledge the sections are accurate and complete. 

d. The external Agency auditors should be apprised by the Treasurer or the Assistant 

Treasurer of the Agency’s schedule for publishing such Preliminary Official 

Statements and Final Official Statements and shall be responsible for ensuring that 

the auditors have time to conduct any required review and sign-off on the drafts prior 

to their release for printing. 

2. The members of the Disclosure Working Group shall review the Preliminary Official 

Statement drafts and the process by which the Preliminary Official Statement was developed to 

determine (and shall report to the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel as to) 

whether, based on information known or reported to them, (a) the Disclosure Procedures were 

followed, (b) the material facts in the Preliminary Official  Statement appear to be consistent 

with those known to the members of the Disclosure Working Group, and (c) the Preliminary 

Official Statement omits any material fact that is necessary to be included to prevent the Official 

Statement from being misleading to investors. The Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General 

Counsel shall take such action as may be necessary, based on feedback from the Disclosure 

Working Group, to enable the Disclosure Working Group to conclude that this Disclosure 

Procedures were followed and that the Preliminary Official Statement or the Final Official 

Statement, as applicable, is accurate and complete in all material respects. 

3. At least one Business Day prior to the release of either the Preliminary Official 

Statement or the Final Official Statement, the Finance Staff shall provide a copy of the 

Preliminary Official Statement or the Final Official Statement, as applicable, to each of the Chief 

Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel for their review and written sign-off.  In addition, 

the Treasurer or the Assistant Treasurer shall send a copy of a substantially final copy of the 

Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement to FMPA’s external auditors, if 

required, in a timely manner for their review and comment and official sign-off. 

4. The FMPA General Counsel and Chief Financial Officer, with assistance from the  

FMPA Assistant General Counsel, Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel shall hold due 

diligence sessions with the appropriate Staff and, if necessary, Major Participants, Participants, 

Co-owners and Material Suppliers, prior to the printing or posting of a preliminary Official 

Statement.  The Underwriter and/or the Underwriter(s)’ Counsel may also require a due diligence 

session.  FMPA’s session may if desired, be held coincidentally with the due diligence session of 

the Underwriter and/or Underwriter’s Counsel. 

Page 437 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 9 - 

5. Disclosure Counsel and/or underwriter’s counsel shall provide written discussion 

topics or questions in the form of an agenda in advance of the due diligence session(s), to the 

extent practical, to permit all required Staff and, if necessary, the Major Participants, and, if 

necessary, Major Participants, Participants, Co-owners and Material Suppliers, as well as 

underwriters and their counsel, to prepare for the due diligence session(s) and to consider 

additional matters they deem material to the offering.  The due diligence session(s) shall not be 

limited to the list of written topics or questions or other questions solely from Disclosure 

Counsel.  Bond Counsel, FMPA’s financial advisor, and, in the case of a negotiated transaction, 

the underwriters and underwriters’ counsel shall participate in such due diligence session(s). 

Such due diligence session shall be held prior to the release of the Preliminary Official Statement 

so that the Disclosure Working Group and the Debt Financing Team are comfortable that such 

Preliminary Official Statement is in satisfactory form and does not contain any untrue statement 

of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to 

make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading and may be deemed final for purposes of Rule 15c2-12. 

6. At the time of the sale of the Bonds a Final Official Statement shall be prepared and 

reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer, and the FMPA General Counsel, and any others in their 

opinions as may be required or considered prudent, to satisfy themselves that at the time of sale 

that such Official Statement is in satisfactory form and does not contain any untrue statement of 

a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make 

the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading and has been prepared in compliance with the Disclosure Procedures. 

7. Before the printing of any Official Statement the Chief Financial Officer and the 

FMPA General Counsel shall receive from individuals, as they deem necessary, written 

confirmations, by e-mail or otherwise, that such individuals know of no material litigation that 

has been filed (or threatened with a reasonable likelihood of being filed) against FMPA since the 

due diligence session(s) and know of no material change in financial or operating information 

that is required to be reflected in the Disclosure Document. 

8. Bond Counsel and/or Disclosure Counsel may be invited to attend and/or participate 

in any FMPA presentations to rating agencies and investors.  The Disclosure Working Group, 

Debt Financing Team and any others deemed necessary by the Chief Financial Officer and the 

FMPA General Counsel shall review the materials used in presentations, meetings and telephone 

conferences with rating agencies or investors for consistency with the appropriate Official 

Statement or appropriate current disclosure documentation.  Appropriate written records of 

meetings and telephone conferences with rating agencies and investors will be kept by FMPA 

Assistant General Counsel or Finance Staff. 

9. Promptly after the issuance of a series of Bonds subject to the requirements of Rule 

15c2-12 and for which a Continuing Disclosure Agreement has been executed by FMPA, the 

Treasurer shall send notice to each of the Major Participants stating that (a) such participant has 

been determined to be a Major Participant with respect to one or more series of FMPA’s Bonds;  

(b) FMPA has undertaken to provide certain annual operating and financial information with 

respect to such Major Participant not later than nine months after the end of FMPA’s fiscal year; 

and (c) FMPA has also undertaken to provide notice of certain reportable events under Rule 

Page 438 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 10 - 

15c2-12 with respect to such Major Participant and notice of any such event are required to be 

filed on EMMA within ten Business Days of the occurrence of such event.  A form of such 

notice is attached hereto as Appendix B. 

III. The Annual Disclosure Filing (Rule 15c2-12), Additional Disclosure and Website 

B. Annual Disclosure Filing 

1. The Assistant Treasurer, Debt or such person as may be designated by the Chief 

Financial Officer in conjunction with Finance Staff, shall by no later than March 1 of each 

calendar year (a) compile and maintain (and update after every issuance or unscheduled payment 

of principal or defeasance of Bonds) a list of all financial information and operating data for the 

Major Participants required to be filed with the MSRB pursuant to each of the Continuing 

Disclosure Agreements; (b) distribute a written request for the Annual Major Participant 

Financial Information from each Major Participant, including that they notify FMPA if they have 

learned of any fact that they consider could be material, and a deadline for the submission of 

such Annual Major Participant Financial Information to the Assistant Treasurer, Debt or such 

person as may be designated by the Chief Financial Officer that will afford sufficient time for 

review by the Assistant Treasurer, Debt and the approvals required by these Disclosure 

Procedures. Upon receipt of such information, Finance Staff shall review information submitted 

to ensure that it is complete and to determine, with the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, 

FMPA General Counsel, FMPA Assistant General Counsel and/or Disclosure Counsel as 

applicable, if any narrative is needed to avoid misunderstanding and to assist the reader in 

understanding the presentation of financial information and operating data concerning, and in 

judging the financial condition of, the Major Participants. 

2. The Assistant Treasurer, Debt or such person as may be designated by the Chief 

Financial Officer in conjunction with Finance Staff, shall by no later than March 1 of each 

calendar year distribute a written request for the Annual Agency Financial Information from 

Staff, which written request may include information which may be needed from Co-owners and 

Material Suppliers and include a reminder that they notify the Chief Financial Officer if they 

have learned of any fact that they consider could be material, and a deadline for the submission 

of such Annual Agency Financial Information to the Assistant Treasurer, Debt or such person as 

may be designated by the Chief Financial Officer that will afford sufficient time for review by 

the Assistant Treasurer, Debt and the approvals required by these Disclosure Procedures.  Upon 

receipt of such information, Finance Staff shall review said information to ensure that it is 

complete and to determine, with the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, FMPA General 

Counsel, FMPA Assistant General Counsel and/or Disclosure Counsel as applicable, if any 

narrative is needed to avoid misunderstanding and to assist the reader in understanding the 

presentation of financial information and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial 

condition of, the Agency. 

3. The Annual Disclosure Filing, pursuant to FMPA’s Continuing Disclosure 

Agreements, shall be filed by the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer by no later than June 30th of 

each year.  The Annual Disclosure Filing shall be filed on EMMA in accordance with FMPA’s 

Continuing Disclosure Agreements under Rule 15c2-12.  The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer 

shall exercise reasonable care to file the Annual Disclosure Filing in the format and with the 

Page 439 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 11 - 

identifying information required by the Continuing Disclosure Agreements, including CUSIP 

numbers for the applicable Bonds.  The Treasurer shall advise the Board and Executive 

Committee of the date on which the Annual Disclosure Filing was made and whether it was 

complete or whether additional filings will need to be made for any information that was not 

available on or before June 30th. 

4. If any financial information or operating data of FMPA or any Major Participant is 

not available by June 30th, a notice of failure to timely file shall be submitted to EMMA on or 

before June 30th.  The financial information or operating data of FMPA shall be filed within ten 

business days of when such information becomes available and the financial information or 

operating data of any Major Participant shall be filed by FMPA within ten business days of when 

FMPA actually receives the information from such Major Participant and has ascertained that it 

is complete and determined that additional narrative or changes in narrative are not needed to 

avoid misunderstanding and of assistance to the reader in understanding the presentation and its 

meaning. 

C. Event Notices 

1. Identification and Monitoring of Reportable Events for FMPA. (a) The Treasurer 

shall maintain a list of events of which FMPA is required to monitor and to provide notice to the 

MSRB pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreements. The Treasurer (with the assistance of 

members of the Disclosure Working Group for Official Statements) shall (a) identify the Staff of 

FMPA who are most likely to first obtain knowledge of the occurrence of such events and (b) 

request in writing that they notify the Treasurer immediately after learning of any such event, 

regardless of materiality, and repeat such request in a monthly reminder. 

(b) If it is not clear if the occurrence of an event constitutes one of the events for which 

notice is required to be given pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreements, then the 

Treasurer shall consult with the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA Assistant General Counsel to 

determine, with the assistance of Disclosure Counsel if needed, whether FMPA is required to file 

a notice concerning such event. 

2. Identification and Monitoring of Reportable Events for Major Participants. (a)  

The Treasurer shall maintain a list of reportable events for the Major Participants which FMPA 

is required to monitor and to provide notice to the MSRB pursuant to its Continuing Disclosure 

Agreements. The Treasurer (with the assistance of members of the Disclosure Working Group 

for Official Statements) shall (i) identify a person at each Major Participant who shall be 

responsible for obtaining knowledge of the occurrence of such events and shall not less 

frequently than monthly confirm in writing to the Treasurer whether any such events have 

occurred and notify the Treasurer immediately after learning of any such event, regardless of 

materiality.  In the event that the Treasurer does not receive a confirmation from the Major 

Participant as required, the Treasurer or his designee shall make a request in writing. 

(b)  If it is not clear if the occurrence of an event constitutes one of the events for which 

notice is required to be given pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreements, then the 

Treasurer shall consult with the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA Assistant General Counsel to 

Page 440 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 12 - 

determine, with the assistance of Disclosure Counsel, if needed, whether FMPA is required to 

file a notice concerning such event. 

3. Preparation of Event Notice. The Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General 

Counsel shall (a) assess whether notice of any reported event must be given and if a materiality 

determination needs to be made in order to make this assessment and if a materiality 

determination needs to be made shall make this determination with the assistance of Disclosure 

Counsel and (x) if notice of the event must be given, then the Treasurer shall prepare an Event 

Notice giving notice of the event and forward the draft Event Notice to the Chief Financial 

Officer, the FMPA General Counsel and Disclosure Counsel for their review or (y) if no notice 

of the event must be given, then the Treasurer will prepare a brief memo to the file explaining 

the event and the reason that the event was determined to not be material. 

4. The Chief Financial Officer, FMPA General Counsel and Disclosure Counsel shall 

promptly review and approve or comment on the Event Notice described in paragraph 2(a)(x) 

above. The Treasurer shall incorporate such comments into the Event Notice to be filed with 

EMMA. The Disclosure Officers shall not file the Event Notice Statement until it is approved by 

the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel, unless such approval has not been 

received by the applicable Continuing Disclosure Agreement filing deadline. 

5. The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer, Debt shall file the Event Notice with the 

MSRB through EMMA by the deadline established by the Continuing Disclosure Agreements or, 

if the facts cannot be correctly and fairly described by the deadline, then as soon thereafter as 

possible. The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer shall exercise reasonable care to file the Event 

Notice in the format and with the identifying information required by the Continuing Disclosure 

Agreements, including CUSIP numbers for the applicable Bonds. 

6. The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer, Debt shall maintain a file of the actions taken 

to report each event, and prepare, check, and approve the notice of the event, including the 

approvals of the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel, if obtained, and include a 

list of the event notices filed in the annual report to the FC. 

D. Additional Disclosures and Website 

1.  Additional Disclosures. (a)  During the course of the year, and during periods when 

no bonds are being issued, it still is necessary to determine if there are any events which may 

warrant making a voluntary disclosure statement to investors. 

(b) The Disclosure Working Group, with advice from Disclosure Counsel, shall 

periodically determine whether changes in financial results of operation or condition from the 

prior year, or any event or fact reported pursuant to Section III.B.1(b) above for which it was 

determined that it was not an event for which notice was required to be given,  would, if disclosed 

on EMMA, materially change the total mix of information about FMPA that is available to 

investors on EMMA. If it would, a voluntary disclosure statement disclosing such results, event, 

or fact shall be prepared and reviewed by Disclosure Counsel. Such voluntary disclosure 

statement shall be forwarded to the Disclosure Working Group, Chief Financial Officer and 

FMPA General Counsel for review and comment.  The voluntary disclosure statement shall be 

submitted to the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel for final approval. 

Page 441 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 13 - 

(c)  After any such voluntary disclosure statement is approved by the Chief Financial 

Officer and FMPA General Counsel, the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer, Debt shall file the 

voluntary disclosure statement with the MSRB through EMMA. The Treasurer or Assistant 

Treasurer, Debt shall exercise reasonable care to file the voluntary disclosure statement with 

identifying information that includes all relevant CUSIP numbers. Such voluntary disclosure 

statement shall also be posted to the appropriate section of FMPA’s website. 

2.  Website.  (a)  Finance Staff shall review, or cause to be reviewed, the “Investors” 

section of the FMPA website at least annually to confirm that it is up to date and accurate and 

shall confirm in writing (which may be by email) to the Chief Financial Officer that such review 

has been performed. Such review of the “Investors” section should be to ensure that (a) material 

information that is no longer up to date is removed from the website or moved to a clearly 

labeled archives page; (b) all material financial and operating data is presented as of a specific 

date with appropriate disclaimers as to the currency of the data; (c) no material forward-looking 

statements (projections, forecasts, etc.) are included unless they are based on reasonable 

assumptions and are accompanied by a description of the substantial risks to achieving the 

forecasted results; and (d) the material information presented is consistent with the knowledge of 

such persons and not internally inconsistent. 

(b)  Visitors to the “Investors” section of the FMPA website shall be required to review 

and acknowledge a disclaimer prior to accessing any information.  The website disclaimer should 

be reviewed by FMPA Assistant General Counsel at least annually to ensure that it reflects 

current market standards and practices. 

IV. Role of Disclosure Counsel 

FMPA will require Disclosure Counsel to perform the following: 

a. review and comment on FMPA’s Disclosure Documents, 

b. coordinate the due diligence process in the manner provided above, 

c. review presentations and, if requested, attend and/or participate in rating 

agency or investor presentations, meetings and telephone conferences related 

to FMPA’s bonds, notes and other securities, 

d. advise FMPA regarding: 

(1) specific disclosure issues relating to FMPA’s financial operations, 

operating performance, energy supply and future capital needs and 

capital program development, including funding, progress and 

problems raised or identified by Finance Staff to Disclosure 

Counsel or discovered by Disclosure Counsel in the course of 

performing its duties generally, 

(2) standards of disclosure under applicable securities laws, 

(3) adequacy of FMPA’s disclosure in any Disclosure Document, 

Page 442 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 14 - 

(4) completeness and clarity of the information provided by the 

Participants, Co-owners and Material Suppliers in any Disclosure 

Document, and 

(5) other matters as directed by FMPA. 

e. interface with the Chief Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel and 

others on the Debt Financing Team with respect to any Disclosure 

Document, 

f. provide a securities law opinion for each financing transaction, 

g. participate in the preparation, review and approval of the Annual Disclosure 

Filing, Event Notices and voluntary disclosures as requested, and 

h. conduct periodic training of Staff, Board members and Executive Committee 

members on these Disclosure Procedures as required hereunder or as may be 

requested from time to time by the General Manager, FMPA General 

Counsel or Chief Financial Officer. 

While Disclosure Counsel will be required to perform certain duties and assist FMPA, 

FMPA as an issuer of Bonds may not transfer its primary responsibility and potential liability for 

disclosure to outside counsel or consultants. 

V. Disclosure Practices Training 

Training for Board members, Executive Committee members, and Staff shall be 

conducted by Disclosure Counsel.  It is intended that this training shall assist these individuals in 

(1) understanding their responsibilities; (2) identifying significant items which may need to be 

included in the Disclosure Documents; and (3) reporting issues and concerns relating to 

disclosure. A refresher training program shall be conducted not less than annually for Staff and 

any new Board and Executive Committee Members and once every three years for carryover 

Board and Executive Committee Members; provided that such training may occur more 

frequently if necessary to address any material changes in law or these Disclosure Procedures. 

2. Board Members and Executive Committee Members, including alternates 

a. Board members and Executive Committee members shall be advised of their 

disclosure responsibilities and the extent they may delegate to and rely on 

Staff’s preparation of Disclosure Documents. 

b. Board members and Executive Committee members shall be advised of their 

fiduciary duties under state law. 

c. Alternate members shall be included as determined by the General Manager 

in consultation with the FMPA General Counsel. 

 

Page 443 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 15 - 

3. Staff 

a. Staff with responsibility for collecting, preparing or reviewing information 

that is provided for inclusion in a Disclosure Document or for certifying or 

confirming its accuracy in accordance with these Disclosure Procedures, and 

those persons responsible for executing them, shall attend disclosure training 

sessions. 

b. The determination as to whether or not a class of employees shall receive 

such training shall be made by the FMPA General Counsel and Chief 

Financial Officer in consultation with Disclosure Counsel and each other. 

VI. Disclosure-Related Document Retention Practices 

The following documents shall be maintained by Finance Staff for the later of ten years 

or the period of time required by FMPA’s records management or records retention program: 

 Annual Continuing Disclosure Filings, 

 Bond Issue Bound Books or CD-ROMs containing bond issue documents, 

 Bond Issue Executed Documents, 

 Disclosure Documents, 

 Investor Materials, 

 Financial Statements related to bonds, 

 Note Issue Bound Books or CD-ROMs containing note issue document, 

 Note Issue Executed Documents, 

 Rating Agency Presentation Materials, 

 Records of all disclosure activities, including but not limited to telephone 

calls, emails and inquiries from investors and the associated response 

materials, 

 Annual Financial Statements Audited by Outside Auditing Firm and 

unaudited quarterly financial statements, 

 Records of FMPA’s compliance with these Disclosure Procedures, 

 Information received from Participants, Co-owners and Material 

Suppliers, and 

 Any materials not already identified above prepared and used in 

satisfaction of FMPA’s Continuing Disclosure obligations. 

VII. General Principles Relating to Disclosure 

1. Each person participating in the disclosure process shall be responsible for raising 

potential disclosure items at all times in the process. 

Page 444 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

- 16 - 

2. Each person participating in the disclosure process should raise any issue regarding 

disclosure with the Chief Financial Officer and the FMPA General Counsel at any time and if not 

satisfied with actions taken by the Chief Financial Officer and the FMPA General Counsel 

should raise the issue with FMPA’s General Manager. 

3. Recommendations for improvement or amendment of these Disclosure Procedures 

shall be solicited from the Disclosure Working Group and the FC and considered by the Debt 

Finance Team annually and if revision is deemed to be appropriate will be reviewed by the Chief 

Financial Officer and FMPA General Counsel in consultation with Disclosure Counsel before 

submittal to any of the Agency’s governing bodies for approval. 

4. The process of revising and updating Disclosure Documents should not be viewed as 

mechanical insertions of more current information; everyone involved in the process should 

consider the need for revisions in the form and content of the sections for which they are 

responsible. 

VIII. Amendments and Updates; Miscellaneous 

1. Internal Use Only. The Disclosure Procedures are intended for the internal use of 

the FMPA only and is not intended to establish any duties in favor of or rights of any person 

other than FMPA. 

2. Departure from Procedures. The officers and employees charged by these 

Disclosure Procedures with performing or refraining from any action may depart from these 

Disclosure Procedures when the Chief Financial Officer or the General Manager and the FMPA 

General Counsel in good faith determine that such departure is in the best interests of FMPA and 

consistent with the duties of the FMPA under federal and state securities laws. The Board and 

the Executive Committee will be notified within three (3) business days after any such departure 

from these Disclosure Procedures. 

3. Periodic Review. The Disclosure Procedures shall be reviewed annually by the 

Debt Financing Team. In addition, at any time all officers and employees of FMPA are invited 

and encouraged to make recommendations for changes to these Disclosure Procedures so that it 

fosters better compliance with applicable law, results in better information to investors, or makes 

the procedures required by these Disclosure Procedures more efficient. 

4. Recommendations for Change. Following receipt of any such recommendation, 

the Chief Financial Officer shall give his or her advice regarding the recommendation to the 

Disclosure Working Group and to FMPA General Counsel and Disclosure Counsel who shall 

consider the recommendation and advice, determine whether to propose a formal change to these 

Disclosure Procedures, and submit such proposal to the General Manager for determination as to 

whether to bring such changes to Board and Executive Committee for approval.  The FC shall 

review and approve any proposed changes to these Disclosure Procedures prior to their 

submission to the Board and Executive Committee for approval. 

 

Page 445 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-1 

Appendix A 

[Attach copy of a recent Continuing Disclosure Agreement] 

  

Page 446 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-2 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

ALL-REQUIREMENTS POWER SUPPLY PROJECT 

REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2018A 
  

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

  

THIS AGREEMENT, dated July 12, 2018, is made by and between the Agency and the 

Trustee, each as defined below in Section 1. 

In order to permit the Underwriters to comply with the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 in 

connection with the public offering of the Bonds, the parties hereto, in consideration of the 

mutual covenants herein contained and other good and lawful consideration, hereby agree, for 

the sole and exclusive benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, as follows: 

Section 1.  Definitions; Rules of Construction. 

(i) Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings 

ascribed to them in the Resolutions. 

“Agency” shall mean Florida Municipal Power Agency, a governmental legal 

entity created pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida. 

“Annual Agency Financial Information” shall mean the information specified in 

Section 3(i) hereof. 

“Annual Financial Information” shall mean the Annual Major Participant 

Financial Information and Annual Agency Financial Information, collectively. 

“Annual Major Participant Financial Information” shall mean the information 

specified in Section 3(ii) hereof. 

“Audited Financial Statements” shall mean the Audited Agency Financial 

Statements and the Audited Major Participant Financial Statements. 

“Audited Agency Financial Statements” shall mean the annual financial 

statements of the Agency, audited by such auditors as shall then be required or permitted 

by State law or the Resolutions.  Audited Agency Financial Statements shall be prepared 

in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that the Agency may, from time to time, if 

required by federal or State legal requirements, modify the accounting principles to be 

followed in preparing its financial statements.  

Page 447 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-3 

“Audited Major Participant Financial Statements” shall mean the annual financial 

statements of each Major Participant audited by such auditors as shall then be required or 

permitted by State law.  Audited Major Participant Financial Statements shall be prepared 

in accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that Major Participants may, from time to 

time, if required, by federal or State legal requirements, or otherwise, modify the 

accounting principles to be followed in preparing its financial statements. 

“Bonds” shall mean the Agency’s All-Requirements Power Supply Project 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A. 

“EMMA” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system, the 

electronic format information repository to the MSRB, created in accordance with certain 

amendments to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or 

its successor. 

“GAAP” shall mean generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from 

time to time in the United States. 

“Holder” shall mean any registered owner of Bonds, and, for purposes of 

Section 5 of this Agreement only, if registered in the name of DTC (or a nominee 

thereof) or in the name of any other entity (or a nominee thereof) that acts as a “clearing 

corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and is a 

“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, any beneficial owner of Bonds. 

“Major Participants” shall mean, individually or collectively as the context 

requires, each Participant which shall have a Participant’s Share and each Participant or 

other unit of local government which pursuant to the Power Sales Contracts or otherwise 

shall have and/or shall have assumed (by agreement or by operation of law) the 

obligations of one or more Participants under the Power Sales Contracts to the extent of 

an aggregate Participant’s Share in excess of 10%.  The Major Participants currently are 

the City of Jacksonville Beach, the Utility Board of the City of Key West, the Kissimmee 

Utility Authority and the City of Ocala.  

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934. 

“Participants” shall mean City of Bushnell, City of Clewiston, City of Fort 

Meade, Town of Havana, City of Green Cove Springs, City of Jacksonville Beach, City 

of Leesburg, City of Ocala, Utility Board of the City of Key West, Kissimmee Utility 

Authority, City of Lake Worth, City of Newberry, City of Starke, City of Vero Beach and 

Fort Pierce Utilities Authority. 

“Participant’s Share” shall mean the Participant’s prior years kWh purchases from 

the All-Requirements Power Supply Project. 

Page 448 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-4 

“Resolutions” shall mean the All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond 

Resolution, adopted on March 22, 1985, as amended and restated in its entirety on 

May 23, 2003, as amended and supplemented, including as supplemented by the 

Series 2018A Supplemental All-Requirements Power Supply Revenue Bond Resolution 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) adopted on June 14, 2018. 

“Rule 15c2-12” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 (as amended through the date of this 

Agreement) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including any 

official interpretations thereof promulgated on or prior to the effective date hereof. 

“State” shall mean the State of Florida. 

“Trustee” shall mean TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, or 

any successor trustee under the Resolution. 

“Unaudited Agency Financial Statements” shall mean the same as Audited 

Agency Financial Statements except that they shall not have been audited. 

“Unaudited Major Participant Financial Statements” shall mean the same as 

Audited Major Participant Financial Statements except that they shall not have been 

audited. 

“Underwriters” shall mean the underwriter or underwriters that have contracted to 

purchase the Bonds from the Agency upon initial issuance. 

(ii) Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, the following rules shall apply 

to the construction of this Agreement: 

(a) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and 

vice versa. 

(b) Any reference herein to a particular Section or subsection without further 

reference to a particular document or provision of law or regulation is a reference to a 

Section or subsection of this Agreement. 

(c) The captions and headings herein are solely for convenience of reference 

and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement nor shall they affect its meaning, 

construction or effect. 

Section 2.  Obligation to Provide Continuing Disclosure. 

(i) The Agency hereby undertakes, for the benefit of Holders of the Bonds, to 

provide or cause to be provided: 

(a) to the MSRB through its EMMA system, no later than nine months after 

the end of each fiscal year, commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017, 

the Annual Financial Information relating to such fiscal year; 

Page 449 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-5 

(b) if not submitted as part of the Annual Financial Information, to the MSRB 

through its EMMA system, not later than nine months after the end of each fiscal year 

commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017, (1) Audited Agency 

Financial Statements for such fiscal year when and if they become available and, if such 

Audited Agency Financial Statements are not available on the date which is nine months 

after the end of a fiscal year, the Unaudited Agency Financial Statements for such fiscal 

year and (2) Audited Major Participant Financial Statements for such fiscal year when 

and if they become available and, if such Audited Major Participant Financial Statements 

are not available on the date which is nine months after the end of a fiscal year, the 

Unaudited Major Participation Financial Statements for such fiscal year; provided, 

however, in the case of Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, that the same 

can practicably be obtained by the Agency;   

(c) to EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with 

respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the 

event: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to 

perform; 

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service 

of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of 

Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 

determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

7. modifications to the rights of Bondholders, if material; 

8. bond calls, if material, and tender offers;  

9 defeasances; 

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

Bonds, if material; 

11. rating changes; 

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings of the 

Agency or a Major Participant; 

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition, or the 

sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Agency or a 

Major Participant, other than in the ordinary course of business, the 

entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such action or the 

Page 450 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-6 

termination of a definitive agreement relating to such actions, other 

than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

14. appointment of a successor trustee or additional trustee or the 

change of name of a trustee, if material. 

(d) to EMMA, in a timely manner, notice of a failure to provide any 

Annual Financial Information required by clause (i)(a) of this Section 2. 

(ii) The Agency may satisfy its obligations hereunder by filing any notice, document 

or information with the MSRB through its EMMA system, to the extent permitted or required by 

the SEC. 

(iii) Other Information.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent the Agency from 

disseminating any other information in addition to that required hereby in the manner set forth 

herein or in any other manner.  If the Agency should disseminate any such additional 

information, the Agency shall not have any obligation hereunder to update such information or to 

include it in any future materials disseminated hereunder. 

(iv) Disclaimer.  The Agency and the Trustee shall be obligated to perform only those 

duties expressly provided for such entity in this Agreement, and neither of the foregoing shall be 

under any obligation to the Holders or other parties hereto to perform, or monitor the 

performance of, any duties of the other party. 

Section 3.  Annual Financial Information. 

(i) The required Annual Agency Financial Information shall consist of the following: 

(A) financial and operating data relating to the Agency’s All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project consisting of:  (1) a description of the Agency’s 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project; (2) information of the type included in 

the table captioned “Historical Capacity Requirements and Resources” under the 

heading “THE PROJECT” in the Official Statement for the three most recently 

completed fiscal years; (3) historical operating results for the All-Requirements 

Power Supply Project for the three most recently completed fiscal years, including 

net sales to cities and net power costs; and (4) information concerning the 

Agency’s debt service requirements for the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project; 

(B) a presentation of the Agency’s financial results in accordance with GAAP 

for the two most recent completed fiscal years for which that information is then 

currently available;  

(C)  material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(D) such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding 

and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information 

and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the 

Agency. 

Page 451 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-7 

(ii) The required Annual Major Participant Financial Information shall consist of the 

following: 

(A)  financial and operating data consisting of: (1) the information of the type 

contained in Appendix B to the Official Statement, other than the information 

contained under the headings “General”; (2) information concerning sales of 

electric services, customers, and non-coincident peak demand; and (3) a 

presentation of the Major Participants’ information concerning historical net 

energy requirements and peak demand;  

(B)  material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(C)  such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding 

and to assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information 

and operating data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of, the 

Major Participants. 

The type of financial information and operating data relating to the Agency described in 

Sections 3(i)(A), (B) and (C) is currently included in the Official Statement dated June 26, 2018 

and relating to the Bonds under the headings “DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS”, 

“THE PROJECT” and “LITIGATION”.  The type of financial information and operating data 

relating to the Major Participants described in Sections 3(ii)(A), (B) and (C) is currently included 

in the Official Statement dated June 26, 2018 under the headings “THE PROJECT 

PARTICIPANTS”, APPENDIX A – “MEMBER PARTICIPATION IN FMPA PROJECTS” and 

APPENDIX B – “THE MAJOR PARTICIPANTS”.  The requirements contained in this section 

are intended to set forth a general description of the type of financial information and operating 

data to be provided; such descriptions are not intended to state more than general categories of 

financial information and operating data; and where the provisions of clause (i) call for 

information that no longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been 

materially changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided. 

All or any portion of the Annual Financial Information may be incorporated therein by 

cross reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB through its 

EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, that if the 

document is an official statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not have been 

filed elsewhere. 

Annual Financial Information for any fiscal year containing any modified operating data 

or financial information (as contemplated by Section 7 hereof) for each such fiscal year shall 

explain, in narrative form, the reasons for such modification and the effect of such modification 

on the Annual Financial Information being provided for such fiscal year.  If a change in 

accounting principles is included in any such modification, such Annual Financial Information 

shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis 

of the modified accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 

principles.  Such comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 

accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the 

presentation of the financial information.  To the extent feasible, such comparison shall also be 

Page 452 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-8 

quantitative.  A notice of any such change in accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB 

through its EMMA system. 

Information From Major Participants.  The Agency agrees to request, obtain and 

provide, pursuant to the All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts or otherwise, Annual 

Major Participant Financial Information, Audited Major Participant Financial Statements, and 

information relating to any change in fiscal year and the basis on which audited financial 

statements are prepared, from time to time and in sufficient time to permit the Agency to comply 

with the provisions of this Agreement, and shall enforce such provisions of this Agreement; the 

failure of any Major Participant to furnish any such requested information or data shall not 

excuse the performance by the Agency of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  Under the 

All-Requirements Power Supply Project Contracts, the Participants are required to furnish to the 

Agency, upon request all information, financial statements and other documents as shall be 

reasonably necessary in connection with the financing of the All-Requirements Power Supply 

Project. 

Section 4.  Financial Statements.   The Audited Financial Statements for each fiscal 

year shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP as in effect from time to time.  Such financial 

statements shall be audited by an independent accounting firm. 

All or any portion of the Audited or Unaudited Financial Statements may be incorporated 

therein by specific reference to any other documents which have been filed with (i) the MSRB 

through its EMMA system or (ii) the Securities and Exchange Commission; provided, however, 

that if the document is an official statement, it shall have been filed with the MSRB and need not 

have been filed elsewhere. 

Section 5.  Remedies.   If the Agency shall fail to comply with any provision of this 

Agreement, then the Trustee or any Holder of Bonds may enforce, for the equal benefit and 

protection of all Holders similarly situated, by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in 

equity, this Agreement against the Agency and any of its officers, agents and employees, and 

may compel the Agency or any of its officers, agents or employees to perform and carry out their 

duties under this Agreement; provided that the sole and exclusive remedy for breach of this 

Agreement shall be an action to compel specific performance of the obligations of the Agency 

hereunder and no person or entity shall be entitled to recover monetary damages hereunder under 

any circumstances, and, provided further, that any challenge to the adequacy of any information 

provided pursuant to Section 2 shall be brought only by the Trustee or the Holders of 25% in 

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding which are affected thereby.  

Failure to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a default under the 

Resolutions nor give right to the Trustee or any Holder to exercise any of the remedies under the 

Resolutions. 

Section 6.  Parties in Interest.   This Agreement is executed and delivered solely for the 

benefit of the Holders of the Bonds which, for the purposes of Section 5, include those beneficial 

owners of Bonds specified in the definition of Holder set forth in Section 1.  For the purposes of 

such Section 5, such beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-party beneficiaries of this 

Agreement.  No person other than those described in Section 5 shall have any right to enforce the 

provisions hereof or any other rights hereunder. 

Page 453 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-9 

Section 7.  Amendments.   Without the consent of any Holders (except to the extent 

expressly provided below), the Agency and the Trustee at any time and from time to time may 

enter into any amendments or changes to this Agreement for any of the following purposes: 

(i) to comply with or conform to Rule 15c2-12 or any amendments thereto or 

authoritative interpretations thereof by the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff 

(whether required or optional) which are applicable to the Agreement; 

(ii) to add a dissemination agent for the information required to be provided hereby 

and to make any necessary or desirable provisions with respect thereto; 

(iii) to evidence the succession of another person to the Agency and the assumption by 

any such successor of the covenants of the Agency hereunder; 

(iv) to add to the covenants of the Agency for the benefit of the Holders, or to 

surrender any right or power herein conferred upon the Agency; or 

(v) for any other purpose as a result of a change in circumstances that arises from a 

change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the 

Agency, or type of business conducted; provided that (1) the Agreement, as amended, would 

have complied with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 at the time of the offering of the Bonds, 

after taking into account any amendments or authoritative interpretations of Rule 15c2-12, as 

well as any change in circumstances, (2) the amendment or change either (a) does not materially 

impair the interests of Holders, as determined by bond counsel or (b) is approved by the vote or 

consent of Holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Bonds affected thereby 

at or prior to the time of such amendment or change and (3) the Trustee receives an opinion of 

bond counsel that such amendment is authorized or permitted by this Agreement. 

Section 8.  Termination.   This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such 

time as all principal, redemption premiums, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall have been 

paid in full or legally defeased pursuant to the Resolutions (a “Legal Defeasance”); provided, 

however, that if Rule 15c2-12 (or successor provision) shall be amended, modified or changed so 

that all or any part of the information currently required to be provided thereunder shall no 

longer be required to be provided thereunder, then such information shall no longer be required 

to be provided hereunder; and provided, further, that if and to the extent Rule 15c2-12 

(or successor provision), or any provision thereof shall be declared by a court of competent and 

final jurisdiction to be, in whole or in part, invalid, unconstitutional, null and void, or otherwise 

inapplicable to the Bonds, then the information required to be provided hereunder, insofar as it 

was required to be provided by a provision of Rule 15c2-12 so declared, shall no longer be 

required to be provided hereunder.  Upon any Legal Defeasance, the Agency shall provide notice 

of such defeasance to the MSRB through its EMMA system.  Such notice shall state whether the 

Bonds have been defeased to maturity or to redemption and the timing of such maturity or 

redemption.  Upon any other termination pursuant to this Section 8, the Agency shall provide 

notice of such termination to the MSRB through its EMMA system. 

Page 454 of 473



4833-3924-2860.2 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-10 

Section 9.  The Trustee. 

(i) Except as otherwise set forth herein, this Agreement shall not create any 

obligation or duty on the part of the Trustee and the Trustee shall not be subject to any liability 

hereunder for acting or failing to act as the case may be. 

(ii) The Agency shall indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee in connection with 

this Agreement, to the same extent provided in the Resolutions for matters arising thereunder. 

Section 10.  Governing Law.   This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Florida determined without regard to principles of conflict of law. 

Section 11.  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but which together shall constitute one and the 

same Agreement. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signatures appear on following page] 

Page 455 of 473



4841-0396-3298.3 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

A-11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly authorized, executed and 

delivered this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL POWER AGENCY 

By:   

Name:  Jacob Williams 

Title: General Manager and CEO  

TD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  
   as Trustee 

By:   

Name: David C. Leondi 

Title: Vice President 

 

Page 456 of 473



4841-0396-3298.3 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

B-1 

Appendix B 

Form of Notice to Major Participants 

  Date: [___________, _____] 

 

 

TO: [Name, Title] 

 [Name of Project Participant] (the “____________”) 

FROM: [Name, Title] 

 Florida Municipal Power Agency, on behalf of the [______________] Project 

RE: Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of [________, ____], by and between Florida 

Municipal Power Agency, on behalf of the [_____________] Project (the “Agency”) and 

[______________], as trustee (the “Trustee”) (as amended, modified, or supplemented from 

time to time, the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) 

DATE: [___________, ____] 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 On [____________, _____], the Agency issued $_____________ in aggregate principal amount 

of its [Name of Bonds], Series _____ (the “Bonds”) for the [Name of Project] (the “Project”).  In 

connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the Agency entered into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement 

which, among other things, requires the Agency to obtain and to provide or cause to be provided to the 

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system 

(“EMMA”) certain information about each of the participants in the Project which provide to FMPA at 

least 10.0% of the revenues for such Project in a fiscal year (each, a “Major Participant”).  You are 

receiving this notice because as of the date hereof, the [Name of Participant] has been determined to be a 

Major Participant under the terms of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

 As a Major Participant, you will need to submit the following information to FMPA: 

 (1) operating and financial information annually not later than [June 1]:1 

(A) financial and operating data consisting of: (1) the information of the type 

contained in Appendix B to the Official Statement (a copy of which is attached hereto), 

other than the information contained under the headings “General”; (2) information 

concerning sales of electric services, customers, and non-coincident peak demand; and 

(3) a presentation of the information concerning historical net energy requirements and 

peak demand; 

(B) material litigation related to any of the foregoing; together with 

(C) such narrative explanation as may be necessary to avoid misunderstanding and to 

assist the reader in understanding the presentation of financial information and operating 

                                                 
1The Agency is required to file the information on EMMA not later than nine months after the end of each fiscal 

year which is June 30. 

Page 457 of 473



4841-0396-3298.3 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

B-2 

data concerning, and in judging the financial condition of [Name of Participant]; and 

(2) notice of the following events immediately upon their occurrence2: 

 (A) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of a Major Participant; 

 (B)  the incurrence of a Financial Obligation (as defined below) of the Major 

Participant, if material, or agreement as to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority 

rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the Major Participant, any of 

which affect holders of the Bonds, if material; and 

 (C) a default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Major Participant, any of 

which reflect financial difficulties. 

“Financial Obligation” (i) means a: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative instrument entered into in 

connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; 

or (C) guarantee of (A) or (B), but (ii) does not include municipal securities as to which a final official 

statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with Rule 15c2-12. 

For purposes of determining whether an obligation of the Commission is a “financial obligation” 

as defined above, the following guidelines shall apply: 

(1) The term “financial obligation” does not include ordinary financial and operating 

liabilities incurred in the normal course of your business. The term is intended to pick up 

actual debt, debt-like obligations or obligations related to debt. 

(2) Only leases where the Major Participant is lessee and the lease rentals are, to the 

knowledge of the Major Participant, pledged to repay a debt or operate as a way to 

borrow money shall constitute “financial obligations.”  All other leases, whether or real 

property or equipment, entered into in the ordinary course of business shall not constitute 

“financial obligations.” 

(3) Revolving credit agreements and commercial paper notes are “financial obligations”, but 

an event notice is only required to be filed when a major legal document associated with 

a revolving credit agreement or commercial paper note program is entered into or 

extended.  An event notice need not be filed when the outstanding amount of the 

revolving credit line or commercial paper goes up or down because notes are issued or 

repaid. 

(4) Only derivative obligations that have a direct nexus to a financial obligation need to be 

disclosed.  Ordinary course commodity contracts would not need to be reported. 

(5) [Other clarifications needed?  Pending further internal discussion]. 

To ensure compliance with the notice events described above, FMPA hereby requests that you 

provide by email sent to the Treasurer of FMPA at [______________] not less frequently than monthly a 

statement confirming that no events requiring disclosure have occurred during the prior period and that 

                                                 
2FMPA is required to file notice each of these events on EMMA no later than 10 Business Days after the occurrence 

of such events. 

Page 458 of 473



4841-0396-3298.3 

 

Draft 9/9/19 

B-3 

you notify the Treasurer immediately after learning of any such event, regardless of materiality. 

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please contact ___________________. 

Page 459 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       AGENDA ITEM 9 – INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

d. Starke FGT Firm Gas Transportation 
Contract Assignment to FMPA  

 
 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 460 of 473



FMPA Executive Committee
September 19, 2018

EC 9d – Starke FGT Firm Gas Transportation 
Contract Assignment to FMPA

Page 461 of 473



Starke FGT Capacity

• Starke possessed FGT FTS-1 Capacity when joining the ARP

• Starke capacity is assigned and managed by FGU and represents 
0.36% of FMPA’s contracted capacity

• FMPA has been responsible for and has paid all costs associated 
with this capacity 

• Starke wishes to assign its capacity to FMPA, eliminating future 
liability to FGT for this capacity

2

Background

Page 462 of 473



Starke FGT Capacity Assignment to FMPA

3

• No change to the ARP’s financial exposure for firm capacity 

(Annual Expense - $66,305)

• Assigned FGT contract termination date of 7/31/2030 and prior to 
Starke’s withdrawal from the ARP in 2033

Receipt
(MMBtu/d)

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Zone 1 111 111 111 111 136 136 136 136 136 144 111 111

Zone 2 128 128 128 127 161 161 161 161 161 172 128 128

Zone 3 61 61 61 62 80 80 80 80 80 84 61 61

Total 
Capacity

300 300 300 300 377 377 377 377 377 400 300 300

Page 463 of 473



Next Steps – Starke Gas Transport Contract Assignment

4

• Legal review of FMPA replacement transport contract

• Present contract to the Executive Committee for approval for the GM 
and CEO to execute the contract at the October EC Meeting

• Upon FMPA execution, return the agreement to FGT for execution

• Release the capacity to FGU for incorporation into FGU’s aggregated 
transportation contract 5141

Page 464 of 473



Information Only

5

• Questions? 

Page 465 of 473



FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY
Request No.207505

Contract No. 124146

Legal Entity No. 4117
DUNS No. 798326856

SERVICE AGREEMENT
Firm Transportation Service-Market Area

Rate Schedule FTS-1

Contract No. 124146

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this 1st day of August, 2019, by and between Florida Gas Transmission Company, LLC, a limited liability
company of the State of Delaware (herein called "Transporter"), and Florida Municipal Power Agency (herein called "Shipper"),

WITNESSETH

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, the sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, Transporter and Shipper do covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

Definitions

In addition to the definitions incorporated herein through Transporter's Rate Schedule FTS-1, the following terms when used herein shall
have the meanings set forth below:

1.1 The term "Rate Schedule FTS-1" shall mean Transporter's Rate Schedule FTS-1 as filed with the FERC as changed and adjusted from time
to time by Transporter in accordance with Section 5.2 hereof or in compliance with any final FERC order affecting such rate schedule.

1.2 The term "FERC" shall mean the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor regulatory agency or body, including the
Congress, which has authority to regulate the rates and services of Transporter.

ARTICLE II

Quantity

2.1 The Maximum Daily Transportation Quantity ("HflDTQ") shall be set forth on a seasonal basis, and by Division if applicable, on Exhibit B
attached hereto. The applicable MDTQ shall be the largest daily quantity of gas expressed in MMBtu, that Transporter is obligated to transport
and make available for delivery to Shipper under this Service Agreement on any one day.

2.2 During the term of this Agreement, Shipper may tender natural gas for transportation to Transporter on any day, up to the MDTQ plus
Transporter's fuel, if applicable. Transporter agrees to receive the aggregate of the quantities of natural gas that Shipper tenders for
transportation at the Receipt Points, up to the maximum daily quantity specified for each receipt point as set out on Exhibit A, plus
Transporter's fuel, if applicable, and to transport and make available for delivery to Shipper at each Delivery Point specified on Exhibit B, up
to the amount scheduled by Transporter less Transporter's fuel, if applicable (as provided in Rate Schedule FTS-1), provided however, that
Transporter shall not be required to accept for transportation and make available for delivery more than the MDTQ on any day.

ARTICLE III

No Notices Transportation Service

To the extent that Shipper has subscribed for No Notice Transportation Service within its FTS-1 MDTQ, such level of No Notice Transportation
Service subscribed for is set forth on the NNTS Addendum to this FTS-1 Service Agreement. Such No Notice Transportation Service shall be
provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of Rate Schedule NNTS, and within Shipper's MDTQ under this FTS-1 Service
Agreement.

ARTICLE IV

Payment and Rights in the Event of Non-Payment

4.1 Upon the commencement of service hereunder, Shipper shall pay Transporter, for all service rendered hereunder, the rates established
under Transporter's Rate Schedule FTS-1 as filed with the FERC and as said Rate Schedule may hereafter be legally amended or superseded.

4.2 Termination for Non-Payment. In the event Shipper fails to pay for the service provided under this Agreement, pursuant to the condition
set forth in Section 15 of the General Terms and Conditions of Transporter's FERC Gas Tariff, Transporter shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement pursuant to the condition set forth in said Section 15.

ARTICLE V

Rights to Amend Rates and Terms and Conditions of Service

5.1 This Agreement in all respects shall be and remain subject to the provisions of said Rate Schedule and of the applicable provisions of the
General Terms and Conditions of Transporter on file with the FERC (as the same may hereafter be legally amended or superseded), all of
which are made a part hereof by this reference.

Page 466 of 473



5.2 Transporter shall have the unilateral right to file with the appropriate regulatory authority and seek to make changes in (a) the rates and
charges applicable to its Rate Schedule FTS-1 (b) Rate Schedule FTS-1 including the Form of Service Agreement and the existing Service
Agreement pursuant to which this service is rendered; provided however, that the firm character of service shall not be subject to change
hereunder by means of a Section 4 Filing by Transporter, and/or (c) any provisions of the General Terms and Conditions of Transporter's
Tariff applicable to Rate Schedule FTS-1. Transporter agrees that Shipper may protest or contest the aforementioned filings, or seek
authorization from duly constituted regulatory authorities for such adjustment of Transporter's existing FERC Gas Tariff as may be found
necessary in order to assure that the provisions in (a), (b) or (c) above are just and reasonable.

ARTICLE VI

Term of Agreement and Commencement of Service

6.1 This Agreement shall become effective on 08/01/2019 and shall continue in effect through 07/31/2030. In accordance with the provisions
of Section 20 of the General terms and Conditions of the Transporter's Tariff, Shipper has elected Right of First Refusal.

6.2 In the event the capacity being contracted for was acquired pursuant to Section 18.C.2 of Transporter's Tariff, then this Agreement shall

terminate on the date set forth in Section 6.1 above. Otherwise, upon the expiration of the primary term and any extension or roll-over,
termination will be governed by the provisions of Section 20 of the General Terms and Conditions of Transporter's Tariff.

6.3 Service hereunder shall commence as set forth in Section 2 of Rate Schedule FTS-1.

ARTICLE VII

Point(s) of Receipt and Delivery and Maximum Daily Quantities

7.1 The Primary Point(s) of Receipt and maximum daily quantity for each Primary Point of Receipt, for all gas delivered by Shipper into
Transporter's pipeline system under this Agreement shall be at the Point(s) of Receipt on Transporter's pipeline system as set forth in Exhibit
A attached hereto. In accordance with the provisions of Section 8.A. of Rate Schedule FTS-1 and Section 21.F. of the General Terms and
Conditions of Transporter's Tariff, Shipper may request changes in its Primary Point(s) of Receipt. Transporter may make such changes in
accordance with the terms of Rate Schedule FTS-1 and the applicable General Terms and Conditions of its Tariff.

7.2 The Primary Point(s) of Delivery and maximum daily quantity for each point for all gas made available for delivery by Transporter to
Shipper, or for the account of Shipper, under this Agreement shall be at the Point(s) of Delivery as set forth in Exhibit B and shall be in
Transporter's Market Area; provided, however, that a Shipper who acquires a segment of FTS-1 capacity in the Western Division may only
request new Delivery Points in Transporter's Western Division. In accordance with the provisions of Section 9.A. of Rate Schedule FTS-1 and
Section 21 .F. of the General Terms and Conditions of Transporter's Tariff, Shipper may request changes in its Primary Point(s) of Delivery
provided that such new requested Primary Delivery Points must be located in Transporter's Market Area; provided, however, that a Shipper
who acquires a segment of FTS-1 capacity in the Western Division may only request new Delivery Points in Transporter's Western Division.
Transporter may make such changes in accordance with the terms of Rate Schedule FTS-1 and the applicable General Terms and Conditions
of its Tariff. Transporter is not obligated to accept changes where the new Primary Delivery Point is also a delivery point under a Rate
Schedule SFTS Service Agreement and the load to be served is an existing behind-the-gate customer of a Rate Schedule SFTS Shipper as
defined in Section 11 of Rate Schedule SFTS.

ARTICLE VIII

Notices

All notices, payments and communications with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing and sent to Transporter's address posted on
Transporter's Internet website or to Shipper's address stated below or at any other such address as may hereafter be designated in writing:

Shipper:
Florida Municipal Power Agency
8553 Commodity Circle
Orlando.FL 32819-9002
Attention: Richard Montgomery

Telephone No. 407-355-7767

FAX No. 321-239-1167

ARTICLE IX

Construction of Facilities

To the extent that construction of new or requested facilities is necessary to provide service under this Service Agreement, such
construction, including payment for the facilities, shall occur in accordance with Section 21 of the General Terms and Conditions of

Transporter's Tariff.

ARTICLE X - Not Applicable

Page 467 of 473



ARTICLE Xl

Pressure

11.1 The quantities of gas delivered or caused to be delivered by Shipper to Transporter hereunder shall be delivered into Transporter's
pipeline system at a pressure sufficient to enter Transporter's system, but in no event shall such gas be delivered at a pressure exceeding the
maximum authorized operating pressure or such other pressure as Transporter permits at the Point(s) of Receipt.

11.2 Transporter shall have no obligation to provide compression and/or alter its system operation to effectuate deliveries at the Point(s) of
Delivery hereunder.

ARTICLE XII

Other Provisions

ARTICLE XIII

Miscellaneous

13.1 This Agreement shall bind and benefit the successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto; provided however, neither party shall
assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder without first obtaining the written consent of the other party.

13.2 No waiver by either party of any one or more defaults by the other in the performance of any provisions of this Agreement shall operate

or be construed as a waiver of any future defaults of a like or different character.

13.3 This Agreement contains Exhibits A and B (and NNTS Addendum, if applicable) which are incorporated fully herein.

13.4 THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS,
WITHOUT REFERENCE TO ANY CONFLICT OF LAWS DOCTRINE WHICH WOULD APPLY THE LAWS OF ANOTHER JURISDICTION.

ARTICLE XIV

Superseding Prior Service Agreements

This Agreement supersedes and replaces the following Service Agreements between Transporter and Shipper: Not Applicable

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized officers effective as of the date first written
above.

TRANSPORTER

FLORIDA GAS TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC

SHIPPER

FLORIDA MUNICPAL POWER AGENCY

By:.

Name:

Title:

Date:

By:.

Name:

Title:

Date:

Page 468 of 473



EXHIBIT A
TO

RATE SCHEDULE FTS-1 SERVICE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

Florida Gas Transmission Company, LLC
AND

Florida IVIunicipal Power Agency
DATED

08/01/2019
Contract No. 124146
Amendment No. 0

Effective Date of this Exhibit A: 08/01/2019

Date Range: 09/01/2019 to 07/31/2030

Point(s) of Receipt

Point Description Point DRN Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Maximum Daily Quantity (MMBtu)*

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Zone1

Sabine Pass Plant

HPL Magnet Withers

NGPL Jefferson

Refugio-Crosstex Energy

Zone 1 Total:

282

8576

10240

78349

23422

24662

23703

337605

2

2

0

107

111

2

2

0

107

111

2

2

0

107

111

3

70

0

38

111

0

83

23

30

136

0

83

23

30

136

0

83

23

30

136

0

83

23

30

136

0

83

23

30

136

0

115

13

16

144

2

2

0

107

111

2

2

0

107

111

Zone 2

GSPL St Landry

NGPL Vermilion

Zone 2 Total:

10102

57391

10034

32606

75

53

128

75

53

128

75

53

128

71

56

127

84

77

161

84

77

161

84

77

161

84

77

161

84

77

161

66

106

172

75

53

128

75

53

128

Zone 3

TENN Games (Rec)

TRANSCO Citronelle FGT Capacity

SNG High Point-TOCA

10258

62132

100016

12740

157553

640000

61

0

0

61

0

0

61

0

0

53

9

0

43

37

0

43

37

0

43

37

0

43

37

0

43

37

0

84

0

0

26

0

19

61

0

0

Page 469 of 473



SNG Koch-Shadyside 930300 10370 0000000000 16 0

Zone 3 Total: 61 61 61 62 80 80 80 80 80 84 61 61

TotalMDTQ: 300 300 300 300 377 377 377 377 377 400 300 300

Quantities are exclusive of Fuel Reimbursement. Shipper shall provide fuel pursuant to Fuel Reimbursement Charge Adjustment provisions of Transporter's
F.E.R.C. Gas Tariff, General Terms and Conditions.

Page 470 of 473



EXHIBIT B
TO

RATE SCHEDULE FTS-1 SERVICE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

Florida Gas Transmission Company, LLC
AND

Florida Municipal Power Agency
DATED

08/01/2019
Contract No. 124146
Amendment No. 0

Effective Date of this Exhibit B: 08/01/2019

Date Range: 09/01/2019 to 07/31/2030

Point(s) of Delivery

Point Description Point DRN Jan Feb Mar Apr Mai

Maximum Daily Quantity (MIVIBtu)*

June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Starke

Treasure Coast Energy Center

16148 2958 0

78443 475724 300

0 0 0 377 377 377 377 377 400 0 0

300 300 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 300 300

Total MDTQ:

Quantities are exclusive of Fuel Reimbursement.

300 300 300 300 377 377 377 377 377 400 300 300

Page 471 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
 
       AGENDA ITEM 10 – MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 472 of 473



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       AGENDA ITEM 11 – ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
   Executive Committee 

              September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
       

Page 473 of 473


	FMPA Executive Committee
	AGENDA
	1. Call to Order, Roll Call, Declaration of Quorum
	2. Set Agenda
	3. Recognition of Guests
	4. Public Comments
	5. Comments from the Chairman
	6. Report from the General Manager
	7. Consent Agenda
	a. Approval of Meeting Minutes – Meeting Held August 22, 2019; ARP Telephonic Rate Workshop Minutes Held August 14, 2019
	b. Approval of Treasury Reports – As of July 31, 2019
	c. Approval of the Agency and All-Requirements Project Financials as ofJuly 31, 2019

	8. Action Items
	a. None

	9. Information Items
	a. Review of Resolution 2019-EC6 and EC7 – Series 2019 A & B Bonds and Related Documents
	b. Update on FP&L Transmission Rate Increases
	c. Review of the Finance Municipal Disclosure Procedure Changes
	d. Starke FGT Firm Gas Transportation Contract Assignment to FMPA

	10.Member Comments
	11.Adjournment
	EC 9a-Review of Resolution 2019-EC6 and EC7.pdf
	9a –Review of Resolution 2019-EC6 and EC7 – Series 2019A&B Bonds
	Timing Is Right To Refinancing 08C & 13A
	2019 Refinancing May Have Net PV Savings
	Minimum Criteria Outlined In Resolutions
	After Today
	Recommended Motion
	Slide Number 7




